

 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
AND WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT AGENDA 


 


DECEMBER 15, 2021 
 


5:00 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION   
6:00 P.M. – ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 


 


Council Chambers 
23873 Clinton Keith Road Ste 106 


Wildomar, CA 92595 
 


OR 
 


Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357 


 
OR 


Dial in: 1 (669) 900 6833 | Webinar ID: 848 0169 9357  
 
 
 


 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor/Chair, District 2 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, District 1 
Bridgette Moore, Council Member/Trustee, District 4 
Joseph Morabito, Council Member/Trustee, District 3 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member/Trustee, District 5 


 
Gary Nordquist              Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager /General Manager         City Attorney/District Counsel 
 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357





 


 


The City of Wildomar encourages your 
participation in the meeting; however, to 
minimize the spread of the COVID-19 
virus, this meeting is being conducted in 
person and via video and 
teleconferencing with the following 
options available for the public to 
participate: 
 
1. You may view the Regular Session 
meeting live on the City of Wildomar’s 
website at http://www.cityofwildomar.org or 
on cable TV through Frontier Channel 36 or 
AT&T channel 99. To view from the website, 
select the live stream link on the top of the 
front page. 
 
2. You may participate via the ZOOM 
Webinar Telephone and Videoconferencing.  
 
3. You may participate in person; however, 
masks are recommended for all individuals, 
and seating may be limited as the City is still 
participating in the 6-foot social distancing 
seating procedure. 
 
Instructions for Electronic Participation  


 
Please Note: During the meeting all 
participants videos will be turned off 
during the entire meeting and you will be 
placed on Mute by the host. You will not 
be able to mute or unmute your lines 
manually. The host will unmute your line 
when you are called to speak.  
 
1. Log in or call into ZOOM via 
desktop/laptop, smartphone or telephone. 
You must download the ZOOM app to access 
the link from an Apple smartphone or IPAD. 
 
2. During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Mayor will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak, please raise your hand virtually to 
be placed in the queue.  
 
3. When your name or the last 3 digits of your 
phone number are called, the host will 
unmute you. Public Comments will be limited 


to 3 minutes or such other time as the Council 
may provide.    
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 
• At the bottom of the list, please click on the 
grey “Raise Hand” button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
SMARTPHONE: 
• Look for the “Raise Hand” button on the 
screen and click the button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
TELEPHONE line only: 
• Dial *9 on your keypad to signal that you 
would like to comment. When the Host 
unmutes you, Dial *6 to unmute. 
 


Instructions for In Person Participation  
 
During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Chair will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak on that item, please fill out a speaker 
slip and submit it in the inbox at the front of 
the room.  
 
When the City Clerk announces your name, 
please come up to the podium. Public 
Comments are limited to 3 minutes or such 
other time as the Council may provide. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, you 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 951-
677-7751 x210. 
 
The City of Wildomar thanks you in advance 
for taking all precautions to prevent 
spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
  
NOTICE: City Council meetings may be 
live-streamed, photographed and/or 
videotaped. Participation at the meeting 
constitutes consent by members of the 
public to the City’s and any third party’s 
use in any media, without compensation 
or further notice, of audio, video, and/or 
pictures of meeting attendees. 
 


 
 
 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


CLOSED SESSION 
 


1.  The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54957(b) regarding Public Employee Appointment. 
Title:  City Manager. 
 
2.  The City Council will meet in closed session to hold a conference with its 
Labor Negotiator regarding Unrepresented Employee pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6. 
Agency representative:  Dustin Nigg 
Unrepresented employee:  City Manager 
 
3.  The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) to confer with legal counsel with regard 
to the following matters of pending litigation: 
 
A. National Prescription Opiate Litigation (U.S.D.C. Case No. 1:17-CV-2804) 
 
B. City of Wildomar v. Lisa Marie Davis and Daniel Celaya; Case No. 
MCC2001484 
 
 


RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 


 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – ADJOURNED REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


FLAG SALUTE 
 


 


PRESENTATIONS 
1. 2021 Holiday Lights Contest Winners 
2. 10 Year Service Acknowledgement – Tina Roney 
3. Animal Friends of the Valleys Update 
4. Other City Recognitions/ Presentations 
 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Council receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction that do not appear on the agenda.   
 
 


COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 


1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 


The City Council to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it is the 
desire of the City Council, the agenda can be reordered, added to, or have items 
tabled at this time. 
 
 


1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Council, the Public, or Staff request to have specific items 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- October 13, 2021 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 11-04-2021 in the amount of $98,908.94. 
2. Warrant Register dated 11-11-2021 in the amount of $288,365.90. 
3. Warrant Register dated 11-18-2021 in the amount of $72,935.56. 
4. Warrant Register dated 11-24-2021 in the amount of $75,691.23. 
5. Wire Transfer Register dated 11-30-2021 in the amount of $211,280.48. 
6. Payroll Register dated 12-01-2021 in the amount of $174,914.04. 
 


1.4 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Treasurer’s Report for October 2021. 


 
1.5 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 207 – Culture Cannabis Club 


Development Agreement 20-0078(R1) 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends that 
the City Council adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 207 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF A CATEGORICAL 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15301 (CLASS 1) OF 
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND 


APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT #1 TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
NO. 20-0078(R1) TO EXPAND AN APPROVED 1,440 SQUARE-FOOT 


RETAIL CANNABIS BUSINESS INTO AN 835 SQUARE-FOOT 
ADJACENT SUITE NOW TOTALING 2,275 SQUARE FEET LOCATED IN 


THE C-1/C-P (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) ZONE AT 33980 MISSION 
TRAIL, SUITE #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) 


 
1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 208 – Adding Chapter 2.44 (Campaign 


Contribution Limits for Elective City Offices) to the Wildomar 
Municipal Code 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council adopt an 
Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 208 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.44 (CAMPAIGN 
CONTRIBUTION LIMITS FOR ELECTIVE CITY OFFICES) TO THE 


WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 
 


1.7 Minimum Hourly Wage Updates to the Position Classification, General 
Salary Schedules, and Senior Engineer FLSA Classification 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION 
SCHEDULE, THE GENERAL SALARY SCHEDULE RESULTING FROM 
THE INCREASE TO MINIMUM HOURLY WAGE RATE, AND REVISING 
THE FLSA CLASSIFICATION OF THE SENIOR ENGINEER POSITION 


FROM NON-EXEMPT TO EXEMPT 
 


1.8 Tract Map No. 32035 - McVicar Residential Project Final Map Approval, 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement, and Lien Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 65 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE TRACT 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


MAP 32035 MCVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND LIEN AGREEMENT 


 
2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Final Map and Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement with David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes, Louis 
E. Polakoff and Elaine Polakoff, Harry L. Keays, Ronald Auerbacher, Joan 
Maresca, Pensco Trust Company, Myra J. Ekrem, and Omni Financial, LLC, 
and Orbis Financial, LLC (Developers) for the Tract No. 32035 – McVicar 
Residential Project. 
3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Lien Agreement with Omni 
Financial, LLC, and Orbis Financial, LLC (Developers) for the Tract No. 
32035 – McVicar Residential Project. 
 
4. Authorize the City Engineer to accept the dedications related to Tract 
Map No. 32035 and direct the City Clerk to transmit to the County Recorder 
of the County. 
 


1.9 Tract No. 31667 - Boulder Creek Joint Community Facilities Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
Authorize the City Manager to execute the Joint Community Facilities 
Agreement (JCFA) between City of Wildomar, Community Facilities District 
No. 2017-2 (CFD No. 2017-2) of the Lake Elsinore Unified School District, 
and Beazer Homes Holdings, a Delaware limited liability company. 
 


1.10 Western Riverside Council of Governments Updated Joint Powers 
Agreement  
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement 
of the Western Riverside Council of Governments. 
 


1.11 Financial Services Contract for Municipal Consulting Services LLC 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Municipal 
Consulting Services LLC to provide financial services to the City of 
Wildomar. 
 


1.12 Service Agreement with County of Riverside for the Grand Ave. 
Microsurfacing Improvement Project 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council take the 
following action: 
 
1. Adopt a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301(c) of the 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


CEQA Guidelines. 
 
2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a service agreement with the 
County of Riverside in the amount of $14,877.40 for construction of the 
Grand Ave. Microsurfacing Improvements Project. 
 
3. Authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 10% 
of the agreement amount (contingency). 
 


1.13 Revised Appropriations Limit for FY 2020-21 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE REVISED APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 


 
1.14 Revised Appropriations Limit for FY 2021-22 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL 


YEAR 2021-22 
 


1.15 Award Services Agreement for Annual Grant Writing Services 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Approve six firms to be on the city’s Professional Services Pre-Qualified 
list for Grant Writing through December 31, 2024; and,  
 
2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Services Agreement between 
the City of Wildomar and California Consulting. 
 


1.16 Development Impact Fees – Annual Report as of June 30, 2021 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 
and file the Annual report for the Development Impact Fees for the Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2021. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


 
2.1 Monte Vista Ranch II Townhome Project (PA No. 21-0045): 


City Council review of a Mitigated Negative Declaration, General Plan 
Amendment, Change of Zone, Tentative Tract Map (TTM 38155) and a 
Plot Plan to construct a 62-unit townhome (for-sale) community 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Department recommends the City 
Council take the following actions: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
(SCH NO. 2021080301), AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND 


REPORTING PROGRAM (MMRP) FOR THE MONTE VISTA RANCH II 
TOWNHOME PROJECT CONSISTING OF GPA NO. 2021-04, CHANGE 
OF ZONE NO. 21-0045, TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 38155 AND PLOT 


PLAN NO. 21-0045 FOR A 62-UNIT TOWNHOME COMMUNITY 
LOCATED ON NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE VISTA DRIVE AND 
SUMMER SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004) 


 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2021-


04 (PA 21-0045) TO CHANGE THE EXISTING LAND USE 
DESIGNATION FROM BUSINESS PARK (BP) TO HIGH DENSITY 


RESIDENTIAL (HDR) FOR A 7.93-ACRE SITE LOCATED ON 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER 


SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004) 
  
3. Introduce and approve the first reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 21-
0045 TO CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION FROM C-O 


(COMMERCIAL OFFICE) TO R-3 (GENERAL RESIDENTIAL) FOR A 
7.93-ACRE SITE LOCATED ON NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE 


VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-
003, 367-502-004) 



https://www.cityofwildomar.org/cms/One.aspx?portalId=9894827&pageId=18183506





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


4. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 38155 (PA 
NO. 18-0034) TO SUBDIVIDE A 7.93-ACRE SITE INTO ONE SIX (6) 


LOTS FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES TO FACILITATE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A 62-UNIT TOWNHOME PROJECT LOCATED ON 


NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER 
SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004) 


 
5. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING PLOT PLAN/FSPOD NO. 21-0045 TO 
DEVELOP A 62-UNIT TOWNHOME COMMUNITY WITH RELATED ON-
SITE/OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, ON A 
7.93-ACRE SITE LOCATED ON NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE 


VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-
003, 367-502-004) 


 
2.2 Development Impact Fee Update Study (CIP 023) 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Conduct a Public Hearing to receive testimony regarding the 
Development Impact Fee Study Update Report dated December 2, 2021 
for the City of Wildomar; and  
 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE “CITY OF WILDOMAR IMPACT FEE 
STUDY” AND ESTABLISHING AND INCREASING DEVELOPMENT 


IMPACT FEES APPLICABLE TO ALL DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR 


 
 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 COVID-19 Update  


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 
and file the COVID-19 update and provide direction as desired. 
 


3.2 Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and 
CR&R 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and 
CR&R Incorporated and authorize the City Manager to sign it. This 
amendment would be effective January 1, 2022. 
 


3.3 Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and 
Waste Management 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and 
Waste Management and authorize the City Manager to sign it. This 
amendment would be effective January 1, 2022. 
 


3.4 2022 Parks and Community Services Special Event Dates 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Parks and Community Services special events calendar through 2022. 
 


3.5 Agreement for the position of City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the attached Employment Agreement between the City of Wildomar and 
Dan York for the position of City Manager. 
 


3.6 Appointment of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2022 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council appoint 
a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2022. 
 


3.7 Committees, Commissions, and Boards Appointment for 2022 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council review 


the list of committees, commissions, and boards and approve/change 
appointments, and/or delete Subcommittees as appropriate. 
 


 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. Salary and Benefits Survey- Benoit – Mar 2022 
2. Litter/illegal Dumping Fees and related signage- Moore – Dec 2021 Jan 2022 
3. Update from MSJC College regarding 2014 Bond Funding – Morabito - TBD 
4. Flag Policy – Morabito – Feb 2022 
5. Letter from City to State Representatives re: changing law of 602 letters- Morabito 
 
 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING   







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


In accordance with Government Code Section 54952.3, I, Janet 
Morales, City of Wildomar City Clerk, do hereby declare that the 
Board of Trustees will receive no compensation or stipend for the 
convening of the following regular meeting of the Wildomar 
Cemetery District. 
 
 
 


 


Dustin Nigg, Chair 
Ben J. Benoit, Vice Chair 
Bridgette Moore, Trustee 
Joseph Morabito, Trustee 
Marsha Swanson, Trustee 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Gary Nordquist               Thomas D. Jex 
General Manager              District Counsel 
 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Board of Trustees to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or if it is 
the desire of the Board, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 
 
 


4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
4.1 Minutes – November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 


approve the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 11-04-2021 in the amount of $7,717.25. 
2. Warrant Register dated 11-11-2021 in the amount of $796.97. 
3. Warrant Register dated 11-18-2021 in the amount of $3,929.00. 
4. Warrant Register dated 11-24-2021 in the amount of $262.01. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for October 2021. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 


 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There are no items scheduled. 
 
 


6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
There are no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


 
 


ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING  
 
 
REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review at City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at the following address: 
http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes.  Any writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) will be made 
available by appointment for public inspection at City Hall during regular business 
hours.   
 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 
 
Any person that requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting, 
may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by contacting the 
City Clerk either in person or by phone at 951-677-7751, no later than 10:00 a.m. 
on the day preceding the scheduled meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes





City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


December 15, 2021 


I, Janet Morales, Wildomar City Clerk, do certify that at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at Wildomar City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road; U.S. Post Office, 21392 Palomar Street; Wildomar 
Library, 34303 Mission Trail Blvd; and on the City’s website at 
www.cityofwildomar.org. 


______________________________ 


Janet Morales, CMC 
City Clerk 
Dated: December 10, 2021 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





Agenda Item #1.3 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


OCTOBER 13, 2021 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Closed Session of October 13, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Mayor Nigg at 
5:00 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: City Attorney Jex, City Clerk Morales, Assistant City Manager 
York. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
City Clerk Morales read the following: 
 
1. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54957(b) regarding Public Employee Appointment. 
Title:  City Manager. 
 
2. The City Council will meet in closed session to hold a conference with its 
Labor Negotiator regarding Unrepresented Employee pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6. 
 
Agency representative:  Dustin Nigg 
 
Unrepresented employee:  City Manager 
 
3. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) to confer with legal counsel with 
regard to two matters of potential initiation of litigation. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


2 


  
 
 
4. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) to confer with legal counsel with regard 
to the following matter of pending litigation: 
 
 A. City of Wildomar v. Lisa Marie Davis and Daniel Celaya; Case No. 
      MCC2001484 
 
5. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.8 to confer with legal counsel and conference 
with real property negotiators as follows: 
 
Project: Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (CIP 059) 
Right-of-Way Acquisition 
 
 
Properties:   See table below. 
Agency negotiator:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager. 
Negotiating parties:  See table below. 
Under Negotiation:   Instruction regarding price and term of payment. 
 


APN Property Owner Property Address 


380-130-007 John & Mary Emmerling 22470 Palomar Street 


380-130-008 Raymond and Patricia Dain 22590 Palomar Street 


380-130-009 Nadi & Mary Abdelsayed Vacant Lot, Palomar Street 


380-130-010 Tari Broderick Vacant Lot, Palomar Street 


380-130-011 Tari Broderick 32405 Windsong Lane 


380-400-042 Shadow Canyon Homeowners Association Common Area - SE corner 
Palomar/Shadow Canyon Trail 


380-140-004 IRA Services Trust Company 22651Palomar Street 


380-140-005 Kenneth and Janet Matsuda 22691 Palomar Street 


380-120-005 Chang, et al 32140 Clinton Keith Road 


380-120-012 Crazy Eights 32150 Clinton Keith Road 


 
The City Council convened into closed session at 5:02 p.m. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


3 


  
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
The City Council reconvened into open session with all members present at 6:22 
p.m. 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
City Attorney Jex stated that the City Council met in Closed Session and there is 
no reportable action.  
 
 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg adjourned the closed session at 6:23 
p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
The Regular Meeting of October 13, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Mayor Nigg at 
6:23 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant City Manager York, City Attorney Jex, City Clerk 
Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director Howell, Project 
Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, Associate Engineer 
Luna, Development Manager Stadnik, Associate Engineer Farag, Parks, 
Community Services Director Torres, Code Enforcement Supervisor Berroteran, 
Code Enforcement Officer Parker, Analyst Magdaleno, Code Enforcement 
Technician Baggio. 
 
The flag salute was led by Mayor Nigg. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. Code Enforcement Supervisor Berroteran recognized new City Employee Tina 
Baggio,     
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


4 


  
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Lt. Mack presented the Police Department update. 
 
2. Chief Olsen presented the Fire Department update. 
 
3. Library Manager Brautigam presented the Wildomar Library update. 
 
4. Senior Code Enforcement Officer Parker presented the Code Enforcement 
Department   update. 
 
5. Land Development Manager Stadnik and Associate Engineers Farag and Luna 
presented the Public Works/Engineering Department update. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The following provided public comments on items not on the Agenda: Jeremy 
Goldman, Southern California Edison; Kenneth Mayes, resident; Ms. Miller; Andy 
Morris, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District; Gina Castanon, resident. 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


5 


  
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Resident Kenny Mayes provided public comment on agenda item #1.8. 
 
Ms. Miller provided public comment on agenda items #1.6 & #1.11. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by Councilmember 
Swanson to approve the Consent Calendar except for agenda item #1.6. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- July 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Minutes- August 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
1. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $408,113.24. 
2. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $485.73. 
3. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $4,765.46. 
4. Warrant Register dated 09-23-2021 in the amount of $1,073,697.03. 
5. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $1,969.91. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
6. Warrant Register dated 09-02-2021 in the amount of $85,735.86. 
7. Warrant Register dated 09-09-2021 in the amount of $94,675.54. 
8. Warrant Register dated 09-16-2021 in the amount of $94,582.54. 
9. Warrant Register dated 09-23-2021 in the amount of $185,636.44. 
10. Warrant Register dated 09-29-2021 in the amount of $977,621.09. 
11. Payroll Register dated 10-01-2021 in the amount of $270,140.77.
  
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


6 


  
 
1.5 Treasurer’s Report 


Approved the Treasurer’s Report for August 2021. 
 
1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 203 – Wildomar Trail Town Center 


Project  
 
Councilmember Morabito recused himself due to a potential conflict of 
interest.  
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to adopt the following Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 203 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 20-
0039 TO: 1) REMOVE THE MIXED-USE OVERLAY ZONE 


DESIGNATION FOR THE ENTIRE WILDOMAR TRAIL TOWN CENTER 
PROJECT SITE, AND CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 


FOR THE 6.07-ACRE RESIDENTIAL PORTION OF PROJECT SITE 
FROM C-P-S (SCENIC HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (GENERAL 


RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
WILDOMAR TRAIL AND THE I-15 FREEWAY (APN: 376-180-006 AND 


376-190-002); AND 2) CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 
FOR THE NORTHERLY 10-ACRES OF THE JAMES CARTER 


PROPERTY FROM I-P (INDUSTRIAL PARK) TO R-3 (GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF YAMAS 
DRIVE AND PRIELIPP ROAD (APN: 380-250-019) TO COMPLY WITH 


THE PROVISIONS OF SB 166 
 


 MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
  
 YEA:   Moore, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 NAY:   None 
 ABSTAIN:  Morabito 
 ABSENT:  None 


 
1.7 First Amendment to Information Technology Services Agreement with 


Infinity Technologies 
Authorized the City Manager to execute the First Amendment to the 
Information Technology Services Agreement with Infinity Technologies. 
 


1.8 Consideration of annual reporting of completed State mandated fire 
and life safety inspections by the City of Wildomar in compliance with 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


7 


  
 


SB 1205 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
Adopted a resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 55 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF A REPORT MADE BY 
THE FIRE CHIEF OF THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 


REGARDING THE INSPECTION OF CERTAIN OCCUPANCIES 
REQUIRING ANNUAL INSPECTIONS IN SUCH OCCUPANCIES 


PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13146.2 AND 13146.3 OF THE CALIFORNIA 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


 
1.9 Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Program Agreements 


for CIP 70 Bundy Canyon Road/I-15 Interchange, CIP 74 Wildomar 
Trail/I-15 Interchange and Amendment No. 3 for CIP 28-1 Palomar 
Street between Mission Trail and Jefferson Avenue 
Authorized the City Manager to execute the following: 
 
1. Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement between Western Riverside Council 
of Governments (WRCOG) and the City of Wildomar for the Planning, 
Engineering, Right of Way and Construction Phases, as required for the 
widening of Palomar Street between Mission Trail and Jefferson Avenue. 
 
2. Agreement for the Project Approval and Environmental Document 
(PA&ED) Phase for the improvement of the Bundy Canyon/I-15 
Interchange. 
 
3. Agreement for the Project Approval and Environmental Document 
(PA&ED) Phase for the improvement of the Wildomar Trail/I-15 
Interchange. 
 


1.10 Third Amendment of the Use Permit for COVID-19 Testing and 
Vaccines 
Approved and authorized the City Manager to sign the third amendment to 
the Use Permit for RUHS through CURATIVE to provide COVID-19 testing 
and vaccinations. 
 


1.11 Villa Siena Apartment Project (PP 13-0089): Park Grading Agreement, 
Overall Grading Agreement and BMP Facilities Agreement 
Authorized the City Manager to execute the Park Grading Agreement, the 
Overall Grading Agreement, and the BMP Facilities Agreement (Privately 
Maintained BMPs) with Villa Siena Property, LLC. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


8 


  
 
1.12 Award of Construction Contract – House Demolition for the Bundy 


Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A) 
 
1. Authorized the City Manager to execute a construction contract with 
Beckco, Inc. in the amount of $206,000.00 for the House Demolition for the 
Bundy Canyon Road Improvement Project, Segment 2 (CIP 026-2A). 
 
2. Authorized the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 
10% of the contract amount (contingency). 
 
3. Approved a Budget Adjustment to increase TUMF Funding to the Right-
of-Way Phase of CIP 026-2 by $91,000. 
 


1.13 Palomar Street and Clinton Keith Road Widening Project (CIP 059) 
Right-of-Way Acquisition 
Adopted a Resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 56 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR ASSISTANT 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENTS 


AND OTHER RELATED DOCUMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL 
PROPERTY REQUIRED FOR THE PALOMAR STREET AND CLINTON 


KEITH ROAD WIDENING PROJECT (CIP 059) 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Consideration of Territory to be Annexed to  Community Facilities 


District No. 2013-1 (Services), Calling an Election, Ordering the Levy 
and Collection of Special Taxes, and Declaring the Election Results 
for CFD 2013-1 (Services), Annexation No. 21 


 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Mayor Nigg opened the public hearing 
 
Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 
 
Resident Gina Castanon provided public comment in favor of the item.  
 
There being no further testimony, Mayor Nigg closed the public hearing.  
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


9 


  
 


A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to a resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 57 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION TO SUBMIT TO THE 
QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE QUESTION OF LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX 


WITHIN THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 21) 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
The City Council held the Election. 
 
The City Clerk Canvassed the election.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to a resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 58 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS FOR COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 21) 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


2.2 Consideration of Territory to be Annexed to  Community Facilities 
District No. 2013-1 (Services), Calling an Election, Ordering the Levy 
and Collection of Special Taxes, and Declaring the Election Results 
for CFD 2013-1 (Services), Annexation No. 22 
 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


10 


  
 


Mayor Nigg opened the public hearing 
 
Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 
 
Resident Gina Castanon provided public comment in favor of the item.  
 
There being no further testimony, Mayor Nigg closed the public hearing.  
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to adopt a resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 59 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CALLING AN ELECTION TO SUBMIT TO THE 
QUALIFIED ELECTORS THE QUESTION OF LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX 


WITHIN THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE ANNEXED TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 22) 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
The City Council held the Election. 
 
The City Clerk Canvassed the election.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to adopt a resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 60 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS FOR COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (SERVICES) (ANNEXATION NO. 22) 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


11 


  
 
2.3 General Plan Amendment No. 2021-03 – The 2021/2029 Housing & 


Safety Element Update 
 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Mayor Nigg opened the public hearing 
 
Planning Director Bassi presented the staff report. 
 
There being no testimony Mayor Nigg closed the public hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit to adopt a resolution entitled:  


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 61 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE 2013/2021 


HOUSING ELEMENT PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
(SCH# 2013051001) CERTIFIED ON DECEMBER 11, 2013 IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15164 OF THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit to adopt a resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 62 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 2021-
03 ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 HOUSING ELEMENT IN ACCORDANCE 


WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65580 
THROUGH 65589, AND ADOPTING THE 2021/2029 SAFETY ELEMENT 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 


65302(G) 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


12 


  
 


YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 


2.4 Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-02: A proposed amendment 
to Section 17.188 (Off-Street Vehicle Parking Standards) related to off-
street parking standards for single-family, multi-family and 
commercial developments 
 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Mayor Nigg opened the public hearing 
 
Planning Director Bassi presented the staff report. 
 
There being no testimony Mayor Nigg closed the public hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 204 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND 
APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-02 TO 


MODIFY SECTION 17.188 (OFF-STREET VEHICLE PARKING 
STANDARDS) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO 
PARKING STANDARDS FOR SINGLE-FAMILY, MULTI-FAMILY AND 


COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 
with the following change: remove proposed enclosed garage requirement 
for Multi-Family units. 
 
MOTION carried 4-1, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   Swanson 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


13 


  
 
2.5 Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Abatement of all Weeds Declared 


as a Public Nuisance 
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Mayor Nigg opened the public hearing 
 
Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 
 
There being no testimony Mayor Nigg closed the public hearing. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit to adopt a resolution entitled:  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 63 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
AUTHORIZING THE ABATEMENT OF WEEDS AND/OR CAUSING THE 


REMOVAL OF RUBBISH, REFUSE OR DIRT DECLARED TO BE A 
PUBLIC NUISANCE, TO KEEP AN ACCOUNT OF THE COSTS OF 
ABATING SUCH NUISANCE, AND TO FILE SUCH ACCOUNT IN A 


REPORT AND ASSESSMENT LIST WITH THE CITY COUNCIL 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 
3.1 COVID-19 Update  


 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Community Services Director Torres presented the staff report. 
 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the report.  


 
3.2 FY 2021-22 1st Quarter Budget Report  
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


14 


  
 


 
Administrative Services Director Howell presented the staff report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to approve the Fiscal Year 2021-22 First Quarter 
Report, adopt the following decision packages: 


 
 and adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 64 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2021-22 
BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND UPDATE THE FY 2021-


22 AUTHORIZED POSITION SCHEDULE 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
3.3 Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 8.48 (Hazardous 


Vegetation) of the Wildomar Municipal Code 
 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 


 


Department Proposed Project Proposed 
Amount 


ARPA Measure AA General Fund 


Planning Repeal Corridor Study 
with Preliminary 
General Plan Update 
Scoping / Work 


$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 


Public Works Upgrade Street Name 
Signs at Signalized 
Intersections 


$75,000 $0 $75,000 $0 


Code 
Enforcement 


Enhanced Radio 
Communication 
Services 


$35,100 $0 $35,100 $0 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


15 


  
 


A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to adopt an Ordinance entitled:  
 


ORDINANCE NO. 205 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS 
VEGETATION) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ADDING 


CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS VEGETATION AND RUBBISH 
ABATEMENT PROGRAM) TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


 
3.4 Ordinance amending and restating Chapter 8.104 (Solid Waste 


Collection and Disposal) of the City of Wildomar Municipal Code 
 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 


 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to Omit section 3 and adopt an Ordinance entitled:  


 
ORDINANCE NO. 206 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING AND RESTATING CHAPTER 


8.104 (SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL) OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  None 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
October 13, 2021 


16 


  
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Added: Flag Policy - Morabito 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg declared the meeting adjourned in 
memory of resident David Masters and son, Joey Masters, at 8:56 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales, CMC   Dustin Nigg 
City Clerk     Mayor 
 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.3 


  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant and Payroll Registers 
 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the following: 
 


1. Warrant Register dated 11-04-2021 in the amount of $98,908.94. 
2. Warrant Register dated 11-11-2021 in the amount of $288,365.90. 
3. Warrant Register dated 11-18-2021 in the amount of $72,935.56. 
4. Warrant Register dated 11-24-2021 in the amount of $75,691.23. 
5. Wire Transfer Register dated 11-30-2021 in the amount of $211,280.48. 
6. Payroll Register dated 12-01-2021 in the amount of $174,914.04. 


 
 


DISCUSSION: 
The City of Wildomar requires that the City Council audit payments of demands and direct 
the City Manager to issue checks. The Warrant and Payroll Registers are submitted for 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant, Wire Transfer and Payroll Registers will have a budgetary impact in the 
amount and fiscal year noted in the recommendation section of this report. These costs 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Budgets. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director              City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher Register 11/04/2021   Voucher Register 11/24/2021 
Voucher Register 11/11/2021       Wire Transfer Register 11/30/2021 
Voucher Register 11/18/2021   Payroll Register 12/01/2021  
   







11/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:09:04AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214328 11/4/2021 000008  AT&T MOBILITY X10202021 10/13/21-11/12/21 COUNCIL MOBILE PHONE  57.82


Total :  57.82


 214329 11/4/2021 001721  BAGGIO, TINA 110121A LAWS OF ARREST COURSE PC832  139.80


 28.55TRAVEL TO COURSE PC832110121B


Total :  168.35


 214330 11/4/2021 001622  COMMERCIAL BUILDING MANAGEMENT, SERVICES INC68511 0000362 WILDOMAR PARK CLEANING SVC FY21/22 


AS PE


 4,741.00


 179.40OCT 2021 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - MARNA 


OBR


68512


 2,250.00OCT 2021 CITY HALL DISINFECT - COVID-1968513


Total :  7,170.40


 214331 11/4/2021 000022  EDISON 092721-7258 08/26/21-09/26/21 ELECTRIC 21400 


PALOMAR


 299.38


 290.1409/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001100221-0962


 44.1909/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001100221-1202


 255.3009/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001100221-1757


 552.96REBILL ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 1/2100221-4610


 78.3009/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-1100221-4845


 266.2309/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001100221-7694


 156.5109/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-0011002218975


 168.5109/13/21-10/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #101321-3123


 173.8609/13/21-10/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #101321-3487


 105.5009/13/21-10/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #101321-7255


 16.4109/13/21-10/12/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00101321-8408


 10.4909/16/21-10/17/21 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR 


31


101821-3767


 27.2509/16/21-10/17/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO101821-5249


 76.0809/16/21-10/17/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO101821-7633


 203.5809/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC WILDOMAR 


CITY


10221-0828


 5,263.9509/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC10221-4293


 55.2509/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CSA 10310221-4487


 59.5309/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00110221-7504


 300.5409/01/21-09/30/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00110221-9127


S -80.33CREDIT: ELECTRIC CSA 10383121-4487


-64.41CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 1190121-1202







11/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


10:09:04AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214331 11/4/2021 (Continued)000022  EDISON


 138.73REBILL ELECTRIC CSA 10390121-4487


 110.81REBILL ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 1190221-1202


S -390.07CREDIT: ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001 ZONE 1/290221-4610


 156.5008/01/21-08/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00190221-4610


 94.9908/26/21-09/26/21 ELECTRIC BASEBALL 


FIEL


92721-6091


 940.9708/20/21-09/26/21 ELECTRIC92721-9129


Total :  9,311.15


 214332 11/4/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11331987 09/11/21-10/11/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 7 M1  76.12


 157.0709/11/21-10/11/21 WATER HERITAGE PARK 


(A


11332000


 719.9409/12/21-10/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M1


11335127


 947.3909/12/21-10/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M2


11335128


 585.4709/12/21-10/12/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 24 


M1


11336899


 277.3809/12/21-10/12/21 WATER CFD 2013-1 ZONE11338072


 476.6609/12/21-10/12/21 WATER MALAGA 


GATEWAY P


11338233


 879.2209/14/21-10/14/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 01 


M


11338900


 282.6109/14/21-10/14/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 03 


M


11339151


 278.5209/14/21-10/14/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 02 


M


11339152


Total :  4,680.38


 214333 11/4/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 123 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,410.00


Total :  3,410.00


 214334 11/4/2021 000634  HEYDAY RECORDS AND EVENTS 103021 TRUNK OR TREAT 10/30/21  500.00


Total :  500.00


 214335 11/4/2021 001666  INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 187 0000351 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT 


SERVICES


 8,355.63


Total :  8,355.63







11/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


10:09:04AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214336 11/4/2021 001545  INTRADO INTERACTIVE SERVICES, CORPORATION224694 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - WEBSITE 


SUPPORT


 3,500.00


Total :  3,500.00


 214337 11/4/2021 001723  JIM APPLIANCE 39904 RANGE REPAIR - FS61  427.00


Total :  427.00


 214338 11/4/2021 000647  JOLLY JUMPS 102921 2021 TRUNK OR TREAT  850.00


Total :  850.00


 214339 11/4/2021 001652  MARK THOMAS 41568 0000327 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS PER 


SERV


 9,420.00


Total :  9,420.00


 214340 11/4/2021 001724  MEI RESEARCH CORPORATION 44084 WAYPOINT 300 SPOTLIGHT  283.32


Total :  283.32


 214341 11/4/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-14362 0000357 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


 4,256.00


Total :  4,256.00


 214342 11/4/2021 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 110121 10/01/21-10/31/21 PROJECT CONSULTANT  8,470.00


Total :  8,470.00


 214343 11/4/2021 001722  NCSTAR INC 21SO012660 CODE ENFORCEMENT UNIFORM  148.26


Total :  148.26


 214344 11/4/2021 001535  NETFILE 7426 11/01/21-10/31/22 ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION 


FO


 5,800.00


Total :  5,800.00


 214345 11/4/2021 001543  NPPW SERVICES 12094A 0000345 COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


 606.03


0000345  463.18COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


12094B


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


12095


Total :  1,675.24


 214346 11/4/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76348 SEPT 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - CIP 


028-1


 866.25







11/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


10:09:04AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  866.25 214346 11/4/2021 001107 001107  PLACEWORKS


 214347 11/4/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 291561 10/14/21-11/10/21 PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WINDSO


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 214348 11/4/2021 001422  SOLORIO, TRAVIS 101721 REIMBURSE COVID-19 TEST  125.00


Total :  125.00


 214349 11/4/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 101621 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


10/16/2


 111.14


Total :  111.14


 214350 11/4/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-860 09/01/21-09/30/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


 7,331.00


 15,750.0009/01/21-09/30/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-865


 840.0009/01/21-09/30/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-866


Total :  23,921.00


 214351 11/4/2021 000055  WRCOG 1171 FY 21/22 WRCOG FELLOWSHIP PROGRAM  5,000.00


Total :  5,000.00


Bank total :  98,908.94 24 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 98,908.94Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 24







11/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:29:30PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214359 11/11/2021 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 75004 BLOOD DRAW (1)  55.00


 55.00BLOOD DRAW (1)75040


Total :  110.00


 214360 11/11/2021 000007  ANIMAL FRIENDS OF THE VALLEY,, INC. AUG & SEPT 2021 ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICE AUG/SEPT 


2021


 14,000.00


Total :  14,000.00


 214361 11/11/2021 000029  APPLEONE 01-6028539 RECALL ELECTION SUPPORT DUE TO 


COVID 19


 1,522.56


Total :  1,522.56


 214362 11/11/2021 001002  ARCHITERRA DESIGN GROUP 28874 09/25/21-10/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 1ST P  875.00


 1,437.5009/25/21-10/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 1ST P28875


 562.5009/25/21-10/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 3RD P28876


 3,000.0009/25/21-10/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC - 3RD P28877


Total :  5,875.00


 214363 11/11/2021 001671  BERROTERAN, RAUL 110421 REIMBURSE - LANDGLIDE  99.99


Total :  99.99


 214364 11/11/2021 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 41866 RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  340.00


 1,168.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES41867


Total :  1,508.00


 214365 11/11/2021 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 1003I OCTOBER 2021 CITY HALL JANITORIAL 


SERVIC


 3,811.00


Total :  3,811.00


 214366 11/11/2021 001429  DANIEL PEST CONTROL 21-2303A OCT 2021 PESTICIDE FOR ANTS/BEES  250.00


Total :  250.00


 214367 11/11/2021 001433  DAVIDSON, KIMBERLY 110521 REIMBURSE: STATE OF THE CITY 2021 


SUPPLI


 332.64


Total :  332.64


 214368 11/11/2021 000058  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 541143 SEPT 2021 POLICE BLOOD ALCOHOL  245.00


Total :  245.00


 214369 11/11/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 30364934 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. #25-1249376  214.24







11/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


12:29:30PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  214.24 214369 11/11/2021 000685 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC


 214370 11/11/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 37125 SEPT 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - 


BASEBA


 333.00


 18,236.16SEPT 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE37215


Total :  18,569.16


 214371 11/11/2021 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP 72254 AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP -  52,235.00


 86,386.50AUGUST 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC -72256


Total :  138,621.50


 214372 11/11/2021 001139  LIFTOFF, LLC 6048REN2021 0000372 OFFICE 365 PLAN G3 (30) & G1 (25) 


ANNUAL


 11,760.00


Total :  11,760.00


 214373 11/11/2021 001677  OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, LIBRARY DIVISION2022-02 JULY, AUGUST, SEPTEMBER 2021 DIF 


LIBRARY


 773.53


Total :  773.53


 214374 11/11/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76598 OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP 


028-1


 3,001.63


Total :  3,001.63


 214375 11/11/2021 000526  PRINT POSTAL 16092 BUSINESS CARDS  167.81


Total :  167.81


 214376 11/11/2021 000042  PV MAINTENANCE, INC. 005-247 OCT 2021 CITYWIDE MAINTENANCE 


CONTRACTUA


 45,008.79


Total :  45,008.79


 214377 11/11/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610278598 SEPT 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE  1,494.50


 682.65SEPT 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSE 


CALL O


5620037780


Total :  2,177.15


 214378 11/11/2021 001021  SPICER CONSULTING GROUP 900 FY 21/22 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1-C/CSA 


22/


 2,791.67


 5,000.00CFD 2013-1 ANNEX 21 - COMPLETE904


 5,000.00CFD 2013-1 ANNEX 22 - COMPLETE905


Total :  12,791.67







11/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


12:29:30PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214379 11/11/2021 001720  STERICYCLE, INC 8000258143 9/8/21 & 10/6/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SHREDDING S


 329.06


Total :  329.06


 214380 11/11/2021 001505  THE ENDEAVOR PRODUCTION, GROUP 1025 VIDEO PRODUCTION - STATE OF THE CITY 


202


 3,700.00


Total :  3,700.00


 214381 11/11/2021 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 11472597 PUBLIC NOTICE  288.40


 323.60PUBLIC NOTICE11472599


 394.00PUBLIC NOTICE11474262


 332.40PUBLIC NOTICE11475809


 649.20PUBLIC NOTICE11476270


 376.40PUBLIC NOTICE11478152


 314.80PUBLIC NOTICE11479449


 464.40PUBLIC NOTICE11479665


 275.20PUBLIC NOTICE11479881


 427.00PUBLIC NOTICE11479886


 301.60PUBLIC NOTICE11481193


 416.00PUBLIC NOTICE11481870


 275.20PUBLIC NOTICE11482622


 266.40PUBLIC NOTICE11482623


 336.80PUBLIC NOTICE11482675


 460.00PUBLIC NOTICE11484234


 402.80PUBLIC NOTICE11485135


 243.00PUBLIC NOTICE11485307


 341.20PUBLIC NOTICE11487670


 517.20PUBLIC NOTICE11488753


 345.60PUBLIC NOTICE 20-007811489794


 257.60PUBLIC NOTICE CFD ANNEX #2111491120


 257.60PUBLIC NOTICE CFD ANNEX #2211491122


Total :  8,266.40


 214382 11/11/2021 001418  WEBB MUNICIPAL FINANCE, LLC 20210485 MEASURE Z ANNUAL ADMIN FY 21/22  5,306.04


Total :  5,306.04


 214383 11/11/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER100121 VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE  250.00


 393.75ANIMAL FRIENDS OF THE VALLEY100521


 455.00CPRS102021


 8,640.00CA CITIES HOTEL92121







11/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


12:29:30PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214383 11/11/2021 (Continued)000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER


 100.00LAKE ELSINORE CHAMBER92821


Total :  9,838.75


 214384 11/11/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER101621 MARKETING PLATFORM SUBSCRIPTION  79.99


 5.99NEWSPAPER MEMBERSHIP101821


Total :  85.98


Bank total :  288,365.90 26 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 288,365.90Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 26







11/18/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 8:11:14AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214390 11/18/2021 001671  BERROTERAN, RAUL 110821 REIMBURSE - EQUIPMENT POUCHES  74.97


Total :  74.97


 214391 11/18/2021 000785  CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 82107053 OCTOBER 2021 CODE ENFORCEMENT 


SOFTWARE


 252.00


Total :  252.00


 214392 11/18/2021 000046  COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, DEPT ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH102521 07/01/21-09/30/21 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 


S


 368.07


Total :  368.07


 214393 11/18/2021 001300  DELL MARKETING L.P. 10513969190 0000352 REPLACEMENT COMPUTERS, LAPTOPS & 


MONITOR


 19,340.51


Total :  19,340.51


 214394 11/18/2021 000027  DIRECT TV 082317220X211113 11/12/21-12/11/21 CABLE SERVICE - CITY H  147.23


Total :  147.23


 214395 11/18/2021 000022  EDISON 102721-6091 09/27/21-10/26/21 ELECTRIC - BASEBALL FI  53.52


 515.0809/21/21-10/26/21 ELECTRIC102721-9129


 254.9810/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121


 204.5010/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC WILDOMAR 


CITY


110121-0828


 289.6410/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-0962


 44.1610/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-1202


 5,303.9610/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC110121-4293


 55.2510/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CSA 103110121-4487


 320.2009/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-4610


 78.6510/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-1110121-4845


 59.9010/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-7504


 267.4210/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-7694


 157.3010/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-8975


 302.0310/01/21-10/31/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001110121-9127


Total :  7,906.59


 214396 11/18/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11326663 09/07/21-10/07/21 WATER ZONE 52 LOC 01  108.60


 39.3009/07/21-10/07/21 WATER ZONE 29 LOC 0211326719


 247.6209/07/21-10/07/21 WATER ZONE 71 LOC 0111327000


 77.0809/07/21-10/07/21 WATER 32637 GRUWELL -11327200







11/18/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 8:11:14AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214396 11/18/2021 (Continued)000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 5,049.3109/07/21-10/07/21 WATER MARNA OBRIEN11327281


 297.2609/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 23 


M1


11341818


 68.3309/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 211342027


 91.4309/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 49 


M1


11342067


 96.4709/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 51 LOC 111342321


 737.3209/17/21-10/17/21 WATER BASEBALL FIELD11342487


 365.9409/17/21-10/17/21 WATER WINDSONG PARK11342528


 592.7109/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M1


11343038


 254.1509/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M2


11343115


 173.9309/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 111343118


 209.8709/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 42 &11343217


 359.6709/17/21-10/17/21 WATER 22450 1/2 


CERVER


11343612


 266.2309/17/21-10/17/21 WATER 22450 CERVERA11343854


 144.2309/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 62 - 2293311344953


 70.6309/17/21-10/17/21 WATER ZONE 67 - 


ARNNET


11345040


 107.3509/19/21-10/19/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 35 


M1


11345619


Total :  9,357.43


 214397 11/18/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 124 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,616.94


Total :  3,616.94


 214398 11/18/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 30409537 CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#13-1228588


 214.24


Total :  214.24


 214399 11/18/2021 001640  JAMES MCMINN INC 110921 BUNDY CYN RD WIDENING CIP 026-1 


PROGRESS


 24,323.75


Total :  24,323.75


 214400 11/18/2021 001398  LUNA, CAMERON 110821A 10/23/21-11/05/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 34.72


 15.76REIMBURSEMENT - NON-DEPT SUPPLIES110821B







11/18/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 8:11:14AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  50.48 214400 11/18/2021 001398 001398  LUNA, CAMERON


 214401 11/18/2021 001667  OLDCASTLE INFRASTRUCTURE INC 500034944 0000374 CATCH BASIN INSERT MAINTENANCE - 


ZONE 52


 1,950.00


0000374  900.00CATCH BASIN INSERT MAINTENANCE - 


ZONE 52


500034945


0000374  375.00CATCH BASIN INSERT MAINTENANCE - 


ZONE 52


500034946


Total :  3,225.00


 214402 11/18/2021 000526  PRINT POSTAL 161148 BUSINESS CARDS - T BAGGIO  102.41


Total :  102.41


 214403 11/18/2021 001495  TIME WARNER CABLE 2318110821 CABLE THROUGH 12/07/21 - FS61  5.32


Total :  5.32


 214404 11/18/2021 000055  WRCOG 579 FY 20/21 AB 939 DUES / FY 20/21 SOLID WA  3,950.62


Total :  3,950.62


Bank total :  72,935.56 15 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 72,935.56Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 15







11/24/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:05:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214406 11/24/2021 000031  AFLAC, REMITTANCE PROCESSING, CENTER23669 NOVEMBER 2021 MEDICAL INSURANCE 


BENEFIT


 2,269.24


 2,269.24OCTOBER 2021 MEDICAL INSURANCE 


BENEFIT


632587


Total :  4,538.48


 214407 11/24/2021 000029  APPLEONE 01-6109128 BUILDING ADMIN W/E 11/13/21  848.64


Total :  848.64


 214408 11/24/2021 000760  ARMADA ADMINISTRATORS 171312 DECEMBER 2021 PREMIUM  2,970.00


Total :  2,970.00


 214409 11/24/2021 001291  BUNDLE BANDS INDUSTRIES INC 779 OFFICE SUPPLIES - METAL CLIPS & 


CARDBOAR


 150.38


Total :  150.38


 214410 11/24/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 2773 10/01/21-10/31/21 STREET & BIKE LANE 


SWE


 603.08


 766.4410/18/21 DUMP 40YD BOX & DISPOSAL FEE 


(2


341494


 224.7111/01/21  3 YD BOX - BASEBALL FIELD341519


 260.0311/01/21  3 YD BOX - FIRE STATION #61341575


Total :  1,854.26


 214411 11/24/2021 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 1103I NOV 2021 JANITORIAL SERVICES - CITY 


HALL


 3,214.75


Total :  3,214.75


 214412 11/24/2021 000037  DATA TICKET, INC. 129668 SEPT 2021 ONLINE/SSN CITATION 


PROCESSING


 200.00


 419.69SEPT 2021 DAILY CITE PROCESSING130246


Total :  619.69


 214413 11/24/2021 000054  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SL220531 JULY 2021-SEPT 2021 SIGNALS & LIGHTING 


B


 2,402.32


Total :  2,402.32


 214414 11/24/2021 001325  GEOCON WEST, INC. 721100413 CIP 026-1 THROUGH 10/03/21  372.75


Total :  372.75







11/24/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


10:05:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214415 11/24/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 30437393 CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#015-1472515


 359.97


 214.24CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#003-1585799


30437394


Total :  574.21


 214416 11/24/2021 000634  HEYDAY RECORDS AND EVENTS 111021 VETERAN'S DAY 11/11/21  300.00


Total :  300.00


 214417 11/24/2021 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 235293 10/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACT COPIER SVC 


MA


 524.85


Total :  524.85


 214418 11/24/2021 001153  INTELLI-TECH 14911 0000373 BARRACUDA 1 YR ENERGIZE 


UPDATES/INSTANT


 5,389.00


Total :  5,389.00


 214419 11/24/2021 001398  LUNA, CAMERON 112221 11/06/21-11/19/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 23.52


Total :  23.52


 214420 11/24/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 1473 0000357 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


 2,128.00


0000357  2,128.00WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


1514


Total :  4,256.00


 214421 11/24/2021 000048  MURRIETA LOCK AND SAFE, INC. 10301 REPROGRAM EXISTING LOCKS & ADD 2 


EXIT DE


 2,627.28


Total :  2,627.28


 214422 11/24/2021 001555  NBS 1021000061 SEPT 2021 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  2,100.00


Total :  2,100.00


 214423 11/24/2021 001543  NPPW SERVICES 12153 POWER WASHING MARNA OBRIEN 


SPECIAL EVENT


 250.00


 300.00REGENCY HERITAGE GRAFFITI REMOVAL 


10/27/


12154


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


12160


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


12161







11/24/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


10:05:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214423 11/24/2021 (Continued)001543  NPPW SERVICES


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


12162


0000345  606.03COVID-19 REQUIRED - PARKS PRESSURE 


WASHI


12197


 142.86MARNA OBRIEN GRAFFITI REMOVAL 


11/15/21


12198


Total :  3,116.98


 214424 11/24/2021 000778  PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GRP INC 2109A442 07/31/21-08/27/21 PROFESSIONAL SVC 


AGREE


 9,051.61


Total :  9,051.61


 214425 11/24/2021 001262  PEST OPTIONS INC 382077 AUGUST 2021 GOPHER CONTROL  500.00


Total :  500.00


 214426 11/24/2021 001725  PRESTIGE GOLF CARS 136370 ROOTED IN NATURE EVENT  688.75


Total :  688.75


 214427 11/24/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 294004 11/11/21-12/08/21 - 


PORTA/WASHSTN-WINDSO


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 214428 11/24/2021 001167  RRM DESIGN GROUP 1064-01-1021 PROF. SVCS. - 27 ACRE PARK CIP 062-1  24,651.50


Total :  24,651.50


 214429 11/24/2021 001393  SOCALGAS 111221 10/09/21-11/08/21 GAS - FIRE DEPT 32637  67.60


Total :  67.60


 214430 11/24/2021 000873  VORTEX INDUSTRIES INC 05-1526779 0000356 COVID-19: T.I. SUITE 107/109 AS PER QUOT  4,446.66


Total :  4,446.66


Bank total :  75,691.23 25 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 75,691.23Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 25







11/24/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


10:05:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


11/5/2021 Wright Express Fuel Purchases 911.32$                


11/19/2021 US Bank Fuel Purchases 12,605.72             


11/22/2021 Enterprise Fleet Management
Vehicle Delivery, Registration, and 


two months of lease
12,176.94             


11/24/2021 Wilmington Trust


Semi-Annual Principal & Interest 


Payment - Streetlight Lease 


Purchase


87,078.16             


TOTAL 112,772.14$        


City of Wildomar


Wire Transfer Register


11/30/2021







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


11/10/2021 Heartland Payroll 10/23/2021-11/05/2021 114,677.99$          


11/24/2021 Heartland Payroll 11/06/2021-11/19/2021 88,929.28


12/1/2021 Heartland Payroll 11/01/2021-11/30/2021 1,636.44


TOTAL 205,243.71$          


City of Wildomar


Payroll Warrant Register


12/1/2021







 
CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 


Agenda Item #1.4 
CONSENT CALENDAR 


Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
 


TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Treasurer’s Report for October 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of October 
2021. The City utilizes both the California State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) for its city 
investments. Utilizing the two investment programs allows the City to potentially increase 
the interest earned on the money held.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 


 







BEGINNING + (-) ENDING
FUND ACCOUNT INSTITUTION BALANCE DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS BALANCE RATE


All All WELLS FARGO # 7,617,241.96  $ 1,582,791.31 (1,610,511.09)  $ 7,589,522.18 0.000%


TOTAL  $ 7,617,241.96  $ 1,582,791.31  $ (1,610,511.09)  $ 7,589,522.18


PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


FUND BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


All  $ 9,665,604.54  $ 9,665,604.54  $ 9,665,604.54 100.00% 0 0.203%
All  $ 5,593,189.19  $ 5,593,189.19  $ 5,593,189.19 100.00% 0 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 15,258,793.73  $ 15,258,793.73  $ 15,258,793.73 100.00%


CITY $ 22,848,315.91


(-)
+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
FUND BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


All  $ 9,662,540.25  $ 3,064.29  $ 0.00  $ 9,665,604.54 0.203%
All  $ 5,592,946.10  $ 243.09  $ 0.00  $ 5,593,189.19 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 15,255,486.35  $ 3,307.38  $ 0.00  $ 15,258,793.73


 


Robert Howell
Robert Howell
City Treasurer


Date


12/1/2021


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the City of Wildomar, I hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues 
are available to meet the City's expenditure requirements for the next six months, and that all investments are in compliance with the City's Statement of Investment Policy.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the City's Bank Balances.


CITY CASH


ISSUER


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CITY INVESTMENT (Continued)


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS


ISSUER


CITY OF WILDOMAR
TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
October 2021


TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENT


CITY INVESTMENT







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.5 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


 


TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 207 – Culture Cannabis Club Development 


Agreement 20-0078(R1) 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt an Ordinance 
entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 207 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF A CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE 


WITH SECTION 15301 (CLASS 1) OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL 
QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT #1 TO DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 20-0078(R1) TO EXPAND AN APPROVED 1,440 SQUARE-FOOT 


RETAIL CANNABIS BUSINESS INTO AN 835 SQUARE-FOOT ADJACENT SUITE 
NOW TOTALING 2,275 SQUARE FEET LOCATED IN THE C-1/C-P (GENERAL 


COMMERCIAL) ZONE AT 33980 MISSION TRAIL, SUITE #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) 


DISCUSSION: 
The City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 207 at the November 10, 
2021 City Council meeting for Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1).  At this time, it 
would be appropriate for the City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 207 as presented. 
 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENT: 
A. Ordinance No. 207 


  







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Ordinance No. 207 
(Development Agreement No. 20-0078R1) 







ORDINANCE NO. 207 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF A CATEGORICAL 
EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15301 (CLASS 
1) OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
(CEQA), AND APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT #1 TO 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NO. 20-0078(R1) TO EXPAND AN 
APPROVED 1,440 SQUARE-FOOT RETAIL CANNABIS 
BUSINESS INTO AN 835 SQUARE-FOOT ADJACENT SUITE 
NOW TOTALING 2,275 SQUARE FEET LOCATED IN THE C-1/C-
P (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) ZONE AT 33980 MISSION TRAIL, 
SUITE #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the Planning Department on August 2, 2021 received an application 
to expand an approved 1,440 square-foot retail cannabis business into an 835 square-
foot adjacent suite bringing the total lease space to 2,275 square feet located at 33980 
Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) from:   


Applicant/Owner: Culture Holdings of Wildomar, Inc. (Macy Newall) 
Project Location: 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B 
APN:     366-160-070  
Project Area:  1.01 acres 


WHEREAS, California Government Code Title 7, Chapter 4, Article 2.5 authorizes 
the City to enter into development agreements which will provide certainty, definition and 
commitment to developers as well as to necessary public improvements required by 
development; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 17.315 (Cannabis Businesses) of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code, the Applicant is required to enter into a Development Agreement for the 
operation of the Project and said Development Agreement must be approved by the 
Planning Commission and the City Council, including all revisions to the approved 
Development Agreement; and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.200 and 17.315 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code, the Planning Commission held a noticed public hearing on October 6, 
2021 to review the revision to Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1), at which time 
interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to the revised 
development agreement, and at which time the Planning Commission received public 
testimony, and subsequently adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-21 recommending City 
Council approval of the revised Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1), and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.192 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the Planning Department on October 27, 2021 gave public notice to all property owners 







within a 600-foot radius of the project boundary notifying said property owners of the 
November 10, 2021 City Council meeting at which time the City Council would consider 
Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B 
(APN: 366-160-070); and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with the CUP application requirements, the Planning 
Department on October 27, 2021 gave public notice to all business owners/tenants within 
the retail center located at 33980 Mission Trail notifying said business owners/tenants of 
the November 10, 2021 City Council meeting at which time the City Council would 
consider Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) located  at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite 
#A & B (APN: 366-160-070); and   


WHEREAS, in accordance with Ordinance No. 135, the Planning Department on 
October 29, 2021 posted a public hearing notice “sign board” along Mission Trial and 
Bundy Canyon Road street frontages notifying the neighborhood residents of the 
November 10, 2021 City Council meeting at which time the City Council would consider 
Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B 
(APN: 366-160-070); and   


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.04.050 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department, on October 29, 2021 published a legal notice in the Press 
Enterprise, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the 
November 10, 2021 City Council meeting at which time the City Council would consider 
Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B 
(APN: 366-160-070); and   


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.200 and 17.315, the City Council 
conducted the duly noticed public hearing on November 10, 2021, at which time 
interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to, 
Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) at which time the City Council received public 
testimony concerning Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1) located at 33980 Mission 
Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070). 


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:   


SECTION 1.  CEQA ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, 


the Planning Department evaluated the proposed Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078 
establishing a retail cannabis business within an existing 1,440 square-foot retail lease 
space within the C-1/C-P (General Commercial) zone to determine what level of CEQA 
environmental review is required.  Based on this review, the Planning Department 
determined that approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1) meets the findings 
for a Categorical Exemption in accordance with Section 15301 (Existing Facilities, Class 
1) of CEQA.  Class 1 consists of the operation or minor alteration of existing structures 
involving negligible expansion of the existing space.  The applicant has proposed to make 







tenant improvements to the lease space located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A as part 
of the cannabis business operations for which building permits will be required.  
Therefore, based on this, the City Council, upon recommendation form the Planning 
Commission, hereby adopts this Categorical Exemption in accordance with Section 
15301 (Existing Facilities, Class 1) of CEQA. 


SECTION 2. MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN (MSHCP) 
The City Council hereby finds Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) to 


expand an approved 1,440 square-foot retail cannabis business into an 835 square-foot 
adjacent suite bringing the total lease space to 2,275 square feet within the C-1/C-P 
(General Commercial) zone located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-
070) is consistent with the MSHCP, as the project is located outside of any MSHCP 
criteria area cell, and mitigation is provided through payment of the MSHCP Mitigation 
Fee.   


SECTION 3.  GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 
The City Council hereby finds and determines that the revised Development 


Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) is consistent with the General Plan of the City of Wildomar.  
General Plan policies LU 7.1, 7.2 and 7.12 aim to promote economic development in the 
City by accommodating development of balanced land uses, promoting a variety of stable 
employment and business uses, and improving the jobs-housing ratio.  Allowing the 
Project to operate in the City furthers each of these policies.   


SECTION 4.  DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
Based upon the evidence presented and the above findings, the City Council 


hereby approves the revision to Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) as illustrated 
herein and attached hereto to this Ordinance as Exhibit A.  The City Manager is directed 
to execute the revised Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) on behalf of the City.   


SECTION 5.  RECORDATION OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
Within ten (10) days after the date upon which the City Manager executes the 


revised Development Agreement on behalf of the City, the City Clerk shall record the 
revised Development Agreement and this Ordinance with the County Recorder of the 
County of Riverside.  


SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY 
If any part of this Ordinance, or the Development Agreement which it approves, is 


held to be invalid for any reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portion of this Ordinance or of the Agreement, and this City Council hereby declares that 
it would have passed the remainder of the Ordinance, or approved the remainder of the 
Agreement if such invalid portion thereof had been deleted.  


SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City 


Council.  







SECTION 8.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c).  


APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg  
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
  







EXHIBIT A 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NO. 20-0078(R1) 


  







RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 
Attn:  City Clerk 


Space Above Line for Recorder’s Use Only 
Exempt from Recording Fees per Gov’t Code § 27383 


 
 
 
 
 
 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 20-0078(R1) 
 
 
 


By and Between 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


and 
 


CULTURE HOLDINGS OF WILDOMAR, INC. 


 


 


JANUARY 15, 2021 
 







 


 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


This Development Agreement ("Agreement"), dated for reference purposes as first 
indicated on the cover page, is entered into by and between the City of Wildomar, a 
California general law Municipal Corporation ("City") and Culture Holdings of Wildomar, 
Inc., a California Corporation, (“Developer”) as follows: 


RECITALS 


A. The Legislature of the State of California has adopted California 
Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5, which authorizes a city to enter into 
a binding development agreement with persons having legal or equitable interests in real 
property located within a city's municipal boundaries for the development of such property 
in order to, among other things, encourage and provide for the development of public 
facilities; to support development projects; provide certainty in approval of development 
projects in order to avoid a waste of resources and escalation in project costs and 
encourage an investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning which will make 
maximum efficient utilization of resources at the least economic cost to the public land; 
provide assurance to the applicants for development projects that they may proceed with 
their projects in accordance with existing policies, rules and regulations and subject to the 
conditions of approval of such projects as provided in such annexation and/or 
development agreements. 


B. On June 10, 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 187 establishing 
zoning and use regulations for cannabis businesses within the City, which includes a 
requirement that a cannabis business enter into a development agreement with the City 
prior to commencing operations. 


C. Developer is the tenant of that certain real property located at 33980 
Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, California 
hereinafter referred to as the "Property" and as more particularly described herein.  
Developer proposed to improve, develop and use the Property for a Cannabis Business 
in accordance with the State Laws and Wildomar Municipal Code (the “Project”) 


D. The Property is owned by “The Manske Revocable Trust,” Mr. Edwin 
Manske (“Property Owner”).  The Property Owner has provided notarized written consent 
to the terms of this Agreement and the recordation thereof, attached here to as Exhibit C.  


E. On September 24, 2020, the City issued a Cannabis Local License to 
Developer for the Project pursuant to Chapter 5.76 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and 
on September 9, 2021, the City issued a revised Cannabis Local License to Developer 
for the Project pursuant to Chapter 5.76 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


F. On October 6, 2021, the Planning Commission considered, at a duly noticed 
public hearing, and voted to recommend to the City Council adoption of a Categorical 
Exemption in accordance with Section 15301 (Class 1) of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and approval of this revised Development Agreement No. 20-0078 
and revised Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078 to expand an approved 1,440 square-







 


 


foot retail cannabis business into an 835 square-foot adjacent suite bringing the total 
lease space to 2,275 square feet. 


G. On November 10, 2021, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing 
and voted to adopt a Categorical Exemption in accordance with Section 15301 (Class 1) 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), for this Development Agreement No. 
20-0078, Amendment No. 1 and introduced and had the first reading of Ordinance No. 
207 approving this Agreement. 


H. On December 16, 2021, the City Council considered and approved this 
revised Development Agreement No. 20-0078, Amendment No. 1 by adopting the 2nd 
reading of Ordinance No. 207 which becomes effective on January 15, 2022. 


I. In adopting this revised Development Agreement, City understands that 
Developer will acquire certain vested rights regarding development of the Project on the 
Property and that this Agreement will bind future City Councils to its terms to the extent 
allowed by law. 


J. City acknowledges the benefit the Project will provide to the community and 
desires to encourage the undertaking and completion of the Project and to provide a 
greater level of development certainty for the Developer by entering into this Agreement. 


K. City finds and determines that it will be in the best interests of its citizens 
and the public health, safety and welfare will be served by entering into this Agreement. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals and of the mutual 
covenants and agreements hereinafter contained and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto do hereby covenant and agree as follows: 


1. DEFINITIONS 


In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and 
phrases shall have the meaning set forth below.  Words and phrases not defined herein 
and defined in City Ordinance Nos. 187 or 188 shall have the meanings ascribed in those 
ordinances.  


1.1 “Action” means any suit (whether legal, equitable, or declaratory in 
nature), proceeding or hearing (whether administrative or judicial), arbitration or 
mediation (whether voluntary, court-ordered, binding, or non-binding), or other 
alternative dispute resolution process, and the filing, recording, or service of any process, 
notice, claim, demand, lien, or other instrument. 


1.2 “Cannabis Business License” means the license to operate a cannabis 
business issued by the City to the Developer for the Project under Chapter 5.76 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code. 







 


 


1.3 “City” means the City of Wildomar, a general law, municipal corporation 
formed and existing under the laws of the State of California and any successor-in-
interest to the rights, obligations, and powers of the City. 


1.4 “Claim or Litigation” means any challenge by any third party (whether 
legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or adjudicatory in nature) (i) to the legality, 
validity or adequacy of the General Plan, Land Use Regulations, this Agreement, 
Development Approvals or other actions of the City pertaining to the Project, whether 
such actions are brought under the California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning 
and Zoning Law, the Subdivision Map Act Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal or local statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or 
any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) seeking damages against the City 
as a consequence of the foregoing actions, for the taking or diminution in value of their 
property or for any other reason. 


1.5 “County” means the County of Riverside. 


1.6 “Developer” means Culture Holdings of Wildomar, Inc., a California 
Corporation, having its principal place of business at 3 Corporate Park, Suite #200, 
Irvine, CA 92606, and who is authorized to conduct business, and is doing business, 
within California.  As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Developer has entered 
into a lease agreement with the Property Owner, “The Manske Revocable Trust,” Mr. 
Edwin Manske.  The term “Developer” shall also include all assignees, to the extent 
permitted under this Agreement, of the rights and obligations of Developer under this 
Agreement, and any successor-in-interest to Developer having a legal and/or equitable 
interest in the Property. 


1.7  “Development Costs” means all the costs and expenses which must 
necessarily be incurred in the design, development, construction and completion of the 
Project, including but not limited to: predevelopment costs; Developer’s overhead and 
related costs; design and engineering costs; development costs; construction costs; fees 
payable to accountants, appraisers, architects, attorneys, biologists, construction 
managers, engineers, geologists, hydrologists, inspectors, planners, testing facilities, 
and other consultants; utility connection fees and other utility related charges; costs 
relating to financing including principal, interest, points, fees and other lender charges; 
escrow fees and closing costs; recording fees; court costs; costs relating to insurance; 
costs relating to title insurance; costs relating to bonds; and all other costs and expenses 
of Developer related to the performance of this Agreement. 


1.8 “Development Exaction” means any requirement of the City in 
connection with or pursuant to any Land Use Regulation or Existing Development 
Approval for the dedication of land, the construction of improvements or public facilities, 
or the payment of fees in order to lessen, offset, mitigate or compensate for the impacts 
of development on the environment or other public interests, consistent with this 
Agreement. 







 


 


1.9 “Development Impact Fees” means those development impact fees 
imposed and levied by the City to recover the cost of planned public facilities and to 
mitigate impacts of projects on the City. 


1.10 “Effective Date” means the date upon which the Ordinance approving this 
Agreement becomes effective, which date is thirty (30) days following the date the City 
Council adopted such Ordinance absent a referendum challenge, and provided that the 
Agreement has been fully executed by the Parties.   


1.11 “Existing Development Approval(s)” means all land use development 
permits and approvals issued, approved, and/or certified by the City Council, Planning 
Commission, Planning Director, or Building Official, including those development 
approvals listed in Recital E, but also including any land use or building permits and 
approvals issues, approved, and/or certified as of the Effective Date of this Agreement 
by the City Council, City’s Planning Commission, Planning Director or Building Official 
for the Project. 


1.12 “Existing Land Use Regulation” means a Land Use Regulation existing, 
effective, and made a matter of public record as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 


1.13 “General Plan” means the City’s General Plan as of the date of this 
Agreement, as amended. 


1.14  “Land Use Regulations” means all ordinances, resolutions, codes, rules, 
regulations, and official policies of City, governing the development and use of land 
including without limitation, the permitted use of land; the density or intensity of use; 
subdivision requirements; the maximum height and size of proposed buildings; the 
provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes; and the design, 
improvement, and construction standards and specifications applicable to the 
development of the Property which have been adopted and are effective and are a matter 
of public record as of the Effective Date of this Agreement.  “Land Use Regulations” does 
not include any County or City ordinance, resolution, code, rule, regulation, or official 
policy, governing: 


(a) The licensing or regulation of businesses, professions, and 
occupations; 


(b) Sales taxes, ad valorem property taxes, or voter approved general 
or special taxes and assessments; 


(c) The control and abatement of nuisances; 


(d) The granting of encroachment permits and the conveyance of rights 
and interests which provide for the use of or the entry upon public 
property; and/or 


(e) The exercise of the power of eminent domain. 







 


 


1.15 “Litigation Expenses” means all costs and expenses, to the extent such 
are reasonable in amount, that are actually and necessarily incurred in good faith by the 
Prevailing Party directly related to the Action, including, but not related to, court costs, 
filing, recording, and service fees, copying costs, exhibit production costs, special media 
rental costs, attorneys’ fees, consultant fees, fees for investigators, witness fees (both 
lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs, and any other cost or 
expense reasonably and necessarily incurred by the prevailing party in good faith and 
directly related to the Action. Where attorneys’ fees are to be paid by Developer to the 
City’s law firm on behalf of, or in defense of, City, the rate to be paid shall be the full 
litigation rate charged by the City’s law firm to the City in accord with the City’s contract 
with that law firm. 


1.16  “Project” means that certain retail cannabis business development 
proposed by Culture Holdings of Wildomar, Inc., a California Corporation, consisting of 
a 2,275 square foot retail cannabis business located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & 
B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, as permitted under, and as more fully 
described, in the Existing Development Approvals.  


1.17 “Property” means a certain real property located at 33980 Mission Trail, 
Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, California, as more 
particularly described in the legal description in Attachment 1 and depicted in Attachment 
2 both of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 


1.18 “Property Owner” means “The Manske Revocable Trust,” Mr. Edwin 
Manske.  


1.19 “Public Improvement” means those public improvements, including but 
not limited to, streets, streetlights, traffic signals, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, parkway 
landscaping, irrigation systems, storm drains, sewers, and other public facilities directly 
related to the Project and required to be constructed and installed in the existing public 
rights-of-way and/or on areas of the Project to be dedicated to the City by Developer as 
specifically required under the Existing Development Approvals. 


1.20 “Regional Fees” means fees and charges imposed or levied by any other 
public agency, regional agency, utility, district or joint powers authority, regardless of 
whether City collects those fees and charges, including, but not limited to, Transportation 
Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF), Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP), 
ADP and K-Rat. 


1.21 “Subsequent Development Approvals” means any ministerial and 
discretionary permits, licenses, or other similar entitlements or approvals that must be 
secured by the Developer in order to develop the Project on the Property other than the 
Existing Development Approvals and Cannabis Business License.  Subsequent 
Development Approvals include any changes to the Existing Development Approvals 







 


 


1.22 “Subsequent Land Use Regulation” means any Land Use Regulation 
adopted, effective, and made a matter of public record after the Effective Date of this 
Agreement. 


2. VESTING AND SCOPE OF DEVELOPMENT 


2.1 Vesting.  During the Term of this Agreement, Developer shall be entitled 
to, and vested with the right to, develop the Project on the Property, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, the Existing Development Approvals, any Subsequent 
Development Approvals, the Cannabis Business License, Land Use Regulations and 
State laws. 


2.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date 
and shall be for an initial period of twenty (20) years.   This Agreement shall terminate 
and be of no force and effect upon the occurrence of the entry of a final judgment or 
issuance of a final order after exhaustion of any appeals directed against the City as a 
result of any lawsuit filed against the City to set aside, withdraw, or abrogate the approval 
by the City Council of City of this Agreement.  


2.3 Subsequent Development Approvals.  Successful implementation of the 
Project may require the Developer to obtain additional approvals and permits from City. 
In connection with the consideration and issuance of any such Subsequent Development 
Approval which is not ministerial in nature, the City reserves its discretion under the 
police power to approve, conditionally approve, or deny the issuance of each 
Subsequent Development Approval. 


2.4 Development Costs.  Developer shall be solely responsible for payment 
of all Development Costs incurred in connection with developing the Project on the 
Property. 


2.5 Schedule of Performance.  Developer shall, in good faith, use 
commercially reasonable efforts to undertake, commence, and thereafter diligently 
pursue to completion, the development of the Project.  The parties acknowledge that 
Developer cannot at this time specifically predict when, or the rate at which, the Project 
will be constructed and completed.  Such decisions depend upon numerous factors, 
which are not within the control of Developer, such as market orientation and demand, 
availability of financing, interest rates, absorption, competition, and other similar market 
factors.  Since the California Supreme Court held in Pardee Construction Co. v. City of 
Camarillo (1984) 37 Cal.3d 465, that the failure of the parties therein to provide for the 
timing of development resulted in a later-adopted initiative restricting the timing of 
development to prevail over such parties, it is the intent of City and Developer to cure 
any possible deficiency in this Agreement arising from the same legal infirmity, by 
acknowledging and providing that the Developer shall have the right to develop Project 
on the Property in such order, at such rate, and at such times during the Term of the 
Agreement, as the Developer deems appropriate within the exercise of its independent 
business judgment. 







 


 


2.6 Developer’s Representations and Warranties.  Developer represents 
and warrants that, to the best of its knowledge, the following are accurate and true as of 
the Effective Date of this Agreement: 


2.6.1 Title and Possession.  Developer leases said Property located at 
33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, 
California, and is the sole person in legal possession of the lease space.  All other persons 
holding legal or equitable interests in the Property shall be bound by this Agreement.   


2.6.2 No Legal Actions.  No Action to acquire, partition, or quiet title or any 
interest in the Property, or any Action that is reasonably likely to impair, encumber, or 
otherwise adversely impact title to the Property or Developer’s rights, title, or interest to 
or in the Property is pending or otherwise imminent (including written threats to 
commence such Action), and to the best of Developer’s knowledge there are no facts 
upon which a third party could reasonably base, maintain, or threaten such an Action.  


2.6.3 No Legal Impediments to Agreement.  No contract, lease, or other 
agreement, whether recorded or unrecorded, bars, prohibits, limits or otherwise impairs 
Developer’s ability to enter into this Agreement and to encumber the Property with this 
Agreement. 


2.7 Cooperation.  City agrees that it shall accept for processing and promptly 
take action on all applications for Implementing Approvals, provided they are in a proper 
form and acceptable for required processing in accordance with the Existing 
Development Approvals and the provisions of this Agreement. 


3. PUBLIC BENEFITS 


3.1 Public Benefit.  The parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement 
confers private benefits on the Developer that should be balanced by commensurate 
public benefits.  Accordingly, the parties intend to provide consideration to the public to 
balance the private benefits conferred on the Developer by imposition of the 
Development Agreement Fee set forth in Section 3.2 hereof.  City acknowledges, as 
partial consideration for this Agreement, the Development Agreement Fee will be 
payable by Developer as provided in Section 3.2 hereof which fee will be utilized to 
further mitigate the impact of the Project and provide community benefits, as determined 
by the City Council.  The provisions of this Section 3 are material terms of this 
Agreement, and failure by Developer to fulfill any of its obligations in this Section 3 shall 
be a material breach of this Agreement.  


3.2 Development Agreement Fee.  On the Effective Date of this Agreement 
and on each anniversary thereafter, the Developer shall pay to the City a Development 
Agreement Fee as follows: 


3.2.1 Twenty dollars ($20.00) per gross square foot of floor area (2,275 
square-foot lease space) within any building, facility or structure utilized for the proposed 
Cannabis Business.  Beginning on the first anniversary of the Effective Date, and 
quarterly thereafter, the portion of this Development Agreement Fee shall be 







 


 


automatically adjusted based on the average percentage change in the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) for “all urban consumers” in the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario area, or a 
subsequent Consumer Price Index (CPI) area covering the City, for the previous January 
to December period. 


3.2.2 In addition, the following amounts shall be paid to the City based on 
the quarterly (1/4) gross receipts of the Cannabis Business commencing on the first 
quarterly (1/4) anniversary of the Effective Date of this Agreement and quarterly (1/4) 
thereafter as follows: 


3.2.2.1 1st anniversary through 5th anniversary:  3% of gross receipts. 


3.2.2.2 6th anniversary through 20th anniversary: 5% of gross receipts 
unless the City and Developer agree to a different amount and as 
approved by the City Council prior to the 6th anniversary of the 
Effective Date.   


3.2.3 City and Developer hereby agree to engage in good faith 
negotiations during the 5th year of this Development Agreement regarding the 
Development percentage fee noted above. 


3.2.4 The City shall have the power to audit and examine all books and 
records of the Developer, as well as persons engaged in the operation of the Cannabis 
Business, including both state and federal income tax returns, California sales tax returns, 
or other evidence documenting the gross receipts of the Cannabis Business for the 
purpose of ascertaining the amount of the Development Agreement Fee required to be 
paid by Developer under this Section. 


3.2.5 In the event that during the Term of this Agreement the voters of the 
City approve a cannabis tax, then the Development Agreement Fee shall no longer be 
due and payable from the date the cannabis tax takes effect through the remainder of the 
Term. 


3.3 Other Fees.  In addition to the Development Agreement Fee, Developer 
agrees to pay all Regulatory Fees, Development Impact Fees, and any other applicable 
fees to the City related to the development of the Project on the Property.  


4. APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS; RESERVATION OF AUTHORITY 


4.1 Existing Land Use Regulations.  The Existing Land Use Regulations 
shall be applicable to the Project. Any change in, or addition to, the Existing Land Use 
Regulations, including without limitation, any change in any applicable City general or 
specific plan, zoning or building regulation, adopted or becoming effective after the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, including, without limitation, any change by means of 
ordinance, initiative, referendum, resolution, motion, policy, order or moratorium, initiated 
or instituted for any reason whatsoever and adopted by the City Council, Planning 
Commission or any other Board, Commission or Department of the City, or any officer 
or employee thereof, or by the electorate, as the case may be, which would, absent this 







 


 


Agreement, otherwise be applicable to the Project and which would conflict or be 
inconsistent with in any way the Existing Land Use Rules or the Existing Land Use 
Approvals or this Agreement, shall not be applied to the Project, subject to the 
Reservation of Authority set forth in section 4.3 hereof.   


4.2 Federal and State Laws.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this 
Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall be subject to subsequently enacted state or 
federal laws or regulations that may preempt the City’s ordinances, resolutions, rules, 
regulations, and policies, or require the same be amended, or require the City to adopt 
new ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations, and policies. As provided in section 
65869.5 of the California Government Code, in the event state or federal laws or 
regulations enacted after the Effective Date prevent or preclude compliance with one or 
more provisions of this Agreement, such provisions shall be modified or suspended as 
may be necessary to comply with such state or federal laws or regulations. Upon 
discovery of a subsequently enacted federal or state law meeting the requirements of 
this Section, City or Developer shall provide the other Party with written notice of the 
state or federal law or regulation, and a written statement of the conflicts thereby raised. 
Promptly thereafter, City and Developer shall meet and confer in good faith in a 
reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement, as necessary, to comply with such federal 
or state law or regulation provided City shall not be obligated to agree to any modification 
materially increasing its obligations or materially adversely affecting its rights and 
benefits hereunder. In such discussions, City and Developer will attempt to preserve the 
terms of this Agreement and the rights of Developer derived from this Agreement to the 
maximum feasible extent while resolving the conflict. If City, in its judgment, determines 
it necessary to modify this Agreement to address such conflict, City shall have the right 
and responsibility to do so, and shall not have any liability to Developer for doing so or 
be considered in breach or default of this Agreement. City also agrees to process, in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, Developer’s proposed changes to the 
Project that are necessary to comply with such federal or state law and that such 
proposed changes shall be conclusively deemed to be consistent with this Agreement 
without further need for any amendment to this Agreement. 


4.3 Reservation of Authority.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, the City reserves its authority to impose any of the following rules, policies, 
regulations, ordinances, or requirements on development of the Project: 


4.3.1 Filing and Processing Fees.  Developer shall pay all customary and 
typical filing and permit processing fees imposed for Subsequent Development Approvals 
as required under ordinances and resolutions then in effect.  


4.3.2 Development Impact Fees.  Development impact fees or charges 
imposed by the City on and in connection with a development or other similar fees or 
charges imposed by other governmental entities regardless of whether the City is required 
to collect or assess such fees pursuant to applicable laws (e.g., school district impact fees 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65995)..  







 


 


4.3.3 Procedural Requirements.  Procedural regulations relating to hearing 
bodies, petitions, applications, notices, findings, records, hearings, reports, 
recommendations, appeals, and any other matter of procedure. 


4.3.4 Taxes of General Applicability.  Any law, ordinance, or resolution that 
imposes a general or special tax of general applicability to be applied uniformly to 
business and/or development in the City, whether such tax is for licensing or other 
purposes.   


4.3.5 Uniform Codes.  This Agreement does not prevent the City from 
adopting and amending in compliance with State law certain uniform codes or uniform 
standards which are based on recommendations of a multi-state professional 
organization, and which become applicable throughout the City -- including the Project 
and the Property subject to this Agreement.  Such Uniform Codes include, but are not 
limited to, the Uniform Building Code, Uniform Mechanical Code, National Electrical 
Code, Uniform Fire Code, and uniform standards for the construction of public works. 


4.3.6 Regulation by Other Public Agencies.  It is acknowledged by the 
parties that other public agencies not within the control of City possess authority to 
regulate aspects of the development of the Property separately from or jointly with City 
and this Agreement does not limit the authority of such other public agencies. 


4.4 Changes and Amendments.  Substantial changes to the Project or the 
Existing Development Approvals and amendments of this Agreement shall be subject to 
the following: 


4.4.1 Amendment or Cancellation of Agreement.  This Agreement may be 
amended or canceled in whole or in part only by mutual consent of the parties and in the 
manner provided for in Government Code Sections 65868, 65867, and 65867.5.  The 
provisions of this Section do not impact the right of the City to terminate this Agreement 
because of Developer's breach or failure to comply in good faith with the requirements of 
this Agreement. 


4.4.2 Review by City Council.  Any amendment to this Agreement shall 
require review and approval by the City Council.   


5. RIGHTS OF MORTGAGEES. 


5.1 Mortgagee Protection.  Neither entering into this Agreement nor committing 
a Default under this Agreement shall defeat, render invalid, diminish, affect the priority 
or impair the lien of Mortgagees having a Mortgage on any portion of the Property made 
in good faith and for value.  No Mortgagee shall have an obligation or duty under this 
Agreement to perform Developer's obligations, or to guarantee such performance prior 
to any foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, but upon acquiring the right to 
possession pursuant to a Mortgage on the Property or any portion thereof, the Mortgagee 
shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Mortgagee shall have no obligation or duty under this Agreement to construct 
or complete the construction of improvements, or to guarantee such construction or 







 


 


completion thereof; provided, however, that Mortgagee shall not be entitled to devote the 
Property to any uses or to construct any improvements thereon other than those 
improvements provided for or authorized by this Agreement. The term of this Agreement 
shall not be extended based on the fact that a Mortgagee held title to the Property for all 
or any part of the term of this Agreement. 


5.2 Notice of Default to Mortgagee; Right to Cure. 


5.2.1 If the City Clerk timely receives notice from a Mortgagee requesting 
a copy of any Notice of Default given to Developer under the terms of the Agreement, the 
City shall provide a copy of that notice to the Mortgagee concurrently with sending the 
Notice of Default to Developer.  City shall have no liability for damages or otherwise to 
Developer, Developer's successor, or to any Mortgagee or successor therefor for failure 
to provide such notice.   


5.2.2 The Mortgagee shall have the right, but not the obligation, for a 
period up to ninety (90) days after the receipt of such notice from the City to cure or 
remedy, or to commence to cure or remedy, the Default unless a further extension of time 
to cure is granted in writing by the City.  However, a Mortgagee, to avail itself of the rights 
provided by this Section, must notify the City in writing of its intent to attempt to remedy 
or cure within forty-five (45) days of the date of the Notice of Default from City to 
Mortgagee.  A failure by a Mortgagee to provide such timely notice to City shall extinguish 
the rights and protections provided by this Section.    If the Default is of a nature which 
can only be remedied or cured by such Mortgagee upon obtaining possession, such 
Mortgagee shall seek to obtain possession with diligence and continually through 
foreclosure, a receiver, or otherwise, and shall thereafter remedy or cure the Default 
within ninety (90) days after obtaining possession.  If the Default cannot, with diligence, 
be remedied or cured within this ninety (90) day period, then the Mortgagee shall have 
such additional time as the City Council determines is reasonably necessary to remedy 
or cure the Default if the Mortgagee commences cure during the ninety (90) day period 
and thereafter diligently pursues and completes the cure.   


5.2.3 Such diligence by the Mortgagee on effectuating such cure shall be 
reviewed by the City Council every thirty (30) days thereafter until any and all Defaults 
are cured.  If at any such review, the City Council determines that the Mortgagee is not 
making good faith efforts to cure any and all Defaults, the City Council shall have the 
authority to terminate this Agreement.   


5.3 Cure by Mortgagee.  In the event any obligation of Developer is for the 
payment of money or fees, other than standard permit or processing fees, and a Default 
is declared by City based upon such failure to pay, a Mortgagee may be granted an 
extended time to remedy or cure until such time as Mortgagee obtains possession of the 
Property; provided, Mortgagee agrees that any money due City which remains unpaid 
shall bear the higher of the legal rate of interest or the Consumer Price Index as the 
measure of inflation. 







 


 


5.4 Mortgagee Rights.  The parties hereto agree that this Agreement shall not 
prevent or limit Developer, in any manner, at Developer's sole discretion, from 
encumbering the Property or any portion thereof or any improvement thereon by any 
mortgage, deed of trust, or other security device securing financing with respect to the 
Property.  City acknowledges that the lenders providing such financing may require 
certain Agreement interpretations and modifications and agrees upon request, from time 
to time, to meet with the Developer and representatives of such lenders to negotiate in 
good faith any such request for interpretation or modification.  City will not unreasonably 
withhold its consent to any such requested interpretation or modification provided such 
interpretation or modification is consistent with the intent and purposes of this 
Agreement.  Developer shall reimburse City for any and all of City's reasonable costs 
associated with said negotiations, interpretations, and modifications and shall make 
reimbursement payments to City within thirty (30) days or receipt of an invoice from City. 


Neither entering into this Agreement nor a breach of this Agreement shall defeat, 
render invalid, diminish, or impair the lien of any mortgage on the Property made in good 
faith and for value, unless otherwise required by law or specified herein. 


6. INDEMNITY, INSURANCE AND RELEASE 


6.1 Participation in Litigation: Indemnity.  The Developer shall indemnify, 
protect and defend the City and its elected boards, commissions, officers, agents and 
employees (each, an “Agent”) and will hold and save them and each of them harmless 
from any and all Claims or Litigation (including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs) against the City and/or Agent for any such Claims or Litigation and shall 
be responsible for any judgment arising therefrom. The City shall provide the Developer 
with notice of the pendency of such action and shall request that the Developer defend 
such action.  The Developer may select legal counsel providing the Developer’s defense 
and it is expressly agreed that the City shall have the right to approve separate legal 
counsel providing the City’s defense.  The Developer shall reimburse City for any 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily incurred by the 
City in the course of the defense.  Developer agrees that City will forward monthly 
invoices to Developer for attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses it has incurred related to 
its defense of any Claim or Litigation and Developer agrees to timely payment within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice.  Developer agrees to post adequate security or 
a cash deposit with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated attorneys’ fees, costs 
and expenses incurred by City in the course of the defense in order to ensure timely 
payment of the City’s invoices.  The amount of the security or cash deposit shall be 
determined by the City.  City shall cooperate with Developer in the defense of any Claim 
or Litigation. 


The Developer’s obligation to pay the cost of the action, including judgment, 
shall extend until judgment.  After judgment in a trial court, the Parties may mutually agree 
as to whether any appeal will be taken or defended.  The Developer shall have the right, 
within the first 30 days of the service of the complaint or judgment in a trial court, in their 
sole and absolute discretion, to determine they do not want to defend any litigation, or 
appeal any judgment, attacking this Agreement or the Development Approvals in which 







 


 


case the City shall allow the Developer to settle the litigation on whatever terms the 
Developer determine, in their sole and absolute discretion, but Developer shall confer 
with City before acting and cannot bind City.  In that event, the Developer shall be liable 
for any costs incurred by the City up to the date of settlement but shall have no further 
obligation to the City beyond the payment of those costs. In the event of an appeal, or a 
settlement offer, the Parties shall confer in good faith as to how to proceed.   


6.2 Survival of Indemnity Obligations.  All indemnity provisions set forth in 
this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason other than the 
City’s Default. 


6.3 Insurance.  Developer shall maintain insurance in the amounts and of the 
types that are acceptable to the City as required under the Cannabis Business License. 


6.4 Release.  Except for non-damage remedies, including the remedy of 
specific performance as provided for in Section 8.6 [Legal and Equitable Actions], 
Developer, for itself, its successors and assignees, hereby releases the City, its officers, 
agents, and employees from any and all claims, demands, actions, or suits of any kind 
or nature arising out of any liability, known or unknown, present or future, including, but 
not limited to, any claim or liability, based or asserted, pursuant to Article I, Section 19 
of the California Constitution, the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution, or 
any other law or ordinance which seeks to impose any other liability or damage, 
whatsoever, upon the City because it entered into this  Agreement or because of the 
terms of this Agreement.  Developer further acknowledges that, as an instrument which 
must be approved by ordinance, a development agreement is subject to referendum; 
and that, under law, the City Council's discretion to avoid a referendum by rescinding its 
approval of the underlying ordinance may not be constrained by contract, and Developer 
waives all claims for damages against City in this regard. 


7. PERIODIC REVIEW PROCEDURE 


7.1 Timing.  Pursuant to Government Code § 65865.1, City shall review this 
Developer’s compliance with the terms, conditions, and covenants of this Agreement.  
Such review shall be undertaken at least once during every twelve (12) month period 
from the Effective Date of this Agreement.  The Developer or successor shall reimburse 
City for the reasonable and necessary costs of this review, excluding cost incurred under 
Article 8.0 [Default and Enforcement], within thirty (30) days of written demand from City. 


7.2 Evidence for Annual Review.  Developer shall deliver to City within thirty 
(30) days of each anniversary of the Effective Date evidence to demonstrate the 
Developer’s good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to compliance with the payment obligations in Section 3 of this Agreement.  The 
City shall bear no responsibility or obligation to research, investigate, or otherwise obtain 
evidence of Developer’s good faith compliance with this Agreement.  It shall be 
Developer’s sole responsibility and obligation to provide evidence of its good faith 
compliance with this Agreement.  Prior to making a determination, the City shall make 
available to the Developer any public staff reports and documents to be used or relied 







 


 


upon by City to determine Developer’s good faith compliance with this Agreement.  The 
Developer shall be permitted an opportunity to respond to the City’s evaluation of its 
performance, either orally or at a public hearing or in a written statement.  Such response 
shall be made to the Director or its designee for purposes of review of compliance with 
this Agreement. 


7.3 Certificate of Compliance.  With respect to each year for which an annual 
review of compliance with this Agreement is conducted, and for which the City has 
determined that Developer is in good faith compliance with this Agreement, the City, 
upon written request of the Developer, shall provide Developer with a written certificate 
of good-faith compliance, in recordable form, duly executed and acknowledged by the 
City.  The Developer shall have the right, in the Developer’s sole discretion, to record 
this notice of compliance.   


8. DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT 


8.1 Default.  Either party’s failure or unreasonable delay in performing any 
term, provision or covenant of this Agreement constitutes a Default of this Agreement.  
In the event of a Default, the injured party shall give written “Notice of Default” to the 
defaulting party, specifying the Default.  If the defaulting party fails to cure the Default 
within forty-five (45) business days after receipt of a Notice of Default, or, if the Default 
is of a nature that cannot be cured within forty-five (45) business days, the defaulting 
party fails to commence to cure the Default within said forty-five (45) business days and 
thereafter diligently prosecute such cure to completion, then the defaulting party shall be 
liable to the injured party for any and all damages caused by such Default, unless 
otherwise provided for by this Agreement. 


8.2 Default by Developer.  Developer is in default under this Agreement upon 
the happening of one or more of the following events or conditions and failure to cure 
such default in accordance with Section 8.1 hereof: 


8.2.1 If a warranty, representation, or statement made or furnished by 
Developer to City is false or proves to have been false in any material respect when it 
was made. 


8.2.2 More than forty-five (45) days have passed since City's making of a 
written request to Developer for payment or reimbursement for a fee or service authorized 
or agreed to pursuant to this Agreement. 


8.2.3 A finding and determination by City that upon the basis of information 
provided by Developer, and reviewed and investigated by City, the Developer has not 
complied in good faith with one or more of the material terms or conditions of this 
Agreement. 


8.2.4 Developer failed to substantially comply with any material term, 
condition, or covenant of this Agreement, including failing to timely provide the evidence 
required under Section 7.2 of this Agreement. 







 


 


8.3 Default by City.  If City has failed to cure it’s Default after notice and an 
opportunity to cure as provided in Section 8.1. [Default], Developer may pursue any legal 
or equitable remedy available to it under this Agreement without further notice to City, 
except as may be required under the law for service of summons and other legal papers.  
It is acknowledged by the parties that City would not have entered into this Agreement if 
City was to be subject to or liable for monetary damages under or with respect to this 
Agreement or the application thereof.  Developer, for himself or any successor thereto, 
expressly waives the right to seek monetary damages   against the City or any officer, 
employee, or agent thereof, for any default or breach of this Agreement.  Developer 
covenants and agrees not to sue for or claim any damages -- including monetary 
damages -- for any purported breach of this Agreement by City. 


8.4 No Recovery for Monetary Damages.  As part of the bargained for 
consideration for this Agreement, the Parties agree that any action or proceeding to cure, 
correct or remedy any Default or to enforce any covenant or promise herein shall be 
limited solely and exclusively to those remedies expressly provided herein.  City and 
Developer may institute legal or equitable proceedings to cure, correct or remedy any 
Default, or to enforce any covenant or promise herein, enjoin any threatened or 
attempted violation, or enforce by specific performance, declaratory relief or writ of 
mandate the obligations and rights of the Parties hereto.  In no event shall Developer or 
City, or any of their officers, agents, representatives, officials, employees or insurers, be 
liable to Developer or City for damages for any breach or violation of this Agreement.  
The enforceability and validity of the above limitations on the remedies available to the 
Parties, including, without limitation, the specific provision prohibiting the recovery of 
damages, is part of the bargained for, negotiated consideration for the City’s agreement 
to enter into this Agreement, and it is acknowledged that the City would not have entered 
this Agreement if it were to be liable in damages under this Agreement.  In the event 
Developer seek or accept damages in any action or proceeding brought for breach or 
violation of this Agreement or to enforce any provision hereof, such award shall destroy 
the consideration supporting the City’s agreement to enter into this Agreement, and shall, 
in turn, entitle the City to immediately impose whatever terms, conditions, ordinances, 
fees and/or exactions the City deems appropriate, and further shall entitle the City, at its 
option, to undertake to revoke any entitlements granted pursuant to this Agreement, 
irrespective of any provision to the contrary contained herein.  Accordingly, the remedy 
of monetary damages is not available to any Party except as provided below. 


For purposes of enforcement, stated positively, the Parties shall have the equitable 
remedies of specific performance, injunctive and declaratory relief, or a mandate or other 
action determining that the City has exceed its authority, and similar remedies, other than 
recovery of monetary damages, to enforce their rights under this Agreement.  The Parties 
shall have the right to recover their attorney fees and costs in such action. 


In the event the Developer fails to perform any monetary obligation under this 
Agreement, City may sue for the payment of such sums to the extent due and payable.  
The Developer shall pay interest thereon at the lesser of: (i) five percent (5%) per annum, 
or (ii) the maximum rate permitted by law, from and after the due date of the monetary 
obligation until payment is actually received by the City. 







 


 


8.5 Waiver.  Failure or delay in giving Notice of Default, or failing to commence 
a legal or equitable action as a result of the Default, shall not waive a Party's right to give 
future Notice of the same or any other Default. 


8.6 Legal and Equitable Actions.  In addition to any other rights and 
remedies, any party may institute a legal action to require the cure of any Default and to 
recover damages (except as otherwise provided herein) for any Default, or to obtain any 
other remedy consistent with the purpose of this Agreement.  The following provisions 
shall apply to any such legal action: 


8.6.1 Jurisdiction and Venue.  Legal actions must be instituted and 
maintained in the Superior Court of the County of Riverside, Central Division, State of 
California, or in the United States District Court for the Central District of California.  
Developer specifically waives any rights provided to it pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure § 394 or federal or state statutes or judicial decisions of like effect. 


8.6.2 Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the 
interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement. 


8.6.3 Litigation Expenses.  In the event either party commences an Action 
against the other party which arises out of a Default of, breach of, failure to perform this 
Agreement or otherwise related to this Agreement, then the Prevailing Party in the Action 
shall be entitled to recover its Litigation Expenses from the other party in addition to 
whatever relief to which the prevailing party may be entitled.  For the purposes of this 
Section, the term “Prevailing Party,” shall have the meaning ascribed in Code of Civil 
Procedure §1032(a)(4). 


8.6.4 Specific Performance Remedy.  The City and Developer agree that 
damages would not be an adequate remedy if the City fails to carry out its obligations 
under this Agreement.  Therefore, no money damages are available against City, or any 
officer, employee, or agent thereof.  Specific performance of this Agreement is necessary 
to compensate Developer if the City fails to carry out its obligations under this Agreement.   


8.7 Remedies are Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Parties are 
cumulative, and the exercise by a party of one or more of its rights or remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different time, of any other rights or remedies 
for the same Default or any other Default by another Party. 


8.8 Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the occurrence of any 
of the following: 


8.8.1 Expiration of the term stated in section 2.2; 


8.8.2 Mutual written consent of the parties; 


8.8.3 Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1) expires pursuant to 
Wildomar Municipal Code Section 17.200.060, or is revoked pursuant to Wildomar 
Municipal Code Section 17.200.070; 







 


 


8.8.4 Developer’s Cannabis Business License or State License is revoked, 
or Developer fails to timely renew its Cannabis Business License or State License and 
Developer is without either license for a period of at least thirty (30) consecutive days;  


8.8.5 Entry of a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction setting 
aside, voiding or annulling the adoption of the ordinance approving this Agreement; 


8.8.6 The adoption of a referendum measure overriding or repealing the 
ordinance approving this Agreement; 


8.8.7 Developer no longer has a legal or equitable interest in the Property 
or has ceased operating the Project on the Property, for a period of at least thirty (30) 
consecutive days; 


8.8.8 Developer (or any successor in interest) assigns or attempts to 
assign the Agreement or any rights therein in violation of this Agreement and fails to cure 
such default within the time set forth in Section 8.1 [Default] hereof; 


8.8.9 Developer is otherwise in material Default of this Agreement and fails 
to cure such Default within the time set forth in Section 8.1 [Default] hereof. 


8.9 Revocation of CUP.  The execution and recordation of this Agreement is 
a condition of approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1) pursuant to Section 
17.315.080(A)(7) of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  Developer understands and agrees 
that termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.8 constitutes good cause for the 
City to revoke Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1).   


9. GENERAL PROVISIONS 


9.1 Waiver of Challenges.  In exchange for the vested right to develop 
pursuant to this Agreement, Developer expressly waives for himself and for any 
successor thereto, the right to challenge or contest the validity of any condition of 
approval attached to any entitlement which is a part of the Existing Development 
Approvals.  


9.2 Bankruptcy. The obligations of this Agreement shall not be dischargeable 
in bankruptcy. 


9.3 Assignment.  The rights and obligations of Developer hereunder shall not 
be assigned or transferred, except that on thirty (30) days written notice to City, 
Developer may assign all or a portion of Developer’s rights and obligations there under 
to any person or persons, partnership or corporation who purchases all or a portion of 
Developer’s right, title and interest in the Property, or Project, provided such assignee or 
grantee assumes in writing each and every obligation of Developer hereunder yet to be 
performed, and further provided that Developer obtains the written consent of City to the 
assignment, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. No assignment shall be 
consented to by City until the assignee has obtained a Cannabis Business License from 
the City for the Project.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provision concerning the written 







 


 


consent of City, and provided that the assignment is to an affiliate of Developer (an entity 
which is controlled by, controls, or is under common control with, Developer), the City 
shall in such cases provide its written consent provided that all other requirements of this 
section are satisfied. The notice to City shall include the identity of any such assignee 
and a copy of the written assumption of the assignor’s obligations hereunder pertaining 
to the portion assigned or transferred. After such notice and the receipt of such consent, 
the assignor shall have no further obligations or liabilities hereunder. The City Manager 
may act on behalf of City regarding any actions concerning the assignment of this 
Agreement. 


9.4 Enforced Delays; Extension of Times.  In addition to specific provisions 
of this Agreement, performance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in 
Default, and all performance and other dates specified in this Agreement shall be 
extended, where delays or Defaults are due to: litigation challenging the validity of this 
transaction or any element thereof or the right of either party to engage in the acts and 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; inability to secure necessary labor 
materials or tools; delays of any contractor, sub-contractor or supplier; or withdrawal of 
financing not caused by any act or omission of Developer; war; insurrection; strikes; 
lockouts; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts of God; acts of the public 
enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; lack of transportation; 
governmental agency or entity (other than the acts or failures to act of the City which 
shall not excuse performance by the City); or any other causes beyond the control or 
without the fault of the party claiming an extension of time to perform. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, an extension of time for any such cause shall 
be for the period or the enforced delay and shall commence to run from the time of the 
commencement of the cause, if notice by the party claiming such extension is sent to the 
other party within forty-five (45) days of the commencement of the cause. Times of 
performance under this Agreement may also be extended in writing by the mutual 
agreement of the City and Developer.  


9.5 Binding Effect of Agreement.  The burdens of this Agreement bind, and 
the benefits of the Agreement inure to the successors-in-interest to the parties to it in 
accordance with the provisions of and subject to the limitations of this Agreement. 


9.6 Project as a Private Undertaking/Relationship of Parties.  It is 
specifically understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the 
development of the Project is a private development, that neither party is acting as the 
agent of the other in any respect hereunder, and that each party is an independent 
contracting entity with respect to the terms, covenants, and conditions contained in this 
Agreement.  No partnership, joint venture, or other association of any kind is formed by 
this Agreement.  The only relationship between City and Developer is that of a 
government entity regulating the development of private property and the Developer of 
such property. 


9.7 Notices.  All notices required or provided for under this Agreement shall 
be in writing and delivered in person or sent by registered mail, postage prepaid to the 
person and address provided below.  Delivery shall be presumed delivered upon actual 







 


 


receipt by personal delivery or within three (3) days following deposit thereof in United 
States Mail or within two (2) days of delivery by facsimile, provided that if notice is by 
facsimile, then a copy of the notice shall also be contemporaneously sent by regular 
mail, postage prepaid to the person and address provided below.   


Notice required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows: 


To City:  City of Wildomar 
Attn: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 
Facsimile: (951) 698-1463 


With a copy to: City Attorney 
Attn: Thomas D. Jex 
1770 Iowa Ave., Suite 240 
Riverside, CA  92507 
Facsimile: (951) 788-5785 


Notices required to be given to Developer shall be addressed as follows:  


To Developer: Macy Newall, Developer 
Culture Holdings of Wildomar, Inc. 
3 Corporate Park, Suite #200 
Irvine, CA 92606 


A party may change the address by giving notice in writing to the other party and 
thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 


9.8 Further Actions and Instruments.  Each of the Parties shall cooperate 
with and provide reasonable assistance to the other to the extent necessary to implement 
this Agreement.  Upon the request of either Party at any time, the other Party shall 
promptly execute, with acknowledgement or affidavit if reasonably required, and file or 
record such required instruments and writings and take any actions as may be 
reasonably necessary to implement this Agreement or to evidence or consummate the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.  In the event Developer or Developer's 
successor requires supplemental or additional agreements for purposes of securing 
financing or similar purposes, City will endeavor to assist in this respect, provided, 
however, Developer or Developer's successor shall reimburse the City for any and all 
costs associated with processing, reviewing, negotiating, or acting on such agreements.  
Developer or Developer's successor agrees to reimburse City within thirty (30) days of 
written demand therefor. 


9.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the City and Developer.  No other parties or entities are intended to 
be, or shall be considered, a beneficiary of the performance of any of the parties’ 
obligations under this Agreement. 







 


 


9.10 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the attachments hereto contain 
the complete, final, entire, and exclusive expression of the agreement between the 
parties hereto, and are intended by the parties to completely state the agreement in full.  
Any agreement or representation respecting the matters dealt with herein or the duties 
of any party in relation thereto not expressly set forth in this Agreement shall be null and 
void. 


9.11 Recitals and Definitions.  The Recitals and Definitions set forth at the 
beginning of this Agreement are a substantive and integral part of this Agreement and 
are incorporated by reference in the Operative Provisions portion of this Agreement. 


9.12 Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements 
between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof. 


9.13 Titles and Captions.  Titles and captions are for convenience of reference 
only and do not define, describe or limit the scope or the intent of this Agreement or any 
of its terms.  References to section numbers are to Sections of this Agreement unless 
expressly stated otherwise. 


9.14 Interpretation.  City and Developer acknowledge that this Agreement is 
the product of mutual arms-length negotiation and drafting and each represents and 
warrants to the other that it has been represented by legal counsel in the negotiation and 
drafting of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the rule of construction that provides that the 
ambiguities in a document shall be construed against the drafter of that document shall 
have no application to the interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement. In any 
action or proceeding to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the finder of fact may refer 
to such extrinsic evidence not in direct conflict with any specific provision of this 
Agreement to determine and give effect to the intention of the parties hereto. 


9.15 Computation of Time.  The time in which any act is to be done under this 
Agreement is computed by excluding the first day (such as the day escrow opens) and 
including the last day, unless the last day is a holiday or Saturday or Sunday, and then 
that day is also excluded.  The term “holiday” shall mean all holidays as specified in 
Government Code § 6700 and § 6701.  If any act is to be done by a particular time during 
a day, that time shall be Pacific Standard Zone time 


9.16 Severability.  Each provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, 
in whole and in part, in this Agreement shall be considered severable.  In the event any 
provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole and/or in part, in this 
Agreement is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or void for any reason, such provision or 
part thereof shall be severed from this Agreement and shall not affect any other 
provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, of this Agreement and the 
remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.   


  







 


 


9.17 Operating Memoranda.  The provisions of this Agreement require a close 
degree of cooperation between the City and the Developer. Clarifications to this 
Agreement and the Existing Land Use Regulations may be appropriate with respect to 
the details of performance of the City and the Developer. To the extent allowable by law, 
the Developer shall retain a certain degree of flexibility as provided herein with respect 
to all matters, items and provisions covered in general under this Agreement, except for 
those which relate to the (i) term; (ii) permitted uses; or (iii) density or intensity of use. 
When and if the Developer finds it necessary or appropriate to make changes, 
adjustments or clarifications to matters, items or provisions not enumerated in (i) through 
(iii) above, the Parties shall effectuate such changes, adjustments or clarifications 
through operating memoranda (the “Operating Memoranda”) approved by the Parties in 
writing which reference this Section 9.17. Operating Memoranda are not intended to 
constitute an amendment to this Agreement but mere ministerial clarifications; therefore 
public notices and hearings shall not be required. The City Manager shall be authorized, 
upon consultation with, and approval of, the Developer, to determine whether a 
requested clarification may be effectuated pursuant to this Section or whether the 
requested clarification is of such character to constitute an amendment to this Agreement 
which requires compliance with the provisions of Section 9.18 below.  


9.18 Amendments to Agreement.  Each Party agrees to consider reasonable 
requests for amendments to this Agreement which may be made by the other Party, 
lending institutions, bond counsel or financial consultants.  Any amendments to this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of City and 
Developer.  On behalf of City, the City Manager shall have the authority to make minor 
amendments to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the granting of extensions 
of time to Developer, on behalf of City so long as such actions do not materially change 
the Agreement or make a commitment of additional funds of City.  All other changes, 
modifications, and amendments shall require the prior approval of City Council. 


9.19 Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to and incorporated into this 
Agreement: 


Exhibit A – PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION  


Exhibit B – SITE DIAGRAM  


Exhibit C – PROPERTY OWNER CONSENT  


9.20 Authority to Execute.  Each party hereto expressly warrants and 
represents that he/she/they has/have the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf 
of his/her/their corporation, partnership, business entity, or governmental entity and 
warrants and represents that he/she/they has/have the authority to bind his/her/their 
entity to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 


9.21 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 
each of which so fully executed counterpart shall be deemed an original.  No counterpart 
shall be deemed to be an original or presumed delivered unless and until the counterpart 







 


 


executed by the other party to this Agreement is in the physical possession of the party 
seeking enforcement thereof. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the authorized 
representatives of the parties hereto. 


 


CITY: 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 


By: ___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 
 


ATTEST:  


By: ________________________ 
Janet Morales, CMC 
City Clerk 


 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


By: ________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


[NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT REQUIRED] 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


DEVELOPER: 


CULTURE CANNABIS CLUB, INC. 


By:   


Name:  _____________________  


Title:  ___________________________ 


By:   


Name:  _____________________  


Title:  
  


 
 
 


 







 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document 


 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )  
County of ___________________)  
 
On ___________________________, before me, _______________________________a  


 


Notary Public, personally appeared ____________________________________who 


proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) 


is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 


executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 


signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 


person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  


 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 


foregoing paragraph is true and correct  


 
WITNESS my hand and official seal.  
 
 
________________________________  
Signature of Notary          
          (Affix seal here) 
 


 


 







 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 


PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


Real property in the City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California, 
described as follows: 
 
PARCELS 1 AND 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 5335, IN THE COUNTY OF 
RIVERSIDE AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 10 OF PARCEL 
MAPS AT PAGE 39, RIVERSIDE COUNTY RECORDS.  
 
EXCEPT THE INTEREST AS CONDEMNED BY FINAL ORDER OF 
CONDEMNATION RECORDED MARCH 20, 1996 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 
1996-098502 OFFICIAL RECORDS.  
 
THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS PURSUANT TO "CERTIFICATE OF PARCEL 
MERGER NO. 512" RECORDED SEPTEMBER 23, 1988 AS INSTRUMENT 
NO. 1988-276585 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.  
 
APN: 366-160-070 


 
 


  



https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=1d1eb0f2-3379-4e7a-8a46-6c651471d323&q=z3U130qam6Vhz1bL1rW3RLcyptY0hE4JvClaVZhWVBQ4Hs%3D&h=73e9c6e2-0a08-4264-a45a-ba127c65ca8a&attach=true

https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=1d1eb0f2-3379-4e7a-8a46-6c651471d323&q=z3U130qam6Vhz1bL1rW3RLcyptY0hE4JvClaVZhWVBQ4Hs%3D&h=73e9c6e2-0a08-4264-a45a-ba127c65ca8a&attach=true

https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=1d1eb0f2-3379-4e7a-8a46-6c651471d323&q=z3U130qam6Vhz1bL1rW3RKjvtfsOuTrOgzvwKvKKSfM%3D&h=77e4d7e9-bb61-42fa-8be8-54e9faf3ab2d&attach=true

https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=1d1eb0f2-3379-4e7a-8a46-6c651471d323&q=z3U130qam6Vhz1bL1rW3RNvjCeyptuu7Kvqg9Qk2MAck8o%3D&h=f080bc31-5a45-4d98-b4f2-baff7a5b56dc&attach=true

https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=1d1eb0f2-3379-4e7a-8a46-6c651471d323&q=fFeyptfF7OOZeyptBZAtYxkseFbyiDhh7jRZtyzylLwLoaAeyptQ%3d&t=9&h=740d9590-d932-4255-ae47-2a84f89d8789&attach=true





 


 


EXHIBIT B 
SITE DIAGRAM 


33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) 


 
 


  







 


 


EXHIBIT C 
 


PROPERTY OWNER CONSENT 


“The Manske Revocable Trust,” being the owner of the real property described in Exhibit 
A to this Development Agreement by and between the City of Wildomar and Culture 
Holdings of Wildomar, Inc, a California Corporation, dated for identification as of 
December 10, 2021 (the “Agreement”), do hereby consent to the recordation of said 
Agreement in the Official Records of the County of Riverside.  
 


Mr. Edwin Manske 
 
 
Date: _________________ __________________________ 


Owners Signature 
 
Title: ______________________ 
 
Developer: The Manske Revocable Trust 


 


 


[NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT REQUIRED] 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document 


 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )  
County of ___________________)  
 
On ___________________________, before me, _______________________________a  


 


Notary Public, personally appeared ____________________________________who 


proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) 


is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 


executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 


signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 


person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  


 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 


foregoing paragraph is true and correct  


 
WITNESS my hand and official seal.  
 
 
________________________________  
Signature of Notary          
          (Affix seal here) 
 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.6 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Daniel A. York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 208 – Adding Chapter 2.44 (Campaign 


Contribution Limits for Elective City Offices) to the Wildomar Municipal 
Code 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt an Ordinance entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 208 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.44 
(CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION LIMITS FOR ELECTIVE CITY 
OFFICES) TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
DISCUSSION:  
The City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 208 at the November 10, 
2021, City Council meeting to add to the City of Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 2.44  
Campaign Contribution Limits for Elective City Offices. At this time, it would be 
appropriate for the City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 208 as amended. 
    
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager,     City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 208 
 







  
  


ORDINANCE NO. 208 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.44 (CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION 
LIMITS FOR ELECTIVE CITY OFFICES) TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 
CODE 


WHEREAS, Assembly Bill No. 571 was approved by the Governor on October 8. 
2019; and 


WHEREAS, absent a local resolution or ordinance, Assembly Bill No. 571 
amends the Political Reform Act so as to impose identical campaign contribution limits 
for candidates to county or city offices as those limits imposed on certain elective state 
office candidates effective January 1, 2021; and 


WHEREAS, like the vast majority of cities and counties throughout the state, the 
City of Wildomar (“City”) did not have campaign contribution limits prior to the passage of 
Assembly Bill No. 571 or this ordinance; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary to adopt campaign limits for City 
elective offices so as to provide greater transparency for City elective offices and to allow 
everyone the right to participate and support the candidates of their choice without any 
one person or entity having undue influence in a city election; and 


WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council that this ordinance limiting 
campaign contributions complies with the free speech clauses of the United States and 
California Constitutions and the decisional law by the federal and state courts. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar ordains as follows: 


SECTION 1.  GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 


The City Council has reviewed and analyzed the proposed amendments to the 
Municipal Code and finds and determines that the ordinance is in compliance with the 
goals and policies of the City of Wildomar General Plan, that the ordinance will not be 
detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or general welfare of the 
city; and that it is internally consistent with other applicable provisions of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code. 


SECTION 2.  CEQA 


The City Council hereby finds and determines that the proposed amendments to 
the Wildomar Municipal Code are exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(Cal. Publ. Res. Code §§21000 et seq. “CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines (14. 
Cal. Code Regs §§15000 et seq.), specifically pursuant to pursuant to Sections 
15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3), and 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines because it 
will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the 
environment, because there is no possibility that it may have a significant effect on the 
environment, and because it is not a “project” as that term is defined in Section 15378 
of the State CEQA Guidelines. 


SECTION 3.  ADDITION OF CHAPTER 2.44 







  
  


The City Council approves the addition Chapter 2.44 (Campaign Contribution 
Limits For Elective City Offices), attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, 
to the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY 


If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 
this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would 
have adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, 
clause, phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared 
invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE 


This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from its passage by the City 
Council. 


SECTION 6.  PUBLICATION 


The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 
within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Section 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the 
alternative summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code 
Section 36933(c). 


 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021 


 
 
 


       _________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________   ________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 







  
  


Exhibit “A” 


CHAPTER 2.44 - CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION LIMITS FOR ELECTIVE CITY 
OFFICES 


2.44.010 - Authority. 


This chapter is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Government Code 
Sections 85301, 85305, 85306, 85307, 85315, 85316, 85317, 85318, and 85702.5, as 
amended. 


2.44.020 - Definitions. 


As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 


"Candidate." As defined in the Political Reform Act provided that that the term shall be 
limited to candidates for city elective office for the purpose of this chapter. 


"Committee." As defined in Government Code section 82013 of the Political Reform 
Act, as amended. A committee includes but is not limited to "controlled committee" 
and "independent committee". 


"Contribution." As defined in Government Code section 82015 of the Political Reform 
Act, as amended. 


"Controlled committee." Any committee which is controlled directly or indirectly by a 
candidate or which acts jointly with a candidate or controlled committee in connection 
with the making of expenditures. A candidate controls a committee if he or she, his or 
her agent, or any other committee such candidate controls has a significant influence 
on the actions or decisions of the committee. 


"City elective office." The office of city council. 


"Election." Unless otherwise specified in this chapter, any primary, general, special or 
recall election held in this state. The primary, general, special or recall elections are all 
separate elections for the purpose of this chapter. 


"Independent committee." All committees other than controlled committees. 


"Independent expenditure." An expenditure made by any person including a payment 
of public moneys by a state or local governmental agency, in connection with a 
communication which expressly advocates the election or defeat of a clearly identified 
candidate or the qualification, passage or defeat of a clearly identified measure, or 
taken as a whole and in context, unambiguously urges a particular result in an election 
but which is not made to or at the behest of the affected candidate or committee. 







  
  


"Person." An individual, proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, 
business trust, company, corporation, limited liability company, association, 
committee, and any other organization or group of persons acting in concert. 


"Political Reform Act." The California Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code 
Sections 81000 et seq., as amended). 


2.44.030 - Campaign contribution limits. 


A.  No person shall make to a candidate for city elective office, or to a controlled 
committee of that candidate, a campaign contribution totaling more than twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000.00) per election. 


B.  No candidate for city elective office, nor a controlled committee of that candidate, 
shall accept from a person a campaign contribution totaling more than twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000.00) per election. 


C.  A candidate for city elective office may transfer campaign funds totaling no more 
than twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) per election from one controlled 
committee or campaign fund account to another controlled committee or campaign 
fund account for elective state, county or city office of the same candidate. 


D.  The limitations of this section do not apply to a candidate's contributions of the 
candidate's personal funds to the candidate's own campaign. 


E.  The limitations of this section do not apply to independent expenditures. 


F.  In the event that a candidate for city elective office contributes more than twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000.00) of the candidate's personal funds to the candidate's 
own campaign, is the beneficiary of an independent expenditure of more than 
twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00), or transfers campaign funds totaling more 
than twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) from one controlled committee or 
campaign fund account to another controlled committee or campaign fund account 
for city elective office, all other candidates running in the election for that same city 
elective office are exempted from the campaign contribution limits of this section 
2.44.030 for that election as well. 


G.  Beginning in January 2023, the campaign contribution limits in subsections A., B., 
C., and F. of this section shall be increased by three percent on January 1 of every 
odd-numbered year. The City Clerk shall maintain a record of any increased 
contribution limits pursuant to this subsection and shall make such record available 
to the public and all candidates for city elective office. 


  







  
  


2.44.040 - Contribution limits to other candidates. 


A candidate for city elective office or a controlled committee of that candidate 
shall not make a campaign contribution to any other candidate for city elective office in 
excess of the limits set forth in section 2.44.030 of this chapter. 


2.44.050 - Loans. 


A candidate for city elective office shall not personally loan to the candidate's 
campaign, including the proceeds of a loan obtained by the candidate from a 
commercial lending institution, an amount, the outstanding balance of which exceeds 
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00). A candidate for city elective office shall 
not charge interest on any loan the candidate made to the candidate's campaign. 


2.44.060 - Recall campaigns. 


An elected officer of a city elective office may establish a committee to oppose 
the qualification of a recall measure, and the recall election. This committee may be 
established when the elected officer receives a notice of intent to recall pursuant to 
Elections Code Section 11021. An elected officer of a city elective office may accept 
campaign contributions to oppose the qualification of a recall measure, and if 
qualification is successful, the recall election, without regard to the campaign 
contribution limits set forth in this chapter. After the failure of a recall petition or after 
the recall election, the committee formed by the elected officer of a city elective office 
shall wind down its activities and dissolve. Any remaining funds shall be treated as 
surplus funds and shall be expended within thirty (30) days after the failure of the 
recall petition or after the recall election for a purpose specified in Government Code 
Section 89519, Subdivision (b). 


2.44.070 - Contributions after election. 


A contribution for an election may be accepted by a candidate for city elective 
office after the date of the election only to the extent that the contribution does not 
exceed net debts outstanding from the election, and the contribution does not 
otherwise exceed the applicable contribution limits for that election as set forth 
in section 2.44.030 of this chapter. 


2.44.080 - Carry over contributions. 


Notwithstanding section 2.44.030, subsection C. of this chapter, a candidate for 
city elective office may carry over contributions raised in connection with one election 
for city elective office to pay campaign expenditures incurred in connection with a 
subsequent election for the same city elective office. 



https://library.municode.com/ca/riverside_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT2AD_CH2.128CACOLIELCOOF_2.128.040CACOLI

https://library.municode.com/ca/riverside_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT2AD_CH2.128CACOLIELCOOF_2.128.040CACOLI

https://library.municode.com/ca/riverside_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT2AD_CH2.128CACOLIELCOOF_2.128.040CACOLI





  
  


2.44.090 - Violations and penalties. 


Violations of this chapter are subject to administrative citations in accordance 
with Chapter 1.16 of this code. 


2.44.100 - Electronic campaign finance disclosure. 


Nothing in this chapter alters the requirements for electronic filing of campaign 
statements and the required online reporting of contributions and independent 
expenditures, which shall continue to be complied with by all candidates for city 
elective office. 


 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.7 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Minimum Hourly Wage Updates to the Position Classification, 


General Salary Schedules, and Senior Engineer FLSA Classification 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, 
UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE, THE GENERAL SALARY 
SCHEDULE RESULTING FROM THE INCREASE TO MINIMUM HOURLY WAGE 
RATE, AND REVISING THE FLSA CLASSIFICATION OF THE SENIOR ENGINEER 
POSITION FROM NON-EXEMPT TO EXEMPT 
 


 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
History 
 
At the November 14, 2012 City Council meeting the City adopted the initial Position 
Classification Schedule and General Salary Schedules based on the minimum hourly 
wage of $8.00 per hour.  Position pay grades were tiered off the $8.00 base rate at 
changes of 5% between each pay grade. 
 
SB3, which was signed by Governor Brown in 2016 and effective on January 1, 2017, 
increases the State’s minimum hourly rate each year until all minimum wage workers are 
at $15.00 per hour, which is scheduled to take place in 2023 (2022 for Employers with 26 
or more employees). Once the minimum wage is at $15.00 per hour for all workers, then 
the rate will be adjusted annually by the national consumer price index for urban wage 
earners and clerical workers (CPI-W).  
 
Pay Plan Adjustment for the 2022 Minimum Wage 
 
With the City’s approved budgeted staff of 37 positions and to be compliant with the State 
of California’s minimum hourly wage, staff is recommending that the City’s Position 
Classification Schedule and General Salary Schedules be adjusted as of January 1, 2022, 
to a beginning rate of $15.00 per hour (a 7.14% pay plan increase to the minimum wage 
for City employees).  
 







 


 
 


In previous years the City, per its Personnel Rules, has revised the current Position 
Classification Schedule and adjusted position pay grades by moving some positions down 
one (1) pay grade level (depending on the position) as compared to the current schedule. 
Staff members would then be realigned at or above their pay rate in the new position 
grade level to account for the change in grade. For CY 2022 this would result in an 
increase of approximately 2% in wages for staff. This increase would be approximately 
$24,600 in salary, Medicare, and CalPERS Retirement expenses, of which approximately 
$17,500 would be from the General Fund. These increases are already in the City’s 
budget for FY 2021-2022. 
 
Staff is recommending that we only adjust the pay rates for three positions, Intern I, 
Recreation Leader I, and Administrative Aide I, to $15 per hour as of January 1, 2022, 
with no other pay plan adjustments made until the City completes a Compensation and 
Classification Study. 
 
Staff Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the pay rates for the Intern I, Recreation Leader I, and 
Administrative Aide I positions be adjusted to $15 per hour as of January 1, 2022, and to 
make no other adjustments to the City’s Pay Plan until a Compensation and Classification 
Study is completed.  
 
Additionally, in reviewing the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) classification on the Senior 
Engineer position, it has been determined that the position should be considered exempt 
under the standards as it meets the necessary criteria for an exempt position. An exempt 
position does not receive overtime wages for additional hours worked. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The impact of the change to the three positions due to the change in the State’s minimum 
wage, including additional employer contributions to Social Security, Medicare and/or 
CalPERS, to the City’s budget for the remainder of FY 2021-22 is included in the adopted 
FY 2021-2022 budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Dan York 
Administrative Services Director              Assistant City Manager 
 


  







 


 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 – __ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE, THE 
GENERAL SALARY SCHEDULE RESULTING FROM THE INCREASE TO 
MIMIMUM HOURLY WAGE RATE, AND APPROVING THE CHANGE IN FLSA 
CLASSIFICATION ON THE SENIOR ENGINEER POSITION FROM NON-
EXEMPT TO EXEMPT 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar was incorporated July 1, 2008 and adopted 
Ordinance No. 08-14 establishing the Personnel Rules and at the City Council meeting 
of October 13, 2010, the Ordinance was repealed and replaced by Ordinance No. 53, 
adding Chapter 2.07 to the Wildomar Municipal Code establishing the City of Wildomar 
Personnel Rules and;  


 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 96 entitled 


“AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2.36 (PERSONNEL SYSTEM) OF THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE;”      
 


WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 96 amended Chapter 2.36 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code and the City’s Personnel Rules are to be adopted by resolution of the City Council; 
and 
 


WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 96 among other things, states that the City Council 
shall have the authority to adopt, amend or repeal the Personnel Rules and the Human 
Resources Officer shall have authority to prepare and recommend revisions to the 
Personnel Rules and; 


 
WHEREAS, the Human Resources Officer of the City of Wildomar recommends 


that the classification/compensation plan be updated to reflect recent changes in the 
minimum hourly wage rate and include the changes to position classification paygrades 
as impacted by this wage rate change and as required by City Municipal Code Ordinance 
Number 96, section 2.36.050; 


 
WHEREAS, to avoid non-compliance with the change in the State of California’s 


minimum wage, the positions of Intern I, Recreation Leader I, and Administrative Aide I 
will be increased to the CY 2022 minimum wage amount as of January 1, 2022. 


 
WHEREAS, the City will defer all other pay adjustments related to the minimum 


wage change until a Compensation and Classification Study is completed to determine 
the position classifications, pay grades, steps, and hourly rages of all other city staff 
positions. 


 
 WHEREAS, in continuing to work on the City’s organizational structure it would 
best be serviced by revising the Position Classification Description of the Senior Engineer 
to show its Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) status as Exempt. 







 


 
 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the salary pay grades, steps and hourly 
rates, position classifications for city employees in the City of Wildomar shall be set forth 
on the following schedules: 
 


Exhibit "A"  Position Classification Schedule  
Exhibit "B"  General Salary Schedule 
Exhibit “C”  Classification Description – Senior Engineer 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the salary ranges and steps contained in this 
resolution shall become effective on January 1, 2022, or on the date specified by the 
individual salary schedule review or contract, with the first payment of those minimum 
wage changes taking place on the pay period ending date that includes January 1, 2022. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 







General Code 4/14/2021


12 Code Enforcement Technician Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


Page 1 of 1


24 Senior Planner Non-Exempt General Planning 1/13/2021


6 Recreation Leader II Non-Exempt General Community Services 1/13/2021


Minimum Wage Recreation Leader I Non-Exempt General Community Services 1/1/2022


15 Purchasing & Contracts Coordinator Non-Exempt General Administration 6/30/2021


15 Plans Examiner Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


37 Planning Director Exempt Mgmt Planning 1/13/2021


22 Parks, Community Services, and Cemetery District Manager Exempt Mgmt Maintenance 1/13/2021


16 Manager of Operations and Maintenance Exempt Mgmt Maintenance 1/13/2021


6 Intern II (Graduate) Non-Exempt General varies 1/13/2021


Minimum Wage Intern I (Undergraduate) Non-Exempt General varies 1/1/2022


22 Human Resources Administrator Non-Exempt General Human Resources 1/13/2021


11 Groundsworker- Senior Non-Exempt General Maintenance 1/13/2021


9 Groundsworker II Non-Exempt General Maintenance 1/13/2021


7 Groundsworker I Non-Exempt General Maintenance 1/13/2021


37 Finance Director Exempt Mgmt Finance 1/13/2021


29 Finance Manager Exempt Mgmt Finance 1/13/2021


23 Economic Development Manager Exempt Mgmt Economic Development 1/13/2021


30 Economic Development Director Exempt Mgmt Economic Development 1/13/2021


12 Development Services Technician Non-Exempt General Building 6/9/2021


21 Community Services Manager Exempt Mgmt Community Services 1/13/2021


30 Community Services Director Exempt Mgmt Community Services 6/9/2021


16 Code Enforcement Officer II Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


18 Code Enforcement Officer, Senior Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


20 Code Enforcement Supervisor Non-Exempt


14 Code Enforcement Officer I Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


Contract City Manager Exempt Exec City Manager 1/13/2021


31 City Engineer Exempt Mgmt Engineering 1/13/2021


27 City Clerk Exempt Mgmt City Clerk 1/13/2021


29 Chief Building Official Exempt Mgmt Building 1/13/2021


17 Building Inspector II Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


15 Building Inspector I Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


22 Associate Planner Non-Exempt General Planning 1/13/2021


15 Building Inspection Supervisor Exempt General Building 6/30/2021


20 Associate  Engineer Non-Exempt General Engineering 1/13/2021


40 Assistant City Manager Exempt Exec Administration 1/13/2021


17 Assistant Planner Non-Exempt General Planning 1/13/2021


18 Assistant Engineer Non-Exempt General Engineering 1/13/2021


15 Assistant City Clerk Non-Exempt General City Clerk 1/13/2021


14 Animal Services Supervisor Non-Exempt General Animal Control 1/13/2021


7 Animal Services Officer Non-Exempt General Animal Control 1/13/2021


37 Administrative Services Director Exempt Mgmt Administration 1/13/2021


23 Administrative Analyst, Senior Non-Exempt General Varies 1/13/2021


11 Administrative Assistant II Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


7 Administrative Assistant I Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


Minimum Wage Administrative Aide I Non-Exempt General Administration 1/1/2022


17 Administrative Analyst II Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


13 Administrative Analyst Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


12 Accounting Specialist I Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


23 Accounting Manager Exempt Mgmt Accounting 1/13/2021


City of Wildomar


Position Classification Schedule - Revised Pay and FLSA Status - January 2022


Current Pay 


Grade
Classification


FLSA


Status
Group


Career


Family
Date


19 Accountant I Non-Exempt General Accounting 11/10/2021


17 Public Works Inspector II Non-Exempt General Public Works 6/30/2021


37 Public Works Director Exempt Mgmt Public Works 1/13/2021


14 Accounting Specialist II Non-Exempt General Administration 6/30/2021


26 Senior Engineer Exempt General Engineering 12/15/2021


19 Building Inspector III Non-Exempt General Building 6/30/2021


4 Administrative Aide II Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


23 Accountant III Non-Exempt General Accounting 11/10/2021


21 Accountant II Non-Exempt General Accounting 11/10/2021







City of Wildomar


Salary Ranges By Pay Grade and Step


Pay 


Grades


@ 5%  


changes
A B C D E F G H I J


1 29,120.00$    29,848.00$    30,594.20$    31,359.06$    32,143.03$    32,946.61$    33,770.27$    34,614.53$    35,479.89$    36,366.89$    


2 30,576.00      31,340.40      32,123.91      32,927.01      33,750.18      34,593.94      35,458.79      36,345.26      37,253.89      38,185.23      


3 32,104.80      32,907.42      33,730.11      34,573.36      35,437.69      36,323.63      37,231.73      38,162.52      39,116.58      40,094.50      


4 33,710.04      34,552.79      35,416.61      36,302.03      37,209.58      38,139.82      39,093.31      40,070.64      41,072.41      42,099.22      


5 35,395.54      36,280.43      37,187.44      38,117.13      39,070.06      40,046.81      41,047.98      42,074.18      43,126.03      44,204.18      


6 37,165.32      38,094.45      39,046.81      40,022.98      41,023.56      42,049.15      43,100.38      44,177.89      45,282.33      46,414.39      


7 39,023.59      39,999.17      40,999.15      42,024.13      43,074.74      44,151.60      45,255.39      46,386.78      47,546.45      48,735.11      


8 40,974.76      41,999.13      43,049.11      44,125.34      45,228.47      46,359.18      47,518.16      48,706.12      49,923.77      51,171.87      


9 43,023.50      44,099.09      45,201.57      46,331.61      47,489.90      48,677.14      49,894.07      51,141.42      52,419.96      53,730.46      


10 45,174.68      46,304.04      47,461.65      48,648.19      49,864.39      51,111.00      52,388.78      53,698.50      55,040.96      56,416.98      


11 47,433.41      48,619.25      49,834.73      51,080.60      52,357.61      53,666.55      55,008.22      56,383.42      57,793.01      59,237.83      


12 49,805.08      51,050.21      52,326.46      53,634.63      54,975.49      56,349.88      57,758.63      59,202.59      60,682.66      62,199.72      


13 52,295.34      53,602.72      54,942.79      56,316.36      57,724.27      59,167.37      60,646.56      62,162.72      63,716.79      65,309.71      


14 54,910.10      56,282.86      57,689.93      59,132.18      60,610.48      62,125.74      63,678.89      65,270.86      66,902.63      68,575.19      


15 57,655.61      59,097.00      60,574.42      62,088.78      63,641.00      65,232.03      66,862.83      68,534.40      70,247.76      72,003.95      


16 60,538.39      62,051.85      63,603.14      65,193.22      66,823.05      68,493.63      70,205.97      71,961.12      73,760.15      75,604.15      


17 63,565.31      65,154.44      66,783.30      68,452.88      70,164.21      71,918.31      73,716.27      75,559.18      77,448.16      79,384.36      


18 66,743.57      68,412.16      70,122.47      71,875.53      73,672.42      75,514.23      77,402.08      79,337.13      81,320.56      83,353.58      


19 70,080.75      71,832.77      73,628.59      75,469.30      77,356.04      79,289.94      81,272.19      83,303.99      85,386.59      87,521.26      


20 73,584.79      75,424.41      77,310.02      79,242.77      81,223.84      83,254.44      85,335.80      87,469.19      89,655.92      91,897.32      


21 77,264.03      79,195.63      81,175.52      83,204.91      85,285.03      87,417.16      89,602.59      91,842.65      94,138.72      96,492.18      


22 81,127.23      83,155.41      85,234.30      87,365.15      89,549.28      91,788.02      94,082.72      96,434.78      98,845.65      101,316.79    


23 85,183.59      87,313.18      89,496.01      91,733.41      94,026.75      96,377.42      98,786.85      101,256.52    103,787.94    106,382.63    


24 89,442.77      91,678.84      93,970.81      96,320.08      98,728.08      101,196.29    103,726.19    106,319.35    108,977.33    111,701.77    


25 93,914.91      96,262.78      98,669.35      101,136.09    103,664.49    106,256.10    108,912.50    111,635.32    114,426.20    117,286.85    


26 98,610.66      101,075.92    103,602.82    106,192.89    108,847.71    111,568.91    114,358.13    117,217.08    120,147.51    123,151.20    


27 103,541.19    106,129.72    108,782.96    111,502.54    114,290.10    117,147.35    120,076.04    123,077.94    126,154.88    129,308.76    


28 108,718.25    111,436.20    114,222.11    117,077.66    120,004.60    123,004.72    126,079.84    129,231.83    132,462.63    135,774.19    


29 114,154.16    117,008.01    119,933.21    122,931.55    126,004.83    129,154.95    132,383.83    135,693.42    139,085.76    142,562.90    


30 119,861.87    122,858.42    125,929.88    129,078.12    132,305.08    135,612.70    139,003.02    142,478.10    146,040.05    149,691.05    


31 125,854.96    129,001.34    132,226.37    135,532.03    138,920.33    142,393.34    145,953.17    149,602.00    153,342.05    157,175.60    


32 132,147.71    135,451.40    138,837.69    142,308.63    145,866.35    149,513.00    153,250.83    157,082.10    161,009.15    165,034.38    


33 138,755.10    142,223.97    145,779.57    149,424.06    153,159.66    156,988.65    160,913.37    164,936.21    169,059.61    173,286.10    


34 145,692.85    149,335.17    153,068.55    156,895.26    160,817.65    164,838.09    168,959.04    173,183.02    177,512.59    181,950.41    


35 152,977.49    156,801.93    160,721.98    164,740.03    168,858.53    173,079.99    177,406.99    181,842.17    186,388.22    191,047.93    


36 160,626.37    164,642.03    168,758.08    172,977.03    177,301.46    181,733.99    186,277.34    190,934.27    195,707.63    200,600.32    


37 168,657.69    172,874.13    177,195.98    181,625.88    186,166.53    190,820.69    195,591.21    200,480.99    205,493.01    210,630.34    


38 177,090.57    181,517.83    186,055.78    190,707.17    195,474.85    200,361.73    205,370.77    210,505.04    215,767.66    221,161.86    


39 185,945.10    190,593.73    195,358.57    200,242.53    205,248.60    210,379.81    215,639.31    221,030.29    226,556.05    232,219.95    


40 195,242.35    200,123.41    205,126.50    210,254.66    215,511.03    220,898.80    226,421.27    232,081.80    237,883.85    243,830.95    


41 205,004.47    210,129.58    215,382.82    220,767.39    226,286.58    231,943.74    237,742.34    243,685.89    249,778.04    256,022.49    


42 215,254.69    220,636.06    226,151.96    231,805.76    237,600.91    243,540.93    249,629.45    255,870.19    262,266.94    268,823.62    


43 226,017.43    231,667.87    237,459.56    243,396.05    249,480.95    255,717.98    262,110.93    268,663.70    275,380.29    282,264.80    


44 237,318.30    243,251.26    249,332.54    255,565.85    261,955.00    268,503.87    275,216.47    282,096.88    289,149.31    296,378.04    


45 249,184.22    255,413.82    261,799.17    268,344.15    275,052.75    281,929.07    288,977.30    296,201.73    303,606.77    311,196.94    


46 261,643.43    268,184.51    274,889.13    281,761.35    288,805.39    296,025.52    303,426.16    311,011.81    318,787.11    326,756.79    


47 274,725.60    281,593.74    288,633.58    295,849.42    303,245.66    310,826.80    318,597.47    326,562.40    334,726.46    343,094.63    


48 288,461.88    295,673.43    303,065.26    310,641.89    318,407.94    326,368.14    334,527.34    342,890.53    351,462.79    360,249.36    


Salary Steps @ 2.5%  


EXHIBIT B


Annual Salary by Pay Grade and Step


Page 1 of 4







City of Wildomar


Salary Ranges By Pay Grade and Step


Pay 


Grades


@ 5%  


changes
A B C D E F G H I J


1 2,426.67$      2,487.33$      2,549.52$      2,613.25$      2,678.59$      2,745.55$      2,814.19$      2,884.54$      2,956.66$      3,030.57$      


2 2,548.00        2,611.70        2,676.99        2,743.92        2,812.52        2,882.83        2,954.90        3,028.77        3,104.49        3,182.10        


3 2,675.40        2,742.29        2,810.84        2,881.11        2,953.14        3,026.97        3,102.64        3,180.21        3,259.72        3,341.21        


4 2,809.17        2,879.40        2,951.38        3,025.17        3,100.80        3,178.32        3,257.78        3,339.22        3,422.70        3,508.27        


5 2,949.63        3,023.37        3,098.95        3,176.43        3,255.84        3,337.23        3,420.66        3,506.18        3,593.84        3,683.68        


6 3,097.11        3,174.54        3,253.90        3,335.25        3,418.63        3,504.10        3,591.70        3,681.49        3,773.53        3,867.87        


7 3,251.97        3,333.26        3,416.60        3,502.01        3,589.56        3,679.30        3,771.28        3,865.56        3,962.20        4,061.26        


8 3,414.56        3,499.93        3,587.43        3,677.11        3,769.04        3,863.27        3,959.85        4,058.84        4,160.31        4,264.32        


9 3,585.29        3,674.92        3,766.80        3,860.97        3,957.49        4,056.43        4,157.84        4,261.79        4,368.33        4,477.54        


10 3,764.56        3,858.67        3,955.14        4,054.02        4,155.37        4,259.25        4,365.73        4,474.87        4,586.75        4,701.42        


11 3,952.78        4,051.60        4,152.89        4,256.72        4,363.13        4,472.21        4,584.02        4,698.62        4,816.08        4,936.49        


12 4,150.42        4,254.18        4,360.54        4,469.55        4,581.29        4,695.82        4,813.22        4,933.55        5,056.89        5,183.31        


13 4,357.94        4,466.89        4,578.57        4,693.03        4,810.36        4,930.61        5,053.88        5,180.23        5,309.73        5,442.48        


14 4,575.84        4,690.24        4,807.49        4,927.68        5,050.87        5,177.15        5,306.57        5,439.24        5,575.22        5,714.60        


15 4,804.63        4,924.75        5,047.87        5,174.07        5,303.42        5,436.00        5,571.90        5,711.20        5,853.98        6,000.33        


16 5,044.87        5,170.99        5,300.26        5,432.77        5,568.59        5,707.80        5,850.50        5,996.76        6,146.68        6,300.35        


17 5,297.11        5,429.54        5,565.28        5,704.41        5,847.02        5,993.19        6,143.02        6,296.60        6,454.01        6,615.36        


18 5,561.96        5,701.01        5,843.54        5,989.63        6,139.37        6,292.85        6,450.17        6,611.43        6,776.71        6,946.13        


19 5,840.06        5,986.06        6,135.72        6,289.11        6,446.34        6,607.49        6,772.68        6,942.00        7,115.55        7,293.44        


20 6,132.07        6,285.37        6,442.50        6,603.56        6,768.65        6,937.87        7,111.32        7,289.10        7,471.33        7,658.11        


21 6,438.67        6,599.64        6,764.63        6,933.74        7,107.09        7,284.76        7,466.88        7,653.55        7,844.89        8,041.02        


22 6,760.60        6,929.62        7,102.86        7,280.43        7,462.44        7,649.00        7,840.23        8,036.23        8,237.14        8,443.07        


23 7,098.63        7,276.10        7,458.00        7,644.45        7,835.56        8,031.45        8,232.24        8,438.04        8,648.99        8,865.22        


24 7,453.56        7,639.90        7,830.90        8,026.67        8,227.34        8,433.02        8,643.85        8,859.95        9,081.44        9,308.48        


25 7,826.24        8,021.90        8,222.45        8,428.01        8,638.71        8,854.68        9,076.04        9,302.94        9,535.52        9,773.90        


26 8,217.55        8,422.99        8,633.57        8,849.41        9,070.64        9,297.41        9,529.84        9,768.09        10,012.29      10,262.60      


27 8,628.43        8,844.14        9,065.25        9,291.88        9,524.17        9,762.28        10,006.34      10,256.49      10,512.91      10,775.73      


28 9,059.85        9,286.35        9,518.51        9,756.47        10,000.38      10,250.39      10,506.65      10,769.32      11,038.55      11,314.52      


29 9,512.85        9,750.67        9,994.43        10,244.30      10,500.40      10,762.91      11,031.99      11,307.79      11,590.48      11,880.24      


30 9,988.49        10,238.20      10,494.16      10,756.51      11,025.42      11,301.06      11,583.59      11,873.17      12,170.00      12,474.25      


31 10,487.91      10,750.11      11,018.86      11,294.34      11,576.69      11,866.11      12,162.76      12,466.83      12,778.50      13,097.97      


32 11,012.31      11,287.62      11,569.81      11,859.05      12,155.53      12,459.42      12,770.90      13,090.18      13,417.43      13,752.87      


33 11,562.92      11,852.00      12,148.30      12,452.01      12,763.31      13,082.39      13,409.45      13,744.68      14,088.30      14,440.51      


34 12,141.07      12,444.60      12,755.71      13,074.61      13,401.47      13,736.51      14,079.92      14,431.92      14,792.72      15,162.53      


35 12,748.12      13,066.83      13,393.50      13,728.34      14,071.54      14,423.33      14,783.92      15,153.51      15,532.35      15,920.66      


36 13,385.53      13,720.17      14,063.17      14,414.75      14,775.12      15,144.50      15,523.11      15,911.19      16,308.97      16,716.69      


37 14,054.81      14,406.18      14,766.33      15,135.49      15,513.88      15,901.72      16,299.27      16,706.75      17,124.42      17,552.53      


38 14,757.55      15,126.49      15,504.65      15,892.26      16,289.57      16,696.81      17,114.23      17,542.09      17,980.64      18,430.15      


39 15,495.42      15,882.81      16,279.88      16,686.88      17,104.05      17,531.65      17,969.94      18,419.19      18,879.67      19,351.66      


40 16,270.20      16,676.95      17,093.87      17,521.22      17,959.25      18,408.23      18,868.44      19,340.15      19,823.65      20,319.25      


41 17,083.71      17,510.80      17,948.57      18,397.28      18,857.21      19,328.65      19,811.86      20,307.16      20,814.84      21,335.21      


42 17,937.89      18,386.34      18,846.00      19,317.15      19,800.08      20,295.08      20,802.45      21,322.52      21,855.58      22,401.97      


43 18,834.79      19,305.66      19,788.30      20,283.00      20,790.08      21,309.83      21,842.58      22,388.64      22,948.36      23,522.07      


44 19,776.53      20,270.94      20,777.71      21,297.15      21,829.58      22,375.32      22,934.71      23,508.07      24,095.78      24,698.17      


45 20,765.35      21,284.49      21,816.60      22,362.01      22,921.06      23,494.09      24,081.44      24,683.48      25,300.56      25,933.08      


46 21,803.62      22,348.71      22,907.43      23,480.11      24,067.12      24,668.79      25,285.51      25,917.65      26,565.59      27,229.73      


47 22,893.80      23,466.14      24,052.80      24,654.12      25,270.47      25,902.23      26,549.79      27,213.53      27,893.87      28,591.22      


48 24,038.49      24,639.45      25,255.44      25,886.82      26,533.99      27,197.34      27,877.28      28,574.21      29,288.57      30,020.78      


Salary Steps at 2.5% 


EXHIBIT B


Monthly Salary by Paygrade and Steps


Page 2 of 4







City of Wildomar


Salary Ranges By Pay Grade and Step


Pay 


Grades


@ 5%  


changes
A B C D E F G H I J


1 1,120.00$   1,148.00$   1,176.70$    1,206.12$  1,236.27$    1,267.18$    1,298.86$    1,331.33$     1,364.61$      1,398.73$    


2 1,176.00     1,205.40     1,235.54      1,266.42    1,298.08      1,330.54      1,363.80      1,397.89       1,432.84        1,468.66      


3 1,234.80     1,265.67     1,297.31      1,329.74    1,362.99      1,397.06      1,431.99      1,467.79       1,504.48        1,542.10      


4 1,296.54     1,328.95     1,362.18      1,396.23    1,431.14      1,466.92      1,503.59      1,541.18       1,579.71        1,619.20      


5 1,361.37     1,395.40     1,430.29      1,466.04    1,502.69      1,540.26      1,578.77      1,618.24       1,658.69        1,700.16      


6 1,429.44     1,465.17     1,501.80      1,539.35    1,577.83      1,617.27      1,657.71      1,699.15       1,741.63        1,785.17      


7 1,500.91     1,538.43     1,576.89      1,616.31    1,656.72      1,698.14      1,740.59      1,784.11       1,828.71        1,874.43      


8 1,575.95     1,615.35     1,655.74      1,697.13    1,739.56      1,783.05      1,827.62      1,873.31       1,920.15        1,968.15      


9 1,654.75     1,696.12     1,738.52      1,781.98    1,826.53      1,872.20      1,919.00      1,966.98       2,016.15        2,066.56      


10 1,737.49     1,780.92     1,825.45      1,871.08    1,917.86      1,965.81      2,014.95      2,065.33       2,116.96        2,169.88      


11 1,824.36     1,869.97     1,916.72      1,964.64    2,013.75      2,064.10      2,115.70      2,168.59       2,222.81        2,278.38      


12 1,915.58     1,963.47     2,012.56      2,062.87    2,114.44      2,167.30      2,221.49      2,277.02       2,333.95        2,392.30      


13 2,011.36     2,061.64     2,113.18      2,166.01    2,220.16      2,275.67      2,332.56      2,390.87       2,450.65        2,511.91      


14 2,111.93     2,164.73     2,218.84      2,274.31    2,331.17      2,389.45      2,449.19      2,510.42       2,573.18        2,637.51      


15 2,217.52     2,272.96     2,329.79      2,388.03    2,447.73      2,508.92      2,571.65      2,635.94       2,701.84        2,769.38      


16 2,328.40     2,386.61     2,446.27      2,507.43    2,570.12      2,634.37      2,700.23      2,767.74       2,836.93        2,907.85      


17 2,444.82     2,505.94     2,568.59      2,632.80    2,698.62      2,766.09      2,835.24      2,906.12       2,978.78        3,053.24      


18 2,567.06     2,631.24     2,697.02      2,764.44    2,833.55      2,904.39      2,977.00      3,051.43       3,127.71        3,205.91      


19 2,695.41     2,762.80     2,831.87      2,902.67    2,975.23      3,049.61      3,125.85      3,204.00       3,284.10        3,366.20      


20 2,830.18     2,900.94     2,973.46      3,047.80    3,123.99      3,202.09      3,282.15      3,364.20       3,448.30        3,534.51      


21 2,971.69     3,045.99     3,122.14      3,200.19    3,280.19      3,362.20      3,446.25      3,532.41       3,620.72        3,711.24      


22 3,120.28     3,198.29     3,278.24      3,360.20    3,444.20      3,530.31      3,618.57      3,709.03       3,801.76        3,896.80      


23 3,276.29     3,358.20     3,442.15      3,528.21    3,616.41      3,706.82      3,799.49      3,894.48       3,991.84        4,091.64      


24 3,440.11     3,526.11     3,614.26      3,704.62    3,797.23      3,892.16      3,989.47      4,089.21       4,191.44        4,296.22      


25 3,612.11     3,702.41     3,794.98      3,889.85    3,987.10      4,086.77      4,188.94      4,293.67       4,401.01        4,511.03      


26 3,792.72     3,887.54     3,984.72      4,084.34    4,186.45      4,291.11      4,398.39      4,508.35       4,621.06        4,736.58      


27 3,982.35     4,081.91     4,183.96      4,288.56    4,395.77      4,505.67      4,618.31      4,733.77       4,852.11        4,973.41      


28 4,181.47     4,286.01     4,393.16      4,502.99    4,615.56      4,730.95      4,849.22      4,970.46       5,094.72        5,222.08      


29 4,390.54     4,500.31     4,612.82      4,728.14    4,846.34      4,967.50      5,091.69      5,218.98       5,349.45        5,483.19      


30 4,610.07     4,725.32     4,843.46      4,964.54    5,088.66      5,215.87      5,346.27      5,479.93       5,616.92        5,757.35      


31 4,840.58     4,961.59     5,085.63      5,212.77    5,343.09      5,476.67      5,613.58      5,753.92       5,897.77        6,045.22      


32 5,082.60     5,209.67     5,339.91      5,473.41    5,610.24      5,750.50      5,894.26      6,041.62       6,192.66        6,347.48      


33 5,336.73     5,470.15     5,606.91      5,747.08    5,890.76      6,038.03      6,188.98      6,343.70       6,502.29        6,664.85      


34 5,603.57     5,743.66     5,887.25      6,034.43    6,185.29      6,339.93      6,498.42      6,660.89       6,827.41        6,998.09      


35 5,883.75     6,030.84     6,181.61      6,336.15    6,494.56      6,656.92      6,823.35      6,993.93       7,168.78        7,348.00      


36 6,177.94     6,332.39     6,490.70      6,652.96    6,819.29      6,989.77      7,164.51      7,343.63       7,527.22        7,715.40      


37 6,486.83     6,649.00     6,815.23      6,985.61    7,160.25      7,339.26      7,522.74      7,710.81       7,903.58        8,101.17      


38 6,811.18     6,981.46     7,155.99      7,334.89    7,518.26      7,706.22      7,898.88      8,096.35       8,298.76        8,506.23      


39 7,151.73     7,330.53     7,513.79      7,701.64    7,894.18      8,091.53      8,293.82      8,501.16       8,713.69        8,931.54      


40 7,509.32     7,697.05     7,889.48      8,086.72    8,288.89      8,496.11      8,708.51      8,926.22       9,149.38        9,378.11      


41 7,884.79     8,081.91     8,283.95      8,491.05    8,703.33      8,920.91      9,143.94      9,372.53       9,606.85        9,847.02      


42 8,279.03     8,486.00     8,698.15      8,915.61    9,138.50      9,366.96      9,601.13      9,841.16       10,087.19      10,339.37    


43 8,692.98     8,910.30     9,133.06      9,361.39    9,595.42      9,835.31      10,081.19    10,333.22     10,591.55      10,856.34    


44 9,127.63     9,355.82     9,589.71      9,829.46    10,075.19    10,327.07    10,585.25    10,849.88     11,121.13      11,399.16    


45 9,584.01     9,823.61     10,069.20    10,320.93  10,578.95    10,843.43    11,114.51    11,392.37     11,677.18      11,969.11    


46 10,063.21   10,314.79   10,572.66    10,836.98  11,107.90    11,385.60    11,670.24    11,961.99     12,261.04      12,567.57    


47 10,566.37   10,830.53   11,101.29    11,378.82  11,663.29    11,954.88    12,253.75    12,560.09     12,874.09      13,195.95    


48 11,094.69   11,372.05   11,656.36    11,947.77  12,246.46    12,552.62    12,866.44    13,188.10     13,517.80      13,855.74    


Salary Steps @ 2.5%


EXHIBIT B


Salary Per Pay Period - Bi Weekly 


Page 3 of 4







City of Wildomar


Salary Ranges By Pay Grade and Step


Pay 


Grades


@ 5%  


changes
A B C D E F G H I J


1 14.00$      14.35$      14.71$    15.08$    15.45$      15.84$      16.24$      16.64$      17.06$      17.48$      


2 14.70        15.07        15.44      15.83      16.23        16.63        17.05        17.47        17.91        18.36        


3 15.44        15.82        16.22      16.62      17.04        17.46        17.90        18.35        18.81        19.28        


4 16.21        16.61        17.03      17.45      17.89        18.34        18.79        19.26        19.75        20.24        


5 17.02        17.44        17.88      18.33      18.78        19.25        19.73        20.23        20.73        21.25        


6 17.87        18.31        18.77      19.24      19.72        20.22        20.72        21.24        21.77        22.31        


7 18.76        19.23        19.71      20.20      20.71        21.23        21.76        22.30        22.86        23.43        


8 19.70        20.19        20.70      21.21      21.74        22.29        22.85        23.42        24.00        24.60        


9 20.68        21.20        21.73      22.27      22.83        23.40        23.99        24.59        25.20        25.83        


10 21.72        22.26        22.82      23.39      23.97        24.57        25.19        25.82        26.46        27.12        


11 22.80        23.37        23.96      24.56      25.17        25.80        26.45        27.11        27.79        28.48        


12 23.94        24.54        25.16      25.79      26.43        27.09        27.77        28.46        29.17        29.90        


13 25.14        25.77        26.41      27.08      27.75        28.45        29.16        29.89        30.63        31.40        


14 26.40        27.06        27.74      28.43      29.14        29.87        30.61        31.38        32.16        32.97        


15 27.72        28.41        29.12      29.85      30.60        31.36        32.15        32.95        33.77        34.62        


16 29.10        29.83        30.58      31.34      32.13        32.93        33.75        34.60        35.46        36.35        


17 30.56        31.32        32.11      32.91      33.73        34.58        35.44        36.33        37.23        38.17        


18 32.09        32.89        33.71      34.56      35.42        36.30        37.21        38.14        39.10        40.07        


19 33.69        34.53        35.40      36.28      37.19        38.12        39.07        40.05        41.05        42.08        


20 35.38        36.26        37.17      38.10      39.05        40.03        41.03        42.05        43.10        44.18        


21 37.15        38.07        39.03      40.00      41.00        42.03        43.08        44.16        45.26        46.39        


22 39.00        39.98        40.98      42.00      43.05        44.13        45.23        46.36        47.52        48.71        


23 40.95        41.98        43.03      44.10      45.21        46.34        47.49        48.68        49.90        51.15        


24 43.00        44.08        45.18      46.31      47.47        48.65        49.87        51.12        52.39        53.70        


25 45.15        46.28        47.44      48.62      49.84        51.08        52.36        53.67        55.01        56.39        


26 47.41        48.59        49.81      51.05      52.33        53.64        54.98        56.35        57.76        59.21        


27 49.78        51.02        52.30      53.61      54.95        56.32        57.73        59.17        60.65        62.17        


28 52.27        53.58        54.91      56.29      57.69        59.14        60.62        62.13        63.68        65.28        


29 54.88        56.25        57.66      59.10      60.58        62.09        63.65        65.24        66.87        68.54        


30 57.63        59.07        60.54      62.06      63.61        65.20        66.83        68.50        70.21        71.97        


31 60.51        62.02        63.57      65.16      66.79        68.46        70.17        71.92        73.72        75.57        


32 63.53        65.12        66.75      68.42      70.13        71.88        73.68        75.52        77.41        79.34        


33 66.71        68.38        70.09      71.84      73.63        75.48        77.36        79.30        81.28        83.31        


34 70.04        71.80        73.59      75.43      77.32        79.25        81.23        83.26        85.34        87.48        


35 73.55        75.39        77.27      79.20      81.18        83.21        85.29        87.42        89.61        91.85        


36 77.22        79.15        81.13      83.16      85.24        87.37        89.56        91.80        94.09        96.44        


37 81.09        83.11        85.19      87.32      89.50        91.74        94.03        96.39        98.79        101.26      


38 85.14        87.27        89.45      91.69      93.98        96.33        98.74        101.20      103.73      106.33      


39 89.40        91.63        93.92      96.27      98.68        101.14      103.67      106.26      108.92      111.64      


40 93.87        96.21        98.62      101.08    103.61      106.20      108.86      111.58      114.37      117.23      


41 98.56        101.02      103.55    106.14    108.79      111.51      114.30      117.16      120.09      123.09      


42 103.49      106.08      108.73    111.45    114.23      117.09      120.01      123.01      126.09      129.24      


43 108.66      111.38      114.16    117.02    119.94      122.94      126.01      129.17      132.39      135.70      


44 114.10      116.95      119.87    122.87    125.94      129.09      132.32      135.62      139.01      142.49      


45 119.80      122.80      125.86    129.01    132.24      135.54      138.93      142.40      145.96      149.61      


46 125.79      128.93      132.16    135.46    138.85      142.32      145.88      149.52      153.26      157.09      


47 132.08      135.38      138.77    142.24    145.79      149.44      153.17      157.00      160.93      164.95      


48 138.68      142.15      145.70    149.35    153.08      156.91      160.83      164.85      168.97      173.20      


Salary Steps @ 2.5%


Hourly Rates


EXHIBIT B


Page 4 of 4







Senior Engineer – Capital Improvement Projects 
Page 1 of 5 


The City of Wildomar 


CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 


Class Title: Senior Engineer 


Pay Grade: 26 


Effective:  June 30, 2021 


  Department: Engineering   


Class: General, Exempt 


  Revised: December 15, 2021


GENERAL PURPOSE 


Under general direction, plans, schedules, assigns, and reviews and supervises the work 
of engineering staff in one or more functional areas within the Engineering Department; 
supervises, plans, and coordinates highly complex professional engineering activities 
including environmental program/planning and compliance, design, construction, land 
development engineering, and other programs; ensures that functions meet all applicable 
laws, regulations, and City policies related to the City's Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP), traffic engineering, and land development; coordinates divisional activities with 
other City departments and outside agencies; provides highly responsible and complex 
administrative support to the Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director and others; 
receives general direction from assigned management staff and supervises assigned 
staff. 


DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 


This is the supervisory classification in the professional engineering series. The 
incumbent organizes and manages day-to-day engineering activities and is 
responsible for providing professional-level support to the Assistant City 
Manager/Public Works Director and other staff in a variety of areas. Successful 
performance of the work requires an extensive professional background as well as 
skill in coordinating divisional work with that of other City departments and public 
agencies. Responsibilities include performing many of the Department's day-to-day 
administrative functions. This class is distinguished from the Assistant City 
Manager/Public Works Director in that the latter has management responsibility for 
all engineering, capital improvement, land development functions, direct supervision 
and oversight of the assigned engineering function such as traffic, CIP, or land 
development. 


SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 


Receives general supervision from the Assistant City Manager/Public Works 
Director or his/her designee. May provide lead supervision to assigned staff. 







Senior Engineer – Capital Improvement Projects 


 


Page 2 of 5 


 
 


 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
(The following is used as a partial description and does not restrict the duties required.) 


 


Plans, organizes, and oversees, and administers all services and activities of the   
assigned areas of engineering functions, including but not limited to public and 
private land development projects, capital improvement projects, traffic engineering, 
flood control, and/or stormwater management; participates in the development and 
implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for assigned programs; 
recommends, within departmental policy, appropriate service and staffing levels; 
recommends and administers policies and procedures; trains staff in engineering 
activities, work and safety procedures, and in the operation and use of equipment 
and supplies; implements procedures and standards; monitors operations and 
activities of an engineering work unit; recommends improvements, modifications and 
prepares various reports on operations and activities; participates in the selection of, 
trains, motivates, and evaluates assigned personnel; responds to staff questions and 
concerns; plans, directs, coordinates, reviews and supervises the work plan for the 
assigned area; meets with staff to identify and resolve problems, assigns work 
activities, projects, and programs; monitors workflow; reviews and evaluates work 
products, methods, and procedures; provides input in the development and 
administration of the assigned division's annual budget and the capital improvements 
budget. 


  
Identifies opportunities for improving service delivery methods and procedures; 
provides recommendations concerning process changes; establishes and maintain 
safety programs for assigned staff; implements related action plans; responds to 
work related injury  and/or illness; reviews with appropriate management staff; 
implements improvements; inspects and verifies work in progress and completed 
work of assigned junior employees and contractors for accuracy, proper work 
methods, techniques, and compliance with applicable standards and specifications; 
develops consultant requests for proposal for professional and/or construction 
services and the advertising and bid processes; evaluates proposals and 
recommends project award; administers contracts after award, negotiates and 
administers contracts for construction projects; ensures contractor compliance with 
City standards and specifications, time, and estimates; analyzes and resolves 
complex problems that may arise; recommends and approves field changes as 
required. 


  
Conducts Capital Improvement Project planning activities; provides oversight and 
input into the conceptual design of engineering projects; investigates and resolves 
problems with scope of work or cost issues of major facility upgrade and replacement 
projects; participates in construction management activities as required, ensures that 
projects are completed on time and within budget; analyzes civil engineering plan 
design, specifications, consultant and staff comments in accordance with design 
requirements and municipal and intergovernmental standards and regulations; 
recommends approval or additional engineering conditions and changes;  meets and 
confers with contractors, engineers, developers, architects, a variety of outside 
agencies, and the general public in acquiring information and coordinating 







Senior Engineer – Capital Improvement Projects 


 


Page 3 of 5 


 
 


engineering matters; provides information regarding City development requirements. 
  
Provides technical information and instruction regarding applicable procedures and 
methods; interprets and explains plans, specifications, rules, regulations, and 
procedures; answers questions and resolves concerns; performs the most complex 
engineering duties and provides technical assistance to field crews and inspectors;  
troubleshoots complex operational and maintenance problems; corrects or directs 
the correction of operational and/or procedural problems; coordinates assigned 
services and activities with those of other divisions and outside agencies and 
organizations to ensure City standards are being met; provides staff assistance to 
the Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director as assigned; prepares or oversees 
the preparation and presentation of reports and correspondence; prepares or 
oversees the preparation and maintenance of related reports, records, and files; 
ensures the proper documentation of activities; stays current on the status of new 
and pending regulatory legislation; recommends changes to current policies and 
procedures in order to comply with changes in legislation. 


  
Develops or oversees the preparation and presentation of staff reports related to 
complex engineering activities and services; may present information to City Council, 
various commissions, committees, and community groups; performs a variety of 
public relations and outreach work related to assigned activities; performs or 
oversees CIP project planning and development; manages CIP projects from 
concept to construction; prepares federal, state, and local grant applications for 
various City projects; administers the grant-funded projects and satisfies the grant 
requirements for capital improvement and various other projects and studies; 
prepares various authorization requests for the funding source agencies. 


  
Manages City review and response to private development projects through the 
entitlement and construction drawing preparation and permitting stages; reviews 
engineering plans and technical studies for conformance with applicable laws, City 
regulations, and professional standards of practice; reviews and analyzes 
subdivision and parcel maps, records of survey, traverse calculations, legal 
descriptions, plats, and similar documents for conformance with applicable laws, City 
regulations, and professional standards of practice; may participate on a variety of 
boards, commissions, committees, and task forces; attends workshops and 
participates in professional groups and committees; stays abreast of new trends and 
innovations; answers questions and provides information to the public; investigates 
inquiries; recommends corrective actions to resolve issues. 


  
Performs other related duties as required. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 







Senior Engineer – Capital Improvement Projects 


 


Page 4 of 5 


 
 


DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education and Experience 
 
A Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university with major course work 
in civil engineering or an engineering-related field. 
 
                                                   AND 
 
Five (5) years of responsible experience in civil engineering, with two years of 
experience leading staff and/or supervising projects.  Municipal or public agency 
experience preferred. 
 
 


LICENSES AND/OR CERTIFICATES 
 
Possession of a valid California Class C Driver’s License and  an acceptable driving 
record. 
 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Division and Land Development Division 


 
Certificate of Registration as a Professional Civil Engineer issued by the California 
State Board of Registration for Professional                           Engineers is desirable. 


 
Land Development Division 


 
Certificate of Registration as a Professional Civil Engineer and/or  Land Surveyor 
issued by the California State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers is 
desirable. 


 
Environmental/Water Quality 


 
Certificate of Registration as a Professional Civil Engineer issued by the California 
State Board of Registration for  Professional Engineers is desirable. 


 
Certified as a Qualified Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) 
Practitioner and Developer (QSP/QSD) and/or Certified Professional in Storm Water 
Quality (CPSWQ) is desirable. 


 
Traffic Engineering Division 


 
Certificate of Registration as a Professional Civil Engineer or Traffic Engineer in the 
State of California is desirable. Certified to operate a Radar Unit is desirable. 


 
 
 
 
 







Senior Engineer – Capital Improvement Projects 


 


Page 5 of 5 


 
 


SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Satisfactory results from Live Scan, physical examination and administrative 
screening. May be required to occasionally work outside of regular work hours (e.g. 
evenings, holidays and weekends). 
 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS & PHYSICAL DEMANDS 


  
The physical and mental demands described here are representative of those that must  
be met by employees to successfully perform the essential functions of this class. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to 
perform the essential functions. 


 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand and 
sit; talk or hear both in person and by telephone; use hands to finger, handle, feel or 
operate equipment needed to carry out  duties of the position; and reach with hands and 
arms. The employee frequently stands or walks, and lifts and moves records and 
documents or objects weighing up to 50 pounds alone, and up to 100 pounds with 
assistance. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, color vision, 
and the ability to adjust focus. 


 
The employee is regularly required to use written and oral communication skills; read and 
interpret data, information and documents; analyze and solve complex problems; use 
mathematical skills; perform highly detailed work under changing, intensive deadlines, on 
multiple concurrent tasks; work with constant interruptions; and interact with staff, 
management, developers, contractors, officials and the general public. 


 
The employee typically works in both office and field settings. In the office, the noise level 
is frequently quiet or moderately quiet, at or below 50 decibels. This position is also 
expected to perform inspections  of work in the field that may require walking on uneven 
ground, working around machinery, fumes, dirt  and gas, and in varying temperatures. 
When conducting site inspections, the employee works outdoors where construction and 
traffic noise can occasionally be above 70 decibels. In the field work may require weekend 
and/or night work hours. Travel requirement 10-15%. 


 
 
 
 


 
Approval:  _  _______________________________ 


Human Resources Administrator 
 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.8 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2021 


 
 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Daniel A. York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Tract Map No. 32035 - McVicar Residential Project Final Map Approval, 


Subdivision Improvement Agreement, and Lien Agreement 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 


 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 32035 
MCVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 


EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND LIEN 
AGREEMENT 


 
2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Final Map and Subdivision Improvement 


Agreement with David P. Wolske and Leslie S. Lanes, Louis E. Polakoff and Elaine 
Polakoff, Harry L. Keays, Ronald Auerbacher, Joan Maresca, Pensco Trust 
Company, Myra J. Ekrem, and Omni Financial, LLC, and Orbis Financial, LLC 
(Developers) for the Tract No. 32035 – McVicar Residential Project. 


 
3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Lien Agreement with Omni Financial, 


LLC, and Orbis Financial, LLC (Developers) for the Tract No. 32035 – McVicar 
Residential Project. 
 


4. Authorize the City Engineer to accept the dedications related to Tract Map No. 
32035 and direct the City Clerk to transmit to the County Recorder of the County. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
On January 11, 2017 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2017-06 approving 
Tentative Tract Map No. 32035 to subdivide the approximate 19.2 acres site into 48 lots 







for future single family residential development.  The project is located on the north side 
of McVicar Street approximately 600 feet west of Palomar Street.  Attachment A shows 
an aerial image of the location of the project site and the surrounding area. 
 
Tract Map No. 32035 has been annexed to CFD No. 2013-1 for maintenance of public 
improvements and to provide for financing of certain public services such as police and fire 
protection.  On September 8, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-49, 
declaring its intention to annex territory to Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Services) 
(the “CFD No. 2013-1”) and commence the annexation proceedings for the territory to be 
annexed, also known as Annexation No. 21. As required by the Resolution of Intention, an 
annexation map was recorded on September 15, 2021.  On October 13, 2021, a public 
hearing was held to conduct an election for the landowners and a resolution to declare the 
results of that election was adopted. 
 
The Developers are currently processing grading and improvement plans with the City 
for review and approval.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement 
The developer has submitted a Final Map for Tract No. 32035 (Attachment B). The Final 
Map submitted for approval has been examined and checked for compliance with the 
Wildomar Municipal Code and the California Subdivision Map Act. The City Engineer 
has determined that the location and configuration of the lots created by this Final Map 
substantially comply with the Tentative Map as filed and approved. 
 
In order to secure the incomplete public improvements that are required of the project 
prior to map recordation, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been prepared. 
The Subdivision Improvement Agreement identifies the Developers’ obligations to 
complete the project’s improvements and sets forth policies and procedures for the 
Developers and the City to ensure that the improvements are completed.  Appropriate 
Security is required to be submitted to the City for performance, labor and materials, 
warranty, and monumentation to complete the Subdivision Improvements. Section 
16.56.030 (Lien Agreement as Security) of the Wildomar Municipal Code (WMC) allows 
a Schedule “A” Subdivision Map to execute a Lien Agreement as a form of security for a 
map. The Developers have requested to execute a Lien Agreement as the form of 
security to secure the improvements in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement.  As a 
result, staff has prepared a Lien Agreement.  Under the Lien Agreement, the 
Developers cannot proceed with development (construction) of the property until bonds 
(or another acceptable form of security) are submitted to the City. Copies of the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Lien Agreement are included in Attachment 
C.  Conditions of approval related to Final Map recordation not yet satisfied have been 
identified in Exhibit D of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 
 
Tract Map No. 37491 is dedicating Lots “A” through “G” for street and public utility 
purposes, a 20’ drainage easement within Lot “I” for construction and maintenance of 
drainage facilities and a 10’ trail easement for public purposes. Staff requests that the 







City Council authorize the City Engineer to accept the dedications and direct the City 
Clerk to transmit Tract Map and dedications to the County Recorder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this project are 
currently covered by Developer deposits. When the project is constructed, the City will 
be responsible for the maintenance of the public improvements after acceptance by the 
City Council. The project has been annexed into the Community Facilities District (CFD) 
Services to offset some of the City’s maintenance costs. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution Approving the Final Map for Tentative Tract Map 32035 and Authorizing the 
City Manager to Execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Lien Agreement 
   
Attachment A:  Aerial Image of Tract Map 32035 – McVicar Residential Project 
Attachment B:  Final Map for Tract No. 32035 
Attachment C:  Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Lien Agreement 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 – 65 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 30235 
MCVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 


EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND LIEN 
AGREEMENT 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar approved Tentative Tract 


Map 32035 subject to conditions, on January 11, 2017 per Resolution No. 2017-06; and 
 


WHEREAS, consistent with the approved Tentative Map, David P. Wolske and Leslie S. 
Lanes, husband and wife and Louis E. Polakoff and Elaine Polakoff, husband and wife 
and Harry L. Keays, a married man and Ronald Auerbacher, a trustee of the Ronald 
Auerbacher trust agreement dated August 26, 2015 and Joan Maresca, a single woman 
and Pensco Trust Company FBO M. Kenneth Mudge and Myra j. Ekrem, a married 
woman and Omni Financial, LLC, a California limited liability company and Orbis 
Financial, LLC,  a California limited liability company, submitted to the City for approval 
the Final Map; and 


 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the proposed Final Map and finds it to be 


technically correct and that all applicable final map conditions of approval have been 
satisfied or otherwise identified as outstanding in a Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement; and 


 
WHEREAS, Subdivision Improvement Agreements have been approved by the 


City Attorney; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Lien Agreement has been approved by the City Attorney as a form 


of security for the construction of the required improvements for this final map; and  
 
WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and 


Reporting Program was adopted by the City County of the City of Wildomar on January 
11, 2017 per Resolution No. 2017-05.    


 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that this Final Map is statutorily exempt 


from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Statutory Exemptions, Title 14 of 
the California Code of Regulations Section 15268, (b) (3) Ministerial Projects, approval 
of final subdivision maps. 


 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 


Wildomar City Council, in regular session assembled on December 15, 2021, the 
following: 


 
1. The location and configuration of the lots to be created by the Final Map 


substantially comply with the previously approved Tentative Map; and 







2. The Final Map is statutorily exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), Statutory Exemptions, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations 
Section 15268, (b) (3) Ministerial projects, approval of final subdivision maps; 
and 
 


3. The City Council of the City of Wildomar, pursuant to Government Code Section 
66458, hereby approves the Final Map, and: 


a. Directs the City Surveyor to sign the Final Map; and 
b. Directs the City Engineer to sign the Final Map; and 
c. Directs the City Clerk to sign the Final Map; and 
d. Directs the City Manager to execute the Subdivision Improvement 


Agreement and Lien Agreement for Tract No. 32035 incorporated herein 
by this reference; and 


e. Directs the City Clerk to transmit the Final Map and Agreements to the 
County Recorder of the County of Riverside for filing; and 


f. Directs the City Clerk to transmit the Notice of Exemption to the County 
Clerk of the County of Riverside for filing. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021. 


 
 
              
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 


 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST:     
   
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________  
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC   
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 


 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of
Tract Map 32035 - McVicar Residential Project


(highlighted in yellow)







Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT B



Neva

Text Box

Final Map for Tract No. 32035







IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA SHEET 1 OF 9 SHEETS 


TRACT NO. 32035 
BEING A SUBDMSION OF PARCEL 1, LOTS "C" AND "D", AND PORTION OF PARCEL 4 OF PARCEL MAP 10466, 


AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 51, PAGE 89 OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY 
RECORDER OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY AND PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN ON LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2014-001, 


AS EVIDENCED BY DOCUMENT RECORDED OCTOBER 7, 2014 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2014-0380691 OF 
OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY. 


RECORDER'S STATEMENT 


FILED THIS __ DAY OF ______ , 20 __ , 
AT ___ .M., IN BOOK ___ OF MAPS 
AT PAGES __ , AT THE REQUEST OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF WILDOMAR 


SAKE ENGINEERS, INC.. JULY 2021 NO. 


OWNER'S STATEMENT 


WE HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF THE LAND INCLUDED WITHIN THE 
SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON; THAT WE ARE THE ONLY PERSONS WHOSE CONSENT IS 
NECESSARY TO PASS A CLEAR TITLE TO SAID LAND; THAT WE CONSENT TO THE 
MAKING AND RECORDING OF THIS SUBDIVISION MAP AS SHOWN WITHIN THE 
DISTINCTIVE BORDER LINE. 


1. THE REAL PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: LOTS "A'' THROUGH "G", INCLUSIVE. THE
DEDICATION IS FOR STREET AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES.


2. THE REAL PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES:


20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT WITHIN LOT "I" AS SHOWN HEREON. THE 
DEDICATION IS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF DRAINAGE FACILITIES. 


3. THE REAL PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES:


1 O' TRAIL EASEMENT AS SHOWN HEREON. 


WE HEREBY RETAIN THE EASEMENTS INDICATED AS "5' DRAINAGE EASEMENT" FOR 
THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS 
WITHIN THIS TRACT MAP. 


WE HEREBY RETAIN THE EASEMENTS INDICATED AS LANDSCAPE EASEMENT" FOR THE 
SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS 
WITHIN THIS TRACT MAP. 


WE HEREBY RETAIN LOTS "H", "I", AND "K" INDICATED AS "OPEN SPACE" FOR 
PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES 
AND LOT OWNERS WITHIN THIS TRACT MAP. 


4. THE REAL PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: LOT "J" AND "K" FOR WATER QUALITY BASIN AND OPEN
SPACE, RESPECTIVELY.


DAVID P. WOLSKE AND LESLIE S. LANES, 


HUSBAND AND WIFE AS JOINT TENANTS 


Dav..'.!fl..Y.:L�����lfl4c��A£l-:l!:§Z_:___ 
• 


l-e-6/f.t-


LOUIS E. POLAKOFF AND ELAINE POLAKOFF, 


HUSBAND AND WIFE AS JOINT TENANTS 


,tA-i� e. foltt� 
• LOUIS E. POLA FF BY KIMBERLEE KAY, AS OR EY IN FACT 


�E�t����E�Y��NifMT 


HARRY L. KEAYS, A MARRIED MAN 


-�i;RfcV;Jyi't��r:rA�+-(¥
OMNI FINANCIAL, LLC 


A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 


PRINT NAME: PRINT TITLE: 


PRINT NAM�RINT TITLEc/l'l'al'N�
ORBIS FINANCIAL, LLC, 


A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 


PRINT NA�� PRINT TITLE: /flJ'HNtttJ�


PRINT NAME: PRINT TITLE: 


RONALD AUERBACHER, TRUSTEE OF 


THE RONALD AUERBACHER TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 26, 2015 


�\..-�A0-L�� ��,oc 
PRINT NAME: /2.blll.A-L..vJ A-t,tt:bAC�RINT TITLE: 'T'!M$re-e


JOAN MARESCA, A SINGLE WOMAN 


PACIFIC PREMIER TRUST SUCCESSOR TO PENSCO TRUST COMPANY FBO 


M. KENNETH MUDGE


�-�� 


PRINT NAME: PRINT TITLE: 


MYRA J. EKREM, A MARRIED WOMAN 


SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT 


THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION AND IS BASED UPON A 
FIELD SURVEY IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP 
ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST OF MARTIN BOONE ON SEPTEMBER 25, 
2015. I HEREBY STATE THAT ALL MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY 
THE POSITIONS INDICATED OR THAT THEY WILL BE SET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
TERMS OF THE MONUMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE MAP AND THAT THE MONUMENTS 
ARE, OR WILL BE, SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED, AND THAT 
THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONDITIONALLY APPROVED 
TENTATIVE MAP. THIS SURVEY IS TRUE AND COMPLETE AS SHOWN. 


DATE: _1_l_j_l1-.L_ ___
--il�_G_� 
DANIEL C. GOMEZ L.S. 5558 


� 


FEE 


PETER ALDANA 
COUNTY ASSESSOR-CLERK-RECORDER 


BY: _______ ,DEPUTY 


SUBDIVISION GUARANTEED BY: 
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE COMPANY


TAX BOND CERTIFICATE 


I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A BOND IN THE SUM OF $ HAS BEEN 
EXECUTED AND FILED WITH THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 
RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONED UPON THE PAYMENT OF ALL TAXES, STATE, 
COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL, AND ALL SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS 
TAXES, WHICH AT THE TIME OF FILING OF THIS MAP WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER 
ARE A LIEN AGAINST SAID PROPERTY BUT NOT YET PAYABLE AND SAID BOND HAS 
BEEN DULY APPROVED BY SAID BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. 


DATED: ___ , 20 __ 


CASH OR SURETY BOND 
MATTHEW JENNINGS 
CQUNTY TAX· CO'Lb.EGTOR 


BY: ____________ , DEPUTY 


TAX COLLECTOR'S CERTIFICATE 


I HEREBY _CERTIFY THAT ACCORDING TO THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE, AS OF THIS 
DATE, THERE ARE NO LIENS AGAINST THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE WITHIN MAP FOR 
UNPAID STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
COLLECTED AS TAXES, EXCEPT TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS 
TAXES NOW A LIEN BUT NOT YET PAYABLE, WHICH ARE ESTIMATED TO BE 
$ --


DATED: , 20 __ 


CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT 


MATTHEW JENNINGS 
COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 
BY: __ _ , DEPUTY 


THIS MAP CONFORMS TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL 
ORDINANCES. I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY 
SUPERVISION AND FOUND TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE 
TENTATIVE MAP OF TRACT MAP 32035 AS FILED, AMENDED, AND APPROVED BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL / PLANNING COMMISSION ON JANUARY 11, 2017, THE EXPIRATION DATE BEING 
JANUARY 11, 2023, AND THAT THE CITY ENGINEER IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED 
TO SIGN THIS MAP PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 20 _____ -_______ _ 
DATED: ______ , 20 __ 


DANIEL A. YORK, CITY ENGINEER 
R.C.E. 43212


CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT 


I HEREBY STATE THAT THE TRACT MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY 
SUPERVISION AND I AM SATISFIED SAID MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT. 


DANIEL A. YORK 
CITY SURVEYOR 
P.L.S. 7962


CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT 


DATED: __ _ 


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, BY ORDER OF ITS CITY COUNCIL PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
20__ _ __ HEREBY APPROVES THIS TRACT MAP NO. 32035. 


, 20 __ 


1. THE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF LOTS "A" THROUGH "G", INCLUSIVE, FOR PUBLIC STREET
AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES, AND AS PART OF THE CITY MAINTAINED ROAD SYSTEM,
SUBJECT TO IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS IS HEREBY ACCEPTED.


2. THE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF THE 20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT WITHIN LOT "I" AS SHOWN
HEREON FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF DRAINAGE FACILITIES IS HEREBY
ACCEPTED.


3. THE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF THE 1 O' TRAIL EASEMENT AS SHOWN HEREON IS
HEREBY ACCEPTED.


DATE: ------· 20 __ 


BY: __ _ 
JANET MORALES, CITY CLERK 
CITY OF WILDOMAR 


ABANDONMENT OF PUBLIC STREETS AND PUBLIC EASEMENTS 


PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 66434 AND 66499.20 12 OF THE 
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE APPROVAL AND RECORDATION OF THIS 
TRACT MAP CONSTITUTES ABANDONMENT OF THE FOLLOWING LOTS: 
"C" AND "D" AS DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC PER 
PARCEL MAP NO. 10466, FILED IN BOOK 51, PAGE 89 OF PARCEL MAPS. 


SIGNATURE OMISSIONS NOTE 


PURSUANT TO SECTION 66436 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE SIGNATURES OF THE 
FOLLOWING OWNERS OF EASEMENTS AND/OR OTHER INTERESTS HAVE BEEN OMITTED: 


AN EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES 
AND INCIDENTAL PURPOSES, RECORDED AUGUST 3, 2016 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 
2016-0329572 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS. 


A NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR WATER PIPELINE PURPOSES IN FAVOR OF JOHN V. CAO 
AND LINDA CUC CAO, HUSBAND AND WIFE AND QUYEN NGUYEN, A MARRIED MAN AS HIS 
SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY, ALL AS JOINT TENANTS BY A DEED RECORDED APRIL 25, 
2002, AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2002-215787 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS. 
EASEMENT-HOLDERS NOT FOUND. 


4. THE OFFER OF DEDICATON OF LOTS "J" AND "K" 
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES FOR WATER QUALITY BASIN AND 
OPEN SPACE, RESPECTIVELY, ARE HEREBY ACCEPTED.



estadnik

Line



estadnik

Line



estadnik

Line



estadnik

Line



estadnik

Typewritten Text

"I"







































ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement
Subdivision Improvement Agreement 


and 
Lien Agreement


ATTACHMENT C



























































































































Sheet 1 of 5


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT MAP NO. TTM 32035 DATE: 5/14/2021
PROJECT: TTM 32035


IMPROVEMENTS


Street/Drainage $ 1,096,955.93 $ $
*Flood Control $ 0.00 $ $
Water E.V.M.W.D. $ $ $


District Name


Sewer E.V.M.W.D. $ $ $
District Name


Total 1,096,955.93 $ $
Warranty Retention (10%) $


Construction items and their quantities, as shown on the attached sheets, are accurate for the improvements 
required to construct the above project and the mathmatical extensions, using City's unit 
costs, are accurate for determining bonding costs 


Above amounts do/do not include additional 20% for recordation prior to having signed plans
 (Ordinance 460, Section 10.3E).


Signature Date 


Sam Akbarpour 53038 6/30/2021
Name Typed or printed RCE# Exp. Date 


Civil Engineer's Stamp 


*Flood Control Construction Cost Estimate to be provided by Flood Control District.  Provide a copy of 
Flood Control District letter stating cost estmate. 


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.  Unit cost are to be as provided on 
"City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet."


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00.  Material and Labor Bond Amounts are 50%
of Performance Bond Amountss.  **100% for Flood Control items.


3. For Construction items not covered by "City of Wildomar Improvement Requirements Worksheet", 
Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction cost and use that cost.  If City of Wildomar 
Unit Costs are determined to be too low, in the opinion of the design engineer, the higher costs as
provided by the Design Engineer should be used. 


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE
SECURITY


(100% of Estimated 
Construction Costs) Construction Costs)


SECURITY 
(**50% of Estimated 


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


1,097,000.00
0.00
0.00


0.00


1,097,000.00
109,700.00


548,500.00


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT


AND PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION SHEET
CONSTRUCTION COST WORKSHEET


DESIGN ENGINEER'S CALCULATION OF IMPROVEMENT BONDING COSTS 


0.00
0.00


0.00


548,500.00


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


MATERIAL & LABOR 


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 2 of 8


 
UNIT


C.Y. $ 0.40 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 1.10 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 2.80 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 1.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 1.50 $ 0.00
S.Y. $ 2.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 1.00 $ 0.00
L.S. $ 300.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 3.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 7.50 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 25.00 $ 500.00


TON $ 78.00 $ 246,948.00
C.Y. $ 30.00 $ 55,830.00


Ton $ 600.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 0.90 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 15.00 $ 99,900.00
L.F. $ 17.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 8.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 10.00 $ 25,850.00
S.F. $ 6.00 $ 180,810.00
S.F. $ 8.00 $ 6,920.00
S.F. $ 6.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 9,000.00
C.Y. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


Type "C" Curb


Type "D" Curb


Handicapped Access Ramp


A.C. Dike (8")(incl. material & labor)


Metal Beam Guard Railing


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


0.00$$
2. Projects without a Grading Plan                                 
Road area and side slopes to daylight                     
Cut (c) =                 Fill (f) =


C.Y. 


(a.) Excavate and Fill 


20.00
1. Projects with Grading Plan                                  
Area x 0.50' (hinge point to hinge point)


ROADWAY EXCAVATION


Remove Headwall


Grinding A.C. , in place


(b.) Excavate and Export
(c.) Import and Fill
If balance, provide (a.) only, either cut or fill                
If export, provide (a.)&(b.) a = fill, b = cut - fill                        
If import, provide (a)&(c), a = cut, c = fill - cut                        
(Unit costs for (a),(b), & (c) are 20% of actual costs 
to assure that work will be corrected to eliminate 
hazardous conditions.)


P.C.C. Dip Section Std. 307


Multipurose Trial (1,600 SF)


Type "D-1" Curb


Relocate Mailbox


6,660 Curb and Gutter (Type A-6)


Structural Reinforcement Concrete


P.C.C. Drive Approach


2,585


9


P.C.C. Cross Gutter and Spandrels
P.C.C. Sidewalk


A.C. Dike (6")(incl. material & labor)


Barricades


1,861


865
30,135


Curb and Gutter (Type A-8)


Sawcut Exist. A.C. Pavement
Cold Plane A.C. Pavement


Remove Exist. Driveway & Conc. Channel


Remove Chain Link Fence


Remove A.C. Dike


20
Asphalt Concrete (100,510 S.F.)                                         (  
144 lbs/cu.ft)
Agg Base Class II ( S.F.)
Asphalt Emulsion (Fog Seal/Paint Binder)                    (1 
ton = 240 gals) (   S.F.)                                             apply at 
0.05+0.03 = 0.08 gal/SY


3,166


AC overlay (min. 0.10') (9,150 SF)


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 3 of 8


 
UNIT


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 80.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 5.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 300.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 800.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 500.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 6.50 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 6.50 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 200.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 45.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 50.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 55.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 60.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 67.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 75.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 80.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 60.00 $ 11,700.00
L.F. $ 80.00 $ 7,680.00
L.F. $ 85.00 $ 60,860.00
L.F. $ 90.00 $ 21,600.00
L.F. $ 100.00 0.00
L.F. $ 235.00 0.00
L.F. $ 130.00 0.00
L.F. $ 150.00 0.00
L.F. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 50.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 60.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 70.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 80.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 110.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 120.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,200.00 $ 8,800.00
EA. $ 4,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 7,800.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 12,000.00 $ 0.00


30" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


42" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
36" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


4
Catch Basin W=7'


60" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
Catch Basin W=4'


48" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
54" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


Catch Basin W=14'
Catch Basin W=21'


18" R.C. P. Or 21" x 15" RCPA 


30" R.C. P. Or 35" x 24" RCPA 
36" R.C. P. Or 42" x 29" RCPA 


18" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
24" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


42" R.C. P. Or 49" x 33" RCPA 


54" R.C. P. Or 64" x 43" RCPA 
48" R.C. P. Or 57" x 38" RCPA 


Grouted Rip Rap ( 1 Ton ) Method B
Grouted Rip Rap ( 2 Ton ) Method B


60" R.C. P. Or 71" x 47" RCPA 


716


Rip Rap ( 1 Ton ) Method B
Rip Rap ( 2 Ton ) Method B


24" R.C. P. Or 28" x 20" RCPA 
195
96


Grouted Rip Rap ( 1/2 Ton ) Method B


Flat Outlet Drainage Structure Std 303


Private Drainage Structure Std 310


240


Rip Rap  ( 1/4  Ton ) Methob B


Grouted Rip Rap ( 1/4 Ton ) Method B


Rip Rap  ( 1/2  Ton ) Methob B


R.C. Box Culvert
Concrete  Channel


Terrace  Drain & Down Drain 


Cut Off Wall  ( Std 2' )


Interceptor Drain


A. C. Overside Drain


Concrete Bulkhead


Pipe Gate


Curb Outlet Drainage Structure Std 308


Slope Anchors for Pipes


Under Sidewalk Drain Std 309


Relocate Power Pole 
Street Lights (including conduit)


Relocate Fence


Utility Trench, one side (Edison, Telephone, Cable) (total 
length of Streets)
Chain Link Fence ( 6' )


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 4 of 8


 
UNIT


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


EA. $ 15,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,000.00 $ 9,000.00
EA. $ 3,700.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 12,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 12,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,700.00 $ 2,700.00
EA. $ 2,700.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00
EA. $ 2,700.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 600.00 $ 0.00
EA. 2,500.00 $ 0.00
L.F. 2.00 $ 0.00
EA. 1,500.00 $ 4,500.00
EA. 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00
EA. 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00
S.F. 2.00 $ 246.00


S.F $ 2.50 $ 0.00
EA. $ 100.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 275.00 $ 1,100.00
EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 1,000.00
EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 60.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 45.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3.75 $ 0.00
EA. $ 0.30 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 0.50 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 0.80 $ 0.00


S. F. $ 2.25 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 4.00 $ 0.00
EA 150,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. 100.00 $ 400.00
L.F. 1.40 $ 0.00
L.F. 1.10 $ 0.00
EA. 75.00 $ 0.00
L.F. 0.97 $ 130.95


Remove Traffic Stripes and Paint Markings


4 Street Name Sign


Delineator ( Class 2 )
Pavement Marker, Reflective


Object Marker - Modified Type "F" Delineator


8" Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe


Paint Traffic Stripe  (2 Coats )
Remove Barricade
4" Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe


12" Thermoplastic White Limit Line


Road Sign - Two Post


Remove, Sign, Salvage
Relocate Roadside Sign


Road Sign - One Post


Thermoplastic Channelizing Limit Line and Pavement 
Marking
Thermoplastic Cross Walk and Pavement Marking


135


Signal and Lighting


Double Yellow Centerline
4


Conc. Drop Inlet


Manhole  No.  1
Manhole  No.  2


Double Yellow Median Island
Thermoplstic Left Turn Arrow


3


1


Install Sign Mast Arm Hanger Method)
4


Delineator ( Class 1 Type F)


SIGNING, STRIPING AND SIGNALS


1


12" Dia. Rip Rap


2-6" PVC Drain Pipe


Stop Pavement Marking


Adjust Water Valve to Grade ( if no water plan )


1


Type X Inlet
Junction Structure  No. 1
Junction Structure  No. 2


24"x24" Catch basin 


Headwall


123


Install Sign ( Strap and Saddle Bracket Method)


Catch Basin W=28'


Manhole  No.  3
Manhole  No.  4


Junction Structure  No. 6
Transition Structure  No. 1


3


Transition Structure  No. 2
Transition Structure  No. 3


1


Adjust MH to Grade ( if no sewer plan )


Headwll &Wingwall


Type IX Inlet


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 5 of 8


 
UNIT


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


$ 0.00
$


S. F. $ 4.00 $ 0.00
S. F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 100.00 $ 0.00


S. F. $ 3.50 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 27.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 7,000.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00


A. $ 761,774.95
B. $ 152,354.99


C.  $ 914,129.94


D. $ 182825.99
E. Streets/Drainage Total (C + D) $ 1096955.93


Street Trees ( 15 Gallon )


Electric Meter


LANDSCAPING


Landscape and Irrigation


Water Meter


Maintenance Walk STD 113
Colored Stamped Concrete


Landscape Fill Material


Streets/Drainage Total (A + B)


Administrative Contingency (            % x A)
NOTE: Use 20% for TR and PM                               Use 5% 
for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL Cases


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR TO HAVING 
SIGNED PLANS
( ORD.460, SEC. 10.3E)


 Subtotal 


20% x C


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 6 of 8


 
UNIT


L.F. $ 13.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 16.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 21.00 $ 68,250.00
L.F. $ 27.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 31.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
EA. 4" Gate Valve $ 650.00 $ 0.00
EA. 6" Gate Valve $ 800.00 $ 0.00
EA. 8" Gate Valve $ 850.00 $ 8,500.00
EA. $ 1,050.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,250.00 $ 0.00
EA. Fire Hydrant (6") Super $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. Fire Hydrant (6") Standard $ 2,300.00 $ 25,300.00
EA. 4" Misc. Fittings $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. 6" Misc. Fittings $ 200.00 $ 0.00
EA. 8" Misc. Fittings $ 250.00 $ 0.00
EA. 10" Misc. Fittings $ 280.00 $ 0.00
EA. 12" Misc. Fittings $ 320.00 $ 0.00
EA. Blowoffs (4") $ 1,600.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 475.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 200.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,850.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 1,500.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 1,000.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 1,000.00
EA. $ 1,100.00 $ 52,800.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 5,000.00


$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00


A. $ 163,350.00
B. $ 32,670.00


C. $ 196,020.00


D. $ 39,204.00
E. $ 235,224.00


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


3,250


13


 
WATER IMPROVEMENTS


UNIT AMOUNT 


18" Waterline 


4" Waterline


QUANTITY ITEM


10


11


2
48


Adjust Water Valve to Grade 
Relocation of Blowoff


1" Water Service
1" Air Release


8" 90 Degree Bend
8" 45 Degree Bend


Air and Vacuum Valve. 


Service Connections


2
2


Water Total (A + B)


8" Tee3


6" Waterline
8" Waterline
10" Waterline 
12" Waterline 


10" Gate Valve 
12" Gate Valve 


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR TO 
HAVING SIGNED PLAND 
( ORD.460, SEC. 10.3E)


Subtotal
Administrative Contingency (        % x A)


20% x C
Water Total (C + D)


NOTE: Use 20% for TR and PM                               Use 
5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL Cases


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 7 of 8


 
UNIT


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 30.00 $ 89,010.00
L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 4,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 30.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 500.00
L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,500.00 $ 24,500.00
EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 30,000.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 12,000.00
EA. $ 200.00 $ 1,000.00


$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00


A. $ 157,010.00
B. $ 31,402.00


C. $ 188,412.00


D. $ 37,682.40
E. $ 226,094.40Sewer Total (C + D)


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR TO 
HAVING SIGNED PLAND ( ORD.460, SEC. 10.3E)
20% x C


Sewer Total (A + B)


Subtotal
Administrative Contingency (              % x A)
NOTE: Use 20% for TR and PM                               Use 
5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL Cases


Backwater Valve


8" V. C. P.
10" V. C. P.
12" V. C. P.
Standard Manhole 
Drop Manhole
Cleanouts 


5


6


 Chimneys
Adjust M.H. to grade


 Sewer  Y's


Concrete Encasement 
4' Dia Manhole
5' Dia Manhole


1


7


UNIT AMOUNT 


6" V. C. P.
4" V. C. P.


48


2,967


QUANTITY ITEM


4" Sewer Lateral


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
SEWER  IMPROVEMENTS


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 8 of 8


  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE: ##


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 914129.94


$ 196,020.00


$ 188,412.00


$ 9141.30


$ 3844.32


$ 12985.62


$ 259.71


$ 13245.33


shown below, then following deposit schedule will apply, otherwise pay the full deposit.


A. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              NOTE: Use 1% 
for TR, 6% for PM and 6.5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL


II. Water (Line C from Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT


PLANCHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION SHEET


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


TTM 32035


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


B. Water and Sewer (1% x II and III.) (Do not include for Tract Maps)


C. Total Plan Check Deposit (A + B)


SURCHARGE FEE CALCULATION


COMMENTS


Note: If Plan Check Deposit calculated in "Line E" is less than the minimum as 


For TR (Schedule. A, B, C, D) and PM (Schedule. E, F, G) - minimum $2,000


D. Surcharge Fee (2% x C)


For PM (Schedule H, I) - minimum $2,000.00


For PP/CU/PU/MS/VL - minimum $2,000.00


MINIMUM PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS


E. Total Plan Check Deposit and Surcharge Fee


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008



















































ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


Standard / General Conditions 


1.  In compliance with Section 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Notice of 
Determination (NOD) shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk 
within five (5) working days of project approval by the City Council. 
The notice shall include the required California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (Fish and Game Code Section 711.4.d.3) fee, and the 
Riverside County Clerk administrative fee (paid by the applicant) in the 
amount of $2,266.25. Failure to pay the required fee will result in the 
project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game Code 
Section 711.4(c)). The above fee is broken down as follows: 


a. California Department of Fish and Wildlife =  $2,216.25 


b. Riverside County Clerk Administrative Fee = $50.00 


January 19, 2017 Planning Department 
 


 


2.  The applicant shall review and sign below verifying the “Acceptance of 
the Conditions of Approval” and return the signed page to the 
Wildomar Planning Department within two weeks of the City Council 
approval. 


 


 


Applicant Signature     Date 


January 25, 2017 Planning Department 
 


3.  The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 
procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, 
agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek 
to modify, set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or 
approval issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities 
thereof (including actions approved by the voters of the City), for or 
concerning the project, whether such Actions are brought under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, 
the Subdivision Map Act, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
City shall promptly notify the Applicant of any Action brought and 
request that Applicant defend the City. It is expressly agreed that 
Applicant may select legal counsel providing the Applicant’s defense 
and the City shall have the right to approve separate legal counsel 
providing the City’s defense. The Applicant shall reimburse City for 
any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily 
incurred by the City in the course of the defense. Applicant agrees that 
City will forward monthly invoices to Applicant for attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses it has incurred related to its defense of any Action 
and Applicant agrees to timely payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the invoice. Within fourteen (14) days of an Action being 
filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a cash deposit 
with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of the defense in 
order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. The amount of 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the City. City shall 
cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  


4.  Tentative Tract Map No. 32035 shall not become effective until 30 
days after the second reading by the City Council of the proposed 
Change of Zone No. 09-0380.  No recordation of the final map shall 
occur until after this date.  


March 10, 2017  Planning Department 
 


5.  Within 60 days of approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 32035 by the 
City Council, the applicant shall pay any outstanding deposit account 
balances.  Failure to pay the outstanding balance by the due date will 
result in delays in the processing of the final tract map & improvement 
plans. 


March 11, 2017 Planning Department 
 


6.  In accordance with Section 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
applicant has 90 days from project approval to file a protest of the 
imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions being 
imposed on this project.  Notice is hereby to the Applicant that the 90-
day appeal hereby begins with approval of this project. 


April 11, 2017 Planning Department 
 


7.  Approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 32035 shall expire on January 
11, 2020 (3 years after approval by the City Council) if the tract map 
has not been recorded.  The applicant may submit a request for a 
one-year Extension of Time (EOT) with the Planning Department as 
permitted by the Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance provided the written 
request is made 30 days prior to the expiration date and accompanied 
by the required EOT application and fee. 


December 11, 2019 Planning Department 
 


8.  The project shall be subdivided and developed in accordance with the 
Tentative Tract Map approved by the City Council on January 11, 
2017. The applicant may request a modification/revision to the 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
approved project as outlined in Sections 16.12.210 and 16.12.220 of 
the Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance. 


9.  Applicant hereby understands and agrees that failure to comply with 
all Conditions of Approval may result in the Planning Commission 
taking action resulting in a modification to the Conditions of Approval 
and/or suspension or revocation of the tract map. 


On-Going Planning Department 


 


10.  The proposed Project shall comply with existing SCAQMD rules for 
the reduction of fugitive dust emissions in accordance with SCAQMD 
Rule 403. 


On-Going Planning Department 


 


CEQA / Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) Mitigation Measures: 


Biological Resources 


11.  BIO-1 The project applicant shall conduct construction and clearing 
activities outside of the avian nesting season (January 15–August 31), 
where feasible. If clearing and/or construction activities must occur 
during the nesting season, preconstruction surveys for nesting raptors, 
migratory birds, and special-status resident birds (e.g., loggerhead 
shrike) shall be conducted by a qualified biologist, up to 14 days 
before initiation of construction activities. The qualified biologist shall 
survey the construction zone and a 250-foot radius surrounding the 
construction zone to determine whether the activities taking place 
have the potential to disturb or otherwise harm nesting birds.  


If an active nest is located within 100 feet (250 feet for raptors) of 
construction activities, the project applicant shall establish an 
exclusion zone (no ingress of personnel or equipment at a minimum 
radius of 100 feet or 250 feet, as appropriate, around the nest). 
Alternative exclusion zones may be established through consultation 


The project 
applicant shall 
incorporate 
requirements into 
all rough and/or 
precise grading 
plan documents. 
The project 
applicant’s 
construction 
inspector shall 
monitor to ensure 
that measures are 
implemented during 
construction. 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
with the CDFW and the USFWS, as necessary. The exclusion zones 
shall remain in force until all young have fledged.  


Reference to this requirement and to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act 
shall be included in the construction specifications.  


If construction activities or tree removal are proposed to occur during 
the non-breeding season (September 1–January 14), a survey is not 
required, no further studies are necessary, and no mitigation is 
required. 


12.  BIO-2 Per MSHCP Species-Specific Objective 6, preconstruction 
presence/absence surveys for burrowing owl within the survey area, 
where suitable habitat is present, will be conducted for all covered 
activities through the life of the building permit. Surveys will be 
conducted within 30 days prior to disturbance. Take of active nests will 
be avoided. The breeding period for burrowing owls is February 1 
through August 31, with the peak being April 15 to July 15, the 
recommended survey window. Winter surveys may be conducted 
between September 1 and January 31. If construction is delayed or 
suspended for more than 30 days after the survey, the area shall be 
resurveyed. Surveys shall be completed for occupied burrowing owl 
burrows within all construction areas and within 500 feet of the project 
work areas (where possible and appropriate based on habitat). All 
occupied burrows will be mapped on an aerial photo. 


Thirty days prior to 
any vegetation 
removal or ground-
disturbing activities. 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


13.  BIO-3 If burrowing owls are found to be present on-site, the project 
applicant shall develop a conservation strategy in cooperation with the 
CDFW, the USFWS, and the Regional Conservation Authority in 
accordance with the CDFW’s Staff Report on Burrowing Owl 
Mitigation (2012). 


Prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities. 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
Cultural Resources 


14.  CUL-1  If during grading or construction activities, cultural resources 
are discovered on the project site, work shall be halted immediately 
within 50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be evaluated by 
a qualified archaeologist and the Pechanga Tribe (Tribe) and Soboba 
Tribe (Tribe). Any unanticipated cultural resources that are discovered 
shall be evaluated and a final report prepared by the qualified 
archaeologist. The report shall include a list of the resources 
discovered, documentation of each site/locality, and interpretation of 
the resources identified, and the method of preservation and/or 
recovery for identified resources. In the event the significant resources 
are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist, and/or the Pechanga 
and/or Soboba determines the resources to be historical or unique, 
avoidance and/or mitigation shall be required pursuant to and 
consistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 and 15126.4, 
Public Resources Code Section 21083.2, and the Cultural Resources 
Treatment and Monitoring Agreement required by Mitigation Measure 
CUL-2. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 


 


15.  CUL-2 At least 30 days prior to any ground-disturbing activity, the 
project applicant shall contact the Pechanga Tribe and the Soboba 
Tribe to notify the Tribe of the proposed grading and shall coordinate 
with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop a Cultural 
Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement. The agreement 
shall include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and 
requirements for addressing the handling of archaeological resources; 
project grading and development scheduling; terms of compensation 
for the monitors; treatment and final disposition of any archeological 
resources, sacred sites, burial goods, and human remains discovered 


Thirty days prior to 
any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities. 


 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
on the site; and establishing on-site monitoring provisions and/or 
requirements for professional Tribal monitors during all ground-
disturbing activities. The terms of the agreement shall not conflict with 
mitigation measures CUL-1, CUL-3, CUL-4, and CUL-5. A copy of this 
signed agreement shall be provided to the Planning Director and the 
Building Official prior to the issuance of the first grading permit. 


16.  CUL-3 With the exception of archaeological resources, sacred items, 
burial goods, and human remains for which the Cultural Resources 
Treatment and Monitoring Agreement required by mitigation measure 
CUL-2 provides a plan for treatment and final disposition, all 
archaeological resources that are collected during the grading 
monitoring program and from any previous archaeological studies or 
excavations on the project site shall be curated Page 44 McVicar 
Residential Project IS/MND (09-0380) according to the current 
professional repository standards. The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred, including title, to the Pechanga Tribe’s 
curation facility and the Soboba Tribe’s, which meets the standards 
set forth in 36 CFR Part 79 for federal repositories. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  


 


17.  CUL-4 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the project 
site, shall be avoided and preserved as the preferred mitigation, if 
feasible as determined by a qualified professional in consultation with 
the Pechanga Tribe and Soboba Tribe. To the extent that a sacred 
site cannot be feasibly preserved in place or left in an undisturbed 
state, mitigation measures shall be required pursuant to and 
consistent with Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15064.5. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
18.  CUL-5 To address the possibility that archaeological resources may 


be encountered during grading or construction, a qualified 
professional archaeologist shall monitor all construction activities that 
could potentially impact archaeological deposits (e.g., grading, 
excavation, and/or trenching). However, monitoring may be 
discontinued as soon the qualified professional is satisfied that 
construction will not disturb archaeological resources. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


Geology/Soils 


19.  GEO-1  The project applicant shall incorporate the recommendations 
of the fault hazard investigation conducted by RGS Engineering 
(2007; Appendix 6b) and the liquefaction evaluation conducted by 
RGS Engineering (2008; Appendix 6c) and Leighton and Associates 
(2014a; Appendix 6a) into project plans. The project’s building plans 
shall demonstrate that they incorporate all applicable 
recommendations of the fault hazard study and both liquefaction 
evaluations and comply with all applicable requirements of the latest 
adopted version of the California Building Code. A licensed 
professional engineer shall prepare the plans, including those that 
pertain to soil engineering, structural foundations, and installation. All 
on-site soil engineering activities shall be conducted under the 
supervision of a licensed geotechnical engineer or certified 
engineering geologist. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


20.  GEO-2 Construction personnel involved in excavation and grading 
activities shall be informed of the possibility of discovering fossils at 
any location and the protocol to be followed if fossils are found. A 
professional meeting the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology 
standards shall provide the preconstruction training. The City shall 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
ensure the grading plan notes include specific reference to the 
potential discovery of fossils.   If potentially unique paleontological 
resources (fossils) are inadvertently discovered during project 
construction, work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the 
discovery, the City shall be notified and a professional paleontologist 
shall be retained to determine the significance of the discovery. The 
paleontologist shall establish procedures for paleontological resource 
surveillance throughout project construction and shall establish, in 
cooperation with the project applicant, procedures for temporarily 
halting or redirecting work to permit sampling, identification, and 
evaluation of fossils. Excavated finds shall be offered to a State-
designated repository such as the Museum of Paleontology at the 
University of California, Berkeley, or the California Academy of 
Sciences. 


Hazard and Hazardous Materials 


21.  HAZ-1  Prior to any earth disturbance, soil samples of the soil 
stockpile shall be taken to determine the presence of organochlorine 
pesticides (OCPs) and arsenic. If recognized environmental conditions 
(RECs) defined according to ASTM E1527-13 as “the presence or 
likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products 
in, on, or at a property: (1) due to any release to the environment; (2) 
under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or (3) 
under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the 
environment” are found, the project applicant shall retain a qualified 
corrosive soils engineer. The qualified corrosive soils engineer shall 
investigate the project site for corrosive soils, review all grading and 
construction/building plans, and recommend mitigation measures that 
shall be implemented to minimize any potential impacts associated 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Building 
Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
with the site’s corrosive soils, including but not limited installation of 
sacrificial steel, an appropriate cementitious material cover (e.g., 
grout), surface coatings (e.g., epoxy, zinc), grout-filled corrugated 
plastic sheath encapsulation, use of stainless steel, or a combination 
of these or similar factors. Prior to issuance of the project’s first 
building permit, the City Engineer shall review and approve the 
corrosive soils report, and if required, the project applicant shall 
modify the foundation design of the project’s structures to take into 
account the recommendations in the corrosive soils report, with such 
revised foundation designs to be approved by the City Engineer. 


Hydrology/Water Quality 


22.  HYD-1 Prior to the approval of the grading permit, the project 
applicant shall be required to prepare a stormwater pollution 
prevention plan (SWPPP) consistent with the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for Storm 
Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance 
Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-DWQ), which is to be administered 
through all phases of grading and project construction. The SWPPP 
shall incorporate best management practices (BMPs) to ensure that 
potential off-site water quality impacts during construction phases are 
minimized. The SWPPP shall be submitted for review to the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board and to the City of Wildomar. A copy of 
the SWPPP must be kept accessible on the project site at all times. In 
addition, the project applicant will be required to submit, and obtain 
City Engineering approval of, a Water Quality Management Plan prior 
to the issuance of any building or grading permit in order to comply 
with the Areawide Urban Runoff Management Program. The project 
shall implement site design BMPs, source control BMPs, and 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
treatment control BMPs as identified in the Water Quality 
Management Plan. Site design BMPs shall include, but are not limited 
to, landscape buffer Page 66 McVicar Residential Project IS/MND (09-
0380) areas, on-site ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff 
directed to vegetated areas, and vegetated swales. Treatment control 
BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a bio-retention water quality 
basin/hydromodification basin. 


23.  HYD-2   Prior to filing of a final map, the applicant shall reconstruct the 
McVicar Street crossing of the Wildomar Channel consistent with the 
150 foot / 5 culvert design alternative as presented in the Hydrology of 
50-yr Flood for Wildomar Channel, November 15 2015. 


Prior to Filing of a 
Final Map 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 


 


Noise 


24.  NOI-1 Development on the project site shall implement the following 
construction noise mitigation measures to reduce potential 
construction noise impacts:  


• Construction equipment staging and storage areas shall be 


located as far from existing residential land uses as possible.  


• All construction equipment shall be properly maintained with 


operating mufflers and air intake silencers as effective as those 


installed by the original manufacturer.  


• Residents living up to 1,000 feet from the property line shall be 


provided with a construction schedule and contact information to 


file a complaint. Timely notification shall accompany any major 


changes to this schedule.  


• A temporary noise barrier shall be erected along the eastern 


During construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
project boundary (i.e. homes facing McVicar and Palomar) 


during all construction activities.  


Prior to Final Map Approval / Recordation of the Final Map 


25.  Prior to City Council approval of the final map, the Applicant shall 
submit two (2) copies of the proposed Covenants, Conditions, and 
Restrictions (CC&Rs) for the entire project area for review and 
approval by the Planning Director and City Attorney.  The CC&Rs 
shall include liability insurance and methods of maintaining 
landscaping, parking areas, private roads, exterior of all buildings (if 
applicable), and all landscaped and open areas including parkways, 
as well as a provisions indicating that the homeowners association 
may not be terminated or dissolved without the permission of the City.  
The CC&Rs shall be in the form and content approved by the Planning 
Director and City Attorney and shall include such provisions as are 
required by this approval and as said officials deem necessary to 
protect the interests of the City and its residents.  Said CC&R’s shall 
be recorded concurrently with the final map and a copy of the 
recorded CC&R’s shall be submitted to the Planning and Engineering 
Departments within 2 weeks after recordation. 


Prior to Approval of 
the Final Map 


Planning Department  


26.  Prior to recordation of the final tract map, all applicable tract map 
related conditions of approval from Riverside County Fire Department 
conditions shall be complied with.  The applicant shall provide written 
verification that all applicable conditions have been met.  


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Planning Department 


 


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


27.  Prior to the development of any homes within the boundaries of 
Tentative Tract Map No. 32035, the applicant shall submit a Final Site 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Planning Department.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
Plan of Development (FSPOD) for review and approval by the 
Planning Department. In addition the following items shall apply to 
Tract Map No. 32035: 


a) As part of the FSPOD and as agreed to by the Applicant, Lot No. 


14 & 15 shall be restricted to a one-story, single family dwelling. 


b) Lot I (open space lot) shall be preserved as an open space lot and 


landscaped as shown on the approved tentative tract map. 


c) Lot I shall remain as a permanent open space lot to be maintained 


by the tract’s HOA or by the City’s CFD. 


d) The fencing on Lot I shall be tubular steel to match the access 


gate as shown on the approved tract map plans. 


28.  The FSPOD required with Planning Condition #28 shall be 
accompanied by the applicable application and processing review fee 
and include all the required information, including but not limited to, 2 
sets of detailed landscape and irrigation plans (which shall be 
designed to meet all requirements of Section 17.276 - Water Efficient 
Landscapes, and any future water conservation measures adopted by 
the City prior to development of the site).  Further, the FSPOD 
landscaping plans shall be prohibited from using front yard turf and 
shall be required to utilize drought-tolerant landscaping and drip 
irrigation in accordance with city requirements. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Planning Department.  


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


General Requirements/Conditions 


1.  The developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 
revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on 
the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
need for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals 
may be necessary as a result. 


2.  No grading shall be performed without the prior issuance of a grading 
permit by the City. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


3.  Written permission shall be obtained from the affected property 
owners allowing the proposed grading and/or facilities to be installed 
outside of the project boundaries. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


4.  The developer/owner or contractor shall apply for an Encroachment 
Permit for work performed within the public right of way.  Compliance 
with current environmental regulations applies and additional studies 
and/or permits may be required. 


On-Going Public Works  


5.  The developer’s contractor is required to submit for a haul route permit 
for the hauling of material to and from the project site.  Said permit will 
include limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day and the 
posting of traffic control personnel at all approved entrances/exits onto 
public roads.  Hauled material shall be to/from an approved site. 


On-Going Public Works  


6.  Storm water and non-storm water discharges from the project site 
shall be mitigated in conformance with the applicable Regional Water 
Quality Control Board permit(s) and/or site specific SWPPP prior to 
entering into the MS4s. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


7.  For commercial/industrial projects, the developer/applicant shall 
submit a Business Registration application to the city for approval.  
The Business Registration shall indicate that this business in required 
to submit a Stormwater Compliance Deposit to the City for ongoing 
Commercial/Industrial Inspection requirements of the City’s MS4 
permit (NPDES Inspection).  The requirement for stormwater 
compliance deposits and NPDES inspections are recurring for the 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
duration of the conditional use permit.  The developer/applicant shall 
also provide to the Planning Department, as part of the Business’ 
Statement of Operations, a copy of the educational materials, 
business’ handbook, training or similar documents describing the 
business’ best management practices for storm water pollution 
prevention.  


8.  The developer/applicant shall provide all 
tenants/employees/homeowners with educational materials regarding 
Best Management Practices for Stormwater Pollution Prevention.  
Educational materials are available on the Riverside County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District’s website.  . 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


9.  The developer/owner/tenant shall comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations regarding the proper disposal of waste materials 
generated from the business. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


10.  The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements 
in accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


11.  The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-
site right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the 
eminent domain process, if necessary. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


12.  The 10 year storm flow shall be contained within the curb and the 100 
year storm flow shall be contained within the street right of way.  When 
either of these criteria is exceeded, additional drainage facilities shall 
be installed.  All lots shall be graded to drain to the adjacent street or 
an adequate outlet. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
13.  All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, including 


Appendix J, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations 
governing grading in the City of Wildomar. Prior to commencing any 
grading which includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall 
obtain a grading permit from the Building Department. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


14.  All necessary measures to control dust shall be implemented by the 
developer during grading to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A 
PM10 plan may be required at the time a grading permit is issued. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


15.  Graded slopes shall be limited to a maximum steepness ratio of 2:1 
(horizontal to vertical) unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer.  Contour grade to mimic natural slopes in the area. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


16.  Grading in excess of 199 cubic yards will require performance security 
to be posted with the City. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


17.  All retaining walls shall require a separate permit from the Building 
Department. 


On-Going Building Dept.  


18.  Erosion control – landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded.  The soils engineer shall review the 
erosion control plans for conformance with the Geotechnical Report’s 
Findings and Recommendations.  Erosion control shall be placed 
within 30 days of meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to 
ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy season.  The Developer shall 
plant & irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal 
to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with soil 
stabilizers and ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical 
height shall be planted with additional shrubs or trees or as approved 
by the City Engineer and Planning Director City Planner. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
19.  Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the 


project proponent shall, prior to acceptance of improvements, make 
application for and pay for their reapportionment of the assessments 
or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said fees are 
otherwise deferred or covered under the City’s Community Facility 
District (CFD Services). 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


20.  The developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD Services) and pay associated costs for annexation.  Should this 
project lie within any assessment/benefit district that duplicates the 
services to be covered under CFD Services then the developer shall 
de-annex from said assessment/benefit district. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Engineering Dept.  


21.  The developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


22.  The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a 
minimum of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and 
alignment as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


23.  All above-ground utilities, including but not limited to communication 
and power that are 33KV in size or less, shall be undergrounded by 
the developer in accordance with City requirements. The 
undergrounding of utilities shall be reflected on the project 
improvement plans. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


24.  Improvement Plans for underground utilities (e.g.. Water, sewer, 
electrical, telecommunications, etc.) to be placed in public right of way 
or easement that will be owned and maintained by other entities shall 
be reviewed by the City.  The City shall have a place on the Title 
Sheet to accept the plans with a statement  “The city’s acceptance is 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
limited to the placement of utilities relative to public infrastructure 
clearances, uses and future plans within the right of way.”  The plans 
shall be attached to a city Encroachment Permit. 


25.  All flood control plans, Encroachment Permits and CLOMR/LOMR’s to 
be reviewed by the City and/or the Riverside County Flood Control 
District (RCFCD) shall be submitted through the City of Wildomar, 
unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  For projects requiring 
RCFCD review the developer shall pay the appropriate fees to 
RCFCD.  The Developer is required for all costs associated with 
CLOMR/LOMR. 


On-Going Engineering Dept.  


Prior to Recordation of the Final Map 


26.  Improvement plans shall be prepared, processed, and approved.  
Construct the improvements; or execute an Improvement Agreement 
and Improvement Security.  This condition shall be in conformance 
with local regulations and the Subdivision Map Act. 


Prior to Final Map 
Approval 


Engineering Dept.  


27.  The developer shall dedicate, design and construct streetlights in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City 
Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


28.  The developer shall dedicate a public utility easement adjacent to all 
public and private streets for overhead and/or underground facilities 
and appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


29.  The developer shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans within the 
public right-of-way to the Planning Department. These plans shall 
include water usage calculations, estimate of irrigation and the 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 


Engineering Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
location of all existing trees that will remain. All plans and calculations 
shall be designed and calculated per the City of Wildomar Road 
Improvement Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check 
Policies and Guidelines, City Codes and to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer.  


Building Permit 


30.  The developer shall execute a maintenance agreement for the 
stormwater quality control treatment device to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


Prior to Final Map – Project Specific 


31.  The developer shall dedicate, design and construct the south-westerly 
half - section of Palomar Road, measured, 55’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on an arterial, modified Standard 
No. 92, in accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement 
Standards & Specifications, CIP 0024 65% Improvement Plans and to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  From centerline to face of curb is 
36’.  Improvements shall connect at CIP 0024 Station 111+00 (existing 
curb for TR 28586 Station 23+54) to McVicar Street, CIP 0024 Station 
124+77. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


32.  Palomar Road is a WRCOG TUMF eligible facility.  The developer is 
eligible for TUMF credits after successfully executing a 
Credit/Reimbursement Agreement with WRCOG for 1 additional lane 
of capacity.  The developer shall submit the latest WRCOG TUMF 
credit/reimbursement agreement to the City Engineer for execution 
with WRCOG. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
33.  The developer shall design and construct a multi-use trail at a 


minimum unobstructed width of eight (8’) feet within the right of way of 
Palomar Road from the Flood Control Service Road (adjacent to TR 
28586) to McVicar Street. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


34.  Palomar Road multi-use trail is a City DIF – Trail eligible facility (W-E-
02).  The developer is eligible for DIF – Trail credits after successfully 
executing a Credit/Reimbursement Agreement with the City Council.  
The developer shall submit the latest City credit/reimbursement 
agreement to the City Engineer for execution with the City Council. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


35.  The developer shall dedicate, design and construct the half street 
section of McVicar Street based on a modified 60’ Local Street, 
Standard No. 105C, in accordance with the City of Wildomar Road 
Improvement Standards & Specification to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer.  From centerline to face of curb is 20’.  Improvements shall 
be from Palomar Road to the Wildomar Channel.  The developer shall 
design off-street parking on McVicar Street within the 24’ wide 
parkway strip for future trail head parking within the right of way 
adjacent to Lots 1-3 and Lot I.  The Trail head parking on McVicar 
Street is intended for day use for Horse Trailer parking.  Provide 
signage on parking restrictions to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


36.  The developer shall dedicate, design and construct the Tract interior 
streets based on a 56’ Local Street, Standard No. 105A, in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  The north-
westerly side of Street A shall be modified to include a minimum ten 
(10’) wide unencumbered multi-use trail in place of concrete sidewalk.  
Provide signage for day use trail head parking on the northwesterly 
side of Street A  The multi-use trail shall connect to the Flood Control 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
Service Road adjacent to Lot K.  The intersection of Street F and G 
will be determined in Final Engineering prior to Improvement Plan 
acceptance to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


37.  A portion of the site is within the 100 year Zone A flood plain limits for 
the Wildomar Channel as delineated on Panel 060245 2710C of the 
Flood Insurance Rate Maps.  The developer shall dedicate Lot J and K 
for the operation and maintenance of flood plain, flood way and slope 
protection.  Lot J and K shall be maintained by CFD Services.  A 
Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) shall be obtained from 
FEMA prior to issuance of Grading Permit.  The elevations of the Lots 
shown on the Tentative Tract Map No. 32035 may be adjusted up or 
down to comply with the findings in the CLOMR. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map or First 
Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


38.  A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) shall be obtained from FEMA prior 
to final Building Inspection for lots impacted by the existing FEMA 
floodplain. 


Prior to Final 
Building Inspection 


Engineering Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


39.  A 100-year crossing for the Wildomar Channel (or alternate design of 
no less than 50-year design capacity with no more than one (1’) of 
water surface over McVicar Street) shall be constructed at McVicar 
Street.  The developer shall coordinate the design and construction 
with TTM No. 31667.  The crossing shall be constructed prior to or in 
conjunction with the grading of Lot J and K. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


40.  A portion of Lateral C-1 (referred to as Lateral C-4) shall be designed 
and constructed with the Palomar Street improvements conditioned 
above. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
41.  The McVicar Street crossing at the Wildomar Channel is a RCFC ADP 


eligible facility. The developer is eligible for ADP credits after 
successfully executing a Credit/Reimbursement Agreement with 
RCFC.  The developer shall submit the latest RCFC 
credit/reimbursement agreement to the City Engineer for execution 
with RCFC. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


42.  The McVicar Street crossing at the Wildomar Channel is a City DIF – 
Streets eligible facility (Wildomar Creek Culvert Extension @ 
McVicar).  The developer is eligible for DIF – Street credits after 
successfully executing a Credit/Reimbursement Agreement with the 
City Council.  The developer shall submit the latest City 
credit/reimbursement agreement to the City Engineer for execution 
with the City Council. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


43.  The drainage collection for Palomar Road at approximately City CIP 
0024 Station 113+00 (Lateral C-1/C-4) is a City DIF – Drainage 
eligible facility.  The developer is eligible for DIF – Drainage credits 
after successfully executing a Credit/Reimbursement Agreement with 
the City Council.  The developer shall submit the latest City 
credit/reimbursement agreement to the City Engineer for execution 
with the City Council. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


44.  The developer shall submit to the City Engineer traffic control plans 
along Palomar Street, and McVicar Road to ensure the continued flow 
of traffic during construction. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 
Final Map or 


Encroachment 
Permit 


Engineering Dept. 


Public Works Dept. 


 


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
45.  Developer shall design and improve Lot J and K with Trail Head Park 


amenities in accordance with the City’s Parks Master Plan and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 
Final Map or 
Certificate of 


Occupancy of Lots 
adjacent to Streets 


A and B 


Engineering Dept.   


46.  Developer shall offer for dedication their recorded rights associated 
with the well site contiguous to Lot K. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 


Engineering Dept.  


Prior to the Issuance of Grading Permits 


47.  The developer shall submit a geotechnical soils reports to the City 
Engineer for review and approval prior to issuance of grading permit.  
The findings and recommendations shall reflect current conditions and 
the report shall be no older than one (1) year.  All grading shall be in 
conformance with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils 
reports as approved by City of Wildomar. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


48.  The developer shall obtain any and all easements and/or permissions 
necessary to perform the grading required for the project. A notarized 
letter of permission from all affected property owners or easement 
holders, or encroachment permit, is required for all off-site grading. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


49.  The project specific SWPPP and an Erosion/Sediment Control plan 
shall be approved by the City Engineer. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


50.  The Developer shall provide the Engineering Department evidence of 
compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES); obtain a construction permit from the State Water Resource 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
Control Board (SWRRCB); and, reference the WDID number on the 
improvement/grading plans. 


51.  The developer shall have obtained approval for the import/export 
location from the City of Wildomar. Additionally, if either location was 
not previously approved by an Environmental Assessment, prior to 
issuing a grading permit, a Grading Environmental Assessment shall 
be submitted to the Planning Director for review and comment and to 
the City Engineer for approval. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


52.  A licensed engineer shall prepare and submit a Water Quality 
Management Plan (WQMP) Applicability Checklist; determine if a WQMP 
is applicable for this project; and, sign and stamp the WQMP checklist 
with their license seal. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


53.  If the WQMP is required, an approved Final Water Quality Management 
Plan (WQMP), in conformance with the requirements of the San Diego 
and/or Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board.  Applicant 
shall confirm the watershed requirements relative to their project 
location shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to issuance of a 
grading permit.  All stormwater quality treatment devices shall be 
located outside of the ultimate public right of way.  The developer shall 
design the stormwater quality treatment devices to accommodate all 
project runoff, ensuring post-construction flows and volumes do not 
exceed pre-construction levels, in accordance with City of Wildomar’s 
Hydrology Manual, Stormwater Quality Best Management Practice 
Design Handbook, Improvement Standards, and to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer.  These BMPs shall be consistent with the Final 
WQMP and installed and maintained to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer.  The project shall use the following hydromodification criteria 
for the project site: “The runoff flow rate, volume, velocity, and duration 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
for the post development condition of the Priority Development Project 
do not exceed the pre-development (i.e. naturally occurring) condition for 
the 2 year, 24 hour and 10 year, 24 hour rainfall events.  This condition 
must be substantiated by hydrologic modelling acceptable to City of 
Wildomar.” 


54.  If the project location is within the Santa Ana River Watershed:  Prior to 
the issuance of a grading permit, the developer is to provide the 
appropriate documentation that will allow this project a waiver for 
mitigation volume related to the Lake Elsinore sub watershed of the 
Santa Ana Watershed.  Please note the City is not a permittee in the 
MS4 permit for the Santa Ana River Watershed (Lake Elsinore) and is 
governed only by the MS4 permit for the Santa Margarita Watershed, 
therefore the Applicant needs to provide evidence that this waiver has 
been approved by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board.  Otherwise volume has to be addressed. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


55.  A Grading Agreement and a Storm Water Management Facilities 
Agreement shall be approved by the City Engineer and/or City Council. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


56.  The developer shall prepare and submit a comprehensive drainage 
study and plan that includes, but is not limited to: definition with 
mapping of the existing watersheds; a detailed pre- and post-project 
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis of the project and project impacts; 
definition of the local controlling 100-year frequency water levels 
existing and with project; the proposed method of flow conveyance to 
mitigate the potential project impacts with adequate supporting 
calculations; any proposed improvements to mitigate the impacts of 
increased runoff from the project and any change in runoff; including 
quality, quantity, volume, and duration in accordance with City of 
Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Improvement Standards, and to the 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept.  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Specifically, the study will: 


a. Analyze the detention basin drainage area for a project using the 


Rational Method 100-year storm event for the pre-project and 


post-project. 


b. Analyze 4 hydrographs for the detention basin drainage area for 


a project using the Unit Hydrograph 100-year storm event for the 


1-hour, 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour storm durations for post-


project condition. 


c. Using the Unit Hydrographs determine which duration provides 


the highest flow rate. Adjust parameters such as lag time, flow 


line roughness coefficient or other parameters to calibrate Unit 


Hydrograph model to provide results similar to the Rational 


Method. 


d. Using the calibrated Unit Hydrograph for the detention basin 


drainage area perform basin routing analysis to demonstrate 


that the outflow is less than the pre-project Rational Method flow 


rate. 


57.  The developer shall show all easements per the Title Report to the 
satisfaction of Public Works.  Any conflict with existing easements 
resulting in the site being redesigned potentially requires a minor 
change or amendment approval by Planning Commission. 


Prior to the 1st 
Improvement Plan 


submittal 


Engineering Dept.  


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


58.  The developer/owner shall obtain a grading permit and/or approval to 
construct from the City Engineer. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
59.  Improvement plans shall be approved by the City Engineer and all 


improvements to be constructed shall be secured by the Developer. 
Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Engineering Dept. 


 


60.  The developer shall provide will serve letters from the appropriate 
water and sewer agencies. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept.  


61.  The developer shall provide approval letter from Fire Department for 
fire water service 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Fire Dept. 


 


62.  The developer shall install streetlights in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specification, Improvement 
Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City Ordinances and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Public Works Dept. 


 


63.  The developer shall install all street name signs at intersections 
adjacent to the project, public or private and/or replace street name 
signs in accordance with the City of Wildomar Standard Details and to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


64.  The developer shall annex into the CFD Services District to offset 
development related costs for maintenance and services. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


65.  The developer/applicant shall demonstrate that all development 
related fees, impact fees, and mitigation fees have been satisfactorily 
paid. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept.  


66.  The developer shall pay the appropriate impact mitigation fee to the 
Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District and 
provide the City receipt of payment. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept.  


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
67.  The developer shall pay all necessary impact and mitigation fees 


required.  These fees include, but are not limited to, fees associated 
with Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF), Quimby (parkland 
in-lieu) Fee, and City Development Impact Fees. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit or 


Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Building Dept.  


68.  The developer shall construct the stormwater quality treatment 
devices to accommodate all project runoff from in accordance with 
City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Stormwater Quality Best 
Management Practice Design Handbook, Improvement Standards, 
and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  All stormwater quality 
treatment devices shall be constructed outside of the ultimate public 
right of way. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Engineering Dept.  


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 


General Conditions 


1.  For residential areas, approved standard fire hydrants, located at each 
intersection, with no portion of any lot frontage more than a maximum 
of 500 feet from a hydrant.  Minimum fire flow for all residential 
structures shall be 500 GPM for a 1-hour duration at 20 PSI. 


On-Going Fire Department  


2.  All residential structures shall have fire sprinkler installed. On-Going Fire Department  


3.  The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall be installed 
and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material being placed on an individual lot.  Two 
sets of water plans are to be submitted to the Fire Department for 
approval. 


On-Going Fire Department  


4.  Fire apparatus access road and driveways shall be in compliance with 
the Riverside County Fire Department Standards.  Access lanes shall 


On-Going Fire Department  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
be constructed with a surface so as to provide all weather driving 
capabilities. 


5.  Blue dot retro-reflectors pavement markers on private, public streets 
and driveways to indicated location of the fire hydrant shall be per 
Standard 06-11. 


On-Going Fire Department  


6.  The Proposed project may have a cumulative adverse impact on the 
Fire Department’s ability to provide an acceptable level of 
service.  These impacts include an increase in the number of 
emergency and public service calls due to the increased presence of 
structures, traffic and population.  The project proponents/developers 
will be expected to provide for a proportional mitigation to these 
impacts via capital improvements and/or impact fees. 


On-Going Fire Department  


7.  Schedule A fire protection approved standard fire hydrants, (6”x4”x2 
½”) located one at each street intersection and spaced no more than 
500 feet apart in any direction, with no portion of any lot frontage more 
than 250 feet from a hydrant. Minimum fire flow shall be 1000 gpm for 
2 hour duration at a 20 psi. Hydrants shall also be located on the 
perimeter streets located at each street intersection with spacing of 
1000 feet. 


On-Going Fire Department  


8.  The water mains shall be capable of providing a potential fire flow 
1000 GPM for a 2-hour duration at 20 PSI residual operating pressure.  


On-Going Fire Department  


9.  The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall be installed 
and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material placed on an individual lot. 


On-Going Fire Department  


Prior to the Recordation of the Final Map 


10.  ECS map must be stamped by the Surveyors Office with the following 
note: Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall 


Prior to Map Fire Department  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
prepare and submit to the fire department for approval a fire 
protection/vegetation management that should include but not limited 
to the following items: a) Fuel modification to reduce fire loading. B) 
Appropriate fire breaks according to fuel load, slope and terrain. C) 
Non-flammable walls along common boundaries between rear yards 
and open space. D) Emergency vehicle access into open space areas 
shall be provided at intervals not to exceed 1500’. E) A homeowner’s 
association or appropriate district shall be responsible for maintenance 
of all fire protection measures within the open space areas. Any 
habitat conservation issue affecting the Fire Department fuel 
modification requirement shall have occurrence with the Responsible 
Wildlife and/or other Conservancy Agency. 


Recordation 


11.  The applicant or developer shall furnish one copy of the water system 
plans to the Fire Department for review. Plans shall be signed by a 
registered civil engineer, containing a Fire Department approval 
signature block, and shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing 
and minimum fire flow. Once plans are signed by the local water 
company, the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department for 
signature. 
 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Fire Department  


12.  ECS map must be stamped by the Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following note: Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a water 
system for fire protection must be provided, either: 1) a domestic water 
system with an approved fire hydrant within 600’ of the lot frontage 
(original letter only from the water purveyor) or 2) a private well system 
with a water storage tank of sufficient size, as approved by the 
Riverside County Fire Department. 
 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Fire Department  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
Prior to Issuance of Grading Permits 


13.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall prepare 
and submit to the fire department for approval a fire 
protection/vegetation management that should include but not limited 
to the following items: 
A) Fuel modification to reduce fire loading 


B) Appropriate fire breaks according to fuel load, slope and terrain 


C) Non-flammable walls along common boundaries between rear 


yards and open space 


D) Emergency vehicle access into open space areas shall be 


provided at intervals not to exceed 1500 feet 


E) A homeowner’s association or appropriate district shall be 


responsible for maintenance of all fire protection measures within 


open space areas. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading Permits 


Fire Department  


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


14.  The required water system, including all fire hydrant(s), shall be 
installed and accepted by the appropriate water agency and the 
Riverside County Fire Department prior to any combustible building 
material placed on an individual lot. Contact the Riverside County Fire 
Department to inspect the required fire flow, street signs, all weather 
surface, and all access and/or secondary. Approved water plans must 
be at the job site. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Fire Department  


15.  Prior to the release of your installation, site prep and/or building 
permit(s) from the Building Official, written certification from the 
appropriate water district that the required fire hydrant(s) are either 
existing or that financial arrangements have been made to provide 
them.  Also a map or APN page showing the location of the fire 


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Fire Department  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


McVICAR RESIDENTIAL PROJECT – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


Project No.: Change of Zone No. 09-0380 and TTM No. 32035 


APN: 380-040-005, 007, & 025 


City Council Approval Date for TTM 32035: 


January 11, 2017 


Tentative Tract Map Expiration Date: 


January 11, 2020 


Conditions of Approval 


Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring 


Verification 


(Date and 


Signature) 


 
hydrant and access to the property.  Only the original letter from the 
water district will be accepted. 
 


Prior to Final Inspection 


16.  Residential fire sprinklers are required in all one and two family 
dwellings. Plans shall be submitted to the Fire Department for review 
and approval prior to the fire sprinkler installation  Plans must be 
submitted in triplicate with current fees to the Fire Department for 
review and approval prior to the installation. Permit number, name of 
project must be on the plans by the job site address.  


Prior to Final 
Inspection 


Fire Department  


Prior to Final Occupancy 


17.  Prior to final for occupancy/building final you shall contact the 
Riverside County Fire Department to schedule an inspection for the 
items that were shown at the building permit issuance (i.e., access, 
addressing, water system and/or fuel modification). 


Prior to Final 
Occupancy 


Fire Department  


 
 
END 



























































Sheet 1 of 5


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT MAP NO. TTM 32035 DATE: 5/14/2021
PROJECT: TTM 32035


IMPROVEMENTS


Street/Drainage $ 1,096,955.93 $ $
*Flood Control $ 0.00 $ $
Water E.V.M.W.D. $ $ $


District Name


Sewer E.V.M.W.D. $ $ $
District Name


Total 1,096,955.93 $ $
Warranty Retention (10%) $


Construction items and their quantities, as shown on the attached sheets, are accurate for the improvements 
required to construct the above project and the mathmatical extensions, using City's unit 
costs, are accurate for determining bonding costs 


Above amounts do/do not include additional 20% for recordation prior to having signed plans
 (Ordinance 460, Section 10.3E).


Signature Date 


Sam Akbarpour 53038 6/30/2021
Name Typed or printed RCE# Exp. Date 


Civil Engineer's Stamp 


*Flood Control Construction Cost Estimate to be provided by Flood Control District.  Provide a copy of 
Flood Control District letter stating cost estmate. 


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.  Unit cost are to be as provided on 
"City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet."


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00.  Material and Labor Bond Amounts are 50%
of Performance Bond Amountss.  **100% for Flood Control items.


3. For Construction items not covered by "City of Wildomar Improvement Requirements Worksheet", 
Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction cost and use that cost.  If City of Wildomar 
Unit Costs are determined to be too low, in the opinion of the design engineer, the higher costs as
provided by the Design Engineer should be used. 


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE
SECURITY


(100% of Estimated 
Construction Costs) Construction Costs)


SECURITY 
(**50% of Estimated 


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


1,097,000.00
0.00
0.00


0.00


1,097,000.00
109,700.00


548,500.00


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT


AND PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION SHEET
CONSTRUCTION COST WORKSHEET


DESIGN ENGINEER'S CALCULATION OF IMPROVEMENT BONDING COSTS 


0.00
0.00


0.00


548,500.00


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


MATERIAL & LABOR 


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 2 of 8


 
UNIT


C.Y. $ 0.40 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 1.10 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 2.80 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 1.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 1.50 $ 0.00
S.Y. $ 2.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 1.00 $ 0.00
L.S. $ 300.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 3.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 7.50 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 25.00 $ 500.00


TON $ 78.00 $ 246,948.00
C.Y. $ 30.00 $ 55,830.00


Ton $ 600.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 0.90 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 15.00 $ 99,900.00
L.F. $ 17.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 8.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 10.00 $ 25,850.00
S.F. $ 6.00 $ 180,810.00
S.F. $ 8.00 $ 6,920.00
S.F. $ 6.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 9,000.00
C.Y. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


Type "C" Curb


Type "D" Curb


Handicapped Access Ramp


A.C. Dike (8")(incl. material & labor)


Metal Beam Guard Railing


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


0.00$$
2. Projects without a Grading Plan                                 
Road area and side slopes to daylight                     
Cut (c) =                 Fill (f) =


C.Y. 


(a.) Excavate and Fill 


20.00
1. Projects with Grading Plan                                  
Area x 0.50' (hinge point to hinge point)


ROADWAY EXCAVATION


Remove Headwall


Grinding A.C. , in place


(b.) Excavate and Export
(c.) Import and Fill
If balance, provide (a.) only, either cut or fill                
If export, provide (a.)&(b.) a = fill, b = cut - fill                        
If import, provide (a)&(c), a = cut, c = fill - cut                        
(Unit costs for (a),(b), & (c) are 20% of actual costs 
to assure that work will be corrected to eliminate 
hazardous conditions.)


P.C.C. Dip Section Std. 307


Multipurose Trial (1,600 SF)


Type "D-1" Curb


Relocate Mailbox


6,660 Curb and Gutter (Type A-6)


Structural Reinforcement Concrete


P.C.C. Drive Approach


2,585


9


P.C.C. Cross Gutter and Spandrels
P.C.C. Sidewalk


A.C. Dike (6")(incl. material & labor)


Barricades


1,861


865
30,135


Curb and Gutter (Type A-8)


Sawcut Exist. A.C. Pavement
Cold Plane A.C. Pavement


Remove Exist. Driveway & Conc. Channel


Remove Chain Link Fence


Remove A.C. Dike


20
Asphalt Concrete (100,510 S.F.)                                         (  
144 lbs/cu.ft)
Agg Base Class II ( S.F.)
Asphalt Emulsion (Fog Seal/Paint Binder)                    (1 
ton = 240 gals) (   S.F.)                                             apply at 
0.05+0.03 = 0.08 gal/SY


3,166


AC overlay (min. 0.10') (9,150 SF)


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 3 of 8


 
UNIT


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 80.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 5.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 300.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 800.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 500.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 6.50 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 6.50 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 200.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 45.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 50.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 55.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 60.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 67.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 75.00 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 80.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 60.00 $ 11,700.00
L.F. $ 80.00 $ 7,680.00
L.F. $ 85.00 $ 60,860.00
L.F. $ 90.00 $ 21,600.00
L.F. $ 100.00 0.00
L.F. $ 235.00 0.00
L.F. $ 130.00 0.00
L.F. $ 150.00 0.00
L.F. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 50.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 60.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 70.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 80.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 110.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 120.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,200.00 $ 8,800.00
EA. $ 4,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 7,800.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 12,000.00 $ 0.00


30" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


42" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
36" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


4
Catch Basin W=7'


60" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
Catch Basin W=4'


48" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
54" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


Catch Basin W=14'
Catch Basin W=21'


18" R.C. P. Or 21" x 15" RCPA 


30" R.C. P. Or 35" x 24" RCPA 
36" R.C. P. Or 42" x 29" RCPA 


18" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal
24" C.S.P. HDPE Or Equal


42" R.C. P. Or 49" x 33" RCPA 


54" R.C. P. Or 64" x 43" RCPA 
48" R.C. P. Or 57" x 38" RCPA 


Grouted Rip Rap ( 1 Ton ) Method B
Grouted Rip Rap ( 2 Ton ) Method B


60" R.C. P. Or 71" x 47" RCPA 


716


Rip Rap ( 1 Ton ) Method B
Rip Rap ( 2 Ton ) Method B


24" R.C. P. Or 28" x 20" RCPA 
195
96


Grouted Rip Rap ( 1/2 Ton ) Method B


Flat Outlet Drainage Structure Std 303


Private Drainage Structure Std 310


240


Rip Rap  ( 1/4  Ton ) Methob B


Grouted Rip Rap ( 1/4 Ton ) Method B


Rip Rap  ( 1/2  Ton ) Methob B


R.C. Box Culvert
Concrete  Channel


Terrace  Drain & Down Drain 


Cut Off Wall  ( Std 2' )


Interceptor Drain


A. C. Overside Drain


Concrete Bulkhead


Pipe Gate


Curb Outlet Drainage Structure Std 308


Slope Anchors for Pipes


Under Sidewalk Drain Std 309


Relocate Power Pole 
Street Lights (including conduit)


Relocate Fence


Utility Trench, one side (Edison, Telephone, Cable) (total 
length of Streets)
Chain Link Fence ( 6' )


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 4 of 8


 
UNIT


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


EA. $ 15,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,000.00 $ 9,000.00
EA. $ 3,700.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 12,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 12,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,700.00 $ 2,700.00
EA. $ 2,700.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00
EA. $ 2,700.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 600.00 $ 0.00
EA. 2,500.00 $ 0.00
L.F. 2.00 $ 0.00
EA. 1,500.00 $ 4,500.00
EA. 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00
EA. 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00
S.F. 2.00 $ 246.00


S.F $ 2.50 $ 0.00
EA. $ 100.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 275.00 $ 1,100.00
EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 1,000.00
EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 60.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 45.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3.75 $ 0.00
EA. $ 0.30 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 0.50 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 0.80 $ 0.00


S. F. $ 2.25 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 4.00 $ 0.00
EA 150,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. 100.00 $ 400.00
L.F. 1.40 $ 0.00
L.F. 1.10 $ 0.00
EA. 75.00 $ 0.00
L.F. 0.97 $ 130.95


Remove Traffic Stripes and Paint Markings


4 Street Name Sign


Delineator ( Class 2 )
Pavement Marker, Reflective


Object Marker - Modified Type "F" Delineator


8" Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe


Paint Traffic Stripe  (2 Coats )
Remove Barricade
4" Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe


12" Thermoplastic White Limit Line


Road Sign - Two Post


Remove, Sign, Salvage
Relocate Roadside Sign


Road Sign - One Post


Thermoplastic Channelizing Limit Line and Pavement 
Marking
Thermoplastic Cross Walk and Pavement Marking


135


Signal and Lighting


Double Yellow Centerline
4


Conc. Drop Inlet


Manhole  No.  1
Manhole  No.  2


Double Yellow Median Island
Thermoplstic Left Turn Arrow


3


1


Install Sign Mast Arm Hanger Method)
4


Delineator ( Class 1 Type F)


SIGNING, STRIPING AND SIGNALS


1


12" Dia. Rip Rap


2-6" PVC Drain Pipe


Stop Pavement Marking


Adjust Water Valve to Grade ( if no water plan )


1


Type X Inlet
Junction Structure  No. 1
Junction Structure  No. 2


24"x24" Catch basin 


Headwall


123


Install Sign ( Strap and Saddle Bracket Method)


Catch Basin W=28'


Manhole  No.  3
Manhole  No.  4


Junction Structure  No. 6
Transition Structure  No. 1


3


Transition Structure  No. 2
Transition Structure  No. 3


1


Adjust MH to Grade ( if no sewer plan )


Headwll &Wingwall


Type IX Inlet


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 5 of 8


 
UNIT


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 


UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY ITEM


$ 0.00
$


S. F. $ 4.00 $ 0.00
S. F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 100.00 $ 0.00


S. F. $ 3.50 $ 0.00
C.Y. $ 27.00 $ 0.00
EA $ 7,000.00 $ 0.00
S.F. $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00


A. $ 761,774.95
B. $ 152,354.99


C.  $ 914,129.94


D. $ 182825.99
E. Streets/Drainage Total (C + D) $ 1096955.93


Street Trees ( 15 Gallon )


Electric Meter


LANDSCAPING


Landscape and Irrigation


Water Meter


Maintenance Walk STD 113
Colored Stamped Concrete


Landscape Fill Material


Streets/Drainage Total (A + B)


Administrative Contingency (            % x A)
NOTE: Use 20% for TR and PM                               Use 5% 
for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL Cases


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR TO HAVING 
SIGNED PLANS
( ORD.460, SEC. 10.3E)


 Subtotal 


20% x C


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 6 of 8


 
UNIT


L.F. $ 13.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 16.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 21.00 $ 68,250.00
L.F. $ 27.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 31.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
EA. 4" Gate Valve $ 650.00 $ 0.00
EA. 6" Gate Valve $ 800.00 $ 0.00
EA. 8" Gate Valve $ 850.00 $ 8,500.00
EA. $ 1,050.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,250.00 $ 0.00
EA. Fire Hydrant (6") Super $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. Fire Hydrant (6") Standard $ 2,300.00 $ 25,300.00
EA. 4" Misc. Fittings $ 150.00 $ 0.00
EA. 6" Misc. Fittings $ 200.00 $ 0.00
EA. 8" Misc. Fittings $ 250.00 $ 0.00
EA. 10" Misc. Fittings $ 280.00 $ 0.00
EA. 12" Misc. Fittings $ 320.00 $ 0.00
EA. Blowoffs (4") $ 1,600.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 475.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 200.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 1,850.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 1,500.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 1,000.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 1,000.00
EA. $ 1,100.00 $ 52,800.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 5,000.00


$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00


A. $ 163,350.00
B. $ 32,670.00


C. $ 196,020.00


D. $ 39,204.00
E. $ 235,224.00


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


3,250


13


 
WATER IMPROVEMENTS


UNIT AMOUNT 


18" Waterline 


4" Waterline


QUANTITY ITEM


10


11


2
48


Adjust Water Valve to Grade 
Relocation of Blowoff


1" Water Service
1" Air Release


8" 90 Degree Bend
8" 45 Degree Bend


Air and Vacuum Valve. 


Service Connections


2
2


Water Total (A + B)


8" Tee3


6" Waterline
8" Waterline
10" Waterline 
12" Waterline 


10" Gate Valve 
12" Gate Valve 


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR TO 
HAVING SIGNED PLAND 
( ORD.460, SEC. 10.3E)


Subtotal
Administrative Contingency (        % x A)


20% x C
Water Total (C + D)


NOTE: Use 20% for TR and PM                               Use 
5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL Cases


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 7 of 8


 
UNIT


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 30.00 $ 89,010.00
L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00
L.F. $ 40.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 4,000.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 30.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 500.00 $ 500.00
L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00
EA. $ 3,500.00 $ 24,500.00
EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 30,000.00
EA. $ 250.00 $ 12,000.00
EA. $ 200.00 $ 1,000.00


$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00
$ $ 0.00


A. $ 157,010.00
B. $ 31,402.00


C. $ 188,412.00


D. $ 37,682.40
E. $ 226,094.40Sewer Total (C + D)


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR TO 
HAVING SIGNED PLAND ( ORD.460, SEC. 10.3E)
20% x C


Sewer Total (A + B)


Subtotal
Administrative Contingency (              % x A)
NOTE: Use 20% for TR and PM                               Use 
5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL Cases


Backwater Valve


8" V. C. P.
10" V. C. P.
12" V. C. P.
Standard Manhole 
Drop Manhole
Cleanouts 


5


6


 Chimneys
Adjust M.H. to grade


 Sewer  Y's


Concrete Encasement 
4' Dia Manhole
5' Dia Manhole


1


7


UNIT AMOUNT 


6" V. C. P.
4" V. C. P.


48


2,967


QUANTITY ITEM


4" Sewer Lateral


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


COST


 
SEWER  IMPROVEMENTS


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008







Sheet 8 of 8


  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE: ##


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 914129.94


$ 196,020.00


$ 188,412.00


$ 9141.30


$ 3844.32


$ 12985.62


$ 259.71


$ 13245.33


shown below, then following deposit schedule will apply, otherwise pay the full deposit.


A. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              NOTE: Use 1% 
for TR, 6% for PM and 6.5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL


II. Water (Line C from Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION


CITY OF WILDOMAR PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT


PLANCHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION SHEET


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


TTM 32035


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


B. Water and Sewer (1% x II and III.) (Do not include for Tract Maps)


C. Total Plan Check Deposit (A + B)


SURCHARGE FEE CALCULATION


COMMENTS


Note: If Plan Check Deposit calculated in "Line E" is less than the minimum as 


For TR (Schedule. A, B, C, D) and PM (Schedule. E, F, G) - minimum $2,000


D. Surcharge Fee (2% x C)


For PM (Schedule H, I) - minimum $2,000.00


For PP/CU/PU/MS/VL - minimum $2,000.00


MINIMUM PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS


E. Total Plan Check Deposit and Surcharge Fee


COST SUBDIVISION IMP
UNIT COSTS 3/01/2011


FORMAT 3/01/2008























 


 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.9 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


 
TO: Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Tract No. 31667 - Boulder Creek Joint Community Facilities Agreement  
  


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council Authorize the City Manager to execute the Joint 
Community Facilities Agreement (JCFA) between City of Wildomar, Community Facilities 
District No. 2017-2 (CFD No. 2017-2) of the Lake Elsinore Unified School District, and 
Beazer Homes Holdings, a Delaware limited liability company. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Beazer Homes Holdings, LLC is the developer of Tract Map No. 31667, an approved 108-
lot residential subdivision located at the northeast corner of McVicar Street and Grand 
Avenue, in the City of Wildomar.  Tentative Tract Map No. 31667 was approved by the 
County of Riverside on November 15, 2005.  On September 8, 2021, the Final Map, 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvements Agreements for 
Tract No. 31667 were approved by the City Council.   
 
In addition to residential lots, Tract No. 31667 includes four open space lots, and right-of-
way along the development’s frontage on Grand Avenue and McVicar Street.  The 
developer will be constructing McVicar culvert and Wildomar channel improvements, 
street improvements on Grand Avenue, McVicar Street and Palomar Street and traffic 
signal improvement on Palomar Street and McVicar Street intersection.  The project 
developer has approved mass grading and rough grading plans, as well as a grading 
agreement with the City.  The Developer is currently processing offsite improvement plans 
and subdivision improvement plans with the City.  The City’s Public Works/Engineering 
Department is currently reviewing these plans.  An aerial image of the project site and 
surrounding area is provided in Attachment A.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Joint Community Facilities Agreement  
On June 14, 2017, per the request of the Developer, Lake Elsinore Unified School District 
(School District) formed CFD No. 2017-2.  CFD No. 2017-2 was formed to finance the 
city facilities, EVMWD facilities, and school facilities.  Funding of CFD No. 2017-2 will be 
through the levy of special taxes within the CFD and issuance of bonds per the School 







  
 
Facilities Funding and Mitigation Agreement.  A copy of this agreement is provided in 
Attachment B for reference. The residential development will be required to pay 
development impact and capital improvement fees and charges.  These funds will be 
used to construct public facilities and will be paid from funds from CFD No. 2017-2.  The 
JCFA (Attachment C) authorizes CFD No. 2017-2 to finance the construction of city 
facilities and specifies the responsibilities of the Developer, City, and CFD No. 2017-2 in 
financing the City facilities to be funded by City charges. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The proposed JCFA has no fiscal impact to the City.  Time spent by City staff on the 
completion of items set forth in the JCFA will be reimbursed by the Developer.   
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York  Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager  City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Aerial Image of Tract Map 31667 – Boulder Creek 
Attachment B – School Facilities Funding and Mitigation Agreement  
Attachment C – Joint Community Facilities Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Neva

Image



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT A



Neva

Text Box

Aerial Image of Tract Map 31667(highlighted in yellow)



Neva

Polygon







Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT B



Neva

Text Box

School Facilities Funding and Mitigation Agreement







SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING AND MITIGATION AGREEMENT


BY AND AMONG THE LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC


This SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING AND MITIGATION AGREEMENT
("Agreement") is executed to be effective as of June 14,2017 ("Effective Date") by and among the


LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, a California public school district


("District") and BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,


successor by conversion to Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation ("Owner").


Owner and District are sometimes singularly referred to herein as a "Party" and collectively as the


"Parties."


A. Owner is the owner of certain real property consisting of approximately 35.2 acres


as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto, depicted in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and


incorporated herein by this reference ("Property"). The Property is located within the boundaries


of the District and within the boundaries of the City of Wildomar ("City"), in Riverside County


("County"), California.


B. The Property is subject to Tentative Tract Map No. 31667 approved by the City and


is currently expected to be developed with approximately lü8 single-family, detached homes


("SFDU") (SFDUs may also be referred to generally as "DUs").


C. As of the Effective Date, District has not, pursuant to the provisions of Education


Code Section 17620, et seq. and Government Code Section 65995, et seq. ("State School Facilities


Act"), adopted a current School Facilities Needs Analysis ("SFNA") pursuant to which it may


impose an alternative Level 2 School Fee ("Level 2 Fee") on residential property, pursuant to the


provisions of Government Code Section 65995.5. The District may adopt a SFNA and Level2 Fee


in the future, and an alternative Level 3 School Fee ("Level 3 Fee"), if applicable, pursuant to


Government Code Section 65995.7. The Parties acknowledge that in the absence of this


Agreement and the formation and authorization of the CFD (defined below), as of the Effective


Date, the Property would be subject to the payment of fees authorized by Government Code


Section 65955 in the amount of $3.48 per square foot of assessable space ("Levell Fees") and


could be subject to Level 2 Fees, and Level 3 Fees if applicable.


D. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to provide for; (1) the


formation of proposed Community Facilities District No. 2017-2 of the District ("CFD"), the


proposed boundaries of which are depicted on Exhibit "C," attached hereto and incorporated


herein by this reference, the authorization of the levy of special taxes within the CFD ("Special


Taxes") and the authorization of the issuance of bonds, or equivalent securities, secured by the


Special Taxes ("Bonds") to be issued by, or on behalf of, the CFD, pursuant to the Mello-Roos


Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (being Government Code § 53311 et seq.) (the


"Act"), (2) funding to the District, through the levy of Special Taxes and issuance of Bonds, for


the acquisition, construction, and/or equipping of school facilities including elementary, middle







and high school facilities (collectively herein, the "School Facilities"), (3) funding for the


acquisition and construction of City fees and facilities to be owned, operated or maintained by the


City ("City Facilities") through the levy of Special Taxes and issuance of Bonds and (4) funding


for the acquisition and construction of sewer and water facilities ("EVMWD Facilities"),


collectively, with the City Facilities, the "Other Facilities") to be owned, operated or maintained


by Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District ("EVMWD") through the levy of Special Taxes and


issuance of Bonds.


G. The Parties acknowledge that as the Owner of the Property, Owner may convey lots


to other entities that may construct DUs on the Property (each a "Merchant Builder"). The Owner


acknowledges that, subject to the terms set forth herein, each Merchant Builder shall be a


successor in interest to the Owner with respect to those obligations of Owner specified herein,


including, without limitation, the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless


with respect to disclosure of the formation of the CFD and the levy of Special Taxes to purchasers


of homes constructed within the portions of the Property owned by each of them, respectively.


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and terms and conditions set


forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is


hereby acknowledged, District and Owner hereby agree as follows:


1. Mitigation Obligation.


1.1 Determination and Calculation of School Mitigation Obligation. Full


satisfaction of the contractual obligations applicable to the impacts to the District's schools and


school facilities resulting from the development of the Property, and as agreed to herein, shall be


deemed by District and Owner to occur for each DU to be developed within the Project upon the


receipt by the District of the applicable Mitigation Payment, as defined herein, for each such


corresponding residential unit.


In consideration for the District's willingness to finance the Mitigation Payment


contractual obligations for the Project and the costs of certain public facilities ofEVMWD and the


City, through the formation of the CFD, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, and in light of other


actions set forth herein concerning the proposed CFD, Owner has offered to satisfy school


mitigation provisions described herein upon the terms and conditions described herein.


As to each DU the "Mitigation Payment" shall be determined by the District at the time


Bonds are issued for which such DU is being used in the sizing ofthe Bonds or at the time Applied


Surplus Special Taxes (as defined herein) are made available to fund the full Mitigation Payment


for a DU as described in Section 4.1 herein. As of the date of this Agreement, the Mitigation


Payment for each DU shall be equal to (i) the total Assessable Square Feet (as defined herein) of


such DU, as determined by reference to the building permit application or as used in the sizing of


the Bonds, multiplied by (ii) the "Mitigation Payment Amount per Square Foot", which is defined


as 150% of the then-current Level I Fee or Level II Fee authorized by S.B. 50, whichever is


greater, authorized to be imposed by the School District at the time such Mitigation Payment is


calculated. At the time of this Agreement the Mitigation Payment per Assessable Square Feet is


$5.22 ($3.48 (Level I) x1.50).


2







Owner and School District acknowledge that this amount may increase or decrease


based on the adoption of updated School Facilities Needs Analysis by the School District. In
the event that the Level I Fee or Level II Fee is no longer valid, the Parties shall agree on an


equivalent amount to determine the Mitigation Payment for a residential unit.


1.2 CFD Formation.


1.2.1 Formation of CFD. As the owner of 100% of the taxable property in


the boundaries of the CFD, Owner agrees to fully cooperate in proceedings conducted by the


District, pursuant to the Act, to establish the CFD, authorize the levy of Special Taxes within the


CFD pursuant to a Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes ("RMA") in substantially


the form attached hereto as Exhibit "F" and authorize indebtedness in the maximum amount of


$9,000,000. This Agreement shall be binding upon and enforceable against the CFD upon


completion of the formation of the CFD.


1.2.2 City Joint Community Facilities Agreement. District and Owner


shall reasonably cooperate in entering into ajoint community facilities agreement with City (" City


JCFA") in satisfaction of the requirements of Government Code Section 53316.2 in order to


authorize the financing of City Facilities through the CFD. The Parties understand and


acknowledge that such joint community facilities agreement, and the application of Bond proceeds


thereunder, are subject to the limitations imposed by California Government Code Section 8855


and that the District and the CFD have no control over the implementation thereof, or lack thereof,


by other public agencies.


1.2.3 EVMWD Joint Community Facilities Agreement. District and


Owner shall reasonably cooperate in entering into a joint community facilities agreement with


EVMWD ("EVMWD JCFA") in satisfaction of the requirements of Government Code Section


53316.2 in order to authorize the financing of EVMWD Facilities through the CFD. The Parties


understand and acknowledge that such joint community facilities agreement, and the application


of Bond proceeds thereunder, are subject to the limitations imposed by California Government


Code Section 8855 and that the District and the CFD have no control over the implementation


thereof, or lack thereof, by other public agencies.


1.2.4 Levy of Special Taxes. Pursuant to the RMA, District shall levy


Special Taxes on each assessor's parcel within the CFD that is classified as "Developed Property"


at the "Assigned Annual Special Tax" (as such terms are defined in the RMA) rate prior to and


following the issuance of Bonds for the CFD. Such Special Taxes levied on Developed Property


and collected each fiscal year in excess of the amount required (i) to pay principal and interest on


Bonds of the CFD, (ii) pay CFD "Administrative Expenses" (as defined in the RMA) and (iii)


replenish the reserve fund for the Bonds to the applicable reserve requirement shall be referred to


as "Surplus Special Taxes." Surplus Special Taxes collected within the CFD shall be available to


the District to fund School Facilities for the full term for which the Special Taxes are authorized to


be levied, at the sole discretion of the District, except if designated as Applied Surplus Special


Taxes as described and defined in Section 4.1 herein and made available to fund City Facilities


and/or EVMWD Facilities.


3







1.3 Upfront Contribution; Certificates of Compliance; Reimbursement of


Mitigation Payments. Within ten (10) business days following the completion of the proceedings


to establish the CFD, the Owner shall provide District with $239,718 ("Upfront Contribution") to


be used by the District to fund School Facilities, at the sole discretion of the District. The Upfront


Contribution shall not be eligible for reimbursement pursuant to Section 4.4.2 nor will the Upfront


Contribution be utilized in any way to offset or reduce the School Fee Requirement as defined


herein.


Furthermore, immediately upon execution of this Agreement by the Parties, the completion


of the proceedings to establish the CFD, and the District's receipt of the Upfront Contribution, the


District shall, as requested by Owner or a Merchant Builder, issue its written certification required


by Owner or a Merchant Builder to obtain building permits for the construction ofDUs within the


Property from the City, or other governmental entity that requires such certification pursuant to


Education Code Section 17620(b) ("Certificate of Compliance"). For purposes of this Agreement,


the "completion of the proceedings to establish the CFD" shall mean that the Governing Board of


the District has confirmed the results of a landowner election approving the special taxes and


authorized indebtedness for the CFD. To the extent the Owner or any other Merchant Builder has


paid Level 1 Fees for DUs within the Property prior to the completion of the proceedings to


establish the CFD, the full amount paid shall be returned to the Owner and the Merchant Builder


within ten (10) business days following the date of the completion of the proceedings to establish


the CFD.


A cash deposit with the District equal to the applicable Mitigation Payment (a "Deposit"),


or a letter of credit ("LC") in lieu of such Deposit, shall only be required to be made in order to


receive a Certificate of Compliance for a DU to be constructed within the CFD under the


circumstances described below in this paragraph. If the first series of Bonds of the CFD have not


been issued by the time of issuance of Certificates of Compliance for 85% of the DUs expected to


be constructed within the CFD (the "85% Threshold") and the failure or inability to issue the


Bonds is not the result of an action or determination of the District, including, without limitation, a


determination by the District that it does not wish to issue Bonds at that time or does not expect to


use the proceeds of the Bonds for School Facilities within the period of time required by federal


tax law in order for the Bonds to be tax-exempt (a "District Action"), a Deposit or LC shall be


required to be made in order to receive each Certificate of Compliance in the CFD thereafter until


the first series of Bonds are issued. Upon the issuance of the first series of Bonds of the CFD all


Deposits shall be returned to the payor or a party designated by the payor and all LCs will be


released. This Agreement is not precedent-setting for any other development, and is only a


mechanism for mitigating the impact of development ofthe Property on the School Facilities of the


School District.


Each LC provided pursuant to this Section 1.3 shall be an irrevocable standby letter of


credit, issued by a bank with a minimum Moody's long-term rating of "A" and a short-term rating


of "P-l" that is acceptable to District and that names District as beneficiary. The LC shall be


maintained by Owner or the applicable Merchant Builder and renewed as necessary until the first


series of Bonds or Additional Bonds are issued. Each such LC shall secure payment of the


Mitigation Payments until such time as the Bonds or Additional Bonds are issued. Owner or the


applicable Merchant Builder shall be entitled at any time to increase the face amount of the LC,


provide a replacement LC or post additional LCs. An LC may be drawn upon by the District under


4







each of the following circumstances: (i) if it has not been extended or replaced within five (5)


business days prior to its expiration or (ii) if Bonds have not been issued for the CFD within


eighteen (18) months following the issuance of the Certificate of Compliance for the final DU


within the CFD and the failure to issue the Bonds is not the result of a District Action.


1.4 Square Footage Credit and True Up Payment. As each series of Bonds of


the CFD are issued, the District shall calculate the total Assessable Square Feet ofDUs within the


CFD for which the Mitigation Payments are deemed satisfied (the "Square Footage Credit") as


follows:


(i) If applicable to pay the School Fee Requirement pursuant to


Section 4.1, the District shall determine the total amount of Applied Surplus Special Taxes


collected by the District within such CFD and available for School Facilities through the date of


issuance and sale of the Bonds.


(ii) The District shall add the amount calculated in (i), if any, to


the amount of Net Proceeds (defined below) of the Bonds that are deposited in the School


Facilities Account (defined below) pursuant to Section 4.3 below.


(iii) The total determined in (ii) shall be divided by the then-


current Mitigation Payment Amount per Square Foot as of the date of issuance and sale of the


Bonds and the result shall be the Square Footage Credit.


(iv) If a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds have been


escrowed, the total Net Proceeds shall not include any escrowed proceeds and the result in (iii)


shall be the Square Footage Credit as of the date of issuance and sale of the Bonds.


(v) If and when Additional Bonds are issued for the CFD, or


funds are released from escrow and available to fund School Facilities, steps (i), (ii) and (iii) shall


be repeated and the result added to the prior amount of Square Footage Credit. In doing so, the


amount of Applied Surplus Special Taxes available for School Facilities, if any, for purposes of


step (i) shall be the amount collected by the District since the last escrow release or the prior


issuance of Bonds, as applicable. For purposes of step (ii), the pertinent amount added to the


amount in step (ii) shall be the amount released from escrow and available to fund School


Facilities or the Net Proceeds of the Additional Bonds, as applicable. For purposes of step (iii), the


Mitigation Payment Amount per Square Foot shall be the amount in effect as of the date of the


escrow release or the date of the issuance and sale of the Additional Bonds, as applicable.


At the time of issuance and sale ofthe final series of Bonds for the CFD, if the total Square


Footage Credit is less than the total Assessable Square Feet of DUs for which Certificates of


Compliance have been issued within the CFD, the Owner shall pay to District in cash, within thirty


(30) days after the issuance of such final series of Bonds, an amount equal to the then current


Mitigation Payment Amount per Square Foot multiplied by the total Assessable


Square Feet of the DUs for which Certificates of Compliance have been issued in excess of the


Square Footage Credit (the "True Up Payment"). In addition, in such situation payment of the


applicable Mitigation Payment shall be required for all DU s for which Certificates of Compliance


are requested following the issuance of the final series of Bonds. For purposes of this Section 1.4,


5







the final series of Bonds shall be those Bonds that, together with any outstanding prior Bonds, have


been sized based upon the projected buildout of all DUs in the CFD. If a portion ofthe proceeds of


the final series of Bonds have been escrowed, the True Up Payment shall be calculated and paid


within thirty (30) days following the final escrow release.


2. No Impairment of Contract.


(a) The Parties are entering into this Agreement for the purpose of creating a


stream of special tax revenues that will be available to the District and the CFD to pay directly the


costs of acquisition, construction and/or equipping of School Facilities and Other Facilities and to


pay debt service on Bonds and other indebtedness of the CFD, the proceeds of which will be used


to pay the costs of acquisition, construction and/or equipping of School Facilities and Other


Facilities. Owner and District hereby acknowledge and agree (i) that any reduction or termination


of the Special Taxes by exercise of the initiative power or the exercise of the discretion of the


District or the CFD would constitute a substantial impairment of the special tax revenue stream


that Owner and District intend to create for the purpose of providing an assured source of funding


for construction, acquisition and/or equipping of School Facilities and Other Facilities, and (ii) that


this Agreement is being entered into, and the Special Taxes are being imposed upon the Property


pursuant to the RMA in accordance with existing laws relating to the imposition of fees. and


charges asa condition of property development and such Special Taxes are being incurred as an


incident of the voluntary act of development of the Property. To the fullest extent permitted by


law, Owner hereby waives any right to exercise the initiative power that may be authorized in


California Constitution Article XIIIC, Section 3, to reduce or appeal the Special Taxes that have


been imposed on the Property pursuant to this Agreement and the RMA.


(b) Support for Established Special Taxes ofCFD.


A. Intention. The Parties desire to fully support the continuation of the


Special Taxes once enacted.


B. Actions by Owner for Protection of Existing Authorized Special


Taxes. In order to preserve, support and protect the Special Taxes of the CFD, once enacted,


Owner, on behalf of itself and its respective successors and assigns (subject to the provisions of


Section 5.6, hereof), hereby agree as follows:


(i) Upon receiving actual knowledge or information or any


actual circulation of any Petition (as defined herein), or similar document, to alter, amend, reduce,


shorten the term of and/or eliminate the Special Taxes previously authorized and currently


existing the Owner shall provide written notice to the District (as provided for in Section 5.18)


within three (3) business days of receiving such information or Owner receiving actual


knowledge of such a Petition. For purposes of this Agreement, "actual knowledge" of the


existence or circulation of such a Petition shall mean actual knowledge thereof by an officer of


Owner at the offices of Owner, or its successors or assigns (as shall be applicable).


(ii) Owner, and its successors, assigns, subsidiaries and partners


shall not sign, support, contribute to or otherwise approve of any such Petition.


6







(iii) In the event that any such Petition is submitted to the


District/CFD, the Owner, its successors, assigns, subsidiaries and partners shall not agree to any


waiver of time for shortening the period leading up to any election which may be called as a result


of the submission of such Petition pursuant to the Act, unless specifically authorized to do so in


writing by an authorized representative of the District.


(iv) In the event any such Petition is submitted to the District


pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the District shall promptly provide notice to Owner pursuant


to Section 5.18, relative to any public hearing which may be conducted to receive information,


public comments and/or protests to the provisions ofthe Act with regard to Petition(s) so filed with


the District or any related proposal. In such event, each Owner agrees that it shall provide a


personal appearance by an officer, employee or representative of Owner to provide verbal and


written opposition to any such Petition effort unless released from such obligation by an


authorized representative of the District.


C. Mitigation Conditions Remain in Place. The Parties acknowledge


that a consequence of actions to repeal or reduce the existing Special Taxes may result in a


reduction or elimination of available Special Tax revenues to provide for the payment of the


Mitigation Payments as set forth herein. In such event, the Parties expressly agree that the


requirements of Section I.l shall remain applicable unless such action was the result of a


Discretionary Petition or other discretionary action by the Board.


D. DiscretionarylNon-Discretionary Petitions Definition. For


purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meaning(s):


(i) "Discretionary Petition" means any petition, written


circulation, ordinance or other documentïs), whether circulated pursuant to the Act or other


California law, which proposes, requires or demands that action(s) be taken to reduce, modify,


eliminate or shorten the term of the Special Taxes over which the District and/or CFD have, under


then-existing California law, within their statutory authority or power to determine whether, or


not, such action(s) are submitted to any voter approval, including, but not limited to, the provisions


of Government Code Section 53338(a), or any successor section thereto which maintains or retains


such discretionary authority.


(ii) "Non-discretionary Petition" mean any petition, written


circulation, ordinance or other documentïs), whether circulated pursuant to the Act or other


California law, including, but not limited to, Article XIIIC of the California Constitution, which


proposes, requires or demands that action(s) be taken to reduce, modify, eliminate or shorten the


term of the Special Taxes over which the District and/or CFD, as applicable, have, under


then-existing California law, no power or statutory authority or power to determine whether, or


not, such action(s) are submitted to any voter approval.


(iii) "Petition" means any Discretionary Petition or


Non-discretionary Petition.


E. Limitation as to Application. The provisions of this Section 2(b)


shall apply within the CFD until the earlier of:


7







(i) The collection of Applied Surplus Special Taxes and the


issuance of Bonds in an amount sufficient to payor otherwise satisfy the Mitigation Payments for


the CFD; or


(ii) The date all DUs within the CFD have been sold to


Homeowners.


3. Waiver of Right to Protest. Execution ofthis Agreement and any and all payments,


responsibilities, obligations or consideration made by Owner as set forth herein are made by


Owner without protest. Owner and District acknowledge that Government Code Section


66020(d)(1) provides that local agencies, including school districts, shall provide a project


applicant notice, in writing, at the time of imposition of fees, dedications, reservations or other


exactions, a statement of the amount of fees, or a description of the dedications, reservations or


exactions and a notification that the 90-day approval period in which the applicant may protest


such fees has begun. Owner agrees that it has voluntarily entered this Agreement and knowingly


and willing waive all rights of protest under Government Code Sections 66020, 66021 or 66022, or


any other provision of law with respect to school fees and protest rights. Owner agrees that in the


event that a 90-day approval period cannot be waived, this Agreement includes a description of the


exactions which have been required of Owner with respect to the development of the Property.


Owner further acknowledges that the 90-day approval period described above, in the event that


such a waiver cannot be waived, will commence as ofthe date of this Agreement.


Owner agrees that the payments provided for herein which are in excess of any amounts


payable pursuant to California statute, law or regulation, if any, are not fees, charges, dedications


or any other requirements within the meanings of such statute, law or regulation, but are


completely voluntary payments made by Owner to assist School District in providing the School


Facilities and to enhance the School Facilities and the marketability of the Property.


4. Issuance of Bonds of the CFD.


4.1 Timing ofIssuance. The District and Owner will make a good faith effort to


complete the issuance and sale of the initial series of Bonds for the CFD within one hundred eighty


days following the Owner's written request notifying the District that twenty-two (22) DUs within


the CFD have been sold to individual homeowners (the "Initial Issuance Threshold"), and in


accordance with the District's Community Facilities District Financing Goals and Policies adopted


pursuant to Resolution No. 2008-09-034 and dated November 20, 2008, a copy of which is


attached hereto as Exhibit "D" (the "Goals and Policies") and this Agreement. Nothing herein shall


preclude the issuance of Bonds of the CFD earlier than the Initial Issuance Threshold, however, if


the District elects to do so. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each series of Bonds of the CFD
shall be issued pursuant to sound municipal financing practices and in consideration of
then-existent tax-exempt bond market conditions. The District, the CFD and the Board
shall at all times have discretion as to factors relating to the Bonds in the prudent
management of the issuance of tax-exempt securities under laws and conditions then
applicable, including, but not limited to, then-applicable marketing conditions. The District
and the CFD will not issue Bonds in a non-standard issuance methodology or format.


8







Prior to the Initial Issuance Threshold, all Surplus Special Taxes collected


within the CFD shall be available to the District for any authorized purpose, as determined by the


District in its sole discretion, and shall not apply against the School Fee Requirement (as defined


herein). If Bonds have not been issued by the Initial Issuance Threshold because the Owner, or its


successors or assigns, have failed to cooperate in the issuance of the Bonds or otherwise comply


with the requirements of the issuance of Bonds as described herein, all Surplus Special Taxes


collected within the CFD shall continue to be available to the District for any authorized purpose,


as determined by the District in its sole discretion and shall not apply against the School Fee


Requirement.


If Bonds are not issued by the Initial Issuance Threshold for the CFD due to


the District's refusal to issue Bonds, even though such issuance would be consistent with sound


municipal financing practices and could be issued under then current bond market practices, then,


until Bonds of the CFD are issued, all Surplus Special Taxes collected within the CFD after the


date of the Initial Issuance Threshold and prior to the issuance of Bonds ("Applied Surplus Special


Taxes") shall be used for the same purposes and in the same priority specified in Section


4.3(v)-(ix) below. In addition, Applied Surplus Special Taxes shall be used for purposes of


reducing the School Fee Requirement.


Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Section 4.1, and


notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, all Surplus Special Taxes shall be


available exclusively to the District for School Facilities.


4.2 Amount of Issuance. Prior to the issuance of any series of Bonds, Owner


shall submit to the District a written request to proceed with the sale of Bonds. Such request shall


identify the existing and projected DUs and the Assessable Square Feet of such DUs for which the


Mitigation Payments are to be funded ("Identified Units"). The amount of Bonds to be issued shall


be such that the maximum projected assigned Special Tax revenues upon buildout of the Identified


Units plus the assigned Special Tax revenue from Identified Units in prior series of Bonds, less


priority administrative expenses of $30,000 in the initial year and escalating at two percent (2%)


each fiscal year thereafter, is not less than 110% of the total annual debt service on all outstanding


Bonds for the CFD, including the Bonds to be issued, in any fiscal year. At the time of sale of any


series of Bonds, as provided for in the official statement for the Bonds, the District shall determine


the total Mitigation Payments for the Identified Units owed to District by multiplying the Owner's


total estimated Assessable Square Feet for all Identified Units by the then-current Mitigation


Payment Amount per Square Foot ("School Fee Requirement"). Each Bond issue shall include up


to 18 months capitalized interest, or a lesser amount as requested by the Owner and agreed upon by


the District.


4.3 Allocation of Bond Proceeds. The CFD may issue the Bonds in multiple


series. The priority for application of the proceeds for each series of the Bonds shall be as follows:


(i) First Priority: To allocate an amount of capitalized interest for the
Bonds, not to exceed 18 months;


(ii) Second Priority: To deposit to the reserve fund an amount sufficient


to fund the reserve requirement (as defined in the fiscal agent agreement) for such series of Bonds;


9







(iii) Third Priority: To pay the costs of issuing the Bonds and


reimbursing to Owner the amount of the Formation and Issuance Deposit (defined below),


together with all other un-reimbursed costs incurred by the District to such date in connection with


forming the CFD and issuing the Bonds, as authorized by law;


(iv) Fourth Priority: To allocate funds to pay the anticipated costs of


administering the CFD until Special Taxes in a sufficient amount to pay such costs is collected in


an amount not to exceed a total of $30,000;


(v) Fifth Priority: To deposit into a "School Facilities Account" an


amount equal to the School Fee Requirement for such series of Bonds, less, if applicable, any


Applied Surplus Special Taxes as determined pursuant to Section 4.1 available to fund School


Facilities; and


(vi) Sixth Priority: To deposit into a "City Facilities Account" an


amount requested in writing by Owner, not to exceed an amount equal to (i) $5,000 less than the


amount deposited in the School Facilities Fund pursuant to the Fifth Priority above plus any


Applied Surplus Special Taxes available to fund School Facilities minus (ii) any Applied Surplus


Special Taxes available to fund City Facilities. This deposit is expressly dependent on the


execution and delivery of the City JCFA satisfactory to the involved Parties. If this does not occur,


no such deposites) shall be made from proceeds of the Bonds. Furthermore, Owner acknowledges


that fiscal agent, acting under the terms of the fiscal agent agreement applicable to such Bonds,


shall thirty-one (31) months from the date of the issuance of Bonds (or series of Bonds, as


applicable), notify the-District, in writing if there are any bond proceeds then remaining in the City


Facilities Account and the amount of bond proceeds then remaining. Within thirty (30) business


days following receipt of such notice, the District shall determine whether the CFD will reasonably


expect to levy an Annual Special Tax (as defined in the RMA) on Approved Property or


Undeveloped Property (as such terms are defined in the RMA) in the subsequent fiscal year, or any


future fiscal year thereafter, pursuant to the terms of the RMA. Such determination shall take into


consideration any Assessor's Parceles) (as defined in the RMA) expected to be classified as


Developed Property in the subsequent fiscal year if a residential building permit has been issued


for such Assessor's Parcel at the time of the determination. The District shall promptly thereafter


notify the Owner, in writing, of: (i) the notice provided above by the fiscal agent, (ii) the District's


determination as set out in the prior sentences, and (iii) the District's intention to direct transfers of


such residual funds as set forth below. The District shall then direct to the fiscal agent, as to such


then-remaining bond proceeds held in the City Facilities Account, that:


(1) if the District reasonably expects the CFD to


levy an AIIDual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during the subsequent


fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, such remaining funds shall be applied to redeem


the then-outstanding Bonds, but only to the extent necessary to eliminate the District's expectation


for the CFD to levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during


the subsequent fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, with any residual funds remaining


after such redemption to be applied under (2) below; or


(2) if the District does not expect the CFD to


levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during the subsequent


10







fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, or if residual funds have been applied in


accordance with (1) above in an amount necessary to eliminate the District's expectation for the


CFD to levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during the


subsequent fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, such remaining funds shall be


transferred to the School Facilities Account.


No such transfer shall occur under (1) or (2) above until at least sixty (60) calendar days


following the notice to the Owner, as referenced above, have elapsed.


If proceeds of the Bonds are transferred from the City Facilities Account to the School


Facilities Account in accordance with (2) above, an additional Square Footage Credit shall be


calculated in accordance with the same methodology as set forth in Section 1.4 herein based upon


the amount transferred and using the Mitigation Amount per Square Foot in effect as of the date of


transfer of the bond proceeds.


(vii) Seventh Priority: To deposit into a "EVMWD Facilities Account"


an amount requested in writing by Owner, not to exceed an amount equal to (i) $5,000 less than the


amount deposited in the School Facilities Fund pursuant to the Fifth Priority above plus any


Applied Surplus Special Taxes available to fund School Facilities minus (ii) any Applied Surplus


Special Taxes available to fund EVMWD Facilities. This deposit is expressly dependent on the


execution and delivery of the EVMWD JCFA satisfactory to the involved Parties. If this does not


occur, no such deposites) shall be made from proceeds of the Bonds. Furthermore, Owner


acknowledges that fiscal agent, acting under the terms of the fiscal agent agreement applicable to


such Bonds, shall thirty-one (31) months from the date of the issuance of Bonds (or series of


Bonds, as applicable), notify the District, in writing if there are any bond proceeds then remaining


in the EVMWD Facilities Account and the amount of bond proceeds then remaining. Within thirty


(30) business days following receipt of such notice, the District shall determine whether the CFD


will reasonably expect to levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped


Property in the subsequent fiscal year, or any future fiscal year thereafter, pursuant to the terms of


the RMA. Such determination shall take into consideration any Assessor's Parceles) expected to be


classified as Developed Property in the subsequent fiscal year if a residential building permit has


been issued for such Assessor's Parcel at the time of the determination and shall also take into


consideration any remaining bond proceeds within the City Facilities Account planned to be


utilized to redeem bonds in accordance with Section 4.3(vi)(1) herein. The District shall promptly


thereafter notify the Owner, in writing, of: (i) the notice provided above by the fiscal agent, (ii) the


District's determination as set out in the prior sentences, and (iii) the District's intention to direct


transfers of such residual funds as set forth below. The District shall then direct to the fiscal agent,


as to such then-remaining bond proceeds held in the EVMWD Facilities Account, that:


(1) if the District reasonably expects the CFD to


levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during the subsequent


fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, such remaining funds shall be applied to redeem


the then-outstanding Bonds, but only to the extent necessary to eliminate the District's expectation


for the CFD to levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during


the subsequent fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, with any residual funds remaining


after such redemption to be applied under (2) below; or


11







(2) if the District does not expect the CFD to


levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during the subsequent


fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, or if residual funds have been applied in


accordance with (1) above in an amount necessary to eliminate the District's expectation for the


CFD to levy an Annual Special Tax on Approved Property or Undeveloped Property during the


subsequent fiscal year, or in any future fiscal year thereafter, such remaining funds shall be


transferred to the School Facilities Account.


No such transfer shall occur under (1) or (2) above until at least sixty (60) calendar days


following the notice to the Owner, as referenced above, have elapsed.


If proceeds of the Bonds are transferred from the EVMWD Facilities Account to the


School Facilities Account in accordance with (2) above, an additional Square Footage Credit shall


be calculated in accordance with the same methodology as set forth in Section 1.4 herein based


upon the amount transferred and using the Mitigation Amount per Square Foot in effect as of the


date of transfer of the bond proceeds.


(viii) Eighth Priority: To deposit into the School Facilities Account, City


Facilities Account and EVMWD Facilities Account an equal portion of the remaining proceeds.


Proceeds deposited into the EVMWD Facilities Account shall not exceed a reasonable estimate of


the authorized EVMWD Facilities costs as outlined in the applicable JCFA. Proceeds deposited


into the City Facilities Account shall not exceed a reasonable estimate of the City Facilities costs


as outlined in the applicable JCFA.


(ix) Ninth Priority: To deposit into the School Facilities Account all


then-remaining proceeds.


For purposes of this Agreement, the portion of the proceeds of each series of Bonds


remaining after funding the first four priorities above shall be referred to as the "Net Proceeds."


4.4 Advance Funding of Formation and Issuance Costs.


4.4.1 Formation and Issuance Deposit. The District may request in


writing that Owner advance funds as are necessary to pay the District's legal, consulting and


incidental expenses related to the formation of the CFD and authorization of the Special Taxes and


bonded indebtedness of the CFD, and the Owner shall pay the requested funds to the District


within thirty days of such request. The sum of (i) all such advances and (ii) any deposits Owner is


required to provide EVMWD and the City in connection with the preparation of the EVMWD


JCFA and the City JCFA, respectively ("JCF A Deposits"), shall be referred to herein as the


"Formation and Issuance Deposit." Notwithstanding the above, the total JCFA Deposits to be


included in the Formation and Issuance Deposit shall not exceed $12,000 and shall be subject to


verification by the District, which such verification may include, but is not limited to, the


requirement of the Owner to provide copies of checks and/or payment records evidencing the


amount of JCFA Deposits.


12







4.4.2 Reimbursement. The District shall take all actions necessary to


satisfy the existing provisions of Government Code Section 53314.9 or any similar statute


subsequently enacted to permit reimbursement to Owner of the Formation and Issuance Deposit,


including, but not limited to, inclusion of the proposal to reimburse such funds to Owner in both


the Resolution of Intention and the Resolution of Formation for the CFD. Such reimbursement


shall be made solely from the proceeds of Bonds, when and if such become available, and not from


other sources of funds as described below.


4.5 Total Tax Obligation. The Owner shall not petition, request, support or


vote in favor of the levy of any tax, including a special tax or any assessment on all or any portion


of the Property, of a financing district that is established after the date of this Agreement that


would cause or result in the Total Tax Obligation (defined below) on any DU within the CFD to


exceed 2.0% of the actual or projected sales price of such DU in the fiscal year in which such DU


is first classified as Developed Property in accordance with the RMA applicable to the DU. For


purposes of this Agreement, the term "Total Tax Obligation" shall mean, with respect to a parcel,


in the fiscal year in which the parcel is first classified as Developed Property in accordance with


the RMA ("Subject Year"), the sum of (a) the ad valorem taxes levied or projected to be levied on


such parcel in the Subject Year, (b) all special taxes levied or reasonably expected to be levied on


such parcel in the Subject Year, including, without limitation, the Special Taxes (based on either


the assigned or back-up amounts thereof, whichever is being levied or reasonably expected to be


levied), (c) all installments of special assessments for the Subject Year, and (d) all other taxes, fees


and charges imposed by a governmental entity that are payable with respect to such parcel in the


Subject Year and the payment of which is secured by such parcel and included on the real property


tax bill. To the extent the Owner seeks to increase the amount of the Special Taxes or to increase


or impose any other tax, fee or charge that would increase the Total Tax Obligation through a


financing district that is established after the date of this Agreement, the Owner or its successor(s)


or assign(s), as applicable, shall certify to the District, with adequate supporting detail, that the


prices/values of the DUs constructed or to be constructed within the Property will sustain such


increase without the Total Tax Obligation exceeding the maximum as set forth herein.


4.6 Disclosure.


4.6.1 Compliance by Owner with Disclosure Laws. The Owner (and any


Merchant Builders subject to the terms thereof) shall comply with all applicable legal requirements


for disclosure to private, individual homebuyers and other parties purchasing any portion of the


Property owned by the respective seller as to the CFD and its Special Taxes. The Owner shall


provide any and all disclosures required pursuant to any provision of California Government Code


Section 53311 et seq. or other applicable law, to be made to prospective or actual purchasers oflots


or parcels owned by it within the Property, as to the existence of, terms and conditions of, and/or


payments required in connection with, the CFD and/or its Special Taxes. The Owner shall provide


such disclosures to the prospective or actual purchaser prior to the opening of escrow for the


applicable lot or parcel.


4.6.2 Form of Disclosure. If the District becomes aware of any improper


or inadequate disclosure of the CFD or the Special Taxes by the Owner, the District may require


that the Owner provide to the District an adequate disclosure notice for every lot within the CFD


13







owned by it as a condition to the District issuing any additional Certificates of Compliance for the


remaining DUs within the portion of the Property owned by the Owner, as applicable.


4.6.3 Assumption of Obligation by Merchant Builder. In addition to being


responsible pursuant to any other provision of this Agreement, all of the Owner's successors and


assigns with respect to any portion of the Property, including, without limitation, the Merchant


Builders, shall expressly assume in writing, the disclosure, indemnification and other obligations


set forth in Sections 4.6.1, 4.6.2 and 4.6.4 of this Agreement. In the agreements pursuant to which


it will sell portions of the Property to Merchant Builders, Owner shall require that all Merchant


Builders similarly comply with all such applicable legal requirements and unconditionally assume


such disclosure, indemnification and other obligations. To the extent the Owner obtains the


express written agreement of a Merchant Builder to unconditionally assume the disclosure,


indemnification and other obligations set forth in this Section 4.6, and provides a copy of such


written assumption to the District, the Owner shall thereupon be released from such obligations to


the extent of such assignment.


4.6.4 CFD Bonds Disclosure-Owner Indemnification. Owner agrees, in


connection with the issuance of each series of Bonds for the CFD in which the Owner owns


taxable property, to certify as of the date on the preliminary official statement and the final official


statement, respectively, that all of the information with respect to the Owner and its affiliates, as


defined in the fiscal agent agreement, regarding the proposed development of the applicable


portion of the Property, ownership of the applicable portion of the Property, the Owner's


development plan, the Owner's financing plan, the Owner's lenders (if any), and the Owner's


contractual arrangements (excluding therefrom any information regarding the appraised valuation


of the applicable portion of the Property, statements pertaining to the appraisal, and information


which is identified as having been provided by a source other than Owner or an Affiliate), is true


and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statements of material fact or


omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements


therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.


The Owner, as an obligation of this Agreement, shall promptly take all


commercially-reasonable actions at the request of the District to assist with issuance of each series


of Bonds for the CFD. This expressly includes, but is not limited to, provision of information


needed to comply with the applicable Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and


Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MRSB") initial and continuing disclosure obligations.


This expressly includes complying with SEC Rule I5c2-I2 ("Rule I5c2-I2") in connection with


the issuance and sale of each series of Bonds so long as Owner, or its successor(s) or assignes), is


an owner of taxable property within the CFD.


The Parties recognize that California SB 165, Chapter 535 of the Statutes of2000, became


effective on January 1, 2002. SB 165 provides disclosure and reporting requirements for a local


bond measure that is the subject of voter approval and which would provide for the sale of bonds


by a local agency. Owner agrees to fully and completely cooperate with School District in meeting


the requirements of SB 165 in addition to any other disclosure requirements set forth hereunder.


14







In addition, solely as to the information indicated in the preceding paragraph concerning


the Owner, its affiliates and the development of the applicable portion of the Property, and subject


to the limitations and exclusions set forth in the preceding paragraph, the Owner agrees to


indemnify and hold harmless, to the extent permitted by law, the District and their officials and


employees, and each person, if any, who controls any of the foregoing within the meaning of


Section 15 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or of Section 20 of the Securities and


Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, against any and all losses, claims, damages, or liabilities,joint


or several, to which such indemnified party may become subject under any statute or at law or in


equity or otherwise, and shall reimburse any such indemnified party for any reasonable legal or


other expense incurred by it in connection with investigating any claims against it and defending


any actions insofar as such loses, claims, damages, liabilities or actions arise out of or are based


upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact with respect to such


information or the omission or alleged omission with respect to such information, in the final


official statement, in any amendment or supplement to such final official statement or in any


semi-annual report or other disclosure statement provided by or on behalf of the Owner in


connection with the Bonds, required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements


therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. This indemnity


provision shall not be construed as a limitation on any other liability which Owner may otherwise


have to any indemnified party, provided that in no event shall Owner be obligated for double


indemnification.


4.7 State Funding. District agrees that State funds are an integral funding


source for the construction of School Facilities. Accordingly, as to all eligibility for State funds


available to School District based upon eligibility derived from the Property ("Project


Eligibility"), School District may take reasonable steps available to it to pursue and obtain State


funds for such purposes. In the event that District receives State funds, neither Owner and/or its


successors or assigns, shall be entitled to any refund or reduction in Special Taxes as a result of


said State funds.


5. Miscellaneous Provisions.


5.1 Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. All of the Recitals stated in this


Agreement are accurate and all Exhibits attached hereto or referenced herein are hereby


incorporated into this Agreement as fully operative and effective parts hereof.


5.2 Entire Extent of Mitigation Obligation. The payment of the Mitigation


Payments by proceeds of the Bonds and Special Taxes that the District is to receive from the CFD,


or by True Up Payments from Owner or Mitigation Payments from Merchant Builders, pursuant to


this Agreement, constitute the entire extent of Owner's and each Merchant Builder's obligation to


provide the funds necessary for the District to obtain the School Facilities needed to house District


students residing within the Property and shall be in lieu of Levell Fees, Level 2 Fees, Level 3


Fees or other payments or requirements that District might otherwise be authorized to impose


under existing or future law.


5.3 No Further Exactions. Except to the extent provided herein, the District


shall not, under any circumstances:


15







Ca) Exercise any power or authority under current or future law


to levy or impose an exaction of land, goods, money, or services, whether denominated a fee,


charge, dedication, or otherwise, against any development of the Property;


(b) Require, request, or cooperate with the County, the City, or


any other governmental entity to exercise any power or authority to levy or impose an exaction of


land, goods, money, or services, whether denominated a fee, charge, dedication, or otherwise, for


the District's benefit;


Cc) Oppose the development of any portion of the Property or


any governmental approval in accordance with the existing entitlements, whether legislative or


administrative, on any basis whatsoever and upon request by Owner shall indicate to the City its


support for such development; or


Cd) Sponsor or require the formation of a community facilities


district for any of the Property other than the CFD, except for a community facilities district or


multiple community facilities districts which together include all of the land within the District's


boundaries, without the express, written consent of Owner, which consent may be given or


withheld in Owner's sole discretion. The District may accomplish any general obligation bond


election that it desires on a District-wide basis or may form one or more school facilities


improvement districts that do not include Property.


5.4 Mutual Cooperation. Unless this Agreement provides to the contrary, the


District and Owner shall, within ten calendar days of receipt of a written request from another


party, perform any acts and prepare, sign, deliver, file, and record any documents reasonably


required to obtain the goals, and to satisfy the conditions, contained in this Agreement. This


includes, but is not limited to, providing the requesting Party with a written statement certifying


that:


Ca) This Agreement is unmodified and in full force and effect,


or, ifthere have been modifications, this Agreement, as modified, is in full force and effect, stating


the date and nature of any modification; and


(b) There are no current uncured defaults under this Agreement,


or, if there are any, the dates and natures of the defaults.


5.5 Transfer and Encumbrance. In their sole discretion, Owner may sell or


encumber the portion of the Property it owns, or any portion thereof, in an improved or


unimproved condition, through any means including, but not limited to, deed, mortgage, deed of


trust, or other security device. Except as provided in Section 5.6, no such sale, transfer, or


encumbrance of any portion of the Property shall affect Owner's obligations under this


Agreement. Neither this Agreement nor any breach of this Agreement shall defeat, invalidate,


diminish, or impair the lien or priority of any deed, mortgage, deed of trust, or other security


device.


5.6 Assignability of Mitigation Agreement; Successors. All of the covenants,


stipulations, promises, and agreements contained in this Agreement by or on behalf of, or for the


benefit of, either of the parties shall bind or inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the


16







respective parties. Owner shall not transfer or delegate any of Owner's obligations under this


Agreement (collectively, the "Mitigation Requirements") without the prior written consent of


District, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned or delayed ("Permitted


Delegation"). No Permitted Delegation ofthe Owner's obligations hereunder, in whole or in part,


shall be valid until the assignee thereof shall have expressly assumed such obligations in writing


and such written assumption shall have been provided to the District. Upon the effective date of


such Permitted Delegation, the obligations described in the instrument of transfer shall be


transferred to and assumed by the transferee and Owner shall be relieved of those obligations.


Owner (and Owner's successor( s)) may assign this Agreement, or any or all of such party's rights


or obligations under this Agreement, to an "Affiliate" of such party (or to a lender who has


advanced funds for development of the Property, as additional security), without the need to obtain


any consent of District (except to the extent to which such assignment relieves Owner of any of its


obligations under this Agreement, for which the consent of the District shall be required, which


consent shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned or delayed). As used herein, an


"Affiliate" shall mean (a) any entity in which the assigning party has a direct or indirect ownership


interest of fifty percent (50%) or more; or (b) any entity that directly, or indirectly through one or


more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the assigning


Party, where the term "control" shall mean the power to direct the management of such entity


through voting rights, ownership or contractual obligations. The conveyance or transfer of


portions of the Property to Merchant Builders or to non-residential owners, users or Owners shall


not operate to transfer or impose an obligation to perform any of the obligations by any such


Merchant Builder or to non-residential owner, user or Owner, which may only occur pursuant to an


express Permitted Delegation. Notwithstanding anything herein that may be construed to the
contrary, this Agreement shall not be binding upon or inure to the benefit of any owner of a
completed dwelling unit constructed and sold within the Property (each a "Homeowner"),
and under no circumstance may any Homeowner, in that capacity, be deemed or construed
as a successor or assign of the Owner or any Merchant Builder with respect to this
Agreement. At close of escrow for each DU constructed on the Property, this Agreement shall


automatically terminate as to such DU without further action of any Party hereto. Subject to the


foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective successors,


assigns or transferees, whether such succession, assignment or transfer is by operation of law or


otherwise.


5.7 Recordation of Memorandum of Agreement. This Agreement shall


constitute a covenant running with the land, and, upon execution of this Agreement, Owner and


District shall execute, and District shall record, a Memorandum of this Agreement against the


Property, as set forth in Exhibit "E" hereto.


5.8 Indemnification Regarding Sales to Merchant Builders. As noted above, the


Owner may sell all or any portion of the Property to one or more Merchant Builders or to another


third party successor. The Owner hereby agrees, as to the Property, to defend the District and the


CFD, with respect to any claims, actions and other proceedings, and to indemnify and hold the


District and the CFD harmless against and from any and all judgments, damages, liabilities, costs


and expenses (including, but not limited to, legal fees, costs and expenses) arising from or related


to: (i) any sale of any portion of the Property to such Merchant Builder or other party; (ii) any


claim or action by a Merchant Builder or other purchaser of any portion of the Property related to


either the agreement for such purchase or any obligation assumed by the Owner pursuant to this


17







Agreement; or (iii) any other agreement between the Owner and any Merchant Builder or other


party.


5.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not be deemed or


construed as benefiting or providing any right to any third party. The Parties have entered into this


Agreement solely for the benefit of the District and Owner. Other than the District and Owner, and


their assignees as described in Section 5.6 above, no third person shall be entitled, directly or


indirectly, to base any claim or to have any right arising from, or related to, this Agreement.


5.10 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and


understanding concerning the funding of School Facilities as to the Property and replaces all prior


negotiations and proposed agreements, written or oral, except as they are included in this


Agreement. The District and Owner acknowledge that none of the other Parties nor their agents


nor attorneys have made any promise, representation, or warranty whatsoever, express or implied,


not contained herein to induce the execution of this Agreement and acknowledge that this


Agreement has not been executed in reliance upon any promise, representation, or warranty not


contained herein.


5.11 Interpretation Guides. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been


prepared by the Parties jointly, and no ambiguity shall be resolved against any Party on the


premise that it or its attorneys were responsible for drafting this Agreement or any provision


hereof. The captions and headings set forth herein are for convenience only and in no way


establish, define or limit the scope or intent of any Sections, Subsections, or other provisions of


this Agreement. Any reference herein to a Section or to a Subsection, unless specified otherwise,


shall be a reference to a Section or Subsection of this Agreement.


5.12 Amendments Must Be In Writing. This Agreement may not be modified


except by a writing approved and signed by all Parties.


5.13 Acknowledgment of Independent Investigation. Each Party hereby


acknowledges that it has had the opportunity to conduct an independent investigation of the facts


concerning the development ofthe Property, the impacts that students residing within the Property


will have on the District's School Facilities, and the costs of housing those students.


5.14 No Termination Due To Change In Law. The Parties intend that this


Agreement shall provide for the complete mitigation of all impacts, direct and cumulative, from


development of the Property on the District's ability to provide adequate educational opportunities


to every student within the District's boundaries. No development or change in the development


of the Property, nor any governmental approval or change in any governmental approval relating


to any portion of the Property, shall constitute a sufficient basis for any modification or


termination ofthis Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected by: (a) any


existing applicable law; (b) any subsequent legislation enacted by the State acting through the


legislative or initiative process; or (c) any subsequent judicial decisions related to the matters


provided for in this Agreement.


18







5.15 Dispute Resolution. The District and Owner desire to resolve as quickly as


possible any disputes as to the meaning of any portion of this Agreement, the validity of any


determination or calculation, or the rights or obligations of the District or Owner pursuant thereto.


It is the intent of the Parties to attempt to resolve any differences arising from this Agreement


through mediation prior to the initiation of litigation. In the event of any disagreement over the


meaning or application of this Agreement, the Parties shall first attempt to resolve the matter


informally. Should that prove unsuccessful, any Party may ask for mediation. A neutral mediator


from the State Mediation and Conciliation Service or the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation


Service ("JAMS") shall be appointed to hear each side in an informal setting, and to render an


advisory recommendation. Any such mediation costs shall be equally shared by the Parties to the


mediation. If the Parties fail to resolve any disputes through mediation, then any such disputes


shall be resolved by binding arbitration conducted by a mutually agreed-upon retired judge of the


Riverside County Superior Court. If the disputing Parties are unable to agree on the arbitrator


within thirty days of the receipt of a request for arbitration, they shall request that the presiding


judge of the Riverside Superior Court designate one. The disputing Parties shall each pay one-half


the cost ofthe arbitration and each shall be responsible for its own attorneys' fees and costs as to


any such arbitration.


5.16 Default; Cure; Remedies. A breach of, or default under, this Agreement


("Default") by a Party shall not exist until the Party asserting a Default ("Non-Defaulting Party")


provides written notice to the Party alleged to be in Default ("Defaulting Party") specifying the


nature of the Default and the actions, if any, to be taken by the Defaulting Party to cure or remedy


the Default ("Default Notice"). The Defaulting Party shall have thirty (30) days from receipt ofthe


Default Notice within which to cure the Default (the "Cure Period") and, if it fails to do so within


that period, it shall be deemed in Default, and the Non-Defaulting Party may exercise any rights or


remedies available under this Agreement or by law (including the right to specifically enforce this


Agreement). "Default" used herein shall have the meaning of any material or substantial failure by


a party to perform its obligations or responsibilities under this Agreement. Minor or technical


breaches or deviations from the terms of the Agreement that do not materially affect the rights or


obligations of the parties shall not constitute a Default. In the event Owner fails to perform its


obligations hereunder, or otherwise materially breaches one or more provisions of this Agreement,


and such failure remains uncured following issuance of a Default Notice by District, the District


may withhold Certificates of Compliance from Owner or any Merchant Builder constructing DUs


until such time as Owner cures such Default or the Owner provides a Deposit or LC in the amount


of the Mitigation Payment. Such Deposit and LC shall be handled in accordance with Section 1.3


above. Notwithstanding the other provisions of Section 5.15 in the event that Owner is in breach


of its obligations under any continuing disclosure obligation undertaken by Owner in connection


with the issuance of any series of Bonds, the remedies available to enforce events of default set out


in such continuing disclosure obligation shall govern.


5.17 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and all rights and obligations


arising out of it shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any


mediation, arbitration, litigation or other proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be


conducted only in the County of Riverside.


19







5.18 Notices. All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in


writing and may be delivered in person (by hand delivery or professional messenger service) to


either Party or may be sent by registered or certified mail, with postage prepaid, return receipt


requested or delivered by Express Mail of the U.S. Postal Service or Federal Express or any other


courier service guaranteeing overnight delivery, charges prepaid, or may be transmitted by


facsimile transmission and addressed as follows:


To Owner: Beazer Homes Holdings, LLC


310 Commerce, Suite 150


Irvine, CA 92602


Attention: Division President


with a copy to: O'Neil LLP


19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1050


Irvine, CA 92612


Attention: John P. Yeager, Esq.


Telephone No.: (949) 798-0722


Facsimile No.: (949) 798-0511


To District: Lake Elsinore Unified School District


545 Chaney Street


Lake Elsinore, CA 92530-2723


Attention: Assistant Superintendent,


Building Support Services


Telephone No.: (951) 253-7000


Facsimile No.: (951) 253-7009


with copies to: Cooperative Strategies


8955 Research Drive


Irvine, CA 92618


Attention: Benjamin Dolinka


Telephone No.: (949) 250-8300


Facsimile No.: (949) 250-8301


Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo


12800 Center Court Drive, Suite 300


Cerritos, California 90703


Attention: Andreas Chialtas, Esq.


Telephone No.: (562) 653-3460


Facsimile No.: (562) 653-3333


Any such notice sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, shall be


deemed to have been duly given and received seventy-two (72) hours after the same is so


addressed and mailed with postage prepaid. Notices delivered by overnight service shall be


deemed to have been given twenty-four (24) hours after delivery of the same, charges prepaid, to


the U.S. Postal Service or private courier. If any notice is transmitted by facsimile transmission or


similar means, the same shall be deemed served or delivered upon confirmation of transmission


20







thereof. Any notice or other document sent by any other manner shall be effective only upon actual


receipt thereof. Any Party may change its address for purposes of this paragraph by giving notice


to the other Party as provided herein.


5.19 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts,


which, taken together, shall constitute one original document.


5.20 Survival. Each obligation of Owner herein to indemnify, defend and


hold-harmless the District and the CFD, with respect to any incidents, acts or omissions occurring


prior to termination hereof, including, without limitation, as related to disclosure requirements of


Section 4.6.1, shall survive termination of this Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate upon


satisfaction of each of the following conditions: (i) issuance of a Certificate of Compliance for the


final DU within the CFD; (ii) the issuance of the final series of Bonds for the CFD; and (iii) the


disbursement of all funds from the Other Facilities Accounts.


5.21 Due Authority of Signatories. Each person signing this Agreement warrants


and represents that he or she is legally-entitled to enter into this Agreement, or has been authorized


by appropriate action of the Party he or she represents to enter into this Agreement on behalf of


such Party.


5.22 Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective


unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the party against whom


enforcement of a waiver is sought.


5.23 Force Majeure. In the event of changed conditions, changes in local, state or


federal laws or regulations, floods, delays due to strikes, inability to obtain materials, civil


commotion, acts of terrorism, fire, acts of God, or other circumstances which substantially


interfere with carrying out the development of the Property or with the ability of a Party to perform


its obligations under this Agreement, and which are not due to actions on the part of the Owner or


the District and are beyond the reasonable control of the Owner and the District, each of the Owner


and the District agrees to bargain in good faith to modify this Agreement as may be necessary to


achieve the goals and preserve the original intent of this Agreement.


5.24 Section Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are for


convenience and identification only and shall not be deemed to limit or define the contents to


which they relate.


5.25 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement, and all


performances required hereunder shall be completed within the time periods specified. Any failure


of performance shall be deemed as a material breach of this Agreement.


[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]


197086.1


21







IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the


Effective Date.


LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT,
a California public school district


::e:D~
lis: Superintendent


BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability


company, successor by conversion to Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., a


Delaware corporation


By: _


Name: ---------------------------
Title: _







IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the


Effective Date.


LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT,
a California public school district


By:. __


Name:, __


SHOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability


r by conversion to Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., a


Its: -I+- __


company,


Delaware


Name:. L~eno~n~a~rd~S.~D~u~n~n--.--
- Bealel Homes


Division President
Title.],......_'_..-,-""""""",,,,,,,,,,,,==._:_::!••=-,=-..=....::::.:.-.~~~,.::..:::..._:::.-:=-=:: ..... .)







EXHIBIT "A"


TO SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING
AND MITIGATION AGREEMENT


DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY


Assessor's Parcel Numbers 380-060-007and 380-060-008 of the County of Riverside, consisting


of 35.2 acres of real property located in the City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of
California.


A-l







EXHIBIT "B"


TO SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING


AND MITIGATION AGREEMENT


DEPICTION OF PROPERTY


l f ¡
I 1 ~~~ ;
• .1 l


I l ..øœ. 3 ¡L_~----'------'·-__·'- ..__. ~_l_______ P.a .. 42:ni '


--,,·--...-- ...-- .........- ...--t..----...--- .w_ ........,_,_ __ .J
1Il1J)(JI.IAR C!fANNEl


I


I i
• I


I I
. I


! TR-26122 M.
I
'"'-- ...... - ..... - .o- __ . ...


1>-1


_ii
----- I


------------......,i
u. I~


83117-11 If!!


¡~
------------------------·----------------r---------JL-----r.-----------.------------~ r-----------------


( MI' 117411fM HIla ¡ I I"li¡m&e 'PY MØ 'I l PM smi
¡i'oWa l ¡ PAltCI!L 2 l l'ARca It: PØCE1 2 : l
I J I J ; :


i ..,I14) : t


! i:i I i :
i


INDEX MAP


B-1







EXHIBIT "C"


TO MITIGATION AGREEMENT


Form of Boundary Map of CFD


C-l







SHEET 1 OF 1 BOUNDARY MAP OF PROPOSED BOUNDARIES OF


LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2


RIVERSIDE COUNTY


STATE OF CALIFORNIA


(1) Filed in the office of the Cieri< of


the Governing Board of the Lake


Elsinore Unified School District this


__ day of ,20_


o


Virqo Way_
Clerk of the Governing Board, Lake


Elsinore Unified School District, State


of California


380-060-008


380-060-007


(2) I hereby certify that the within map


showing the boundaries of Community


Facilities District No. 2017-2,


Riverside County, State of California,


was approved by the Governing Board


of the Lake Elsinore Unified School


District at a regular meeting thereof,


held on the day of


____ -', 20_ by its Resolution


No.2016-17- .


ø
~
~CL
~ro ~----------------------------------_f~
cro Clerk of the Governing Board, Lake


Elsinore Unified School District, State


of California


(3) Filed this day of


__ ---:---:-_ 20_, at the hour of


___ o'clock _m, in Book __ of


Maps of Assessment and Community


Facilities Districts at Pages __ , and


as Instrument No. ,


in the County Recorder of Riverside


County, State of California.McVicar Street I
LEGEND County Recorder of the County of


Riverside


Peter AldanaCl Proposed Boundaries for Community Facilities District No. 2017-2


Assessor's Parcel Boundary


nnn-nnn-nnn Riverside County Assessor's Parcel.Number
Prepared by:


Cooperative Strategies lLC


Reference is hereby made to the Assessor


maps of the County of Riverside as of


June 1, 2017 for an exact description of


lines and dimensions of each parcel.







EXHIBIT "D"


TO MITIGATION AGREEMENT


COPY OF LEUSD ADOPTED CFD GOALS AND POLICIES


D-l







November ~O.2008


LAKE ELSINORE ~IFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
. :FINANCING GOALSAND ·POLICIES







COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
FINANCING GOALS AND POLICIES


Table of Contents


STATUTORY REQUIREMENT l


DISTRICT AND GOVERNING BOARD DISCRETION 1


FACILITIES AND SERVICES ELIGIBLE FOR CFD FINANCING 1


CFD FINANCING PRIORITIES 2


INITIATION OF CFD FORMATION AND FINANCING PROCEEDINGS 2


REQUIREMENTS FOR REAL·PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 3


EQUITABLE ALLOCATION AND MAXIMUM AMOUNTS OF SPECIAL TAXES ,4


CREDIT QUALITY FOR ISSUANCE OF CFD BONDS .4


CRITERIA FOR APPRAISALS 7


DISCLOSURE TO PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF PROPERTY 8


PRIORITY ATTENDANCE ACCESS POLICY 8







COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
FINANCING GOALSAND POLICIES


STA TUTORY REQUIREMENT


Government Code Section 53312.7 requires that a local agency consider and adopt local


goals and policies for use of the Mello-Rocs Community Facilities Act of 1982 ("Mello-Roos


Act") prior to initiating proceedings to form any community facilities district ("CFD") in
accordance with the Mello-Roos Act. On November 20,2008, the Board of Trustees of the Lake


Elsinore Unified School District ("Board of Trustees") adopted Resolution No. 2008-09-034,


thereby making these Community Facilities District Financing Goals and Policies (herein, "CFD


Goals and Policies") applicable in connection with each CFD thereafter formed or proposed to be


fonned by the Lake Elsinore Unified School District ("District"). These Goals and Policies


amended and superseded the previously adopted goals and policies of the District with respect to


District-fanned CFDs. To the extent applicable based on the status of CFD's previously formed


by the District, the CFD Goals and Policies or parlions thereof shall also apply. With respect to


any District CFD formed after such date, these CFD Goals and Policies supersede any and all


prior District goals and policies applicable to the formation of a District CFD and/or any


financing conducted by a District CFD. These eFD Goals and Policies shall remain in effect


until amended, superseded or rescinded by the Board of Trustees in its sole discretion.


DISTRICT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES DISCRETION


The District at all times shall have the discretion to take or omit to take any action, or to


impose any condition, in connection with the formation of, or financing by, any District CFD as


the District determines are consistent with sound municipal financing practices and good


business judgment. Nothing in these CFD Goals and Policies shall be deemed or construed to


limit or condition the discretion of the District or the Board of Trustees in regard to: (i) the terms


and conditions for fonnatian of any District CFD; or (ii) the application of sound municipal


financing practices in regard to the formation or administration of any District CPO, or any


financing conducted by any District CFD. Nothing in these CFD Goals and Policies shall be


deemed or construed to preclude or limit the District or the Board of Trustees from requiring


compliance with all laws, regulations, rules and other governmental and/or quasi-governmental


requirements, whether now in effect or hereafter promulgated or amended, as are applicable in


connection with any proposed or existing District CFD or any financing conducted or to be


conducted by any District CPO. The Board of Trustees reserves the right, on a case-by-ease


basis and in the best interests of the District as determined by the Board of Trustees or its


designee(s), to impose requirements in addition to the minimum requirements set forth in these


CFD Goals and Policies or to waive specific requirements of these CFD Goals and Policies.


FAC/L/TIES AND SERVICES ELIGIBLE FOR CFD FINANCING


Facilities and services may be eligible for financing, or the costs thereof otherwise paid,


by a District CFD only to the extent permitted pursuant to the Mello-Roas Act. Facilities may be


- 1 -







eligible for financing by a District CFD only if: (i) such facilities are for the general use and/or


benefit of the public; and (ii) the District or some other public agency will own and operate the


facilities. A District CFD may finance public facilities to be owned and operated by another


public agency upon consent of the District and subject to the District and such other public


agency entering into an agreement that provides for such financing. The minimum amounts of


special taxes and financing proceeds allocated by a District CFD to the District and other public


agencies must at all times comply with then-applicable requirements of the Mello-Roas Act. If


fees for capital facilities are proposed to.be financed by a District CFD, only the actual capital-


facilities portion of the fees may be financed by the CFD. If the Mello-Roas Act or other


applicable law is changed to authorize financing of, or payment of costs of, other types of


facilities and/or services, these CFD Goals and Policies shall be construed to encompass


financing of such facilities and/or services.


CFD FINANCING PRIORITIES


District facilities that may be financed through a District CFD shall include, without


limitation: (i) land; (ii) buildings and other facilities or improvements to be used for classroom,


administrative, multi-purpose, kitchen and lunchroom, lavatory, utility, recreational, playground


and other school purposes; (iii) buildings and other facilities or improvements to be used in


support of the District's operations, including, without limitation, centralized office, warehouse,


transportation, maintenance, food-service and other District operations; (ív) furniture, fixtures


and equipment having a life expectancy of at least five years, including, without limitation,


technology infrastructure and, to the extent permitted by the Mello-Roos Act, busses and other


vehicles; and (v) the costs of planning, designing, acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,


modernizing, leasing, financing or otherwise paying for such facilities. With respect to any


particular CFD financing, the Board of Trustees may provide for financing of any or all of the


foregoing types of District facilities and/or for other District facilities not described above.


Except to the extent expressly agreed in writing by the District, financing of District services


and/or school and other facilities by a District CFD shall have priority over funding of any other


public agency's services and/or facilities. The priority for allocation of financing among eligible


non-District facilities and/or services shall be established by written agreement with the


applicable public agency and/or the owner(s) of the applicable real-property development project


located within the District's boundaries ("Developer(s)").


INITIATION OF CFD FORMATION AND FINANCING PROCEEDINGS


Proceedings to form a District CFD (or to annex territory into an existing District CFD)


may be initiated through submission to the District of a written request or petition as provided in


the Mello-Roas Act. Within forty-five days of receiving a petition, the District shall provide


notice to the petitioner(s) of the fee payable in connection with the requested CFD formation


proceedings. The amount of such fee shall be determined by the Board of Trustees (directly or


through the Board's designeeïs) in accordance with Government Code Section 53318 or other


applicable law. Upon receipt of the required fee, the District shall review the petition. If a


petition is incomplete or insufficient, the District shall return the petition to the petitioner(s),


noting the deficiencies, and the petitioner(s) may thereafter correct and resubmit the petition.


- 2 -







Upon receipt of a complete and sufficient petition, the District shall initiate further proceedings


as provided in the Mello-Reos Act. The District shall select and contract for all professional


services required in connection with the formation of and financing by a District CFD, including,


without limitation, the District's legal counsel, bond counsel, financial adviser, underwriter,


special tax consultant, appraiser and/or absorption consultant. Upon request, the petitionerís)


must provide any additional information reasonably required by the District in regard to the


petition, including, without limitation, information regarding the territory to be included in the


proposed CFD, the types of facilities and/or services proposed to be financed, and the special


taxes to be levied within the CFD. To the extent consistent with the Mello-Rocs Act and these


CFD Goals and Policies, the Board of Trustees may: (i) modify the terms for formation of any


District CFD; (ii) determine to proceed with formation of any District CFD and/or any related


financing proposal(s), whether on modified or unmodified terms; or (iii) abandon the formation


of any District CFD and/or any related financing proposal(s).


Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the District and the Developer of real property located


within the District's boundaries have entered into a school facilities impact mitigation


agreement, or other similar agreement, that provides for the District to undertake formation of a


District CFD, the Board of Trustees will be deemed to be initiating the CPD proceedings on its


own initiative and, therefore, no petition shall be required. Each such agreement shall generally


require that the Developer advance funds to pay formation and financing costs, which funds may


be reimbursed only from proceeds of the CFD financing.


REQUIREMENTS FOR REAL-PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS


If a Developer proposes that the District form a CFD over all or a portion of a real-


property development project, the District will require that the Developer enter into an agreement


that provides for CFD financing for the project. The Developer must meet with the District as


necessary from time to time to discuss the project and the proposed CFD financing, including,


without limitation: (i) the Developer's experience in developing projects of similar nature,


including those utilizing CFD financing; (ii) the territory to be included in the proposed CFD;


(iii) the type, number and size of dwelling units and other construction; (iv) the anticipated sales


prices and absorption of dwelling units; and (v) the types and costs of facilities for other public


agencies proposed to be financed. Upon request, the Developer must provide any additional


information reasonably required by the District relating to the project, the Developer and/or the


proposed CFD financing. In connection with determining the Developer's capacity and


resources for completing the project, the District may require that the Developer provide audited


financial statements for the three preceding fiscal years, appraisals, title reports and/or other


information, including, without limitation, an opinion from a "first tier" or "second tier" national


accounting firm setting forth: (i) the Developer's minimum net worth over the prior five fiscal


years; (ii) any material adverse changes to net worth over the prior five fiscal years; and (iii) any


exceptions or qualifications to the opinion. The District may require that the Developer submit a


financial plan for completion of the project and payment of all CFD special taxes incurred prior


to build-out of the project and sale of all dwelling units in the CFD. Each Developer must: (i)


indemnify the District with respect to required disclosures to purchasers of dwelling units within


the project, including, without limitation, disclosures regarding the existence of CFD, the special


taxes of the CFD and any financing by the CFD; and (ii) agree to provide all required continuing


-3-







disclosure(s) in connection with an applicable CFD financing. The requirements of this


paragraph are in addition to any other requirements of these CFD Goals and Policies.


EQUITABLE ALLOCATION AND MAXIMUM AMOUNTS OF SPECIAL TAXES


The District shall require that special taxes of a proposed District CFD be established in
an amount that will not result in the total tax obligation on any property within the CFD (í.e., the
total of all general taxes, special taxes (including, without limitation, special taxes of the District
CFD), assessments and similar levies or charges) exceeding two percent (2%) of the anticipated
initial sales price of such property. The District may require that no subsequent public financing


be accomplished with respect to property included or to be included in a District CFD if it would
result in the total tax obligation on any property exceeding such two-percent limitation. The
District also may reserve a portion of the financing capacity of property within a District CPD
for other local govenunentaJ entities. The amounts of the special taxes to be levied within a
District CFD shan include amounts to be used to pay the periodic CFD administration costs and
may include an amount to pay the costs of maintaining public facilities serving the properties
within the CFD. The District shall require that in no circumstances may the special taxes levied
on any developed residential parcel within a District CFD be increased by more than ten percent


(10%) as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner: of any other parcel within the
CFD.


CREDIT QUALITY FOR ISSUANCE OF CFD BONDS


In connection with the formation of or financing by any District CFD, the District may
impose requirements for credit quality in connection with any bonds, lease-revenue bonds or
other securities issued by or secured through such CFD (herein, "Bonds"). The District may
impose credit quality requirements in addition to or different from the minimum credit criteria
set forth in these CFD Goals and Policies. The purposes of, and policies underlying, the credit
quality requirements are to: (i) ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and


other governmental and quasi-governmental requirements; (ii) protect the interests of the


property owners and others who will be paying the CFD special taxes; (iii) protect the interests


of the public generally; and (iv) protect the interests orthe District, including, without limitation,
its credit rating. Although the ultimate security for an issuance of Bonds wiU be the value of the
land and improvements that will be subject to the special taxes of the CFD, the District may
require the use of credit enhancement prior to a particular level of development within the CFD


having been achieved, including, without limitation, a letter of credit, a surety bond, or other
security acceptable to the District. The purposes of, and policies underlying, District
requirements for credit enhancement are to: (i) protect the security of the Bonds; (ii) protect the
resources and assets of the District; and (iii) accomplish applicable public policies or District
goals. The Board of Trustees shall have sole discretion to determine whether the purposes and
policies described above will be satisfied in connection with any particular issuance of Bonds,
and the mere satisfaction of the minimum credit quality requirements set forth in these CFD
Goals and Policies shall not be deemed or construed to require that the Board of Trustees issue
any Bonds.


-4-







The minimum credit quality requirements for issuance of Bonds by a District CFD are, or


shall be determined by the District, as follows:


(1) Absorption Studv: In connection with Bonds issued by a District CFD that


encompasses any undeveloped property, the District shall require that a qualified and


experienced consultant prepare a study that analyzes the anticipated absorption of dwelling units


to be constructed within the CFD (i.e., dwelling units completed and sold). The absorption study


will be used: (i) to determine whether anticipated special tax revenues will be sufficient to


support the proposed CFD financing and whether the financing of the public facilities is


appropriate given the timing of development; and (ii) in connection with the preparation of the


appraisal described in paragraph (2) below,


(2) Appraisal of Property Subject lo Special Taxes: In connection with Bonds issued


by a District CFD, the District shall require that an appraisal of the value of the properties that


will be subject to the levy of special taxes of the CFD be prepared in accordance with the criteria


for appraisals set forth in these CFD Goals and Policies. The appraisal will be used in


determining the feasibility of the applicable CFD financing as described in paragraph (3) below


and in determining the value-to-lien ratio as described in paragraph (4) below. The criteria for


the appraisal are set forth below in these CFD Goals and Policies. In lieu of such an appraisal,


current assessed valuation(s) for developed property of all or a portion of the property within


such CFD may be used in determining the value-to-lien ratio as described in paragraph (4)


below.


(3) Analysis of Financing Feastbilttv: In connection with Bonds issued by a District


CFD, the District shall analyze the feasibility of the proposed CFD financing, with the goal of


being assured that the proposed financing can be completed on reasonable terms consistent with


sound municipal financing practices and sound business judgment. Such analysis shalJ include,


without limitation, a review of: (i) the absorption study described in paragraph (l) above; (ií) the


appraisal described in paragraph (2) above; (iii) a current preliminary title report for all property


within the CFD that will be subject to the levy of special taxes of the CFD; and (ív) such other


information as the District deems necessary. The District may require that a Developer provide a


verified statement describing any pending or possible future litigation relating 10 its project,


together with copies of any financial studies prepared for the project.


(4) Value to Lien Ratio: In connection with Bonds issued by a District CFD, the


District will require that the ratio of (i) the value of the land and improvements subject to the


special taxes of the CFD to (ii) the amount of outstanding debt on such property (the value-to-


lien ratio) be not less than 3 to 1, The District may require a value-to-lien ratio in excess of 3 to


1 as the District determines necessary in consideration of then-current economic conditions,


housing-market conditions, Developer fiscal status and resources, sound municipal finance


practices, el cetera. The value of properties may be based on available information, including,


without limitation, the assessed values of such properties as determined by the County of


Riverside, and/or based on appraisals prepared in accordance with these CFD Goals and Policies.


The total outstanding debt on the properties shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions


of the Mello-Rocs Act and shall include, without limitation, any existing or pending special


taxes, assessments, and improvement liens, The District may exempt an issuance of Bonds from


-5 -







the foregoing requirements if the District determines in accordance with the Mello-Roos Act that


the proposed Bonds do not present an unusual credit risk.


(5) Debt Service Coverage Ratio: In connection with Bonds issued by a District


CFD, the District will require that the monetary amount of the Bonds to be issued shall be


calculated based on the special taxes to be levied and collected within the CFD being equal to at


least one-hundred and ten percent (110%) of the anticipated annual gross debt service on the


Bonds (and may be greater if so required by the District).


(6) Capitalized Interest: In connection with Bonds issued by a District CFD, the


District may require that interest be capitalized as permitted pursuant 10 the Mello-Roas Act.


The factors to be considered by the District in determining whether to require capitalized interest


and the term of such capitalized interest shall include, without limitation, the value-ta-lien ratio,


the anticipated absorption rate and timing for build-out of the dwelling units within the CFD, the


monetary amount of the proposed financing, and the monetary amount of any Developer's equity


in the project.


(7) Bond Reserve Fund: In connection with Bonds issued by a District CFD, the


District shall require that a portion of the proceeds of Bonds be deposited into a reserve fund. If


it becomes necessary; the District may use funds in the reserve fund to pay the debt service on


the Bonds. The District's funds will in no event be used to pay debt service on the Bonds. The


amount deposited into the reserve fund will be equal to the lesser of: (i) ten percent of the


principal amount of the Bonds; (ii) the maximum annual debt service on the Bonds; or (iii) one-


hundred and twenty-five percent of the average annual debt service on the Bonds. The District


may determine to fund an outside fund or account, subject to the requirements and limitations of


State and federal tax-exemption requirements for additional security for repayment of such


Bonds upon such terms and conditions as the District may determine and direct.


(8) Security for Payment olSpecial Taxes on Undeveloped Property: In connection


with Bonds issued by a District CFD that encompasses any undeveloped property, the District


may require that a Developer provide a letter of credit or other security acceptable to the District


to secure payment of special taxes on residential properties within the CFD that are not owned by


any individual homeowners for a specified period of time. The amount of a letter of credit shall


be adjusted as of July l of each year (or such other date as the District shall direct) on account of


any sales of such properties to individual homeowners. The District shall release a letter of


credit at such time as a percentage as determined by the District of the residential properties


within the CFD have been sold to individual homeowners.


(9) Foreclosure Covenants: In connection with Bonds issued by a District CFD, the


District shall covenant to holders of the Bonds that the District will authorize the commencement


of foreclosure proceedings, in specified circumstances. of properties within the CFD that are in


default with respect to payment of special taxes of the CFD. The factors that the District will


consider in determining the specifics of a foreclosure covenant may include, without limitation:


(í) the amount and term of the Bonds; (ii) ownership of property within the CFD; (iii) then-


current economic and housing-market conditions; (iv) threshold delinquency amounts; (v)


duration of delinquencies; and (vi) Bond reserve fund amounts. Each foreclosure covenant shall


-6-







permit the District to have maximum flexibility in determining the need to foreclose, while still


enhancing the credit quality of the Bonds.


CIO) Special Tax Remainders: In connection with Bonds issued by a District CFD, the


District may require that any special. taxes collected within the CFD and not used to pay


administrative expenses of the CFD or debt service on the outstanding Bonds of the CFO in any


particular fiscal year be accumulated and/or reserved for use in paying the debt service on the


Bonds in future fiscal years. The factors that the District will consider in determining the


amounts and timing for such accumulated and/or reserved special tax remainders may include,


without limitation: (i) the amount and term of the Bonds; (íi) ownership of property within the


CFD; (iii) then-current economic and housing-market conditions; (iv) threshold delinquency


amounts; (v) duration of delinquencies; and (vi) Bond reserve fund amounts.


CRITERIA FOR APPRAISALS


For purposes of these CFD Goals and Policies: Ci) an appraisal is defined as a written


opinion prepared by a qualified, experienced, independent and impartial appraiser of the market


value of identified property, as of a specific date; and (ii) market value, as defined in the


Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, is "the most probable price, as of a specified date, in cash,


or in terms equivalent to cash, or in other precisely revealed terms, for which the specified


property rights should sell after reasonable exposure in a competitive market under all conditions


requisite to fair sale, with the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably and for self-


interest, and assuming that neither is under undue duress."


Each appraisal performed pursuant to these CFD Goals and Policies must: (i) be prepared


by a qualified and experienced MAl appraiser; (ii) be a Self-Contained Appraisal Report or a


Summary Appraisal Report as defined in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal


Practice ("USPAP"); (iii) be supported by an adequate analysis and relevant and sufficient


market, cost and/or other data; and (iv) conform with the most recent versions of the California


Debt and Investment Advisory Commission guidelines, the USPAP rules, and, to the extent


applicable, the Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisition. The form, format,


and style of an appraisal shall be dictated by the complexity of valuation and other issues, the


intended uses of the appraisal, and the needs of the District. The compensation paid to an


appraiser shall not be based on, or contingent on, the appraiser's opinion of value.


An appraisal performed pursuant to these CFO Goals and Policies may be based on one


or more approaches to valuation as appropriate, including, without limitation, comparable sales


approach, income approach and/or cost approach. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, an


appraisal may consider the effect of bulk ownership of properties within the CFO and/or bulk


sales of comparable properties, and may assume the immediate sale of all properties in the CFD


under common ownership, which would be the situation under judicial foreclosure proceedings.


Each appraiser: (i) must perform the appraisal services in an objective, ethical and


unbiased manner, in full compliance with the USPAl" ethics rules; (ii) must not have any direct


or indirect interest (other than compensation for performing the appraisal) in the property being







appraised or in the owner or developer of such property; and (iii) must certify in the appraisal


that it has no such interests.


DISCLOSURE TO PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF PROPERTY


Developer Disclosure


Each Developer or merchant builder that intends to sell (or lease for a period in excess of


five years) one or more new homes, dwelling units, lots or parcels within a District CFD must


develop a written program or procedures that ensures prospective purchasers and lessees will be


informed, on or prior to the date on which an applicable purchase contract, lease or deposit


receipt is executed, of the existence of the CFD and property owner or lessor obligations to pay


the special taxes of the CFD. The seller or lessor must provide a copy of such written program


or procedures to the District prior to commencing marketing activities related to such homes,


dwelling units, lots or parcels. Each such seller or lessor must provide any and all disclosures to


prospective purchasers or lessees as are required by applicable law, including, without limitation,


the notice required pursuant to Government Code Section 5334l.5 (as set forth in the Mello-


Roos Act). The form of the notice given pursuant to Section 53341.5 to any such purchasers or


lessees must be the then-mast-recent version of the notice set forth in Section 53341.5. Such


fonn of natice may be modified only as provided in Section 53341.5 or other applicable law.


The seller or lessor must provide the notice to a prospective purchaser or lessee at or prior


to the time the contract or deposit receipt for the purchase of property is executed, or otherwise


as required by applicable law. The seller or lessor must keep an executed copy of each


disclosure provided to prospective purchasers and/or lessees to prove that disclosure has been


provided as required by law. Neither the District nor the applicable District CFD shall be


deemed or construed to assume any liability whatsoever for any failure by any seller or lessor to


provide any required disclosure or notice, or for any deficiency in any such disclosure or notice.


District Special Tax Infonnation


A homeowner or other person or entity that intends to resell any home, lot or parcel


within a District CFD (other than a Developer or merchant builder) may request that the District


provide such seller with a notice of special taxes that will enable such seller to comply with the


notice requirements set forth in Civil Code Section 1102.6b. The District shall provide such


notice within five days after receipt of a written request and may require payment of a reasonable


fee for providing such service, not in excess of any maximum amount specified by law. The


form of the notice intended to satisfy the requirements of Civil Code Section 1102.6b and that


the District will provide to a seller is set forth in Government Code Section 53340.2.


PRIORITY ATTENDANCE ACCESS POLICY


In accordance with the Mello-Reos Act, the District shall give priority attendance access


to students residing within a community facilities district whose residents have paid District CFD


special taxes that have, in whole or in part, financed the construction of specific District school


- 8 -







facilities. The degree of priority shall reflect. to the extent that can reasonably be determined,


the proportion of each school's total funding/financing provided through or by that particular


eFD. Such priority attendance access policy shall be subject to: Ci) the obligations and authority


of the District to establish fair and reasonable attendance boundaries from time to time; (ii) the


right of the District to restrict access if the number of students entitled to priority access exceeds


the capacity of any particular school facility; and (iii) other District attendance policies that


include criteria for student assignment, such as goals to achieve ethnic, racial and socio-


economic diversity; federal, state or court mandates; transportation needs; safe pedestrian routes;


grade levels for which the facilities were designed; and ensuring students continuity of education


within any single school year.


Adopted: November 20, 2008


128016.3 -9-







EXHIBIT "E"


TO SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING ANDMITIGATION AGREEMENT


FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING


ANDMITIGATION AGREEMENT







RECORDING REQUESTED BY:


Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone


Attn: Robert E. Anslow, Esq.


4920 Campus Drive


Newport Beach, CA 92660


WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:


Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone


Attn: Robert E. Anslow, Esq.


4920 Campus Drive


Newport Beach, CA 92660


Space above line for recorder's use only


MEMORANDUM OF SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING


AND MITIGATION AGREEMENT


This MEMORANDUM OF SCHOOL FACILITIES FUNDING AND MITIGATION


AGREEMENT ("Memorandum") dated June 14,2017, is entered into by and among the LAKE


ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public school district organized and existing


under the laws of the State of California ("District"), and BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC,


a Delaware limited liability company, successor by conversion to Beazer Homes Holdings Corp.,


a Delaware corporation ("Owner").


1. Property. Owner owns fee title to certain property within the City of Wildomar and


the District described in Attachment A ("Property").


2. School Facilities Funding and Mitigation Agreement. The District and Owner have


entered into that certain School Facilities Funding and Mitigation Agreement dated


June 14,2017 ("Mitigation Agreement").


3. Purpose. The purpose of this Memorandum is to provide record notice of the


existence of the Mitigation Agreement and the obligations ofthe parties thereunder.


4. No Alteration or Amendment. This Memorandum is not intended to, and shall not,


alter or amend the terms, covenants and conditions of the Mitigation Agreement.


In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Memorandum and those


of the Mitigation Agreement, the provisions of the Mitigation Agreement shall


prevail.


5. Not Binding on Homeowners. Notwithstanding anything herein that may be


construed to the contrary, neither this Memorandum nor the Mitigation Agreement







BAWGIREA/197582


11027 C 10.1


shall be binding upon or inure to the benefit of any owner of a completed dwelling


unit constructed and sold within the Property (each a "Homeowner"), and under no


circumstance may any Homeowner, in that capacity, be deemed or construed as a


successor or assign of the Owner or any Merchant Builder with respect to the


Mitigation Agreement. At close of escrow for each DU constructed on the


Property, this Memorandum and the Mitigation Agreement shall automatically


terminate as to such DU without further action of any Party hereto.


[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank - signature page follows]


2







IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, by their undersigned authorized signatories, have


executed this Memorandum as of the date first written above.


APPROVED AS TO FORM
Lake Elsinore Unified School District


Special Legal Counsel - Bowie,


Arneson, Wiles & Giannone


By: __


LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, a


California public school district and political subdivision of


the State of California


By:


Its:


By:


Its:


BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability


company, successor by conversion to Beazer Homes Holdings


Corp., a Delaware corporation


By: __


Name: _


Title: _


By: _


Name: _


Title:, _


- Memorandum Signature Page -







FOR USE WITH DISTRICT SIGNATURES


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the


individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.


STATE OF CALIFORNIA )


) ss.


COUNTY OF )


On , 20_, before me, , a Notary Public,


personally appeared , who proved to me on the basis of


satisfactory evidence to be the persones) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument


and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized


capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the persones), or the entity


upon behalf of which the persones) acted, executed the instrument.


I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the


foregoing paragraph is true and correct.


WITNESS my hand and official seal.


Signature: _ (SEAL)


Notary Public


STATE OF CALIFORNIA )


) ss.


COUNTY OF )


On , 20_, before me, , a Notary Public,


personally appeared , who proved to me on the basis of


satisfactory evidence to be the persones) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument


and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized


capacity(ies), and that by hislherltheir signature(s) on the instrument the persones), or the entity


upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the


foregoing paragraph is true and correct.


WITNESS my hand and official seal.


Signature: ----' _ (SEAL)


Notary Public







FOR USE WITH OWNER SIGNATURES


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.


STATE OF CALIFORNIA )


) ss.


COUNTY OF )


On , 20_, before me, , a Notary Public,


personally appeared , who proved to me on the basis of


satisfactory evidence to be the persones) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument


and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized


capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the persones), or the entity


upon behalf of which the persones) acted, executed the instrument.


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the


foregoing paragraph is true and correct.


WITNESS my hand and official seal.


Signature: _ (SEAL)


Notary Public


STATE OF CALIFORNIA )


) ss.


COUNTY OF )


On , 20_, before me, , a Notary Public,


personally appeared , who proved to me on the basis of


satisfactory evidence to be the persones) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument


and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized


capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the persones), or the entity


upon behalf of which the persones) acted, executed the instrument.


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the


foregoing paragraph is true and correct.


WITNESS my hand and official seal.


Signature: (SEAL)


Notary Public







ATTACHMENT A


TO MEMORANDUM OF SCHOOLFACILITIES


FUNDING AND MITIGATION AGREEMENT


DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY


Assessor's Parcel Numbers 380-060-007 and 380-060-008 of the County of Riverside, consisting


of 35.2 acres of real property located in the City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of


California.


A-l







EXHIBIT "F"


TO MITIGATION AGREEMENT


RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES FOR THE CF))


F-l







RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES OF


COMM:UNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2


OF THE LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT


A Special Tax (as defined herein) shall be levied on and collected from all Assessor's Parcels (as


defined herein) within Community Facilities District No. 2017-2 of the Lake Elsinore Unified


School District ("School District") each Fiscal Year (as defined herein) commencing in Fiscal Year


2017/2018, in an amount determined by the Board (as defined herein) through the application of


the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes ("RMA") described below. All of the


real property within the District (as defined below), unless exempted by law or by provisions


hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.


SECTION A


DEFINITIONS


For purposes of this RMA, the terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:


"Acre" or "Acreage" means the number of acres of land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on


an Assessor's Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel Map, the


Administra~or may rely on the land area shown on the applicable Final,Map.


"Act" means the Mello-Reos Communities Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,


Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.


"Administrative Expenses" means any ordinary and necessary expense incurred by the School


District on behalf of the District related to the determination of the amount of the levy of Special


Taxes, the collection of Special Taxes, including, but not limited to, the reasonable expenses of


collecting delinquencies, the administration of Bonds, the proportionate payment of salaries and


benefits of any School District employee whose duties are directly related to the administration


of the District, and reasonable costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized


purposes of the District including a proportionate amount of School District general


administrative overhead related thereto.


"Administrator" means an official of the School District, or designee thereof, responsible for


determining the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.


"Annual Special Tax" means the Special Tax actually levied in any Fiscal Year on any


Assessor's Parcel.


"Approved Property" means all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that (i) are associated


with a Lot in a Final Map that was recorded prior to the January 1st preceding the Fiscal Year in


which the Special Tax is being levied and (ii) have not been issued a building permit prior to the


May 1st preceding the Fiscal Year inwhich the Special Tax is being levied.


RMA_ROI Page 1 of 14 June 14, 2017







"Assessor's Parcel" means a parcel of land. designated on an Assessor's Parcel Map with an


assigned Assessor's Parcel Number within the boundaries of the District.


"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating


parcels by Assessor's Parcel Number.


"Assessor's Parcel Number" means that number assigned to an Assessor's Parcel by the County


for purposes of identification.


"Assigned Annual Special Tax" 1;11eansthe Special Tax of that name described in Section D


hereof.


"Backup Annual Special Tax" means the Special Tax of that name described in Section E hereof.


"Board" means the Governing Board of the School District, or its trustees, in certain cases acting


as the Legislative Body of the District.


RMA_ROI Page2 of 14 June 14, 2017


"Bond Index" means the national Bond Buyer Revenue Index, commonly referenced as the 25-


Bond Revenue Index. In the event the Bond Index ceases to be published, the index used shall


be based on a comparable index for revenue bonds maturing in 30 years with an average rating


equivalent to Moody's "Al" and/or Standard & Poor's "A+",as determined by the Board.


"Bond Yield" means the yield of the last series of Bonds issued, for pmposes of this calculation


the yield of the Bonds shall be the yield calculated at the time such Bonds are issued, pursuant


to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for the purpose of the Non-


Arbitrage (Tax) Certificate or other similar bond issuance document.


"Bonds" means any obligation to repay a sum of money, including obligations in the form of


bonds, notes, certificates of participation, long-term leases, loans from government agencies,


loans from banks, other financial institutions, private businesses, or individuals, or long-term


contracts, or any refunding thereof, to which the Special Taxes have been pledged for


repayment.


"Building Square Footage" or "BSF" means the square footage of assessable internal living


space of a Unit, exclusive of any carports, walkways, garages, overhangs, patios, enclosed


patios, detached accessory structure, other structures not used as living space, or any other


square footage excluded under Government Code Section 65995 as determined by reference to


the building permit(s) for such Unit.


"Calendar Year" means the period commencing on January 1of any year and ending on the


following December 31.


"County" means the County of Riv~rside.







"Developed Property" means all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property for which building


permit(s) were issued on or before May 1 of the prior Fiscal Year, provided that such Assessor's


Parcels were created on or before January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year, as determined reasonably


by the Administrator.


"District" means Community Facilities District No. 2017-2of the School District.


"Exempt Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within the District designated as being exempt


from Special Taxes pursuant to Section K hereof.


"Final Map" means a final tract map, parcel map, condominium plan, lot line adjustment, or


functionally equivalent map or instrument that creates individual Lots, recorded in the Office of


the County Recorder.


"Fiscal Year" means the period commencing on July 1 of any year and ending on the following


June30.


"Land Use Class or Classes" means the tax class classifications depicted in Table 1 for all


Assessor's Parcels of Developed Property based on the Building Square Footage of such


Assessor's Parcel.


"Lot" means an individual legal lot created by a Final Map for which a building permit for


residential construction has been or could be issued. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case


of an individual legal lot created by such a Final Map upon which condominium units are


entitled to be developed but for which a condominium plan or equivalent instrument has not


been recorded, the number of Lots allocable to such legal lot for purposes of calculating the


Backup Annual Special Tax applicable to such Final Map shall equal the number of Units which


are approved to be constructed on such legal lot as reasonably determined by the


Administrator.


"Maximum Special Tax" means the maximum Special Tax, determined in accordance with


Section C, which can be levied by the District in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel.


"Mitigation Agreement" means the "School Facilities Funding and Mitigation Agreement",


dated as of June 14, 2017, as it may be amended, and as applicable to the territory included


within the District.


"Net Taxable Acreage" means the total Acreage of Developed Property expected to exist in the


.District after all Final Maps are recorded.


"Partial Prepayment Amount" means the amount required to prepay a portion of the Annual


Special Tax obligation for an Assessor's Parcel as described in Section H hereof.


"Prepayment Administrative Fees" means any fees or expenses of the School District or the


District associated with the prepayment of the Annual Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's


RMA_ROI Page 3 of 14 June 14,2017







Parcel. Prepayment Administrative Fees shall include among other things the cost of computing


the Prepayment Amount, redeeming Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the


prepayment and redemption of Bonds.


"Prepayment Amount" means the amount required to prepay the Annual Special Tax obligation


in full for an Assessor's Parcel as described in Section G hereof.


"Present Value of Taxes" means for any Assessor's Parcel the present value of (i) the unpaid


portion, if any, of the Special Tax applicable to such Assessor's Parcel in the current Fiscal Year


and (ii) the Annual Special Taxes expected to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel in each


remaining Fiscal Year, as determined by the Administrator, until the termination date specified


in Section J, but in no event longer than 35 Fiscal Years. The discount rate used for this


calculation shall be equal to (a) the Bond Yield after Bond issuance or (b) the most recently


published Bond Index prior to Bond issuance.


"Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Annual Special Tax levy to the applicable


Assigned Annual Special Tax is equal for all applicable Assessor's Parcels. In the case of


Developed Property subject to apportionment of the Annual Special Tax under Step Four of


Section F, "Proportionately" shall mean that the quotient of (i) the Annual Special Tax less the


Assigned Annual Special Tax divided by (ii) the Backup Annual Special Tax less the Assigned


Annual Special Tax is equal for all applicable Assessor's Parcels.


"Provisional Undeveloped Properly" means all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that


would otherwise be classified as Exempt Property pursuant to Section K, but which cannot be


classified as Exempt Property because to do so would reduce the Net Taxable Acreage below


the required minimum Acreage set forth in Section K, as applicable.


"Reserve Fund Credit" means an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the reduction in the applicable


reserve fund requirement(s) resulting from the redemption of Bonds with the Prepayment


Amount or (ii) ten percent (10%)of the amount of Bonds which will be redeemed. In the event


that a surety bond or other credit instrument satisfies the reserve requirement or the reserve


requirement is underfunded at the time of the prepayment, no Reserve Fund Credit shall be


given.


"School District" means the Lake Elsinore Unified School District, a public school district


organized and operating pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California.


"Special Tax" means any of the special taxes authorized to be levied by the District pursuant to


the Act and this RMA.


"Special Tax Requirement" means the amount required in any Fiscal Year to pay (i) the debt


service or the periodic costs on all outstanding Bonds, (ii) Administrative Expenses, (iii) the


costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow account(s) established in association


with the Bonds, (iv) any amount required to establish or replenish any reserve funds (or


accounts thereof) established in association with the Bonds, and (v) the collection or


RMA_ROI Page4 of 14 June 14, 2017







accumulation of funds for the acquisition or construction of school facilities and certain costs


associated with the maintenance and operations of school facilities authorized by the District


provided that the inclusion of such amount does not cause an increase in the levy of Special Tax


on Approved Property, Undeveloped Property, or Provisional Undeveloped Property as set


forth in Steps Two through Four of Section F, less (vi) any amount(s) available to pay debt


service or other periodic costs on the Bonds pursuant to any applicable bond indenture, fiscal


agent agreement, trust agreement, or equivalent agreement or document. In arriving at the


Special Tax Requirement the Administrator shall take into account the reasonably anticipated


delinquent Special Taxes, provided that the amount included cannot cause the Annual Special


Tax of an Assessor Parcel of Developed Property to increase by greater than ten percent (10%)


of what would have otherwise been levied.


"Taxable Property" means all Assessor's Parcels within the District which are not Exempt


Property.


"Undeveloped Property" means all Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property within the District


which are not Developed Property or Approved Property.


"Unit" means each separate residential dwelling unit, including but not limited to a single


family attached ordetached unit, condominium, an apartment unit, mobile home, or otherwise,


excluding hotel and motels.


SECTIONB


CLASSIFICATION OF ASSESSOR'S PARCELS


Each Fiscal Year, commencing with Fiscal Year 2017/2018, all Assessor's Parcels within the


District shall be classified as either Taxable Property or Exempt Property. In addition, each


Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property shall be classified as Developed Property, Approved


Property, Undeveloped Property or Provisional Undeveloped Property. Each Assessor's Parcel


of Developed Property shall be further assigned to a Land Use Class, according to Table 1


below, based on the Building Square Footage of each Unit for which a building permit has been


issued with respect to such Assessor's Parcel.


Table 1


Land Use Classification


~fI¡~~-~~~:ª.s!~;..ç ,~::-,-'~":~:'0:-":·':_-:~_~~~r;~1î~~::~-~.~~~r~;~}~!
1 <2,400sq. ft.


2 2,401- 2,600 sq. ft.


3 2,601 - 2,800 sq. ft.


4 2,801- 3,000 sq. ft.


5 3,001- 3,200 sq. ft.


6 >3,200sq. ft.


RMA_ROI Page 5 of 14 June 14, 2017







SECTIONC


MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATE


Prior to the issuance of Bonds, the Maximum Special Tax and Assigned Annual Special Tax on


Developed Property, Approved Property, Undeveloped Property and Provisional Undeveloped


Property may be reduced in accordance with and subject to the conditions set forth in this


Section C without the need for any proceedings to make changes as permitted under the Act. If


it is reasonably determined by the Administrator that the maximum tax burden in the District


exceeds the School District's maximum tax burden objective set forth in the Mitigation


Agreement, the Maximum Special Tax and Assigned Annual Special Tax on Developed


Property for a Land Use Class may be reduced. The Maximum Special Tax and Assigned


Annual Special Tax may be reduced to the amount necessary to equal such maximum tax


burden level with the written consent of the Administrator and without the need for any


additional Board proceedings.


The Maximum Special Tax and Assigned Annual Special Tax for Approved Property,


Undeveloped Property and Provisional Undeveloped Property may also be reduced in


accordance with the Maximum Special Tax reductions for Developed Property, if the


Administrator reasonably determines that such reductions are necessary. Each Maximum


Special Tax and Assigned Annual Special Tax reduction for a Land Use Class shall be calculated


separately, as reasonably determined by the Administrator, and it shall not be required that


such reduction be proportionate among Land Use Classes. The reductions permitted pursuant


to this Section C shall be reflected in an amended notice of Special Tax lien which the School


District shall cause to be recorded as a result of executing a certificate in substantially the form


attached herein as Exhibit A.


1. Developed Property


The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Developed Property


shall be the greater of the amount derived by the application of the (a) A'ssigned Annual


Special Tax or (b) Backup Annual Special Tax.


2. Approved Property


The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Approved Property


shall be derived by the application of the Assigned Annual Special Tax.


3. Undeveloped Property


The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel classified as Undeveloped Property


or Provisional Undeveloped Property shall be derived by the application of the Assigned


Annual Special Tax.


RMA_ROI Page 6 of 14 June 14, 2017







SECTIOND


ASSIGNED ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES


1. Developed Property


The Assigned Annual Special Tax for all Assessor's Parcels classified as Developed


Property shall be determined in accordance with Table 2 below according to the Land


Use Class of the Unit, subject to increases as described below. .


Table 2


Assigned Annual Special Tax for


2. Approved Property, Undeveloped Property and Provisional Undeveloped Property


The Assigned Annual Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel of Approved Property,


Undeveloped Property, or Provisional Undeveloped Property shall be $18,189.73 per


acre of Acreage, subject to increases as described below.


3. Increases in the Assigned Annual Special Tax


a. Developed Property


On each July l, commencing July I, 2018, the Assigned Annual Special Tax rate


applicable to Developed Property shall be increased by two percent (2.00%).


b. Approved Property, Undeveloped Property and Provisional Undeveloped


Property


On each July I, commencing July 1, 2018, the Assigned Annual Special Tax rate


per acre of Acreage for Approved Property, Undeveloped Property and


Provisional Undeveloped Property shall be increased by two percent (2.00%).


RMA_ROI


SECTIONE


Page 7 of 14 June 14, 2017







BACKUP ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX


Each Fiscal Year, each Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property shall be subject to a Backup


Annual Special Tax.


1. Calculation of the Backup Annual Special Tax Rate


The Backup Annual Special Tax rate for an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property


within a Final Map shall be the rate per Lot calculated in accordance with the following


formula in Fiscal Year 2017/2018 or such later Fiscal Year in which such Final Map is


created, subject to increases as described below:


B= (Ux A)/L


The terms above have the following meanings:


B = Backup Annual Special Tax per Lot for the applicable


Fiscal Year


U Assigned Annual Special Tax per Acre of Undeveloped


Property in the Fiscal Year the calculation is performed


RMA_ROI Page 8 of 14 June 14, 2017


A Acreage of Taxable Property expected to exist in such Final


Map at the time of calculation, as determined by the


Administrator .


L = Number of Lots in the applicable Final Map at the time of


calculation.


2. Changes to a Final Map


If the Final Map(s) described in the preceding paragraph are subsequently changed or


modified, then the Backup Annual Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel of Developed


Property changed or modified in each such Final Map shall be a rate per square foot of


Acreage calculated as follows:


a. Determine the total Backup Annual Special Tax revenue anticipated to apply


to the changed or modified Assessor's Parcels prior to the change or


modification.


b. The result of paragraph (a) above shall be divided by the Acreage of Taxable


Property of the modified Assessor's Parcels, as reasonably determined by the


Administrator.







c. The result of paragraph (b) above shall be divided by 43,560. The result is the


Backup Annual Special Tax per square foot of Acreage that shall be


applicable to the modified Assessor's Parcels, subject to increases as


described below.


Each July l, commencing the July 1 first following the initial calculation of the Backup


Annual Special Tax rate for an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property within a Final


map, the Backup Annual Special Tax for each Lot within such Final Map shall be


increased by two percent (2.00%)of the amount in effect the prior Fiscal Year.


SECTIONF


METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF THE ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX


Commencing Fiscal Year 2017/2018 and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the Board shall levy


Annual Special Taxes on all Taxable Property in accordance with the following steps: _


Step One: The Annual Special Tax shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Developed


Property at the Assigned Annual Special Tax applicable to each such Assessor's


Parcel.


Step Two: If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement after the


first step has been completed, the Annual Special Tax shall be levied


Proportionately on each Assessor's Parcel of Approved Property up to 100% of


the Assigned Annual Special Tax applicable to each such Assessor's Parcel as


needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement.


Step Three: If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement after the


second step has been completed, the Annual Special Tax shall be levied


Proportionately on each Assessor's Parcel of Undeveloped Property up to 100%


of the Assigned Annual Special Tax applicable to each such Assessor's Parcel as


needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement.


Step Four: If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement after the


third step has been completed, the Annual Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel


of Developed Property, whose Maximum Special Tax is the Backup Annual


Special Tax, shall be increased Proportionately from the Assigned Annual Special


Tax up to 100% of the Backup Annual Special Tax applicable to each such


Assessor's Parcel as needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement.


Step Five: If additional moneys are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement after the


fourth step has been completed, the Annual Special Tax shall be levied


Proportionately on each Assessor's Parcel of Provisional Undeveloped Property


up to 100% of the Assigned Annual Special Tax applicable to each such


Assessor's Parcel as needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement.


RMA_ROI Page 9 of 14 June 14, 2017







SECTIONG


PREPAYMENT OF ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES


1. Special Tax Prepayment Times and Conditions


The Annual Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be


prepaid, provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes, penalties, or interest


charges outstanding with respect to such Assessor's Parcel. An owner of an Assessor's


Parcel intending to prepay the Annual Special Tax shall provide the School District with


written notice of intent to prepay. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of such written


notice, the Administrator shall determine the Prepayment Amount for such Assessor's


Parcel and shall notify such owner of such Prepayment Amount.


2. Special Tax Prepayment Calculation


The Prepayment Amount shall be calculated according to the following formula:


P = PVT_ RFC + PAF


The terms above have the following meanings:


P Prepayment Amount


PVT Present Value of Taxes


RFC Reserve Fund Credit


PAF = Prepayment Administrative Fees


3. Special Tax Prepayment Procedures and Limitations


The amount representing the Present Value of Taxes attributable to the prepayment less


the Reserve Fund Credit attributable to the prepayment shall, prior to the issuance of


Bonds, be deposited into a separate account held with the School District and disbursed


in accordance with the Mitigation Agreement and after the issuance of Bonds be


deposited into the applicable account or fund established under the trust agreement or


indenture agreement or fiscal agent agreement and used to pay debt service or redeem


Bonds. The amount representing the Prepayment Administrative Fees attributable to the


prepayment shall be retained and deposited into the applicable account by the School


District on behalf of the District.


With respect to any Assessor's Parcel for which the Special Tax is prepaid, the Board


shall indicate in the records of the District that there has been a prepayment of the


Special Tax obligation and shall cause a suitable notice to be recorded in compliance


with the Act to indicate the prepayment of the Special Tax obligation and the release of


RMA_ROI Page 10 of 14 June 14, 2017







the Special Tax lien on such Assessor's Parcel, and the obligation of such Assessor's


Parcel to pay such Special Tax shall cease.


Notwithstanding the foregoing, no prepayment will be allowed unless the amount of


Assigned Annual Special Taxes that may be levied on Taxable Property, excluding


Provisional Undeveloped Property, after such prepayment net of Administrative


Expenses, shall be at least 1.1 times the regularly scheduled annual interest and principal


payments on all currently outstanding Bonds in each future Fiscal Year and such


prepayment will not impair the security of all currently outstanding Bonds, as


reasonably determined by the Administrator. Such determination shall include


identifying all Assessor's Parcels that are expected to be classified as Exempt Property.


Notwithstanding the above, the ability to prepay the Annual Special Tax obligation of an


Assessor's Parcel may be suspended, by the Administrator, acting in his or her


absolution and sole discretion for and on behalf of the District, without notice to the


owners of property within the District for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days,


prior to the scheduled issuance of Bonds by the District, on behalf of the District to assist


in the efficient preparation of the required bond market disclosure.


SECTIONH


PARTIAL PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES


1. Partial Prepayment Times and Conditions


The Annual Special Tax obligation of Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property may be


partially prepaid in increments of ten (10) units, provided that there are no delinquent


Special Taxes, penalties, or interest charges outstanding with respect to such Assessor's


Parcels at the time the Annual Special Tax obligation would be partially prepaid. An


owner of an Assessor's Parcel(s) intending to partially prepay the Annual Special Tax


shall provide the District with written notice of their intent to partially prepay. Within


thirty (30) days of receipt of such written notice, the Administrator shall determine the


Partial Prepayment Amount of such Assessor's Parcel and shall notify such owner of


such Partial Prepayment Amount.


2. Partial Prepayment Calculation


The Partial Prepayment Amount shall be calculated according to the following formula:


PP :: PVT x F _ RFC + PAF


The terms above have the following meanings:


pp:: the Partial Prepayment Amount


RMA_ROI


PVT Present Value of Taxes


Page 11 of 14 June 14,2017







F the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's


Parcel is partially prepaying the Special Tax


obligation


RFC Reserve Fund Credit


PAF = Prepayment Administrative Fees


3. Partial Prepayment Procedures and Limitations


The amount representing the Present Value of Taxes attributable to the prepayment less


the Reserve Fund Credit attributable to the prepayment shall, prior to the issuance of


Bonds, be deposited into a separate account held with the School District and disbursed


in accordance with the Mitigation Agreement and after the issuance of Bonds be


deposited into the applicable account or fund established under the trust agreement,


indenture agreement or fiscal agent agreement and used to pay debt service or redeem


Bonds. The amount representing the Prepayment Administrative Fees attributable to the


prepayment shall be retained and deposited into the applicable account by the School


District on behalf of the District.


With respect to any Assessor's Parcel for which the Special Tax obligation is partially


prepaid, the Board shall indicate in the records of the District that there has been a


partial prepayment of the Special Tax obligation and shall cause a suitable notice to be


recorded in compliance with the Act to indicate the partial prepayment of the Special


Tax obligation and the partial release of the Special Tax lien on such Assessor's Parcel,


and the obligation of such Assessor's Parcel to pay such prepaid portion of the Special


Tax shall cease. Additionally, the notice shall indicate that the Assigned Annual Special


Tax and the Backup Annual Special Tax if applicable for the Assessor's Parcel has been


reduced by an amount equal to the percentage which was partially prepaid.


Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment will be allowed unless the


amount of Special Taxes that may be levied on Taxable Property, excluding Provisional


Undeveloped Property, after such partial prepayment, net of Administrative Expenses,


shall be at least 1.1 times the regularly scheduled annual interest and principal payments


on all currently outstanding Bonds in each future Fiscal Year and such partial


prepayment will not impair the security of all currently outstanding Bonds, as


reasonably determined by the Administrator. Such determination shall include


identifying all Assessor's Parcels that are expected to be classified as Exempt Property.


Notwithstanding the above, the ability to prepay the Annual Special Tax obligation of an


Assessor's Parcel may be suspended, by the Administrator, acting in his or her


absolution and sole discretion for and on behalf of the District, without notice to the


owners of property within the District for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days,


RMA_ROI Page 12 of 14 June 14, 2017







prior to the scheduled issuance of Bonds by the District to assist in the efficient


preparation of the required bond market disclosure.


SECTION I


ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX REMAINDER


In any Fiscal Year which the Annual Special Taxes collected from Developed Property exceeds


the amount needed to make regularly scheduled annual interest and principal payments on


outstanding Bonds, replenish the reserve fund for the Bonds, and pay Administrative Expenses,


the School District may use such amount for acquisition, construction or financing of school


facilities, certain costs associated with the maintenance and operations of school facilities, or as


otherwise permitted within the Mitigation Agreement, in accordance with the Act, District


proceedings and other applicable laws as determined by the Board.


SECTIONJ
TERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAX


The Annual Special Tax shall be levied for a term of five (5) Fiscal Years after the final maturity


of the last series of Bonds, provided that the Annual Special Tax shall not be levied later than


Fiscal Year 2060/2061. However, the Special Tax may cease to be levied in an earlier Fiscal Year


if the Board has determined (i) that all required interest and principal payments on the Bonds


have been paid, (ii) all authorized facilities of the District have been acquired and all


reimbursements have been paid, and (iii) all other obligations of the District have been satisfied.


SECTIONK
EXEMPTIONS


The Administrator shall classify as Exempt Property in the chronological order in which each


Assessor Parcel becomes (i) owned by the State of California, federal or other local


govemment(s), (ii) used as places of worship and are exempt from ad valorem property taxes


because they are owned by a religious organization, (iii) owned by a homeowners' association,


(ív) burdened with a public or utility easements making impractical their utilization for other


than the purposes set forth in the easement, or (v) any other Assessor's Parcels at the reasonable


discretion of the Board, provided that no such classification would reduce the Net Taxable


Acreage to less than 20.2081 ("Minimum Taxable Acreage").


Notwithstanding the above, the Administrator or Board shall not classify an Assessor's Parcel


as Exempt Property if such classíflcation would reduce the sum of all Taxable Property to less


than the Minimum Taxable Acreage. Assessor's Parcels which cannot be classified as Exempt


Property because such classificatíon would reduce the Acreage of all Taxable Property to less


than the Minimum Taxable Acreage will be classified as Provisional Undeveloped Property, as


applicable, and will continue to be subject to Special Taxes accordingly.


RMA_ROI Page 13 of 14 June 14, 2017







SECTIONL
APPEALS


Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct


may file a written notice of appeal with the Administrator to be received by the Administrator


not later than six (6) months after having paid the first installment of the Special Tax that is


disputed. The reissuance or cancellation of a building permit is not an eligible reason for


appeal. ill order to be considered sufficient, any notice of appeal must (i) specifically identify


the property by address and Assessor's Parcel Number, (ií) state the amount in dispute and


whether it is the whole amount or only a portion of the Annual Special Tax, (ill) state all


grounds on which the property owner is disputing the amount or application of the Annual


Special Tax, including a reasonably detailed explanation as to why the amount or application of


such Special Tax is incorrect, (iv) include all documentation, if any, in support of the claim, and


(v) be verified under penalty of perjury by the person who paid the Special Tax or his or her


guardian, executor or administrator. The Administrator shall promptly review the appeal, and


if necessary, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the


amount of the Special Tax, and rule on the appeal. If the representative's decision requires that


the Spedal Tax for an Assessor's Parcel be modified or changed in favor of the property owner,


a cash refund shall not be made (except for the last year of levy), but an adjustment shall be


made to the Annual Special Tax on that Assessor's Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s) as the


representative's decision shall indicate.


SECTIONM
MANNER OF COLLECTION


The Annual Spedal Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary


ad valorem property taxes and shall be subject to the same penalties, the same procedure, sale


and lien priority in the case of delinquency; provided, however, that the District may directly


bill all or a portion of the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a


different manner if necessary to meet its financial obligations, and if so collected, a delinquent


penalty of ten percent (10%) of the Special Tax will attach at 5:00 p.m. on the date the Special


Tax becomes delinquent and interest at 1.5%per month of the Special Tax will attach on the July


1 after the delinquency date and the first of each month thereafter until such Special Taxes are


paid.


RMA_ROI Page 14 of 14 June 14, 2017







EXHIBIT A


CERTIFICATE TO ADJUST SPECIAL TAX


DISTRICT CERTIFICATE


1. Pursuant to Section C of the Rate and Method of Apportionment, Community


Facilities District No. 2017-2 ("District") of the Lake Elsinore Unified School District


hereby approves a reduction in the Assigned Annual Special Tax for Developed


Property, Approved Property, Undeveloped Property, and Provisional


Undeveloped Property within the District.


a. The information in Table 2 relating to the Fiscal Year 2017/2018Assigned Annual


Special Tax for Developed Property within the District shall be modified as


follows:


Table 2


Assigned Annual Special Taxes for


D


5


2


3


4


6


b. The Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Assigned Annual Special Tax for each Assessor's


Parcel of Approved Property, Undeveloped Property, and Provisional


Undeveloped Property, as adjusted annually, pursuant to Section D.2 of the


RMA shall be $[__ ] per acre.


Date: -J 20_ By: _
Administrator







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement



Neva

Text Box

Joint Community Facilities Agreement



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT C







 


JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT


by and among


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2 OF THE
LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT,


CITY OF WILDOMAR,


and


BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC


relating to


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2
OF THE LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT


Dated December 15, 2021







TABLE OF CONTENTS


i


ARTICLE I GENERAL PROVISIONS ...........................................................................................................2
Section 1.1. Recitals ................................................................................................................2
Section 1.2. Definitions. ..........................................................................................................2


ARTICLE II FORMATION OF CFD NO. 2017-2 AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS........................................4
Section 2.1. Formation of CFD No. 2017-2...........................................................................4
Section 2.2. Issuance and Sale of Bonds. ..............................................................................4
Section 2.3. Bond Proceeds ....................................................................................................4
Section 2.4. Disbursements for City Charges.......................................................................4
Section 2.5. Responsibility for City Charges and Facilities. ...............................................5
Section 2.6. Responsibility for Debt Service or Special Taxes............................................6
Section 2.7. Administration of CFD No. 2017-2...................................................................6
Section 2.8. Tax Matters ........................................................................................................6
Section 2.9. Debt Management Policy Compliance .............................................................8


ARTICLE III TERM AND TERMINATION ..................................................................................................8
Section 3.1. Effective Date .....................................................................................................8
Section 3.2. Term and Termination ......................................................................................8


ARTICLE IV ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS...............................................................................8
Section 4.1. Recordkeeping: Inspection of Records ............................................................8
Section 4.2. Partial Invalidity ................................................................................................9
Section 4.3. Successors and Assigns ......................................................................................9
Section 4.4. Limitation on Rights ..........................................................................................9
Section 4.5. Notice...................................................................................................................9
Section 4.6. Captions ............................................................................................................10
Section 4.7. Governing Law.................................................................................................10
Section 4.8. Entire Agreement.............................................................................................10
Section 4.9. Amendments .....................................................................................................10
Section 4.10. Waiver ...............................................................................................................10
Section 4.11. Cooperation and Execution of Documents ....................................................10
Section 4.12. Attorneys’ Fees.................................................................................................10
Section 4.13. Exhibits .............................................................................................................10
Section 4.14. Signatories ........................................................................................................11
Section 4.15. Execution in Counterparts ..............................................................................11


EXHIBIT “A” PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
EXHIBIT “B” CITY FACILITIES DESCRIPTION
EXHIBIT “C” PAYMENT REQUEST FORM







 


JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2 OF THE
LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT,


CITY OF WILDOMAR,
AND


BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC


(Community Facilities District No. 2017-2
of the Lake Elsinore Unified School District)


This JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into as of the 15th day of December, 2021 by and among the CITY OF WILDOMAR, a general law city 
(“City”), COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2 OF THE LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT, a Mello-Roos community facilities district organized and operating pursuant to the 
applicable provisions of the California Government Code (“CFD No. 2017-2”), and BEAZER HOMES 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, successor by conversion to Beazer Homes 
Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Beazer”).  The parties hereto may be referred to in some instances 
as a party (“Party”) or parties (“Parties”).


R E C I T A L S


A. Beazer is the master developer of the property described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”).


B. Beazer expects the Property will be developed for residential purposes and have obtained the 
necessary development approvals for approximately 108 single-family detached residential units (“SF/DU”) 
on the Property (“Project”).


C. Pursuant to the request of Beazer, the Governing Board of the Lake Elsinore Unified School 
District (“School District”) has formed CFD No. 2017-2 pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 53311 of the Government Code 
of the State of California (“Act”), and the terms and conditions of the School Facilities Funding and 
Mitigation Agreement by and between the School District and Beazer dated as of June 14, 2017 (“School 
Facilities Mitigation Agreement”).  


D. Development of the Project will require the payment, pursuant to the development 
requirements of the City, as such may be amended from time to time (“City Rules and Regulations”), of 
development impact and capital improvement fees and charges (“City Charges”), proceeds of which will be 
used by City to construct public facilities to be owned and/or operated by City as further described herein 
(“City Facilities”), to be paid from Bond Proceeds and/or Surplus Special Taxes (both as defined herein) of 
CFD No. 2017-2 to the extent such funds are available pursuant to the School Facilities Mitigation 
Agreement.  Also, development of the Property will require mitigation payments to be paid to the School 
District which may be reimbursed or satisfied by funds of CFD No. 2017-2 as provided for by the School 
Facilities Mitigation Agreement.


E. CFD No. 2017-2 and City are authorized by Section 53313.5 of the Act to finance the City 
Charges for the acquisition and/or construction of the City Facilities and the costs of the School Facilities of 







 2


CFD No. 2017-2.  This Agreement constitutes a “joint community facilities agreement” (“JCFA”) within the 
meaning of Section 53316.2 of the Act by and between City, CFD No. 2017-2 and Beazer, pursuant to which 
CFD No. 2017-2 has been authorized to finance the City Facilities to be funded by the City Charges. The 
Parties hereto understand that the requirements of Government Code Section 53316.2(e) will be satisfied 
inasmuch as the amount paid by CFD No. 2017-2 to the School District for School Facilities from the 
proceeds of both Special Taxes (defined herein) and Bond Proceeds (defined herein) will exceed the amount 
paid by CFD No. 2017-2 from the combination of such sources for City Facilities, as shown in the CFD 
No. 2017-2 CFD Report submitted to the Governing Board of the School District.  As provided by 
Section 53316.6 of the Act, City shall be responsible for operating or maintaining the City Facilities and for 
the design and construction of the City Facilities.  


F. The Parties hereto find and determine that the residents of City, the School District and CFD 
No. 2017-2 will be benefitted by the construction and/or acquisition of the City Facilities and the School 
Facilities and that this Agreement is beneficial to the interests of such entities and residents.


ARTICLE I
GENERAL PROVISIONS


Section 1.1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated by this 
reference.


Section 1.2. Definitions.


Unless the context clearly otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Section shall, for all purposes 
of this Agreement, have the meanings herein specified.


(a) “Act” means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, 
commencing with Government Code Section 53311, et seq.


(b) “Agreement” means this Joint Communities Facilities Agreement.


(c) “Board” means the Governing Board (Board of Trustees) of the Lake Elsinore 
Unified School District.


(d) “Bond Proceeds” or “Proceeds of the Bonds” shall mean those net funds generated 
by the sale of the Bonds.


(e) “Bond Resolution” means collectively that Resolution, Resolution Supplement, 
Fiscal Agent Agreement, and/or other equivalent document(s), providing for the issuance of Bonds.


(f) “Bonds” shall mean those bonds, or other securities, issued by, or on behalf of, and 
as authorized by the qualified electors within, CFD No. 2017-2.







 3


(g) “CFD No. 2017-2” means Community Facilities District No. 2017-2 of the Lake 
Elsinore Unified School District.


(h) “CFD Proceeds” means Bond Proceeds and Surplus Special Taxes (as such term is 
defined in the School Facilities Mitigation Agreement).  


(i) “City Charges” means the development impact and capital improvement fees of the 
City applicable to the Property.


(j) “City Facilities” means those facilities to be owned or operated by City and to be 
funded by the City Charges as generally described in Exhibit ”B” and which have not been previously funded 
with bond proceeds.


(k) “City Facilities Fund” means the fund(s) and/or account(s) (regardless of final 
designation in the Bond Resolution) into which a portion of the Bond Proceeds may be deposited, in 
accordance with the School Facilities Mitigation Agreement, for payment of City Charges to acquire or 
construct the City Facilities applicable to the Property.


(l) “City Representative” means the City Manager or his or her designee.


(m) “Deposit” means an amount deposited by a property owner with City in lieu of 
payment of City Charges prior to the availability of CFD Proceeds, which deposits shall be reimbursed upon 
City’s receipt of CFD Proceeds.


(n)  “Rate and Method” means the Rate and Method of Apportionment of the Special 
Taxes authorized for levy and collection within CFD No. 2017-2 pursuant to proceedings undertaken for the 
formation of CFD No. 2017-2 pursuant to the Act.


(o) “Special Taxes” means the special taxes expected to be authorized to be levied and 
collected pursuant to the Act and the final Rate and Method as approved by CFD No. 2017-2.


(p) “State” means the State of California.


Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and constructed to include correlative words of the 
feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context clearly otherwise indicates, words importing the singular 
number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include 
corporations and associations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons.


The terms “hereby,” “hereof,” “herein,” “hereunder’ and any similar terms, as used in this 
Agreement, refer to this Agreement.







 4


ARTICLE II
FORMATION OF CFD NO. 2017-2 AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS


Section 2.1. Formation of CFD No. 2017-2.  The School District, pursuant to the School 
Facilities Mitigation Agreement, has formed CFD No. 2017-2, authorized the Special Taxes and authorized 
maximum bonded indebtedness of CFD No. 2017-2.  


Section 2.2. Issuance and Sale of Bonds.  The Governing Board, acting as the Legislative Body 
of CFD No. 2017-2 may, in its sole discretion, in accordance with its adopted policies (“CFD Policies”) and 
subject to the School Facilities Mitigation Agreement, adopt a Bond Resolution and issue Bonds, in one or 
more series, for CFD No. 2017-2.


Section 2.3. Bond Proceeds.  Upon completion of the issuance of the Bonds and receipt of the 
Bond Proceeds, CFD No. 2017-2 shall determine the amount of the Bond Proceeds allocable to finance the 
City Charges to be used by City to construct the City Facilities in order to accommodate development of the 
Property in accordance with the CFD Policies and the School Facilities Mitigation Agreement. CFD 
No. 2017-2 may (i) pay directly to City the City Charges applicable to SF/DUs within the Property for which 
Deposits have been made (at which time, City will return to Beazer or its written designee all of the 
corresponding prior Deposits) and (ii) pay City for the City Charges for SF/DUs within the Property for which 
prior Deposits have not been made (in which case Beazer or its written designee shall receive credit for the 
City Charges for such SF/DUs), all as shall be coordinated with City and Beazer from time to time as 
described in Section 2.4.  


Section 2.4. Disbursements for City Charges.


Upon and following the funding of the City Facilities Fund, Beazer may execute and submit a 
payment request to CFD No. 2017-2 requesting disbursement from the City Facilities Fund to City of an 
amount equal to (but not greater than) the prior Deposits.  Upon City’s receipt of such payment, the prior 
Deposits shall be returned to Beazer or its written designee.  The payment request shall be substantially in 
the form set forth in Exhibit ”C” of this Agreement (“Payment Request”) and shall be verified by the City, as 
referenced below.  In addition, following the funding of the City Facilities Fund, Beazer may notify City in 
writing and request a disbursement from the City Facilities Fund to fund City Charges for all or a portion of 
the remaining SF/DUs within the Project for which Deposits have not been made, up to the total allowed fee 
amount per SF/DU, by executing and submitting a Payment Request.  Upon City’s acknowledgment/approval 
of such Payment Request relating to City Charges and City’s receipt of payment from CFD No. 2017-2, 
Beazer or its written designee shall be deemed to have satisfied the portion of the applicable City Charges 
paid therefrom to City with respect to the number of SF/DUs for which the City Charges would otherwise 
have been required in an amount equal to such disbursement.  Upon receipt of each Payment Request 
completed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, CFD No. 2017-2 shall wire transfer, or otherwise 
pay, to City such requested funds to the extent that Bond Proceeds are available in the City Facilities Fund 
for such purpose and for such corresponding City Facilities.







 5


City agrees that prior to submitting a Payment Request for City Facilities requesting payment from 
CFD No. 2017-2, an City representative shall review and approve all disbursements included in such request.


To the extent Surplus Special Taxes are available pursuant to the terms of the School Facilities 
Mitigation Agreement (and as defined herein) for such purposes, Payment Requests submitted pursuant to 
this Section 2.4 may also be paid from Surplus Special Taxes.  


Section 2.5. Responsibility for City Charges and Facilities.


(a) The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the final responsibility for the 
payment of the City Charges and the cost(s) of facilities required by City to be provided by Beazer for the 
Project lies with Beazer.  The responsibility for maintenance or operation of City Facilities lies with City.


(b) Beazer shall pay to City as a Deposit the requisite City Charges for each SF/DU at 
the time required by the City Rules and Regulations.  Prior to the issuance of Bonds, any payments of City 
Charges that have been made, or will be made, shall be Deposits to be held by City.  When Bonds are issued 
and Bond Proceeds are paid to City in an amount equal to or exceeding the prior Deposits, the Deposits shall 
be returned to Beazer or its written designee.  If and to the extent the amount of Bond Proceeds paid to the 
City exceeds the amount of the prior Deposits, Beazer shall receive a credit against City Charges payable 
after the issuance of Bonds in an amount equal to the amount received by the City in excess of the prior 
Deposits.  If the amount derived from Bond Proceeds, including investment earnings thereon, if any, are not 
sufficient to fund the total cost of the remaining, unpaid City Charges for the Project, the Parties hereto agree 
that all responsibility and liability for the amount of the remaining City Charges shall be and remain with 
Beazer and shall not lie with the School District, CFD No. 2017-2 or City.  City and Beazer may enter into a 
separate agreement(s) which may address such situation.  Beazer and City agree that Beazer will pay to City 
the City Charges for SF/DUs that are not funded from Bond Proceeds occurring after the date such Bonds are 
delivered, at the time such payment(s) to City would otherwise be due.  City shall not issue certificates of 
occupancy for any SF/DU for which a Deposit has not been made or sufficient credit is not available pursuant 
to this Section 2.5(b) without payment of the applicable City Charges.


(c) In addition to, and separate from, the City Charges referenced above, the Parties 
acknowledge that City may require Beazer, pursuant to the City Rules and Regulations, to design, construct 
and dedicate certain facilities to City, as a condition of the development approvals for the Project. The Parties 
hereto agree and acknowledge that all responsibility and obligation for the design, construction and dedication 
of such facilities to City, in accordance with all applicable statutes and the City Rules and Regulations, shall 
be and remain the responsibility of Beazer.


(d) City agrees to utilize or apply funds provided to it, as set forth herein, for the City 
Facilities. The School District/CFD No. 2017-2 hereby agrees that funds provided to City or Beazer from the 
Bond Proceeds shall not constitute a credit against City Charges payable by the School District/CFD No. 
2017-2 relating to its construction of School Facilities, if any.







 6


(e) City expressly acknowledges that the Bonds are subject to Federal tax requirements 
applicable to federally tax-exempt securities. Upon request from the School District/CFD No. 2017-2 prior 
to the issuance of Bonds, City shall promptly confirm in writing to the School District/CFD No. 2017-2 that 
the City Facilities to be financed with Bond Proceeds have not been previously financed with the proceeds of 
other federally tax-exempt securities or bonds. City agrees to promptly provide written notice to the School 
District/CFD No. 2017-2 of any such financing of City Facilities financed hereunder until the issuance of the 
Bonds.


(f) City and the School District are public agencies in the State and are subject to the 
provisions of law relating to public contracts.  It is agreed that all provisions of law applicable to public 
contracts are a part of this Agreement, to the same extent as though set forth herein, and will be complied 
with by City and the School District, including but not limited to any applicable prevailing wage requirements.


(g) Beazer shall assume the defense of, indemnify and save harmless, the City, their 
respective officers, employees and agents, and each and every one of them, from and against all actions, 
damages, claims, losses or expenses of every type and description to which they may be subjected or put, by 
reason of, or resulting from, any act or omission of Beazer with respect to the terms of this Agreement; 
provided, however, that Beazer shall not be required to indemnify any person or entity as to damages resulting 
from negligence or willful misconduct of such person or entity or their officers, agents or employees.


Section 2.6. Responsibility for Debt Service or Special Taxes.  City’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall be limited to its obligations with respect to the design, construction, ownership, operation 
and maintenance of the City Facilities to be funded by the City Charges and the express terms hereof, and 
City shall have no obligation, responsibility, or authority with respect to the issuance and sale of the Bonds, 
the payment of the principal and interest thereon or for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes to provide 
for the payment of principal and interest thereon, and CFD No. 2017-2 shall have the sole authority and 
responsibility for all such matters.


The Parties hereto specifically agree that the liabilities of CFD No. 2017-2 and all property owners 
within CFD No. 2017-2 pursuant to the documents providing for the issuance of Bonds, including the Bond 
Resolution, shall not be, or become, liabilities of City. 


Section 2.7. Administration of CFD No. 2017-2.  The School District shall have the power and 
duty to provide for the administration of CFD No. 2017-2 and once it is formed, subject to the terms hereof 
and the School Facilities Mitigation Agreement, and as such may be amended, including employing and 
compensating all consultants and providing for the various other administration duties set forth in this 
Agreement. It is understood and agreed by Parties hereto that City will not be considered a participant in the 
proceedings relative to formation of CFD No. 2017-2 or the issuance of the Bonds, other than as a Party to 
this Agreement.


Section 2.8. Tax Matters.  In connection with the issuance of any Bonds, a portion of the Bond 
Proceeds which are to be made available for the payment of City Charges, City agrees to promptly execute 
and deliver such certifications and agreements as may be reasonably required in order for Bond Counsel to 
conclude that interest on such Bonds will be excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986. City, which may consult and request information from Bond Counsel for the Bonds, 
further agrees that it shall not use Bond Proceeds provided to pay City Charges in any manner that would 







 7


cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. City 
represents the following with respect to the use of the Bond Proceeds provided to pay City Charges:


(a) In General. The Bond Proceeds provided to pay City Charges will not be used for 
any activities that constitute a “Private Use” (as such term is defined below in subsection (b)).


(b) Definition of Private Use. For purposes of this Section 2.8, the term “Private Use” 
means any activity that constitutes a trade or business that is carried on by persons or entities, other than 
governmental entities. The leasing of the facilities or the access of a person or entity other than a governmental 
unit to property or services on a basis other than as a member of the general public (“General Public Use”) 
shall constitute a Private Use unless City obtains an opinion of bond counsel to the contrary. Use of the Bond 
Proceeds in a trade or business constitutes General Public Use only if the property is intended to be available 
and is in fact reasonably available for use on the same basis by natural persons not engaged in a trade or 
business.  The federal government shall be considered to be a person or entity that is not a governmental 
entity for purposes of this paragraph.


(c) Management and Service Contracts. With respect to management and service 
contracts, the determination of whether a particular use of the City Facilities constitutes Private Use shall be 
determined on the basis of applying Revenue Procedure 97 13, 1997 1 C.B. 632 (as modified by IRS Notice 
2014-67).  City represents that, as of the date hereof, no portion of the City Facilities is expected to be subject 
to contracts or other arrangements with persons or entities engaged in a trade or business (other than 
governmental units) that involve the management of property or the provision of services that do not comply 
with the standards of the Revenue Procedure 97 13 (as modified by IRS Notice 2014-67).  As of the date 
hereof, no portion of City Charges or City Facilities are expected to be used to provide property subject to 
contracts or other arrangements with persons or entities engaged in a trade or business (other than 
governmental units) that involve the management of property or the provision of services that do not comply 
with the standards of the Revenue Procedure 97 13 (as modified by IRS Notice 2014-67).  The City agrees to 
provide CFD No. 2017-2 written notice should the matters in this paragraph undergo material change.


(d) Unless the City otherwise informs CFD No. 2017-2 at the time of issuance of Bonds, 
the proceeds of which are to finance City Facilities, CFD No. 2017-2 may deem the City to have represented 
at such time that it reasonably expects acquisition, construction and installation of the City Facilities to be 
financed with such proceeds will be substantially completed within 3 years from the date of issuance of such 
Bonds. City further agrees to maintain Bond Proceeds provided to pay City Charges in a separate account, 
apart from all other accounts of City. City shall maintain adequate controls over its payments, and of Bond 
Proceeds provided to pay City Charges accounting records, in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles as to its receipt and expenditure of Bond Proceeds provided to pay City Charges for the City 
Facilities. City will, upon request, provide School District with access to City records related to the City 
Facilities and will provide to the School District its annual financial report certified by an 







 8


independent certified public accountant upon either Party’s request and payment of applicable copying 
charges, if any, in accordance with the City Public Record Act guidelines.


(e) CFD No. 2017-2, through the School District, agrees to maintain full and accurate 
records of all amounts, and investment earnings, if any, expended from the City Facilities Fund for the City 
Facilities.  CFD No. 2017-2, through the School District, will, upon request, provide City and/or Beazer with 
access to CFD No. 2017-2’s records relating to the City Facilities Fund.  


Section 2.9. Debt Management Policy Compliance.  The School District/CFD No. 2017-2 and 
City are public agencies required to maintain a debt management policy in compliance with Section 8855(i)(l) 
of the California Government Code.  The School District/CFD No. 2017-2 and City each represent that they 
are in compliance with their respective policy as it relates to the execution and performance of the terms of 
this Agreement.  Such Parties agree that they will promptly confirm, in writing, the existence of such policies 
upon request of any other Party to this Agreement. 


ARTICLE III
TERM AND TERMINATION


Section 3.1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective and of full force and effect 
as of the date (“Effective Date”) it is approved by the governing boards of all of the Parties, to be confirmed 
by the execution hereof by the authorized representatives of the Parties hereto.


Section 3.2. Term and Termination.  If the School District/CFD No. 2017-2 is unable to 
complete the sale of the first series of Bonds prior to December 31, 2028, this agreement shall thereafter 
automatically terminate and be of no further force or effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that 
such term shall expire without issuance of Bonds by the School District/CFD No. 2017-2, the Parties to this 
Agreement may further extend the term hereof by additional one (1) years terms (each ending on 
December 31) by letter agreement of the Parties without need to further amend the terms hereof or further 
approval by the Governing Board of the District or City Council of the City.  In addition, if Bonds are not 
issued within three (3) years after payment of the first City Charges, or are issued but are insufficient to fully 
fund City Charges, City may, in its discretion, expend all or a portion of the Deposits made to finance City 
Facilities.


ARTICLE IV
ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS


Section 4.1. Recordkeeping: Inspection of Records.  Each Party hereto agrees to keep and 
maintain full and accurate records of all amounts, and investment earnings, if any, paid to City for the City 
Facilities as to the respective portions of the Property and amounts expended from the City Facilities Fund as 
provided for in the School Facilities Mitigation Agreement. Each Party further agrees to make such records 
available to the other Party hereto during normal business hours upon reasonable prior notice. All such records 
shall be kept and maintained by the appropriate Party as provided by applicable law and their respective 
policies.







 9


City and Beazer agree that they will cooperate in a timely manner with CFD No. 2017-2 and the 
School District, on behalf of the CFD No. 2017-2, in providing documentation, reports or other data 
reasonably required and requested by the School District and/or CFD No. 2017-2 in meeting the reporting 
requirements of the CFD No. 2017-2 under Sections 50075.1, 50075.3, and 50075.5 and Article 1.5 
(commencing with Section 53410) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of, the Government Code 
(collectively, the “Local Agency Special Tax and Bond Accountability Act”). City’s reporting obligations 
pursuant to this section shall be limited to providing reports or other data detailing the following: (A) the 
amount of CFD No. 2017-2 funds received by City to fund City Charges, (B) the amount of such CFD 
No. 2017-2 funds deposited in separate funds or accounts of City reflecting the City Charges and the number 
of dwelling units for which such City Charges apply, (C) a brief description concerning the City Facilities 
financed from such City funds or accounts, and (D) the balance, if any, of each such fund and account in 
which CFD No. 2017-2 funds were deposited.


Section 4.2. Partial Invalidity.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall be given effect to 
the fullest extent reasonably possible.


Section 4.3. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the successors and assigns of the Party hereto. This Agreement may not be assigned without the 
prior written consent of the other Parties hereto, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and any 
such non-consented assignment shall be void. 


Section 4.4. Limitation on Rights.  This Agreement is for the sole benefit of City, CFD No. 
2017-2 and Beazer and their successors and assigns (excluding property owners of residential lots within 
CFD No. 2017-2 who are end users, who shall not be considered to be the successors or assigns of Beazer 
and shall have no rights hereunder).   Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to give to any person other than CFD No. 2017-2, City, the School District or Beazer any legal or 
equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Agreement or any covenant, condition or provision 
herein contained; and all such covenants, conditions and provisions are and shall be held to be for the sole 
and exclusive benefit of CFD No. 2017-2, City, the School District or Beazer.


Section 4.5. Notice.  Any notice, payment or instrument required or permitted by this Agreement 
to be given or delivered to any Party or other person shall be deemed to have been received when personally 
delivered or upon deposit of the same in the United States Post Office registered or certified, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows:


School District/ Lake Elsinore Unified School District
CFD No. 2017-2: 545 Chaney Street


Lake Elsinore, CA 92530
Attention: Assistant Superintendent, Fiscal Support Services


City: City of Wildomar
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595
Attention: City Manager







10


Property Owner: Beazer Homes Holdings, LLC
310 Commerce, Suite 150
Irvine, CA  92602
Attn:  Division President


Any Party can change its address for delivery of notice by delivering written notice of such change 
or address to the other Parties within ten (10) calendar days prior to such change. 


Section 4.6. Captions.  The captions to Sections used herein are for convenience purposes only 
and are not part of this Agreement. 


Section 4.7. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts made and performed in such State.


Section 4.8. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 
Parties with respect to the matters provided for herein and supersedes all prior agreements and negotiations 
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.


Section 4.9. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing 
executed by the authorized representative(s) of each of the Parties hereto.


Section 4.10. Waiver.  The failure of any Party hereto to insist on compliance within any of the 
terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by any other Party hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of 
such terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by such other Party, nor shall any waiver constitute a 
relinquishment of any other right or power for all or any other times. 


Section 4.11. Cooperation and Execution of Documents.  The Parties hereto agree to complete 
and execute any further or additional documents which may be necessary to complete or further the terms of 
this Agreement.


Section 4.12. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of the bringing of any action or suit by any Party 
against another Party arising out of this Agreement, the Party in whose favor final judgment shall be entered 
shall be entitled to recover from the other Party all costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees.


Section 4.13. Exhibits.  The following exhibits attached hereto are incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference.


Exhibit Description


“A” Property Description


“B” City Facilities Descriptions


“C” Payment Request Form 


Section 4.14. Signatories







11


.  The signatories hereto represent that they have been appropriately authorized to enter into this Agreement 
on behalf of the party for whom they sign. 


Section 4.15. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original.


[Signature Pages Follow]







[Joint Community Facilities District Signature Page]


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year 
written alongside their signature below.


COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2017-2 OF THE LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT


By:
President of the Governing Board of the
Lake Elsinore Unified School District


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & 
ROMO
Attorneys for Lake Elsinore Unified School 
District, acting on behalf of Community Facilities 
District No. 2017-2


By:


ATTEST:


By:
Clerk of the Governing Board of the
Lake Elsinore Unified School District


CITY OF WILDOMAR


By:
Title: 


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


Attorneys for City of Wildomar


By:
Name:


[Signatures continued on next page]







 [Joint Community Facilities District Signature Page]


 BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS, LLC, a California 
limited liability company, successor by conversion to 
Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., a Delaware 
corporation


By:
Name:
Title:







 A-1


EXHIBIT “A”


PROPERTY DESCRIPTION


Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 380-060-007 and 380-060-008 of the County of Riverside, consisting of 35.2 
acres of real property located in the City of Wildomar, County of Riverside, State of California.  







 B-1


EXHIBIT “B”


CITY FACILITIES DESCRIPTION


The “City Facilities” consist generally of the acquisition, purchase, construction, expansion, 
improvement, or rehabilitation of public improvements that are owned, operated or maintained by the City, 
including, without limitation, streets, trails, intersection improvements, traffic signals, medians, parks, civic 
facilities and drainage improvements and include all direct and incidental expenses related thereto such as 
site acquisition, planning, design, engineering, environmental review(s), legal services, materials testing, 
coordination, surveying, construction staking, construction management, consulting services, inspection and 
any and all appurtenant facilities and appurtenant work related to the foregoing.







 C-1


EXHIBIT “C”


PAYMENT REQUEST FORM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-2


PAYMENT REQUEST FORM – CITY FACILITIES FUND


[See Attached City of Wildomar-Property Owner
Verification/Certification of City Charges]


( ) PROGRESS PAYMENT
( ) FULL/FINAL PAYMENT


The Fiscal Agent is hereby requested to pay from the City Facilities Fund established by Resolution 
No. ____ of the Legislative Body of the School District, adopted on ____________, _____, and the Fiscal 
Agent Agreement dated as of ______________, _____, executed in accordance therewith, to the person, 
corporation, or other entity designated below as Payee, the sum set forth below such designation, in payment 
of the City Charges described below. The amount shown below is due and payable under the School Facilities 
Mitigation Agreement and/or the Joint Community Facilities Agreement and authorization with respect to 
the City Charges described below and has not formed the basis of any prior request for payment of the City 
Charges.


Payee: [City]


Address: __________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________


Amount: $_________________________________________________________________


Description of City Charges or portion thereof accepted by Community Facilities District No. 2017-2 and 
authorized to be paid to the Payee: 


Number of:______ Single Family Detached/Dwelling Units (SF/DUs) _________
Per Tract Map #________ x=s $_________ per SF/DU = $___________________


Total City Charges Paid: $_______________________________________


Executed by Authorized Representative for Community 
Facilities District No. 2017-2


Signature:
Name:
Title:
Dated:  


Payment Request No.:  
[Attach to all requisitions copies of City verification(s)/Property Owner certification(s)]







 C-2


[Exhibit C (Continued)]


[ON CITY OF WILDOMAR LETTERHEAD]


VERIFICATION BY CITY OF WILDOMAR


CHECK ONE:


[___] 1. As an authorized representative and on behalf of the City of Wildomar (City), I hereby verify that 
the above-referenced City Charges amount of $___________was previously paid to City by 
[Property Owner name ] for development impact and capital improvement fees for City Facilities 
imposed by the City, and such City Charges have not been reimbursed to [Property Owner name ] 
(or to any of its successors and assigns).


[___] 2. As an authorized representative and on behalf of City, I hereby verify that the above-referenced 
City Charges amount of $______________ is currently due City from [Property Owner name] for 
development impact and capital improvement fees for City Facilities imposed by the City, and such 
City Charges amounts have not been previously reimbursed to [Property Owner name] (or to any of 
its successors and assigns).


Dated:  _______________, 200___ By:________________________________
Authorized Representative of
City of Wildomar


Name: _____________________________


Title: ______________________________







 C-3


[Exhibit C (Continued)]


[ON PROPERTY OWNER LETTERHEAD]


CERTIFICATION AND REPRESENTATION OF [PROPERTY OWNER]


CHECK ONE:


[___] 1. On behalf of [ Property Owner name ], I hereby certify and represent that the above-referenced 
City Charges amount of $_______________ was previously paid to City as a Deposit by [Property 
Owner name], for development impact and capital improvement fees imposed by City, and such City 
Charges amounts have not been previously reimbursed by City to [Property Owner name] (or to any 
of its successors and assigns).


[___] 2. On behalf of [ Property Owner name ], I hereby certify and represent that the above-referenced 
City Charges amount of $___________ is currently due City from [ Property Owner name ] for 
development impact and capital improvement fees imposed by City on [Property Owner name], and 
such City Charges amounts have not been previously reimbursed to [Property Owner name] (or to 
any of its successors and assigns).


Dated:  _______________, 200___ By:________________________________
Authorized Representative of
[Property Owner name]


Name: _____________________________


Title: _______________________________







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.10 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Western Riverside Council of Governments Updated Joint Powers 


Agreement 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to 
the Joint Powers Agreement of the Western Riverside Council of Governments. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) of the Western Riverside Council of Governments 
(WRCOG) was made and entered into on April 1, 1991.  The purpose of the formation 
of the WRCOG JPA is to provide an agency to conduct studies and projects designed to 
improve and coordinate the common governmental responsibilities and services on an 
area-wide and regional basis through the establishment of an association of 
governments.  From time to time through recommendations of the Executive Committee 
updates are considered to the JPA requiring approval of a 2/3rds majority of the 
member agencies.  The City of Wildomar is a member agency and is represented on 
the Executive Committee by a member appointed by the City Council. 
 
DISCUSSION 
On November 1, 2021, the Executive Committee acted to amend the JPA. A partial list 
of key changes is listed below. For a full scope of changes, please refer to the attached 
red lined document. The changes are intended to: 
 
1. Remove references to the membership of the Morongo Band of Mission Indians. 
 
2. Modernize language and processes, including removal of references to use of 
member agency employees to perform day-to-day WRCOG Agency business. 
 
3. Completely revise indemnity language to better articulate WRCOG responsibility to 
indemnify member agencies. 
 
4. Remove outdated arbitration provision. 
 
 







WRCOG requested that the City place this matter at an upcoming City Council agenda 
to consider the recommendation from WRCOG’s Executive Committee, which is to 
Authorize the Mayor to execute the Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement of the 
Western Riverside Council of Governments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
Submitted by:      Submitted by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Redlined version of the changes made to the JPA 
2. Clean copy of JPA for signature 































































































































































































































 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.11 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Gary Nordquist, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  Financial Services Contract for Municipal Consulting Services LLC 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to execute a 
contract with Municipal Consulting Services LLC to provide financial services to the City 
of Wildomar. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Municipal Consulting Services (MCS) LLC has been assisting the City with financial 
consulting services since 2017.  James R. Riley, CPA, who works for MCS LLC has 
worked with the City since 2015. The City has various projects it needs to complete, which 
include preparing RFPs for audit services and banking services, updating the City’s 
Franchise Agreements, and assisting with its upgrade to a new Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP) system. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The contract is for $150,000 for the next year and half, ending June 30, 2023, at a rate of 
$110 per hour. The funds for these contract services are included in the FY2021/22-22/23 
Adopted Biennial Budget.  
 
 
Submitted and Approved By: 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A.  Agreement for Services Between City and Municipal Consulting Services LLC 


 
 







 


Attachment A 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
 
 


By and Between 
 
 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


a municipal corporation 
 
 


and 
 
 


MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 


a limited liability company 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 // 2020  
-1- 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 1 -  


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 
AND 


MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES LLC - CONSULTANT 
 
 


This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this 1st day of 
January, 2022 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC, a consultant (“Service Provider”). City and 
Service Provider are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and 
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


 
RECITALS 


A. City has sought, by direct negotiation and informal quotes the performance 
of the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement. 


 
B. Service Provider, following submission of a quote for the performance of the 


services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement, was selected 
by the City to perform those services. 


 
C. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, City has authority to 


enter into this Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 


 
D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Service Provider for 


performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


 
SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


 
Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 


Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for one year and six months, commencing on 
the date first ascribed above and ending June 30, 2023. 


 
SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 


 
(a) Scope of Services. Service Provider agrees to perform the services set 


forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 2 -  


(b) Schedule of Performance. The Services shall be completed pursuant to the 
schedule specified in Exhibit “A.” Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that 
schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement. The 
City, in its sole discretion, may choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this 
Agreement and may instead allow Service Provider to continue performing the Services. 


 
SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


 
Service Provider shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 


with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement. If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


 
SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay 
Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. The total compensation, including reimbursement for 
actual expenses, shall not exceed One Hundred Fifty Thousand dollars ($150,00.00), 
unless additional compensation is approved in writing in accordance with Section 26 
“Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement. In 
accordance with California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the Not to Exceed 
Amount exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), this Agreement and the 
Service Provider's books and records related to this Agreement shall be subject to the 
examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit 
of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 


 
(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all 


work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month. The invoice shall 
detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Service Provider contracts. Sub-Service Provider charges 
shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment and 
supplies. If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include payment 
of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a lump sum), 
the labor category in each invoice shall include detailed descriptions of task performed 
and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task. City shall independently 
review each invoice submitted by the Service Provider to determine whether the work 
performed, and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 
Agreement. In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be 
approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c). In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City 
to Service Provider for correction and resubmission. 


 
(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 


Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 3 -  


Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s correct and 
undisputed invoice. 


 
(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement 


shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider. 
 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 
 


City may inspect and accept or reject any of Service Provider’s work under this 
Agreement, either during performance or when completed. City shall reject or finally 
accept Service Provider’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City. City shall 
reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Service Provider’s work shall be 
deemed to have been accepted. City’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work 
except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud. 
Acceptance of any of Service Provider’s work by City shall not constitute a waiver of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, Section 16 
“Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


 
SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise 
disposed of by City without the permission of the Service Provider. Upon completion, 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider shall turn over to City all 
such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


 
If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement 


any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, 
notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement, 
Service Provider’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard of Performance” of 
this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 


 
All Final Work Product developed by Service Provider in the course of providing 


the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may 
be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Service 
Provider. Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider 
shall turn over to City all such Final Work Product if paid for by the City. This provision 
specifically excludes Service Providers’ work notes and drafts, which are owned by 
Service Provider, not City. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 4 -  


SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services. Service 
Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this Agreement. Any and 
all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an 
accurate evaluation of the services provided by Service Provider pursuant to this 
Agreement. Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three (3) 
years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


 
(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 


section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative. Copies of 
such documents or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and 
copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed 
upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Service Provider’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


 
(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 


required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, 
require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City. Access to such 
documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest 
and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
 


(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City. Service Provider shall have no 
authority to bind City in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any 
kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority 
is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing 
by City. 


 
(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 


Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and 
control. Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees 
or agents of City, shall have control over the conduct of Service Provider or any of Service 
Provider’s officers, employees, or agents except as set forth in this Agreement. Service 
Provider shall not at any time or in any manner represent that Service Provider or any of 
Service Provider’s officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officials, officers, 
employees or agents of City. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 5 -  


(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees 
or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which 
may otherwise accrue to City’s employees. Service Provider expressly waives any claim 
Service Provider may have to any such rights. 


 
SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


 
Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience 


and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this Agreement 
in a thorough, competent and professional manner. Service Provider shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
Services. In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall employ, 
at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged 
in providing services similar to the Services required of Service Provider under this 
Agreement. In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Service Provider’s work under 
this Agreement. Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific standard of 
performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall prevail over the 
general. 


 
SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Service Provider shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement. Service Provider shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement. 
Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents 
of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Service Provider to 
comply with this section. 


 
SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 


It is the understanding of City and Service Provider that California prevailing wage 
laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the 
following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code 
or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, 
or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under 
contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds. In this context, “construction" 
includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction 
including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 


 
SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 


 
Service Provider shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 


basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 6 -  


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, 
and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein. 
Should Service Provider so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of the 
Services, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use 
of unauthorized aliens, Service Provider hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the 
cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including 
attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 


 
SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


 
(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its 


firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service Provider’s 
performance of the Services. Service Provider further covenants that in the performance 
of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an 
officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City 
Manager. Service Provider agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the 
appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this 
Agreement. 


 
(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date 


of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties. Service Provider is 
unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects. Any future position of City 
on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


 
(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non- 


related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the 
completion of the Services under this Agreement. Any such future service shall not be 
considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


 
SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


 
(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in 


performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider. Service Provider shall not 
release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than 
City without prior written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required 
by law. 


(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the 
City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at 
depositions, response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work 
performed under this Agreement. Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 7 -  


considered "voluntary" provided Service Provider gives City notice of such court order or 
subpoena. 


 
(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 


Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, 
then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for 
any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result 
of Service Provider’s conduct. 


 
Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, 


employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding 
this Agreement and the work performed thereunder. City retains the right, but has no 
obligation, to represent Service Provider or be present at any deposition, hearing or 
similar proceeding. Service Provider agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide 
City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Service Provider. However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. Service Provider shall 
not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State trade secret law for the 
disclosure of a trade secret that is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local 
government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a 
suspected violation of law or for the disclosure of a trade secret that is made in a complaint 
or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. 


 
SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability. Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless 
City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against any and all liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or 
costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorney’s fees and 
costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees) arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any negligent or 
wrongful act, error or omission of Service Provider, or by any individual or entity for which 
Service Provider is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees 
or sub-contractors of Service Provider, in the performance of professional services under 
this Agreement. 


 
(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability. Other than in the 


performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service 
Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its 
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, 
suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, including attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 8 -  


expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any 
way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Service 
Provider, or by any individual or entity for which Service Provider is legally liable, including 
but not limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Service Provider. 


 
(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers. Service Provider agrees to 


obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this 
section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involved 
by, for, with or on behalf of Service Provider in the performance of this Agreement naming 
the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees. In the event Service Provider fails to 
obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees 
to be fully responsible according to the terms of this section. Failure of City to monitor 
compliance with these requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in 
no way act as a waiver of any rights hereunder. This obligation to indemnify and defend 
City as set forth herein is binding on the successors, assigns or heirs of Service Provider 
and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or this section. 


 
(d) City’s Negligence. The provisions of this section do not apply to claims 


occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of City 
or any and all of its officials, employees and agents. 


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 
 


Service Provider agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 
term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and made 
a part of this Agreement. All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to 
form and content. These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved 
in writing by the City Manager. Service Provider agrees to provide City with copies of 
required policies upon request. 


 
SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Service Provider are material considerations for 
this Agreement. City has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the persons 
and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Service Provider under 
this Agreement. In recognition of that interest, Service Provider shall not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 
Service Provider’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City. Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies 
at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 20 
“Termination of Agreement.” City acknowledges, however, that Service Provider, in the 
performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub-contractors. 


 
SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


 
Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 


continuity of Service Provider’s staff and sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 9 -  


Services. Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff and 
sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to and during any such 
performance. 


 
SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


 
(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 


giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider. In the event such 
notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City. 


(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


 
(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all 


property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be 
returned to City. Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed 
and expenses incurred by Service Provider, prepared as set forth in Section 4 
“Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement. This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and 
Method of Payment” of this Agreement. 


 
SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


 
In the event that Service Provider is in default under the terms of this Agreement, 


the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Service Provider 
for any work performed after the date of default. Instead, the City may give notice to 
Service Provider of the default and the reasons for the default. The notice shall include 
the timeframe in which Service Provider may cure the default. This timeframe is 
presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 
circumstances warrant. During the period of time that Service Provider is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on 
the invoices. In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or 
all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default. If Service Provider does not 
cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under 
Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.” Any failure on the part of the City to give notice 
of the Service Provider’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 


 
SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Service Provider shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if 
any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Service Provider. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts 
of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 10 -  


fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather. The term 
and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 


 
SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the Services 
shall be furnished to Service Provider in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue 
delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


 
SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


 
All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 


writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 
 


To City: City of Wildomar 
Attn: City Manager 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 


 


To Service Provider: Municipal Consulting Services, LLC 
2361 San Clemente Avenue 
Vista, CA 92084 


 
 


Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 
by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


 
SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


 
Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 


and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to execute this Agreement. 


 
SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or 
her designated representative. The City Manager shall have the authority to issue 
interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that 
commit additional funds, consistent with Section 28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s 
contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 11 -  


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 
 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 
 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Service Provider and by the City. The City Manager shall 
have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement if the total compensation 
under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City Manager’s contracting 
authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code. The Parties agree that the requirement for 
written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The 
City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this 
Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement. All other 
amendments shall be approved by the City Council. 


 
SECTION 29. WAIVER. 


 
Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 


Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement. Acceptance by City of any work or services by Service 
Provider shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


 
SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California. In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California. In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


 
SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 
shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 


 
SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


 
This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 


complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Service Provider and City prior to the execution of this 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 12 -  


Agreement. No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding. 


 
SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


 
SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


 
Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 


terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 


date and year first-above written. 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 
 
 
 


Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


 
 
 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 


Janet Morales, CMC  
City Clerk 


 
 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
 


Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 - 13 -  


MUNICPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 
 
 


By:   
James R. Riley 


 TITLE: 
MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 


 
 


NOTE:      SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, 
AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY 
BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, 
OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE 
PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF 


On , before me, , personally appeared _, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


 
Signature:    


 
OPTIONAL 


Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


 
CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER 


 
DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


INDIVIDUAL  


CORPORATE OFFICER  
 


 
 


 


TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


 
TITLE(S) 


PARTNER(S) LIMITED 


 
 


 


NUMBER OF PAGES 


GENERAL  


ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
 


 


DATE OF DOCUMENT 


TRUSTEE(S)  


GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
 


 


SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 


OTHER _  


 
 


 
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES))  


 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 


B-
 


 


 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
I. Service Provider will perform the following Services: 


 
a. Assistance with Biennial Budget and Quarterly Budget Reports. 
b. Prepare RFP for Banking Services. 
c. Review project accounting module for CIP projects and submit recommendations for 


improvement. 
d. Analysis and reconciliation of Developer Deposit Account, starting at incorporation of City 


in 2008 to present. 
e. Develop Cannabis tracking system, from initial deposits to annual compliance by Cannabis 


businesses. 
f. Review User Fee process and develop an annual User Fee program. 
g. Review Homeless Outreach program and submit recommendations for improvement. 
h. Review current Franchise Agreements and submit recommendations for revision and 


update. 
i. Review current Streetlight lease purchase agreement and submit recommendations for 


refinancing. 
j. Prepare RFP for Audit Services. 
k. Provide assistance with the implementation of the City’s new ERP system. 
l. Develop SB 1383 Organic Waste procedures. 
m. Provide assistance with CFD Infrastructure projects. 
n. Independent, third-party review of the Finance Department. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 


B-
 


 


 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 
I. Service Provider shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the 
Services: 


 
 


A. Financial Consultant $110.00/hour 
 
 


II. Service Provider may utilize sub-contractors as indicated in this Agreement. 
The hourly rate for any subcontractor is not to exceed $110.00 per hour without 
written authorization from the City Manager or his designee. 


 
IV. The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $100,000 per year, 
as provided in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of this 
Agreement. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 


C-1 
 


 


EXHIBIT "C" 
INSURANCE 


 
A. Insurance Requirements. Service Provider shall provide and maintain 


insurance, acceptable to the City, in full force and effect throughout the term of this 
Agreement, against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the Services by Service Provider, its agents, 
representatives or employees. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 
Best's rating of no less than A:VII. 


 
Service Provider shall provide the following scope and limits of insurance: 


 


1. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad 
as: 


 


(1) Commercial General Liability. Insurance Services Office form 
Commercial General Liability coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0001). 


 
(2) Automobile. Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 


(Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile Liability, including code 1 "any auto" and endorsement 
CA 0025, or equivalent forms subject to the written approval of the City. 


 
(3) Workers’ Compensation. Workers' Compensation insurance 


as required by the Labor Code of State of California covering all persons providing 
Services on behalf of the Service Provider and all risks to such persons under this 
Agreement. 


 
(4) Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance 


appropriate to the Service Provider’s profession. This coverage may be written on a 
“claims made” basis and must include coverage for contractual liability. The professional 
liability insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims 
based upon, arising out of or related to Services performed under this Agreement. The 
insurance must be maintained for at least three (3) consecutive years following the 
completion of Service Provider’s services or the termination of this Agreement. During 
this additional three (3) year period, Service Provider shall annually and upon request of 
the City submit written evidence of this continuous coverage. 


 
2. Minimum Limits of Insurance. Service Provider shall maintain limits 


of insurance no less than: 
 


(1) Commercial General Liability. $1,000,000 general aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 


 
(2) Automobile. $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 


property damage. A combined single limit policy with aggregate limits in an amount of 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 


C-2 
 


 


not less than $2,000,000 shall be considered equivalent to the said required minimum 
limits set forth above. 


 
(3) Workers' Compensation. Workers' Compensation as required 


by the Labor Code of the State of California of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 


(4) Professional Liability. $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 


B. Other Provisions. Insurance policies required by this Agreement shall 
contain the following provisions: 


 
1. All Policies. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall 


be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by the 
insurer or either Party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 30 
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to 
City. 


 
2. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages. 


 


(1) City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, 
officials, and employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as 
respects: liability arising out of activities Service Provider performs; products and 
completed operations of Service Provider; premises owned, occupied or used by Service 
Provider; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Service Provider. The 
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City, 
and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials, or employees. 


 
(2) Service Provider’s insurance coverage shall be primary 


insurance with respect to City, and its respective elected and appointed, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, 
and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers, shall 
apply in excess of, and not contribute with, Service Provider’s insurance. 


 
(3) Service Provider’s insurance shall apply separately to each 


insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of 
the insurer's liability. 


 
(4) Any failure to comply with the reporting or other provisions of 


the insurance policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage 
provided to City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers. 


 
3. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Unless the City Manager 


otherwise agrees in writing, the insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1 


C-3 
 


 


against City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees and 
agents for losses arising from work performed by Service Provider. 


 
C. Other Requirements. Service Provider agrees to deposit with City, at or 


before the effective date of this Agreement, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy 
City that the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with. The City may 
require that Service Provider furnish City with copies of original endorsements effecting 
coverage required by this Exhibit “C”. The certificates and endorsements are to be signed 
by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. City reserves the 
right to inspect complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 


 
1. Service Provider shall furnish certificates and endorsements from 


each sub-contractor identical to those Service Provider provides. 
 


2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by City. At the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City or its respective elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or the Service Provider shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, defense expenses and claims. 


 
3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall 


not be construed to limit Service Provider’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the 
indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement. 







 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item 1.12 


Consent Calender 
 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Jason Farag, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT:  Service Agreement with County of Riverside for the Grand Ave. 


Microsurfacing Improvement Project 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following action: 


 
1. Adopt a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301(c) of the CEQA 


Guidelines. 
 


2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a service agreement with the County of 
Riverside in the amount of $14,877.40 for construction of the Grand Ave. 
Microsurfacing Improvements Project. 
 


3. Authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 10% of the 
agreement amount (contingency). 
 


BACKGROUND: 
The County of Riverside Transportation Department has awarded a construction contract 
for roadway improvements on various County roads. One of the roads to receive 
improvements is Grand Ave. from Bonnie Lea Dr. to Corydon St. Most of that segment of 
Grand Ave. is within the unincorporated area of Riverside County. However, a portion of 
Grand Ave., from Richard Ln. to Corydon St., is in the City of Wildomar and is maintained 
by the City. The County has proposed to include the City’s segment of Grand Ave. in the 
project and County staff has contacted the City regarding cost-sharing for the 
improvements made to the City’s portion of Grand Ave. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The proposed improvements on Grand Ave. will include microsurfacing and restriping 
(Grand Ave. Microsurfacing Improvements, Project). Microsurfacing is a surface 
treatment applied to the existing asphalt to seal the asphalt and extend the life of the 
existing pavement. Although this segment of Grand Ave. is not currently on the City’s list 
of roads to receive immediate maintenance or improvements, microsurfacing the roadway 







  
 


  
 


now will reduce further deterioration of the road, extend its useful life, and minimize the 
City’s future maintenance and repair costs. 
 
The Services Agreement specifies the County’s and City’s various responsibilities and 
obligations to each other related to the construction of and payment for improvements on 
Grand Ave. Under the Services Agreement, the City will be responsible to provide staff to 
coordinate with the County for the construction within the City’s portion of Grand Ave., but 
the County will be responsible for Construction Administration. The Services Agreement 
allows the authorization of change orders not exceeding 10% of the costs within the City’s 
portion of the project. The City will benefit from the large scale of the County’s project as 
typical construction costs like mobilization, traffic control, and water pollution prevention 
will be absorbed by the County and will not be separately charged to the City. 
 
CEQA DETERMINATION: 
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential environmental 
impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for the Grand Ave. Microsurfacing 
Improvements Project. Based on this evaluation, staff has determined the project meets 
the requirements for a Class 1 Categorical Exception pursuant to Section 15301(c) 
(Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 
This Class 1 exemption consists of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, 
leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of 
use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. The key 
consideration is whether the project involves negligible or no expansion. Therefore, the 
City Council, in exercising its independent judgment, can find that the Grand Ave. 
Microsurfacing Improvements Project is categorically exempt in accordance with Section 
15301(c) of CEQA, and hereby directs the Planning Director to file a Notice of Exemption 
with the Riverside County Clerk within 5 working days of adoption (i.e., by August 18, 
2021). 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Project expenditures are summarized in Table 1. Project funding will come from RMRA 
and Measure A fund accounts, as shown in Table 2. 
 


Table 1 - Proposed Project Budget 


Project Expenditures Estimated Cost 
Construction $15,000 
10% Contingency $1,500 


Construction Subtotal $16,500 
City Project Administration $5,000 


Project Total $21,500 
 







  
 


  
 


 


Table 2 - Proposed Project Funding 


Project Expenditures Budget Fund Source Fund Account 
Construction $16,500 RMRA 500-057-4500-52115 


Administration $5,000 Measure A 201-450-4500-52115 
Total $21,500   


 
There is no fiscal impact to the City’s General Fund. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Approved by: 
Dan York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director/  City Manager 
City Engineer 
   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  


A. Services Agreement 
B. County Bid Results for Grand Ave. in Wildomar 
C. Improvement Plans for Grand Ave. in Wildomar 
D. Notice of Exemption 







ATTACHMENT A 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


1 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


SERVICE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 


COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 


AND 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


FOR 


GRAND AVE 


 MICROSURFACING IMPROVEMENTS 


 


This Agreement is entered into this ______ day of ______________________, 2021, by and between the County 


of Riverside, a political subdivision of the State of California, on behalf of its Transportation Department (hereinafter 


"COUNTY") and the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter “CITY”) for microsurfacing 


improvements located within the jurisdictional boundaries of CITY.  The COUNTY and CITY are sometimes 


hereinafter referred to individually as a “PARTY” and collectively as the “PARTIES”. 


RECITALS 


A. WHEREAS, CITY has determined to seal the existing asphalt surface on Grand Avenue from Richard Lane 


to Corydon Road (approximately 784 linear feet by 25 feet wide) in the Wildomar area of Riverside County 


(“CITY PROJECT”). 


B. WHEREAS, CITY has determined that it requires construction services to place the microsurfacing on 


Grand Avenue as shown in Exhibit A and that a Microsurfacing Type 2 will be applied that consists of the 


application of a mixture of water, asphalt emulsion, aggregate, and chemical additives to an existing asphalt 


concrete pavement surface.   


C. WHEREAS, COUNTY is fully qualified to administer the work that includes traffic control, rout and seal 


random cracks, replacement of any pavement markings, including cross walks, striping and raised 


pavement markers. 


D. WHEREAS, COUNTY has microsurfacing improvement projects within the jurisdictional boundaries of 


COUNTY, which microsurfacing improvement projects are sometimes hereinafter referred to collectively as 


“COUNTY PROJECT”. 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


2 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


E. WHEREAS, CITY will benefit from the cost savings associated with a larger improvement project, and CITY 


desires to work with the COUNTY to construct the CITY PROJECT, together with the COUNTY PROJECT 


since COUNTY has extensive experience in the development and implementation of similar type projects.  


F. WHEREAS, COUNTY will therefore provide the administrative, technical, managerial, and support services 


necessary for the implementation of the CITY PROJECT as part of the COUNTY PROJECT. 


G. WHEREAS, COUNTY and CITY desire to define herein the terms and conditions under which said CITY 


PROJECT is to be administered, engineered, coordinated, and constructed.   


AGREEMENT 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the PARTIES hereto agree as 


follows: 


SECTION 1 • COUNTY AGREES to: 


1. Act as the lead agency on behalf of the CITY for the overall implementation of the CITY PROJECT.  The 


COUNTY is providing services on a reimbursable basis and has no obligation to fund any portion of the 


CITY PROJECT.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to commit the COUNTY to provide replacement 


funding for or to continue with the CITY PROJECT, if funds are not available.  


2. Furnish CITY with detailed Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) documents for the CITY PROJECT.  


Final plans for improvements are prepared to COUNTY standards, and signed by a Civil Engineer 


registered in the State of California.  Deviations from standards and approved plans shall be coordinated 


with and approved by CITY.  COUNTY shall not begin construction within CITY until CITY has approved 


the CITY PROJECT portion of the PS&E documents, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 


conditioned, or delayed. 


3. Act as the Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the COUNTY 


PROJECT.  The CITY will prepare and approve CEQA clearance for the CITY PROJECT.   


4. Direct COUNTY’s contractor to identify any existing surface utility facilities within the limits of the CITY 


PROJECT and to protect the facilities as detailed in the Special Provisions of the PS&E.   


5. Direct COUNTY’s contractor to make written application to CITY for an encroachment permit authorizing 


entry into CITY right of way for the purposes of constructing COUNTY PROJECT and CITY PROJECT. 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


3 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


6. Advertise, award, and administer a public works contract for the construction of the COUNTY PROJECT 


and the CITY PROJECT in accordance with all applicable federal, state or local statutes, ordinances, 


orders, governmental requirements, laws or regulations, including but not limited to the local agency public 


construction codes, California Labor Code, and California Public Contract Code, and in accordance with 


the encroachment permits issued by CITY. 


7. Furnish a representative to perform the function of Resident Engineer during construction of CITY 


PROJECT.  


8. Furnish qualified support staff to assist the Resident Engineer in, but not limited to, construction surveys, 


soils and compaction tests, measurement and computation of quantities, testing of construction materials, 


checking submittals, preparation of estimates and reports, preparation of as-built drawings, and other 


inspection and staff services necessary to assure that the construction is performed in accordance with the 


PS&E documents. 


9. Construct the CITY PROJECT in accordance with approved PS&E documents. 


10. Submit any contract change order that causes the construction contract to exceed 10% of the contract bid 


amount for CITY PROJECT improvements to CITY for review and approval prior to final authorization by 


COUNTY.  If any contract change order causes the construction contract to change by less than 10% of 


the bid amount for CITY PROJECT, COUNTY is authorized by CITY approval of this Agreement to move 


forward with such change. Contract change orders that change the design of improvements within the CITY 


PROJECT shall be submitted to CITY for review and approval prior to final authorization. 


11. COUNTY shall not accept the contractor’s construction as complete within the CITY PROJECT without 


concurrence from CITY except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 


12. Furnish CITY a final reconciliation of CITY PROJECT expenses within ninety (90) days following the 


completion and acceptance of the COUNTY PROJECT and CITY PROJECT construction contract.  If final 


costs associated with the CITY PROJECT are in excess of the Deposit provided in Section 2, COUNTY 


shall include a final bill with the financial reconciliation. If final costs associated with the CITY PROJECT 


are less than the Deposit provided in Section 2, COUNTY shall include a reimbursement for the difference 


with the financial reconciliation.   







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


4 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


13. Provide CITY one complete set of reproducible as-built plans and all contract documents including 


calculations, estimates, and other documents produced as part of this contract within ninety (90) days after 


completion and acceptance of the CITY PROJECT. 


SECTION 2 • CITY AGREES to: 


1. Fund one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of the CITY PROJECT, as shown in Exhibit “B”.  CITY agrees 


that should unforeseen circumstances arise which result in an increase of any costs over those shown in 


Exhibit “B”, CITY will pay such costs pursuant to Subsection 10 and Subsection 12 of Section 1. 


2. Deposit with COUNTY, prior to COUNTY start of work and upon written request by COUNTY, fourteen 


thousand eight hundred seventy-seven dollars and forty cents ($14,877.40) (the “Deposit”), which 


represents one hundred percent (100%) of the estimated costs to complete construction including 


construction administration, inspection and materials testing and contingency for CITY PROJECT, as 


provided in Exhibit “B”. 


3. Prepare and approve CEQA clearance for the CITY PROJECT.  


4. Issue, at no cost to COUNTY or its contractor, upon proper application by COUNTY or COUNTY‘s 


contractor, an encroachment permit authorizing entry onto CITY right-of-way to complete construction, 


including traffic control, construction survey, inspection and materials testing for the COUNTY PROJECT 


and CITY PROJECT. 


5. Provide at no cost to the COUNTY, oversight of the CITY PROJECT, to provide prompt reviews and 


approvals, as appropriate, of submittals by COUNTY, and to cooperate in timely processing of the CITY 


PROJECT. 


6. Provide at no cost to COUNTY, a representative to coordinate and assist the COUNTY Resident Engineer 


during the construction of the CITY PROJECT and to verify facilities are constructed as required by this 


Agreement.  


7. Pay COUNTY for any final costs associated with the CITY PROJECT that are in excess of the Deposit as 


determined pursuant to Subsection 12 of Section 1. 


SECTION 3 • IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:  


1. COUNTY and CITY acknowledge and agree that any funding shortfall for the completion of the CITY 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


5 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


PROJECT will be the sole responsibility of CITY.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to commit the 


COUNTY to funding any portion of CITY PROJECT, or shall be construed as obligating the COUNTY to 


provide replacement funding for any anticipated funding or to continue with the CITY PROJECT, if funds 


are no longer available.  In the event that adequate funds are not available to move forward or to complete 


CITY PROJECT, PARTIES agree to meet and confer and collectively work to identify adequate funding for 


CITY PROJECT. 


2. The total cost to CITY to complete construction, including construction administration, inspection and 


materials testing and a ten percent (10%) contingency for CITY PROJECT, is estimated to be fourteen 


thousand eight hundred seventy-seven dollars and forty cents ($14,877.40) as detailed in Exhibit “B”. 


3. COUNTY shall not be obligated to commence the CITY PROJECT until after receipt of CITY's Deposit as 


required in Section 2. 


4. Construction by COUNTY of improvements for CITY PROJECT shall not be commenced until an 


Encroachment Permit to COUNTY, or COUNTY's contractor, authorizing such work has been issued by 


CITY. 


5. Should there be disagreement between CITY and COUNTY about the acceptability of the construction of 


the CITY PROJECT, CITY and COUNTY agree to work together to find a mutual resolution. If a mutual 


resolution between CITY and COUNTY cannot be reached within thirty (30) days, the COUNTY may, in its 


sole discretion, proceed with the acceptance of the contractor’s construction as complete within the CITY 


PROJECT. 


6. COUNTY shall cause COUNTY's contractor to maintain in force, until completion and acceptance of the 


Microsurfacing Improvements, a policy of Commercial Liability Insurance, including coverage of Bodily 


Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability, in the amount of $2,000,000 minimum single limit coverage, 


and a policy of Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 minimum.  Endorsements to 


each policy shall be required which name CITY, its officers, agents and employees, as additionally insured.  


COUNTY shall also require COUNTY's contractor to maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance.  


COUNTY shall cause COUNTY’s contractor to provide Certificates of Insurance and Additional Insured 


Endorsements which meet the requirements of this section to CITY prior to the start of construction. 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


6 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


7. Ownership and title to all materials, equipment, and appurtenances installed as part of this Agreement will 


be automatically vested with the jurisdiction in which the improvements reside and no further agreement 


will be necessary to transfer ownership. 


8. CITY shall be responsible for the maintenance of the improvements provided by CITY PROJECT within 


CITY right of way except as specified in this Agreement or future agreements. 


9. No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed 


by all PARTIES and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on each 


PARTY hereto. 


10. Neither COUNTY nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability 


occurring by reason of any act or omission of CITY under or in connection with any work, authority or 


jurisdiction delegated to CITY under this Agreement.  It is further agreed that pursuant to Government Code 


Section 895.4, CITY shall fully indemnify and hold COUNTY harmless from any liability imposed for injury 


(as defined by Government Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of any act or omission of CITY under 


or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to CITY under this Agreement. 


11. Neither CITY nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring 


by reason of any act or omission of COUNTY under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction 


delegated to COUNTY under this Agreement.  It is further agreed that pursuant to Government Code 


Section 895.4, COUNTY shall fully indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any liability imposed for injury 


(as defined by Government Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of any act or omission of COUNTY 


under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to COUNTY under this Agreement. 


12. In the event that CITY defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement or 


materially breaches any of the provisions of this Agreement, the COUNTY shall have the option to terminate 


this Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to CITY. 


13. CITY and COUNTY shall retain or cause to be retained for audit, all records and accounts relating to the 


CITY PROJECT for a period of minimum three (3) years from the date of Notice of Completion of the CITY 


PROJECT. 


14. All notices, demands, invoices, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement  
 
   


7 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other address as the PARTIES may designate: 


COUNTY:          CITY: 


  Riverside County Transportation Department   City of Wildomar 


  Attn:  Mark Lancaster       Attn: Daniel A. York 


  Director of Transportation      Public Works Director 


  4080 Lemon Street, 8th Floor     23873 Clinton Keith Road 


  Riverside, CA  92501       Wildomar, CA  92595 


  Phone:  (951) 955-6740       Phone:  (951) 677-7715 ext. 216 


[Signature Page Follows] 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement 8 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


APPROVALS 


COUNTY Approvals 


RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 


 


 


 


MARK LANCASTER 


Director of Transportation  


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


GREGORY P. PRIAMOS, COUNTY COUNSEL 


     


 


By______________________________________ 


DANIELLE MALAND 


Deputy County Counsel 


APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 


 


 


_______________________________________ 


KAREN SPIEGEL 
PRINTED NAME 


Chair, Riverside County Board of Supervisors 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 ______________________ ________________ 


KECIA R. HARPER 


Clerk of the Board (SEAL) 


 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR Approvals 


APPROVED BY: 


 


 


_____________________________________ 
GARY NORDQUIST 


 City Manager 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 


_____________________________________ 
THOMAS D. JEX 


 City Attorney 
 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


JANET MORALES, CMC 
 City Clerk 


 
 
 







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement 9 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


EXHIBIT A 


VICINITY/CITY PROJECT MAP 


 
 


  







 Grand Avenue Microsurfacing Improvements 


County of Riverside & City of Wildomar Service Agreement 10 


1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


26 


27 


28 


29 


 


 
EXHIBIT B 


 
CITY PROJECT BUDGET  


ESTIMATED COSTS: 


 


TASK COSTS 


Construction $11,877.40 


Contingency (10%) $1,200.00 


Administration, Inspection & Testing (15%) $1,800.00 


TOTAL COST $14,877.40 


 







ATTACHMENT B 







Riverside County Transportation Department PROJECT: Slurry Seal and Curb Ramp Accessibility Project


Summary of Bids For Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022
District 1


Advertised: September 28, 2021 (Agenda Item: 3.21)
Addenda: 1 (10/15/2021), 2 (10/18/2021)
Bids Open: 2 pm     Date: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 Project No. D2-0006, D2-0011


Company Name Project
Total


COUNTY'S ESTIMATE $2,195,699.00


1 American Asphalt South, Inc. $2,405,843.40


2 Pavement Coatings Co. $2,496,562.20


3 All American Asphalt $2,508,940.80


4 Roy Allan Slurry Seal, Inc. $2,665,362.43


5 VSS International, Inc. $2,855,120.00


Average Bid Prices $2,586,365.77


115,540.00


135,000.00


$122,724.00


ALTERNATIVE BID 
SCHEDULE 2 


City of Lake Elsinore 
Portion


19,340.00


20,004.00


18,475.00


24,416.00


26,912.88


25,000.00


$22,961.58


ALTERNATIVE BID
SCHEDULE 1 
Curb Ramp 


Accessibility Project


79,150.00


118,085.00


110,315.00


134,680.00


14,000.00


$2,161,629.13 $13,428.06


ALTERNATIVE BID 
SCHEDULE 3


City of Wildomar 
Portion


9,109.00


9,737.20


16,338.80


15,186.88


11,877.40


2,094,766.00


2,229,752.67


BASE BID SCHEDULE
Slurry Seal Project


1,946,380.00


1,972,082.00


2,090,425.00


2,421,120.00


277,970.00


260,000.00


$265,623.00


ALTERNATIVE BID
SCHEDULE 1.A
Curb Ramps at 


Signalized Intersections


141,720.00


283,795.00


267,610.00


238,740.00


SSeal.CRamps.FY21-22.Dist.1(D2-0006, 11): Web-Summary.SubTotals
Updated: 10/27/21 Page 1 of 1







Riverside County Transportation Department PROJECT:


Summary of Bids


Advertised: September 28, 2021 (Agenda Item: 3.21)


Addenda: 1 (10/15/2021), 2 (10/18/2021)


Bids Open: 2 pm     Date: Wednesday, October 27, 2021


Slurry Seal and Curb Ramp Accessibility Project
For Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022


District 1


Project No. D2-0006, D2-0011


ALTERNATIVE BID SCHEDULE 2 - City of Lake Elsinore Portion


ITEM NO. ITEM CODE CONTRACT ITEM
LIKE BID 


ITEMS
UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE ENG ESTIMATE BID UNIT PRICE BID ESTIMATE


19 374207
CRACK TREATMENT
(ROUT AND SEAL RANDOM CRACKS)


------- LS 1 2,500.00 2,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00


20 150716
REMOVE PAINTED TRAFFIC STRIPE, PAVEMENT
MARKING, AND PAVEMENT MARKERS


------- LS 1 1,200.00 1,200.00 2,850.00 2,850.00


21 378000 MICROSURFACING 2 Like 1 TON 56 240.00 13,440.00 200.00 11,200.00


22 840519(F)
THERMOPLASTIC CROSSWALK AND PAVEMENT
MARKING


Like 2 SQFT 200 4.00 800.00 4.95 990.00


23 840656(F) PAINT TRAFFIC STRIPE (2-COAT) Like 3 LF 2,800 0.35 980.00 0.36 1,008.00


24 850102(F) PAVEMENT MARKER (REFLECTIVE) Like 4 EA 120 3.50 420.00 3.80 456.00


ALT BID SCH 2 - SUB-TOTAL
ITEMS 19 - 24


19,340.00 20,004.00


ALTERNATIVE BID SCHEDULE 3 - City of Wildomar Portion


ITEM NO. ITEM CODE CONTRACT ITEM
LIKE BID 


ITEMS
UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE ENG ESTIMATE BID UNIT PRICE BID ESTIMATE


25 374207
CRACK TREATMENT
(ROUT AND SEAL RANDOM CRACKS)


------- LS 1 1,100.00 1,100.00 3,500.00 3,500.00


26 150716
REMOVE PAINTED TRAFFIC STRIPE, PAVEMENT
MARKING, AND PAVEMENT MARKERS


------- LS 1 600.00 600.00 1,850.00 1,850.00


27 378000 MICROSURFACING 2 Like 1 TON 26 240.00 6,240.00 200.00 5,200.00


28 840519(F)
THERMOPLASTIC CROSSWALK AND PAVEMENT
MARKING


Like 2 SQFT 140 4.00 560.00 4.95 693.00


29 840656(F) PAINT TRAFFIC STRIPE (2-COAT) Like 3 LF 1,340 0.35 469.00 0.36 482.40


30 850102(F) PAVEMENT MARKER (REFLECTIVE) Like 4 EA 40 3.50 140.00 3.80 152.00


ALT BID SCH 3 - SUB-TOTAL
ITEMS 25 - 30


9,109.00 11,877.40


2,405,843.40
PROJECT TOTAL 


ITEMS 1 - 30


Riverside, CA 92509


2,195,699.00


COUNTY'S ESTIMATE American Asphalt South, Inc.
1


SSeal.CRamps.FY21-22.Dist.1(D2-0006, 11): Summary Web
Updated: 10/27/2021 Page 3 of 9



JasonFarag

Highlight



JasonFarag

Highlight



JasonFarag

Polygon







ATTACHMENT C 







970-M


  


IS
SU


ED
 B


Y 
AD


D
EN


D
U


M
 N


o.
 2


, A
TT


AC
H


M
EN


T 
"B


"







RD BK SUPV. MAINT. ROAD NAME Length Width Area WORK
PAGE DIST. DIST. From To (FT) (FT) (SQ YD) DESC.


LIMITS RD BK SUPV. MAINT. ROAD NAME Length Width Area WORK
PAGE DIST. DIST. From To (FT) (FT) (SQ YD) DESC.


LIMITS


   SLURRY SEAL TYPE 1  (SS1)


26 C 1 11 ABINGTON ST LIMERICK ST 813' E JORDANA CIR 2446 36 9784 SS1
27 1 11 ALBARIAN ST VAN BUREN BLVD 802' N VAN BUREN BLVD 802 30 2673 SS1
28 1 11 AMBERWOOD CT WOODCREST DR 430' N WOODCREST DR 430 36 1720 SS1
27 1 11 ARABIAN AVE KING AVE 950' W KING AVE 950 33 3483 SS1
26 B 1 11 BOXFORD CIR MCALLISTER PKWY 272' SE MCALLISTER PKWY 272 36 1088 SS1
26 C 1 11 BRIDGTON CIR JONATHAN DR 504' SE JONATHAN DR 504 36 2016 SS1
28 1 11 BROOKVIEW CT MORNINGVIEW DR 588' W MORNINGVIEW DR 588 37 2417 SS1
27 7 1 11 CALUMET CT RANCHO ESCONDIDO DR 743' N RANCHO ESCONDIDO DR 743 33 2724 SS1
28 8 1 11 CANYON VIEW DR GOLDEN SPUR CT 2628' S GOLDEN SPUR CT 2628 37 10804 SS1
28 8 1 11 CANYON VIEW DR VAN BUREN BLVD GOLDEN SPUR CT 833 28 2592 SS1
26 B 1 11 CARLY CT LIMERICK ST 387' SW LIMERICK ST 387 36 1548 SS1
27 1 11 CAYUSE CT RINGBIT CT VALLE VISTA WAY 886 33 3249 SS1
27 1 11 CAYUSE CT VALLE VISTA WAY 826' N VALLE VISTA WAY 826 33 3029 SS1
61 1 14 CITRUS AVE WEBSTER AVE 1307' W WEBSTER AVE 1307 32 4647 SS1
27 1 11 CITRUS VIEW CIR SUTTLES DR 443' E SUTTLES DR 443 32 1575 SS1
26 B 1 11 DEVOR CIR MCALLISTER PKWY 254' SE MCALLISTER PKWY 254 36 1016 SS1
28 1 11 GOLDEN SPUR CT CANYON VIEW DR 746' SW CANYON VIEW DR 746 36 2984 SS1
27 1 11 GOLDEN STAR AVE WASHINGTON ST 5491' N WASHINGTON ST 5491 25 15253 SS1
27 1 11 GRACEFUL CT ALBARIAN ST 623' NE ALBARIAN ST 623 32 2215 SS1
26 B 1 11 HARWICH CIR JONATHAN DR 313' SE JONATHAN DR 313 36 1252 SS1
26 C 1 11 HAVEN CIR WINDHAM RD 264' E WINDHAM RD 264 36 1056 SS1
26 C 1 11 ISLESFORD CIR WINDHAM RD 241' NE WINDHAM RD 241 36 964 SS1
26 C 1 11 JONATHAN DR LIMERICK ST WINDHAM RD 1719 36 6876 SS1
26 C 1 11 JORDANA CIR 188' NW ABINGTON ST 274' SE MCALLISTER PKWY 695 40 3089 SS1
27 1 11 KELLEN CT VALLE VISTA WAY 829' N VALLE VISTA WAY 829 33 3040 SS1
27 1 11 KING AVE STALLION PL VAN BUREN BLVD 1459 35 5674 SS1
61 1 14 LEMON AVE WEBSTER AVE 1305' W WEBSTER AVE 1305 32 4640 SS1
26 B 1 11 LIMERICK ST CARLY CT 411' SE JONATHAN DR 1805 36 7220 SS1
26 C 1 11 MCALLISTER PKWY LA SIERRA AVE PRAED ST 3171 40 14093 SS1
28 1 11 MORNINGVIEW DR STONEY CREEK DR TERRACEVIEW CT 595 37 2446 SS1
26 B 1 11 ORY CIR LIMERICK ST 565' S LIMERICK ST 565 36 2260 SS1
27 1 11 PALAMINO PL KING AVE 470' E KING AVE 470 32 1671 SS1
26 B 1 11 PERRIN CIR MCALLISTER PKWY 258' SE MCALLISTER PKWY 258 36 1032 SS1
27 1 11 PICK PL VAN BUREN BLVD SALLY LN 2396 36 9584 SS1
27 1 11 RANCHO ESCONDIDO DR RANCHO VIEJO DR 1742' E RANCHO VIEJO DR 1742 33 6387 SS1
27 1 11 RANCHO VERDE CIR RANCHO VIEJO DR 366' E RANCHO VIEJO DR 366 33 1342 SS1
27 1 11 RANCHO VIEJO DR 120' N VIA RANCHO  1242' N VIA RANCHO 1122 33 4114 SS1
27 1 11 RANCHO VIEJO DR 1242' N VIA RANCHO 263' N VIA RANCHO VERDE CIR 832 33 3051 SS1
27 1 11 RANCHO VIEJO DR 754' S VIA RANCHO 120' N VIA RANCHO 874 33 3205 SS1
27 1 11 RINGBIT CT WASHINGTON ST 634' E WASHINGTON ST 634 33 2325 SS1
27 1 11 SADDLE CREST PL RANCHO VIEJO DR 610' N RANCHO VIEJO DR 610 33 2237 SS1
27 1 11 SADDLEBACK RD VIA RANCHO WASHINGTON ST 1691 32 6012 SS1
28 8 1 11 SAGEWOOD CT 260' W STONERIDGE DR 272' E STONERIDGE DR 532 37 2187 SS1
27 1 11 SALLY LN VAN BUREN BLVD PICK PL 1796 36 7184 SS1
27 1 11 SILVER SPUR RD CANYON VIEW DR 1477' W CANYON VIEW DR 1477 34 5580 SS1
27 1 11 SINGLETREE LN VALLE VISTA WAY 853' SE VALLE VISTA WAY 853 33 3128 SS1
27 1 11 STALLION PL 445' W KING AVE KING AVE 445 29 1434 SS1
27 1 11 STALLION PL KING AVE 455' E KING AVE 455 32 1618 SS1
28 1 11 STONERIDGE DR SAGEWOOD CT STONEY CREEK DR 1534 37 6306 SS1
28 1 11 STONERIDGE DR STONEY CREEK DR CANYON VIEW DR 1496 27 4488 SS1
28 1 11 STONEY CREEK DR CANYON VIEW DR STONERIDGE DR 1055 36 4220 SS1
28 1 11 STONEY CREEK DR MORNINGVIEW DR CANYON VIEW DR 912 37 3749 SS1
28 1 11 STREAMVIEW CT CANYON VIEW DR 410' W CANYON VIEW DR 410 37 1686 SS1
27 1 11 SUNSET TRL 258' E SADDLEBACK RD 489' W SADDLEBACK RD 747 33 2739 SS1
27 1 11 SURREY CT WAGON WHEEL DR 297' S WAGON WHEEL DR 297 32 1056 SS1
27 1 11 SUTTLES DR RANCHO ESCONDIDO DR TAVA LN 862 27 2586 SS1
27 1 11 SUTTLES DR TAVA LN VAN BUREN BLVD 1048 28 3260 SS1
27 1 11 TAVA LN KING AVE 568' E KING AVE 568 41 2588 SS1
27 1 11 TAVA LN SUTTLES DR KING AVE 1284 33 4708 SS1
28 1 11 TERRACEVIEW CT CANYON VIEW DR 1117' W CANYON VIEW DR 1117 35 4344 SS1
27 1 11 VALLE VISTA WAY WASHINGTON ST 2122' E WASHINGTON ST 2122 33 7781 SS1
27 1 11 VAQUERO CT ARABIAN AVE 402' N ARABIAN AVE 402 29 1295 SS1
27 1 11 VIA RANCHO SADDLEBACK RD RANCHO VIEJO DR 504 33 1848 SS1
27 1 11 WAGON WHEEL DR WASHINGTON ST 1470' N WASHINGTON ST 1470 36 5880 SS1
26 C 1 11 WINDHAM RD MCALLISTER PKWY 1048' SE MCALLISTER PKWY 1048 36 4192 SS1
125 C 1 11 WOODCREST DR CANYON VIEW DR STONERIDGE DR 866 35 3368 SS1
26 B 1 11 YARMOUTH CIR LIMERICK ST 599' S LIMERICK ST 599 36 2396 SS1


  TOTAL SS1   69,014 LF 258,007 SY


   SLURRY SEAL TYPE 2  (SS2)


55 1 14 DECKER RD NANDINA AVE HARLEY KNOX BLVD 1243 44 6077 SS2
55 1 14 NANDINA AVE 717' W HARVILL AVE DECKER RD 1287 44 6292 SS2
55 1 14 NANDINA AVE HARVILL AVE 717' W HARVILL AVE 717 52 4143 SS2


  TOTAL SS2   3,247 LF   16,512 SY


 MICROSURFACE 2  (MICRO2)


55 1 14 BLANDING WAY HARLEY KNOX BLVD NANDINA AVE 1240 32 4409 MS2
57 B 1 11 CAJALCO RD 1742' E GUSTIN RD 177' W WOOD RD 3630 40 16133 MS2
42 A 1 12 GRAND AVE 128' E ADELFA ST TURNER ST 5694 36 22776 MS2
40 1 12 GRAND AVE 172' W MARIE DR 328' W SANTA ROSA DR 2422 60 16147 MS2
41 1 12 GRAND AVE 328' W SANTA ROSA DR 128' E ADELFA ST 4921 48 26245 MS2
40 1 12 GRAND AVE BONNIE LEA DR 172' W MARIE DR 897 25 2492 MS2
72 1 12 GRAND AVE MORRISON PL SCALES WAY 2627 59 17221 MS2
72 1 12 GRAND AVE SCALES WAY CORYDON ST 3328 42 15531 MS2
72 1 12 GRAND AVE TURNER ST MORRISON PL 5187 58 33427 MS2
57 A 1 11 HARLEY JOHN RD 2552' S SCOTTSDALE DR 519' S SCOTTSDALE DR 2033 24 5421 MS2
57 A 1 11 HARLEY JOHN RD 519' S SCOTTSDALE DR WASHINGTON ST 1994 65 14401 MS2
57 A 1 11 HARLEY JOHN RD CAJALCO RD 2552' S SCOTTSDALE DR 2862 24 7632 MS2
55 1 14 HARLEY KNOX BLVD 300' W BLANDING WAY HARVILL AVE 954 105 11130 MS2
55 1 14 HARLEY KNOX BLVD DECKER RD 300' W BLANDING WAY 1055 75 8792 MS2
55 1 14 HARLEY KNOX BLVD HARVILL AVE I‐215 665 72 5320 MS2
55 1 14 HARVILL AVE HARLEY KNOX BLVD OLEANDER AVE 1534 63 10738 MS2
55 1 14 HARVILL AVE NANDINA AVE HARLEY KNOX BLVD 1332 48 7104 MS2
84 B 1 12 RANCHO CALIFORNIA RD CALLE CAPISTRANO VIA VUELTAS 5612 32 19954 MS2
84 A 1 12 RANCHO CALIFORNIA RD DE LUZ RD CALLE CAPISTRANO 4338 33 15906 MS2
84 B 1 12 RANCHO CALIFORNIA RD SYCAMORE MESA RD 5750' SE SYCAMORE MESA RD 5750 34 21722 MS2
84 B 1 12 RANCHO CALIFORNIA RD VIA VUELTAS SYCAMORE MESA RD 4206 32 14955 MS2
27 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 1054' N VAN BUREN BLVD VAN BUREN BLVD 1054 51 5973 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 1601' N NANDINA AVE MARIPOSA AVE 966 30 3220 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 272' S PONDEROSA LN KRAMERIA AVE 1514 26 4374 MS2
27 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 4818' SE HERMOSA DR 1054' N VAN BUREN BLVD 3404 36 13616 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST HARLEY JOHN RD MARKHAM ST 2782 64 19783 MS2
27 1 11 WASHINGTON ST HERMOSA DR 4818' SE HERMOSA DR 4818 42 22484 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST KRAMERIA AVE VAN BUREN BLVD 843 44 4121 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST MARIPOSA AVE 272' S PONDEROSA LN 1031 34 3895 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST MARKHAM ST 1601' N NANDINA AVE 4420 62 30449 MS2


  TOTAL MICRO2   83,113 LF   405,371 SY


ALTERNATE BID


40 1 12 GRAND AVE BONNIE LEA DR 172' W MARIE DR 897 25 2492 MS2
72 1 12 GRAND AVE ONTARIO WAY SCALES WAY 650 32 2311 MS2


  TOTAL MICRO2   1,547 LF   4,803 SY


72 1 12 GRAND AVE RICHARD ST CORYDON ST 784 25 2,178   MS2


  TOTAL MICRO2   784 LF   2,178 SY


CITY OF LAKE ELSINORE


CITY OF WILDOMAR


8/12/2021


IS
SU


ED
 B


Y 
AD


D
EN


D
U


M
 N


o.
 2


, A
TT


AC
H


M
EN


T 
"B


"


970-M



ahuynh

Elmer



JasonFarag

Highlight



JasonFarag

Highlight



JasonFarag

Highlight







³
0 1,500 3,000750


Feet


Slurry Seal Projects FY21-22
Microsurface2


( Maintained Traffic Signals


Curb Ramp


(


(


(


LAKE ELSINORE


WILDOMAR


SH-74


S MAIN DIVIDE RD M1080


BREC
HTEL


 ST


KOU
ES R


D


ADE
LFA


 ST 
M10


03 MAIDE
N LN


GIL
LET


TE S
T M


117
4


UNION ST


FOLLM
AN L


N


SKY
LAR


K DR


ONORATO DR


ROME HI
LL R


D M
138


2


S MAIN DIVIDE RD


GRE
GORY P


L M112
61A


ARBO LADO LN


CAS
E ST


 M106
9


TURT
LE D


OVE
 DR 


M9863


MORREL
L DR


SAMUEL DR M1053


HUGHES DR LORIM
ER S


T M127
4


ROCKMEN ST M1173


CUSTER ST


FAIRMONT LN
 M9867


MARV
ELLA


 LN


MARIE
 DR 


M129
4


GING
ER L


N


EVER
GRE


EN S
T M115


4
NAR


ANJ
O ST


 M1
600


MACK
AY D


R M
145


7


VAIL ST
 M1302


OLIVE
 TRE


E LN


WRIDE
 ST M


149
3


TULE WAY M1486


BRA
ND 


ST M
104


5


ROSE A
VE M


138
4


MIT
CHE


LL D
R


CHU
RCH


ILL S
T M10


ETHL
ENE 


DR M
115


0


TUR
NER


 ST M
1442


SAN
GST


ON D
R M


142
3


URB
AN A


VE M
144


6


JANISSE LN M1487


SAN
DALW


OOD LN
 M986


5


RANSPOT AVE M1370


SCH
APE


R ST
 M138


9


VIA NORTE M1421


BOOTH
 ST M


104
3


PEELER AVE M1609


SHA
DOW


 TRA
ILS L


N M
986


8


QUAIL TRL


TETT
ERIN


GTO
N ST


 M142
9


VIA SOLA M1422


CRAWFORD ST


GIBS
ON AV


E


STONEMAN ST


PONCE
 DR


LILL
IAN


 RD 
M126


4


PERR
ET B


LVD
 M135


2


RICHARD ST


SKY
LAR


K DR
 M112


20A


BEN
NER


 ST M
1030


OLIV
E ST


 M1332
BUEN


A VI
STA 


ST M
105


5


OKEECHOBEE LN M1161


AUT
UMNWOOD C


IR M
986


6


ZEL
LAR


 ST 
M1


495


DOW
MAN S


T M113
4


ELENA DR M11
68


PED
ERSO


N ST
 M134


AKLEY ST M1005


TIFFANY LN
HENSHAW CT M1164


BRIGHTMAN AVE M1047


ENC
INA


 DR
 M1


581


GIL
LET


TE S
T


BORCH
ARD


 RD


BOBRICK AVE M1037


MAID
EN L


N M
128


6


BLA
NCH


E DR
 M321


0


WOOD ST
 M149


1


HAYS AVE M1200


BLA
CKW


ELL 
BLVD


 M103
3


MAGN
OLIA


 ST M
1285


SUTHERLAND AVE M1419


STON
EMAN S


T M1413


COTTRELL BLVD M1111


ESTH
ER S


T M111
05A


MACKAY AVE M1280


GAR
NER


 RD 
M125


1


GRAND AVE S1180B


ARB
OLA


DO L
N


STON
EMAN S


T M1413


BLA
NCH


E DR
 M321


0


AND AVE S1180B


GRAND AVE S1180B


GRAND AVE S1180B


GRAND AVE S1180B


ADE
LFA 


ST M
100


3


GRAND AVE S1180B


WALLS
 ST M


146
1


TUR
NER


 ST M
144


2


ADE
LFA


 ST 
M10


03


GRAND AVE S1180BG


SKY
LAR


K D
R M


112
20A


 S1180B


S MAIN DIVIDE RD M1080 STON
EMAN S


T M1413


HAYS AVE M1200


GRAND AVE S118


BRA
ND 


ST M
104


5


MORRE
LL D


R


ZEL
LAR


 ST 
M1


495


GRAND AVE S1180B


COMO ST


CEREAL ST


SYLVESTER ST


VICTOR ST


LUC
ERN


E ST


STO
NEM


AN S
T


SKY
LARK D


R
CRA


BAP
PLE


COSMOSSUN
FOR


EST


LON
GLE


AF


SILVERWOOD DR


GAR
DEN


IA


OAKVIEW LN


HIDDEN TRL


RICH
ARD


 ST


LARCH
GLA S GOW


PALOMAR ST


STONEWOOD LN


SANTA CRUZ


DUNBAR


VILLAGE PKWY


OAKVIEW WAY


WIND
WARD W


AY


TARRAGON


RED
 ALD


ER


DUNE PRIMROSE


ELENA LN


TURNHOUSE


ONT
ARIO WAY


SWEETWOOD LN


APPLEWOOD WAY


LIGHTHOUSE LN


SORAYA


SPINNAKER DR


ROYAL ABERDEEN


ANCHOR WAY


OLD COACH RD
STIRLING


OAK
 KNOLL L


N


BERRYWOOD DR


STONEWOOD WAY


SCARLET OAK


SAN
 MIGU


EL


CHE
RRY


WOOD LN SILV
ER M


APL
E LN


SAN NICHOLAS


BRAEMAR


SAN
 CLE


MENT
E


APPLEWOOD CT


YELL
OW SUN


FLO
WER


SANTA CRUZ


LUC
ERN


E ST
APP


LEW
OOD CT


GARDENIA


PALOMAR ST


LUC
ERN


E ST


CEREAL ST


STO
NEM


AN S
T


SUN
FOR


EST


SYLVESTER ST


SORAYA


COMO ST


LUC
ERN


E ST


OAKVIEW LN


COMO ST


LUC
ERN


E ST


ONT
ARIO WAY


VIL
LAG


E PK
WY


72


41


42


70


42A


76


40


MOR
ISO


N P
L


IS
SU


ED
 B


Y 
AD


D
EN


D
U


M
 N


o.
 2


, A
TT


AC
H


M
EN


T 
"B


"


970-M



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



ahuynh

Oval



JasonFarag

Polygon



JasonFarag

Callout

Proposed Improvements in Wildomar







RD BK SUPV. MAINT. ROAD NAME LIMITS Length Width Area WORK
PAGE DIST. DIST. From To (FT) (FT) (SQ YD) DESC.


W
27 1 11 WAGON WHEEL DR WASHINGTON ST 1470' N WASHINGTON ST 1470 36 5880 SS1
27 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 1054' N VAN BUREN BLVD VAN BUREN BLVD 1054 51 5973 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 1601' N NANDINA AVE MARIPOSA AVE 966 30 3220 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 272' S PONDEROSA LN KRAMERIA AVE 1514 26 4374 MS2
27 1 11 WASHINGTON ST 4818' SE HERMOSA DR 1054' N VAN BUREN BLVD 3404 36 13616 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST HARLEY JOHN RD MARKHAM ST 2782 64 19783 MS2
27 1 11 WASHINGTON ST HERMOSA DR 4818' SE HERMOSA DR 4818 42 22484 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST KRAMERIA AVE VAN BUREN BLVD 843 44 4121 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST MARIPOSA AVE 272' S PONDEROSA LN 1031 34 3895 MS2
28 1 11 WASHINGTON ST MARKHAM ST 1601' N NANDINA AVE 4420 62 30449 MS2
26 C 1 11 WINDHAM RD MCALLISTER PKWY 1048' SE MCALLISTER PKWY 1048 36 4192 SS1
125 C 1 11 WOODCREST DR CANYON VIEW DR STONERIDGE DR 866 35 3368 SS1


Z
26 B 1 11 YARMOUTH CIR LIMERICK ST 599' S LIMERICK ST 599 36 2396 SS1


ALTERNATE BID


40 1 12 GRAND AVE BONNIE LEA DR 172' W MARIE DR 897 25 2492 MS2
72 1 12 GRAND AVE ONTARIO WAY SCALES WAY 650 32 2311 MS2


72 1 12 GRAND AVE RICHARD ST CORYDON ST 784 25 2,178   MS2


CITY OF LAKE ELSINORE


CITY OF WILDOMAR


8/12/2021


IS
SU


ED
 B


Y 
AD


D
EN


D
U


M
 N


o.
 2


, A
TT


AC
H


M
EN


T 
"B


"


970-M



ahuynh

Elmer



JasonFarag

Highlight



JasonFarag

Highlight







52870


DOWLING TSAI


SHEET No.


OFSHEET


WO
FILE No.


COUNTY


L
A


S
T
 


R
E


V
I
S
I


O
N


0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0


D
A


T
E
 


P
L


O
T


T
E


D
 


=
>


1
:
4
5
:
4
6
 


P
M


1
0
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1


T
I


M
E
 


P
L


O
T


T
E


D
 


=
>


USERNAME => GRAMOS


D2-0006 na PD-02.shtDGN FILE =>


RELATIVE BORDER SCALE


IS IN INCHES


0 2 31


PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF:


DATE


x


x


x


x


x


BORDER LAST REVISED 09/2017


COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE


PROJECT MANAGER


DOWLING TSAI


PAVEMENT DELINEATION & SIGN PLAN


D2-0006


TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT


YR 21-22 DISTRICT 1


SLURRY SEAL


39


970-M


197 198 199 200 201 202 203 204 205 206 207


208 209 210 211 212 213 214 215 216 217 218 219


220 221 222 223 224 225 226 227 228 229 230


EXIST C/G EXIST EP


22


150'


38


100'
640'


27B
490'


32


PM


PM


"AHEAD" PM


"SIGNAL"


PM


540'


27B


27B


625'
32


230'


32


490'


32


77'


510'


27B


27B


205'215'


32


27B


116'


32


27B


205'


27B


235'


32


255'


220'


27B


288'


27B


160'


32
PM


M
A


T
C


H
 


L
I


N
E
 
2
0
7


+
5
0


M
A


T
C


H
 


L
I


N
E
 
2
1
9


+
5
0


M
A


T
C


H
 


L
I


N
E
 
2
1
9


+
5
0


11'


11'


12'


B
E


G
 


T
A


P
E


R


11'


11'


6'


12'


12'


12'


E
N


D
 


T
A


P
E


R


+
7
0
.
8
3


12'


6'


12'


12'


6' 6'


12'


12'


12'


6'


12'


12'


12'


6'


6'
19'


12'


12'


12'


6' 6'


12'


12'


12'


19'


6'


12'


12'


12'


6'


12'


12'


12'


6' 6'


12'


12'


12'


6'


EXIST EP


EXIST EP


EXIST EP


EXIST EP


(11')


(12')


21


PD-2
GRAND AVE


SCALE: 1"=40'


S
E


E
 


S
H


E
E


T
 


P
D
-
3


M
A


T
C


H
 


L
I


N
E
 
2
3
0


+
5
0


(11')


C
I
T


Y
 


O
F
 


W
I
L


D
O


M
A


R


C
O


U
N


T
Y
 


O
F
 


R
I
V


E
R


S
I
D


E


6'


12'


XW


175'


5'


M
A


T
C


H
 


L
I


N
E
 
2
0
7


+
5
0


250'


6'


72'


39


72'


27B


27B


90'


32


100'


19'


12'


12'


12'


6'


32


125'


726'


27B


6'


310'


4
1
'


1
6
'


2
4
'


2
4
'


3
7
'


2
4
'


6
'


6
'


2
4
'


2
4
'


6
'


6
'


ARROW
TYPE IV 


ARROW
TYPE IV 


ARROW
TYPE IV 


(5')


(4')


(5')(2')


5'


PM


& ARROW
SYMBOL 
BIKE LANE 


55'


5'
27B


STD
CALTRANS 
OP.2 


32


STD
CALTRANS 
OP.2 


STD
CALTRANS 
OP.2 +


0
.
0


15'


35'


38A


150'


22 PM


ARROW
TYPE IV 100'


22


150'
PM


ARROW
TYPE IV 


150'


2238


38


100'


CALTRANS STD
OP.2 


CORYDON RD


GILL LN


OLIVE TREE LN


GILL LN


RICHARD ST


BRECHTEL ST


ARBOLADO LN


SKYLARK DR


SKYLARK DR


MARVELLA LN


IS


27C


27B


27C


270'


345'


27C


60'


27B 27B


STD
CALTRANS
OP.2 335'


12'


3939


39


          N.T.S
DELINEATOR ISLAND DETAIL


9
'


1
.
5
'


TOT(10)


PD-2


PER DETAIL SHOWN ON 


DELINEATOR ISLAND


TYPE G


  10/13/21


IS
SU


ED
 B


Y 
AD


D
EN


D
U


M
 N


o.
 2


, A
TT


AC
H


M
EN


T 
"B


"



JasonFarag

Polygon



JasonFarag

Polygon



JasonFarag

Callout

Proposed Improvements in Wildomar



JasonFarag

Callout

Proposed Improvements in Wildomar







ATTACHMENT D 







CITY OF WILDOMAR 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 


 
TO BE SENT TO:     LEAD AGENCY CONTACT: 
 


 
County of Riverside County Clerk 
2724 Gateway Dr. 
Riverside, CA 92507  


 
 


City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
951-677-7751, Ext. 213 
 
Contact Person:  Matthew Bassi, Planning Director  


Office of Planning and Research  
P.O. Box 3044  
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 


 
 


 
PROJECT CASE NO: Grand Ave. Microsurface Improvements Project (County Project) 
PROJECT APPLICANT/SPONSOR: City of Wildomar Public Works/Engineering Department   
PROJECT LOCATION: Grand Ave. from Richard Ln. to Corydon St. 
APN(s): N/A – Grand Ave. Roadway 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construction of crackfilling and microsurfacing improvements and 


reinstallation of pavement markings and striping on existing roadway 
surface. 


This is to advise that the City Council of the City of Wildomar as Lead Agency, on December 15, 2021 
approved the above described Project and determined it to be exempt from further environmental 
review requirements contained in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) of 1970, and as 
further defined in the State Guidelines for the implementation of CEQA, as subsequently amended.  
EXEMPTION STATUS: 
- Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); Sec. 15268) 


- Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); Sec. 15269(a)) 


- Statutory Exemption   


 Categorical Exemption  Section 15301(c) – Class 1 Existing Facilities 


- Other:  


REASONS TO SUPPORT EXEMPTION FINDINGS:  No hazardous waste sites or historic buildings will be 
affected. No special circumstances exist. Scope of work is limited to crackfill and microsurface improvements of 
existing asphalt concrete pavement; and related placement of pavement markings and signage. All work is within 
the existing public right-of-way. The proposed project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species and an approval of the proposed project would not result in any significant effects related to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. In consideration of this, staff has determined that the project satisfies the 
requirements for Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301(c) Existing Facilities and is determined to be 
exempt from further environmental review requirements contained in CEQA. Therefore, the project is exempt per 
Section 15301(c).  


LEAD AGENCY CONTACT: Mathew C. Bassi PHONE NUMBER: (951) 677-7751, Ext. 213 
 
________________________________________ _______________________________ 
Matthew C. Bassi, Planning Director    Date  







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.13 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Revised Appropriations Limit for FY 2020-21 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE REVISED 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 


 
DISCUSSION: 
Article XIII-B of the California State Constitution places limits on the amount of “proceeds 
of taxes” that can be spent by all entities of government. “Proceeds of taxes” include 
some, but not all, revenues. Therefore, the appropriations limit only applies to those City 
revenues that are considered “proceeds of taxes.” 
 
It is the responsibility of the City to calculate its annual appropriations limit. The annual 
limit is calculated by multiplying the previous fiscal year’s limit by a factor based upon the 
change in the population and the change in California per capita personal income. 
 
A city may choose to use its own change in population or that of the county if the county 
change in population is greater than the City’s. Staff recommends the City use the 
population change that is most favorable to the City. The choice of each of these factors 
is an annual election. For fiscal year 2020-21, the City of Wildomar population increased 
by 0.15%. During the fieldwork for the FY 2020-2021 annual audit, it was discovered that 
the county population factor of 1.19% was incorrect. The actual county population change 
was 0.79%, which is still higher than the City’s change in population. Therefore, staff 
recommends that the County’s change in population continued to be used, and the FY 
2020-21 revised appropriations limit calculation attached hereto is based on the 0.79% 
population change.  
 
The change in the California per capita personal income on January 1, 2020, was 3.73%. 


 







Staff has calculated the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2020-21 to be $12,350,984. 
This is $2,992,084 more than the City’s estimated proceeds of taxes. 
 
Cities are required to complete an appropriations calculation for each fiscal year. The 
City’s auditors are required to review and approve the appropriations calculation as part 
of their audit of the City. The revised calculation will meet our auditor’s approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director              City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Resolution  
B. FY 2020-21 GANN Appropriation Revised Limit Calculation worksheet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 


ATTACHMENT A 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE REVISED 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 


 
WHEREAS, Constitutional Article XIII-B (Propositions 4 and 111) limits the 


appropriations State and Local Government may make from the proceeds of taxes and 
requires State and Local Government to adopt an annual appropriations limit; and 


 
WHEREAS, the permanent FY2009-10 base year appropriations limit of 


$7,728,041 for the City was established by a vote of the people on November 2, 2010; 
and 


 
WHEREAS, the appropriations limitation is adjusted annually by multiplying the 


previous year’s appropriations limit by a factor based on either the population growth 
factor for the City of Wildomar or for the County of Riverside, and by either the change in 
the California Per Capita Personal Income or the change in Non-residential Construction 
for the City of Wildomar; and 
 


WHEREAS, the City has received inflation and population data from the State 
Department of Finance to calculate the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Appropriations Limit; and 


 
WHEREAS, the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2019-20 was $11,813,531; 


and, 
 


WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar wishes to select those options 
providing the greatest ratio of change as shown below:  
 
  Change in California per     County Population 
  Capita Personal Income   Change 
         (Inflation Factor)     (Population Factor)   
       1.0373             1.0079     
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Wildomar approves the appropriations limit at $12,350,984 for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and 
selects the options for calculation using the population growth of Riverside County and 
the change in the California per Capita Personal Income.   
 
The City Clerk shall attest and certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution, and 
it shall become effective immediately upon its approval. 


 
 
 
 







 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 


 Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 


 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________            ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENT B 
 







Amount


A. Fiscal Year 2019-20 Appropriations Limit 11,813,531$           


B. Adjustment Factors:


1. Population 1.0079


2. Inflation 1.0373


Total Adjustment 1.04549467 (B1*B2)


C. FY2020-21 Base Appropriations Limit 12,350,984$           (B*A)


D. Other Adjustments


Lost Responsibility (-) -                              


Transfer to private (-) -                              


Transfer to fees (-) -                              


Assume Responsibility (+) -                              


Sub-total Adjustments -                              


E. FY2020-21 Adjusted Appropriations Limit 12,350,984             (C-D)


F. FY 2020-21 Appropriations Limit 12,350,984$           


Amount


A. Proceeds of Taxes 9,358,900$             


B. Exclusions (Qualifed Debt Service) 0


C. Appropriations Subject to Limitation 9,358,900 (A-B)


D. Current Year Limit 12,350,984


E. Over/(Under) Limit (2,992,084)$            (C-D)


Appropriations Subject to Limitation


City of Wildomar


GANN Appropriations Limit


FY 2020-21 CALCULATIONS 


(Including $.01 Wildomar Sales Tax)







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.14 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Revised Appropriations Limit for FY 2021-22 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 


 
DISCUSSION: 
Article XIII-B of the California State Constitution places limits on the amount of “proceeds 
of taxes” that can be spent by all entities of government. “Proceeds of taxes” include 
some, but not all, revenues. Therefore, the appropriations limit only applies to those City 
revenues that are considered “proceeds of taxes.” 
 
It is the responsibility of the City to calculate its annual appropriations limit. The annual 
limit is calculated by multiplying the previous fiscal year’s limit by a factor based upon the 
change in the population and the change in California per capita personal income. 
 
A city may choose to use its own change in population or that of the county if the county 
change in population is greater than the City’s. Staff recommends the City use the 
population change that is most favorable to the City. The choice of each of these factors 
is an annual election. For fiscal year 2020-21, the City of Wildomar population increased 
by 0.14%, and Riverside County’s overall population increased 0.67%. Therefore, staff 
recommends that the County’s change in population be used, and the FY 2021-22 
appropriations limit calculation attached hereto is based on the 0.67% population change.  
 
The change in the California per capita personal income was 5.73%. 
 
During the fieldwork on the FY 2020-2021 annual audit, it was determined that the 
appropriations limit was incorrect for the fiscal year due to an incorrect number for the 
county’s population change. The appropriations limit revision for FY 2020-21 was 
included in a separate agenda item. That revision affects the FY 2021-22 appropriations 







limit as the beginning limit has to be revised and flow through the worksheet. In addition, 
staff found an additional item to be included in the Proceeds of Taxes which affects the 
over/under limit. 


 
Staff has calculated the revised appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to be 
$13,146,189. This is $1,571,889 more than the City’s revised estimate on the proceeds 
of taxes. 
 
Cities are required to complete an appropriations calculation for each fiscal year. The 
City’s auditors are required to review and approve the appropriations calculation as part 
of their audit of the City.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director              City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Resolution  
B. FY 2021-22 GANN Appropriation Revised Limit Calculation worksheet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


ATTACHMENT A 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE REVISED 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 


 
WHEREAS, Constitutional Article XIII-B (Propositions 4 and 111) limits the 


appropriations State and Local Government may make from the proceeds of taxes and 
requires State and Local Government to adopt an annual appropriations limit; and 


 
WHEREAS, the permanent FY2009-10 base year appropriations limit of 


$7,728,041 for the City was established by a vote of the people on November 2, 2010; 
and 


 
WHEREAS, the appropriations limitation is adjusted annually by multiplying the 


previous year’s appropriations limit by a factor based on either the population growth 
factor for the City of Wildomar or for the County of Riverside, and by either the change in 
the California Per Capita Personal Income or the change in Non-residential Construction 
for the City of Wildomar; and 
 


WHEREAS, the City has received inflation and population data from the State 
Department of Finance to calculate the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Appropriations Limit; and 


 
WHEREAS, the revised appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2020-21 was 


$12,350,984; and, 
 


WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar wishes to select those options 
providing the greatest ratio of change as shown below:  
 
  Change in California per     County Population 
  Capita Personal Income   Change 
         (Inflation Factor)     (Population Factor)   
       1.0573             1.0067     
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Wildomar approves the revised appropriations limit at $13,146,189 for Fiscal Year 2021-
22 and selects the options for calculation using the population growth of Riverside County 
and the change in the California per Capita Personal Income.   
 
The City Clerk shall attest and certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution, and 
it shall become effective immediately upon its approval. 


 
 
 
 







 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 


 Dustin Nigg 
 Mayor 


 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________            ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENT B 
 







Amount


A. Fiscal Year 2020-21 Appropriations Limit 12,350,984$           


B. Adjustment Factors:


1. Population 1.0067


2. Inflation 1.0573


Total Adjustment 1.06438391 (B1*B2)


C. FY2021-22 Base Appropriations Limit 13,146,189$           (B*A)


D. Other Adjustments


Lost Responsibility (-) -                              


Transfer to private (-) -                              


Transfer to fees (-) -                              


Assume Responsibility (+) -                              


Sub-total Adjustments -                              


E. FY2021-22 Adjusted Appropriations Limit 13,146,189             (C-D)


F. FY 2021-22 Appropriations Limit 13,146,189$           


Amount


A. Proceeds of Taxes 11,574,300$           


B. Exclusions (Qualifed Debt Service) 0


C. Appropriations Subject to Limitation 11,574,300 (A-B)


D. Current Year Limit 13,146,189


E. Over/(Under) Limit (1,571,889)$            (C-D)


Appropriations Subject to Limitation


City of Wildomar


GANN Appropriations Limit


FY 2021-22 CALCULATIONS 


(Including $.01 Wildomar Sales Tax)







CITY OF WILDOMAR - CITY COUNCIL  
Agenda Item #1.15 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021  


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Award Services Agreement for Annual Grant Writing Services 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 


1. Approve six firms to be on the city’s Professional Services Pre-Qualified list for 
Grant Writing through December 31, 2024; and,  


2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Services Agreement between the City of 
Wildomar and California Consulting. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Wildomar selectively applies for grants based on the operational and capital 
improvement annual budgets.  Staff anticipates a significant increase in grant funding 
opportunities in the coming calendar year and beyond.  To date, expenditures on grant 
research, preparation and management have primarily been through staff augmentation 
agreements.  The agenda item proposes retaining a full-service grant writing firm that is 
most qualified and specialized in monitoring, advising, preparing and managing on a wide 
range of municipal service needs. 


DISCUSSION: 
Staff prepared a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) for Professional Services from firms 
specializing in Grant Writing for municipalities (Attachment A). Proposals were submitted 
from six qualified firms. Three firms specialized in transportation related grants. One firm 
specialized in housing related grants.  Two firms offered a generalized cross-section of 
expertise that more aligned with the RFP.  Staff recommends that the city approve the six 
firms on a Pre-Qualified three year list as there may be an advantage on a specific grant 
to retain one of the firms.  A Services Agreement with detailed scope of services and fees 
will be prepared for each specific grant(s) for City Council approval at the time the services 
are rendered.   
 
Staff interviewed the two firms offering a generalized cross-section of expertise aligning 
with the RFP for an on-going annual contract.  The RFP sought a firm that will advance 
the city’s goals, activities, services and improvements associated with: 
 


• Economic Development  
• Energy Efficiency and Sustainability  
• Environmental Enhancement, Water Quality and citywide Beautification  







• Public Safety including Fire, Police, Code Enforcement, Animal Services  
• Housing  
• Homeless Social Support Services  
• Infrastructure Improvement and Maintenance  
• Information Technology and Cyber Security  
• Communication and Community Outreach  
• Broadband, Mesh, Smart City technology and infrastructure  
• Parks improvements, maintenance, and recreation programs  
• Public buildings  
• Senior Family and Youth programs  


 
The final selection to award the annual Services Agreement was very difficult because 
both firms are superior in their service offerings, grant research, go/no go decision matrix, 
reporting, post award compliance and high return on investment of grant writing 
expenditures. Based on available city staff resources, staff recommends at this time that 
California Consulting proposal (Attachment B) better aligns with our current needs. 
 
Staff and the consultant have finalized a Services Agreement including a detailed scope 
of work and fee (Attachment C).   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The cost of the proposed service by California Consulting is $58,200 plus approved 
reimbursable expenses. Measure A (201 account) funds have traditionally been used for 
staff augmentation expenditures for grant writing services.  Appropriation for the contract 
award  herein re-appropriates Measure A (201) funds.  At the submission of a grant or no 
later than each fiscal year a budget adjustment / transfer will re-appropriate the Measure 
A expenditure to the affected department account for auditing purposes. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Dan York       Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works 
City Engineer     
   
ATTACHMENT: 


A. Request for Proposal 
B. Proposal 
C. Services Agreement  


 
 


 
 







ATTACHMENT A 







CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 


Request for Proposals 
 


Professional Services for  
ANNUAL GRANT WRITING SERVICES 


 
 
 
 
 
 


    City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Ste 201 


Wildomar, CA 92595 
 


Questions and inquiries may be submitted in writing via email until 
noon Wednesday, November 24, 2021, to dyork@cityofwildomar.org 


 
Proposals Due by 3:00 pm on Tuesday, November 30, 2021 


 







1 
 


Introduction: 
 
The City of Wildomar (City) is accepting proposals from qualified firms for 
Professional Services for Annual Grant Writing Services.  Prospective respondents 
are advised to read this information carefully prior to submitting a proposal.   
 
Proposals shall be addressed to Mr. Dan York, PE, Assistant City Manager 
and submitted electronically in accordance with the following instructions. 
Proposals that do not conform to these instructions will not be accepted. 
  
No later than November 23, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. send an email titled: Request 
for Proposal Link, GRANT WRITING to Terri Abercrombie: 
tabercrombie@cityofwildomar.org.  In an email response a link to a 
Sharedrive folder will be provided.  
Proposals shall be uploaded to the Sharedrive link by 3:00 pm on Tuesday 
November 30, 2021.  The uploaded submittal shall be Titled GRANT 
WRITING SERVICES. All links provided to prospective respondents will 
expire at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday November 30, 2021. 
 
Questions regarding this RFP are to be directed to Mr. Dan York, Assistant City 
Manager at dyork@cityofwildomar.org for clarification purposes only. It is 
important that proposers provide a single contact name, and email, for 
purposes of communicating with the City. No questions will be responded to if 
received after [November 24, 2021 at noon].  Material changes, if any, to the 
scope of services or proposal procedures will only be transmitted by written 
addendum. Firms intending to submit a proposal shall notify the Assistant 
City Manager to receive any addendums. 
  
Proposals will not be accepted by Fax.  
 
Late Proposals:  
 
Proposals submitted after the specified date and time will not be considered.  Each 
firm assumes responsibility for timely submission of its proposal. 
 
Withdrawal or Modifications of Proposals: 
 
Any proposal may be withdrawn or modified by a written request signed by the firm 
and received by the Assistant City Manager prior to the final time and date for the 
receipt of proposals.  Once the deadline is past, firms are obligated to fulfill the 
terms of their proposal. 
 
Proposal Acceptance and Rejection:  
 
The City of Wildomar reserves the right to accept any proposal, to reject any and 
all proposals, to call for new proposals, and to award the contract to multiple 



mailto:tabercrombie@cityofwildomar.org





2 
 


consultants if deemed to be in the best interest of the City. 
 
Proposal Evaluation and Award:  
 
Evaluation of the RFP will be made based on the criteria noted in Section V 
Additional Information.  Award shall be made to the responsible firm whose 
proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to the City, taking into 
consideration price and adherence to the included specifications.  The selection 
will be based on qualifications and will not be driven by lowest proposed cost.  Price 
will be an indication to staff of the Consultant’s understanding of the Scope of 
Work.  The City may create a panel to review the proposals and, if necessary, 
conduct an interview with the top firm(s).  The City intends to enter into an 
agreement with the successful firm for the specified products, and services.  
Nothing herein shall obligate the City to award a contract to any responding firm.  
 
 
 
Qualification/Inspection/Interviews:  
 
Proposals will only be considered from firms normally engaged in providing the 
types of products and services specified herein.  The City reserves the right to 
inspect the Firm’s facilities, products, personnel, and organization at any time, or 
to take any other action necessary to determine Firm’s ability to perform.  The City 
reserves the right to reject proposals where evidence or evaluation is determined 
to indicate inability to perform.  The City reserves the right to interview any or all 
responding firms and/or to award a contract without conducting interviews.  
 
Key Dates: 
 


RFP Circulated November 15,2021 
Last Date to Submit Questions on 
RFP 


November 24, 2021 noon 


Request for Proposals Due November 30,2021 
Interview(s), if required December 3,2021 
Staff Recommendation for Selection December 3,2021 
Negotiate Scope and Fee December 3,2021 
Consultant sign PSA (Agreement) December 7,2021 
Staff Report docket with City Clerk December 7, 2021 
City Council/Cemetery District Board 
Award Contract 


December 15, 2021 


 
 
 


  







 
3 


 


Guidelines for Proposal 
 
The following guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission 
of proposals.  The intent is to assist respondents in the preparation of their submissions 
and to assist the City by simplifying the review process providing standards for 
comparison of submissions. 
 
Statements submitted in response to this RFP shall include a complete response to the 
requirements in this section in the order presented.  Statements should be a 
straightforward delineation of the respondent’s capability to satisfy the intent and 
requirements of this RFP and should not contain redundancies and conflicting 
statements.  
 
Proposals shall be prepared with easy to read font size and style.  Pages shall be 
numbered. 
 
Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:  
 
1. Introductory letter  


The introductory letter should be addressed to: 
 


Mr. Dan York, PE 
Assistant City Manager 
City of Wildomar/Cemetery District 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Ste 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
 


The letter should state the firm’s name submitting the proposal, their mailing address, 
e-mail address, telephone number, and contact name.  Name subconsultants that will 
play a major role in the project.  The letter shall address the firm’s understanding of 
the project based on this RFP and any other information the firm has gathered.  
Include a statement discussing the firm’s interest and qualifications for this type of 
work. The letter shall be signed by a principal authorized to commit the firm 
contractually. 


 
2. Qualifications and Experience  


Describe the firm’s capability for undertaking and performing the work.  Provide the 
qualifications and experience of the consultant team that will work on the Project.  
Team members are expected to be available for the duration of the Project and 
replacement will not be permitted without prior consultation and approval by the City. 
 
List types and locations of similar work performed by the firm in the last three (3) years 
that best characterizes the quality and past performance.  Emphasize the specific 
qualifications and experience from similar projects for the key team members.  If the 
team includes a subconsultant playing a prominent role then highlight the projects 
worked on as a team.  Include client names, current phone numbers and email 
addresses for the representative projects.  References (for prime and subconsultants) 
may be contacted as part of the selection process. 







 
4 


 


  
 
3. Project Understanding and Approach 


This section shall clearly convey the Consultant’s understanding and approach to 
satisfy the scope of work.  Highlight the firm’s best practices that you believe set you 
apart from other similar firms. 
 


4. Work Plan  
 


The work plan shall address all the items of work as described in this RFP and include 
a milestone schedule that identifies the key items of work.  The plan should be simple, 
easy to read and follow, and addresses and satisfies the objectives and specifications 
as listed in the Scope of Services in this RFP.  The work plan shall be presented in 
the proposal such that it can be easily incorporated into the Services Agreement as 
Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 
 
This section shall include a description of how each key task will be performed and 
identify the deliverables.  The work plan shall include enough detail to demonstrate a 
clear understanding of the project.  It shall also include a staffing plan that identifies 
team members by task and lists amount of time each team members can devote to 
the project. 
 


5. Conflict of Interest Statement  
The firm shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with the City that 
may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract.   
 


6. References  
Provide at least three references for each key team member (prime and/or 
subconsultant) from recent work similar to the Project.  Include a brief description of 
projects associated with each reference. 
 


7. Comments on or Requested Changes to Contract 
The City Standard Services Agreement is included as Attachment A to this Request 
for Proposals. The proposing firm shall identify any objections to and/or request 
changes to the standard contact language in this section.  If no objections or changes 
are requested, then so note in this section. 
 


8. Fee 
 
The fee shall include a summary either a monthly retainer cost of services or 
anticipated hours, billing classification, and hourly billing rate for each member of the 
proposed consultant team for each work plan task, reimbursement levels for direct 
expenses, and a total not-to-exceed cost for requested products and services outlined 
in the Scope of Work.  No cost increases shall be passed onto the City after the 
proposal has been submitted.  Tax, if applicable, is to be listed as a separate line item.  
The fee shall be presented in the proposal such that it can be easily incorporated into 
the Services Agreement as Exhibit B. 


 







 
5 


 


 
 


SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 
The City solicits proposals to provide turn-key annual grant writing services including but 
not limited to monitoring the repository of grants available to municipalities; identifying 
grants that further the goals of the city; prepare and submit all elements associated with 
the grant including but not limited to drafting, graphic design, photo exhibits and cost 
estimating.  The city has limited resources to support the grant writing services, therefore 
regular communications, recommendations, personnel and resources shall be provided 
by the consultant.   
  
 
I. Scope of Services  
  
The Scope of Services shall include the various tasks and deliverables necessary for the 
City to successfully submit and compete on a variety of grants. The project team 
(including sub-consultants) shall consist of the necessary disciplines led by a consultant 
experienced with the preparation of grant proposals for the wide range of services 
municipalities provide. Include the following tasks in the scope of work:  


• Familiarization with the city’s operating and capital improvement budget(s) 
• Funding needs analysis by city department 


o Economic Development 
o Energy Efficiency and Sustainability 
o Environmental Enhancement, Water Quality and citywide Beautification 
o Public Safety including Fire, Police, Code Enforcement, Animal Services 
o Housing 
o Homeless Social Support Services 
o Infrastructure Improvement and Maintenance 
o Information Technology and Cyber Security 
o Communication and Community Outreach 
o Broadband, Mesh, Smart City technology and infrastructure 
o Parks improvements, maintenance and recreation programs 
o Public buildings 
o Senior Family and Youth programs 


• Grant funding research from a variety of agencies not limited to Federal, State, 
Foundations, Agencies, Organizations, Private entities 


• Grant Proposal Development 
• Grant Reporting Support Services 
• Monthly Reports and Year End Accounting 


o Upcoming grant opportunities 
o Grant preparation in process 
o Summary including Grant applied, Department, General Services, Dollar 


amount requested and tally of Grants Awarded 
 
  







 
6 


 


     
     


Evaluation and Selection Criteria 
 
The City will evaluate all eligible RFP responses based on the following criteria: 


1) Consultant understanding of the work to be performed (30%); 
2) Qualifications, professional experience and skills of the consultant project 


manager and other proposed team members.  Includes performance on similar 
projects (30%); 


3) Work Plan and schedule to deliver the scope of services (30%); 
4) Fee Proposal (10%) 


 
After initial evaluation the City may interview the top firm(s) and modify the initial 
rankings. 
. 
 
Professional Services Agreement 


 
The standard City Consultant Contract form used by the City of Wildomar is attached as 
Attachment A. 
 
 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 
 -1- 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  
a municipal corporation 


 


and 


 


___________________________________ 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 1 -  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 
AND 


__________________________________ 
 
 


This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this ____ day of 
_________, 20__ by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
____________________, a ___________________ (“Service Provider”).  City and Service 
Provider are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. City has sought, by [describe process used, i.e. request for qualifications, request 
for quotations, request for proposals, direct negotiation, informal quotes] the performance of 
the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Service Provider, following submission of a [proposal, quote, bid, etc.] for the 
performance of the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement, 
was selected by the City to perform those services. 


C. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, City has authority to enter 
into this Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this Agreement. 


D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Service Provider for performance 
of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement and desire 
that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by 
the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this Agreement, 
the Term of this Agreement is for [___ years/months] commencing on the date first ascribed 
above.  


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 


(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of this Agreement 
by this reference. 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 2 -  


 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the 
schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that 
schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The City, in 
its sole discretion, may choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this Agreement and may 
instead allow Service Provider to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Service Provider shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection with its 
performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services unless such 
additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance with Section 26 
“Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement.  If and 
when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall be deemed to be part of the 
Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Service 
Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this 
Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual 
expenses, shall not exceed ______________________________ dollars ($_____________), 
unless additional compensation is approved in writing in accordance with Section 26 
“Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement. 


(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work 
performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges 
by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, equipment, supplies, and 
sub-Service Provider contracts.  Sub-Service Provider charges shall be detailed by the following 
categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment and supplies.   If the compensation set forth in 
subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include payment of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor 
and materials being paid as a lump sum), the labor category in each invoice  shall include 
detailed descriptions of task performed and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that 
task.  City shall independently review each invoice submitted by the Service Provider to 
determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the 
provisions of this Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice 
shall be approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City to 
Service Provider for correction and resubmission. 


(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Service 
Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service Provider to be 
paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s correct and undisputed invoice. 


(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall 
not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider. 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 3 -  


 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


City may inspect and accept or reject any of Service Provider’s work under this 
Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  City shall reject or finally accept 
Service Provider’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City.  City shall reject work by 
a timely written explanation, otherwise Service Provider’s work shall be deemed to have been 
accepted.  City’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with respect to latent 
defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  Acceptance of any of Service 
Provider’s work by City shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement 
including, but not limited to, Section 16 “Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become 
the sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the 
permission of the Service Provider.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, Service Provider shall turn over to City all such original maps, models, designs, 
drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other 
documents. 


If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement any 
maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer 
files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by Service Provider in the 
course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement, Service Provider’s guarantees and 
warranties in Section 9 “Standard of Performance” of this Agreement shall not extend to such 
use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, 
computer files, files or other documents. 


SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating 
or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service Provider shall maintain 
any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents 
or records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and disbursements charged to 
City pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and 
detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by Service Provider 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three 
(3) years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws relating 
to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular 
business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copies of such documents 
or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and copying when it is 
practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such documents and 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 4 -  


 


records shall be made available at Service Provider’s address indicated for receipt of notices in 
this Agreement. 


(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to 
be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination 
of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, require that custody of such 
documents or records be given to the City.  Access to such documents and records shall be 
granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor 
and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Service Provider shall have no authority to bind 
City in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or 
against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under 
this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 


(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Service 
Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and control.  Neither 
City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall 
have control over the conduct of Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, 
employees, or agents except as set forth in this Agreement.  Service Provider shall not at any 
time or in any manner represent that Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, 
employees, or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 


(c) Neither Service Provider , nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees or 
agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may 
otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly waives any claim Service 
Provider may have to any such rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience and 
facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this Agreement in a 
thorough, competent and professional manner.  Service Provider shall at all times faithfully, 
competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all Services.  In meeting 
its obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall employ, at a minimum, generally 
accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to the 
Services required of Service Provider under this Agreement.  In addition to the general standards 
of performance set forth this section, additional specific standards of performance and 
performance criteria may be set forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be 
applicable to Service Provider’s work under this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a 
general and a specific standard of performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or 
criteria shall prevail over the general. 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 5 -  


 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND 
LICENSES. 


Service Provider shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of 
this Agreement.  Service Provider shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and authorizations 
necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  Neither City, nor any elected or 
appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall be liable, at law or in 
equity, as a result of any failure of Service Provider to comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 


It is the understanding of City and Service Provider that California prevailing wage laws 
do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the following 
services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code or regulations 
promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work 
performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under contract and paid for in 
whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, “construction" includes work performed 
during the design and preconstruction phases of construction including, but not limited to, 
inspection and land surveying work. 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 


Service Provider shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the basis of 
race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, medical 
condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the 
Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, and in 
connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  Should Service 
Provider so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of the Services, and should the 
any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of unauthorized aliens, Service 
Provider hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions 
imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, 
has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with 
the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service Provider’s performance of the 
Services.  Service Provider further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or 
subcontractor without the express written consent of the City Manager. Service Provider agrees 
to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the 
interests of City in the performance of this Agreement. 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 6 -  


 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date of 
execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services 
for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is unaware of any stated 
position of City relative to such projects.  Any future position of City on such projects shall not 
be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the completion of 
the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be considered a conflict of 
interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the 
public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall not release or 
disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than City without prior 
written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required by law. 


(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, 
without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City 
Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, 
response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this 
Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered "voluntary" provided 
Service Provider gives City notice of such court order or subpoena.  


(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service 
Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City 
shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for any damages, 
costs and fees, including attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Service Provider’s 
conduct. 


(d) Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, 
employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice 
of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 
request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work 
performed thereunder.  City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Service Provider 
or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.  Service Provider agrees to 
cooperate fully with City and to provide City with the opportunity to review any response to 
discovery requests provided by Service Provider.  However, this right to review any such 
response does not imply or mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City and any and all of 
its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all liability 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 7 -  


 


(including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, 
regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, including attorneys fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert 
witness fees) arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in 
part, any negligent or wrongful act, error or omission of Service Provider, or by any individual or 
entity for which Service Provider is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, 
employees or sub-contractors of Service Provider, in the performance of professional services 
under this Agreement.  


(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service Provider 
shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its employees, 
officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, 
arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or 
costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorneys fees and costs, court 
costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this 
Agreement by Service Provider, or by any individual or entity for which Service Provider is 
legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of 
Service Provider. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to obtain 
executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this section from 
each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on 
behalf of Service Provider in the performance of this Agreement naming the Indemnified Parties 
as additional indemnitees.  In the event Service Provider fails to obtain such indemnity 
obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees to be fully responsible 
according to the terms of this section.  Failure of City to monitor compliance with these 
requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in no way act as a waiver of any 
rights hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend City as set forth herein is binding on 
the successors, assigns or heirs of Service Provider and shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement or this section. 


(d) Limitation of Indemnification.  Notwithstanding any provision of this section to 
the contrary, design professionals are required to defend and indemnify the City only to the 
extent permitted by Civil Code Section 2782.8, which limits the liability of a design professional 
to claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of the design professional.  The term “design professional,” 
as defined in Section 2782.8, is limited to licensed architects, licensed landscape architects, 
registered professional engineers, professional land surveyors, and the business entities that offer 
such services in accordance with the applicable provisions of the California Business and 
Professions Code. 


(e) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims 
occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not release 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 8 -  


 


City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of City or any and 
all of its officials, employees and agents.   


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Service Provider agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of 
this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and made a part of 
this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to form and 
content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by the 
City Manager.  Service Provider agrees to provide City with copies of required policies upon 
request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Service Provider are material considerations for this 
Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the persons and entities 
who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Service Provider under this Agreement. 
 In recognition of that interest, Service Provider shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or 
any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of Service Provider’s duties or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the City.  Any attempted 
assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  City acknowledges, however, 
that Service Provider, in the performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize 
sub-contractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 
continuity of Service Provider’s staff and sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the 
Services.  Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff and sub-
contractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to and during any such performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such notice is 
given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty 
(30) days written notice of termination to City. 


(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City may 
terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all 
property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 9 -  


 


returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed and 
expenses incurred by Service Provider, prepared as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and 
Method of Payment” of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be reviewed and paid in the 
same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of this 
Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Service Provider is in default under the terms of this Agreement, the 
City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Service Provider for any 
work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the City may give notice to Service Provider 
of the default and the reasons for the default.  The notice shall include the timeframe in which 
Service Provider may cure the default.  This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but 
may be extended, though not reduced, if circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that 
Service Provider is in default, the City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, 
proceed with payment on the invoices.  In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, 
elect to pay some or all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Service 
Provider does not cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement 
under Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Any failure on the part of the City to give notice 
of the Service Provider’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s legal 
rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Service Provider shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if any, 
caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the control of Service 
Provider.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts 
of federal, state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, 
embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term and price of this Agreement shall be 
equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and available to 
City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the Services shall be furnished 
to Service Provider in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue delay, the Services to be 
performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage prepaid and return 
receipt requested, addressed as follows: 
 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 10 -  


 


To City:   City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 


 


To Service Provider: __________________________ 
__________________________ 
__________________________ 
__________________________ 


 


Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by 
facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States 
Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Service Provider represents 
and warrants that he/she/they has/have the authority to so execute this Agreement and to bind 
Service Provider to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or her 
designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue interpretations and 
to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that commit additional funds, 
consistent with Section 28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s contracting authority under the 
Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing 
and approved by the Service Provider and by the City.  The City Manager shall have the 
authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement if the total compensation under this 
Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City Manager’s contracting authority under the 
Wildomar Municipal Code.  All other amendments shall be approved by the City Council. The 
Parties agree that the requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any 
attempted waiver shall be void. 


SECTION 29. WAIVER. 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver by 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 11 -  


 


any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any 
other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this 
Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by Service Provider shall not constitute 
a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the laws of the 
State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in state trial courts shall 
lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event of litigation in a U.S. District 
Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any provision 
of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding shall be entitled to 
an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to 
which it may be entitled. 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, complete, 
final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed therein and 
supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into 
between Service Provider and City prior to the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not 
embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of 
this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be read and construed 
without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the terms 
of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


- 12 -  


 


Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Debbie A. Lee 
City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


___________________________________ 


By:   By:   
 _________________________________   
 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ___________________________ 


NOTE: SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, 
AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY 
BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, 
OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE 
PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


  


 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On __________, ____ before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on 
the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is 
true and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could 
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


 INDIVIDUAL 
 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 
TITLE(S) 


 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 
    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
 TRUSTEE(S) 
 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
 OTHER_______________________________ 


 ______________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 
_____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________ 
 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


  


 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On __________, ____ before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, 


 personally known to me - OR -   proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon 
behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


__________________________________________ 
(SIGNATURE OF NOTARY) 


 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could 
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


 INDIVIDUAL 
 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 
TITLE(S) 


 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 
    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 
 TRUSTEE(S) 
 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 
 OTHER_______________________________ 


 ______________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 
_____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________ 
 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
I.  Service Provider will perform the following Services: 
 
 A. 
 
 B. 
 
 C. 
 
 D. 
 
II.  As part of the Services, Service Provider will prepare and deliver the following tangible 
work products to the City: 
 
 A. 
 
 B. 
 
 C. 
 
 D. 
 
III.  During performance of the Services, Service Provider will keep the City appraised of 
the status of performance by delivering the following status reports: 
 
 A. 
 
 B. 
 
 C. 
 
 D. 
 
IV.  The tangible work products and status reports will be delivered to the City pursuant to 
the following schedule: 
 
 A. 
 
 B. 
 
 C. 







 


 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 


 
 D. 
 
V.  Service Provider will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the Services: 
 
 A. 
 
 B. 
 
 C. 
 
 D. 
 
 
VI.  Service Provider will utilize the following subcontractors to accomplish the Services: 
 
 A. 
 
 B. 
 
 C. 
 
 D. 
 







 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1   
 B-1 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 
I.  Service Provider shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the Services: 
 
 A.   [job]    [hourly rate]    
 
 B.   [job]    [hourly rate]    
 
 C.   [job]    [hourly rate]    
 
 D.   [job]    [hourly rate]    
 
 E.   [job]    [hourly rate]    
 
II.  Service Provider may utilize sub-contractors as indicated in this Agreement.  The 
hourly rate for any subcontractor is not to exceed $_______ per hour without written 
authorization from the City Manager or his designee. 
 
IV.  The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $_________, as provided in 
Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement.







 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 
 C-1 


EXHIBIT "C" 
INSURANCE 


 
 A. Insurance Requirements.  Service Provider shall provide and maintain insurance, 
acceptable to the City, in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, against 
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with 
the performance of the Services by Service Provider, its agents, representatives or employees.  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.   
 
 Service Provider shall provide the following scope and limits of insurance: 
 
  1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 
   (1) Commercial General Liability.  Insurance Services Office form 
Commercial General Liability coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0001). 
 
   (2) Automobile.  Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 
(Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile Liability, including code 1 "any auto" and endorsement CA 
0025, or equivalent forms subject to the written approval of the City. 
 
   (3) Workers’ Compensation.  Workers' Compensation insurance as 
required by the Labor Code of State of California covering all persons providing Services on 
behalf of the Service Provider and all risks to such persons under this Agreement. 
 
   (4) Professional Liability.  Professional liability insurance appropriate 
to the Service Provider’s profession.  This coverage may be written on a “claims made” basis, 
and must include coverage for contractual liability.  The professional liability insurance required 
by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims based upon, arising out of or 
related to Services performed under this Agreement.  The insurance must be maintained for at 
least three (3) consecutive years following the completion of Service Provider’s services or the 
termination of this Agreement.  During this additional three (3) year period, Service Provider 
shall annually and upon request of the City submit written evidence of this continuous coverage. 
 
  2. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Service Provider shall maintain limits of 
insurance no less than: 
 
   (1) Commercial General Liability.  $1,000,000 general aggregate for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 
 
   (2) Automobile.  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage.  A combined single limit policy with aggregate limits in an amount of not less 
than $2,000,000 shall be considered equivalent to the said required minimum limits set forth 
above.   







 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 
 C-2 


 
   (3) Workers' Compensation.  Workers' Compensation as required by 
the Labor Code of the State of California of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
   (4) Professional Liability.  $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
 B. Other Provisions.  Insurance policies required by this Agreement shall contain the 
following provisions: 
 
  1. All Policies.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be 
endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by the insurer or either 
Party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 30 days' prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to City. 
 
  2. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages. 
 
   (1) City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, 
and employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as respects:  liability 
arising out of activities Service Provider performs; products and completed operations of Service 
Provider; premises owned, occupied or used by Service Provider; or automobiles owned, leased, 
hired or borrowed by Service Provider.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to City, and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials, 
or employees.   
 
   (2) Service Provider’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance 
with respect to City, and its respective elected and appointed, its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, and its respective elected 
and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers, shall apply in excess of, and not 
contribute with, Service Provider’s insurance. 
 
   (3) Service Provider’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 
liability. 
 
   (4) Any failure to comply with the reporting or other provisions of the 
insurance policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to City, 
and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. 
 
  3. Workers' Compensation Coverage.  Unless the City Manager otherwise 
agrees in writing, the insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against City, and its 
respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees and agents for losses arising from 
work performed by Service Provider. 
 







 


RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 
 C-3 


 C. Other Requirements.  Service Provider agrees to deposit with City, at or before 
the effective date of this Agreement, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy City that the 
insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with.  The City may require that 
Service Provider furnish City with copies of original endorsements effecting coverage required 
by this Exhibit “C”.  The certificates and endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized 
by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  City reserves the right to inspect complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 
 
  1. Service Provider shall furnish certificates and endorsements from each 
sub-contractor identical to those Service Provider provides. 
 
  2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by City.  At the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City or its respective elected or appointed 
officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or the Service Provider shall procure a bond 
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, defense 
expenses and claims. 
 
  3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be 
construed to limit Service Provider’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification 
provisions and requirements of this Agreement. 
 







ATTACHMENT B 







 


 


 


 
 City of Wildomar 


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
 


ANNUAL GRANT WRITING SERVICES 
 
 
 


Submitted By:   
California Consulting, Inc. 
214 Main Street, Suite 102 


El Segundo, CA 90245 
(323) 728-9002 


 
www.californiaconsulting.org 


 
November 30, 2021 


 
 
 
 



http://www.californiaconsulting.org/





 
 


 
 
 
 


Cover Letter 


Firm Qualifications…………………………………………………………….……………….….…1 


Project Understanding and Approach……………………………………………………………...2 


Project Management Team………………… …….…………………..………………...……….…6 


Work Process Flow Chart……………………………….…………………….………………..…...9 


Sample Grant Application Work Plan……………………………………………………………...10 


Municipal Client References…………………………………………………………………….….11 


Municipal Grant Awards and Return on Investment……….……………………………..……...12 


Cost for Services...…………………………………………………………….………..……………17 


 


 


Table of Contents 







Cover Letter 
 


November 30, 2021 
 
Mr. Dan York, PE Assistant City Manager 
City of Wildomar/Cemetery District  
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Ste 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
 
 
Dear Mr. York, 


 
  California Consulting is pleased to provide this response to the Request for Proposals for Annual 


Grant Writing Services and to introduce the California Consulting Team to the City of Wildomar 
 


 Founded in 2004, California Consulting, a California Corporation, is the largest grant writing firm in 
California and has developed an expertise writing grant applications for public agencies. Our project 
management team has extensive experience with federal, state, and local grant funding opportunities and 
maintain exceptional skills in effective and persuasive grant writing, grant application preparation, grant 
application quality control review that have been awarded to our clients.  We are honored to provide grant 
writing to many public agencies including the cities of Glendale, Twentynine Palms, Baldwin Park, Bell, 
Maywood, and El Segundo, among others. 


 
    California Consulting has secured over $1.6 billion through the company’s combined efforts as noted 


in our website www.californiaconsulting.org.  Our aggressive, hard-working, and results-oriented style has 
translated into success for our clients.  Our grant writers have developed subject matter expertise in writing 
federal and state competitive applications as evidenced by our many municipal award-winning applications.  
Our team provides grant management, administration and post award compliance reporting for awarded 
federal and state grants.  
 


California Consulting does not have a financial, business, or other relationship with the City that 
may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract.  California Consulting does not have a comment, 
changes, nor objections to the standard services agreement (Attachment A)  
 


We look forward to working with your team and sharing our full grant writing and management 
services with your team. 
 
 
Warm Regards,  


 
Steve Samuelian 


Chief Executive Officer 







 


1 | P a g e   


Firm Qualifications 
  Founded in 2004, California Consulting has offices in Northern, Central, and Southern California and is a proud 


sponsor of Municipal Management Association of Southern California (MMASC), California City Management Foundation 
(CCMF), and League of California Cities.  We currently have approximately 80 clients statewide consisting of approximately 
40 cities, almost 30 school districts, and several non-profit clients. We have 34 team members 
https://www.californiaconsulting.org/cc-team/ from Chico in the North to San Diego in the South.  California Consulting 
continues to grow and the majority of our new clients come from referrals from existing clients.  We have built a solid 
reputation by effectively communicating with our clients and working hard for them.  California Consulting is the largest 
grant writing firm in California.  We have secured over $1.6 billion for our clients since inception through grant writing and 
governmental affairs efforts.  California Consulting is a full-service grant writing and management firm.  We are experts in 
the fields of grant research and identification, preparing comprehensive and concise grant application packages, submitting 
grants in a timely fashion and follow through after the grant has been submitted.  California Consulting subscribes to an 
extensive range of grant sites that allows us to track current and upcoming grants for use with our clients. 


Through years of experience, our grant writers have a proven track record of success and have mastered their 
skills of identifying, researching, and obtaining funding for significant projects at every level of government.  Our aggressive, 
hard-working, and results-oriented style has translated into millions of dollars for our clients.  Our grant writers are diligent 
and stay current on every Federal, State, and private grant available on a myriad of different topics and public policy areas.  
We have written over 1200 competitive successful grant applications that have been awarded. 


California Consulting is the leader in the grant writing industry.  We have set the standard for the following: 
1. Thorough knowledge of policy and subject matter grant writing expertise 
2. Collaborative team approach to grant writing for every client 
3. Grant advocacy for each client 
4. Extensive grant administration, grant management, and grant reporting/compliance experience. 


California Consulting staff is experienced in all facets of grant research, grant writing, and grant management.  
We have a thorough understanding of our client’s needs through open and continual communication.  Our grant writers 
have over 400 years of grant writing experience combined.  California Consulting works collaboratively with our clients to 
create a strategy identifying funding opportunities that align with the client’s needs, whether it’s at the Federal, State, or 
Private Foundation level.  California Consulting is committed to the following: 


• Identifying client projects and pairing those projects with funding opportunities 
• Developing quality grant applications 
• Advocating for your grant application during the selection process 
• Conducting professional grant reporting, administration, and post-award compliance. 
California Consulting Staff meets via Zoom or conference call with clients to conduct a needs assessment at the outset 


of the project in order to identify the client’s goals.  We are experienced and capable of arranging and attending any 
meetings on behalf of the Client.  The Project Manager assigned to the City of Wildomar will be the main point of contact.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







 


2 | P a g e   


Project Understanding and Approach 
California Consulting is a full service grant writing firm. Our team members are experts in the fields of 


grant research and identification, preparing comprehensive and concise grant application packages, submitting 
grants in a timely fashion, and following through to determine the status of the application. 


California Consulting has a fundamental business philosophy founded on open communication and 
customizing each application to the client’s needs. 


1. Funding Needs Analysis: (In-Depth Meeting with Department Heads to review priorities and funding needs). We 
will acquire a full understanding of city’s needs from staff.  The Project Manager will continue to meet with the client 
regularly and on an ongoing basis. 


2. Needs Assessment: (In-Depth Meeting with Client Staff to review priorities and funding needs). Project Manager 
and our team will conduct regular meetings and continued dialog on an ongoing basis. This cooperative working 
relationship building is the key to keeping the grants pursued on target with the client’s strategic goals. 


Sample questions asked during the Needs Assessment: 


A) List and describe any program initiatives or priority projects. 
B) What needs, projects, or content areas would you like to target for funding? Client can list specific 


projects or general areas in which you have funding needs. 
C) List any grants for which you are considering applying or have decided to apply. In addition, please list what 


kind of grant-writing support would be helpful for each grant. 
D) List past grant applications you would like to revise and submit again. 
• The Client will provide an established point of contact for California Consulting Project Manager to 


contact regarding the grant. 
• California Consulting will have reasonable access to the required information and documentation                     required to 


complete the grant on behalf of the Client. 
• The Client will provide the required information and documentation in a timely manner in order for 


California Consulting to submit the grant by deadline. 
• California Consulting will provide a monthly report listing the Grant Opportunities we recommend for the                        Client 


based on the input from the Staff through ongoing communication. 
• We will provide the Client with monthly written reports on grants written, grants in progress, along with 


upcoming grant opportunities. 
3. Grant Funding Research and Identification: Our Project Management Team are experts in grant identification. 


They conduct thorough research on an ongoing basis. We have several grant related search engine and List Service 
websites we subscribe to in order to research all current and upcoming Federal, State, and Private Grants. We track 
current and upcoming grants in order to let our clients know what is available and what we recommend would fit 
their situation. The Project Manager will assist the Client in deciding which grants fit best with the Client’s projects 
that was identified at the Needs Assessment. The Project Manager will be able to advise the Client on the strength 
of the Client’s project when competing for the grant and will make recommendations based on the Client’s budget 
and ability to meet the grant requirements, as well as any other factors regarding grant Client guidelines.  







 


  
  3 | P a g e  
 
 


4. On-Call Grant Research – In addition to the areas defined above, other areas may also be identified through 
the funding needs analysis process including researching grant opportunities identified by the Client and 
participating in grant funding Client Zoom meetings, webinars, and/or workshops. 


5. Grant Proposal Development: Our Project Management Team will write all sections of the grant application. 
Once a grant has been identified, we work with staff to interpret guidelines and gather information necessary 
for a strong proposal and application. By learning about the Client’s history, needs, and how the award will 
positively impact the Client’s project, we are able to communicate that information with a clear and concise grant 
package to get the agency’s attention. When your staff and California Consulting agree to develop a grant 
proposal, we will develop a checklist and schedule. The checklist and schedule will include what items the 
Client will be responsible for and a timeline as to when we will need them submitted to our office. California 
Consulting retains copies of all grants we have submitted. If a similar grant application was previously 
approved, we will use this application as a guide when creating the Client’s application. 


Below is a list of general tasks for our grant process: 


a. Create a task timeline with due dates and ensure the proposed project meets the grant agency’s 
requirements 


b. Review similar successful grant applications and apply where possible 
c. Collect information on the project 
d. Meet with staff to create an accurate scope of work, budget, timeline, narratives, and cost analysis 
e. Attend pre-proposal conferences, webinars, as necessary 
f. Coordinate with local agencies and organizations as needed when applying for collaborative grants 
g. Obtain letters of support, when necessary 
h. Work with staff to determine if Client approval is required for submission and work with staff 


to  prepare staff report for the Council. 
i. Draft proposals and send to staff for review 
j. Incorporate staff edits in final drafts 
k. Monitor funding Client until grant awards are announced 
l. Obtain Grant Funding Client feedback if grant is not awarded and provide Client with 


findings and            advice on future applications 
6. Grant Management – In coordination with Client staff, plan and implement grant programs, prepare 


budgets, monitor expenditures, track results, analyze financial data, prepare and submit progress reports 
to funding    Client and close out grant program/project files. 


7.   Grant Advocacy: California Consulting would be pleased to contact any and all federal and state agencies 
to discuss your grant application and make presentations to Client boards as needed based on our 
longstanding relationships with the following: 


CalTrans Department of Transportation 
U.S. Federal Highway Administration 
U.S. Environmental Protection Client 
California Environmental Protection Agency 
California Department of Parks and Recreation 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
California State Water Resources Control Board  
California Department of Water Resources  
California Energy Commission 
Employment Training Panel 
 California Department of Education  
Office of Public School Construction      







 


  
  4 | P a g e  
 
 


California State Allocation Board 
California Air Resources Board 
U.S. Department of Energy 
U.S. Department of Justice 
U.S. Department of Education 
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development-HUD 
U.S. Economic Development Administration-EDA 
California Housing and Community Development Department 
(partial list) 


8. Preparation of Grant Application Documentation: The Project Manager will be responsible for preparing 
any associated exhibits and presentations related to the grant application being prepared. The Project 
Manager will prepare any studies required of the grant application. If the study requires the services of a sub-
consultant, the Project Manager will assist the Client in developing an RFP/Q in an effort to obtain a qualified 
sub-consultant for these services. The Project Manager will review and assist the Client in the preparation of 
plans, specifications, bid documents, and other documents prepared by the Client or other consultants to 
ensure grant requirements are in compliance. 


9. Grant Review and Submission process: California Consulting takes pride in our impeccable grant application 
submissions due to our thorough quality assurance measures to ensure a strong and competitive grant 
application. Our Senior Project Mangers conduct group meetings with all Project Managers monthly, or as 
required. In addition, our Project Management team meets   individually with each Project Manager regularly to 
review each client’s work plan status and submissions. These meetings thoroughly discuss the client’s needs, 
grants being worked on, and review additional grant opportunities that match the clients identified priorities.  


10. Project Schedule: We create a precise project timeline to ensure the grant is submitted on time. This timeline 
not only captures the submission deadline, but establishes internal deadlines/checklist in order to obtain the 
information needed for quality submissions. 


11. Written Monthly Reports: California Consulting will prepare a monthly report for the Client reflecting grants in 
progress, grants submitted, and grants awarded. This will provide the Client with a clear return on investment. 
Our staff is able to present this information to the Client as requested by the Client. Our Project Managers with 
the Senior Project Manager will participate and attend monthly meetings to report on work and provide updates 
as required by the Client. 


12. Workshops and Community Information Webinars:  California Consulting is proud to provide regular grant 
writing municipal workshops /Zoom webinars, we have conducted with Municipal Management Association of 
Southern California (MMASC), CA Contract Cities, Independent Contract Cities ,Southern California Legislators, 
Orange County Board of Supervisors, Supervisor Doug Chaffee, and Assemblywoman, Sharon Quirk-Silva, US 
Representative, Judy Chu, Senator Connie Leyva, Assemblywoman Ling Ling Chang, Assemblywoman Eloise 
Reyes, Huntington Beach Mayor Matthew Harper (Webinar Links below) and distribute a monthly newsletter 
(links below), and conduct grant writing training webinars to our clients on You Tube:  https://youtube.com.  In 
addition, our team is prepared to provide Client staff training and to assist with facilitating the community member 
training. 


 
2021 NEWSLETTERS 


November- https://conta.cc/3CqQDQ2 
October- https://conta.cc/3mszeAF 
September - https://conta.cc/3CKjdN5 
August- https://conta.cc/3AO0Y8w 



https://youtube.com/

https://conta.cc/3CqQDQ2

https://conta.cc/3mszeAF

https://conta.cc/3CKjdN5

https://conta.cc/3AO0Y8w





 


  
  5 | P a g e  
 
 


 
Webinar Grant Links: 


 
MMASC Webinar- https://conta.cc/3C4CPKM 


Supervisor Chaffee and Assemblywoman Quirk-Silva Webinar- https://conta.cc/3n56lfa 


Senator Caballero Webinar- https://conta.cc/3wx5Y0l 


Senator Durazo Webinar- https://conta.cc/3C3Eb8I 


Gilroy Chamber of Commerce, Morgan Hill Chamber of Commerce, and ASM Robert Rivas 
- https://conta.cc/3koS0ZB 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 



https://conta.cc/3C4CPKM

https://conta.cc/3n56lfa

https://conta.cc/3wx5Y0l

https://conta.cc/3C3Eb8I

https://conta.cc/3koS0ZB





 


  
  6 | P a g e  
 
 


Project Staffing and Project Organization 
 


 California Consulting will provide a project management team that will work in collaboration with your 
project managers to provide full grant writing services.  The resumes listed below include qualifications, 
background, relevant skills, and number of years of experience in providing professional grant writing 
services.    
 Steve Samuelian, CEO has held various leadership posts during a career spanning over 37 years.  
Steve was born and raised in the L.A. area and began his political and civic involvement in Los Angeles in 
1982.  In January 1995, Steve was appointed as Field Director for Congressional District 19.  He was later 
promoted to District Director overseeing the 19th Congressional District Office staff and District operations 
for the Congressional office, where he served in this capacity for 8 years.  In 2002, Steve was elected to the 
California State Assembly representing the 29th Assembly District.  He was appointed to the Assembly 
Appropriations Committee by the Speaker and served as the Vice-Chairman of the Assembly Elections and 
Redistricting Committee.  Previously, Steve was elected to the Board of Directors of the L.A. County Business 
Federation (BizFed) where he was an elected Executive Committee Member serving as an Officer for one of 
the largest business organizations in the U.S.  Additionally, Steve has been the recipient of several different 
awards from the L.A County Business Federation (BizFed) including the “Ambassador of the Year” award in 
2018.  BizFed is one of the nation’s largest and most prominent business organizations with many Fortune 
500 corporate members.  Steve serves as the Co-Chair of the USC Unruh Institute Ambassador Program 
http://dornsife.usc.edu/unruh/ambassador-press- release/.  In January 2020 Steve was appointed as Vice-
Chairman of the Athenian Leadership Council, the primary fundraising organization for the USC Sol Price 
School of Public Policy. January 2019, Steve served as the Host Committee Chairman for the USC Sol Price 
School of Public Policy 90th Anniversary Gala at L.A. District Hall.  The Price event was attended by hundreds 
of USC alumni, supporters, and several prominent elected officials. In 2017, Steve was asked to speak to 
Master’s Degree students at the UCLA Luskin School of Public Affairs and also moderated a panel sponsored 
by UCLA Luskin in 2016 dealing with the topic of Economic Development in L.A. County.  In 2018, Steve was 
the recipient of an “Outstanding Achievement” award presented to him by the Consulate of the Republic of 
Armenia in Los Angeles.  Steve has served on the Board of Directors of a Chamber of Commerce, a County 
United Way, and a Crime Stoppers organization. He has also been quoted in national, state, and local print 
and electronic media outlets regarding a variety of public policy issues.  He has been a guest speaker for 
many associations (partial list) including League of California Cities, Independent Cities Association, Contract 
Cities Association, California School Board Association (CSBA), Municipal Management Association of 
Northern California (MMANC), and others. Steve Samuelian founded California Consulting in 2004 the state’s 
largest grant writing company and the firm quickly established a reputation for hard work and a commitment 
to success for its clients. 
 


Dan Rodriguez Director of Operations.  He was a former elected official for the City of Pomona 
and appointed Vice-Mayor where he co-chaired the Mayor’s Violence Prevention Task Force resulting in the 
formation of the Pomona Youth Commission and the Pomona’s Youth and Family Economic Development 
Master Plan.  Prior to being appointed Vice-Mayor, Dan was employed with the Pomona Unified School 
District as a High School Police Officer, Child Welfare & Attendance Manager, and the Superintendent’s 
Special Liaison for over 15 years. He has held various positions as government relations with municipalities 
and agencies specializing in business development and investor relations consulting.  Dan was a former 
Los Angeles County Business Federation (BizFed) Business Development and Investment Relations 
Consultant, and Executive Director for the Boys and Girls Clubs for Brea-Placentia-Yorba Linda for 7 years, 



http://dornsife.usc.edu/unruh/ambassador-press-release/

http://dornsife.usc.edu/unruh/ambassador-press-release/





 


  
  7 | P a g e  
 
 


and served as Board Chair for Pomona Valley Boys & Girls Club.  Dan earned his Master’s Degree in 
Organizational Leadership & Development from Biola University, La Mirada, CA. 


 


Project Managers 
 


At California Consulting, we operate using a collaborative team approach to grant writing and grant 
management.  All individuals listed below are highly successful grant writers with an excellent track record. 
Ashley Ramsey, Senior Project Manager, manages all grant writing efforts and will assist the team whenever 
necessary. 


 
Ashley Ramsey, Senior Project Manager.  Ashely has been with the firm for over five years.  She 


has a Bachelor’s of Science in Planning with an emphasis in Regional and Environmental Policy and Planning 
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and has written many federal and state grant application that 
have been awarded.  She has professional experience in health care administration, quality control and 
regulatory compliance for biologics, and early childhood education.  Ashley also has experience in starting 
and operating an educational community service organization and a biotech firm, and is a subject matter 
expert in transportation planning, social program design, and healthcare access projects. 


 
David Marquez, Senior Project Manager.  David has been with California Consulting for almost ten 


years.  He is focused on developing capacity building and community development related services on behalf 
of non-profit agencies, local government, and the private sector to serve the diverse communities of Los 
Angeles.  He has extensive experience and familiarity in the area of community and economic development, 
social and health services, and planning and land use issues.  He has combined his knowledge of varied 
issues with his experience in policy development, coalition building, grant management, fund development, 
and local government to develop both strategies for issue-oriented advocacy and program sustainability for 
his clients. David served as Chief Deputy of Legislation and Policy for former Los Angeles Councilmember 
Mike Hernandez, where he managed the legislative and planning staff.  He began his career as a community 
organizer, over twenty years ago in East Los Angeles. He graduated from the University of La Verne with a 
Bachelor of Arts in History and International Studies. 


 
Jaimie Lewis, Project Manager.  Jaimie has been with the firm for over two years and has a 


background in finance, budgeting with over 10 years of grant writing experience.  Prior to joining California 
Consulting, Jaimie served as a grant writer and financial analyst for Omnitrans, San Bernardino County’s 
transportation provider and assisted with projects for the 5310 program, authored vanpool grant (CMAQ 
Funds), assisted with TIGER grant, managed FTA 5307 funds which funded the San Bernardino Transit 
Center project, assisted with the Metrolink expansion project in the District of Rialto: Sub Recipient Manager 
for Measure I Funds and performed the milestone reporting for FTA funding.  Jaimie’s experience also 
includes work for the County of San Bernardino as a public health grant auditor, the State Agency of 
Equalization as a sales and use tax auditor and a small business owner for several businesses she founded.  
Jaimie has extensive knowledge in grant post award management and milestone reporting, worked with 
many municipalities and numerous non-profits in the Southern California region, and has written and assisted 
in the grant management and monitoring efforts for many organizations.  She is a graduate of California State 
University, Northridge, and earned her Bachelor’s Degree in business administration and Master’s Degree in 
public administration. Jaimie has written competitive grants and discretionary grants to aid in the awarding of 
over $48 million in federal, state and private funding. 


 







 


  
  8 | P a g e  
 
 


Cecily Harris, Project Manager.  Cecily has over 35 years of experience working for numerous 
nonprofit organizations and municipalities as staff, consultant, or volunteer.  Her niche has always been on 
the business side – fund development, government relations, marketing communications, program 
development and implementation, community engagement, and education.  Her passion is grantsmanship – 
the research, writing, and managing of foundation and government grants.  Cecily served on numerous 
nonprofit organization Board of Directors, was appointed to several city, regional, and State of California 
committees and commissions.  Other recent community service placements included Board Member on the 
San Francisco Bay Trail Project, Advisory Board Member on the San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail and 
Commissioner on the State Boating and Waterways Commission.  She now serves on the Metropolitan 
Council Parks and Open Space Commission, Park and Trails Legacy Advisory Committee as well as serving 
on the Boards of ArtReach St. Croix, Gateway Browns Creek Trail Association, and North Woods and Waters 
of the St Croix Heritage Area. Cecily earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Renewable Natural Resources, 
Wildlife Sciences from the University of Arizona and a Masters of Business Administration, Marketing from 
Golden Gate University. 


 
 Audra Lee, Project Manager.  Audra as an expert in her field, is an experienced grant writer, working 
in the nonprofit sector for 20 years. She is also well versed in nonprofit administration and creating 
organizational stability through financial diversification. Her specialty is grant writing and management, 
nonprofit development, fundraising, and event coordination. Audra excels at creating solutions to drive 
organizational growth and stability through fund procurement. Her passion lies in ensuring leadership, human 
capital, and fund development support programs and operations to achieve annual objectives and meet strict 
Foundation, City, County, State, and Federal funding standards.  As an experienced grant writer, Audra has 
an 80% success rate procuring grants. She has also spearheaded over 300% organizational financial growth 
through fundraising, grant funding, and capital campaigns. Audra holds a Master’s degree in Psychology and 
is a Doctoral of Business candidate.   


 Karen Simpson, Senior Project Manager.  Karen has been with California Consulting for seven 
years and has over 30 years of grant writing experience.  She has served within municipal government for 
almost 30 years for the Cities of Los Angeles and Pomona.  Ms. Simpson has garnered her grant-writing 
skills for federal and state funding opportunities from multiple community and economic development 
programs.  She has extensive knowledge and training in grant program management, grant research, grant 
writing, and post-award program compliance.  Ms. Simpson is skilled in building collaboration between 
community-based organizations, faith-based entities, educational entities, and social institutions, which 
resulted in Federal grant awards totaling $10.4 million in less than seven years.  She has written grants 
addressing economic development, housing improvement, and lead-hazard control.  Karen has extensive 
experience in working with non- profit organizations providing grant writing services, capacity building, and 
funding strategies to help meet needs in underserved neighborhoods. 


Miriam De Loza, Director of State Programs.   Miriam’s position gives California Consulting, a 
hands-on presence in Sacramento with state agencies that dispense grant funds.  She is based in 
Sacramento and holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with a concentration in Accounting 
from CSU, Sacramento.  Miriam’s professional experience includes working for the State of California and 
private sector in accounting and finance.  She began her career with the California Prison Industry Authority 
and held various roles within their Inventory Management Unit. Miriam then transitioned to the California High 
Speed Rail Authority where she joined the Budgets team and served as a financial analyst reporting on 
various federal grant and state funding uses.  She oversees our relationships with California State Agencies. 
 







 


  
  9 | P a g e  
 
 


 
Work Process Flow Chart 


This organizational chart shows that the Project Management Team assigned to the City of Wildomar 
who will communicate with Client’s Staff and the Project Management team.  The Management team will 
communicate with the Client and the Project Managers including the CEO, Steve Samuelian will interface 
with all parties. 


 
 


  
  
  
  
 
  
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Steve Samuelian 
CEO 


Ashley Ramsey  David Marquez 
Senior Project Management 


Cecily Harris, Jaimie Lewis, Karen Simpson, 
Audra Lee  


Project Managers  


 City of Wildomar 
Client 







 


  
  10 | P a g e  
 
 


Sample Grant Application Work Plan: City of Wildomar 
                   Date                                                                                                                     Activity/Action 


December 1, 
2021 – December 30, 


2021 


California Consulting in coordination with Project Team: 
• Needs Assessment / Concept Design 
• Develop Concept Proposal for red-lining and Provide staff training, as required 
California Consulting: 
• Finalize / Submit Concept Proposal. 


  
January 1, 2022 


2021 – January 30, 2022 
California Consulting in coordination with Project Team: 
• Begin developing Scope of Work (SOW) – identify Tasks and Sub- tasks 
• Begin developing Environmental Report 
• Identify organizations to solicit Letters of Support 
Applicant 
• Determine process of Resolution adoption. 
California Consulting: 
• Develop Letter of Support / Commitment template/ Engage State and Fed legislative team 


services.  Develop and Facilitate Community engagement, as required. 
• Develop Budget Template 


  
February 1, 


2022 – February 28, 
2022 


California Consulting in coordination with Project Team: 
• Finalize Scope of Work tasks 
• Begin developing Budget Template 
• Continue developing Environmental Report and Solicit for Letters of Support 
California Consulting: 
• Begin developing Narrative sections 
• Create Questionnaire that lists missing information 


  
March 1,2022 – March 


15, 2022 
California Consulting in coordination with Project Team: 
• Finalize Environmental Report and Budget 
• Develop Narrative Questionnaire 
• Collect all Letters of Support and Commitment 


  
March 16, 2022 – March 


30, 2022 
California Consulting in coordination with Project Team: 
• Complete Final Review before submission 
Main Applicant: 
• Sign all necessary forms and assurance 
• Collect signed Resolution 
California Consulting: 
• Finalize Narrative 


  
April 1, 2022 California Consulting: 


• Submit application to Funding Agency 







 


  
  11 | P a g e  
 
 


 
 


Municipal Client References – Project Experience 
California Consulting maintains and extensive understanding of the region’s needs and has directly performed 


with the following six (6) projects and has managed to effectively meet internal and project deadlines, budget 
constraints, major milestones and overall project schedules with our municipal clients listed below. 


 
 


1. City of Baldwin Park  
Manuel Carrillo, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
(626) 813-5245 
mcarrillo@baldwinpark.com 
Services Provided: Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 
Amount: $ 2,552,998 


 
2. City of Glendale 


Sarkis Oganesyan, Senior Civil Engineer 
(818) 548-3945 
Soganesyan@glendaleca.gov 
Service Provided: Highway Safety Improvement Plan Application 
Amount: $996,000 
 


3. City of Fairfield  
Dawn La Bar, Special Projects Manager 
(707) 428-7749 
dlabar@fairfield.ca.gov 
Services Provided: Local Housing and Allocation Formula Grant 
Amount:$3,500,000 
 


4. City of Twentynine Palms 
Frank J. Luckino, City Manager 
760-367-6799 ext. 1004 
fluckino@29palms.org 
Services Provided: Public Works Economic Adjustment Assistance 
Amount:$2,217,6888 


 
5. City of Albany 


Devora Zauderer, Management Analyst 
(510) 524-8170 
DZauderer@albanyca.org 
Services Provided: Full Grant Management Services for Federal and State Grants 
 
 
 
 



mailto:mcarrillo@baldwinpark.com

mailto:dlabar@fairfield.ca.gov

mailto:fluckino@29palms.org

mailto:DZauderer@albanyca.org





 


  
  12 | P a g e  
 
 


 
 


Municipal Grant Awards List (partial list) 
California Consulting is pleased to provide our work experience below for different federal, state, and private foundation 
grants we have written and been awarded on behalf of our municipal clients. 
 


Grant Name Client Name            Award Amount 


Santa Monica Mountain Conservancy Prop 8 Rancho Simi Recreation and Park 
District 


$1,000,000 


Emergency Solutions Grant – Corona Virus 2 
(CV-2) 


City of Fairfield $3,500,000 


San Joaquin COG - CMAQ City of Stockton $1,040,000 


Cultural, Community, and Natural Resources 
Grant Program - Step 3 


City of Twentynine Palms $2,000,000 


Prop 1 Stormwater Grant Program City of Baldwin Park $12,500,000 


Public Works and Economic Adjustment 
Assistance (CARES Act Supplemental Funding) 


City of Twentynine Palm $2,217,668 


Recreational Trails and Greenways Rancho Simi Parks and 
Recreation District 


$1,086,986 


Carl Moyer Grant City of El Monte $1,377,581 


Highway Safety Improvement Plan City of Manteca $1,934,640 


Measure W-Safe Clean Water Program Regional City of Baldwin Park $14,700,000 


SAFER Cosumnes Community Services 
District 


$7,126,891 


Prop 1 Storm Water Grant City of Baldwin Park $12,500,000 


Measure A Competitive Grant Program City of Baldwin Park $1,300,000 


Coronavirus Relief Fund, CARES ACT Dollars 
Allocation  


City of Compton $1,210,414 


Local Housing and Allocation Formula Grant City of Fairfield $3,500,000 


Permanent Local Housing and Allocation 
Formula Grant (2nd) 


City of Baldwin Park $2,440,890 


Boating Infrastructure Grant (BIG) San Mateo County Harbor 
District 


$1,500,000 


Recreational Trails and Greenways City of Twentynine Palm $921,400 







 


  
  13 | P a g e  
 
 


Project Homekey Housing Authority of the County 
of San Bernardino 


$1,100,000 


Alameda County Transportation Commission- 
Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP) 


City of Albany $958,073 


Hazard Mitigation Program Grant City of Oroville $508,220 


Prop. 68 - Statewide Park Development and 
Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 


City of Westminster $1,290,131 


Prop. 68 - Statewide Park Development and 
Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 


City of Bell $4,499,388 


Prop. 68 - Statewide Park Development and 
Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 


City of Baldwin Park $2,552,998 


Prop. 68 - Statewide Park Development and 
Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 


City of San Fernando $1,114,245 


Prop. 68 - Statewide Park Development and 
Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 


City of Bakersfield $3,012,385 


Urban Greening grant City of Patterson $1,808,145 


Energy Conservation Assistance Act Low 
Interest Loan 


City of Patterson $2,876,172 


Land and Water Conservation Fund City of Bakersfield $3,000,000 


CA Census 2020: Regional Administrative 
Community- Based Organization Outreach 


Ventura County Community 
Foundation 


$1,115,370 


CA State Parks OGALS California Youth Soccer 
Recreation and Development Program 


City of Modesto $1,000,000 


County of Fresno Mental Health Services North Star Family Group $3,000,000 


Energy Conservation Assistance Act Low 
Interest Loan 


City of Patterson $2,876,172 


USDOE ARRA Recovery Act Smart Grid 
Demonstrations Grant - West Village Project 


Chevron Energy Solutions $2,500,000 


USDOE Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant (EECBG) 


Fresno County $3,151,300 


CALFIRE Urban Forest Improvement and 
Expansion Grant 


City of Maywood $220,000 


WaterSMART Water and Energy Efficiency 
Program 


City of Needles $213,826 


Children’s Environmental Health Initiative TreePeople $74,817 


Santa Monica Mountain Conservancy - 
Proposition 1 


TreePeople $150,000 


CalFIRE Urban and Community Forestry  City of Patterson $51,544 







 


  
  14 | P a g e  
 
 


Shuttered Operations Grant City of Vacaville $216,146 


Emergency Services Grant City of Fairfield $113,142 


Active Transportation Program City of Patterson $99,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP) 


City of Maywood $263,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP)  


City of Stockton $4,390,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program (ATP)  City of Patterson $907,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP) 


City of Waterford $108,000 


Active Transportation Program (ATP) City of Waterford $945,631 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program (ATP)  City of Rosemead $702,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program (ATP)  City of Patterson $594,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP)  


City of Downey $180,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP)  


City of Vernon $60,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program (ATP) 
Grant  


City of Chowchilla $550,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program (ATP)  Kings Canyon Unified School 
District 


$41,733 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP) 


City of Maywood $263,000 


Caltrans - Active Transportation Program Grant 
(ATP)  


City of Stockton $4,390,000 


Active Transportation Planning Grant 
 


City of Patterson $75,000 


CalFIRE Urban and Community Forestry  
Management for GHG 


City of Patterson $150,400 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Lynwood $1,011,600 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Glendale $996,000 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Glendale $247,500 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Murrieta $247,435 







 


  
  15 | P a g e  
 
 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Manteca $250,000 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Manteca $1,934,640 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Manteca $681,390 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Monterey Park $312,160 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Montebello $860,000 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Pismo Beach $163,260 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Lynwood $376,100 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Yuba City $115,700 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Lynwood $1,011,600 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Glendale $996,000 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) 


City of Glendale $247,500 


Caltrans - Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP)  


City of Murrieta $247,435 


PDA Planning Grant City of Vacaville $350,000 


FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) City of Vacaville $93,300 


Public Works Economic Assistance City of Vacaville $187,500 


Cal Fire Urban Forestry Improvement & 
Expansion 


City of Carson $267,915 


CA State Parks/OGALS Land Water Conservation 
Fund 


City of Oakley $413,515 


USDOJ COPS Hiring Program Santa Paula USD/City of Santa 
Paula PD 


$750,000 


USDOJ COPS Hiring Program City of Huntington Park $1,125,000 


USDOJ COPS Hiring Program City of Orange Cove $125,000 


USDOJ COPS Hiring Program City of Chowchilla $189,100 


HRSA Mental Health Services Expansion Comprehensive Community 
Health 
Centers 


$500,000 







 


  
  16 | P a g e  
 
 


                
   By the Numbers (Return on Investment) 


 
 


$7,750,948 
Grant Awards 


$37,951,412 
Grant Awards 


$6,823,061 
Grant Awards 


$4,390,000 
Grant Awards 


$2,850,889 
Grant Awards 


     21530% ROI 14,883 % ROI 2173% ROI 3658% ROI 1825% ROI 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


  
  17 | P a g e  
 
 


 
Cost for Services  


 
California Consulting offers the following monthly retainer option for Grant Writing Services and 


shall use the following rate of pay in the performance of the Services.  California Consulting will not use 
subcontractors. 


 


Pricing Option: Monthly Retainer 
 


California Consulting’s monthly retainer services include all grant research, grant 
identification, grant writing, and post award administration as needed. Below is a detailed 
scope of work:  


 


Task Included 
in Price 


Meet with Client Staff to ascertain needs and goals √ 
Conduct background research as requested by Client √ 
Provide advice on best grants for Client to pursue based on project and 
grant requirements and guidelines 


√ 


Attend meetings in person or by teleconference as necessary √ 
Develop schedule for grants chosen by Client √ 
Preparing and writing all grant applications chosen by Client √ 
Develop evaluation strategies in accordance with funding agency’s 
instructions 


√ 


Adhere to decisions made by Client relating to grants √ 
Write all sections of grant applications and proposals √ 
Draft and finalize grant language with direction of Client √ 
Ensure timelines for grant submittal are met √ 
Monthly reports to include grants in progress, grants submitted, and 
grants awarded 


√ 


Regular communication via email and/or phone regarding upcoming 
grant opportunities 


√ 


Grant administration and post award compliance as needed √ 
 


We propose a flat monthly rate of $4,850, plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for services 
explained above. 


 


 
 







ATTACHMENT C 







// 2021 
RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  


a municipal corporation 


 


and 


 


CALIFORNIA CONSULTING INC. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 1 -  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 
AND 


CALIFORNIA CONSULTING INC. 
 
 


This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this 15th day of 
December, 2021 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) 
and California Consulting, Inc., a California Corporation (“Service Provider”).  City and 
Service Provider are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and 
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 
A. City has sought, by request for proposals the performance of the services 


defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Service Provider, following submission of a proposal for the performance 
of the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement, was 
selected by the City to perform those services. 


C. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, City has authority to 
enter into this Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 


D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Service Provider for 
performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for an annual on-going basis commencing 
on the date first ascribed above.  


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 


(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 2 -  


 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the 
schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that 
schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The 
City, in its sole discretion, may choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this 
Agreement and may instead allow Service Provider to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Service Provider shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement.  If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay 
Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for 
actual expenses, shall not exceed four thousand eight hundred fifty dollars per month 
plus approved out of pocket reimbursable expenses ($4,850), unless additional 
compensation is approved in writing in accordance with Section 26 “Administration and 
Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement. In accordance with 
California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the Not to Exceed Amount exceeds TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), this Agreement and the Service Provider's books 
and records related to this Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the 
State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit of the City, for a period of three 
(3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 


(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all 
work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall 
detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Service Provider contracts.  Sub-Service Provider charges 
shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment and 
supplies.   If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include payment 
of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a lump sum), 
the labor category in each invoice  shall include detailed descriptions of task performed 
and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task.  City shall independently 
review each invoice submitted by the Service Provider to determine whether the work 
performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be 
approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City 
to Service Provider for correction and resubmission. 


(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 3 -  


 


Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s correct and 
undisputed invoice. 


(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider. 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


City may inspect and accept or reject any of Service Provider’s work under this 
Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  City shall reject or finally 
accept Service Provider’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City.  City shall 
reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Service Provider’s work shall be 
deemed to have been accepted.  City’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work 
except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  
Acceptance of any of Service Provider’s work by City shall not constitute a waiver of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, Section 16 
“Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise 
disposed of by City without the permission of the Service Provider.  Upon completion, 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider shall turn over to City all 
such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement 
any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, 
notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement, 
Service Provider’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard of Performance” of 
this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 


All Final Work Product developed by Service Provider in the course of providing 
the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may 
be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Service 
Provider.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider 
shall turn over to City all such Final Work Product if paid for by the City.  This provision 
specifically excludes Service Providers’ work notes and drafts, which are owned by 
Service Provider, not City. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 4 -  


 


SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service 
Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and 
all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an 
accurate evaluation of the services provided by Service Provider pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three (3) 
years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copies of 
such documents or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and 
copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed 
upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Service Provider’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, 
require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City.  Access to such 
documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest 
and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Nothing in this Agreement may 
be construed to be inconsistent with this relationship or status.  Service Provider shall not 
at any time or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are agents 
or employees of City.  Service Provider shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether 
by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this 
Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 


(b) Service Provider shall perform all Services as an independent contractor of 
City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent contractor with only such 
obligations as are consistent with that role.  Service provider shall be solely responsible 
for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures in performance of 
Services.  The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and 
control.  Any terms within this Agreement regarding City directives apply to an concern 
the result of Service Provider’s provision of service and not the means, methods, or 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 5 -  


 


scheduling of the Service Provider’s work.  Neither City, nor any elected or appointed 
boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall have control over the conduct 
of Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, employees, or agents except as 
set forth in this Agreement.  Service Provider shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, employees, or 
agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 


(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees 
or agents, shall obtain any privileges or rights to retirement, health care or any other 
benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly 
waives any claim Service Provider may have to any such benefits, privileges or rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience 
and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this Agreement 
in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Service Provider shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
Services.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall employ, 
at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged 
in providing services similar to the Services required of Service Provider under this 
Agreement.  In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Service Provider’s work under 
this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific standard of 
performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall prevail over the 
general. 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Service Provider shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement.  Service Provider shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  
Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents 
of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Service Provider to 
comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 


It is the understanding of City and Service Provider that California prevailing wage 
laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the 
following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code 
or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, 
or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under 
contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, “construction" 
includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction 
including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 6 -  


 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 


Service Provider shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 
basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, 
and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  
Should Service Provider so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of the 
Services, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use 
of unauthorized aliens, Service Provider hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the 
cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including 
attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its 
firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service Provider’s 
performance of the Services.  Service Provider further covenants that in the performance 
of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an 
officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City 
Manager. Service Provider agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the 
appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this 
Agreement. 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date 
of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is 
unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects.  Any future position of City 
on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the 
completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be 
considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall not 
release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than 
City without prior written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required 
by law. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 7 -  


 


(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the 
City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at 
depositions, response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work 
performed under this Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 
considered "voluntary" provided Service Provider gives City notice of such court order or 
subpoena.  


(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 
Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, 
then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for 
any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result 
of Service Provider’s conduct. 


Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, 
employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding 
this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  City retains the right, but has no 
obligation, to represent Service Provider or be present at any deposition, hearing or 
similar proceeding.  Service Provider agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide 
City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Service Provider.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. Service Provider shall 
not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State trade secret law for the 
disclosure of a trade secret that is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local 
government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a 
suspected violation of law or for the disclosure of a trade secret that is made in a complaint 
or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. 


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless 
City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against any and all liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or 
costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorney’s fees and 
costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees) arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any negligent or 
wrongful act, error or omission of Service Provider, or by any individual or entity for which 
Service Provider is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees 
or sub-contractors of Service Provider, in the performance of professional services under 
this Agreement.  


(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 8 -  


 


Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its 
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, 
suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, including attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and 
expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any 
way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Service 
Provider, or by any individual or entity for which Service Provider is legally liable, including 
but not limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Service Provider. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to 
obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this 
section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involved 
by, for, with or on behalf of Service Provider in the performance of this Agreement naming 
the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees.  In the event Service Provider fails to 
obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees 
to be fully responsible according to the terms of this section.  Failure of City to monitor 
compliance with these requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in 
no way act as a waiver of any rights hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend 
City as set forth herein is binding on the successors, assigns or heirs of Service Provider 
and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or this section. 


(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims 
occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of City 
or any and all of its officials, employees and agents.   


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Service Provider agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 
term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and made 
a part of this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to 
form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved 
in writing by the City Manager.  Service Provider agrees to provide City with copies of 
required policies upon request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Service Provider are material considerations for 
this Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the persons 
and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Service Provider under 
this Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Service Provider shall not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 
Service Provider’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies 
at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 20 
“Termination of Agreement.”  City acknowledges, however, that Service Provider, in the 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 9 -  


 


performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub-contractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 
continuity of Service Provider’s staff and sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the 
Services.  Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff and 
sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to and during any such 
performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such 
notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City. 


(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all 
property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be 
returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed 
and expenses incurred by Service Provider, prepared as set forth in Section 4 
“Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and 
Method of Payment” of this Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Service Provider is in default under the terms of this Agreement, 
the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Service Provider 
for any work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the City may give notice to 
Service Provider of the default and the reasons for the default.  The notice shall include 
the timeframe in which Service Provider may cure the default.  This timeframe is 
presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 
circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that Service Provider is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on 
the invoices.  In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or 
all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Service Provider does not 
cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under 
Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Any failure on the part of the City to give notice 
of the Service Provider’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 10 -  


 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Service Provider shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if 
any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Service Provider.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts 
of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, 
fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term 
and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the Services 
shall be furnished to Service Provider in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue 
delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 


To City:   City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 


 


To Service Provider: California Consulting, Inc. 
Attn:  Steve Samuelian, Chief Executive Officer 
214 Main Street, Suite 102 
El Segundo, CA 90245 


 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 


by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to execute this Agreement.  







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 11 -  


 


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or 
her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue 
interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that 
commit additional funds, consistent with Section 28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s 
contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Service Provider and by the City.  The City Manager shall 
have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement if the total compensation 
under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City Manager’s contracting 
authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code.  The Parties agree that the requirement for 
written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The 
City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this 
Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other 
amendments shall be approved by the City Council. 


SECTION 29. WAIVER. 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by Service 
Provider shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 12 -  


 


shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Service Provider and City prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 
terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 13 -  


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


___________________________________ 


By:   By:   
 _________________________________   
 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ________________________ 


NOTE: SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, 
AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY 
BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, 
OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE 
PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1    
 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1    
 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 


 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  
 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
I.  Service Provider will perform the following Services: 
 


A. Funding Needs Analysis 
B. Needs Assessment 
C. Grant Funding Research and Identification 
D. On-Call Grant Research 
E. Grant Proposal Development 
F. Grant Management 
G. Grant Advocacy 
H. Preparation of Grant Applicant Documentation 
I. Grant Review and Submission Process 
J. Project Schedule 
K. Written Monthly Reports 
L. Workshops and Community Information Webinars 


 
II.  As part of the Services, Service Provider will prepare and deliver the following tangible 
work products to the City: 
 


A. Monthly written reports on grants written, grants in progress and upcoming grant 
opportunities 


B. Submitted written Grant 
C. Grant Checklist and Schedule 


 
III.  During performance of the Services, Service Provider will keep the City appraised of 
the status of performance by delivering the following status reports: 
 


A. Written Monthly Reports 
 
IV.  The tangible work products and status reports will be delivered to the City pursuant to 
the following schedule: 
 


A. Monthly 
B. Grant Project Schedule 


 
V.  Service Provider will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the Services: 
 


A. As Proposed (Proposal attached) 
 
VI.  Service Provider will utilize the following subcontractors to accomplish the Services: 


A. By RFP or City Approved List if required. 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  
 B-1 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 
I.  Service Provider shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the 
Services: 
 
 A.  $4,850   Monthly 
 
II.  Service Provider may utilize sub-contractors as indicated in this Agreement.  
The hourly rate for any subcontractor requires written authorization from the City 
Manager or his designee. 
 
IV.  The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $4,850 per month, 
as provided in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of this 
Agreement.







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


Exhibit C 


Insurance Requirements 


Service Provider shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Service Provider, its 
agents, representatives, or employees. 


MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 


Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 


1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 


2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 
1 (any auto), or if Service Provider has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. 


3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. 


(Not required if Service Provider provides written verification it has no employees) 


4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the Service 
Provider’s profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$2,000,000 aggregate.  The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement or the beginning of Agreement work.  Insurance must be 
maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after 
completion of the Agreement of work.  If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not 
replaced with another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the 
Agreement effective date, the Service Provider must purchase “extended reporting” 
coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of Agreement work.  A copy of 
the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the City for review. 


If the Service Provider maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the 
minimums shown above, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage 
and/or higher limits maintained by the Service Provider. Any available insurance proceeds 
in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to 
the City. 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


Other Insurance Provisions 


The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 


The City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Service Provider including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be 
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Service Provider’s insurance (at least as 
broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 
38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 


Primary Coverage 


For any claims related to this Agreement, the Service Provider’s insurance coverage shall 
be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of 
the Service Provider’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


Notice of Cancellation 


Service Provider shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance 
policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the 
deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or 
reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Service Provider shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.   


 


Waiver of Subrogation 


Service Provider hereby grants to City a waiver of any right to subrogation which any 
insurer of said Service Provider may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment of 
any loss under such insurance. Service Provider agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement 
from the insurer.  However, the Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the City for all work performed by the Service Provider, 
its employees, agents and subcontractors. 


 


Self-Insured Retentions 


Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. The City may 
require the Service Provider to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related 
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or City. 


Acceptability of Insurers 


Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City. 


 


Verification of Coverage 


Service Provider shall furnish the City with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page 
of the CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to City before work begins. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Service Provider’s obligation to provide them. The City reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time. 


Subcontractors 


Service Provider shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance 
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Service Provider shall ensure that City is 
an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. 


Special Risks or Circumstances 


City reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature 
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.16 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert A. Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
PREPARED BY: Adam J. Jantz, Administrative Analyst II 
 
SUBJECT:  Development Impact Fees – Annual Report as of June 30, 2021 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the Annual report for the 
Development Impact Fees for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Mitigation Fee Act, Section 66000 et seq. of the California Government Code (the 
“Act”), governs the establishment and administration of development impact fees paid 
by new development projects for public facilities needed to serve new development. 
 
The Act requires two specific reporting requirements from the City: 1) A periodic (five-
year) report to make findings with respect to all unexpended mitigation fees and 2) an 
annual review of all development impact fees as defined in the Act and to make a public 
report on the fees available to the public after the end of each fiscal year. The Act 
requires the report to be placed on an agenda for review at a public meeting not less 
than 15 days after the report. Only the annual report is required for fiscal year 2020-21.  
 
The City completed a Development Impact Fee Study in January 2014 and adopted 
fees by resolution effective April 1, 2014. An update to the study was done in April 2015 
related to Transportation Impact Fees-Roads, Transportation Impact Fees-Traffic 
Signals, and Park Improvement Impact Fees. These new fees became effective on 
August 10, 2015. 
 
On January 15th, 2020, the City submitted reports detailing the use of Development 
Impact Fees since the City’s incorporation on July 1st, 2008 through June 30th, 2019, 
fulfilling the requirements for both the periodic and annual review reports. On December 
16th 2020, the Fiscal Year 2019-20 annual report was submitted to Council. This current 
report details the receipt and usage of Development Impact Fees for the period from 
July 1st, 2020 through June 30th, 2021, thus fulfilling the annual review requirement set 
forth by the Mitigation Fee Act. 
 







 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert A. Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director    City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


1. Annual Report on Development Impact Fees-Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 







1 
 


City of Wildomar 
 


2020/21 Annual Report 
On Development Impact Fees 


Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 


Background  
 


The Mitigation Fee Act, Government Code Section 66000 et seq., (the “Act”) 
governs the establishment and administration of development impact fees paid by 
new development projects for public facilities needed to serve new development. 
Fees must be separately accounted for and used for the specific purpose for which 
the fee was imposed. The City’s adopted development impact fees are listed in the 
attached exhibits. Expenditures are authorized through the annual Operating Budget 
and the City’s Capital Improvement Program. 


 
Development Fee Reporting   


 


The Act requires two specific reporting requirements from the City: 1) A periodic 
(five-year) report to make findings with respect to all unexpended mitigation fees and 
2) an annual review of all development impact fees as defined in the Act and to make 
a public report on the fees available to the public after the end of each fiscal year. 
Government Code Section 66006(b)(2) requires the report to be placed on an agenda 
for review at a public meeting not less than 15 days after the report is made available 
to the public. Only the annual report is required for fiscal year 2020-21. 


 
The report is organized as follows: 


 
Section 1. A brief description of the purpose of each development impact fee, 
its authorizing legislation, and current amount (Government Code Section 
66006(b) (1) (A)). 


 
Section 2. A summary of the beginning fund balance at July 1, 2020, annual fee 
revenue collected as well as interest earned, public improvement expenditures, 
and the ending fund balance at June 30, 2021 for each fee (Government Code 
Section 66006(b)(1)(C) and (D)). Also included is a list of Capital Projects funded 
in fiscal year 2020-21 with development impact fees. 


 
Section 3. Report of Findings for each fee. 


 


 


 


 







2 
 


City of Wildomar 
Description of Development Impact Fees 


Section 1. 
 


The City’s Development Impact Fees (DIF) were first adopted at incorporation on 
July 1, 2008, adopting the fees that were being charged by the County of Riverside 
at the time. The County transferred all the development impact fee fund balances to 
the City from development impact fees collected by the County from developments 
with the new City of Wildomar.  The City continued to collect development impact 
fees in the amounts established by the County from incorporation until the City 
adopted its own fees after a Development Impact Fee Study was done in January 
2014, which new fees effective April 1, 2014.  An update to the study was done in 
April 2015, adding several additional fees.  These new DIFs became effective in 
intervals starting on August 10, 2015. The following development impact fees were 
adopted:  
 


• 410 – DIF Admin 
• 420 – City Hall 
• 421 – Police Facilities 
• 422 – Animal Shelter 
• 423 – Corporate Yard 
• 430 – Fire Facilities 
• 440 – Transportation – Roads 
• 450 – Transportation – Signals 
• 451 – Drainage 
• 460 – Park Land Acquisition 
• 461 – Park Improvements 
• 470 – Community Center 
• 480 – Multi-Purpose Trails 
• 490 – Library 


 
 
The individual fee amounts and their designated purpose will be described in detail in 
the following section. 
 


410 – Development Impact Fee Admin 
 


The purpose of the Admin DIF is to cover the cost of administering and updating 
the DIF program. This includes legal costs as well as development fee studies, of 
which the City has completed two thus far. Both were with the consulting firm Colgan 
Consulting Corporation. The first study was carried out between 2012-2013 and 
completed in January 2014. A second study to update the fees was completed in April 
2015. A third study has been commissioned in FY2020-21 and is in the final stages as 
of December 2021. The Admin DIF fee is currently set at 0.48% of DIFs paid. 


 







3 
 


 
 Current Fee as of 6/30/2020:  
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 0.48% of All DIFs 
Multi-Family Residential $ 0.48% of All DIFs 
Commercial/ Retail $    0.48% of All DIFs 
Office/Business Park $ 0.48% of All DIFs 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 0.48% of All DIFs 


 


 


420 – City Hall DIF 
Fees are for a City Hall to serve both existing and future development. The fee 


amount is based on future development’s proportionate share of a future City Hall 
building. The calculations are based on a total service population (residents and 
employees) of 82,555 with a City Hall measuring 20,639ft. New development’s 
estimated share of the City Hall cost is $4,477,553 (49.2%).  
 
The fee amount for the City Hall Facilities Development Impact Fee is as follows: 


 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 384 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 272 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 258 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 333 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 149 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


 


 


421 – Police Facilities DIF 
 
The purpose of the Police Facilities DIF is meant to address the need for future 


space in police facilities. Currently, the City contracts with the Riverside County 
Sheriff which operates out of its Lake Elsinore station. The fee calculation considers 
future service population and Wildomar’s share of the Lake Elsinore Station. 


 
 







4 
 


 
 The fee amount for the Police Facilities Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 227 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 161 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 153 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 196 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 87 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


 


422 – Animal Shelter DIF 
 
The purpose of the Animal Shelter DIF is to cover the City’s share of the new 


development costs to the regional animal shelter. Wildomar’s share of the cost is 
17.1%, or $4,168,310. Of that, new development constitutes $1,555,383 or 37.3%. 
The shelter is located at 33751 Mission Trail, Wildomar, CA 92595. 


 
 The fee amount for the Animal Shelter Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 250 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 178 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ Fee Not Applied 
Office/Business Park $ Fee Not Applied 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ Fee Not Applied 


 


 


423 – Corporate Yard DIF 
 
The purpose of the Corporate Yard DIF is to provide funding for the future 


acquisition of a corporation yard. The yard will be used to store equipment utilized by 
the City to meet the maintenance needs of the City. The fee considers both the site 
acquisition and development. It also incorporates a storage building estimated to be 
3,000 ft2 and future maintenance of the site. New development’s share of the cost is 
projected to be $930,245. 


 







5 
 


 
 The fee amount for the Corporate Yard Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 79 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 56 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 53 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 69 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 31 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


 


430 – Fire Facilities DIF 
 


The purpose of the Fire Facilities DIF is to fund new fire protection facilities. 
Currently, Wildomar is served by only one fire station within its city limits, Station 
#61. The City is anticipating adding another station and upgrading the current 
facilities. The fee is based on the cost of one additional fire station and one new 
Type I fire engine. 


 
 The fee amount for the Fire Facilities Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 440 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 312 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 295 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 380 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 170 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
 


 


440 – Transportation - Roads DIF 
 


The purpose of the Transportation-Roads DIF is to help fund improvements to 
streets, intersections, bridges, and culverts needed to serve future development. The 
improvements incorporated into the fee are based on the City of Wildomar General 
Plan Circulation Element. The one of the most significant projects is related to Bundy 
Canyon Road. The total impact fee share for all projects is $70,457,119. 







6 
 


 
 The fee amount for the Transportation-Roads Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 3,088 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 2,169 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 9,415 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 2,683 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 1,090 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


450 – Transportation - Signals DIF 
 


The purpose of the Transportation-Signals DIF is to cover the costs of new 
traffic signals and modifications to existing signals that can be attributed to new 
development. A listing of specific streetlight infrastructure improvements is set forth 
in the 2015 DIF Study for Wildomar. As of the study date, there are 21 new traffic 
signals slated for installation and 24 existing streetlights targeted for modification to 
Ultimate 4-Way signals. The total amount to be covered by impact fees is 
$9,472,000. 


 
 The fee amount for the Transportation-Signals Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 401 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 281 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 1,222 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 348 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 141 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


 


451 – Drainage DIF 
 


Drainage is a serious concern to the City as runoff from the steep slopes of the 
City limits can have notable impacts on the more level western areas of the City. The 
purpose of the Drainage DIF is to provide for future drainage improvements 
necessitated by new development to protect the City from flooding in the event of 







7 
 


concentrated downpours. Improvements are based on three Master Drainage Plans 
that cover parts of the City. The costs of sub-regional collector facilities serving 
Wildomar are also incorporated into the fee.  


  
The three Master Drainage Plans are: 


• The Wildomar Master Drainage Plan 
• The Sedco Master Drainage Plan 
• The Murrieta Creek Master Drainage Plan 


 
The fee amount for the Drainage Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 1,381 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 868 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 1,281 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 1,068 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 915 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


460 – Park Land Acquisition DIF 
 


The purpose of the Park Land Acquisition DIF is to fund the acquisition of 
parklands needed to serve new residential development. The fee also includes a 
small component to pay for the cost of a Master Plan to guide the development. The 
fee only applies to residential units. Calculations are based on the Quimby Act 
methodology that stipulates park land requirements may be based on 3 acres per 
1,000 residents. The fee is then multiplied by the expected future dwelling units. The 
impact fee report explains the methodology more throroughly. 
 


The fee amount for the Park Land Acquisition Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 597 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 423 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ Fee Not Applied 
Office/Business Park $ Fee Not Applied 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ Fee Not Applied 


 







8 
 


 


461 – Park Improvements DIF 
 


The purpose of the Park Improvements DIF is to provide funding for park 
improvements needed to serve new residential development. This fee only applies to 
residential units. 


 
The fee amount for the Park Improvements Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 3,926 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 2,787 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ Fee Not Applied 
Office/Business Park $ Fee Not Applied 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ Fee Not Applied 


 


470 – Community Center DIF 
 


The purpose of the Community Center DIF is to provide funds for a Community 
Center to serve both existing and future development. The population at time of 
buildout is estimated to be 51,863 and the projected cost of a facility to service them 
is estimated to be $7,899,357. The revenues from the Community Center DIF are 
estimated to cover only 37.3% of the costs of buildout.   


 
The fee amount for the Community Center Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 474 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 337 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ Fee Not Applied 
Office/Business Park $ Fee Not Applied 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ Fee Not Applied 


 


 


 







9 
 


 


480 – Multi-Purpose Trails DIF 
 
The purpose of the Multi-Purpose Trails DIF is to cover the future expansion of 


Wildomar’s multi-use trail network. Wildomar currently contains an extensive network 
of multi-purpose trails ranging from four-foot-wide dirt trails to ten-foot-wide trails of 
decomposed granite. This fee is meant to cover the expansion of the trail network to 
include future development as it is built out. This calculation is done based on the 
City’s service population of 82,555. There is an estimated $8,784,763 in new trail 
development of which 49.2% is new development’s share. 


  
The fee amount for the Multi-Purpose Trails Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ 754 per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential $ 535 per dwelling unit 
Commercial/ Retail $ 506 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Office/Business Park $ 652 per 1,000 square feet of building space 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ 291 per 1,000 square feet of building space 


 


490 – Library DIF 
 


The purpose of the Library DIF is to cover the cost of additional books and 
materials needed for new development. This Riverside County fee was utilized 
temporarily after the City’s incorporation until the City adopted new fines in April 
2014 after a fee study. Collection of the Library DIF ceased on January 31, 2014 and 
the remaining fund balance is used for books and materials as requested by the 
County library in Wildomar located on Mission Trail. 


 
 The fee amount for the Library Development Impact Fee is as follows: 
 
 
Land Use 


 
Maximum Fee 


 


Single Family Residential 


 


$ Fee No Longer Applied 
Multi-Family Residential $ Fee No Longer Applied 
Commercial/ Retail $ Fee No Longer Applied 
Office/Business Park $ Fee No Longer Applied 
Light Industrial/Warehousing $ Fee No Longer Applied 







10 
 


 


 
 


Report of Findings  
of Development Impact Fee Activity 


Section 3. 
 


Note: The 2014 and 2015 Development Impact Fee studies anticipated all funding of 
the fees to be deposited into the appropriate fund by 2031. No refunds have been 
issued and any interfund transfers or loans made are noted by the DIF below. 
 
410 – DIF Admin 
 
 The Purpose of the Admin DIF is to cover the costs of administering and 


updating the DIF program. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Admin DIF and the purpose for which 


it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development Impact Fee 
Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014 and April 23, 2015. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 As this is an Admin fee, the amounts are generally low. The major projects 
funded out of the Admin are new fee studies and updates. The last study was 
completed in 2015 and therefore the next update is currently in progress and 
should be adopted in fiscal year 2021-22. 


 
420 – City Hall 
 
 The purpose of the City Hall DIF is to provide funding for a City Hall to serve 


both existing and future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the City Hall DIF and the purpose for 


which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development 
Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The City Hall DIF fund was used to fund the furnishing of the expansion of City 
operations into other areas of the current City Hall building. Fees may go 
towards future expansion and the eventual purchase of a new City Hall 
building. No dates are scheduled yet for the purchase of a new City Hall 
building, but the City is expected to make a decision within the next five years.  


 
 







11 
 


 
 
421 – Police Facilities 
 
 The purpose of the Police Facilities DIF is to provide funding for additional 


police facilities to serve both existing and future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Police DIF and the purpose for which 


it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development Impact Fee 
Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 As the City of Wildomar contracts with the County Sheriff for police services, 
the City uses the county facilities for police activities. Therefore, no money for 
the Police DIF has been spent yet. Eventually, the City will add police facilities 
consistent with City growth needs The City is anticipating buildout of the 
development of the City by 2031.   


 
422 – Animal Shelter 
 
 The purpose of the Animal Shelter DIF is to provide funding for the City’s 


portion of the animal shelter costs to serve both existing and future 
development. 


 The reasonable relationship between the Animal Shelter DIF and the purpose 
for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development 
Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Animal Shelter DIF fund has been used to fund the City’s portion of the 
animal shelter which was financed before the city incorporated. It will continue 
to be used for this purpose. The debt will be paid off by 2038. 


 
423 – Corporate Yard 


 
 The purpose of the Corporate Yard DIF is to provide funding for a Corporate 


Yard to serve both existing and future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Corporate Yard DIF and the purpose 


for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development 
Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Corporate Yard DIF fund is intended to be used to purchase and maintain 
a corporate yard for City use. It has been used to acquire land on Lemon Street 
with the intention of using it as part of a corporate yard as needed. As the City 
grows closer to the anticipated buildout in 2031, a decision will be made 
regarding the purchase of the corporate yard. 
 


 
 







12 
 


 
 
430 – Fire Facilities 
 
 The purpose of the Fire Facilities DIF is to provide funding for fire prevention 


facilities to serve both existing and future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Fire Facilities DIF and the purpose for 


which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development 
Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Fire Facilities DIF fund is intended to be used to purchase fire facilities to 
service the City. The current intent is to use funds to acquire another fire 
station that is more centrally located within the City limits. No location has been 
chosen yet. The City also plans to purchase another fire engine but has not set 
a date yet. As the City moves closer to the anticipated buildout of the City in 
2031, decisions will be made regarding an additional fire station and engine.  


 A loan was made from the fire facilities DIF in March 2019 to the City’s Capital 
Reinvestment to contribute to the funding of Fire Station #61 Kitchen remodel 
project.  The loan was repaid on June 30, 2019 with interest. 


 
440 – Transportation – Roads 
 
 The purpose of the Transportation-Roads DIF is to provide funding for 


additional roads and street improvement to accommodate new development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Transportation-Roads DIF and the 


purpose for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar 
Development Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated April 23, 2015. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated April 23, 2015. 


 The Transportation-Roads DIF fund is intended to be used for various road 
projects.  Funding has been committed to date to widen sections of the Bundy 
Canyon Road, which is currently estimated for completion of Phase II in fiscal 
year 2023-24. 


 
450 – Transportation – Signals 
 
 The purpose of the Transportation-Signals DIF is to provide funding for new 


traffic signals and modifications to existing signals in order to accommodate 
new development. 


 The reasonable relationship between the Transportation- Signals DIF and the 
purpose for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar 
Development Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated April 23, 2015. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated April 23, 2015. 


 The Transportation-Signals DIF fund is intended to be used for various traffic 
signals.  Funding has been committed to date to add traffic signals on Bundy 
Canyon Road, with an estimated completion date of fiscal year 2021-22. 







13 
 


 
 


451 – Drainage 
 
 The purpose of the Drainage DIF is to provide funding for drainage 


improvements to serve both existing and future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Drainage DIF and the purpose for 


which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development 
Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Drainage DIF fund was used for the Lateral Storm Drain project and will be 
used for future drainage infrastructure improvements and master plan. The 
master plan is anticipated to be completed in fiscal year 2021-22. 


 
460 – Park Land Acquisition 
 
 The purpose of the Park Land Acquisition DIF is to provide funding for the 


acquisition of land to expand park facilities in accordance with new 
development. 


 The reasonable relationship between the Park Land Acquisition DIF and the 
purpose for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar 
Development Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Park Land Acquisition DIF fund was used to develop a Parks Master Plan 
over the years 2013-2016. Monies were also used to buy land for the 11-acre 
park. As the City population grows toward buildout in 2031, additional park land 
will be acquired. 


 
461 – Park Improvements 
 
 The purpose of the Park Improvements DIF is to provide funding for improving 


park facilities to serve future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Park Improvements DIF and the 


purpose for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar 
Development Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated April 23, 2015. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated April 23, 2015. 


 The Park Improvements DIF fund is intended to be used for improving park 
facilities. Thus far, it has been used for improvements to Malaga Park and 
planning for the 27 Acre Park. The development of both the 11-acre park and 
the 27-acre park is estimated for completion between the fiscal years 2022 and 
2023. 


 
 
 
 







14 
 


 
 
470 – Community Center 
 
 The purpose of the Community Center DIF is to provide funding for a 


community center. 
 The reasonable relationship between the Community Center DIF and the 


purpose for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar 
Development Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Community Center DIF fund is intended to be used for a community center 
to serve the city and surrounding population. No date for the center has been 
scheduled. The funds have mostly been used to expand the existing City Hall 
facilities to provide community services in accordance with new development. 
As the City grows toward the anticipated City buildout in 2031, decisions will be 
made towards having a dedicated community center.  


 
480 – Multi-Purpose Trails 
 
 The purpose of the Multi-Purpose Trails DIF is to provide funding for fire 


prevention facilities to serve both existing and future development. 
 The reasonable relationship between Multi-Purpose Trails DIF and the purpose 


for which it is charged is demonstrated in the City of Wildomar Development 
Impact Fee Study by Colgan Consulting dated January 22, 2014. 


 The anticipated funding sources and their amounts are detailed in the City of 
Wildomar Development Fee study, dated January 22, 2014. 


 The Multi-Purpose Trails DIF fund has been used to improve and expand the 
trail network to accommodate increased usage. The Grand Avenue multi-
purpose trail was completed in fiscal year 2018-19. The Bundy Canyon Active 
Transportation Corridor is estimated for completion in 2022-23. 


 
490 – Library 
 
 The purpose of the Library DIF is to provide funding for library books and other 


material. When the City incorporated July 1, 2008, the City adopted the County 
of Riverside DIF which included a specific DIF for Library Books. 


 On April 1, 2014, the City adopted a new DIF program that did not include a 
category for the collection of library books and materials for the Mission Trail 
Library, which is run by the County in Wildomar. With the adoption of the new 
DIF program, the Library DIF was no longer collected. 


 On July 24, 2014, the County of Riverside and the City of Wildomar entered a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to use the balance of the Library DIF 
funds to purchase new library materials for the Mission Trail Library in 
Wildomar until the funds are exhausted, which is anticipated in fiscal year 
2024-25. 


 The County invoices the City quarterly for new library materials purchased 
under this MOU.  







410 420 421 422 423 430 440 450 451 460 461 470 480 490


Fiscal Year


Administrative City Hall Police Facilities Animal Shelter Corporate Yard Fire Facilities
Transportation - 


Roads


Transportation - 


Signals
Drainage


Regional 


Parks/Park 


Land 


Acquistion


Park 


Improvements


Community 


Center / Parks
Trails Library Total


 $           (85,129)  $         325,067  $         485,213  $       (672,349)  $          (22,453)  $         667,573  $       2,612,162  $           506,860  $         506,470  $       (149,993)  $          596,487  $         289,751  $         296,776  $           72,606  $                 5,429,044 


Revenues:


Fees Received


6,399                  51,835              30,783              13,343              10,722              59,693              513,094             66,603                259,488            32,458              208,252             25,299              55,247              -                    1,333,216$                 


Interest Income


-                      405                   584                   -                    -                    811                   4,150                  631                      655                   -                    841                     361                   388                   82                      8,907$                         


Miscellaneous Income


-                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      -                       -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -$                             


6,399                  52,240              31,367              13,343              10,722              60,504              517,244             67,234                260,143            32,458              209,093             25,659              55,635              82                      1,342,123$                 


Expenditures:


General Operating


-                      405                   584                   -                    -                    811                   4,150                  631                      655                   -                    841                     361                   388                   82                      8,907$                         


Cost Allocation


-                      -                    -                    66,127              -                    -                    -                      -                       -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    66,127$                       


Library Books


-                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      -                       -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    19,989              19,989$                       


Capital Projects


15,650                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,221                  65,806                -                    -                    104,948             -                    -                    -                    188,625$                     


15,650                405                   584                   66,127              -                    811                   6,370                  66,437                655                   -                    105,790             361                   388                   20,071              283,648$                    


(94,379)$            376,903$         515,996$         (725,133)$        (11,731)$          727,266$         3,123,035$        507,657$            765,958$         (117,536)$        699,791$           315,050$         352,023$         52,617$            6,487,519$                 


Capital Projects Breakdown: % Funded with DIF


Master Drainage Plan CIP023 63% Ongoing 15,650                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      -                       -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    15,650                         


Bundy Canyon Widening Ph I 36% Ongoing -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,221                  -                       -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    2,221                           


Bundy/Seller Traffic Signal CIP077 71% Ongoing -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      34,383                -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    34,383                         


Bundy/Monte Vista Signal CIP078 62% Ongoing -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      31,423                -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    31,423                         


27 Acre Park 7% Ongoing -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      -                       -                    -                    104,948             -                    -                    -                    104,948                       


15,650                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,221                  65,806                -                    -                    104,948             -                    -                    -                    188,625                       


Section 2.


Annual Summary Report
7/1/2020-6/30/2021


Beginning Balance 7/1/2020:    


2020-2021


2020-2021


Total Revenues for 2020/21:


City of Wildomar Development Impact Fee Report


Ending Balance 6/30/2021:    


2020-2021


2020-2021


2020-2021


2020-2021


Total Expenditures for 2020/21:


2020-2021







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.2  


PUBLIC HEARING 
 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Development Impact Fee Update Study (CIP 023) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 


1. Conduct a Public Hearing to receive testimony regarding the Development Impact 
Fee Study Update Report dated December 2, 2021 for the City of Wildomar; and  


 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE “CITY OF WILDOMAR IMPACT FEE STUDY” 


AND ESTABLISHING AND INCREASING DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
APPLICABLE TO ALL DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The City’s Development Impact Fees (DIF) were first adopted at incorporation on July 1, 
2008, adopting the fees that were being charged by the County of Riverside at the time. 
The County transferred all the development impact fee fund balances to the City from 
development impact fees collected by the County prior to the City’s incorporation. The 
City continued to collect development impact fees in the amounts established by the 
County from incorporation until the City adopted its own fees in January 2014. An update 
to the 2014 study was approved in May 2015, adding several additional fees. These new 
DIFs became effective in intervals starting on August 10, 2015. Since then, the DIF has 
not been updated. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The City currently collects DIFs in twelve different areas. The current study reviewed fees 
utilizing updated costs, updated land use data, updated assumptions, and the recently 
approved Master Plan of Drainage, Mobility/Transportation/Circulation Plan and Park 
Master Plan. 
 
Drainage 







In December 2019, the City Council adopted the Wildomar Master Drainage Plan (MDP). 
The Wildomar MDP is a supplemental update to the existing Master Drainage Plans that 
were prepared by the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
(RCFC). RCFC currently charges Area Drainage Plan (ADP) fees to new development 
projects in the Wildomar and Murrieta Creek drainage areas to offset the cost of RCFC 
storm drain facilities required to provide adequate drainage control in these areas. RCFC 
has not updated their fees since 1993. No drainage fees are currently collected in the 
Sedco drainage area or in the northern areas of the City (Lost Rd. and Cottonwood 
Canyon Rd. areas). 
 
The 2019 Wildomar MDP identified local storm drain facilities that are necessary to 
mitigate localized flooding not addressed by the RCFC MDP facilities. A portion of the 
facilities required in the Wildomar MDP is attributable to new development. The existing 
DIF Drainage fees do not include costs for the new Wildomar MDP facilities. 
 
Therefore, to ensure that various proposed developments provide adequate funding to 
mitigate their drainage impacts, the DIF Drainage fees have been updated to incorporate 
all Wildomar MDP facilities. In addition, to streamline the fee process for developers and 
to allow the City to have more local control over funds for storm drain improvements, the 
RCFC MDP storm drain facilities have also been included in the City’s DIF program. In 
this case, RCFC will no longer collect ADP Fees from development in Wildomar. These 
fees would instead be included in and collected with the City DIF. RCFC has agreed to 
this approach. 
 
Mobility/Transportation/Circulation 
In June 2021, the City Council adopted the Wildomar Mobility Plan (WMP). The WMP 
included updates to the City’s Circulation Plan, a Bicycle Network/Master Plan, and a Trail 
Network/Master Plan. Roadway designs were modified to be consistent with projected 
traffic volumes and current design standards and to better accommodate bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities into the network. 
 
To ensure that the various proposed developments provide funding to mitigate their 
impacts to the City’s roadway, bicycle, and trail system, updates to the DIF Roads, DIF 
Signals, and DIF Trails fees were made to incorporate the proposed WMP infrastructure. 
 
Fee Summary 
Updated fee estimates have been determined based on the criteria discussed above. In 
addition, Staff recommends that an annual fee update based on an approved construction 
cost index be adopted to ensure that fees are kept current with construction costs. Table 
1 below includes a summary of the existing DIF Fees. Table 2 includes a summary of the 
proposed DIF Fee update, and Table 3 includes a summary of the cost differences 
between the existing fees and the proposed fees. 
 
Stakeholder Coordination 
The City began this DIF Update Study in 2019 and has been actively working towards 
completion of the update this year. Staff has begun coordinating with the relevant 







stakeholders in the development community who will be impacted by this update. Staff 
had a kick-off meeting in 2019 with the Building Industry Association (BIA) and had a 
follow-up meeting with the BIA in November 2021. Staff is also communicating with the 
active development community in Wildomar to advise them of the DIF Update Study.  
 
The Resolution included with this report will approve and adopt the DIF Update Study and 
will adopt new updated DIF Fees. The adopted fees will not become effective until July 1, 
2022. After adoption of the study and before July 1, 2022, staff proposes to continue 
working with the development community and relevant stakeholders to prepare a fee 
implementation plan for the new fees. The fee implementation plan will identify in more 
detail how the new fees will be applied to existing projects which are already processing 
with the City. Staff proposes to then bring forward another resolution by or before July 1, 
2022, to adopt the fee implementation plan for the new fees. 
 
 


Table 1 - Existing DIF Fees (2015) 


 


  







Table 2 - Proposed DIF Fees (2021) 


 
 


Table 3 - Difference Between Existing (2015) and Proposed (2021) Fees 


 
 







FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Adoption of updated DIFs will provide the necessary funding for future City infrastructure 
and facilities necessary to mitigate the impacts of new development. If updated DIFs are 
not adopted, the available funding for future facilities will not be adequate to cover the 
expected costs and the City will need to find and use additional funding such as grants, 
local sales tax revenues, and the General Fund. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Approved by: 
Dan York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director/  City Manager 
City Engineer 
   
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution including Exhibit “A” – DIF Update Study 


  







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - __ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE “CITY OF WILDOMAR IMPACT FEE STUDY” 
AND ESTABLISHING AND INCREASING DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
APPLICABLE TO ALL DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 
WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2015-24 


adopting an impact fee study and establishing new development impact fees applicable 
to all development in the City of Wildomar; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City desired to review its development impact fees to ensure they 


accurately reflect the impacts of future development on certain capital facilities and 
improvements; and 


 
WHEREAS, on December 11, 2019, the City contracted with NBS Government 


Finance Group (NBS) to complete an impact fee study report to analyze the impacts of 
future development on certain public facilities and to calculate impact fees based on that 
analysis; and, 
 


WHEREAS, NBS prepared the “City of Wildomar Development Impact Fee Study” 
dated December 2, 2021 (the “DIF Study”) attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, which analyzes 
the impacts of new development on nine categories of public facilities and calculates the 
fees that should be imposed on new development to mitigate the impact the new 
development has on each category of public facilities (the “Impact Fees”); and   


 
WHEREAS, in compliance with the Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code section 


66000 et seq.), the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed Impact Fees at its 
meeting on December 15, 2021.  Notice of the public hearing was published on December 
4, 2021 and December 10, 2021, in the Press Enterprise; and,  


 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby resolve 


as follows: 


 Section 1. CEQA Findings.  The City Council  hereby finds that the 
adoption of this Resolution is not subject to CEQA review pursuant to CEQA Guideline 
15378(b)(4), which provides that the creation of government funding mechanisms or other 
government fiscal activities that do not involve any commitment to any specific project are 
not projects subject to CEQA review. 


Section 2. Mitigation Fee Act Findings.  As required by Government Code 
Section 66001(a), the City Council makes the following findings with respect to the Impact 
Fees: 


A. The purpose of the Impact Fees is to prevent new development from 
reducing the quality and availability of public services provided to residents of the 







City by requiring new development to contribute to the cost of additional public 
facilities needed to meet the additional demands placed on public services by new 
development.     


B. The Impact Fees will be used to construct public facilities and pay for 
other capital assets needed to serve new development.  The DIF Study identifies 
the specific public facilities and other capital assets that will be funded by each 
category of Impact Fees.   


C. Based on the information and analysis presented in the DIF Study, 
the City Council finds there is a reasonable relationship between the uses to which 
the Impact Fees will be put and the development projects on which the Impact 
Fees will be imposed.  As specified in the DIF Study, the Impacts Fees will be used 
to fund street and intersection improvements, bridges and culverts, police facilities, 
a fire station and fire engine, a corporation yard facility, drainage improvements, 
and multi-purpose trails.  These uses will serve all development within the City.  In 
addition, the Impact Fees will fund new parks and a community center.  These 
uses will specifically benefit residential development, and thus the Impact Fees for 
these facilities will only be imposed on new residential development. 


D. Based on the information and analysis presented in the DIF Study, 
the City Council finds there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the 
public facilities that will be funded by the Impact Fees and the type of development 
projects on which the Impact Fees will be imposed.  Specifically, all new 
development places demands on streets and intersections, police and fire 
services, drainage, trails and the City Hall and City’s corporation yard.  Therefore 
all new development should contribute toward the cost of the public facilities and 
equipment needed to provide these services and infrastructure to the 
development.  In addition, residential development places demands on parks and 
community centers, and therefore only residential development should be required 
to contribute toward the facilities and equipment needed to provide these services. 


Section 3. Adoption of DIF Study.  The DIF Study attached as Exhibit “A” is 
hereby approved and adopted.      


Section 4. Adoption of Impact Fees.  The Impact Fee Schedule, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B”, is adopted.   


Section 5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall become effective on July 1, 
2022. 


Section 6. Annual Adjustment. The Impact Fee Schedule attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B” shall be increased on July 1 of each year, beginning on July 1, 2023, by an 
amount equal to the average percentage change over the previous year in the California 
Construction Cost Index. 


APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2021. 
 







 
       ___________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       Janet Morales, CMC 
       City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Thomas Jex,  
City Attorney 







STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE  ) ss. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR                   ) 


 


I, Janet Morales, City Clerk of the City of Wildomar, California, do hereby certify that 
Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly and regularly adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Wildomar at a regular meeting thereof held on the 15th day of December,  
2021, by the following vote: 


 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 


 
___________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK 
 
 


        (SEAL) 
 
  







EXHIBIT A 
 


DIF STUDY 
 


(under separate cover) 
  







 
EXHIBIT B 


 
IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE 


  
 


 







DRAFT Final Report
Development Impact Fee Study


December 2, 2021


nbsgov.com


Prepared by:


Corporate Headquarters


32605 Temecula Parkway, Suite 100
Temecula, CA 92592


Toll free: 800.676.7516



JasonFarag

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT "A"



JasonFarag

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT "A"







Table of Contents
Executive Summary.........................................................................................................................S-1


Organization of the Report ....................................................................................................................S-1


Future Development..............................................................................................................................S-1


Impact Fee Analysis................................................................................................................................S-2


Recovery of Administrative Costs ..........................................................................................................S-6


Impact Fee Summary .............................................................................................................................S-7


Chapter 1. Introduction...................................................................................................................1-1


Purpose ..................................................................................................................................................1-1


Legal Framework for Developer Fees ....................................................................................................1-1


Recent Legislation ..................................................................................................................................1-6


Impact Fee Calculation Methodology ....................................................................................................1-8


Facilities Addressed in this Study...........................................................................................................1-9


Chapter 2. Development Data .........................................................................................................2-1


Setting ....................................................................................................................................................2-1


Study Area and Time Frame...................................................................................................................2-1


Development Types ...............................................................................................................................2-1


Residential Development and Population .............................................................................................2-2


Units of Development............................................................................................................................2-3


Demand Variables..................................................................................................................................2-3


Existing and Future Development..........................................................................................................2-6


Growth Potential....................................................................................................................................2-8


Chapter 3. Transportation Impact Fees ............................................................................................3-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................3-1


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................3-1


Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................3-1


Level of Service ......................................................................................................................................3-1


Road Impact Fees...................................................................................................................................3-2


Street, Intersection and Bridge Improvement Costs .............................................................................3-2


Road Impact Fees - Allocation of Costs..................................................................................................3-3


Road Impact Fees per Unit of Development..........................................................................................3-4


Road Impact Fees - Projected Revenue .................................................................................................3-5







Traffic Signal Impact Fees ......................................................................................................................3-6


Traffic Signal and Roundabout Improvement Costs ..............................................................................3-6


Traffic Signal Impact Fees - Allocation of Costs .....................................................................................3-6


Traffic Signal Impact Fees per Unit of Development .............................................................................3-7


Traffic Signal Impact Fees - Projected Revenue.....................................................................................3-8


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................3-8


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................3-8


Chapter 4. Police Impact Fees..........................................................................................................4-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................4-1


Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................4-1


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................4-1


Level of Service ......................................................................................................................................4-1


Facility Costs...........................................................................................................................................4-2


Allocation of Costs .................................................................................................................................4-2


Impact Fees per Unit of Development...................................................................................................4-3


Projected Revenue.................................................................................................................................4-4


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................4-4


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................4-4


Chapter 5. Fire Protection Facilities and Equipment .........................................................................5-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................5-1


Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................5-1


Level of Service ......................................................................................................................................5-2


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................5-2


Facility and Equipment Costs .................................................................................................................5-2


Allocation of Costs .................................................................................................................................5-3


Impact Fees per Unit of Development...................................................................................................5-4


Projected Revenue.................................................................................................................................5-5


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................5-6


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................5-6


Chapter 6. Parks..............................................................................................................................6-1


The Quimby Act......................................................................................................................................6-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................6-2


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................6-2







Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................6-2


Existing Park Assets................................................................................................................................6-2


Existing Acres per Capita........................................................................................................................6-3


Level of Service Standard.......................................................................................................................6-3


In-Lieu Fees and Impact Fees per Unit...................................................................................................6-4


Projected Revenue.................................................................................................................................6-5


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................6-6


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................6-6


Chapter 7. Community Center .........................................................................................................7-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................7-1


Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................7-1


Level of Service ......................................................................................................................................7-1


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................7-1


Facility Costs...........................................................................................................................................7-1


Cost per Capita.......................................................................................................................................7-2


Impact Fees per Unit of Development...................................................................................................7-2


Projected Revenue.................................................................................................................................7-3


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................7-3


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................7-3


Chapter 8. City Hall .........................................................................................................................8-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................8-1


Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................8-1


Level of Service ......................................................................................................................................8-1


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................8-1


Facility Costs...........................................................................................................................................8-1


Allocation of Costs .................................................................................................................................8-2


Impact Fees per Unit of Development...................................................................................................8-3


Projected Revenue.................................................................................................................................8-3


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................8-4


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................8-4


Chapter 9. Corporation Yard............................................................................................................9-1


Service Area ...........................................................................................................................................9-1


Demand Variable ...................................................................................................................................9-1







Level of Service ......................................................................................................................................9-1


Methodology..........................................................................................................................................9-1


Facility Costs...........................................................................................................................................9-1


Allocation of Costs .................................................................................................................................9-2


Impact Fees per Unit of Development...................................................................................................9-3


Projected Revenue.................................................................................................................................9-4


Updating the Fees ..................................................................................................................................9-4


Nexus Summary .....................................................................................................................................9-4


Chapter 10. Multi-Purpose Trails ...................................................................................................10-1


Service Area .........................................................................................................................................10-1


Demand Variable .................................................................................................................................10-1


Level of Service ....................................................................................................................................10-1


Methodology........................................................................................................................................10-1


Facility Costs.........................................................................................................................................10-1


Allocation of Costs ...............................................................................................................................10-2


Impact Fees per Unit of Development.................................................................................................10-3


Projected Revenue...............................................................................................................................10-4


Nexus Summary ...................................................................................................................................10-4


Chapter 11. Storm Drainage Facilities ............................................................................................11-1


Study Area............................................................................................................................................11-1


Methodology........................................................................................................................................11-1


Demand Variable .................................................................................................................................11-1


Level of Service ....................................................................................................................................11-1


Improvement Needs and Costs............................................................................................................11-2


Impervious Surface Area......................................................................................................................11-2


Allocation of Costs ...............................................................................................................................11-3


Impact Fees per Unit of Development.................................................................................................11-4


Projected Revenue...............................................................................................................................11-5


Updating the Fees ................................................................................................................................11-5


Nexus Summary ...................................................................................................................................11-5


Chapter 12. Implementation .........................................................................................................12-1


Adoption ..............................................................................................................................................12-1


Administration .....................................................................................................................................12-2







Requirements Imposed by AB 602.......................................................................................................12-7


Training and Public Information ..........................................................................................................12-8


Recovery of Administrative Costs ........................................................................................................12-8


Appendices


Streets, Bridges, Intersections & Signals Appendix A


Trails Appendix B


Drainage Improvements Appendix C







City of Wildomar Page S-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Executive Summary
The City of Wildomar retained NBS to prepare this impact fee study update to analyze the
impact of future development on certain capital facilities and to calculate impact fees
based on that analysis.   The methods used to calculate impact fees in this study are
intended to satisfy all legal requirements of the U. S. Constitution, the California
Constitution, the California Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §§ 66000 et seq.) and
where applicable, the Quimby Act (Government Code § 66477).


Organization of the Report
Chapter 1 of this report provides an overview of impact fees.  It discusses legal
requirements for establishing and imposing such fees, as well as methods used in this
study to calculate the fees.


Chapter 2 contains information on existing and future development used in this report
and organizes that data in a form that can be used in the impact fee analysis.  Projections
of existing development shown in Chapter 2 are updated from Wildomar’s 2014 impact
fee study using building permit data.


Chapters 3 through 11 show the impact fee calculations for specific facility types.  The
type of facilities addressed in each of those chapters is indicated below:


Chapter 3.   Street and Intersections
Chapter 4.   Police Facilities
Chapter 5.   Fire Protection Facilities
Chapter 6.   Parks
Chapter 7.   Community Centers


Chapter 8.     City Hall
Chapter 9. Corporation Yard
Chapter 10. Multi-Purpose Trails
Chapter 11. Drainage Improvements


Each of the impact fee chapters documents the data and methodology used to calculate
impact fees for a particular type of facility, as well as the nexus between development
and the need for the facilities to be paid-for by the impact fees.


Chapter 12 discusses implementation of the impact fee program, including legal
requirements for enacting and implementing the impact fee program under California
law.


Future Development
Forecasts of future development for this study are intended to represent all additional
development potential for undeveloped land in the City under the current General Plan.
When Wildomar incorporated in 2008, the City adopted the Riverside County General
Plan as it applies to the area within the City.







City of Wildomar Page S-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 2 of this report forecasts that full buildout of undeveloped land in the City would
result in increases of 54% in population, 135% in peak hour vehicle trips, and 230% in
employment from current levels in the City.  Those figures provide some perspective on
the need for future investment by the City in additional capital facilities and infrastructure
to support future development.


Another way of looking at those numbers is that current development represents about
65% of projected buildout population, 43% of buildout vehicle trips, and 30% of buildout
employment.


Impact Fee Analysis
Each type of facility addressed in this report is analyzed in a separate chapter.  In each
case, the relationship between development and the need for facilities is quantified in a
way that allows the impact of development on facility needs to be measured. Impact fees
calculated in this report are based on the capital cost of facilities needed to serve future
development.


Impact fees calculated in this study are summarized in Table ES.1 later in this Executive
Summary.  The following paragraphs briefly discuss factors considered in the fee
calculations for each facility type.


Transportation (Road and Traffic Signal) Improvements). Road, intersection and bridge
improvements as well as traffic signal and roundabout projects needed to support future
development in Wildomar were identified by the Wildomar Engineering Department
based on the City’s Mobility Plan which was adopted in 2021.  Improvements designated
for funding by the Western Riverside County Council of Government (WRCOG)
Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) are excluded from the impact fee
calculations.


The City has determined that there are no existing deficiencies in the portion of the street
system to be funded by the City’s impact fees, so essentially all of the arterial street and
intersection improvements shown in this report are needed to serve future development.
However, costs for some completed improvements that have been part of the impact fee
program are retained in the cost basis for the impact fee calculations in this study because
new development’s share of the cost will not be completely funded until all impact fees
have been collected from all forecasted future development. The amount of all road and
traffic signal impact fees collected since 2015 is credited against the total cost of
improvements used in the impact fee calculations.


The road improvement costs used in the impact fee calculations include only costs for
improvements beyond the two inside lanes on any roadway. The two inside travel lanes
across the frontage of any development project are considered project improvements
necessary for access to the development and therefore will be the direct responsibility of
abutting developers on either side of the street. See Chapter 3 for more detail.







City of Wildomar Page S-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Costs for future road and traffic signal improvements are allocated to future development
based on the number of p.m. peak hour vehicle trips added by each type of development.
Then, costs allocated to Public and Institutional development are reallocated to
residential development.  Those costs are reallocated because the City cannot collect
impact fees from most of the development in the Public/Institutional category.  Since
development in that category (mostly public schools) largely serves residential
development, it is reasonable to reallocate those costs to residential development.


Eligible road and traffic signal costs for each development type are divided by the
additional peak hour vehicle trips generated by that development type to establish a cost
per peak hour trip.  Then the cost per peak hour trip is multiplied by the number of peak
hour trips per unit for each type of development to arrive at an impact fee per unit.  The
proposed impact fees for street and intersection improvements are shown in Table ES.1
later in this Executive Summary.


Police Facilities. Impact fees for police facilities address the need for additional space in
police facilities to serve new development.  This report estimates the amount of space in
the Riverside County Sheriff’s Department Lake Elsinore Station currently devoted to
serving Wildomar and calculates the cost of future space needed to maintain the current
ratio of facility space to service population through buildout.


Service population is used as a measure of the demand for law enforcement services, as
well as several other types of services provided by the City. Service population combines
resident population and employees and (See Chapter 2 for a more detailed discussion of
service population.)


Costs for future police facilities are allocated to future development based on the service
population added by each type of development. Next, costs allocated to Public and
Institutional development are reallocated to residential development, as discussed in the
previous section. Then the cost allocated to each type of development is divided by the
service population associated with that type of development to derive a cost per capita.


Finally, the cost per capita is multiplied by the service population per unit for each type
of development to determine the impact fee per unit for that type of development.  The
proposed police impact fees are shown in Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.


Fire Protection Facilities. Impact fees for fire protection facilities are based new
development’s share of the City’s cost for fire stations, apparatus and vehicles needed to
serve the City at buildout. The impact fees calculated in this report represent only future
development’s proportionate share of the City’s total cost for fire protection facilities and
vehicles.


Costs for fire protection facilities, apparatus and vehicles are allocated to both existing
and future development based on service population. Next, costs allocated to Public and
Institutional development are reallocated to residential development, as discussed







City of Wildomar Page S-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


previously. Then the share of cost allocated to each type of development is divided by the
service population associated with that type of development to derive a cost per capita.


Finally, the cost per capita is multiplied by the service population per unit for each type
of development to determine the impact fee per unit for that type of development.  The
proposed fire impact fees are shown in Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.


Park In-Lieu Fees and Park Impact Fees. This report calculates fees for both park land and
park improvements. For residential development projects involving a subdivision or
parcel map, the Quimby Act authorizes cities to require dedication of park land or
payment of fees in lieu of dedication. This study calculates those park in-lieu fees as well
as park impact fees for residential development projects that don’t involve a subdivision
or parcel map. Both of those fees are based on a standard of 3.0 acres per 1,000
population, so the amounts are the same.


This study also calculates impact fees for park improvements. Those fees are also based
on a standard of 3.0 acres per 1,000 population. They apply to all residential development
in addition to the park land in-lieu fees or impact fees.


To calculate fees per unit of development for park land and park improvements, the
estimated per-acre cost of land or improvements is divided by 1,000 and the result is
multiplied by the population per unit for each type of residential development.


The proposed park land in-lieu/impact fees and the proposed park improvement impact
fees are shown in Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.


Community Centers. Fees calculated in this study for community center facilities are
based on a level of service standard of 0.4 square feet per resident, which means a facility
of about 23,000 square feet would be needed to serve the City at buildout. The estimated
cost of that facility in current dollars, including furniture, fixtures and equipment, is
approximately $10.5 million.


Because the City has no existing community centers, the proposed facility would serve
both existing and future development. Consequently, impact fees paid by future
development would cover only about 35% of the total cost.  The remaining cost would
have to be funded from other sources of revenue.


To calculate impact fees for community centers, the total cost of the facility is divided by
the expected population of the City at buildout to derive a cost per capita.  Then the cost
per capita is multiplied by the population per dwelling unit for each type of residential
development to determine the impact fee per unit. The impact fees for community
centers would apply only to residential development. The proposed impact fees are
shown in Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.


City Hall.  Fees calculated in this study for a future City Hall assume the City will construct
a 20,000 square foot permanent City Hall building at an estimated cost in current dollars
of about $10.6 million for land, construction and furniture, fixtures and equipment.







City of Wildomar Page S-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


As with other impact fees for facilities serving both residential and non-residential
development, new development’s share of the cost of City Hall is allocated to future
development based on the amount of service population added by each type of
development.  Next, costs allocated to Public and Institutional development are
reallocated to residential development, as discussed previously. Then the share of cost of
allocated to each type of development is divided by the service population associated
with that type of development to derive a cost per capita.


Finally, the cost per capita is multiplied by the service population per unit of development
for each type of development to determine the impact fee per unit.  The proposed City
Hall impact fees are shown in Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.


Because Wildomar has no existing City-owned City Hall, the proposed facility would serve
both existing and future development.  Consequently, impact fees paid by future
development would cover only about 45% of the total cost.  The remaining cost would
have to be funded from other sources of revenue.


Corporation Yard. Fees calculated in this study for a future corporation yard are based
on cost estimates for a very basic facility to support the City’s maintenance activities and
provide for material storage.  The components of that facility are shown in Chapter 10.
The estimated cost of that facility, in current dollars, is approximately $2.4 million.


As with other impact fees for facilities serving both residential and non-residential
development, new development’s share of the cost of the corporation yard is allocated
to future development based on the amount of service population added by each type of
development.  Next, costs allocated to Public and Institutional development are
reallocated to residential development. Then the share of cost of allocated to each type
of development is divided by the service population associated with that type of
development to derive a cost per capita.


Finally, the cost per capita is multiplied by the number of residents or employees per unit
for each type of development to determine the impact fee per unit for that type of
development.  The proposed corporation yard impact fees are shown in later in this
Executive Summary.


Because Wildomar has no existing corporation yard, the proposed facility would serve
both existing and future development.  Impact fees paid by future development would
cover about 45% of that cost. The remaining cost would have to be funded from other
sources of revenue.


Multi-Purpose Trails. Fees calculated in this study for multi-purpose trails are based on
future development’s proportionate share (about 46%) of the estimated cost of planned
future trails.  The cost of those trail improvements is allocated to various categories of
development in proportion to the service population associated with each category.


Then, as is the case with some other types of impact fees discussed above, the share of
costs attributed to future development in the Public Facilities category is reallocated to







City of Wildomar Page S-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


various categories of residential development. And finally, the costs for each category are
divided by the number of units of development in that category at buildout, to arrive at
an impact fee per unit.  The proposed impact fees for multi-purpose trails are shown in
Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.


The total cost of planned future trails is estimated at $38.9 million and future
development’s share is $17.9 million.  Future trail development costs not covered by
impact fees would be approximately $21 million.


Drainage Improvements. Fees calculated in this study for drainage improvements are
based on estimated costs for future drainage improvements identified in the 2019 Master
Drainage Plan. In addition, the impact fee analysis incorporates the cost of improvements
planned by Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (RCFC) to
serve the City of Wildomar. Currently, the cost of those improvements is recovered
through Area Drainage Plan (ADP) fees collected by RCFC. If the storm drainage impact
fees calculated in this report are adopted by the City, those costs will be recovered
directly by the City through the impact fees and RCFC will no longer collect the ADP fees.


Drainage impact fees are calculated in this study based on the estimated amount of
impervious surface area (ISA) added by each type of development.  The addition of
impervious surfaces, such as rooftops and paving, increases the amount of stormwater
runoff that must be accommodated by the drainage system.


For purposes of calculating impact fees for drainage improvements, residential
development is broken down into six separate density categories. That is a more detailed
breakdown than is used for other impact fees calculated in this report because residential
development on larger lots tends to add greater amounts of ISA per unit.


The total cost of the drainage improvements is allocated to both existing and future
development so that the impact fees represent only future development’s proportionate
share of the total cost. Costs are allocated to various categories of development in
proportion to the amount of ISA added by each category.  Then, as is the case with some
other types of impact fees discussed above, the costs attributed to development in the
Public Facilities category is reallocated to various categories of residential development.
And finally, the costs for each category are divided by the number of units of future
development in that category, to arrive at an impact fee per unit.


The proposed drainage impact fees shown in Table ES.1 later in this Executive Summary.
Because the breakdown of residential development types is more detailed than for other
impact fees calculated in this report, that table does not include a complete breakdown
of the drainage impact fees for residential development. That breakdown is shown in
Table 11.4 in Chapter 11.


Recovery of Administrative Costs
Many agencies charging impact fees increase the fees by a small percentage to recover
the cost fee administration and periodic impact fee studies.







City of Wildomar Page S-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


One method that can be used for allocating the cost of fee study updates to impact fees
is to divide those costs by the amount of revenue that will be generated by impact fees
over some period of time.


This report projects the total revenue that will be collected through buildout of the City,
assuming that: (1) development occurs as anticipated in the current general plan; and, (2)
the impact fees are adjusted annually to keep pace with changes in the costs underlying
the impact fee calculations.  That projected total revenue is $287,201,916 in current
dollars.


Assuming that buildout will occur over approximately 25 years, the average revenue for
each five-year period would be $56,440,383. The estimated cost of an impact fee update
study is $50,000 and annual administration costs estimated at $25,000 would total
$125,000. So total administration costs over five years would total $175,000.


Dividing $175,000 by total five-year revenue of $56,440,383 equals 0.30%, so the fees
calculated in this study would have to be increased by 0.30% to recover the cost of impact
fee administration and impact fee studies over the next 5 years.  Table ES.1, below, shows
a development impact fee (DIF) administration fee, based on that factor.


Impact Fee Summary
Table ES.1 on the next page summarizes the impact fees calculated in this report. Fees
shown in Table ES.1 are per unit of development, by development type.







City of Wildomar Page S-8
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Table ES.2 on the next page shows the City’s existing impact fees.  Because of some
differences in fee structure, some of the proposed fees cannot be compared directly with
existing fees.


Table S-1: Summary of Impact Fees per Unit Calculated in This Study


Impact Fee Residential Residential Industrial/
Type Single-Family Multi-Family Commercial Office Business Pk


 Units>> DU 1 DU 1 KSF 1 KSF 1 KSF 1


Transportation - Roads 4,293.13$ 2,428.44$ 12,811.27$ 3,866.92$ 1,765.33$
Transportation - Signals 477.15$ 269.90$ 1,423.87$ 429.78$ 196.20$
Police Facilities 272.14$ 188.66$ 182.93$ 161.78$ 64.71$
Fire Protection 495.89$ 343.78$ 338.88$ 299.70$ 119.88$
Park Land 978.00$ 678.00$
Park Improvements 9,780.00$ 6,780.00$
Community Center 598.70$ 415.05$
City Hall 428.25$ 296.88$ 292.65$ 258.82$ 103.53$
Corporation Yard 96.74$ 67.07$ 66.11$ 58.47$ 23.39$
Multi-Purpose Trails 1,600.96$ 1,109.87$ 1,076.11$ 951.72$ 380.69$
Drainage 2 5,250.01$ 1,680.97$ 3,383.06$ 2,562.93$ 2,416.47$
DIF Administration Fee 3 72.81$ 42.78$ 58.72$ 25.77$ 15.21$
  Total Fees 24,343.78$ 14,301.39$ 19,633.61$ 8,615.89$ 5,085.41$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Residential drainage fees vary with density; fee shown for single-family residential is medium-density
  fee per unit; fee shown for multi-family residential is high-density fee per unit; for a complete break-
 down of residential drainage fees by density category, see Table 11.4
3 Development impact fee administration fee = 0.30% of the sum of all other impact fees; see discussion







City of Wildomar Page S-9
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Table ES.3 shows the difference between the City’s existing impact fees and the impact
fees calculated in this study. Numbers in parentheses indicate that the proposed fees are
lower than the existing fees.


Table S-2: Summary of Existing Impact Fees per Unit


Impact Fee Residential Residential Industrial/
Type Single-Family Multi-Family Commercial Office Business Pk


 Units>> DU 1 DU 1 KSF 1 KSF 1 KSF 1


Transportation - Roads 3,088.00$ 2,169.00$ 9,415.00$ 2,683.00$ 1,090.00$
Transportation - Signals 401.00$ 281.00$ 1,222.00$ 348.00$ 141.00$
Police Facilities 227.00$ 161.00$ 153.00$ 196.00$ 87.00$
Fire Protection 440.00$ 312.00$ 295.00$ 380.00$ 170.00$
Park Land 597.00$ 423.00$
Park Improvements 3,926.00$ 2,787.00$
Community Center 474.00$ 337.00$
City Hall 384.00$ 272.00$ 258.00$ 333.00$ 149.00$
Corporation Yard 79.00$ 56.00$ 53.00$ 69.00$ 31.00$
Multi-Purpose Trails 750.28$ 532.46$ 503.74$ 648.59$ 289.70$
Drainage 1,381.00$ 868.00$ 1,281.00$ 1,068.00$ 915.00$
DIF Administration Fee 56.39$ 39.35$ 63.27$ 27.48$ 13.79$
  Total Fees 11,803.67$ 8,237.81$ 13,244.01$ 5,753.07$ 2,886.49$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area


Table S-3: Difference between Proposed and Existing Impact Fees per Unit


Impact Fee Residential Residential Industrial/
Type Single-Family Multi-Family Commercial Office Business Pk


 Units>> DU 1 DU 1 KSF 1 KSF 1 KSF 1


Transportation - Roads 1,205.13$ 259.44$ 3,396.27$ 1,183.92$ 675.33$
Transportation - Signals 76.15$ (11.10)$ 201.87$ 81.78$ 55.20$
Police Facilities 45.14$ 27.66$ 29.93$ (34.22)$ (22.29)$
Fire Protection 55.89$ 31.78$ 43.88$ (80.30)$ (50.12)$
Park Land 381.00$ 255.00$
Park Improvements 5,854.00$ 3,993.00$
Community Center 124.70$ 78.05$
City Hall 44.25$ 24.88$ 34.65$ (74.18)$ (45.47)$
Corporation Yard 17.74$ 11.07$ 13.11$ (10.53)$ (7.61)$
Multi-Purpose Trails 850.68$ 577.41$ 572.37$ 303.13$ 90.99$
Drainage 3,869.01$ 812.97$ 2,102.06$ 1,494.93$ 1,501.47$
DIF Administration Fee 16.43$ 3.42$ (4.54)$ (1.71)$ 1.42$
  Total Fees 12,540.12$ 6,063.58$ 6,389.60$ 2,862.81$ 2,198.93$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area







City of Wildomar Page 1-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 1. Introduction
Purpose
The purpose of this study is to analyze the impacts of development on the need for public
facilities provided by the City of Wildomar and to calculate impact fees based on that
analysis. This report documents the approach, data and methodology used in this study
to calculate impact fees as well as Quimby Act park land dedication requirements and in
lieu fees.


The methods used to calculate impact fees and in-lieu fees in this report are intended to
satisfy all legal requirements governing such fees, including provisions of the U. S.
Constitution, the California Constitution, the California Mitigation Fee Act (Government
Code Sections 66000-66025), the Quimby Act (Government Code Section 66477) and
relevant case law.


Legal Framework for Developer Fees
This brief summary of the legal framework for development fees is intended as a general
overview. It was not prepared by an attorney and should not be treated as legal advice.


U. S. Constitution. Like all land use regulations, development exactions, including impact
fees, are subject to the 5th Amendment prohibition on taking of private property for
public use without just compensation.  Both state and federal courts have recognized the
imposition of impact fees on development as a legitimate form of land use regulation,
provided the fees meet standards intended to protect against “regulatory takings.”  A
regulatory taking occurs when regulations unreasonably deprive landowners of property
rights protected by the Constitution.


In two landmark cases dealing with exactions, the U. S. Supreme Court has held that when
a government agency requires the dedication of land or an interest in land as a condition
of development approval, or imposes ad hoc exactions as a condition of approval on a
single development project that do not apply to development generally, a higher standard
of judicial scrutiny applies. To meet that standard, the agency must demonstrate an
"essential nexus" between such exactions and the burden created by a development
project (See Nollan v. California Coastal Commission, 1987) and make an “individualized
determination” that the exaction imposed is "roughly proportional" to that burden (See
Dolan v. City of Tigard, 1994).


Until recently, it was widely accepted that legislatively enacted impact fees that apply to
all development in a jurisdiction are not subject to the higher standard of judicial scrutiny
flowing from the Nollan and Dolan decisions. But after the U. S. Supreme Court decision
in Koontz v. St. Johns Water Management District (2013), state courts have reached
conflicting conclusions on that issue.







City of Wildomar Page 1-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


In light of that uncertainty, any agency enacting or imposing impact fees would be wise
to demonstrate a nexus and ensure proportionality in the calculation of those fees.


Defining the “Nexus.” While courts have not been entirely consistent in defining the
nexus required to justify exactions and impact fees, that term can be thought of as having
the three elements discussed below. We think proportionality is logically included as one
element of that nexus, even though it was discussed separately in Dolan v. Tigard. The
elements of the nexus discussed below mirror the three “reasonable relationship”
findings required by the Mitigation Fee Act for establishment and imposition of impact
fees.


Need or Impact. Development must create a need for the facilities to be funded by impact
fees. All new development in a community creates additional demands on some or all
public facilities provided by local government. If the capacity of facilities is not increased
to satisfy the additional demand, the quality or availability of public services for the entire
community will deteriorate.  Impact fees may be used to recover the cost of
development-related facilities, but only to the extent that the need for facilities is related
to the development project subject to the fees.


The Nollan decision reinforced the principle that development exactions may be used
only to mitigate impacts created by the development projects upon which they are
imposed.  In this study, the impact of development on facility needs is analyzed in terms
of quantifiable relationships between various types of development and the demand for
public facilities based on applicable level-of-service standards.  This report contains all of
the information needed to demonstrate compliance with this element of the nexus.


Benefit. Development must benefit from facilities funded by impact fees. With respect to
the benefit relationship, the most basic requirement is that facilities funded by impact
fees be available to serve the development paying the fees. A sufficient benefit
relationship also requires that impact fee revenues be segregated from other funds and
expended in a timely manner on the facilities for which the fees were charged.  Nothing
in the U.S. Constitution or California law requires that facilities paid for with impact fee
revenues be available exclusively to development projects paying the fees.


Procedures for earmarking and expenditure of fee revenues are mandated by the
Mitigation Fee Act, as are procedures to ensure that the fees are either expended
expeditiously or refunded. Those requirements are intended to ensure that
developments benefit from the impact fees they are required to pay.  Thus, over time,
procedural issues as well as substantive issues can come into play with respect to the
benefit element of the nexus.


Proportionality. Impact fees must be proportional to the impact created by a particular
development project. Proportionality in impact fees depends on properly identifying
development-related facility costs and calculating the fees in such a way that those costs
are allocated in proportion to the facility needs created by different types and amounts







City of Wildomar Page 1-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


of development.  The section on impact fee methodology, below, describes methods used
to allocate facility costs and calculate impact fees that meet the proportionality standard.


California Constitution. The California Constitution grants broad police power to local
governments, including the authority to regulate land use and development.  That police
power is the source of authority for local governments in California to impose impact fees
on development.  Some impact fees have been challenged on grounds that they are
special taxes imposed without voter approval in violation of Article XIIIA.  However, that
objection is valid only if the fees charged to a project exceed the cost of providing facilities
needed to serve the project. In that case, the fees would also run afoul of the U. S.
Constitution and the Mitigation Fee Act.


Articles XIIIC and XIIID, added to the California Constitution by Proposition 218 in 1996,
require voter approval for some “property-related fees,” but exempt “the imposition of
fees or charges as a condition of property development.”


The Mitigation Fee Act. California’s impact fee statute originated in Assembly Bill 1600
during the 1987 session of the Legislature, and took effect in January, 1989.  AB 1600
added several sections to the Government Code, beginning with Section 66000.   Since
that time, the impact fee statute has been amended from time to time, and in 1997 was
officially titled the “Mitigation Fee Act.”  Unless otherwise noted, code sections
referenced in this report are from the Government Code.


The Mitigation Fee Act does not limit the types of capital improvements for which impact
fees may be charged.  It defines public facilities very broadly to include "public
improvements, public services and community amenities."  Although the issue is not
specifically addressed in the Mitigation Fee Act, it is clear both in case law and statute
(see Government Code Section 65913.8) that impact fees may not be used to pay for
maintenance or operating costs.  Consequently, the fees calculated in this report are
based on the cost of capital assets only.


The Mitigation Fee Act does not use the term “mitigation fee” except in its official title.
Nor does it use the more common term “impact fee.”  The Act simply uses the word “fee,”
which is defined as “a monetary exaction, other than a tax or special assessment…that is
charged by a local agency to the applicant in connection with approval of a development
project for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities related
to the development project ….”


To avoid confusion with other types of fees, this report uses the widely-accepted terms
“impact fee” and “development impact fee” which both should be understood to mean
“fee” as defined in the Mitigation Fee Act.


The Mitigation Fee Act contains requirements for establishing, increasing and imposing
impact fees.  They are summarized below.  It also contains provisions that govern the
collection and expenditure of fees and requires annual reports and periodic re-evaluation







City of Wildomar Page 1-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


of impact fee programs.  Those administrative requirements are discussed in the
implementation chapter of this report.


Required Findings. Section 66001 requires that an agency establishing, increasing or
imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


1. Identify the purpose of the fee;


2. Identify the use of the fee; and,


3. Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is
imposed; and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project. (Applies when fees are imposed on a specific project.)


Each of those requirements is discussed in more detail below.


Identifying the Purpose of the Fees. The broad purpose of impact fees is to protect public
health, safety and general welfare by providing for adequate public facilities. The specific
purpose of the fees calculated in this study is to fund construction of certain capital
improvements that will be needed to mitigate the impacts of planned new development
on City facilities and to maintain an acceptable level of public services as the City grows.


This report recommends that findings regarding the purpose of an impact fee should
define the purpose broadly, as providing for the funding of adequate public facilities to
serve additional development.


Identifying the Use of the Fees. According to Section 66001, if a fee is used to finance
public facilities, those facilities must be identified.  A capital improvement plan may be
used for that purpose but is not mandatory if the facilities are identified in a General Plan,
a Specific Plan, or in other public documents. In this case, we recommend that the City
Council adopt this report as the public document that identifies the facilities to be funded
by the fees.


Reasonable Relationship Requirement. As discussed above, Section 66001 requires that,
for fees subject to its provisions, a "reasonable relationship" must be demonstrated
between:


1. the use of the fee and the type of development on which it is imposed;


2. the need for a public facility and the type of development on which a fee is
imposed; and,


3. the amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
on which the fee is imposed.







City of Wildomar Page 1-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


These three reasonable relationship requirements, as defined in the statute, mirror the
nexus and proportionality requirements often cited in court decisions as the standard for
defensible impact fees. The term “dual rational nexus” is often used to characterize the
standard used by courts in evaluating the legitimacy of impact fees.  The “duality” of the
nexus refers to (1) an impact or need created by a development project subject to impact
fees, and (2) a benefit to the project from the expenditure of the fees.


Although proportionality is reasonably implied in the dual rational nexus formulation, it
was explicitly addressed by the Supreme Court in the Dolan case, and we prefer to list it
as the third element of a complete nexus.


Development Agreements and Reimbursement Agreements. The requirements of the
Mitigation Fee Act do not apply to fees collected under development agreements (see
Govt. Code Section 66000) or reimbursement agreements (see Govt. Code Section
66003).  The same is true of fees in lieu of park land dedication imposed under the Quimby
Act (see Govt. Code Section 66477).


Existing Deficiencies. In 2006, Section 66001(g) was added to the Mitigation Fee Act (by
AB 2751) to clarify that impact fees “shall not include costs attributable to existing
deficiencies in public facilities,…” The legislature’s intent in adopting this amendment, as
stated in the bill, was to codify the holdings of Bixel v. City of Los Angeles (1989), Rohn v.
City of Visalia (1989), and Shapell Industries Inc. v. Governing Board (1991).


That amendment does not appear to be a substantive change.  It is widely understood
that other provisions of law make it improper for impact fees to include costs for
correcting existing deficiencies.


However, Section 66001(g) also states that impact fees “may include the costs
attributable to the increased demand for public facilities reasonably related to the
development project in order to (1) refurbish existing facilities to maintain the existing
level of service or (2) achieve an adopted level of service that is consistent with the general
plan.” (Emphasis added.)


Impact Fees for Existing Facilities. Impact fees may be used to recover costs for existing
facilities to the extent that those facilities are needed to serve additional development
and have the capacity to do so.  In other words, it must be possible to show that fees used
to pay for existing facilities meet the need and benefit elements of the nexus.


The Quimby Act. The Quimby Act (Government Code Section 66477), which pre-dates the
Mitigation Fee Act, authorizes a city or county to require dedication of land, payment of
fees in-lieu of dedication, or a combination of both, for park and recreational purposes as
a condition of approval of a residential subdivision. The city or county must adopt an
ordinance that includes definite standards for determining the proportion of the
subdivision to be dedicated and the amount of the in-lieu fees to be paid.







City of Wildomar Page 1-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Under the Quimby Act, land dedication and in-lieu fee requirements are based on the
ratio of park acres to population in the jurisdiction. That ratio may not exceed three acres
per thousand residents unless the existing ratio is higher but is limited to five acres per
thousand. The population added by the subdivision is determined by the number of
dwelling units and the average number of persons per household.


The population and the average number of persons per household in the city or county
are to be based on the most recent federal census. Park acreage is to be based on the
area of neighborhood and community parks in the city or county at the time of that
census.


The land, fees, or combination thereof are to be used only for the purpose of developing
new or rehabilitating existing neighborhood or community park or recreational facilities
to serve the subdivision. A 2013 amendment to the Quimby Act added a provision that
in-lieu fees may be used for the purpose of developing new or rehabilitating existing park
or recreational facilities in a neighborhood other than the neighborhood in which the
subdivision paying the fees is located if certain conditions are met (see paragraph (a)(3)(B)
of Section 66477). “Neighborhood” is not defined in the statute.


The Quimby Act requires that the legislative body adopt a general plan or specific plan
containing policies and standards for parks and recreational facilities, and that the
amount and location of land to be dedicated or the fees to be paid shall bear a reasonable
relationship to the use of the park and recreational facilities by future inhabitants of the
subdivision.


Only payment of fees may be required for subdivisions containing 50 units or less, or for
condominium, stock cooperative or community apartment projects.


The Quimby Act provides that if park and recreational services and facilities are provided
by a public agency other than a city or county, the amount and location of park land to be
dedicated or fees to be paid shall be jointly determined by that other public agency and
the city or county having jurisdiction. The land or fees shall be conveyed directly to the
public agency that provides park and recreational services on a communitywide level if
that agency elects to accept the land or fee.


Recent Legislation
Several new laws enacted by the State of California in 2019 to facilitate development of
affordable housing will affect the implementation of in-lieu fees and impact fees
calculated in this study. Below are brief overviews of some key bills passed in 2019.


SB 330 – The Housing Crisis Act of 2019. Amendments to existing law contained in SB 330
prohibit the imposition of new approval requirements on a housing development project
once a preliminary application has been submitted. That provision applies to increases in
impact fees and in-lieu fees, except when the resolution or ordinance establishing the fee
authorizes automatic, inflationary adjustments to the fee or exaction.







City of Wildomar Page 1-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


AB 1483 – Housing Data: Collection and Reporting. AB 1483 requires that a city, county
or special district must post on its website a current schedule of its fees and exactions, as
well as associated nexus studies and annual reports. Updates must be posted within 30
days.


SB 13 – Accessory Dwelling Units. SB 13 prohibits the imposition of impact fees on
accessory dwelling units (ADUs) smaller than 750 square feet and provides that impact
fees for ADUs of 750 square feet or more must be proportional to the square footage of
the primary dwelling unit. In our opinion, the proportionality requirement means that
impact fees for ADUs of 750 square feet or more must be calculated on a case-by-case
basis during the approval process.


Existing law requires a water or sewer connection fee or capacity charge for an accessory
dwelling unit requiring a new or separate utility connection to be based on either the
accessory dwelling unit’s size or the number of its plumbing fixtures. SB 13 revises the
basis for calculating the connection fee or capacity charge to either the accessory dwelling
unit’s square feet or the number of its drainage fixture units.


AB 602 – Amendments to the Planning and Land Use Law and the Mitigation Fee Act.
AB 602, which was passed and signed in 2021, adds section 65940.1 to the Planning and
Land Use Law requiring cities, counties and special districts that have internet websites
to post schedules of fees, exactions and affordability requirements, annual fee reports,
and an archive of nexus studies on that website, and to update that information within
30 days after any changes.


AB 602 also adds Section 66016.5 to the Mitigation Fee Act imposing several new
requirements for impact fees that go into effect on January 1, 2022, including:


 A nexus study must identify the existing level of service for each facility, identify
the proposed new level of service (if any), and explain why the new level of service
is appropriate.


 If a nexus study supports an increase in an existing fee the local agency shall
review the assumptions of the nexus study supporting the original fee and
evaluate the amount of the fees collected under the original fee.


 Large jurisdictions (counties over 250,000 and cities within those counties) must
adopt a capital improvement plan as part of the nexus study.


 All impact fee nexus studies shall be adopted at a public hearing with at least 30
days’ notice, and the local agency shall notify any member of the public that
requests notice of intent to begin and impact fee nexus study of the date of the
hearing.


 Nexus studies shall be updated at least every eight years, from the period
beginning on January 1, 2022.







City of Wildomar Page 1-8
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


 A nexus study adopted after July 1, 2022, shall calculate a fee imposed on a
housing development project proportionately to the square footage of proposed
units in the development. A nexus study is not required to comply with this
requirement if the local agency makes certain findings specified in the law. A local
agency that imposes a fee proportionately to the square footage of units in the
development shall be deemed to have used a valid method to establish a
reasonable relationship between the fee charged and the burden posed by the
development.


 Authorizes any member of the public, including an applicant for a development
project, to submit evidence that impact fees proposed by an agency fail to comply
with the Mitigation Fee Act, and requires the legislative body of the agency to
consider such evidence and adjust the proposed fee if deemed necessary.


Impact Fee Calculation Methodology
Any one of several legitimate methods may be used to calculate impact fees.  The choice
of a particular method depends primarily on the service characteristics of, and planning
requirements for, the facility type being addressed.  Each method has advantages and
disadvantages in a particular situation. To some extent they are interchangeable, because
they all allocate facility costs in proportion to the needs created by development.


Allocating facility costs to various types and amounts of development is central to all
methods of impact fee calculation.  Costs are allocated by means of formulas that quantify
the relationship between development and the need for facilities.  In a cost allocation
formula, the impact of development is measured by some attribute of development such
as added population or added vehicle trips that represent the impacts created by
different types and amounts of development.


Plan-Based or Improvements-Driven Method. Plan-based impact fee calculations are
based on the relationship between a specified set of improvements and a specified
increment of development. The improvements are typically identified in a facility plan,
while the development is identified in a land use plan that forecasts potential
development by type and quantity.


Using this method, facility costs are allocated to various categories of development in
proportion to the service demand created by each type of development. To calculate
plan-based impact fees, it is necessary to determine what facilities will be needed to serve
a particular increment of new development.


With this method, the total cost of eligible facilities is divided by the total units of
additional demand to calculate a cost per unit of demand (e.g. a cost per capita for parks).
Then, the cost per unit of demand is multiplied by factors representing demand per unit
of development (e.g. population per unit) to arrive at a cost per unit of development.







City of Wildomar Page 1-9
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


This method is somewhat inflexible in that it is based on the relationship between a
specific facility plan and a specific land use plan.  If either plan changes significantly the
fees will have to be recalculated.


Capacity-Based or Consumption-Driven Method.  This method calculates a cost per unit
of capacity based on the relationship between total cost and total capacity of a system.
It can be applied to any type of development, provided the capacity required to serve
each increment of development can be estimated and the facility has adequate capacity
available to serve the development.  Since the cost per unit of demand does not depend
on the particular type or quantity of development to be served, this method is flexible
with respect to changing development plans.


In this method, the cost of unused capacity is not allocated to development.  Capacity-
based fees are most commonly used for water and wastewater systems, where the cost
of a system component is divided by the capacity of that component to derive a unit cost.
However, a similar analysis can be applied to other types of facilities.  To produce a
schedule of impact fees based on standardized units of development (e.g. dwelling units
or square feet of non-residential building area), the cost per unit of capacity is multiplied
by the amount of capacity required to serve a typical unit of development in each of
several land use categories.


Standard-Based or Incremental Expansion Method. Standard-based fees are calculated
using a specified relationship or standard that determines the number of service units to
be provided for each unit of development. The standard can be established as a matter
of policy or it can be based on the level of service being provided to existing development
in the study area.


Using the standard-based method, costs are defined on a generic unit-cost basis and then
applied to development according to a standard that sets the number of service units to
be provided for each unit of development.


Park in-lieu and impact fees are commonly calculated this way. The level of service
standard for parks is typically stated in terms of acres of parks per thousand residents. A
cost-per-acre for park land or park improvements can usually be estimated without
knowing the exact size or location of a particular park. The ratio of park acreage to
population and the cost per acre for parks is used to calculate a cost per capita. The cost
per capita can then be converted into a cost per unit of development based on the
average population per dwelling unit for various types of residential development.


Facilities Addressed in this Study
Impact/in-lieu fees for the following types of facilities are addressed in this report:


 Street Improvements and Traffic Signals (Chapter 3)
 Police Facilities (Chapter 4)
 Fire Protection Facilities (Chapter 5)
 Parks (Chapter 6)







City of Wildomar Page 1-10
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


 Community Center (Chapter 7)
 City Hall (Chapter 8)
 Corporation Yard (Chapter 9)
 Multi-Purpose Trails (Chapter 10)
 Storm Drainage (Chapter 11)


Chapter 2 presents data on existing and future development used to calculate impact fees
in this study.







City of Wildomar Page 2-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 2. Development Data
This chapter presents data on existing and future development that will be used to calculate
impact fees in subsequent chapters of this report.


The information in this chapter may be used to establish levels of service, analyze facility needs,
and/or allocate the cost of capital facilities between existing and future development and among
various types of new development.


Land use and development data in this chapter have been updated from the previous City of
Wildomar Impact Fee Study Update Report dated April 23, 2015. In this report, data on existing
and planned development in Wildomar have been updated using information from the California
Department of Finance Demographic Research Unit, City of Wildomar building permits and a
review of zone changes and general plan amendments approved by the City Council.


Setting
The City of Wildomar is located in Southwestern Riverside County, approximately 40 miles south
of the City of Riverside. The City straddles Interstate 15 and is bordered by the City of Lake
Elsinore to the north, the City of Murrieta to the south and east, unincorporated Riverside County
to the west and the City of Menifee to the northeast. Wildomar incorporated as a city on July 1,
2008.


Study Area and Time Frame
The study area for the impact fee analysis is the area within the existing corporate boundary of
the City of Wildomar. The City has no sphere of influence area.


The timeframe for this study extends from the present to buildout of all land designated for
development within the study area. The term “buildout” is used to describe a hypothetical
condition in which all currently undeveloped/vacant land in the study area has been developed
as indicated in the Land Use Element of the General Plan, including the General Plan Land Use
Map.


The time required for buildout will depend on the rate at which development occurs. The rate
and timing of development do not enter into the impact fee analysis.


Development Types
The development types used in this study are listed below.


 Single-Family Residential (includes mobile homes on individual lots)
 Multi-Family Residential
 Commercial
 Office
 Industrial/Business Park
 Public Facilities







City of Wildomar Page 2-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Single-Family Residential. In this report, the Single-family Residential development type includes
conventional detached units and mobile/manufactured homes on individual lots. About 20% of
Wildomar’s existing dwelling units are manufactured units. In this report, no distinction is made
between mobile homes based on their foundation type. All existing mobile homes, regardless of
their foundation type, are considered as existing residential units in this study.


Future development in this category includes residential development at densities allowed by
following land use designations: Low Density Residential (1 to 2 units per acres), Medium Density
Residential (2 to 5 units per acre) and Medium-High Density Residential (5 to 8 units per acre).


Multi-Family Residential. The Multi-Family Residential development type includes all attached
residential units. Future development in this category includes residential development at
densities greater than 8 units per acre, including residential development in areas designated
Mixed Use Planning Area (MUPA) at 20+ units per acre.


Commercial. The Commercial development type includes all types of commercial development
except office development. Future development in this category includes any development in
areas designated for Commercial Retail uses, as well as non-residential development in the
Mixed-Use Planning Area (MUPA) designation.


Office. The Office development type includes development in areas designated for Commercial
Office uses.


Industrial/Business Park. The Industrial/Business Park development type includes light
industrial, manufacturing-service commercial, warehousing, and business park development.
Future development in this category includes any development in areas designated for Light
Industrial and Business Park uses. To estimate vehicle trip generation from future development
in this category, this study assumes a mix of 50% light industrial and 50% business park uses.


Public Facilities. The public facilities category includes government facilities, schools, hospitals
and similar public or quasi-public uses.  Parks and open space are not included in this category
because they create little or no demand for the facilities addressed in this report.


Residential Development and Population
At present, residential development and population in Wildomar have reached approximately
55% of the City’s buildout potential while non-residential development is only about 30% built
out.


Other Development Types. Certain types of development, such as religious organizations and
charter schools, do not fall under any of the categories listed above. These developments are not
legally exempt from impact fees, but no fee is calculated in this study for such uses. Fees for such
developments can be calculated on an individual basis by considering the number of
employees,students, etc., and the number of peak hour trips generated by a proposed project,
and applyingthose factors to the per-capita costs or per-trip costs shown in each impact fee 
chapter in thisreport.







City of Wildomar Page 2-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


The graph on the next page shows the California Department of Finance (DOF) official January 1
population estimates for the City of Wildomar for the years from 2010 through 2020.


DOF’s population estimate for Wildomar has grown at an average rate of almost 1.5% per year
since the last Census in 2010. The City’s estimated January 1, 2020 population of 37,183 has
increased by 5,007 people, or 15.6%, from a population of 32,176 shown in the 2010 Census.


The figures shown above reflect the
City’s total population, including both
household population and population
in group quarters such as dormitories,
group homes and correctional
facilities. The group quarters
population in Wildomar is negligible.


This study uses data from the U. S.
Census Bureau’s 2018 American
Community Survey 5-year estimates
to calculate the population per
dwelling unit factors for each
category of residential development defined in this study. Those factors are shown in Table 2.1.


Units of Development
In this study, quantities of existing and planned development are measured in terms of certain
units of development.  Those units are discussed below.


Dwelling Units. The dwelling unit (DU) is the most commonly used measure of residential
development, and is the standard unit for residential development in this study.


Building Area. For private non-residential development, gross building area in thousands of
square feet (KSF) is used as the standard unit of development.


Demand Variables
In calculating impact fees, the relationship between facility needs and development must be
quantified in cost allocation formulas.  Certain measurable attributes of development (e.g.,
population and vehicle trip generation) are used in those formulas to reflect the impact of
different types and amounts of development on the demand for specific public services and the
facilities that support those services.


Those attributes are referred to in this study as “demand variables.” Demand variables are
selected either because they directly measure service demand created by various types of
development, or because they are reasonably correlated with that demand.


For example, the service standard for parks in a community is typically defined as a ratio of park
acreage to population.  As population grows, more parks are needed to maintain the desired







City of Wildomar Page 2-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


standard.  Logically, then, population is an appropriate yardstick or demand variable for
measuring the impacts of development on the need for additional parks.


Similarly, the need for capacity in a street system depends on the volume of traffic the system
must handle.  So the vehicle trip generation rate (the number of vehicle trips generated by each
unit of development per day) is an appropriate demand variable to represent the impact of
development on the street system.


Each demand variable has a specific value for each type of development.  Those values may be
referred to as demand factors. For example, in this study, P.M. peak hour trip volume is used as
the demand factor for calculating impact fees for streets. The Institute of Transportation
Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation manual (10th Edition), estimates that one single-family detached
dwelling unit generates an average of 0.99 vehicle trips each weekday P.M. peak hour, so that
number is used as the demand factor in calculating street impact fees for single-family residential
units.


Specific demand variables used in this study are discussed below.  The values of demand factors
used in this report are shown in Table 2.1 on page 2-5.


Population. Resident population is used as a demand variable to calculate impact fees for
facilities like parks that are intended to serve residents of the City. Resident population is tied to
residential development, so this variable attributes no demand to non-residential development.


Service Population. Population alone does not represent all of the impacts of development on
facilities that serve both residential and non-residential development. A variable called service
population is commonly used to calculate impact fees for certain types of public facilities and will
be used in this study.


Service population is a composite variable that includes both residents of the City and employees
of businesses in Wildomar. Population is included to represent the impacts of residential
development and employees are included to represent the impacts of non-residential
development, such as commercial, office and industrial development.


Because the impact of one new resident is not necessarily the same as the impact of one new
employee, various components of the service population are weighted to reflect their relative
impacts on demand for certain types of facilities.


Service population is intended to approximate the number of people creating a demand for
service on an average day. It is difficult to estimate that number precisely for several reasons.
Some residents work in the City, some residents commute to work outside the City, and some
residents don’t work at paid jobs. Non-residents may be present in the City for work, shopping,
recreation, or any number of other reasons.


In this study, the base weight of 1.0 is assigned to residents. Weights for employees associated
with different types of development are based on estimates of the number of hours per week
businesses of a certain type are in operation.







City of Wildomar Page 2-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Our estimate of the average number of hours per week that residents spend in the City is based
in part on an analysis of Census Bureau data on how many residents work in the city, how many
commute to work outside the City and how many non-residents work in the City. We also assume
the average resident spends four hours a week outside the City for activities like shopping and
recreation.


Census Bureau American Community Survey data for 2018 (the most recent available) show that
74.4% of Wildomar residents between ages 20 and 64 are employed, and that 88% of employed
residents work outside the City. Assuming that out-commuters spend 50 hours a week (10 hours
per day) outside the City for work and commuting and that all residents spend four hours a week
outside the City for shopping and recreation leads us to the conclusion that out-commuters
spend an average of 114 (168 – 54) hours per week in the City. If other residents spend 164 (168-
4) hours per week in the City, the weighted average for all residents is 144.4. Dividing that
number by 168 hours per week gives us a weight of 0.86 for all residents.


This study assumes that retail businesses operate 12 hours a day, 7 days a week (84 hours) and
that other businesses operate only 9 hours a day, 5 days a week (45 hours). The weights assigned
to employees of businesses associated with various types of non-residential development are
based on the hours per week of operation divided by 168 total hours per week. The weight for
the Public/Institutional category is slightly lower than for private non-residential development.
Finally, all of the weights for non-residential development types are multiplied by a factor of 2.0
so that the non-residential share of total service population is in a reasonable range (in this case,
18%).


Peak Hour Trips. The impact of development on a City’s street and highway system is often
measured by the number of peak hour vehicle trips (PHT) per weekday generated by
development. In this study, PHT is used to measure the impact of development on the City’s
street system, including roadways, intersections, bridges and traffic signals. The PHT rates used
in this study are taken from the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) publication, Trip
Generation, 10th edition.


Table 2.1 shows the service population per unit weights and the service population per unit
factors used in this study.







City of Wildomar Page 2-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Existing and Future Development
Tables 2.2 through 2.4 on the following pages present data on existing and future development
in the City of Wildomar. Data from those tables will be used throughout this report. Table 2.2
shows existing development as of January, 2020.


Table 2.1: Key Factors Used in This Study


Development Dev Fl Area Pop per Empl per Svc Pop Svc Pop Pk Hr Trips
Type Units 1 Ratio 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Weight 5 per Unit 6 per Unit 7


Residential, Single-Family DU N/A 3.26 0.860 2.80 0.99
Residential, Multi-Family DU N/A 2.26 0.860 1.94 0.56
Commercial KSF 0.25 2.00 1.000 2.00 3.81
Office KSF 0.33 3.30 0.536 1.77 1.15
Industrial/Business Park KSF 0.35 1.32 0.536 0.71 0.53
Public/Institutional KSF 0.30 2.10 0.476 1.00 1.60


1 Units of development:  DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Expected average floor area ratio (FAR) = square feet of building area / square feet of site area
   based on the 2015 Riverside County General Plan EIR
3 Average population per unit for residential development estimated using data from the U. S.
  Census Bureau American  Community Survey, 2018 five-year estimates and the California Dept.
  of Finance 2020 E-5 report
4 Employees per unit based on factors from Table 4.1-D of the 2015 Riverside County General Plan EIR
5 Service population weight; see discussion in text
6 Residential service population = population per unit X service population weight; non-residential
  service population = employees per unit X service population weight
7 Peak hour trips (PHT) per unit of development from the ITE Trip Generation  Manual, 10th Edition







City of Wildomar Page 2-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Table 2.3 presents a forecast of future development in the City. The numbers in this table
represent the difference between existing development in Table 2.2 and buildout development
in Table 2.4.


Table 2.2: City of Wildomar - Existing Development - January 2020


Development Unit Existing Existing Existing Existing Existing
Types Type Units 1 Pop 2 Empl 3 Svc Pop 4 Pk Hr Trips 5


Residential, Single-Family DU 10,960 35,730 30,727 10,850
Residential, Multi-Family DU 624 1,411 1,213 349
   Subtotal Residential 11,584 37,141 31,940 11,199
Commercial KSF 2,667.5 5,335 5,335 10,163
Office KSF 29.3 97 52 34
Industrial/Business Park KSF 805.0 1,063 570 423
Public/Institutional KSF 1,102.0 2,314 1,102 1,763
   Subtotal Non-Residential 4,604 8,809 7,059 12,383
   Total 37,141 8,809 38,999 23,582


1 Existing residential units from California Department of Finance 1/1/2020 estimates; existing
  non-residential units updated from the 2015 impact fee study using building permit data
2 Existing population = residential units X population per unit from Table 2.1; total existing
  population is consistent with Department of Finance 1/1/2020 estimates
3 Existing employees = non-residential units X employees per unit from Table 2.1
4 Existing service population =  units X service population per unit from Table 2.1
5 Existing peak hour vehicle trips = units X peak hour trips per unit from Table 2.1


Table 2.3: City of Wildomar - Added Development to Buildout


Development Unit Added Added Added Added Added
Types Type Units Pop Empl Svc Pop Pk Hr Trips


Residential, Single-Family DU 4,782 15,589 13,407 4,735
Residential, Multi-Family DU 1,992 4,501 3,871 1,116
   Subtotal Residential 6,774 20,090 17,278 5,851
Commercial KSF 5,682 11,363 11,363 21,647
Office KSF 636 2,098 1,124 731
Industrial/Business Park KSF 3,508 4,630 2,482 1,841
Public/Institutional KSF 1,059 2,224 1,059 1,695
   Subtotal Non-Residential 10,884 20,315 16,028 25,913
   Total 20,090 20,315 33,306 31,764


Note: Figures in Table 2.3 are calculated as the difference between buildout development in
Table 2.4 and existing development in Table 2.2







City of Wildomar Page 2-8
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected buildout development shown in Table 2.4 has been adjusted from the projected
buildout development in the City’s 2015 Impact Fee Study Update based on an analysis of general
plan amendments and zone changes through April 2020.


Growth Potential
The numbers in the foregoing tables indicate that Wildomar is about 65% built out with
residential uses as reflected by the number of residential units and population, and about 30%
built out in terms of non-residential development as reflected by the number of employees and
square feet of non-residential building area.


The fees calculated in subsequent chapters of this report are intended to pay for the capital
facilities needed to serve the additional demand created by future development forecasted in
this chapter.


Table 2.4:  City of Wildomar - Total Development at Buildout


Development Unit Total Total Total Total Total
Types Type Units 1 Pop 2 Empl 3 Svc Pop 4 Pk Hr Trips 5


Residential, Single-Family DU 15,742 51,319 44,134 15,585
Residential, Multi-Family DU 2,616 5,912 5,084 1,465
   Subtotal Residential 18,358 57,231 49,218 17,050
Commercial KSF 8,349 16,698 16,698 31,810
Office KSF 665 2,195 1,176 765
Industrial/Business Park KSF 4,313 5,693 3,052 2,264
Public/Institutional KSF 2,161 4,538 2,161 3,458
   Subtotal Non-Residential 15,488 29,124 23,087 38,296
   Total 57,231 29,124 72,305 55,346


1 Buildout units from the 2015 impact fee study adjusted for zone changes and General Plan
  amendments
2 Buildout population = biuldout residential units X population per unit from Table 2.1
3 Buildout employees = buildout non-residential unitx X employees per unit from Table 2.1
4 Buildout service population =  buildout units X employees per unit from Table 2.1
5i Buildout peak hour vehicle trips = buildout units X peak hour trips per unit from Table 2.1







City of Wildomar Page 3-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 3. Transportation Impact Fees
This chapter calculates two types of transportation impact fees: (1) road impact fees that cover
street improvements, intersection improvements and bridges, and (2) traffic signal impact fees
that also include roundabouts as an alternative to traffic signals.


The improvements listed in Tables 3.1 and 3.5 in this chapter have been identified by the City of
Wildomar Engineering Department based on the City’s Mobility Plan which was adopted on June
30, 2021. Costs used in the impact fee calculations represent future development’s share of
improvement costs.


Costs to be funded by the Western Riverside County Council of Governments (WRCOG)
Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) are shown in this chapter but are excluded from
the calculation of the City’s transportation impact fees. The City has determined that there are
no existing deficiencies in the portions of the City’s street system that will be funded by impact
fees calculated in this chapter.


Service Area
The service area for fees calculated in this chapter is the entire City of Wildomar, and those fees
are intended to apply to all future development in the study area.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the plan-based method discussed in Chapter 1.  Plan-
based fees are calculated by allocating costs for a defined set of improvements to a defined set
of land uses that will be served by the improvements. The costs used to calculate impact fees in
this chapter are for improvements needed to serve future development.


Demand Variable
In this analysis, the impact of new development on the need for street improvements is
represented by new P.M. Peak Hour Trips (PHT) associated with future development. Peak hour
trip generation rates are from the Institution of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation
manual and are based on the P.M. peak hour of the adjacent street.


Level of Service
The improvements listed in this chapter are based on the level of service standard established in
the Wildomar Mobility Element. Specifically, the Mobility Element established Level of Service
(LOS) D as the threshold for all Mobility Plan roadways and intersections but allows LOS E on
Clinton Keith Road between Hidden Springs Road and the I-15 Northbound Ramps due to right-
of-way constraints, and elsewhere as approved by the City Engineer.







City of Wildomar Page 3-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Road Impact Fees
Street, Intersection and Bridge Improvement Costs
Table 3.1 summarizes costs for the street and intersection improvements and bridges, including
bridge widening, used to calculate updated impact fees in this section. Total costs are shown for
each category of improvements. A detailed list of projects and cost estimates is attached in
Appendix A.


The projects listed in Table 3.1 include only improvements beyond the two inside lanes on any
roadway.  The two inside travel lanes across the frontage of any development project are
considered project improvements necessary for access to the development and therefore will be
the direct responsibility of abutting developers on either side of the street.


Any additional improvements beyond two travel lanes, including additional lanes, bike lanes,
parking lanes, frontage improvements and bridge widenings are covered by the impact fees
calculated in this chapter. The categories of improvements eligible to be covered by the road
impact fees, as well as those not eligible for inclusion, are listed below.


Eligible Improvements


 Street improvements outside the two
center lanes


 Class II bike lanes within the
roadway


 Curb and gutter, except as noted


 Bike lane buffers (pavement and
striping) within the roadway


 Sidewalk (6’ maximum width)


 Landscaping (6’ maximum width)
except as noted


 Streetlights (% varies by street)


 Water Quality Best Management
Practices (% varies by street)


 Signage & striping (% varies by
street)


 Intersection improvements (see
discussion below)


Ineligible Improvements


 Two center lanes


 Median pavement


 Raised medians, including curb and
gutter


 Median landscaping


 Drainage improvements (covered
by drainage impact fees)


 Class I trails and multi-use trails
(covered by multi-use trails impact
fees)


 Class IV bike lane barriers (posts,
curbs, etc.)


 Traffic signals and related
improvements (covered by traffic
signal impact fees)


Intersection improvements include costs for left-turn and right-turn lanes at an intersection
where they are required in excess of the standard number of lanes on that roadway classification.
For example, a four-lane roadway with two lanes in each direction may function adequately with
four lanes at an intersection. The inner lanes can function as shared left-turn/through lanes while







City of Wildomar Page 3-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


the outer lanes can function as shared through/right-turn lanes. However, if dedicated turn lanes
beyond the standard lanes are required to meet the level of service criteria, then intersection
improvement costs are calculated for those additional lanes.


Some of the project costs included in Table 3.1 are for improvements that were included in the
previous DIF Study but have since been completed. They are included in the impact fee analysis
because the entire impact fee share of the cost of those projects will not be collected until all
future development projected for the City has been completed. Since those costs are included in
Table 3.1, that table also includes a credit for all of the road impact fees collected by the City
from 2015 to 2021. Note that street improvement costs to be funded by TUMF are not included
in the impact fee cost share in Table 3.1.


Road Impact Fees - Allocation of Costs
In Table 3.2, the total cost from Table 3.1 is initially allocated to all types of future development
based on the share of new peak hour vehicle trips associated with each type of development.
Then, since the costs allocated to the Public/Institutional development category, primarily made
up of public schools, cannot be charged to school districts or other government entities, those
costs are reallocated to residential development to arrive at the impact fee cost basis in the right-
hand column of Table 3.2. The reasons for that re-allocation are further explained below.


Table 3.1: Street, Intersection and Bridge Costs and Impact Fee Share


Cost Total Project TUMF Cost Impact Fee
Component Cost 1 Contribution 1 Cost Share 1


Street Improvements 184,186,389$ 40,138,000$ 99,827,733$
Intersection Improvements 1,812,000$ 0$ 1,812,000$
Bridges 7,152,561$ 0$ 7,152,561$
Credit for Street Impact Fees collected from 2015 to 2021 2 (1,984,974)$
   Total 106,807,320$


1 See detailed project list and cost estimates in Appendix A
2 Street impact fees collected from 2015 to 2021 are credited against the impact
  fee share of improvement costs; see discussion in text







City of Wildomar Page 3-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


A portion of the traffic associated with new development will be generated by public facilities,
mainly public schools. The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees for
transportation improvements on school districts or other government entities.


Since the need for those additional public facilities will be driven almost entirely by increases in
population due to new residential development, the costs initially allocated to
Public/Institutional development in Table 3.2 are reallocated in that table to single family and
multi-family residential development, based on their relative shares of peak hour trip generation.


Costs shown in the “Impact Fee Cost Basis” column of Table 3.2 include the reallocated costs and
are used to calculate impact fees in the next section. The reallocated amounts increase the road
impact fees for residential development by 29%.


Road Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development, by development type, is shown in Table
3.3.  Costs allocated to each type of development in Table 3.2 are divided by the added peak hour
trips generated by that development type to calculate a cost per peak hour trip. Then the cost
per peak hour trip is multiplied by peak hour trips per unit of development to arrive at an impact
fee per unit for each development type.


Table 3.2: Allocation of Costs - Street, Intersection and Bridge Improvements


Development Dev Share of Share of Realloc Impact Fee
Type Units 1 New PHT 2 Cost 3 P/I Cost 4 Cost Basis 5


Residential, Single-Family DU 14.9% 15,920,203$ 4,611,262$ 20,531,465$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 3.5% 3,752,457$ 1,086,894$ 4,839,351$
Commercial KSF 68.1% 72,787,806$ 72,787,806$
Office KSF 2.3% 2,457,174$ 2,457,174$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 5.8% 6,191,524$ 6,191,524$
Public/Institutional KSF 5.3% 5,698,156$ (5,698,156)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 106,807,320$ 0$ 106,807,320$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 New peak hour vehicle trips (PHT) by development type as a percentage of total new peak
  hour vehicle trips; percentages based on added peak hour trip from Table 2.3
3 Share of cost = impact fee cost share from Table 3.1 X share of new trips
4 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
5 Impact fee cost basis = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost







City of Wildomar Page 3-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Road Impact Fees - Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the road impact fees calculated in this chapter can be projected by
applying the impact fees per unit of development from Table 3.3 to forecasted future units as
shown in Table 2.3.  The results are shown in Table 3.4.


Road impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the cost of providing street, intersection
and bridge improvements needed to serve future development.  Assuming that development
occurs and improvements are constructed as anticipated in this study, the revenue projected in
Table 3.4 would approximately cover the total improvement cost shown in Table 3.1, provided
that fees are adjusted periodically to keep pace with changes in construction costs.


Table 3.3: Road Impact Fees per Unit of Development  (Streets, Intersections and Bridges)


Development Dev Impact Fee Added Cost per PHT per Fee per
Type Units 1 Cost Basis 2 Trips 3 Trip 4 Unit 5 Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 20,531,465$ 4,735 4,336.49$ 0.99 4,293.13$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 4,839,351$ 1,116 4,336.49$ 0.56 2,428.44$
Commercial KSF 72,787,806$ 21,647 3,362.54$ 3.81 12,811.27$
Office KSF 2,457,174$ 731 3,362.54$ 1.15 3,866.92$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 6,191,524$ 1,841 3,362.54$ 0.53 1,765.33$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 See Table 3.2
3 Trips added by future development; see Table 2.3
4 Cost per trip = impact fee cost basis / added trips
5 Peak hour trips (PHT) per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Fee per unit of development = cost per peak hour trip X peak hour trips per unit


Table 3.4: Projected Revenue - Road Impact Fees


Development Dev Fee per Future Projected
Type Units 1 Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 4,293.13$ 4,782 20,529,748$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 2,428.44$ 1,992 4,837,452$
Commercial KSF 12,811.27$ 5,682 72,787,871$
Office KSF 3,866.92$ 636 2,458,201$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 1,765.33$ 3,508 6,192,778$
   Total 106,806,050$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet
   of building area
2 Fee per unit of development; see Table 3.3
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 3-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Traffic Signal Impact Fees
Traffic Signal and Roundabout Improvement Costs
Table 3.5 summarizes costs for traffic signals and roundabouts used to calculate impact fees in
this section. Roundabouts are used as an alternative to traffic signals in some situations. A
detailed list of traffic signals and roundabouts with cost estimates is attached in Appendix A.


Some of the project costs included in Table 3.5 are for improvements that were included in the
previous DIF Study but have since been completed. They are included in the traffic signal impact
fee analysis because the entire impact fee share of the cost of those projects will not be collected
until all future development projected for the City has been completed. Since those costs are
included in Table 3.5, that table also includes a credit for all of the traffic signal impact fees
collected by the City from 2015 to 2021.


Traffic Signal Impact Fees - Allocation of Costs
In Table 3.6 on the next page, the total cost from Table 3.5 is initially allocated to all types of
future development based on the share of new peak hour vehicle trips associated with each type
of development. The reasons for that re-allocation are explained in the previous section on Road
Impact Fees.


Table 3.5: Traffic Signal and Roundabout Costs


Cost Total Project TUMF Cost Impact Fee
Component Cost 1 Contribution 1 Cost Share 1


Traffic Signals/Roundabouts 12,229,500$ 0$ 12,229,500$
Credit for Traffic Signal Impact Fees collected from 2015 to 2021 2 (358,694)$
   Total 11,870,806$


1 See detailed project list and cost estimates in Appendix A
2 Traffic signal impact fees collected from 2015 to 2021 are credited against the
  impact fee share of improvement costs; see discussion in text







City of Wildomar Page 3-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Costs shown in the “Impact Fee Cost Basis” column of Table 3.6 include the reallocated costs and
are used to calculate impact fees in the next section. The reallocated amounts increase the traffic
signal impact fees for residential development by 29%.


Traffic Signal Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of traffic signal impact fees per unit of development, by development type, is
shown in Table 3.7.  Costs allocated to each type of development in Table 3.6 are divided by the
added peak hour trips generated by that development type to calculate a cost per peak hour trip.
Then the cost per peak hour trip is multiplied by peak hour trips per unit of development to arrive
at an impact fee per unit for each development type.


Table 3.6: Allocation of Costs - Traffic Signals and Roundabouts


Development Dev Share of Share of Realloc Impact Fee
Type Units 1 New PHT 2 Cost 3 P/I Cost 4 Cost Basis 5


Residential, Single-Family DU 14.9% 1,769,407$ 512,506$ 2,281,913$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 3.5% 417,057$ 120,800$ 537,856$
Commercial KSF 68.1% 8,089,801$ 8,089,801$
Office KSF 2.3% 273,096$ 273,096$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 5.8% 688,140$ 688,140$
Public/Institutional KSF 5.3% 633,306$ (633,306)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 11,870,806$ 0$ 11,870,806$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 New peak hour vehicle trips (PHT) by development type as a percentage of total new peak
  hour vehicle trips; percentages based on data from Table 2.3
3 Share of cost = impact fee cost share from Table 3.5 X share of new trips
4 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
5 Final impact fee cost = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost


Table 3.7: Traffic Signal Impact Fees per Unit of Development


Development Dev Impact Fee Added Cost per PHT per Fee per
Type Units 1 Cost Basis 2 Trips 3 Trip 4 Unit 5 Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 2,281,913$ 4,735 481.97$ 0.99 477.15$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 537,856$ 1,116 481.97$ 0.56 269.90$
Commercial KSF 8,089,801$ 21,647 373.72$ 3.81 1,423.87$
Office KSF 273,096$ 731 373.72$ 1.15 429.78$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 688,140$ 1,841 373.72$ 0.53 196.20$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 See Table 3.6
3 Trips added by future development; see Table 2.3
4 Cost per trip = impact fee cost basis / added trips
5 Peak hour trips (PHT) per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Fee per unit of development = cost per peak hour trip X peak hour trips per unit







City of Wildomar Page 3-8
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Traffic Signal Impact Fees - Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the traffic signal impact fees calculated in this chapter can be projected
by applying the impact fees per unit of development from Table 3.7 to forecasted future units as
shown in Table 2.3.  The results are shown in Table 3.8.


Traffic signal impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the cost of providing traffic
signals and roundabouts needed to serve future development.  Assuming that development
occurs and improvements are constructed as anticipated in this study, the revenue projected in
Table 3.8 would approximately cover the total improvement cost shown in Table 3.5, provided
that fees are adjusted periodically to keep pace with changes in construction costs.


Updating the Fees
Impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated costs for street,
intersection and bridge improvements and for traffic signals and roundabouts. We recommend
that the fees be reviewed and adjusted annually using local cost data or an index such as the
Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (CCI). See the Implementation Chapter for
more on indexing of fees.


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees to make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


Table 3.8: Projected Revenue - Traffic Signal Impact Fees


Development Dev Fee per Future Projected
Type Units 1 Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 477.15$ 4,782 2,281,731$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 269.90$ 1,992 537,641$
Commercial KSF 1,423.87$ 5,682 8,089,789$
Office KSF 429.78$ 636 273,211$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 196.20$ 3,508 688,270$
   Total 11,870,641$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet
   of building area
2 Fee per unit of development; see Table 3.7
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 3-9
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.) The
following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for street and intersection improvement, bridges, traffic
signals and roundabouts in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to mitigate the impact of new
development on the need for transportation improvements in the City.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to construct improvements to
the City’s transportation system to accommodate additional traffic associated with new
development in Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. New development increases traffic volumes and creates a need for
transportation improvements to maintain an adequate level of service on the City’s street
system. Without those improvements, the increase in traffic associated with new development
would subject the City to increased traffic congestion and a reduction in air quality.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the road and traffic signal impact fees charged to a
development project will depend on the increase in peak hour vehicle trips associated with that
project.  The fees per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development
are based on the P. M. Peak Hour Trip generation rate per unit for that type of development.
Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on the City’s
transportation system.







City of Wildomar Page 4-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 4. Police Impact Fees
This chapter calculates impact fees for future police facilities to serve additional development in
Wildomar. The City contracts with the Riverside County Sheriff’s Department (RCSD) for law
enforcement services and Wildomar is currently served by RCSD personnel from a County
substation in nearby Lake Elsinore.


Although the City expects that the existing Sheriff’s Department substation in Lake Elsinore will
continue to serve Wildomar, the City will need additional space for law enforcement as it grows.
The City intends to construct a substation in the City for that purpose. While no specific location
has been identified, it is probable that the station would be co-located with a new City Hall
building, discussed in Chapter 8. The cost of the substation will be the responsibility of the City.


Service Area
Fees addressed in this chapter are calculated for a single citywide service area encompassing the
entire study area defined in Chapter 2. Police impact fees are intended to apply to all new
development in the study area.


Demand Variable
In this chapter, service population is used in the impact fee calculations to represent service
demand created by all types of development for services supported by Police facilities. See
Chapter 2 for a detailed discussion of the makeup of the service population used in this study.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the standard-based method discussed in Chapter 1.
Standard-based fees are calculated using a specified level of service as the basis for defining
facility needs related to future development. In this case, the standard used to calculate Police
impact fees is the existing level of service, defined as the existing relationship between the City’s
service population and the law enforcement facility space.


Level of Service
As shown in the City of Wildomar 2014 Impact Fee Study, the existing Lake Elsinore Sheriff’s
station is approximately 27,000 square feet in size. Approximately 20% of the calls served by that
station originate in Wildomar.  Thus, it is reasonable to assume that the amount of facility space
needed to serve Wildomar at present is 20% of 27,000 square feet, or 5,400 square feet, as shown
in Table 4.1.


Table 4.1 calculates the existing level of service in terms of square feet of facility space per capita.
That standard is based largely on the relationship between existing facility space and existing
service population. However, the amount of additional square footage that can be funded by
cash on hand in the Police Impact Fee Fund is added to the existing square footage in Table 4.1
to reflect that fact that the City has funded a level of service somewhat higher than that indicated
by actual existing square feet of facility space.







City of Wildomar Page 4-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Facility Costs
Table 4.2 shows the police facility costs that will be used as the basis for the impact fee
calculations. Using the square feet per capita from Table 4.1 and the future service population
from Table 2.3, Table 4.2 shows that the square feet of facility space needed to serve future
development is 5,392.  The impact fee cost basis is the product of the new facility square footage
and the estimated cost per square foot.


Allocation of Costs
As shown in Table 4.3, the initial allocation of Police facility costs to development is based on the
percentage of added service population associated with each type of development.  However,
the costs allocated to the Public/Institutional development category, primarily made up of public
schools, cannot be recovered through impact fees, so those costs are reallocated as explained
below.


The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees on the construction of facilities by
school districts or other government entities.  And since those public facilities are needed almost
entirely to support residents of the City, the costs initially allocated to Public/Institutional


Table 4.1: Square Feet per Capita - Police Facilities


Existing Funded Existing Square Feet
Square Feet 1 Square Feet 2 Service Pop 3 per Capita 4


5,400 913 38,999 0.162


1 Existing square feet of Lake Elsinore Sheriff's substation serving
  Wildomar; see discussion in text
2 Additional square feet of space that can be funded with the existing
  balance of $515,948 in the police impact fee fund, based on the cost
  per square foot in Table 4.2
3 See Table 2.2
4 Square feet per capita of service population = existing square feet /
  existing service population


Table 4.2: New Police Facility Costs


Square Feet Future New Facility Cost per Impact Fee
per Capita 1 Service Pop 2 Square Feet 3 Square Foot 4 Cost Basis 5


0.162 33,306 5,392 $565.00 $3,046,252


1 See Table 4.1
2 Future service population; see Table 2.3
3 Square feet of new facility space needed to serve future development at the
  existing level of service
4 Estimated cost per square foot for a new police substation in Wildomar
5 Impact fee cost basis = new facility square feet X cost per square foot







City of Wildomar Page 4-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


development are reallocated in Table 4.3, to single family and multi-family residential
development based on their relative shares of service population.


The reallocated costs in Table 4.3 are used to calculate the impact fees. The effect of the
reallocation is to increase the impact fees for residential development by about 6.1%.


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development by development type is shown in Table
4.4. Costs allocated to each type of development from Table 4.2 are divided by the added service
population for that development type to calculate a cost per capita.  Then the cost per capita is
multiplied by the service population per unit of development to arrive at a fee per unit.


Table 4.3: Allocation of Costs - Police Facility


Development % of Share of Realloc Final Cost
Type Svc Pop 1 Facility Cost 2 P/I Cost 3 Allocation 4


Residential, Single-Family 40.3% 1,226,238$ 75,158$ 1,301,397$
Residential, Multi-Family 11.6% 354,052$ 21,700$ 375,752$
Commercial 34.1% 1,039,289$ 1,039,289$
Office 3.4% 102,804$ 102,804$
Industrial/Business Park 7.5% 227,010$ 227,010$
Public/Institutional 3.2% 96,859$ (96,859)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 3,046,252$ 0$ 3,046,252$


1 Added service population by development type as a percentage of total added
   service population; percentages based on data from Table 2.3
2 Share of facility cost = impact fee cost basis from Table 4.2 X % of service pop
3 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
4 Final allocation = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost


Table 4.4: Impact Fees per Unit of Development - Police Facility


Development Final Cost Added Cost per Svc Pop Impact Fee
Type Units 1 Allocation 2 Svc Pop 3 Capita 4 per Unit 5 per Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 1,301,397$ 13,407 97.07$ 2.80 272.14$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 375,752$ 3,871 97.07$ 1.94 188.66$
Commercial KSF 1,039,289$ 11,363 91.46$ 2.00 182.93$
Office KSF 102,804$ 1,124 91.46$ 1.77 161.78$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 227,010$ 2,482 91.46$ 0.71 64.71$
Public/Institutional KSF 0$ 1,059 0.00$ 1.00 0.00$


1 DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Final cost allocation; see Table 4.3
3 Added service population; see Table 2.3
4 Cost per capita = final cost allocation / added service population
5 Service population per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Impact fee per unit of development = cost per capita X service population per unit







City of Wildomar Page 4-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the Police impact fees calculated in this chapter can be projected by
applying the fees per unit by development type from Table 4.4 to forecasted future units from
Table 2.3.  The results are shown in Table 4.5.


Impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the future development’s share of the cost of
a new Police substation. Assuming that development occurs and facilities are constructed as
anticipated in this study, and that the fees are adjusted periodically as discussed in the next
section to keep pace with changes in land and construction costs, the revenue projected in Table
4.5 would cover approximately 100% of the cost of a facility that maintains the existing level of
service.


Updating the Fees
The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated costs for land and
construction. We recommend that the fees be reviewed periodically and adjusted as needed to
keep pace with changing costs for land and construction using local cost data or an index such as
the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index (BCI).


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


Table 4.5: Projected Revenue - Police Facility Impact Fees


Development Impact Fee Future Projected
Type Units 1 per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 272.14$ 4,782 1,301,373$
Residential, Single-Family DU 188.66$ 1,992 375,811$
Commercial KSF 182.93$ 5,682 1,039,326$
Office KSF 161.78$ 636 102,844$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 64.71$ 3,508 227,003$
   Total 3,046,356$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Impact fee per unit of development; see Table 4.4
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 4-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for a Police substation in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of a Police substation for Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of a Police substation for Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All development contributes to the need for services supported by
Police station. The impact fees calculated in this chapter would recover only future
development’s proportionate share of the cost of a Police substation.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the Police facilities impact fees charged to a
development project will depend on the increase in service population associated with that
project. The fees per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development
are based on the estimated average service population per unit for that type of development in
Wildomar. Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on
the need for a Police substation.







City of Wildomar Page 5-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 5. Fire Protection Facilities and Equipment
This chapter addresses impact fees for fire protection facilities needed to serve future
development in Wildomar.  The City of Wildomar contracts with the Riverside County Fire
Department (RCFD) for fire protection services, including fire prevention, fire suppression,
emergency medical response and related services.   Fire protection services are provided to
Wildomar by RCFD using a regional system of fire protection facilities and equipment.


At present there is one fire station (Station #61) in the City, located southwest of the I-15 freeway
on Gruwell Street, between Grand Avenue and Palomar Street. That station was owned by
Riverside County and deeded to the City upon incorporation. RCFD has identified a need for
another fire station north of the I-15 freeway in Wildomar as the City grows. In addition, the
existing Fire Station #61 is outdated and undersized and badly needs to be replaced. The City has
been in discussions with Riverside County and RCFD regarding plans to replace Station #61 with
a larger building on a larger site. It is clear under Wildomar’s contract with RCFD that the City will
be responsible for constructing any new fire stations needed to serve the City.


Some firefighting apparatus and vehicles assigned to fire stations in Wildomar are owned by the
County, but the City has also purchased some vehicles and will be responsible for purchasing a
new Type I engine for the future fire station east of I-15.


Service Area
Fees for fire protection facilities and equipment are calculated for a single citywide service area
encompassing the entire study area defined in Chapter 2.


Although individual fire stations are assigned to provide the initial emergency response in a
specific area, resources from multiple fire stations are often needed to provide an adequate
response to an emergency call. A first alarm response to a small structure fire can require
resources from as many as five fire stations. So, it makes sense to treat the entire City as a single
service area for purposes of calculating fire protection impact fees.


That approach is further supported by the fact that calculating separate impact fees for individual
fire stations could result in substantially different impact fees for development in different parts
of the City receiving essentially the same level of service. This analysis will allocate costs for fire
protection facilities citywide, so the impact fees for a particular type of development will be the
same throughout the City.


Demand Variable
In this chapter, service population is used in the impact fee calculations to represent service
demand created by all types of development for services supported by Fire facilities.  See Chapter
2 for a detailed discussion of the makeup of the service population used in this study.







City of Wildomar Page 5-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Level of Service
The critical measure of level of service for fire protection and emergency medical services is
emergency response time. The number of fire stations needed to serve a particular area with
acceptable response times is determined by specific conditions within the area and is affected
heavily by the size of the area to be served. In Wildomar’s case, the City and the Riverside County
Fire Department have determined the number and location of fire stations needed to provide an
acceptable level of service in the City. The impact fee analysis in this chapter is based on the
number of fire stations needed to serve the City at buildout.


Methodology
The method used to calculate impact fees in this chapter is the plan-based method discussed in
Chapter 1. That method calculates impact fees by allocating the cost of specific facilities to the
development served by those facilities. In this case, the cost of existing and future fire stations
will be allocated to existing and future development so that all development in the City will share
proportionately in the cost of those facilities. The fire protection impact fees calculated in this
chapter represent new development’s proportionate share of the cost of Wildomar’s fire
protection facilities, including some apparatus and vehicles.


Facility and Equipment Costs
Table 5.1 on the next page lists existing and future fire protection facilities in Wildomar including
costs for buildings and land. Estimated costs for two future fire station buildings are based on
square foot cost estimates provided by RCFD. Land cost is based on an estimate of $100,000 per
acre. The depreciated value of the existing Fire Station #61 is shown as a credit against the cost
of the two future fire stations because the City will have the opportunity to reuse that building
for other purposes.


The impact fee cost basis shown in the total right-hand column of Table 5.1 will be used in the
impact fee calculations.


Table 5.1: Existing and Future Fire Stations


Constr Bldg Site Building Cost Useful Est Land Depreciated Impact Fee
Facility Date Sq Ft Acres or Repl Cost 1 Life 2 Cost/Value 3  Bldg Cost 4 Cost Basis 5


Future East Side Station Future 9,000 2.00 6,255,000$ 50 200,000$ 6,255,000$ 6,455,000$
Future West Side Station Future 9,000 2.00 6,255,000$ 50 200,000$ 6,255,000$ 6,455,000$
Credit for Existing Station 2001 4,300 0.50 (2,988,500)$ 50 (50,000)$ (1,793,100)$ (1,843,100)$
  Total 9,521,500$ 350,000$ 10,716,900$ 11,066,900$


1 Estimated building replacement cost for existing and future fire stations ($695.00 per square foot) provided by
  the Riverside County FireDepartment based on for recent estimate for a new fire station in Menifee
2 Assumed useful life of buildings in years
3 Estimated land cost (future stations) or land value (existing station) based on $100,000 per acre
4 Depreciated building replacement cost for existing station using straight-line depreciation over the useful life
  of the asset; no depreciation applies to future building cost
5 Impact fee cost basis = new building cost or depreciated building replacement cost + estimated land cost or value







City of Wildomar Page 5-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Table 5.2 lists existing City-owned vehicles used by the Fire Department. The cost of the existing
vehicles is depreciated for use in the impact fee calculations. Costs for County-owned apparatus
and vehicles are not included in this analysis.


Table 5.3 lists future apparatus to be purchased by the City for assignment to the future East side
fire station when it is constructed.


Table 5.4 summarizes the costs to be used in the impact fee calculations for the assets listed in
Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 above.


Allocation of Costs
As shown in Table 5.5, the initial allocation of fire protection facility costs to development is
based on the percentage of buildout service population associated with each type of
development.  However, the costs allocated to the Public/Institutional development category,


Table 5.2: Existing Fire Apparatus and Vehicles


Model Useful Replacement Depr Repl Impact Fee
Year Description Life (Yrs) Cost 1 Cost 2 Cost Basis 3


2019 Paramedic Squad Body 10 $372,600 $335,340 $335,340


1 Replacement cost provided by the Riverside County Fire Department
2 Depreciated replacement cost using straight-line depreciation over the asset's useful life
3 Impact fee cost basis equals the depreciated replacement cost


Table 5.3: Future Fire Apparatus, Vehicles and Equipment


No. of Est Cost Impact Fee
Description Units per Unit 1 Cost Basis 2


New Type 1 Engine 1 775,000$ 775,000$
Utility Vehicle 2 37,000$ 74,000$
  Total 849,000$


1 Estimated cost provided by the Riverside County Fire Department
2 Impact fee cost basis = number of units X estimated cost per unit


Table 5.4: Impact Fee Cost Basis - Existing and Future Assets


Impact Fee
Component Cost Basis 1


Existing and Future Fire Stations 11,066,900$
Existing - Fire Apparatus and Vehicles 335,340$
Future - Fire Apparatus and Vehicles 849,000$
   Total 12,251,240$


1 See Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3







City of Wildomar Page 5-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


primarily made up of public schools, cannot be recovered through impact fees, so those costs are
reallocated as explained below.


The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees on the construction of facilities by
school districts or other government entities.  And since those public facilities are needed almost
entirely to support residents of the City, the costs initially allocated to Public/Institutional
development are reallocated in Table 5.5, to single family and multi-family residential
development, based on their relative shares of service population.


The reallocated costs are used to calculate the impact fees. The effect is to increase the impact
fees for residential development by about 4.4%.


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development by development type is shown in Table
5.6. Costs allocated to each type of development from Table 5.5 are divided by the added service
population for that development type to calculate a cost per capita.  Then the cost per capita is
multiplied by the service population per unit of development to arrive at an impact fee per unit.


Table 5.5: Allocation of Costs - Fire Protection Assets


Development % of Share of Realloc Final
Type Svc Pop 1 Cost 2 P/I Cost 3 Allocation 4


Residential, Single-Family 61.0% 7,477,992$ 328,334$ 7,806,326$
Residential, Multi-Family 7.0% 861,425$ 37,822$ 899,247$
Commercial 23.1% 2,829,282$ 2,829,282$
Office 1.6% 199,260$ 199,260$
Industrial/Business Park 4.2% 517,126$ 517,126$
Public/Institutional 3.0% 366,156$ (366,156)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 12,251,240$ 0$ 12,251,240$


1 Buildout service population by development type as a percentage of total
  service population; percentages based on data from Table 2.4
2 Share of impact fee cost basis from Table 5.4 X % of service population
3 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
4 Final allocation = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost







City of Wildomar Page 5-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the Fire impact fees calculated in this chapter can be projected by
applying the fees per unit by development type from Table 5.6 to forecasted future units from
Table 2.3. The results are shown in Table 5.7 on the next page.


Assuming development occurs, and facilities are constructed as anticipated in this study, and that
the fees are adjusted periodically as discussed in the next section to keep pace with changes in
land and construction costs, the revenue projected in Table 5.7 would cover approximately 44%
of the costs for the planned future fire stations and a new Type I engine.


Table 5.6: Fire Impact Fees per Unit of Development


Development Final Buildout Cost per Svc Pop Impact Fee
Type Units 1 Allocation 2 Svc Pop 3 Capita 4 per Unit 5 per Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 7,806,326$ 44,134 176.88$ 2.80 495.89$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 899,247$ 5,084 176.88$ 1.94 343.78$
Commercial KSF 2,829,282$ 16,698 169.44$ 2.00 338.88$
Office KSF 199,260$ 1,176 169.44$ 1.77 299.70$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 517,126$ 3,052 169.44$ 0.71 119.88$
Public/Institutional KSF 0$ 2,161 0.00$ 1.00 0.00$


1 DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Final cost allocation; see Table 5.5
3 Buildout service population; see Table 2.4
4 Cost per capita = final allocation / buildout service population
5 Service population per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Impact fee per unit of development = cost per capita X service population per unit


Table 5.7: Projected Revenue - Fire Impact Fees


Development Impact Fee Future Projected
Type Units 1 per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 495.89$ 4,782 2,371,346$
Residential, Single-Family DU 343.78$ 1,992 684,810$
Commercial KSF 338.88$ 5,682 1,925,364$
Office KSF 299.70$ 636 190,519$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 119.88$ 3,508 420,539$
   Total 5,592,578$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Impact fee per unit of development; see Table 5.6
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = impact fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 5-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Updating the Fees
The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated costs for land and
construction as well as Fire Department apparatus and vehicles. We recommend that the fees be
reviewed annually and adjusted as needed to keep pace with changing prices. Costs for
construction can be updated using local cost data or an index such as the Engineering News
Record Building Cost Index (BCI). Costs for other assets can be adjusted using locally available
data or vendor estimates.


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for fire protection facilities and equipment in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of fire protection facilities and equipment for Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of fire protection facilities and equipment for Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All development contributes to the need for services supported by
Fire Department facilities and equipment. The impact fees calculated in this chapter would







City of Wildomar Page 5-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


recover only future development’s proportionate share of the cost of additional fire protection
facilities and equipment.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the Fire impact fees charged to a development project
will depend on the increase in service population associated with that project. The fees per unit
of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development are based on the
estimated average service population per unit for that type of development in Wildomar. Thus,
the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on the need for fire
protection facilities and equipment provided by the City.







City of Wildomar Page 6-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 6. Parks
This chapter addresses fees to fund park land acquisition and park improvements to serve the
added population associated with new residential development in Wildomar.


Park Land Acquisition. For residential development that involves a subdivision or parcel map, the
Quimby Act authorizes cities and counties to require dedication of park land or payment of fees
in lieu of dedication. However, some residential development projects may not involve a
subdivision or parcel map and would not be subject to those requirements. For residential
development projects that do not involve a subdivision or parcel map, the City can choose to
impose an impact fee for park land acquisition that is equivalent to the Quimby Act in-lieu fee.


Park Improvements. Developing a park requires both land and improvements. The fees discussed
in the previous paragraph cover the cost of land acquisition, but not the cost of improvements.
In this chapter, a separate impact fee is calculated for park improvements. That fee is intended
to apply to all residential development, in addition to in-lieu or impact fees for park land
acquisition.


The Quimby Act
Under the Quimby Act (Government Code Section 66477), the City may, by ordinance, “require
the dedication of land or impose a requirement for payment of fees in lieu thereof, or a
combination of both, for park or recreational purposes as a condition of approval of a tentative
tract map or parcel map….”  The provisions of the Quimby Act apply only to residential
subdivisions.


An ordinance imposing dedication and fee requirements under the Quimby Act must contain
“definite standards for determining the proportion of a subdivision to be dedicated and the
amount of any fee to be paid in lieu thereof.”


Before imposing these requirements, the City must have adopted a general plan or specific plan
containing policies and standards for parks and recreation facilities.  The dedicated land and/or
in-lieu fees “are to be used only for the purpose of developing new or rehabilitating existing
neighborhood or community park or recreational facilities to serve the subdivision (paying the
fees).” Fees can be used for parks and recreational facilities that do not serve the subdivision if
certain requirements are satisfied.  That does not mean that parks or recreational facilities
acquired or constructed with the fees must be exclusively for the use of the subdivision paying
the fees.


The Quimby Act provides that only in-lieu fees, not land dedication requirements, may be applied
to subdivision of less than 50 parcels.  Otherwise, the City may choose to require either land
dedication or payment of in-lieu fees or a combination of the two.


The City of Wildomar has adopted a Quimby Act ordinance imposing requirements for land
dedication or fees in lieu of dedication on residential subdivisions. That ordinance is codified in







City of Wildomar Page 6-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Section 16.20.020 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. The standard used in that ordinance is 3.0
acres per thousand population or 0.003 acres per capita.


The ordinance provides that fees in lieu of dedication are to be based on the fair market value of
the land that otherwise would be dedicated. That fair market value is to be determined by the
City Council. The ordinance also provides that the City Council may, by resolution, determine a
fixed fair market value that will apply to all in-lieu fee calculations.


Many cities in California standardize fees in lieu of park land acquisition by adopting a fixed fair
market value for all in lieu fees. This report calculates standardized in lieu fees that may be
adopted by the City Council if it chooses to do so.


Service Area
In this study, park in-lieu fees and impact fees are calculated for a single citywide service area
encompassing the entire study area defined in Chapter 2.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the method specified in the Quimby Act to calculate
park land dedication requirements and fees in lieu of park land dedication.  That method is
identical to the standard-based method discussed in Chapter 1. In this chapter, fees are
calculated based on a specified relationship between population and park acreage.


Because population is used as a demand variable in these fee calculations, and added population
is associated with residential development, the fees calculated in this chapter apply only to
residential development.


Demand Variable
Level-of-service standards for parks are almost universally based on population.  In addition, the
Quimby Act specifies that park land dedication/in-lieu fee standards must be based on the
relationship between park acreage and population. Consequently, population will be used as the
demand variable for all park in-lieu fees and impact fees calculated in this chapter.


Existing Park Assets
Table 6.1 list’s the City’s existing park assets.







City of Wildomar Page 6-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Existing Acres per Capita
Table 6.2 calculates existing park acres per capita using both improved park acreage and total
park acreage. That table also converts acres per capita into acres per 1,000 residents, the form
in which this relationship is commonly stated.


Level of Service Standard
The Quimby Act provides that park land dedication requirements and in-lieu fees may be based
on a ratio of at least 3.0 acres per thousand residents, and may increase to a maximum of 5.0
acres per thousand to match the existing ratio if the existing ratio (as of the last Census) exceeds
3.0 acres per thousand.


In this case, as shown in Table 6.2 above, the current ratio of park acres to population in
Wildomar, whether based on improved park acreage or total park acreage, is below 3.0 acres per
1,000. So, a ratio of 3.0 acres per thousand residents is used here to calculate the park land in-
lieu fees. The City’s Park Master Plan also establishes a standard of 3.0 acres of parks per 1,000
residents, so the same standard will be used to calculate impact fees for park land acquisition
(for non-subdivision projects) and for park improvements.


Table 6.3 shows the acres per unit factors that will be used in the calculation of in-lieu fees and
impact fees in this chapter.


Table 6.1: Existing Parks


 Existing Improved Total
Parks Acres Acres


Marna O'Brien Park 8.94 8.94
Regency Heritage Park 3.26 3.26
Windsong Park 2.07 2.07
Malaga Park 0.40 0.40
27-Acre Park 0.00 27.00
11-Acre Park 0.00 11.00
  Total 14.67 52.67


Source: City of Wildomar Community Services Department


Table 6.2: Improved Park Acres per 1,000 Residents


Existing Existing Acres Acres
Component Acres 1 Population 2 per Capita 3 per 1000 4


Improved Park Acres 14.67 37,141 0.00039 0.39
Total Park Acres 52.67 37,141 0.00142 1.42


1 Existing acres of parks in Wildomar; see Table 6.1
2 Existing population; see Table 2.2
3 Acres per capita = existing acres / existing population
4 Acres per 1,000 residents =  acres per capita X 1,000







City of Wildomar Page 6-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


In-Lieu Fees and Impact Fees per Unit
Park Land In-Lieu Fees and Impact Fees. Table 6.4 calculates park land in-lieu fees and park land
impact fees per unit, based on the acres-per-unit factors from Table 6.3 and the estimated
average cost per acre to acquire park land in Wildomar. Because the park land in-lieu fees and
impact fees are based on the same level of service standard, those fees are identical.


However, it should be noted that the park land in-lieu fees are imposed as part of the subdivision
approval process while park land impact fees for non-subdivision projects are imposed as a
condition of other land use approvals.


Park Improvement Impact Fees. Table 6.5 calculates park improvement impact fees based on
the acres-per-unit factors from Table 6.3 and the estimated average cost per acre for park
improvements in Wildomar. The improvement cost per acre used in Table 6.5 is substantially
less than the estimated cost per acre for planned improvements to Wildomar’s Regency Heritage
Park. The estimated cost for those improvements ranged from $1.45 million per acre to $2.3
million per acre.


Table 6.3: Acres per Unit for Park In-Lieu and Impact Fees


Development Acres per Persons Acres
Type Units 1 Capita 2 per Unit 3 per Unit 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 0.003 3.26 0.0098
Residential, Multi-Family DU 0.003 2.26 0.0068


1 DU = dwelling units
2 Acres per capita based on a standard of 3.0 acres per 1,000 residents
3 Persons per dwelling unit; see Table 2.1
4 Acres per unit = acres per capita X persons per unit


Table 6.4: Park Land In-Lieu Fees and Park Land Impact Fees per Unit


Development Dev Acres per Land Cost In-Lieu/Impact
Type Units 1 Unit 2 per Acre 3 Fee per Unit 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 0.0098 $100,000 $978.00
Residential, Multi-Family DU 0.0068 $100,000 $678.00


1 DU = dwelling units
2 Acres per unit; see Table 6.3
3 Estimated cost per acre to acquire land for parks
4 Park in-lieu or impact fee per unit = acres per unit X cost per acre







City of Wildomar Page 6-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected Revenue
Park Land In-Lieu Fees and Impact Fees. Table 6.6 calculates projected revenue from the park
land in-lieu fees and park land impact fees. It is not known what percentage of future residential
development will pay park land in-lieu fees vs. impact fees, but since those fees are identical, that
information is not required to project revenue.


Park Improvement Impact Fees. Table 6.7 calculates projected revenue from the park
improvement impact fees.


Table 6.5: Park Improvement Impact Fees per Unit


Development Dev Acres per Imprv  Cost Impact
Type Units 1 Unit 2 per Acre 3 Fee per Unit 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 0.0098 $1,000,000 $9,780.00
Residential, Multi-Family DU 0.0068 $1,000,000 $6,780.00


1 DU = dwelling units
2 Acres per unit; see Table 6.3
3 Estimated cost per acre for park improvements
4 Park impact fee per unit = acres per unit X cost per acre


Table 6.6: Projected Revenue - Park Land In-Lieu/Impact Fees


Development In-Lieu/Impact Future Projected
Type Units 1 Fee per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU $978.00 4,782 4,676,796$
Residential, Multi-Family DU $678.00 1,992 1,350,576$
Total Projected Revenue 6,027,372$


1 DU = dwelling unit
2  See Table 6.4
3 See Table 2.3, Chapter 2
4 Projected revenue = in-lieu or impact per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 6-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Updating the Fees
The in-lieu fees and impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated cost
of park land and improvements. We recommend that the fees be reviewed periodically and
adjusted as needed to keep pace with changing costs for land and improvements using local cost
data or an index such as the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (CCI)


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for parks in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to provide additional parks to
mitigate the impacts of new development in the City.


Table 6.7: Projected Revenue - Park Improvement Impact Fees


Development Impact Future Projected
Type Units 1 Fee per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU $9,780.00 4,782 46,767,960$
Residential, Multi-Family DU $6,780.00 1,992 13,505,760$
Total Projected Revenue 60,273,720$


1 DU = dwelling unit
2  See Table 6.5
3 See Table 2.3, Chapter 2
4 Projected revenue =  impact per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 6-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to provide additional parks to
serve the needs of additional population associated with new residential development in
Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. New development increases the need for parks to maintain the
existing level of service, as described earlier in this chapter. Without additional parks, the
increase in population associated with new residential development would result in a reduction
in the level of service provided to all residents of the City.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the Parks and Recreation impact fees charged to a
residential development project will depend on the increase in population associated with that
project.  The fees per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of residential
development are based on the estimated average population per unit for that type of
development in Wildomar. Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact
of that project on the need for parks in the City.







City of Wildomar Page 7-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 7. Community Center
This chapter calculates impact fees for a future Community Center in Wildomar. Plans have not
been developed for the community center, so this chapter uses conservative estimates of the
size and cost of such a facility. When completed, the community center will serve both existing
and future development in the City. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will cover only
future development’s proportionate share of the cost of the community center.


Service Area
Fees addressed in this chapter are calculated for a single citywide service area encompassing the
entire study area defined in Chapter 2. Community center impact fees are intended to apply to
all new residential development in the study area.


Demand Variable
In this chapter, population is used in the impact fee calculations to represent the need created
by residential development for a community center in Wildomar. Population per-unit factors
from Table 2.1 in Chapter 2 are used to calculate impact fees for the community center.


Level of Service
The City has not adopted an explicit level of service standard for a future community center.
However, the approximate size needed for a future community center was estimated in the City’s
2014 impact fee study based on a review of the relationship between community center size and
population in similarly situated cities. That standard of 0.4 square feet of building area per capita
is also used in this update.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the plan-based method discussed in Chapter 1.  Plan-
based fees are calculated using the cost of specific facilities needed to serve a certain increment
of development. In this case, costs for the future community center are allocated to both existing
and future residential development, so the impact fees reflect only future development’s share
of total facility cost


Facility Costs
Table 7.1 shows the size and estimated cost of the future community center needed to serve the
projected population of the City at buildout. As discussed above, the size of that building is based
on analysis done for the City’s 2014 impact fee study. A copy of the 2014 Impact Fee Study report
can be obtained from the City of Wildomar Engineering Department.







City of Wildomar Page 7-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Cost per Capita
Table 7.2 calculates the cost per capita for the community center using the facility cost from Table
7.1 and the buildout population from Table 2.4 in Chapter 2.


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
Table 7.3. calculates impact fees per unit by development type using the cost per capita cost from
Table 7.2 and the population per unit from Table 2.1 in Chapter 2.


Table 7.1: Future Community Center - Estimated Cost


Community Center Bldg Cost per Estimated Estimated Facility
Square Feet 1 Square Foot 2 Building Cost 3 Land Cost 4 Cost 5


22,890 $450.00 $10,300,500 $210,000 $10,510,500


1 Planned size of future community center based on 0.4 square feet of building area per
  capita for the projected buildout population of Wildomar as shown in Table 2.4
2 Estimated building cost per square foot includes construction, soft costs and furniture
  fixtures and equipment; costs estimated by escalating costs from the 2014 Impact Fee
  Study using the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index (ENR-BCI)
3 Estimated building cost = community center square feet X estimated building cost per
  square foot
4 Estimated land cost = 2.1 acres X $100,000 per acre; site acreage based on a floor area
  ratio of 0.25
5 Facility cost = estimated building cost + estimated land cost


Table 7.2: Future Community Center - Cost per Capita


Facility Buildout Cost
Cost 1 Population 2 per Capita 3


$10,510,500 57,231 $183.65


1 See Table 7.1
2 See Table 2.4
3 Cost per capita = facility cost / buildout population


Table 7.3: Fees per Unit of Development - Community Center


Development Pop per Cost per Impact Fee
Type Units 1 Unit 2 Capita 3 per Unit 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 3.26 $183.65 $598.70
Residential, Multi-Family DU 2.26 $183.65 $415.05


1 DU = dwelling unit
2 Population per unit of development; see Table 2.1
3 Cost per capita; see Table 7.2
4 Impact fee per unit of development  =  population per unit X cost per capita







City of Wildomar Page 7-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the community center impact fees calculated in this chapter can be
projected by applying the fees per unit by development type from Table 7.3 to forecasted future
units from Table 2.3.  The results are shown in Table 7.4.


Impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the future development’s share of the cost of
a new community center. Assuming that development occurs and facilities are constructed as
anticipated in this study, the revenue projected in Table 7.4 would cover roughly 35% of the total
facility cost shown in Table 7.1, assuming the fees are adjusted periodically as discussed in the
next section to keep pace with changes in land and construction costs.


Updating the Fees
The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated costs for land and
construction. We recommend that the fees be reviewed periodically and adjusted as needed to
keep pace with changing costs for land and construction using local cost data or an index such as
the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index (BCI)


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


Table 7.4: Projected Revenue - Community Center Impact Fees


Development Impact Fee Future Projected
Type Units 1 per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 598.70$ 4,782 2,862,983$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 415.05$ 1,992 826,780$
   Total 3,689,763$


1 DU = dwelling unit
2 Impact fee per unit of development; see Table 7.3
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 7-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for a community center in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of a community center for Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of a community center for Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All residential development contributes an increase in the City’s
population and thus to the need for a community center. The impact fees calculated in this
chapter would recover only future development’s proportionate share of the cost of the
community center.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the community center impact fees charged to a
development project will depend on the increase in population associated with that project. The
fees per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development are based
on the estimated average population per unit for that type of development in Wildomar. Thus,
the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on the need for a
community center in the City.







City of Wildomar Page 8-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 8. City Hall
This chapter calculates impact fees for a permanent City Hall in Wildomar. Since incorporation
in 2008, the City has leased space for City Hall, but in the future the City intends to construct a
purpose-built City Hall building. The impact fees calculated in this chapter represent only future
development’s share of the cost of that building.


Service Area
Fees addressed in this chapter are calculated for a single citywide service area encompassing the
entire study area defined in Chapter 2. City Hall impact fees are intended to apply to all new
development in the study area.


Demand Variable
In this chapter, service population is used in the impact fee calculations to represent service
demand created by all types of development for services supported by City Hall. See Chapter 2
for a detailed discussion of the makeup of the service population used in this study.


Level of Service
The City has not adopted an explicit level of service standard for the planned City Hall building.
However, the approximate size needed for the future City Hall was estimated in the City’s 2014
impact fee study based on a review of the relationship between City Hall size and population in
similarly situated cities. Because of changes in projected future development in Wildomar, the
City Hall building size used in that study has been reduced slightly from 20,629 square feet to
20,000 square feet in this update.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the plan-based method discussed in Chapter 1. Plan-
based fees are calculated using the cost of specific facilities needed to serve a certain increment
of development. In this case, costs for the future City Hall are allocated to both existing and future
development, so the impact fees reflect only future development’s share of total facility cost.


Facility Costs
Table 8.1 shows the size and estimated cost of the future City Hall building needed to serve the
projected service population of the City at buildout.







City of Wildomar Page 8-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Allocation of Costs
As shown in Table 8.2, the initial allocation of City Hall costs to development is based on the
percentage of total buildout service population associated with each type of development.
However, the costs allocated to the Public/Institutional development category, primarily made
up of public schools, cannot be recovered through impact fees, so those costs are reallocated as
explained below.


The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees on the construction of facilities by
school districts or other government entities.  And since those public facilities are needed almost
entirely to support residents of the City, the costs initially allocated to Public/Institutional
development are reallocated in Table 8.2, to single family and multi-family residential
development, based on their relative shares of service population.


The reallocated costs are used to calculate the impact fees, and the effect is to increase the
impact fees for residential development by about 4.5%.


Table 8.1: Future City Hall -Estimated Cost


City Hall Bldg Cost per Estimated Estimated Facility
Square Feet 1 Square Foot 2 Building Cost 3 Land Cost 4 Cost 5


20,000 $520.00 $10,400,000 $180,000 $10,580,000


1 Planned size of the future City Hall estimated by City staff
2 Estimated building cost per square foot includes construction, soft costs and furniture
  fixtures and equipment; costs escalated by 20% from the 2014 impact fee study based
  on the increase in the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index (ENR-BCI)
3 Estimated building cost = City Hall square feet X estimated building cost per square foot
4 Estimated land cost = 1.8 acres X $100,000 per acre
5 Facility cost = estimated building cost + estimated land cost


Table 8.2: Allocation of Costs - City Hall


Development % of Share of Realloc Final
Type Svc Pop 1 Cost 2 P/I Cost 3 Allocation 4


Residential, Single-Family 61.0% 6,457,890$ 283,545$ 6,741,434$
Residential, Multi-Family 7.0% 743,914$ 32,663$ 776,577$
Commercial 23.1% 2,443,328$ 2,443,328$
Office 1.6% 172,078$ 172,078$
Industrial/Business Park 4.2% 446,583$ 446,583$
Public/Institutional 3.0% 316,207$ (316,207)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 10,580,000$ 0$ 10,580,000$


1 Buildout service population by development type as a percentage of total
   buildout service population; percentages based on data from Table 2.4
2 Share of facility cost = facility cost from Table 8.1 X % of service population
3 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
4 Final allocation = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost







City of Wildomar Page 8-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development by development type is shown in Table
8.3. Costs allocated to each type of development from Table 8.2 are divided by the buildout
service population for that development type to calculate a cost per capita.  Then the cost per
capita is multiplied by the service population per unit of development to arrive at a fee per unit.


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the City Hall impact fees calculated in this chapter can be projected by
applying the fees per unit by development type from Table 8.3 to forecasted future units from
Table 2.3.  The results are shown in Table 8.4.


Table 8.3: Impact Fees per Unit of Development - City Hall


Development Final Buildout Cost per Svc Pop Impact Fee
Type Units 1 Allocation 2 Svc Pop 3 Capita 4 per Unit 5 per Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 6,741,434$ 44,134 152.75$ 2.80 428.25$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 776,577$ 5,084 152.75$ 1.94 296.88$
Commercial KSF 2,443,328$ 16,698 146.32$ 2.00 292.65$
Office KSF 172,078$ 1,176 146.32$ 1.77 258.82$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 446,583$ 3,052 146.32$ 0.71 103.53$
Public/Institutional KSF 0$ 2,161 0.00$ 1.00 0.00$


1 DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Final cost allocation; see Table 8.2
3 Buildout service population; see Table 2.4
4 Cost per capita = final allocation / added service population
5 Service population per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Impact fee per unit of development = cost per capita X service population per unit


Table 8.4: Projected Revenue - City Hall Impact Fees


Development Impact Fee Future Projected
Type Units 1 per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 428.25$ 4,782 2,047,892$
Residential, Single-Family DU 296.88$ 1,992 591,385$
Commercial KSF 292.65$ 5,682 1,662,706$
Office KSF 258.82$ 636 164,532$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 103.53$ 3,508 363,183$
   Total 4,829,697$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Impact fee per unit of development; see Table 8.3
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 8-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the future development’s share of the cost of
a new City Hall. Assuming that development occurs and facilities are constructed as anticipated
in this study, the revenue projected in Table 8.4 would cover roughly 45% of the total facility cost
shown in Table 8.1, assuming the fees are adjusted periodically as discussed in the next section
to keep pace with changes in land and construction costs.


Updating the Fees
The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated costs for land and
construction. We recommend that the fees be reviewed periodically and adjusted as needed to
keep pace with changing costs for land and construction using local cost data or an index such as
the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index (BCI).


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for a permanent City Hall in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of a permanent City Hall for Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.







City of Wildomar Page 8-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of a permanent City Hall for Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All development contributes to the need for services supported by
City Hall. The impact fees calculated in this chapter would recover only future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of a permanent City Hall.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the City Hall impact fees charged to a development
project will depend on the increase in service population associated with that project. The fees
per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development are based on
the estimated average service population per unit for that type of development in Wildomar.
Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on the need
for a permanent City Hall.







City of Wildomar Page 9-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 9. Corporation Yard
This chapter calculates impact fees for future corporation yard facilities to serve Wildomar. At
present, the City contracts for street and park maintenance and does not have a corporation
yard.  However, as the City grows, Wildomar will need to construct its own corporation yard,
whether or not the City continues to contract for maintenance services.


Plans have not been developed for the City’s future corporation yard, so this chapter uses
conservative estimates of the size and cost of such a facility. When the facility is completed, it
will serve both existing and future development in the City. The impact fees calculated in this
chapter will cover only future development’s proportionate share of the cost of the corporation
yard.


Service Area
Fees addressed in this chapter are calculated for a single citywide service area encompassing the
entire study area defined in Chapter 2. Corporation yard impact fees are intended to apply to all
new development in the study area.


Demand Variable
In this chapter, service population is used in the impact fee calculations to represent service
demand created by all types of development for services supported by the corporation yard. See
Chapter 2 for a detailed discussion of the makeup of the service population used in this report.
Service population per-unit factors from Table 2.1 in Chapter 2 are used to calculate impact fees
for corporation yard facilities.


Level of Service
The City has not adopted an explicit level of service standard for the planned corporation yard.
However, the size of the site and building needed for the future Corporation Yard was estimated
in the City’s 2014 impact fee. The same facilities program used in that study are also used in this
update. A copy of the 2014 Impact Fee Study report can be obtained from the City of Wildomar
Engineering Department.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the plan-based method discussed in Chapter 1. Plan-
based fees are calculated using the cost of specific facilities needed to serve a certain increment
of development. In this case, costs for the future corporation yard are allocated to both existing
and future development, so the impact fees reflect only future development’s share of total
facility cost


Facility Costs
Table 9.1 shows the sizes and estimated costs for future corporation yard facilities needed to
serve the projected service population of the City at buildout. The programmed facilities are the







City of Wildomar Page 9-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


same as in the 2014 Impact Fee Study. The costs have been escalated from 2014 to 2020 using
the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index.


Allocation of Costs
Costs for the corporation yard facilities are allocated to both existing and new development. The
result is that the impact fees will cover only new development’s share of those costs.


As shown in Table 9.2 on the next page, the initial allocation of corporation yard costs to
development is based on the percentage of total future service population associated with each
type of development. However, the costs allocated to the Public/Institutional development
category, primarily made up of public schools, cannot be recovered through impact fees, so those
costs are reallocated as explained below.


The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees on the construction of facilities by
school districts or other government entities.  And since those public facilities are needed almost
entirely to support residents of the City, the costs initially allocated to Public/Institutional
development are reallocated in Table 9.2, to single-family and multi-family residential
development, based on their relative shares of population.


The reallocated costs are used to calculate the impact fees, and the effect is to increase the
impact fees for residential development by about 4.5%.


Table 9.1: Future Corporation Yard - Estimated Cost


Unit No. of Est. Cost Estimated
Component Type Units per Unit 1 Cost 2


Maintenance/Storage Building Sq. Ft. 3,000 480.00$ 1,440,000$
Site Development Acres 5 90,000.00$ 450,000$
Corporation Yard Site Site Acres 5 100,000.00$ 500,000$
   Total Cost 2,390,000$


1 Estimated cost per unit includes construction and soft costs; costs escalated by
  20% from the 2014 impact fee study based on the increase in the Engineering


News Record Building Cost Index (ENR-BCI)
2 Estimated cost = number of units X estimated cost per unit







City of Wildomar Page 9-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development, by development type, is shown in Table
9.3. Costs allocated to each type of development from Table 9.2 are divided by the buildout
service population for each development type to calculate a cost per capita.  Then the cost per
capita is multiplied by the service population per unit of development to arrive at a fee per unit.


Table 9.2: Allocation of Costs - Corporation Yard


Development % of Share of Realloc Final
Type Svc Pop 1 Cost 2 P/I Cost 3 Allocation 4


Residential, Single-Family 61.0% 1,458,824$ 64,052$ 1,522,876$
Residential, Multi-Family 7.0% 168,049$ 7,378$ 175,427$
Commercial 23.1% 551,943$ 551,943$
Office 1.6% 38,872$ 38,872$
Industrial/Business Park 4.2% 100,882$ 100,882$
Public/Institutional 3.0% 71,431$ (71,431)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 2,390,000$ 0$ 2,390,000$


1 Buildout service population by development type as a percentage of total
   buildout service population; percentages based on data from Table 2.4
2 Share of facility cost = facility cost from Table 9.1 X % of service population
3 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text


Table 9.3: Fees per Unit of Development - Corporation Yard


Development Final Buildout Cost per Svc Pop Impact Fee
Type Units 1 Allocation 2 Svc Pop 3 Capita 4 per Unit 5 per Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 1,522,876$ 44,134 34.51$ 2.80 96.74$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 175,427$ 5,084 34.51$ 1.94 67.07$
Commercial KSF 551,943$ 16,698 33.05$ 2.00 66.11$
Office KSF 38,872$ 1,176 33.05$ 1.77 58.47$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 100,882$ 3,052 33.05$ 0.71 23.39$
Public/Institutional KSF 0$ 2,161 0.00$ 1.00 0.00$


1 DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Final cost allocation; see Table 9.2
3 Buildout service population; see Table 2.4
4 Cost per capita = final allocation / added service population
5 Service population per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Impact fee per unit of development = cost per capita X service population per unit







City of Wildomar Page 9-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the corporation yard impact fees calculated in this chapter can be
projected by applying the fees per unit by development type from Table 9.3 to forecasted future
units from Table 2.3.  The results are shown in Table 9.4.


Impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the future development’s share of the cost of
a new corporation yard. Assuming that development occurs and facilities are constructed as
anticipated in this study, the revenue projected in Table 9.4 would cover roughly 46% of the total
facility cost shown in Table 9.1, assuming the fees are adjusted periodically as discussed in the
next section to keep pace with changes in land and construction costs.


Updating the Fees
The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated costs for land and
construction. We recommend that the fees be reviewed periodically and adjusted as needed to
keep pace with changing costs for land and construction using local cost data or an index such as
the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index (BCI)


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


Table 9.4: Projected Revenue - Corporation Yard Impact Fees


Development Impact Fee Future Projected
Type Units 1 per Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 96.74$ 4,782 462,611$
Residential, Single-Family DU 67.07$ 1,992 133,603$
Commercial KSF 66.11$ 5,682 375,607$
Office KSF 58.47$ 636 37,169$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 23.39$ 3,508 82,052$
Public/Institutional KSF 0.00$ 1,059 0$
   Total 1,091,043$


1 DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Impact fee per unit of development; see Table 9.3
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 9-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for a corporation yard in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of a corporation yard for Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of a corporation yard for Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All development contributes to the need for services supported by
corporation yard. The impact fees calculated in this chapter would recover only future
development’s proportionate share of the cost of a corporation yard for the City.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the corporation yard impact fees charged to a
development project will depend on the increase in service population associated with that
project. The fees per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development
are based on the estimated average service population per unit for that type of development in
Wildomar. Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on
the need for a corporation yard in Wildomar.







City of Wildomar Page 10-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 10. Multi-Purpose Trails
This chapter calculates impact fees for multi-purpose trails. Wildomar has an existing trail
network and the City has developed plans to expand that network. The impact fees calculated in
this report are intended to pay only for new development’s proportionate share of the cost of
future improvements to the trail system. The City must identify other fund sources to pay for
the existing community’s share of the cost of additional trail construction.


As discussed below, service population is used to represent the service demand created by
development. This report estimates that the City is now about 53.9% built out in terms of service
population, so new development’s share of the cost of future trail improvements is
approximately 46.1%.


Service Area
Impact fees addressed in this chapter are calculated for a single citywide service area. Those fees
are intended to apply to all new development in the City.


Demand Variable
In this chapter, service population is used in the impact fee calculations to represent service
demand created by all types of development. As discussed in Chapter 2, service population is a
weighted composite variable consisting of both resident population (representing residential
development) and employees (representing non-residential development). Service population
per-unit factors for each type of development are shown in Table 2.1 in Chapter 2 and are used
later in this chapter.


Level of Service
The City does not have an adopted level of service standard for trails. The level of service is
implied in the plans for the trail system.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the plan-based method discussed in Chapter 1.  Plan-
based fees are calculated by allocating costs for a defined set of improvements to a defined set
of land uses that will be served by the improvements. The improvement costs covered by the
impact fees for multi-purpose trails are shown in the next section.


Facility Costs
Table 10.1 lists the existing and future trail improvements identified by the City Council in the
adopted Active Transportation Plan. The cost used as the basis for the impact fee calculations is
new development’s proportionate share of the cost of future trails.  That share is based on the
ratio of added service population to total service population at buildout.







City of Wildomar Page 10-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Allocation of Costs
As shown in Table 10.2 on the next page, the initial allocation of multi-purpose trails costs to
future development by development type is based on the percentage of future service
population associated with each type of development.  However, the costs allocated to the
Public/Institutional development category, primarily made up of public schools, cannot be
recovered through impact fees, so those costs are reallocated as explained below.


The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees on the construction of facilities by
school districts or other government entities.   And since those public facilities are needed almost
entirely to support residents of the City, the costs initially allocated to Public/Institutional
development are reallocated in Table 10.2, to single family and multi-family residential
development, based on their relative shares of population.  The reallocated costs are used to
calculate the impact fees, and the effect is to increase the impact fees for residential
development by about 6%.


Table 10.1: Existing and Future Multi-Purpose Trails


Trail Est Cost Existing Repl Cost Future Est Cost
Type per LF 1 Linear Ft 2 Existing 3 Linear Ft 4 Future 5


Roadside Multi-Use Trail 111.79$ 53,470 5,977,411$ 235,465 26,322,632$
Country-Creekside Multi-Use Trail 153.89$ 2,300 353,947$ 18,710 2,879,282$
Class I Trail 145.79$ 600 87,474$ 66,550 9,702,325$


56,370 6,418,832$ 320,725 38,904,239$
   New Development's Share of Future Trails Cost (46.1%) 6 17,920,539$


1 Estimated construction cost per linear foot (LF) by the City of Wildomar Engineering Department;
  see Appendix B for more detail
2 Linear feet of existing trails provided by the City of Wildomar Engineering Department
3 Replacement cost of existing trails = existing linear feet of trails X estimated cost per linear foot
4 Linear feet of planned future trails provided by the City of Wildomar Engineering Department
5 Estimated cost of future trails = future linear feet X estimated cost per Linear foot
6 New development's share of cost = added service population / builtout service population;
  see Tables 2.3 and 2.4







City of Wildomar Page 10-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development, by development type, is shown in Table
10.3 on the next page.  Costs allocated to each type of development, from Table 10.2 are divided
by the added service population for each development type to calculate a cost per capita. Then
the cost per capita is multiplied by the service population per unit of development to arrive at a
fee per unit.


Table 10.2: Allocation of Costs - Multi-Purpose Trails


Development Dev Share of Share of Realloc Final Cost
Type Units 1 Svc Pop 2 Cost 3 P/I Cost 4 Allocation 5


Residential, Single-Family DU 40.3% 7,213,735$ 442,143$ 7,655,878$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 11.6% 2,082,820$ 127,660$ 2,210,480$
Commercial KSF 34.1% 6,113,946$ 6,113,946$
Office KSF 3.4% 604,776$ 604,776$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 7.5% 1,335,458$ 1,335,458$
Public/Institutional KSF 3.2% 569,803$ (569,803)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 17,920,539$ 0$ 17,920,539$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Added service population by development type as a percentage of total added service
  population; percentages based on data from Table 2.3
3 Share of cost = new development cost share from Table 10.1 X share of service pop.
4 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
5 Final cost allocation = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost


Table 10.3: Impact Fees per Unit of Development - Multi-Purpose Trails


Development Dev Final Cost Added Cost per Svc Pop Fee per
Type Units 1 Allocation 2 Svc Pop 3 Capita 4 per Unit 5 Unit 6


Residential, Single-Family DU 7,655,878$ 13,407 571.04$ 2.80 1,600.96$
Residential, Multi-Family DU 2,210,480$ 3,871 571.04$ 1.94 1,109.87$
Commercial KSF 6,113,946$ 11,363 538.06$ 2.00 1,076.11$
Office KSF 604,776$ 1,124 538.06$ 1.77 951.72$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 1,335,458$ 2,482 538.06$ 0.71 380.69$
Public/Institutional KSF 0$ 1,059 0.00$ 1.00 0.00$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Final cost allocation; see Table 10.2
3 Added service population; see Table 2.3
4 Future trails cost per capita = final allocation / added service population
5 Service population per unit; see Table 2.1
6 Fee per unit of development = cost per capita X service population per unit







City of Wildomar Page 10-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the Multi-Purpose Trails Impact Fees can be projected by applying the
fees per unit from Table 10.3 to forecasted future units by development type from Table 2.3.  The
results are shown in Table 10.4.


Impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on new development’s share of the cost of
planned future multi-purpose trails. Assuming that development occurs, and facilities are
constructed, as anticipated in this study, the revenue projected in Table 10.4 would equal
approximately 46.1% of estimated future trail costs shown in Table 10.1.


The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based on the current estimated costs for trail
construction. We recommend that the fees be reviewed and adjusted annually using local cost
data or an index such as the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (CCI). See the
Implementation Chapter for more on indexing of fees.


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


Table 10.4: Projected Revenue - Multi-Purpose Trails


Development Dev Fee per Future Projected
Type Units 1 Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential, Single-Family DU 1,600.96$ 4,782 7,655,791$
Residential, Single-Family DU 1,109.87$ 1,992 2,210,861$
Commercial KSF 1,076.11$ 5,682 6,113,973$
Office KSF 951.72$ 636 605,008$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 380.69$ 3,508 1,335,461$
   Total 17,921,093$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of
   building area
2 Fee per unit of development; see Table 10.3
3 Future units; see Table 2.3
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units; this study assumes no fees
  will be collected from Public/Institutional development such as schools.







City of Wildomar Page 10-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for multi-purpose trails in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of additional multi-purpose trails for Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of planned future multi-purpose trails in Wildomar. The
remaining cost will have to come from other sources of revenue. The value of existing multi-
purpose trails is not included in the impact fee calculations.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All development contributes an increase in the City’s service
population and thus to the need for multi-purpose trails. The impact fees calculated in this
chapter would recover only future development’s proportionate share of the cost of planned
future multi-purpose trails.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the multi-purpose trails impact fees charged to a
development project will depend on the increase in service population associated with that
project. The fees per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development
are based on the estimated average service population per unit for that type of development in
Wildomar. Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on
the need for multi-purpose trails in the City.







City of Wildomar Page 11-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 11. Storm Drainage Facilities
This chapter addresses impact fees for improvements to storm drainage facilities needed to serve
future development in Wildomar.  Wildomar’s topography creates unique issues for the City’s
drainage system.  Runoff from development on the slopes of eastern Wildomar has the potential
to create severe impacts on relatively flat, low-lying downstream areas in the western part of the
City, so an effective drainage system is a very high priority in planning for development.


The drainage improvements identified in this chapter are of two types: (1) City drainage
improvements identified in the 2019 Wildomar Master Drainage Plan by Interwest Consulting
Group; and (2) Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (RCFC)
improvements serving the City. RCFC currently collects Area Drainage Plan (ADP) fees from
development in Wildomar for their improvements. The impact fees calculated in this chapter
assume that the City will collect the RCFC fees directly, in-lieu of RCFC collecting the fees, to allow
for more local control over the prioritizing and budgeting of those funds.


Study Area
The study area for fees calculated in this chapter is the entire study area defined in Chapter 2.
The resulting fees are intended to apply to all future development in the City.


Methodology
This chapter calculates impact fees using the plan-based method discussed in Chapter 1.  Plan-
based fees are calculated by allocating costs for a defined set of improvements to a defined set
of land uses that will be served by the improvements.  The drainage improvements identified
may serve to correct some existing deficiencies in the storm drainage system, so the cost of
improvements is allocated to both existing and future development in the impact fee
calculations. The projected revenue from the impact fees would cover less than half of the total
cost of improvements listed in Table 11.1 later in this chapter.


Demand Variable
In this analysis, the impact of development on the need for drainage improvements is measured
by the amount of additional impervious surface area (ISA) associated with various types of
development.  The addition of impervious surfaces like roofs, patios and driveways prevents
storm water from percolating into the soil and increases the runoff from a site. The increased
runoff creates a need for additional capacity in the drainage system.


Level of Service
The level of service (LOS) standard used to establish the need for drainage improvements in
Wildomar is specified in the 2019 Master Drainage Plan. LOS for Riverside County Flood Control
facilities is specified in the County Master Drainage Plans and Area Drainage Plans.







City of Wildomar Page 11-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Improvement Needs and Costs
Table 11.1 summarizes the cost of drainage improvements used to calculate impact fees in this
chapter.


Impervious Surface Area
Table 11.2, on the next page, shows the estimated average impervious surface area (ISA) per unit
of development, by development type, and the total ISA associated with both existing and future
development in Wildomar. The amount of ISA on a site can vary substantially with the density of
development, so the breakdown of residential development types shown in Table 11.2 is more
detailed than those for other impact fees calculated in this report.


The information shown for each type of development in Table 11.2 includes the expected average
units of development per acre, the estimated average square feet of ISA per unit, ISA as a
percentage of site area, the number of future units expected, and the total ISA added.


The estimated area of impervious surface per unit is higher in absolute terms for lower density
residential development but is lower as a percentage of site area. The total amount of added ISA
from Table 11.2 is used in the calculation of impact fees.


Table 11.1: Drainage System Improvements


Drainage System Improvement
Component Cost


Improvement Costs based on 2019 Master Drainage Plan 1 81,539,000$
Improvement Costs for RCFC Facilities Serving Wildomar 2 69,810,000$
Expected Contribution from RCFC 3 (288,526)$
  Total 151,060,474$


1 Future improvement costs from the 2019 Master Drainage Plan updated by
  the City of Wildomar Engineering Department; see Appendix C for more detail
2 Costs for Riverside County Flood Control District (RCFC) improvements
  serving the City of Wildomar; Area Drainage Plan fees currently collected
  by RCFC in Wildomar will be eliminated
3 Expected contribution by RCFC from impact fees previously collected for
  RCFC improvements in Wildomar







City of Wildomar Page 11-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Allocation of Costs
In Table 11.3, below, the total cost of drainage improvements from Table 11.1 is allocated to
various types of development, based on their shares of the total impervious surface area added
by new development.  However, the costs allocated to the Public/Institutional development
category, primarily made up of public schools, cannot be recovered through impact fees, so those
costs are reallocated as explained below.


The City does not have the authority to impose impact fees on the construction of facilities by
school districts or other government entities.  And since those public facilities are needed almost
entirely to support residents of the City, the costs initially allocated to Public/Institutional
development are reallocated in Table 11.3 to various categories of residential development,
based on their relative shares of ISA.  The reallocated costs are used to calculate the impact fees,
and the effect is to increase the impact fees for residential development by about 4.4%.


Table 11.2: Impervious Surface Area - All Development at Buildout


Development Dev Avg Units ISA as % ISA SF Buildout Square Feet
Type Units 1 per Acre 2 of Site 3  per Unit 4 Units 5 of ISA 6


Residential Estate Density DU 0.5 10% 8,800 2,450 21,557,580
Residential Very Low Density DU 1.0 20% 8,750 779 6,812,249
Residential Low Density DU 2.0 40% 8,700 3,403 29,604,088
Residential Medium Density DU 4.0 50% 5,450 9,111 49,654,751
Residential Med-High Density DU 7.0 55% 3,420 1,619 5,536,515
Residential High Density DU 15.0 60% 1,745 997 1,740,002
   Subtotal Residential 18,358 114,905,185
Commercial KSF 10.89 90% 3,600 8,349 30,056,400
Office KSF 14.37 90% 2,727 665 1,813,636
Business Park/Light Industrial KSF 15.25 90% 2,571 4,313 11,090,571
Public Facilities KSF 13.07 40% 1,333 2,161 2,881,333
   Subtotal Non-Residential 15,488 45,841,941
Total Impervious Surface Area 160,747,127


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit; KSF = 1,000 gross square feet of building area
2 Estimated units of development per acre based on Table LU 4 of the Wildomar (Riverside County)
  General Plan
3 New impervious surface area as a percentage of site area (see Table 2 in the Master Drainage Plan)
4 Square feet of new impervious surface area (ISA) per unit of development estimated by NBS to match
   land use impervious fractions (ISA as % of site) from Table 2 in the 2019 Master Drainage Plan
5 Total units at buildout; see Table 2.4 (detailed breakdown of residential development types
   in this table by NBS and the Wildomar Community Development Department)
6 Square feet of impervious surface area for all development at buildout







City of Wildomar Page 11-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Impact Fees per Unit of Development
The calculation of impact fees per unit of development, by development type, is shown in Table
11.4. In this table, costs allocated to each development category in Table 11.3 are divided by the
number of buildout units in the category to compute an impact fee per unit.


Because the cost of drainage improvements is allocated to both existing and future units at
buildout, the impact fees represent only new development’s share of the total cost of those


Table 11.3: Allocation of Costs - Drainage System Improvements


Development Share of Share of Realloc Final
Type Total ISA 1 Cost 2 P/I Cost 3 Allocation 4


Residential Estate Density 13.4% 20,258,516$ 507,997$ 20,766,514$
Residential Very Low Density 4.2% 6,401,742$ 160,528$ 6,562,270$
Residential Low Density 18.4% 27,820,140$ 697,611$ 28,517,751$
Residential Medium Density 30.9% 46,662,547$ 1,170,098$ 47,832,645$
Residential Med-High Density 3.4% 5,202,884$ 130,466$ 5,333,350$
Residential High Density 1.1% 1,635,149$ 41,003$ 1,676,152$
Commercial 18.7% 28,245,196$ 28,245,196$
Office 1.1% 1,704,346$ 1,704,346$
Industrial/Business Park 6.9% 10,422,251$ 10,422,251$
Public/Institutional 1.8% 2,707,704$ (2,707,704)$ 0$
Totals 100.0% 151,060,474$ 0$ 151,060,474$


1 Share of total ISA based on Square Feet of ISA column in Table 11.2
2 Share of improvement cost =  improvement cost from Table 11.1 X share of total ISA
3 Reallocated Public/Institutional costs; see discussion in text
4 Final allocation = share of cost + reallocated Public/Institutional cost


Table 11.4: Impact Fees per Unit of Development - Drainage


Development Dev Final Buildout Impact Fee
Type Units 1 Allocation 2 Units 3 per Unit 4


Residential Estate Density DU 20,766,514$ 2,450 8,477.08$
Residential Very Low Density DU 6,562,270$ 779 8,428.91$
Residential Low Density DU 28,517,751$ 3,403 8,380.75$
Residential Medium Density DU 47,832,645$ 9,111 5,250.01$
Residential Med-High Density DU 5,333,350$ 1,619 3,294.50$
Residential High Density DU 1,676,152$ 997 1,680.97$
Commercial KSF 28,245,196$ 8,349 3,383.06$
Office KSF 1,704,346$ 665 2,562.93$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 10,422,251$ 4,313 2,416.47$
Public/Institutional KSF 0$ 2,161 0.00$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross sq. ft. of bldg. area
2 Final cost allocation; see Table 11.3
3 Total existing and future units at buildout by development type; see Table 11.2
4 Fee per unit of development = final cost allocation / added units







City of Wildomar Page 11-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


improvements. The estimated percentage of total improvement cost that will be recovered from
new development is shown below Table 11.5.


Projected Revenue
Potential revenue from the drainage impact fees calculated in this chapter can be projected by
applying the fees per unit of development from Table 11.4 to forecasted future units.  The results
are shown in Table 11.5.


The revenue projected in Table 11.5 would cover approximately 43.7 % of the total facility costs
shown in Table 11.1, assuming development occurs as anticipated in this study, and that the fees
are adjusted periodically to keep pace with changes in construction costs


Updating the Fees
The impact fees calculated in this chapter are based the current estimated construction costs for
storm drainage improvements. We recommend that the fees be reviewed annually and adjusted
as needed to keep pace with changing costs for land and construction using local cost data or an
index such as the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (CCI).


Nexus Summary
As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mitigation Fee Act requires that an
agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:


Identify the purpose of the fee;


Identify the use of the fee; and,


Table 11.5: Projected Revenue - Drainage Impact Fees


Development Dev Fee per Future Projected
Type Units 1 Unit 2 Units 3 Revenue 4


Residential Estate Density DU 8,477.08$ 730 6,188,268$
Residential Very Low Density DU 8,428.91$ 232 1,955,508$
Residential Low Density DU 8,380.75$ 1,014 8,498,080$
Residential Medium Density DU 5,250.01$ 2,812 14,763,027$
Residential Med-High Density DU 3,294.50$ 1,229 4,048,942$
Residential High Density DU 1,680.97$ 757 1,272,492$
Commercial KSF 3,383.06$ 5,682 19,221,043$
Office KSF 2,562.93$ 636 1,629,253$
Industrial/Business Park KSF 2,416.47$ 3,508 8,476,990$
Public/Institutional KSF 0.00$ 1,059 0$
   Total 66,053,602$


1 Units of development; DU = dwelling unit, KSF = 1,000 gross sq. ft. of bldg. area
2 Fee per unit of development; see Table 11.4
3 Future units; future units broken out by NBS into the categories used in this chapter
4 Projected revenue  = fee per unit X future units







City of Wildomar Page 11-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development on which the fee is imposed;
and


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development
project.


Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the “rational nexus” and “rough
proportionality” standards enunciated in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. (For more detail, see “Legal Framework for Impact Fees” in Chapter 1.)


The following paragraphs explain how the impact fees calculated in this chapter satisfy those
requirements.


Purpose of the Fee: The purpose of the impact fees calculated in this chapter is to mitigate the
impact of new development on the need for a storm drainage facilities in Wildomar.


Use of the Fee. Impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for new development’s
share of the cost of storm drainage facilities in Wildomar.


As provided by the Mitigation Fee Act, revenue from impact fees may also be used for temporary
loans from one impact fee fund or account to another.


Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It Is
Imposed. The impact fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future development’s
proportionate share of the cost of a storm drainage improvements in Wildomar.


Reasonable Relationship between the Need for the Facilities and the Type of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. All new development contributes to the need for additional storm
drainage facilities. The impact fees calculated in this chapter would recover only future
development’s proportionate share of the cost of those facilities.


Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the storm drainage impact fees charged to a
development project will depend on the increase in runoff associated with that project. The fees
per unit of development calculated in this chapter for each type of development are based on
the estimated average impervious surface area (ISA) for that type of development in Wildomar.
Thus, the fee charged to a development project reflects the impact of that project on the need
for drainage facilities.







City of Wildomar Page 12-1
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Chapter 12. Implementation
This chapter of the report contains recommendations for adoption and administration of impact
fees, and for the interpretation and application of the development impact fees and in-lieu fees
calculated in this study. It was not prepared by an attorney and is not intended as legal advice.


Statutory requirements for the adoption and administration of fees imposed as a condition of
development approval (impact fees) are found in the Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code
Sections 66000 et seq.).  Requirements for park land dedication and fees in lieu of dedication are
governed by the Quimby Act (Government Code 66477).


Adoption
The form in which development impact fees are enacted should be determined by the City
attorney. The specific requirements are different for impact fees under the Mitigation Fee Act,
and for park land dedication and in-lieu fees under the Quimby Act. The latter requirements must
be adopted by ordinance and are subject to the same noticing and public hearing procedures as
any ordinance.


Procedures for adoption of fees subject to the Mitigation Fee Act, including notice and public-
hearing requirements, are specified in Government Code Sections 66016 and 66018.  It should
be noted that Section 66018 refers to Government Code Section 6062a, which requires that the
public hearing notice be published at least twice during the 10-day notice period.  Government
Code Section 66017 provides that fees subject to the Mitigation Fee Act do not become effective
until 60 days after final action by the governing body.


Actions establishing or increasing fees subject to the Mitigation Act require certain findings, as
set forth in Government Code Section 66001 and discussed below and in Chapter 1 of this report.


Establishment of Fees.  Pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, Section 66001(a), when an agency
establishes fees to be imposed as a condition of development approval, it must make findings to:


1. Identify the purpose of the fee;


2. Identify the use of the fee; and


3. Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the type of development project


on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development
project on which the fee is imposed


Examples of findings that could be used for impact fees calculated in this study are shown below.
The specific language of such findings should be provided by the City Attorney. A more complete
discussion of the nexus for each fee can be found in individual chapters of this report.







City of Wildomar Page 12-2
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Sample Finding:  Purpose of the Fee. The City Council finds that the purpose of the
impact fees hereby enacted is to protect the public health, safety and welfare by requiring
new development to contribute to the cost of public facilities needed to mitigate the
impacts of new development.


Sample Finding:  Use of the Fee. The City Council finds that revenue from the impact fees
hereby enacted will be used to provide public facilities needed to mitigate the impacts of
new development in the City and identified in the 2021 City of Wildomar Development
Impact Fee Study by NBS. 1


Sample Finding:  Reasonable Relationship: Based on analysis presented in the 2021 City
of Wildomar Development Impact Fee Study by NBS, the City Council finds that there is a
reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fees and the types of development projects on
which they are imposed; and,


b. The need for facilities and the types of development projects
on which the fees are imposed.


Administration
The California Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code Sections 66000 et seq.) mandates
procedures for administration of impact fee programs, including collection and accounting,
reporting, and refunds.  References to code sections in the following paragraphs pertain to the
California Government Code.


Imposition of Fees.  Pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, Section 66001(a), when an agency
imposes an impact fee upon a specific development project, it must make essentially the same
findings adopted upon establishment of the fees to:


1. Identify the purpose of the fee;


2. Identify the use of the fee; and


3. Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between:


a. The use of the fee and the type of development project
on which it is imposed;


b. The need for the facility and the type of development
project on which the fee is imposed


1 According to Gov’t Code Section 66001 (a) (2), the use of the fee may be specified in a capital improvement
plan, the General Plan, or other public documents that identify the public facilities for which the fee is charged.
The findings recommended here identify this impact fee study as the source of that information.







City of Wildomar Page 12-3
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Per Section 66001 (b), at the time when an impact fee is imposed on a specific development
project, the City is also required to make a finding to determine how there is a reasonable
relationship between:


c. The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable
to the development project on which it is imposed.


In addition, Section 66006 (f) provides that a local agency, at the time it imposes a fee for public
improvements on a specific development project, "... shall identify the public improvement that
the fee will be used to finance." The required notification could refer to the improvements
identified in this study.


Section 66020 (d) (1) requires that the agency, at the time it imposes an impact fee, provide a
written statement of the amount of the fee and written notice of a 90-day period during which
the imposition of the fee can be protested.  Failure to protest imposition of the fee during that
period may deprive the fee payer of the right to subsequent legal challenge.


Section 66022 (a) provides a separate procedure for challenging the establishment of an impact
fee.  Such challenges must be filed within 120 days of enactment.


Collection of Fees. Section 66007(a) provides that a local agency shall not require payment of
fees by developers of residential projects prior to the date of final inspection, or issuance of a
certificate of occupancy, whichever occurs first.


However, "utility service fees" (not defined, but likely referring to water and sewer connections)
may be collected upon application for utility service. In a residential development project of more
than one dwelling unit, Section 66007 (a) allows the agency to choose to collect fees either for
individual units or for phases upon final inspection, or for the entire project upon final inspection
of the first dwelling unit completed.


Section 66007 (b) provides two exceptions when the local agency may require the payment of
fees from developers of residential projects at an earlier time: (1) when the local agency
determines that the fees “will be collected for public improvements or facilities for which an
account has been established and funds appropriated and for which the local agency has adopted
a proposed construction schedule or plan prior to final inspection or issuance of the certificate
of occupancy” or (2) the fees are “to reimburse the local agency for expenditures previously
made.”


Statutory restrictions on the time at which fees may be collected do not apply to non-residential
development.


Notwithstanding the foregoing restrictions, many cities routinely collect impact fees for all
facilities at the time building or grading permits are issued, and builders may find it convenient
to pay the fees at that time.


In cases where the fees are not collected upon issuance of building permits, Sections 66007 (c)
(1) and (2) provide that the City may require the property owner to execute a contract to pay the
fee, and to record that contract as a lien against the property until the fees are paid.







City of Wildomar Page 12-4
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Earmarking and Expenditure of Fee Revenue. Section 66006 (a) mandates that fees be
deposited “with other fees for the improvement in a separate capital facilities account or fund in
a manner to avoid any commingling of the fees with other revenues and funds of the local agency,
except for temporary investments, and expend those fees solely for the purpose for which the
fee was collected.” Section 66006 (a) also requires that interest earned on the fee revenues be
placed in the capital account and used for the same purpose.


The language of the law is not clear as to whether depositing fees "with other fees for the
improvement" refers to a specific capital improvement or a class of improvements (e.g., street
improvements).


We are not aware of any municipality that has interpreted that language to mean that funds must
be segregated by individual projects. And, as a practical matter, that approach would be
unworkable because it would mean that no pay-as-you-go project could be constructed until all
benefiting development had paid the fees.  Common practice is to maintain separate funds or
accounts for impact fee revenues by facility category (i.e., streets, park improvements), but not
for individual projects.


Impact Fee Exemptions, Reductions, and Waivers.  In the event that a development project is
found to have no impact on facilities for which impact fees are charged, such project must be
exempted from the fees.


If a project has characteristics that will make its impacts on a particular public facility or
infrastructure system significantly and permanently smaller than the average impact used to
calculate impact fees in this study, the fees should be reduced accordingly. Per Section 66001
(b), there must be a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of the
public facility attributable to the development on which the fee is imposed. The fee reduction is
required if the fee is not proportional to the impact of the development on relevant public
facilities.


In some cases, the agency may desire to voluntarily waive or reduce impact fees that would
otherwise apply to a project as a way of promoting goals such as affordable housing or economic
development.  Such a waiver or reduction is within the discretion of the governing body but may
not result in increased costs to other development projects. So, the effect of such policies is that
the lost revenue must be made up from sources other than impact fees.


Credit for Improvements Provided by Developers.  If the City requires a developer, as a condition
of project approval, to dedicate land or construct facilities or improvements for which impact
fees are charged, the City should ensure that the impact fees are adjusted so that the overall
contribution by the developer does not exceed the impact created by the development.


In the event that a developer voluntarily offers to dedicate land, or construct facilities or
improvements in lieu of paying impact fees, the City may accept or reject such offers, and may
negotiate the terms under which such an offer would be accepted. Excess contributions by a
developer may be offset by reimbursement agreements.







City of Wildomar Page 12-5
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Credit for Existing Development. If a project involves replacement, redevelopment or
intensification of previously existing development, impact fees should be applied only to the
portion of the project that represents a net increase in demand for relevant City facilities,
applying the measure of demand used in this study to calculate that impact fee.


Annual Report. Section 66006 (b) (1) requires that once each year, within 180 days of the close
of the fiscal year, the local agency must make available to the public the following information
for each separate account established to receive impact fee revenues:


1. A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund;


2. The amount of the fee;


3. The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund;


4. The amount of the fees collected and interest earned;


5. Identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and the
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the percentage of the
cost of the public improvement that was funded with fees;


6. Identification of the approximate date by which the construction of a public
improvement will commence, if the City determines sufficient funds have been
collected to complete financing of an incomplete public improvement;


7. A description of each inter-fund transfer or loan made from the account or fund,
including interest rates, repayment dates, and a description of the improvement on
which the transfer or loan will be expended;


8. The amount of any refunds or allocations made pursuant to Section 66001, paragraphs
(e) and (f).


The annual report must be reviewed by the City Council at its next regularly scheduled public
meeting, but not less than 15 days after the statements are made public, per Section 66006 (b)
(2).


Refunds under the Mitigation Fee Act.  Prior to 1996, The Mitigation Fee Act required that a local
agency collecting impact fees was required to expend or commit impact fee revenue within five
years or make findings to justify a continued need for the money.  Otherwise, those funds had to
be refunded. SB 1693, adopted in 1996 as an amendment to the Mitigation Fee Act, changed that
requirement in material ways.


Now, Section 66001 (d) requires that, for the fifth fiscal year following the first deposit of any
impact fee revenue into an account or fund as required by Section 66006 (b), and every five years
thereafter, the local agency shall make all of the following findings for any fee revenue that
remains unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted:


1. Identify the purpose to which the fee will be put;







City of Wildomar Page 12-6
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


2. Demonstrate the reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for
which it is charged;


3. Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete
financing of incomplete improvements for which impact fees are to be used;


4. Designate the approximate dates on which the funding necessary to
complete financing of those improvements will be deposited into the
appropriate account or fund.


Those findings are to be made in conjunction with the annual reports discussed above.  If such
findings are not made as required by Section 66001, the local agency could be required to refund
the moneys in the account or fund, per Section 66001 (d).


Once the agency determines that sufficient funds have been collected to complete financing on
incomplete improvements for which impact fee revenue is to be used, it must, within 180 days
of that determination, identify an approximate date by which construction of the public
improvement will be commenced (Section 66001 (e)).  If the agency fails to comply with that
requirement, it must refund impact fee revenue in the account according to procedures specified
in Section 66001 (d).


Refunds under the Quimby Act. The Quimby Act, Section a.(6)(A) requires that a City, County or
other agency to which park land or in-lieu fees are conveyed or paid shall develop a schedule
“specifying how, when and where it will use the land or fees or both to develop park or
recreational facilities to serve residents of the subdivision…. Any fees collected under the
ordinance shall be committed within five years after the payment of the fees or the issuance of
building permits on one-half of the lots created by the subdivision, whichever occurs later. Any
fees not committed within five years must be refunded.


Annual Update of the Capital Improvement Plan.  Section 66002 (b) of the Mitigation Fee Act
provides that if a local agency adopts a capital improvement plan to identify the use of impact
fees, that plan must be adopted and annually updated by a resolution of the governing body at
a noticed public hearing.  The alternative, per Section 66001 (a) (2) is to identify improvements
by applicable general or specific plans or in other public documents.


In most cases, the CIP identifies projects for a limited number of years and may not include all
improvements needed to serve future development covered by the impact fee study. We
recommend that the City Council cite this development impact fee study as the public document
identifying the use of the fees.


Indexing of In-Lieu/Impact Fees.  Where impact fees calculated in this report are based on
current costs, those costs should be adjusted periodically to account for changes in the cost of
facilities or other capital assets that will be funded by the impact fees. That adjustment is
intended to account for escalation in costs for land, construction, vehicles and other relevant
capital assets.  We recommend the Engineering News Record Building Cost Index as the primary
basis for indexing building construction costs. Where land costs are covered by an impact fee or
in-lieu fee, land costs should be adjusted based on changes in local land prices.







City of Wildomar Page 12-7
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


Requirements Imposed by AB 602
In 2021, the California Legislature passed AB 602 and the Governor signed it into law. AB 602
creates some new requirements for impact fees that will go into effect in 2022. The new law
amends Government Code Section 65940.1 and adds Section 66016.5 to impose the following
requirements:


1) A city, county or special district that has an internet website shall post on its website:


a) A current written schedule of fees, exactions and affordability requirements applicable to
a proposed housing development project, and shall present that information in a manner
that identifies the fees, exactions and affordability requirements that apply to each parcel
and the fees that apply to each new water and sewer utility connection


b) All zoning ordinances and development standards and specifying the zoning, design and
development standards that apply to each parcel


c) A list of the information that will be required from any applicant for a development
project, as specified in Government Code Section 69540


d) The current and five previous annual fee reports required by Government Code Section
66006 and Subsection 66013 (d).


e) An archive of impact fee nexus studies, cost of service studies or equivalent conducted on
or after January 1, 2018.


2) The above information shall be updated within 30 days of any changes


3) A City or County shall request from a development proponent, upon issuance of a certificate
of occupancy or final inspection, the total amount fees and exactions associated with the
project for which the certificate it issued. That information must be posted on the website
and updated at least twice a year.


4) Before adoption of an impact fee, an impact fee nexus study shall be adopted.


5) When applicable, the nexus study shall identify the existing level of service for each public
facility, identify the proposed new level of service and explain why the new level of service is
appropriate


6) If a nexus study supports the increase of an existing fee, the local agency shall review the
assumptions of the nexus study supporting the original fee and evaluate the amount of the
fees collected under the original fee.


7) A nexus study adopted after July 1, 2022, shall calculate a fee imposed on a housing
development project proportionately to the square footage of the proposed units of the
development. A local agency that imposes a fee proportionately to the square footage if the
proposed units of the development shall be deemed to have used a valid method to establish
a reasonable relationship between the fee charged and the burden posed by the
development. The law outlines some possible exceptions to this requirement.







City of Wildomar Page 12-8
Development Impact Fee Study
December 2, 2021


8) Large jurisdictions as defined in Section 53559.1 (d) of the Health and Safety Code (counties
of 250,000 or more and cities in those counties) shall adopt a capital improvement plan as
part of a nexus study.


9) All studies shall be adopted at a public hearing with at least 30-days’ notice, and the local
agency shall notify any member of the public that requests notice of intent to begin an impact
fee nexus study of the date of the hearing.


10) Studies shall be updated at least every eight years, beginning on January 1, 2022.


Training and Public Information
Effective administration of an impact fee program requires considerable preparation and
training. It is important that those responsible for collecting the fees, and for explaining them to
the public, understand both the details of the fee program and its supporting rationale.


It is also useful to pay close attention to handouts that provide information to the public
regarding impact fees.  Impact fees should be clearly distinguished from other fees, such as user
fees for application processing, and the purpose and use of particular impact fees should be made
clear.


Finally, anyone responsible for accounting, capital budgeting, or project management for
projects involving impact fees must be fully aware of the restrictions placed on the expenditure
of impact fee revenues. Fees must be expended for the purposes identified in the impact fee
report in which they were calculated, and the City must be able to show that funds have been
properly expended.


Recovery of Administrative Costs
To recover the cost of periodic impact fee update studies and ongoing staff costs for capital
budgeting, annual reports, five-year updates and other requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act,
an administrative charge may be added to the impact fees calculated in this report. The Executive
Summary shows an administrative charge percentage.







APPENDIX A


Prepared by NBS for the City of Wildomar


Streets, Bridges, Intersections & Signals







APPENDIX A


DIF Streets
Facility Cost Estimates


Street Segment DIF Cost Estimate
Clinton Keith Rd. Palomar St. to City Limits 4,966,405$
Bundy Canyon Rd. Orange St. to Monte Vista Dr. 1,456,852$
Bundy Canyon Rd. Monte Vista Dr. to Sunset Ave. 8,430,701$
Mission Trail Corydon Rd. to Palomar St. 3,262,755$
Palomar St. Mission Trail to Jefferson St. 4,673,693$
Wildomar Trail Palomar St. to Monte Vista Dr. 135,235$
Washington Ave. Palomar St. to Southern City Limits 1,477,484$
Bundy Canyon Rd. Mission Trail to Orange St. -$
Corydon St. Grand Ave. to Mission Trail 4,181,185$
Mission Trail Malaga Rd. to Corydon St. 2,409,701$
Clinton Keith Rd. Grand Ave. to Palomar St. 1,267,309$
Hidden Springs Rd. Clinton Keith Rd. to Stable Lanes Rd. 542,350$
Monte Vista Dr. Bundy Canyon Rd. to Wildomar Trail 5,613,768$
Wildomar Trail Monte Vista Dr. to Bayless Rd. 1,295,485$
Inland Valley Dr. La Estrella St. to Bunny Trail 3,800,089$
Bayless Rd. Wildomar Trail to La Estrella St. 3,574,876$
Inland Valley Dr. Bunny Trail to Palomar St. 3,183,563$
Prielipp Rd. Inland Valley Dr. to Eastern City Limits 1,537,678$
Cottonwood Canyon Rd. Bundy Canyon Rd. to Northern City Limits 6,041,672$
Grape St. Malaga Rd. to Lemon St. 2,439,592$
Gruwell St. Palomar St. to Grand Ave. 901,266$
La Estrella St. Crossroads St. to City Limits 1,509,498$
Lemon St. Mission Trail to Grape St. 2,006,036$
Wildomar Trail Palomar St. to Grand Ave. -$
La Estrella St. Inland Valley Dr. to Crossroads St. 966,105$
Salida del Sol La Estrella St. to Clinton Keith Rd. 1,030,260$
Wildomar Trail Bayless Rd. to Wildomar Trail 1,589,736$
Wildomar Trail Wildomar Trail to Brillante Dr. 636,051$
Wildomar Trail Brillante Dr. to Clinton Keith Rd. 1,254,938$
Lemon St. Grape St. to Gafford Rd. 1,206,800$
Lost Rd. Gafford Rd. to City Limits 4,970,987$
Palomar St. Corydon Rd. to Mission Trail 1,426,742$
Grand Ave. Corydon Rd. to Clinton Keith Rd. 5,907,521$
Orange St. Bundy Canyon Rd. to Gruwell St. 3,476,561$
Gruwell St. Orange St. to Palomar St. 522,264$
McVicar St. Palomar St. to Grand Ave. 684,709$
La Estrella St. Susan Dr. to Inland Valley Dr. 529,406$
Depasquale Rd. Bayless Rd. to Inland Valley Dr. 990,564$
Stable Lanes Rd. Clinton Keith Rd. to Hidden Springs Rd. 840,741$
Wyman Rd. Stable Lanes Rd./Hidden Springs Rd. to City Limits 2,844,697$
Susan Dr. Wildomar Trail to La Estrella St. 1,238,363$
Bunny Trail Inland Valley Dr. to Elizabeth Ln. 1,482,695$
Yamas Dr. Clinton Keith Rd. to Prielipp Rd. 1,112,021$
Elizabeth Ln. Clinton Keith Rd. to Prielipp Rd. 1,112,021$
Jana Lane Clinton Keith Rd. to Prielipp Rd. 1,297,358$







APPENDIX A


DIF Bridges
Facility Cost Estimates


Project Total
Gruwell St. @ Murrieta Creek/Wildomar Channel 166,922$
Wildomar Trail (Central St.) @ Murrieta Creek/Wildomar Channel 259,656$
Wildomar Creek Culvert Extension @ McVicar St. 31,202$
Penrose St. Class I Connection @ Wildomar Channel 333,844$
La Estrella Street Bridge 6,360,937$







APPENDIX A


DIF Intersections
Facility Cost Estimates


Location Total DIF Cost
Share


Bundy Canyon Rd. x Cottonwood Canyon Rd. 121,652$
Bundy Canyon Rd. x Oak Circle Dr. 94,539$
Bundy Canyon Rd. x Orange St. 18,926$
Bundy Canyon Rd. x The Farm Rd. -$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Arya Dr. 94,539$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Elizabeth Ln. 94,539$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Hidden Springs Rd. -$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Inland Valley Dr. 148,764$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Renaissance Plaza 94,539$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Salida del Sol/Yamas Dr. 226,931$
Clinton Keith Rd. x Stable Lanes Rd. 208,004$
Grand Ave. x Corydon St. 18,926$
Grand Ave. x Gruwell St. 37,853$
Inland Valley Dr. x Prielipp Rd. 27,113$
Inland Valley Dr. x Wyman Rd. 92,078$
Palomar St. x Clinton Keith Rd. 244,176$
Palomar St. x Gruwell St. 37,853$
Palomar St. x Inland Valley/Washington 251,568$
Palomar St. x Mission Trail -$
Prielipp Rd. x Elizabeth Ln. -$
Wildomar Trail x Bayless Rd. -$







APPENDIX A


DIF Signals
Facility Cost Estimates


Location Cross Street Type Improvement DIF Cost
Share


Bundy Canyon Almond St. New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Bundy Canyon Corydon To be removed To be removed -$
Bundy Canyon Harvest Way East New 4-way Install new 4-way -$
Bundy Canyon Harvest Way West New 4-way Install new 4-way -$
Bundy Canyon I-15 NB Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way -$
Bundy Canyon I-15 SB Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way -$
Bundy Canyon Mission Trail Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 294,000$
Bundy Canyon Monte Vista Existing 3-way Complete - Maintain Existing 262,000$
Bundy Canyon Oak Circle Rd. New 3-way Install new 3-way 262,000$
Bundy Canyon Orange Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Bundy Canyon Orchard St. New 3-way Install new 3-way 262,000$
Bundy Canyon Sellers Existing 3-way Complete - Maintain Existing 294,000$
Bundy Canyon Sunset New 4-way Install new 4-way 196,000$
Bundy Canyon The Farm Existing 3-way Modify to Ultimate 3-way 262,000$
Bundy Canyon W/o Tulip New 3-way Install new 3-way -$
Clinton Keith Elizabeth New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Clinton Keith Wildomar Trail (George) Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Clinton Keith Grand Existing 3-way Modify to Ultimate 3-way 131,000$
Clinton Keith Hidden Springs Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 98,000$
Clinton Keith I-15 NB Existing 4-way Maintain Existing -$
Clinton Keith I-15 SB Existing 4-way Maintain Existing -$
Clinton Keith Inland Valley Existing 3-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 294,000$
Clinton Keith Palomar Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 392,000$
Clinton Keith Renaissance Plaza Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Clinton Keith Salida Del Sol/Yamas Dr. New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Clinton Keith Stable Lanes New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Clinton Keith Arya Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Clinton Keith Smith Ranch Road Existing 4-way Complete - Maintain Existing -$
Corydon Union Exsiting 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Grand Corydon Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 294,000$
Grand Gruwell New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Grand McVicar Stop Sign Stop Sign -$
Grand Shiela New Round-About Install new Roundabout 486,000$
Grand Ave Willow Bay Existing 4-way Maintain Existing -$
Inland Valley Hidden Springs New 4-way Install new 4-way -$
Inland Valley Prielipp New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Mission Trail Canyon Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Mission Trail Corydon Existing 3-way Modify to Ultimate 3-way 196,500$
Mission Trail Elberta Existing 4-way Maintain Existing -$
Mission Trail Lemon Existing 3-way Modify to Ultimate 3-way 131,000$
Mission Trail Malaga Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Mission Trail Olive Existing 3-way Modify to Ultimate 3-way 262,000$
Palomar Corydon Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Palomar Gruwell Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 392,000$
Palomar Inland Valley New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Palomar McVicar New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Palomar Mission Trail New 3-Way or New Roundabout Install new 3-way or new Roundabout 364,500$
Prielipp Elizabeth New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Prielipp Yamas (Salida Del Sol) New 3-way Install new 3-way 262,000$
Wildomar Trail Bayless Rd. New 3-way or Roundabout Install new 3-way or new Roundabout 364,500$
Wildomar Trail I-15 NB New 4-way Install new 4-way -$
Wildomar Trail I-15 SB New 4-way Install new 4-way -$
Wildomar Trail La Estrella New 4-way Install new 4-way 392,000$
Wildomar Trail (Central) Grand Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 196,000$
Wildomar Trail (Central) Palomar Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 392,000$
Wildomar Trail (Central) Wild Stallion/Cervera Existing 4-way Modify to Ultimate 4-way 392,000$
Wildomar Trail (Central/Baxter) Baxter Rd. New 3-way Install new 3-way -$
Wildomar Trail (Central/Baxter) Monte Vista New 3-way Install new 3-way 262,000$







Prepared by NBS for the City of Wildomar


APPENDIX B


Trails







APPENDIX B


DIF Trails
Facility Cost Estimates


Street or Location Segment Trail Type Total Cost
27 Acre Park Wildomar Trail to La Estrella Multi-Use Trail  $      235,458
Bryant St. Palomar St. to Grand Ave. Multi-Use Trail  $      550,374
Bundy Canyon Rd. Monte Vista Dr. to Eastern City Limits Class I - Multi-Use Path  $   2,318,130
Corydon St. Grand Ave. to Mission Trail Multi-Use Trail  $   1,632,775
Fredrick-O'Neal-Sauer Monte Vista Dr. Loop to Wildomar Trail Multi-Use Trail  $   1,773,426
Gafford Rd. Vista del Agua to Lost Rd./Lemon St. Multi-Use Trail  $      911,174
Geirson Ave. Prairie Rd. to Wildomar Channel (Lateral C, Stage 2) Multi-Use Trail  $        84,642
Grand Ave. Corydon St. to Clinton Keith Rd. Multi-Use Trail  $   1,412,626
Grape St. City Limits/Malaga Rd. to Lemon St. Class I - Multi-Use Path  $   1,224,673
Gruwell St. Orange St. to Palomar St. Multi-Use Trail  $      166,131
Gruwell St. Palomar St. to Grand Ave. Class I - Multi-Use Path  $      393,645
Gruwell St. Grand Ave. to Alameda del Monte Multi-Use Trail  $      155,939
Inland Valley Dr. La Estrella St. to Bayless Rd. Multi-Use Trail  $      882,636
La Estrella St. Crossroads St. to Eastern City Limits Class I - Multi-Use Path  $      699,813
La Estrella St. Susan Dr. to Inland Valley Dr. Multi-Use Trail  $      428,068
Lemon St. Mission Trail to Lost Rd./Gafford Rd. Multi-Use Trail  $   1,467,663
Lost Rd. Lemon St./Gafford Rd. to Northern City Limits Multi-Use Trail  $   1,773,426
McVicar St. Fortunado Way to Grand Ave. Multi-Use Trail  $      264,995
Mission Trail Lemon St. to Palomar St. Multi-Use Trail  $   1,452,375
Monte Vista Dr. Bundy Canyon Rd. to Wildomar Trail Multi-Use Trail  $   1,386,126
Murrieta Creek Regional Trail Wesley St. to Cole Canyon Class I - Multi-Use Path  $   2,478,504
Mustang Spirit Ln. EVMWD Access
Road Prielipp Rd. to Mustang Spirit Ln. Multi-Use Trail  $      172,361


Oak Springs Ranch Trail Bunny Trail to Wildomar Trail Multi-Use Trail  $      353,956
Orange St. Bundy Canyon Rd. to Gruwell St. Multi-Use Trail  $   1,428,933
Palomar St. Corydon Rd. to Washington Ave. Multi-Use Trail  $   4,657,792
Penrose St. Bridge Darby St. to Front St. Class I - Multi-Use Path  $        72,897
Raciti Rd. Bundy Canyon Rd. to Vista del Agua Multi-Use Trail  $      866,329
RCFC Bundy Canyon Channel Valley Vista Cr. to Monte Vista Dr. Multi-Use Trail  $      130,810
RCFC Wildomar Channel - Lateral A
(Torbett Family Trail)


West of Wilson St. to Confluence with Wildomar Channel
(main line) Multi-Use Trail  $      615,576


RCFC Wildomar Channel - Lateral B Grand Ave./Willow Bay Rd. to Confluence with Wildomar
Channel (main line) Class I - Multi-Use Path  $      247,850


RCFC Wildomar Channel - Lateral C,
Stage 2 Gierson Ave./South Pasadena St. to Palomar St. Multi-Use Trail  $      284,704


RCFC Wildomar Channel - Stage 4 Union St./Sundrops Ln. to Wesley St. Class I - Multi-Use Path  $      145,794
Regency Heritage Park Trailwood Ct. to Union St. Class I - Multi-Use Path  $        80,187
Starbuck Cr. Palomar St. to Murrieta Creek Multi-Use Trail  $      336,339
Starbuck Cr. Extension Starbuck Cr. to Southern City Limit Multi-Use Trail  $      186,212
Sunset Ave. Extension Bundy Canyon Rd. to La Estrella St. Class I - Multi-Use Path  $   2,041,121
Susan Dr. Wildomar Trail to La Estrella Multi-Use Trail  $      542,220
TR 23111-1 Drainage Channel Palomar St. to Grand Ave. Multi-Use Trail  $      415,514
Tulip Ln. Extension Bundy Canyon Rd. to Oneal Rd. Multi-Use Trail  $      400,125
Wesley St. Grand Ave. to Laguna Rd. Multi-Use Trail  $      857,156
Wildomar Trail Palomar St. to Clinton Keith Rd. Multi-Use Trail  $   3,375,625







Prepared by NBS for the City of Wildomar


APPENDIX C


Drainage Improvements







APPENDIX C


DIF Drainage
Facility Cost Estimates


Facility Total Cost


Subregion A4 4,092,000$
Subregion M1 353,000$
Subregion M2 5,586,000$
Subregion M3 2,466,000$
Subregion M4 1,940,000$
Subregion M5 143,000$
Subregion S1 2,591,000$
Subregion S2 4,503,000$
Subregion S3 12,481,000$
Subregion S4 2,434,000$
Subregion S5 19,588,000$
Subregion S6 2,856,000$
Subregion W1 5,109,000$
Subregion W2 828,000$
Subregion W3 785,000$
Subregion W4 1,988,000$
Subregion W5 6,544,000$
Subregion W6 1,260,000$
Subregion W7 4,886,000$
Subregion W8 1,106,000$
Murrieta Creek Channel Portion 8,853,000$
Murrieta MDP Line J 10,819,000$
Wildomar MDP Lateral A 14,362,000$
Wildomar MDP Lateral C 17,842,000$
Wildomar MDP Lateral C-2 1,176,000$
Wildomar MDP Lateral C-3 795,000$
Wildomar MDP Lateral C Basin 14,878,000$
Wildomar MDP Line D 303,000$
Sedco MDP Line F-2 782,000$







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.1 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update  


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the COVID-19 update and 
provide direction as desired. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff will be providing an update on actions taken by the City in response to COVID-19 
and is requesting Council to provide direction as desired.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted & Approved by:      
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager   
     
ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR - CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.2 


      GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
  James R. Riley, Project Consultant 
 
SUBJECT: Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and CR&R 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Fifth Amendment to the Franchise 
Agreement between the City and CR&R Incorporated and authorize the City Manager to 
sign it. This amendment would be effective January 1, 2022. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
On June 10, 2009, the City entered into an agreement with CR&R Incorporated for the 
collection and transportation of solid waste, recyclable materials, green waste, 
construction debris and other specified services, which has since been amended by the 
First, Second, Third and Fourth Amendments. 
 
The purpose of the Fifth Amendment is to comply with legislation enacted by the State of 
California. The State of California has found and declared that the amount of Solid Waste 
generated in California, coupled with diminishing disposal capacity and interest in 
minimizing potential environmental impacts from landfilling and the need to conserve 
natural resources, have created an urgent need for State and local agencies to enact and 
implement aggressive integrated waste management programs. The State has, through 
enactment of the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939) 
(California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq.) and subsequent related 
legislation including, but not limited to: the Jobs and Recycling Act of 2011 (AB 341), the 
Event and Venue Recycling Act of 2004 (AB 2176), SB 1016 (Chapter 343, Statutes of 
2008 [Wiggins, SB 1016]), the Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling Act of 2014 
(AB 1826), and the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Bill of 2016 (SB 1383), directed the 
responsible State agency, and all local agencies, to promote a reduction in landfill 
disposal and to maximize the use of feasible waste reduction, reuse, recycling, and 
composting options in order to reduce the amount of material that must be disposed. 
 
SB 1383 establishes regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, Generators, haulers, solid 
waste facilities, and other entities to support achievement of State-wide organic waste 
disposal reduction targets. These requirements must be in place effective January 1, 
2022. The Fifth Amendment incorporates requirements of SB 1383 and its implementing 
regulations.  Specifically, the Fifth Amendment requires the franchisee to implement 
source-separated green container organic waste collection for all customers in the City. 
Food scraps, food-soiled paper, and yard trimmings will be collected in the green 
container provided by the franchisee. The Fifth Amendment also requires the franchisee 







  
 


 


to implement contamination monitoring to ensure that waste is being appropriately 
separated by customers and provide commercial edible food generators with a list of food 
recovery organizations and services, such as food banks and other charitable 
organizations, to help minimize food waste. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The City receives a proportionate share of the service fees collected by the franchisee. A 
proposed increase in Commercial service fees will be noticed according to Proposition 
218 to Commercial customers prior to implementation of new fees in July 2022. City costs 
will also increase due to new requirements for oversight and enforcement required by the 
SB 1383. This increase in City costs will be offset by the proportionate increase in service 
fees received by the franchisee.  
 
Submitted by:        Approved by: 
Robert Howell        Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director       City Manager  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
A. Fifth Amendment to Franchise Agreement. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  
 


 


 
 
 
 
 


ATTACHMENT A 
 
 


Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement  
 


Between the  
 


City of Wildomar  
 


And 
 


CR&R Incorporated 
  
 
 
 
 


 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  


FIFTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR AND CR&R INCORPORATED FOR THE 


COLLECTION AND TRANSPORTATION OF SOLID WASTE AND 
OTHER SPECIFIED SERVICES 


 
 


This Fifth Amendment to Agreement between the City of Wildomar and CR&R Incorporated for 
the Collection and Transportation of Solid Waste and Other Specified Services (“Fifth 
Amendment”) is entered into this ___ day of ____________, 2021 by and between the City of 
Wildomar, a California general law city and municipal corporation (“City”) and CR&R 
Incorporated, a California corporation (“Franchisee”). 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, on or about June 10, 2009, the City and Franchisee entered into an 
Agreement for the Collection and Transportation of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Green 
Waste, Construction Debris and Other Specified Services, which has been amended by the First 
Amendment, Second Amendment, Third Amendment and Fourth Amendment (individually and 
collectively, the “Agreement”); and, 


 
WHEREAS, the State of California has found and declared that the amount of Solid 


Waste generated in California, coupled with diminishing disposal capacity and interest in 
minimizing potential environmental impacts from landfilling and the need to conserve natural 
resources, have created an urgent need for State and local agencies to enact and implement 
aggressive integrated waste management programs. The State has, through enactment of the 
California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939) (California Public Resources 
Code Section 40000, et seq.) and subsequent related legislation including, but not limited to: the 
Jobs and Recycling Act of 2011 (AB 341), the Event and Venue Recycling Act of 2004 (AB 
2176), SB 1016 (Chapter 343, Statutes of 2008 [Wiggins, SB 1016]), the Mandatory Commercial 
Organics Recycling Act of 2014 (AB 1826), and the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Bill of 2016 
(SB 1383), directed the responsible State agency, and all local agencies, to promote a reduction 
in landfill disposal and to maximize the use of feasible waste reduction, reuse, recycling, and 
composting options in order to reduce the amount of material that must be disposed; and, 


WHEREAS, SB 1383 establishes regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, Generators, 
haulers, solid waste facilities, and other entities to support achievement of State-wide organic 
waste disposal reduction targets; and 


WHEREAS, regulations implementing SB 1383 require the City to implement collection 
programs, meet processing facility requirements, conduct contamination monitoring, provide 
education, maintain records, submit reports, monitor compliance, conduct enforcement, and 
fulfill other requirements; and, the City has chosen to delegate some of its responsibilities to the 
Franchisee, acting as the City’s designee, and Franchisee desires to take on these responsibilities; 
and 


WHEREAS, City and Franchisee desire to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  2 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises made and recited herein, the 
parties do hereby enter into this Fifth Amendment as follows: 


 
1. DEFINITIONS.   


1.1 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to delete the definitions of 
“Compost,” “Compost Facility,” “Extremely Hazardous Waste,” “Solid Waste Facility,” and 
“System Facility.” 


1.2 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to add or amend, as 
applicable, the following definitions: 


“Back-Haul” means generating and transporting Organic Waste to a destination owned 
and operated by the Generator using the Generator’s own employees and equipment, or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66)(A).  


“Blue Container or Lid” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and 
shall be used for the purpose of storage and Collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials 
(SSBCOW).  


“California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code of 
Regulations. CCR references in this Agreement are preceded with a number that refers to the 
relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12” refers to Title 14, Division 7, 
Chapter 12 of the California Code of Regulations). 


“CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, 
which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and 
enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on jurisdictions and other regulated entities.  


“Commercial Edible Food Generators” includes Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generators and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(7). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery Organizations and 
Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators, or as otherwise specified 
by 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 


“Compostable Plastics” or “Compostable Plastic” means plastic materials that meet 
the ASTM D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in 14 CCR Section 
18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C). 


“Diversion (or any variation thereof including “Divert”)” means activities which reduce 
or eliminate Discarded Materials from Disposal, including, but not limited to, source reduction, 
Reuse, salvage, Recycling, and composting. 


“Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, Edible Food is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this 
Agreement requires or authorizes the recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  3 


requirements of the California Retail Food Code. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(18) for Edible Food differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(18) shall apply to this Agreement. 


“Excluded Waste” means Hazardous Substance, Hazardous Waste, Infectious Waste, 
Designated Waste, volatile, corrosive, Medical Waste, infectious, regulated radioactive waste, 
and toxic substances or material that Facility operator(s) reasonably believe(s) would, as a result 
of or upon acceptance, Transfer, Processing, or Disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal 
law, regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot be 
Disposed of in Class III Landfills or accepted at the Facility by permit conditions, waste that in 
Franchisee’s reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to human health or the 
environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise create or expose Franchisee or City to potential 
liability; but not including de minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount 
normally found in Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs 
for the safe Collection, Processing, Recycling, treatment, and Disposal of batteries and paint in 
compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code.  


“Facility” or “System Facility” or “Solid Waste Facility” means a Solid Waste 
Facility, as defined in Public Resources Code section 40194, that for the purposes of this 
Agreement is designated by the City to be used by the Franchisee for the processing, recovery 
and/or disposal of Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste. 


“Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption 
which otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24). 


“Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that primarily engages in the collection 
or receipt of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible 
Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities, including, but not 
limited to:  


A. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;  
B. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and 


Safety code; and,  
C. A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the 


Health and Safety Code.  


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization differs 
from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply to this 
Agreement. 


“Food Recovery Service” means a Person or entity that collects and transports Edible 
Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other 
entities for Food Recovery; or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). 


“Food Scraps” means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, 
poultry, seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. [Food Scraps 
excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food 
Scraps.] 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  4 


“Food-Soiled Paper” means compostable paper material that has come in contact with 
food or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, 
pizza boxes, and milk cartons.  


“Food Waste” means Source Separated Food Scraps, Food-Soiled Paper, and 
Compostable Plastics.  Food Waste is a subset of SSGCOW. Edible Food separated for Food 
Recovery shall not be considered Food Waste. 


“Generator” means the owner or occupant of a premises, including residences or 
businesses, which initially produces Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials and Organic 
Waste. 


 
“Gray Container or Lid” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(28) and 


shall be used for the purpose of storage and Collection of Gray Container Waste. 
 


“Gray Container Waste” means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container as 
specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
17402(a)(6.5). [Gray Container Waste may specifically include carpet, and textiles.]  


 “Green Container or Lid” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) 
and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste (SSGCOW).  
 
 “Hauler Route(s)” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment 
of the City’s collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5).  


“Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea 
market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average 
of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but 
is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street 
system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) shall 
apply to this Agreement. 


“Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an 
average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of 
the venue facility. For purposes of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and this Agreement, a venue 
facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated 
stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, 
airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other 
public attraction facility. For purposes of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and this Agreement, a 
site under common ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is 
contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the definition in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(39) shall apply to this Agreement. 


“Non-Compostable Paper” includes, but is not limited to, paper that is coated in a 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  5 


plastic material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(41). 


“Non-organic recyclables” or “Recyclable Material” means non-putrescible and non-
hazardous recyclable wastes including, but not limited to, bottles, cans, metals, plastics, and 
glass, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43). Non-Organic Recyclables are a 
subset of Source Separated Recyclable Materials. 


“Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living 
organisms and their metabolic waste products including, but not limited to, food, Yard 
Trimmings, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and Writing 
Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(4) and 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(16.5), respectively. 


“Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, 
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling; or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 


“Performance-based Compliance Approach” means the method of complying with the 
SB 1383 Regulations through implementation of a collection system, programs, and policies in 
accordance with 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 17, or as otherwise defined by 
18982(a)(52.5), and all associated requirements. 


“Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, 
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, manila 
envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, 
posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and publications; or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(54). 


“Process” or “Processing” means the controlled separation, recovery, volume reduction, 
conversion, or Recycling of Solid Waste including, but not limited to, organized, manual, 
automated, or mechanical sorting, the use of vehicles for spreading of waste for the purpose of 
recovery, and/or includes the use of conveyor belts, sorting lines, or volume reduction 
equipment, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(20). 


“Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (i) Discarded Materials 
placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials for the City’s Blue Container; (ii) Discarded Materials placed in the Green Container 
that are not identified as acceptable SSGCOW for the City’s Green Container; (iii) Discarded 
Materials placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials and/or SSGCOW to be placed in City’s Green Container and/or Blue Container; and 
(iv) Excluded Waste placed in any Container. 


“Recycle” or “Recycling” means the process of Collecting, sorting, cleansing, treating, 
and reconfiguring materials for the purpose of returning them to the economic mainstream in the 
form of raw material for new, Reused, or reconstituted products that meet the quality standards 
necessary to be used in the marketplace. Recycling includes processes deemed to constitute a 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  6 


reduction of Landfill Disposal pursuant to 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 2. Recycling 
does not include gasification or transformation as defined in Public Resources Code Section 
40201. 


“Reuse” or any variation thereof, means the use, in the same, or similar, form as it was 
produced, of a material which might otherwise be discarded, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 17402.5(b)(2).  


“SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 
2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and Safety 
Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the 
Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a statewide effort to 
reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, superseded, and 
replaced from time to time.  


“SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” refers to the Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Reductions regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted 
in 2020 that created Chapter 12 of 14 CCR, Division 7 and amended portions of regulations of 
14 CCR and 27 CCR. 


“Service Level” refers to the number and size of a Generator’s Container(s) and the 
frequency of Collection service, as well as ancillary services such as lock/unlock service, 
Container push/pull service, etc. 


“Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in PRC Section 40191, which defines 
Solid Waste as all putrescible and nonputrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including 
garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction 
wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, 
dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, 
vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, 
with the exception that Solid Waste does not include any of the following wastes: 


(1) Hazardous waste, as defined in PRC Section 40141. 


(2) Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the Radiation Control Law (Chapter 8 
(commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code). 


(3) Medical waste regulated pursuant to the Medical Waste Management Act (Part 
14, commencing with Section 117600, of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code). 
Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a solid waste Landfill, as defined in PRC 
Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be 
regulated pursuant to PRC, Division 30. 


As used in this Agreement, Solid Waste includes Organic Waste and Recyclable 
Materials, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 


“Source Separated” means materials, including commingled Recyclable materials, that 
have been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  7 


the purpose of additional sorting or Processing those materials for Recycling or Reuse in order to 
return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, reused, or 
reconstituted products which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of the Agreement, 
Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the Generator, Property Owner, 
Property Owner’s employee, property manager, or property manager’s employee into different 
Containers for the purpose of Collection such that Source Separated materials are separated from 
Gray Container Waste and other Solid Waste for the purposes of Collection and Processing.  
 


“Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste” or “SSBCOW” means Source 
Separated Organic Wastes that can be placed in a Blue Container that is limited to the collection 
of those Organic Wastes and Non-Organic Recyclables as defined in Section 18982(a)(43), or as 
otherwise defined by Section 17402(a)(18.7).  


 
“Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste” or “SSGCOW” means Source 


Separated Organic Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for 
the separate collection of Organic Waste by the Generator, excluding Source Separated Blue 
Container Organic Waste, carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.  


“Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Source Separated Non-Organic 
Recyclables and SSBCOW.  


“Standard Compliance Approach” means the method for complying with the SB 1383 
Regulations through implementation of a collection system pursuant to 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12, Article 3, and all associated program and policy requirements 


“Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following, each as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982: 


A. Supermarket. 
B. Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet. 
C. Food Service Provider. 
D. Food Distributor. 
E. Wholesale Food Vendor. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall apply 
to this Agreement. 


“Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following, each as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982: 


A. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 
5,000 square feet. 


B. Hotel with an on-site food facility and 200 or more rooms. 
C. Health facility with an on-site food facility and 100 or more beds. 
D. Large Venue. 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  8 


E. Large Event. 
F. A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size 


equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet. 
G. A local education agency with an on-site food facility. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall apply 
to this Agreement. 


“Yard Trimmings” means types of SSGCOW resulting from normal yard and 
landscaping installation, maintenance, or removal that the Generators Source Separate and set 
out in Green Containers for Collection for the purpose of Processing by the Franchisee.  


2. SCOPE OF FRANCHISE.  All references to “Green Waste” in Section 3 (Grant and 
Term of Exclusive Franchise) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.” 


3. OWNERSHIP OF WASTE. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 6 (Ownership 
of Solid Waste) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.” 


4. FRANCHISE FEES. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 15 (Franchise Fees) 
shall be changed to “Organic Waste.” 


5. PROCUREMENT. A new paragraph E (Procurement) is added to Section 16 (Other 
Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows: 


“Franchisee agrees to coordinate and cooperate with the City to meet its Organic Waste 
produce procurement target, as required by SB 1383 Regulations.” 


6. CONTAINERS. A new paragraph J (Container Requirements) is added to Section 5 
(Services Provided by Franchisee) to read as follows: 


“Franchisee shall use the Franchisee-provided Collection containers that are currently 
located at Generators’ premises or provide Generators with collection containers from 
Franchisee’s current inventory.  


On or before January 1, 2022, (or if using Performance-based Compliance Approach, 
then until color compliant containers are provided), Franchisee shall place a label on the body or 
lid of each container that has been provided to a Generator that includes language or graphic 
images, or both, that indicate the primary materials accepted and the primary materials 
prohibited in that container. Labels shall clearly indicate items that are Prohibited Container 
Contaminants for each container. Prior to ordering labels for containers, Franchisee shall submit 
a copy of its proposed label, proposed location(s) for placement of labels on each type of 
container, and its labeling plan to the City for approval. 


No later than January 1, 2036, Franchisee shall provide all Generators with collection 
containers that comply with the container color requirements specified in this Agreement or as 
otherwise specified in the SB 1383 Regulations. If an existing container breaks or is otherwise 
rendered non-functional on or after January 1, 2022, the Franchisee shall replace the non-







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  9 


functional container with a container that complies with the color requirements of the SB 1383 
Regulations. Notwithstanding this paragraph, the Franchisee is not required to replace functional 
containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 2022, that do not comply with the 
color requirements of this Agreement prior to the end of the useful life of those containers, or 
prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first. 


7. IDENTIFICATION OF FACILITIES.  A new paragraph K (Identification of 
Facilities) is added to Section 16 (Other Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows: 


“If using a Standard Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall identify the Facilities to 
which they will transport Organic Waste as required by the SB 1383 Regulations.” 


8. PROVIDED SERVICES.  Exhibit “A” (Provided Services) is amended in its entirety to 
read as shown in Exhibit A-1 to this 5th Amendment. 


9. DIVERSION SERVICES.   


9.1 Section 5, paragraph H (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from 
the Agreement. 


9.2 Exhibit “H” (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from the 
Agreement. 


10. INDEMNIFICATION.  A new paragraph H is added to Section 8 of the Agreement to 
read as follows: 


Franchisee’s duty to defend and indemnify herein includes payment of all fines and/or penalties 
imposed by CalRecycle, subject to the restrictions set forth in Public Resources Code Section 
40059.1, if the requirements of AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, and/or SB 1383 and corresponding 
regulations are not met by the Franchisee with respect to Solid Waste collected under this 
Agreement, and such failure is: (i) due to the failure of Franchisee to meet its obligations under 
this Agreement, or, (ii) due to Franchisee delays in providing information that prevents 
Franchisee or City from submitting reports required by AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, and/or SB 
1383 and corresponding regulations in a timely manner. The foregoing indemnity is expressly 
conditioned upon the City’s implementation of required programs or activities, requested by the 
Franchisee, which are within the City’s authority and ability to implement and which would be 
effective as a means to increase diversion and maintain compliance with State regulations. The 
provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 


11. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 


11.1 Remainder Unchanged.  Except as specifically modified and amended in this Fifth 
Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect and binding upon the 
parties. 


11.2 Integration.  This Fifth Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  10 


between the parties with respect to all or any part of the transaction discussed in 
this Fifth Amendment. 


11.3 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original. All counterparts shall be construed together 
and shall constitute one agreement. 


11.4 Effective Date.  This Fifth Amendment shall not become effective until January 1, 
2022. 


11.5 Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the 
interpretation and enforcement of this Fifth Amendment. 


11.6 References.  All references to the Agreement include all their respective terms 
and provisions.  All defined terms utilized in this Fifth Amendment have the same 
meaning as provided in the Agreement, unless expressly stated to the contrary in 
this Fifth Amendment. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth Amendment on 
the date and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 


Janet Morales, City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


______________________________ 


Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  11 


CR&R INCORPORATED 


By:   By:   


 _________________________________   


 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ___________________________ 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  12 


EXHIBIT A-1 


PROVIDED SERVICES 


I. Three-Container Collection Program 


A. General. Beginning January 1, 2022, Franchisee shall provide a three-container 
Collection program for the separate Collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials, 
SSGCOW, and Gray Container Waste as specified in this Agreement, using containers that 
comply with the requirements of this Agreement and SB 1383 Regulations. Franchisee shall not 
knowingly Collect Blue, Green, or Gray Containers that include Prohibited Container 
Contaminants.  


B. Source Separated Recyclable Materials Collection (Blue Container or Lid). 
Franchisee shall provide Blue Containers to Generators for Collection of Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials and shall provide Source Separated Recyclable Materials Collection 
service, Franchisee shall transport the Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a Facility that 
recovers the materials designated for Collection, in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations. 


Source Separated Recyclable Materials that are to be accepted for Collection in the 
Source Separated Recyclable Materials Collection program include the following: (i) Non-
Organic Recyclables such as: aluminum, glass bottles and jars, rigid plastics (marked # 1 through 
# 7),  tin and bi-metal cans; and (ii) SSBCOW such as: Paper Products, Printing and Writing 
Papers, wood and dry lumber.   


C. SSGCOW Collection (Green Container or Lid). Franchisee shall provide 
Green Containers to Generators for Collection of SSGCOW and shall provide SSGCOW 
Collection service. Franchisee shall transport the SSGCOW to a Facility in accordance with SB 
1383 Regulations. 


SSGCOW that are to be accepted for Collection in the SSGCOW Collection program 
include the following: Food Scraps; Food-Soiled Paper; Yard Trimmings, and Compostable 
Plastics. Carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, textiles, and Prohibited Container Contaminants shall 
not be Collected in the Green Containers. Yard Trimmings that are to be accepted for Collection 
in the SSGCOW Collection program include the following: green trimmings, grass, weeds, 
flowers, leaves, prunings, branches, dead plants, brush, tree trimmings, dead trees weighing no 
more than 50lbs, and other types of SSGCOW resulting from normal yard and landscaping 
installation, maintenance, or removal, provided all SSGCOW fits inside the Green Container 
with the lid closed and does not exceed 150 pounds.  


Franchisee may Collect compliant Compostable Plastics in the Green Containers for 
Processing. At least two (2) months prior to the commencement of the Collection of 
Compostable Plastics in the SSGCOW program, Franchisee shall provide written notification to 
the City whether the Facility can or cannot Process and recover these Compostable Plastics in 
accordance with SB 1383 Regulations. If the Facility can process and recover Compostable 
Plastics, and Franchisee elects to Collect Compostable Plastics in the Green Container, then 
Franchisee shall provide annual written notification to the City that the Facility has and will 
continue to have the capabilities to Process and recover the Compostable Plastics. If the Facility 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  13 


cannot process and recover Compostable Plastics, then Franchisee will not Collect Compostable 
Plastics in the Green Container. It is also understood that Franchisee proposes to process the 
City’s organics through its Anaerobic Digester Facility (AD). AD Facilities do not accept 
compostable plastics at the current time.  


Franchisee may require Generators to place Food Waste in plastic bags or other 
wrappings and put the bagged or wrapped Food Waste in the Green Container. At least two  (2) 
months prior to the commencement of the use of plastic bags for the Food Waste program, 
Franchisee shall provide written notification to the City that allowing the use of bags does not 
inhibit the ability of the City to comply with SB 1383 Regulations, and that the Facility can 
Process and remove plastic bags when it recovers SSGCOW. Franchisee shall provide annual 
written notification to the City that the Facility has and will continue to have the capabilities to 
Process and remove plastic bags when it recovers SSGCOW. It is also understood that 
Franchisee proposes to process the City’s organics through its Anaerobic Digester Facility (AD). 
AD Facilities do not accept plastic bags or other wrappings at the current time. 


D. Gray Container Waste Collection. Franchisee shall provide Gray Containers or 
Lids to Generators for Collection of Gray Container Waste and shall provide Gray Container 
Waste Collection service. Franchisee shall transport the Gray Container Waste to a Facility in 
accordance with the SB 1383 Regulations. Franchisee may allow carpets, and textiles to be 
placed in the Gray Containers. Prohibited Container Contaminants shall not be Collected in the 
Gray Containers.  


II. Contamination Monitoring 


A. Route Reviews and Waste Evaluations.   


Franchisee shall meet its SB 1383 Regulations contamination monitoring requirements 
commencing January 1, 2022, using either Route Reviews or Waste Evaluations; provided 
however, that if Franchisee complies with SB 1383 Regulations using a Performance-based 
Compliance Approach, it shall monitor containers using waste evaluations, as outlined herein: 


Franchisee shall meet its SB 1383 Regulations contamination monitoring requirements 
commencing January 1, 2022, using route reviews as outlined herein: 


1. Franchisee shall conduct Hauler Route reviews for Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in Collection Containers in a manner that is deemed safe by the Franchisee; is 
approved by the City; is conducted in a manner that results in all Hauler Routes being reviewed 
annually, and is consistent and in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations. Containers may be 
randomly selected along the Hauler Route. This Section should not be construed to require that 
every container on a Hauler Route must be sampled annually.  


2. Upon finding Prohibited Container Contaminants in the container, Franchisee 
shall follow the contamination monitoring noticing procedures paragraph B.3 of this Section II. 


3. Franchisee shall maintain all applicable records required under SB 1383 
Regulations, and report to the City on a quarterly basis on contamination monitoring activities, 
route reviews and/or waste evaluations, and actions taken.  







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  14 


 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this paragraph A shall not prohibit Franchisee 
from meeting its compliance requirements by any alternative methods or procedures, provided it 
complies with SB 1383, the SB 1383 Regulations, and/or any other applicable law, as may be 
amended from time to time. 


B. Waste Evaluations 


Alternatively, if Franchisee elects to perform Waste Evaluations, Franchisee shall, 
conduct waste evaluations that comply with and meet the requirements of 14 CCR Section 
18984.5(c). The City maintains the right to observe, or hire a third party to observe, the waste 
evaluations. 


1. Sampling Method, Study Protocols. The Franchisee shall conduct waste 
evaluations for Prohibited Container Contaminants by sampling the contents of Containers on 
Hauler Routes in the following manner: 


a. If using a Standard Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall conduct waste 
evaluations at least twice per year and in two distinct seasons of the year in a manner that 
complies with the requirements of 14 CCR section 18984.5(c). If using a Performance-
based Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall conduct waste evaluations at least twice 
per year for the Blue and Green Containers and at least once per quarter for the Gray 
Containers.  


b. The Franchisee’s waste evaluations shall include samples of Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials, SSGCOW, and Gray Container Waste. 


c. The waste evaluations shall include samples from each Container type 
served by the Franchisee and shall include samples taken from different areas in the City 
that are representative of the City’s waste stream.  


d. The waste evaluations shall include at least the minimum number of 
samples specified in SB 1383 Regulations.  


e. The Franchisee shall Transport all of the material Collected for sampling 
to a sorting area at a permitted solid waste Facility where the presence of Prohibited 
Container Contaminants for each Container type shall be measured to determine the ratio 
of Prohibited Container Contaminants present in each material stream by weight. To 
determine the ratio of Prohibited Container Contaminants, the Franchisee shall use the 
following protocol: 


  i. The Franchisee shall take one sample of at least a 200 pounds from 
the material Collected from each material stream for sampling.  


  ii. The 200-pound sample shall be randomly selected from different 
areas of the pile of Collected material for that material stream. 


  iii. For each 200-pound sample, the Franchisee shall remove any 
Prohibited Container Contaminants and determine the weight of Prohibited 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  15 


Container Contaminants. 


  iv. The Franchisee shall determine the ratio of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in the sample by dividing the total weight of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants by the total weight of the sample. 


  2. Contamination Response. If the sampled weight of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of the measured sample for any material 
stream, the Franchisee shall:  


  a. If using a Performance-based Compliance Approach, notify the City 
within fifteen (15) working days of the waste evaluation.  


  b. Within fifteen (15) working days of the waste evaluation, notify all 
Generators on the sampled Hauler Route of their requirement to properly separate 
materials into the appropriate Containers. The Franchisee may provide this information 
by placing a written notice on the Generators’ Containers or the gate or door of the 
Premises; and/or by mail, email, or electronic message to the Generators. The format of 
the warning notice shall be approved by the City. 


  c. If using a Performance-based Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall 
allow a representative of the City and/or CalRecycle to oversee its next scheduled 
quarterly sampling of the Gray Containers, upon request. 


3. Material Exceptions. Organic Waste that is textiles, carpet, hazardous wood 
waste, human waste, pet waste, or material subject to a quarantine on movement issued by a 
County agricultural commissioner is not required to be measured as Organic Waste when 
calculating the amount of Organic Waste present in the Gray Container Waste. 


B. Actions upon Identification of Prohibited Container Contaminants. 


Upon finding Prohibited Container Contaminants in a Container, Franchisee shall follow 
the protocols set forth in this Section. 


1. Record Keeping. The driver or other Franchisee representative shall record each 
event of identification of Prohibited Container Contaminants in a written log or in the on-board 
computer system including date, time, Generator’s address, type of container (Blue, Green, or 
Gray Container). 


2. Courtesy Pick-Up Notices. Upon identification of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in a Generator’s container, Franchisee shall provide the Generator a courtesy pick-
up notice. The courtesy pick-up notification shall: (i) inform the Generator of the observed 
presence of Prohibited Container Contaminants; (ii) include the date and time the Prohibited 
Container Contaminants were observed; (iii) include information on the Generator’s requirement 
to properly separate materials into the appropriate containers, and the accepted and prohibited 
materials for Collection in the Blue Container, Green Container, and/or Gray Container; (iv) 
inform the Generator of the courtesy pick-up of the contaminated materials on this occasion with 
information that following three consecutive instances of Prohibited Container Contaminants 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  16 


within a six-month time period, Franchisee may assess contamination Processing fees. 
Franchisee shall leave the courtesy pick-up notice attached to or adhered to the Generator’s 
contaminated containers; at the Premises’ door or gate; or, subject to City’s approval, may 
deliver the notice by mail, e-mail, text message, or other electronic message. 


3. Notice of Assessment of Contamination Processing Fees. If the Franchisee 
observes Prohibited Container Contaminants in a Generator’s Container on more than three 
consecutive occasions within a six-month time period, and issued courtesy pick-up notices on 
each of those occasions, the Franchisee may impose a contamination Processing fee of $35.00 
(which will be adjusted annually pursuant to the same CPI Index used for annual rate 
adjustments). Franchisee shall notify the City in its quarterly report of Generators for which 
contamination Processing fees were assessed. Franchisee shall leave a contamination Processing 
fee notice attached to or adhered to the Generators’ contaminated containers; at the Premises’ 
door or gate; or, subject to City’s approval, may deliver the notice by mail, e-mail, text message, 
or other electronic message. The contamination Processing fee notice shall describe the specific 
material(s) of issue, explain how to correct future set outs, and indicate that the Generator will be 
charged a contamination Processing fee on its next bill. The format of the contamination 
Processing fee notice shall be approved by the City. 


 C. Disposal of Contaminated Materials. If the Franchisee observes Prohibited 
Container Contaminants in a Generator’s Container(s), Franchisee may dispose of the 
Container’s contents, provided Franchisee complies with the noticing requirements in subsection 
A above. 


III. Education and Outreach 


A. Franchisee shall, at its sole expense, create all applicable education materials and 
conduct all education programs and activities as provided by and in accordance with the SB 1383 
Regulations. Franchisee shall cooperate and coordinate with the City on public education 
activities. 


B. On or before February 1, 2022, the Franchisee shall develop a list of Food 
Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services operating within the City, maintain the list 
on the Franchisee’s City-specific website, share the list with the City if the City wants to post the 
list on additional City websites, and update the list annually. The list shall include, at a 
minimum, the following information about each Food Recovery Organization and each Food 
Recovery Service: 


 1. Name and physical address; 


 2. Contact information; 


 3. Collection service area; and, 


 4. An indication of types of Edible Food the Food Recovery Service or Food 
Recovery Organization can accept for Food Recovery.  


C. At least annually, the Franchisee shall provide Commercial Edible Food 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  17 


Generators with the following information: 


1. Information about the City’s Edible Food Recovery program; 


2. Information about the Commercial Edible Food Generator requirements 
under 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 10; 


3. Information about Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery 
Services operating within the City, and where a list of those Food 
Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services can be found; and, 


4. Information about actions that Commercial Edible Food Generators can 
take to prevent the creation of Food Waste. 


D. The Franchisee may provide the information required above by including it with 
regularly scheduled notices, education materials, billing inserts, or other information 
disseminated to commercial businesses.  


E.  Franchisee shall comply with all applicable public education and outreach record 
keeping and reporting requirements as provided by SB 1383 and the SB 1383 Regulations. 


IV. Inspections and Enforcement 


Beginning January 1, 2022, Franchisee shall assist the City with and/or conduct 
applicable inspections and enforcement, to the extent delegable, as required by SB 
1383 Regulations. Franchisee shall maintain all applicable records from inspection and 
enforcement in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations. If using a Performance-based 
Compliance Approach, the city agrees it will only grant waivers if at least ninety percent (90%) 
of Single-Family Generators and ninety percent (90%) of Commercial Generators (including 
Multi-Family Generators) participate in the three-Container Collection program. 


V. Generator Waiver Program Coordination 


 A. General. In accordance with SB 1383 Regulations and the City Code, the City 
may grant waivers (de minimis, physical space or Collection frequency) to Generators that 
impact the scope of Franchisee’s provision of service for those Generators. Waivers issued shall 
be subject to compliance with SB 1383 Regulatory requirements, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18984.11.  


 B. Requests Submitted to Franchisee. Generators may submit requests for de 
minimis waivers, physical space waivers, and Collection frequency waivers to the Franchisee. 
Franchisee shall within fifteen (15) working days review the Generator’s waiver application and 
inspect the Generator’s Premises to verify the accuracy of the application. Franchisee shall 
provide documentation of the inspection, including the Franchisee’s recommendation to approve 
or deny the waiver request, and send this information to the City within five (5) working days of 
receipt of the Generator’s waiver application for the City’s review and approval. The City 
ultimately retains the right to approve or deny any application, regardless of the Franchisee’s 







RIV #4860-7680-9221 v1  18 


recommendation. Franchisee shall report information regarding waivers reviewed on a quarterly 
basis. 


 C. Franchisee Change in Generators’ Service Levels. When the City grants a 
waiver to a Generator, the City shall notify the Franchisee within fifteen (15) working days of 
the waiver approval with information on the Generator and any changes to the service level or 
Collection service requirements for the Generator. Franchisee shall have ten (10 working  days to 
modify the Generator’s service level and billing statement, as needed. 


 D. Reverification of Waivers. It shall be the responsibility of the Franchisee to 
verify that the Generators with de minimis, physical space constraint, or Collection frequency 
waivers continue to meet the waiver requirements set forth in this Section. Franchisee shall 
conduct such reverifications of waivers through inspection of each Generator’s premises and 
review of applicable records at least once every five (5) years for de minimis and physical space 
constraint waivers. Franchisee shall maintain a record of each waiver verification and provide a 
quarterly report to the City documenting the waiver reverifications performed and 
recommendations to the City on those waivers that Franchisee concludes are no longer 
warranted. The City shall make a final determination of the waiver eligibility of Generators. 


E. Franchisee Recordkeeping of Generators Granted Waivers. Upon Franchisee 
request, no more than two (2) times per year, the City shall provide Franchisee an updated listing 
of waivers approved by the City, including the Generators’ names, mailing address, service 
address, and type of waiver. Franchisee shall maintain waiver-related records and report on 
waiver verifications, as required herein. 


 


 


 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR - CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.3 


      GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
  James R. Riley, Project Consultant 
 
SUBJECT: Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and Waste 


Management 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Fifth Amendment to the Franchise 
Agreement between the City and Waste Management and authorize the City Manager to 
sign it. This amendment would be effective January 1, 2022. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
On June 10, 2009, the City entered into an agreement with USA Waste of California, Inc. 
(Waste Management) for the collection and transportation of solid waste, recyclable 
materials, green waste, construction debris and other specified services, which has since 
been amended by the First, Second, Third and Fourth Amendments. 
 
The purpose of the Fifth Amendment is to comply with legislation enacted by the State of 
California. The State of California has found and declared that the amount of Solid Waste 
generated in California, coupled with diminishing disposal capacity and interest in 
minimizing potential environmental impacts from landfilling and the need to conserve 
natural resources, have created an urgent need for State and local agencies to enact and 
implement aggressive integrated waste management programs. The State has, through 
enactment of the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939) 
(California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq.) and subsequent related 
legislation including, but not limited to: the Jobs and Recycling Act of 2011 (AB 341), the 
Event and Venue Recycling Act of 2004 (AB 2176), SB 1016 (Chapter 343, Statutes of 
2008 [Wiggins, SB 1016]), the Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling Act of 2014 
(AB 1826), and the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Bill of 2016 (SB 1383), directed the 
responsible State agency, and all local agencies, to promote a reduction in landfill 
disposal and to maximize the use of feasible waste reduction, reuse, recycling, and 
composting options in order to reduce the amount of material that must be disposed. 
 
SB 1383 establishes regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, Generators, haulers, solid 
waste facilities, and other entities to support achievement of State-wide organic waste 
disposal reduction targets. These requirements must be in place effective January 1, 
2022. The Fifth Amendment incorporates requirements of SB 1383 and its implementing 
regulations.  Specifically, the Fifth Amendment requires the franchisee to implement 
source-separated green container organic waste collection for all customers in the City. 
Food scraps, food-soiled paper, and yard trimmings will be collected in the green 







  
 


 


container provided by the franchisee. The Fifth Amendment also requires the franchisee 
to implement contamination monitoring to ensure that waste is being appropriately 
separated by customers and provide commercial edible food generators with a list of food 
recovery organizations and services, such as food banks and other charitable 
organizations, to help minimize food waste. 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The City receives a proportionate share of the service fees collected by the franchisee. A 
proposed increase in Commercial service fees will be noticed according to Proposition 
218 to Commercial customers prior to implementation of new fees in July 2022. City costs 
will also increase due to new requirements for oversight and enforcement required by the 
SB 1383. This increase in City costs will be offset by the proportionate increase in service 
fees received by the franchisee.  
 
 
Submitted by:        Approved by: 
Robert Howell        Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director       City Manager  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
A. Fifth Amendment to Franchise Agreement. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  
 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 


ATTACHMENT A 
 
 


Fifth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement  
 


Between the  
 


City of Wildomar  
 


And 
 


USA Waste of California, Inc. 
  


(Waste Management) 
  
 
 
 
 


 







FIFTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR AND USA WASTE OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE 


COLLECTION AND TRANSPORTATION OF SOLID WASTE AND 
OTHER SPECIFIED SERVICES 


 
 


This Fifth Amendment to Agreement between the City of Wildomar and USA Waste of California, 
Inc. for the Collection and Transportation of Solid Waste and Other Specified Services (“Fifth 
Amendment”) is entered into this ___ day of ____________, 2021 by and between the City of 
Wildomar, a California general law city and municipal corporation (“City”) and USA Waste of 
California, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Franchisee”). 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, on or about June 10, 2009, the City and Franchisee entered into an Agreement 
for the Collection and Transportation of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Green Waste, 
Construction Debris and Other Specified Services, which has been amended by the First 
Amendment, Second Amendment, Third Amendment and Fourth Amendment (individually and 
collectively, the “Agreement”); and, 


 
WHEREAS, the State of California has found and declared that the amount of Solid 


Waste generated in California, coupled with diminishing disposal capacity and interest in 
minimizing potential environmental impacts from landfilling and the need to conserve natural 
resources, have created an urgent need for State and local agencies to enact and implement 
aggressive integrated waste management programs. The State has, through enactment of the 
California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939) (California Public Resources 
Code Section 40000, et seq.) and subsequent related legislation including, but not limited to: the 
Jobs and Recycling Act of 2011 (AB 341), the Event and Venue Recycling Act of 2004 (AB 
2176), SB 1016 (Chapter 343, Statutes of 2008 [Wiggins, SB 1016]), the Mandatory Commercial 
Organics Recycling Act of 2014 (AB 1826), and the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Bill of 2016 
(SB 1383), directed the responsible State agency, and all local agencies, to promote a reduction 
in landfill disposal and to maximize the use of feasible waste reduction, reuse, recycling, and 
composting options in order to reduce the amount of material that must be disposed; and, 


WHEREAS, SB 1383 establishes regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, Generators, 
haulers, solid waste facilities, and other entities to support achievement of State-wide organic 
waste disposal reduction targets; and 


WHEREAS, regulations implementing SB 1383 require the City to implement collection 
programs, meet processing facility requirements, conduct contamination monitoring, provide 
education, maintain records, submit reports, monitor compliance, conduct enforcement, and 
fulfill other requirements; and, the City has chosen to delegate some of its responsibilities to the 
Franchisee, acting as the City’s designee, and Franchisee desires to take on these responsibilities; 
and 


WHEREAS, City and Franchisee desire to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. 







 2 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises made and recited herein, the parties 
do hereby enter into this Fifth Amendment as follows: 


 
1. DEFINITIONS.   


1.1 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to delete the definitions of 
“Compost,” “Compost Facility,” “Extremely Hazardous Waste,” “Solid Waste Facility,” and 
“System Facility.” 


1.2 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to add or amend, as 
applicable, the following definitions: 


“Back-Haul” means generating and transporting Organic Waste to a destination owned 
and operated by the Generator using the Generator’s own employees and equipment, or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66)(A).  


“Blue Container or Lid” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and 
shall be used for the purpose of storage and Collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials 
(SSBCOW).  


“California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code of 
Regulations. CCR references in this Agreement are preceded with a number that refers to the 
relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12” refers to Title 14, Division 7, 
Chapter 12 of the California Code of Regulations). 


“CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, 
which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and 
enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on jurisdictions and other regulated entities.  


“Commercial Edible Food Generators” includes Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generators and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(7). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery Organizations and 
Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators, or as otherwise specified 
by 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 


“Compostable Plastics” or “Compostable Plastic” means plastic materials that meet 
the ASTM D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in 14 CCR Section 
18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C). 


“Diversion (or any variation thereof including “Divert”)” means activities which reduce 
or eliminate Discarded Materials from Disposal, including, but not limited to, source reduction, 
Reuse, salvage, Recycling, and composting. 


“Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, Edible Food is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this 
Agreement requires or authorizes the recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety 







 3 


requirements of the California Retail Food Code. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(18) for Edible Food differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(18) shall apply to this Agreement. 


“Excluded Waste” means Hazardous Substance, Hazardous Waste, Infectious Waste, 
Designated Waste, volatile, corrosive, Medical Waste, infectious, regulated radioactive waste, 
and toxic substances or material that Facility operator(s) reasonably believe(s) would, as a result 
of or upon acceptance, Transfer, Processing, or Disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal 
law, regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot be 
Disposed of in Class III Landfills or accepted at the Facility by permit conditions, waste that in 
Franchisee’s reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to human health or the 
environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise create or expose Franchisee or City to potential 
liability; but not including de minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount 
normally found in Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs 
for the safe Collection, Processing, Recycling, treatment, and Disposal of batteries and paint in 
compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code.  


“Facility” or “System Facility” or “Solid Waste Facility” means a Solid Waste 
Facility, as defined in Public Resources Code section 40194, that for the purposes of this 
Agreement is designated by the City to be used by the Franchisee for the processing, recovery 
and/or disposal of Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste. 


“Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption 
which otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24). 


“Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that primarily engages in the collection 
or receipt of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible 
Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities, including, but not 
limited to:  


A. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;  
B. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and Safety 


code; and,  
C. A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the Health 


and Safety Code.  


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization differs 
from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply to this 
Agreement. 


“Food Recovery Service” means a Person or entity that collects and transports Edible 
Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other 
entities for Food Recovery; or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). 


“Food Scraps” means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, 
poultry, seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. Food Scraps 
excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food Scraps. 


“Food-Soiled Paper” means compostable paper material that has come in contact with 







 4 


food or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, 
pizza boxes, and milk cartons.  


“Food Waste” means Source Separated Food Scraps, Food-Soiled Paper, and 
Compostable Plastics.  Food Waste is a subset of SSGCOW. Edible Food separated for Food 
Recovery shall not be considered Food Waste. 


“Generator” means the owner or occupant of a premises, including residences or 
businesses, which initially produces Solid Waste, including Recyclable Materials and Organic 
Waste. 


 
“Gray Container or Lid” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(28) and 


shall be used for the purpose of storage and Collection of Gray Container Waste. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary, a Gray Container may have a gray body and black lid in accordance with 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(28). 
 


“Gray Container Waste” means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container as 
specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
17402(a)(6.5). Gray Container Waste may specifically include carpet and textiles. 


 “Green Container or Lid” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) 
and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste (SSGCOW).  
 
 “Hauler Route(s)” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment 
of the City’s collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5).  


“Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea 
market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average 
of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but 
is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street 
system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) shall 
apply to this Agreement. 


“Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an 
average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of 
the venue facility. For purposes of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and this Agreement, a venue 
facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated 
stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, 
airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other 
public attraction facility. For purposes of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and this Agreement, a 
site under common ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is 
contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the definition in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(39) shall apply to this Agreement. 







 5 


“Non-Compostable Paper” includes, but is not limited to, paper that is coated in a 
plastic material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(41). 


“Non-organic recyclables” or “Recyclable Material” means non-putrescible and non-
hazardous recyclable wastes including, but not limited to, bottles, cans, metals, plastics, and 
glass, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43). Non-Organic Recyclables are a 
subset of Source Separated Recyclable Materials. 


“Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living 
organisms and their metabolic waste products including, but not limited to, food, Yard 
Trimmings, organic textiles and carpets, untreated lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and 
Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(4) and 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(16.5), respectively.  


“Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, 
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling; or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 


“Performance-based Compliance Approach” means the method of complying with the 
SB 1383 Regulations through implementation of a collection system, programs, and policies in 
accordance with 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 17, or as otherwise defined by 
18982(a)(52.5), and all associated requirements. 


“Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, 
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, manila 
envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, 
posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and publications; or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(54). 


“Process” or “Processing” means the controlled separation, recovery, volume reduction, 
conversion, or Recycling of Solid Waste including, but not limited to, organized, manual, 
automated, or mechanical sorting, the use of vehicles for spreading of waste for the purpose of 
recovery, and/or includes the use of conveyor belts, sorting lines, or volume reduction 
equipment, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(20). 


“Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (i) Discarded Materials 
placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials for the City’s Blue Container; (ii) Discarded Materials placed in the Green Container 
that are not identified as acceptable SSGCOW for the City’s Green Container; (iii) Discarded 
Materials placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials and/or SSGCOW to be placed in City’s Green Container and/or Blue Container; and 
(iv) Excluded Waste placed in any Container. 


“Recycle” or “Recycling” means the process of Collecting, sorting, cleansing, treating, 
and reconfiguring materials for the purpose of returning them to the economic mainstream in the 
form of raw material for new, Reused, or reconstituted products that meet the quality standards 







 6 


necessary to be used in the marketplace. Recycling includes processes deemed to constitute a 
reduction of Landfill Disposal pursuant to 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 2. Recycling 
does not include gasification or transformation as defined in Public Resources Code Section 
40201. 


“Reuse” or any variation thereof, means the use, in the same, or similar, form as it was 
produced, of a material which might otherwise be discarded, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 17402.5(b)(2).  


“SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 
2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and Safety 
Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the 
Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a statewide effort to 
reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, superseded, and 
replaced from time to time.  


“SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” refers to the Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Reductions regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted 
in 2020 that created Chapter 12 of 14 CCR, Division 7 and amended portions of regulations of 
14 CCR and 27 CCR. 


“Service Level” refers to the number and size of a Generator’s Container(s) and the 
frequency of Collection service, as well as ancillary services such as lock/unlock service, 
Container push/pull service, etc. 


“Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in PRC Section 40191, which defines 
Solid Waste as all putrescible and nonputrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including 
garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction 
wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, 
dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, 
vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, 
with the exception that Solid Waste does not include any of the following wastes: 


(1) Hazardous waste, as defined in PRC Section 40141. 


(2) Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the Radiation Control Law (Chapter 8 
(commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code). 


(3) Medical waste regulated pursuant to the Medical Waste Management Act (Part 
14, commencing with Section 117600, of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code). 
Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a solid waste Landfill, as defined in PRC 
Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be 
regulated pursuant to PRC, Division 30. 


As used in this Agreement, Solid Waste includes Organic Waste and Recyclable 
Materials, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 







 7 


“Source Separated” means materials, including commingled Recyclable materials, that 
have been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for 
the purpose of additional sorting or Processing those materials for Recycling or Reuse in order to 
return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, reused, or 
reconstituted products which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of the Agreement, 
Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the Generator, Property Owner, Property 
Owner’s employee, property manager, or property manager’s employee into different Containers 
for the purpose of Collection such that Source Separated materials are separated from Gray 
Container Waste and other Solid Waste for the purposes of Collection and Processing.  
 


“Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste” or “SSBCOW” means Source 
Separated Organic Wastes that can be placed in a Blue Container that is limited to the collection 
of those Organic Wastes and Non-Organic Recyclables as defined in Section 18982(a)(43), or as 
otherwise defined by Section 17402(a)(18.7).  


 
“Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste” or “SSGCOW” means Source 


Separated Organic Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for 
the separate collection of Organic Waste by the Generator, excluding Source Separated Blue 
Container Organic Waste, carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.  


“Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Source Separated Non-Organic 
Recyclables and SSBCOW.  


“Standard Compliance Approach” means the method for complying with the SB 1383 
Regulations through implementation of a collection system pursuant to 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12, Article 3, and all associated program and policy requirements 


“Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following, each as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982: 


A. Supermarket. 
B. Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet. 
C. Food Service Provider. 
D. Food Distributor. 
E. Wholesale Food Vendor. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator 
differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall apply to this 
Agreement. 


“Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following, each as defined in 14 CCR Section 18982: 


A. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 
5,000 square feet. 


B. Hotel with an on-site food facility and 200 or more rooms. 







 8 


C. Health facility with an on-site food facility and 100 or more beds. 
D. Large Venue. 
E. Large Event. 
F. A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size 


equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet. 
G. A local education agency with an on-site food facility. 


If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator 
differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall apply to this 
Agreement. 


“Yard Trimmings” means types of SSGCOW resulting from normal yard and 
landscaping installation, maintenance, or removal that the Generators Source Separate and set out 
in Green Containers for Collection for the purpose of Processing by the Franchisee.  


2. SCOPE OF FRANCHISE.  All references to “Green Waste” in Section 3 (Grant and 
Term of Exclusive Franchise) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.” 


3. OWNERSHIP OF WASTE. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 6 (Ownership of 
Solid Waste) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.” 


4. FRANCHISE FEES. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 15 (Franchise Fees) shall 
be changed to “Organic Waste.” 


5. PROCUREMENT. A new paragraph E (Procurement) is added to Section 16 (Other 
Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows: 


“Franchisee agrees to coordinate and cooperate with the City to meet its Organic Waste 
produce procurement target, as required by SB 1383 Regulations.” 


6. CONTAINERS. A new paragraph J (Container Requirements) is added to Section 5 
(Services Provided by Franchisee) to read as follows: 


“Franchisee shall use the Franchisee-provided Collection containers that are currently 
located at Generators’ premises or provide Generators with collection containers from 
Franchisee’s current inventory.  


On or before January 1, 2022, (or if using Performance-based Compliance Approach, 
then until color compliant containers are provided), Franchisee shall place a label on the body or 
lid of each container that has been provided to a Generator that includes language or graphic 
images, or both, that indicate the primary materials accepted and the primary materials 
prohibited in that container in accordance with 14 CCR Section 18984.8. Labels shall clearly 
indicate items that are Prohibited Container Contaminants for each container. Prior to ordering 
labels for containers, Franchisee shall submit a copy of its proposed label, proposed location(s) 
for placement of labels on each type of container, and its labeling plan to the City for approval. 


No later than January 1, 2036, Franchisee shall provide all Generators with collection 
containers that comply with the container color requirements specified in this Agreement or as 







 9 


otherwise specified in 14 CCR Section 18984.7. If an existing container breaks or is otherwise 
rendered non-functional and a new container is placed in service on or after January 1, 2022, the 
Franchisee shall replace the non-functional container with a container that complies with the 
color requirements of 14 CCR Section 18984.7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, 
Franchisee is not required to replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior 
to January 1, 2022, that do not comply with the color requirements of this Agreement prior to the 
end of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first. 


7. IDENTIFICATION OF FACILITIES.  A new paragraph K (Identification of Facilities) 
is added to Section 16 (Other Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows: 


“If using a Standard Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall identify the Facilities to 
which they will transport Organic Waste as required by the SB 1383 Regulations.” 


8. PROVIDED SERVICES.  Exhibit “A” (Provided Services) is amended in its entirety to 
read as shown in Exhibit A-1 to this Fifth Amendment. 


9. DIVERSION SERVICES.   


9.1 Section 5, paragraph H (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from 
the Agreement. 


9.2 Exhibit “H” (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from the 
Agreement. 


10. INDEMNIFICATION.  A new paragraph I is added to Section 8 of the Agreement to read 
as follows: 


Franchisee’s duty to defend and indemnify herein includes payment of all fines and/or penalties 
imposed by CalRecycle, subject to the restrictions set forth in Public Resources Code Section 
40059.1, for violations of AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, and/or SB 1383 and corresponding 
regulations by the Franchisee with respect to Solid Waste collected under this Agreement, and 
such violation is caused by: (i) the failure of Franchisee to meet its obligations under this 
Agreement, or, (ii) delay by Franchisee in providing information required under this Agreement 
that prevents Franchisee or City from submitting reports required by AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, 
and/or SB 1383 and corresponding regulations in a timely manner. The provisions of this 
paragraph shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 


11. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 


11.1 Remainder Unchanged.  Except as specifically modified and amended in this Fifth 
Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect and binding upon the 
parties. 


11.2 Integration.  This Fifth Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements 
between the parties with respect to all or any part of the transaction discussed in 
this Fifth Amendment. 







 10 


11.3 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original. All counterparts shall be construed together 
and shall constitute one agreement. 


11.4 Effective Date.  This Fifth Amendment shall become effective January 1, 2022. 


11.5 Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the interpretation 
and enforcement of this Fifth Amendment. 


11.6 References.  All references to the Agreement include all their respective terms and 
provisions.  All defined terms utilized in this Fifth Amendment have the same 
meaning as provided in the Agreement, unless expressly stated to the contrary in 
this Fifth Amendment. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fifth Amendment on 
the date and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 


Janet Morales, City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


______________________________ 


Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 







 11 


USA WASTE OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 


By:   By:   


 _________________________________   


 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ___________________________ 







 12 


EXHIBIT A-1 


PROVIDED SERVICES 


I. Three-Container Collection Program 


A. General. Beginning January 1, 2022, Franchisee shall provide a three-container 
Collection program for the separate Collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials, 
SSGCOW, and Gray Container Waste as specified in this Agreement, using containers that comply 
with the requirements of this Agreement and SB 1383 Regulations. Franchisee shall not knowingly 
Collect Blue, Green, or Gray Containers that include Prohibited Container Contaminants.  


B. Source Separated Recyclable Materials Collection (Blue Container or Lid). 
Franchisee shall provide Blue Containers to Generators for Collection of Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials and shall provide Source Separated Recyclable Materials Collection service, 
Franchisee shall transport the Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a Facility that recovers 
the materials designated for Collection, in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations. 


Source Separated Recyclable Materials that are to be accepted for Collection in the 
Source Separated Recyclable Materials Collection program include the following: (i) Non-
Organic Recyclables such as: aluminum, glass bottles and jars, rigid plastics (marked # 1 through 
# 7),  tin and bi-metal cans; and (ii) SSBCOW such as: Paper Products, Printing and Writing 
Papers, wood and dry lumber.   


C. SSGCOW Collection (Green Container or Lid). Franchisee shall provide Green 
Containers to Generators for Collection of SSGCOW and shall provide SSGCOW Collection 
service. Franchisee shall transport the SSGCOW to a Facility in accordance with SB 1383 
Regulations. 


SSGCOW that are to be accepted for Collection in the SSGCOW Collection program 
include the following: Food Scraps; Food-Soiled Paper; Yard Trimmings, and Compostable 
Plastics. Carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, textiles, and Prohibited Container Contaminants shall 
not be Collected in the Green Containers. Yard Trimmings that are to be accepted for Collection 
in the SSGCOW Collection program include the following: green trimmings, grass, weeds, 
flowers, leaves, prunings, branches, dead plants, brush, tree trimmings, dead trees weighing no 
more than 50lbs, and other types of SSGCOW resulting from normal yard and landscaping 
installation, maintenance, or removal, provided all SSGCOW fits inside the Green Container with 
the lid closed and does not exceed 150 pounds.  


Franchisee may Collect compliant Compostable Plastics in the Green Containers for 
Processing. At least two (2) months prior to the commencement of the Collection of Compostable 
Plastics in the SSGCOW program, Franchisee shall provide written notification to the City whether 
the Facility can or cannot Process and recover these Compostable Plastics in accordance with SB 
1383 Regulations. If the Facility can process and recover Compostable Plastics, and Franchisee 
elects to Collect Compostable Plastics in the Green Container, then Franchisee shall provide 
annual written notification to the City that the Facility has and will continue to have the capabilities 
to Process and recover the Compostable Plastics. If the Facility cannot process and recover 
Compostable Plastics, then Franchisee will not Collect Compostable Plastics in the Green 







 13 


Container.  


Franchisee may require Generators to place Food Waste in plastic bags or other wrappings 
and put the bagged or wrapped Food Waste in the Green Container. At least two (2) months prior 
to the commencement of the use of plastic bags for the Food Waste program, Franchisee shall 
provide written notification to the City that allowing the use of bags does not inhibit the ability of 
the City to comply with SB 1383 Regulations, and that the Facility can Process and remove plastic 
bags when it recovers SSGCOW. Franchisee shall provide annual written notification to the City 
that the Facility has and will continue to have the capabilities to Process and remove plastic bags 
when it recovers SSGCOW.  


D. Gray Container Waste Collection. Franchisee shall provide Gray Containers or 
Lids to Generators for Collection of Gray Container Waste and shall provide Gray Container 
Waste Collection service. Franchisee shall transport the Gray Container Waste to a Facility in 
accordance with the SB 1383 Regulations. Franchisee may allow carpets, and textiles to be placed 
in the Gray Containers. Prohibited Container Contaminants shall not be Collected in the Gray 
Containers.  


II. Contamination Monitoring 


A. Route Reviews and Waste Evaluations.   


Franchisee shall meet its SB 1383 Regulations contamination monitoring requirements 
commencing January 1, 2022, using either Route Reviews or Waste Evaluations; provided 
however, that if Franchisee complies with SB 1383 Regulations using a Performance-based 
Compliance Approach, it shall monitor containers using waste evaluations, as outlined Section 
II.B. 


Franchisee shall meet its SB 1383 Regulations contamination monitoring requirements 
commencing January 1, 2022, using route reviews as outlined herein: 


1. Franchisee shall conduct Hauler Route reviews for Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in Collection Containers in a manner that is deemed safe by the Franchisee; is 
approved by the City; is conducted in a manner that results in all Hauler Routes being reviewed 
annually, and is consistent and in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations. Containers may be 
randomly selected along the Hauler Route. This Section should not be construed to require that 
every container on a Hauler Route must be sampled annually.  


2. Upon finding Prohibited Container Contaminants in the container, Franchisee shall 
follow the contamination monitoring noticing procedures paragraph C.3 of this Section II. 


3. Franchisee shall maintain all applicable records required under 14 CCR Section 
18984.6, and report to the City on a quarterly basis on contamination monitoring activities, route 
reviews and/or waste evaluations, and actions taken.  


 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this paragraph A shall not prohibit Franchisee from 
meeting its compliance requirements by any alternative methods or procedures, provided it 
complies with SB 1383, the SB 1383 Regulations, and/or any other applicable law, as may be 







 14 


amended from time to time. 


B. Waste Evaluations 


Alternatively, if Franchisee elects to perform Waste Evaluations, Franchisee shall, 
conduct waste evaluations that comply with and meet the requirements of 14 CCR Section 
18984.5(c). The City maintains the right to observe, or hire a third party to observe, the waste 
evaluations. 


1. Sampling Method, Study Protocols. If Franchisee elects to conduct waste 
evaluations for Prohibited Container Contaminants by sampling the contents of Containers on 
Hauler Routes, Franchisee shall do so in the following manner: 


a. If using a Standard Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall conduct waste 
evaluations at least twice per year and in two distinct seasons of the year in a manner that 
complies with the requirements of 14 CCR section 18984.5(c). If using a Performance-
based Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall conduct waste evaluations at least twice per 
year for the Blue and Green Containers and at least once per quarter for the Gray 
Containers.  


b. The Franchisee’s waste evaluations shall include samples of Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials, SSGCOW, and Gray Container Waste. 


c. The waste evaluations shall include samples from each Container type 
served by the Franchisee and shall include samples taken from different areas in the City 
that are representative of the City’s waste stream.  


d. The waste evaluations shall include at least the minimum number of 
samples specified in SB 1383 Regulations.  


e. The Franchisee shall Transport all of the material Collected for sampling to 
a sorting area at a permitted solid waste Facility where the presence of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants for each Container type shall be measured to determine the ratio of 
Prohibited Container Contaminants present in each material stream by weight. To 
determine the ratio of Prohibited Container Contaminants, the Franchisee shall use the 
following protocol: 


  i. The Franchisee shall take one sample of at least a 200 pounds from 
the material Collected from each material stream for sampling.  


  ii. The 200-pound sample shall be randomly selected from different 
areas of the pile of Collected material for that material stream. 


  iii. For each 200-pound sample, the Franchisee shall remove any 
Prohibited Container Contaminants and determine the weight of Prohibited 
Container Contaminants. 


  iv. The Franchisee shall determine the ratio of Prohibited Container 







 15 


Contaminants in the sample by dividing the total weight of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants by the total weight of the sample. 


  2. Contamination Response. If the sampled weight of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of the measured sample for any material stream, 
the Franchisee shall:  


  a. If using a Performance-based Compliance Approach, notify the City within 
fifteen (15) working days of the waste evaluation.  


  b. Within fifteen (15) working days of the waste evaluation, notify all 
Generators on the sampled Hauler Route of their requirement to properly separate 
materials into the appropriate Containers. The Franchisee may provide this information 
by placing a written notice on the Generators’ Containers or the gate or door of the 
Premises; and/or by mail, email, or electronic message to the Generators. The format of 
the warning notice shall be approved by the City. 


  c. If using a Performance-based Compliance Approach, Franchisee shall allow 
a representative of the City and/or CalRecycle to oversee its next scheduled quarterly 
sampling of the Gray Containers, upon request. 


3. Material Exceptions. Organic Waste that is textiles, carpet, hazardous wood 
waste, human waste, pet waste, or material subject to a quarantine on movement issued by a 
County agricultural commissioner is not required to be measured as Organic Waste when 
calculating the amount of Organic Waste present in the Gray Container Waste. 


C. Actions upon Identification of Prohibited Container Contaminants. 


Upon finding Prohibited Container Contaminants in a Container, Franchisee shall follow 
the protocols set forth in this Section. 


1. Record Keeping. The driver or other Franchisee representative shall record each 
event of identification of Prohibited Container Contaminants in a written log or in the on-board 
computer system including date, time, Generator’s address, type of container (Blue, Green, or Gray 
Container). 


2. Courtesy Pick-Up Notices.  


i. First and Second Occurrences. For the first and second occurrences within a 
rolling twelve-month period where Contractor documents that a particular premise has a 
Grey Container, Blue Container, or Green Container with Prohibited Container 
Contaminants, Contractor shall service such Container, provided that Contractor shall 
notify the Customer by phone, text, U.S. mail, e-mail, other electronic means, or in 
person (which may be a container tag), setting forth the date, description, and image or 
video in the email, a notice that states or provides as follows: 


 (a) the fact the Container required special handling because of the 
observed presence of Contamination; 







 16 


 (b) the date and time the notice was left or issued; 


 (c) includes photographic evidence of the violation(s); 


 (d) a description of the materials that are appropriate for disposal and 
collection in the Container; 


 (e) an explanation that subsequent incidents of contamination may 
result in non-collection, the imposition of a contamination service charge, and where 
warranted, requiring additional or larger-sized collection Containers; and 


 (f) a phone number to contact Contractor to obtain additional 
information and/or receive responses to questions the Customer may have. 


ii. Third and Subsequent Occurrences. For the third and subsequent 
occurrences within a rolling twelve-month period where Contractor documents that a 
particular premise has a Grey Container, Blue Container, or Green Container with 
Prohibited Container Contaminants, Contractor may refuse collection or service the 
Container, and may charge the premises a contamination fee of $35.00 (which will be 
adjusted annually pursuant to the same CPI Index used for annual rate adjustments). In 
addition, Contractor may, as reasonably required to prevent future incidents of 
Contamination: (1) deliver additional or larger containers to the premises, or require 
additional weekly collections and charge the premises for such increased or additional 
services at the rate set forth in the Rate Schedule; (2) for customers receiving Bin service, 
install locking Bins and charge the customer for such in accordance with the Rate 
Schedule; or (3) remove the offending container. Any increased capacity or collection 
frequency, or the removal of an offending container, will remain in effect until Contractor 
determines that it is no longer needed to prevent Contamination.  


At least ten (10) days prior to taking the actions described in (1), (2), or (3) above, 
Contractor’s representative shall contact the Generator by phone, text, other electronic 
means, U.S. mail, e-mail or in person to confirm that customer has the appropriate level 
of service. Contractor shall notify the City within five (5) business days of taking these 
actions. The City will consider, and pursue as applicable, appropriate legal remedies 
against offending Generator(s) in order to secure discontinuance of Contamination. All 
the City costs of pursuing such remedies shall be recoverable from the offending 
Generator(s). 


Franchisee shall notify the City in its quarterly report of Generators for which 
contamination Processing fees were assessed. 


iii. Identification of Excluded Waste. If Contractor’s personnel observe Excluded 
Waste in an uncollected Container, Contractor’s personnel shall issue a non-Collection notice for 
any such Container in accordance with this Section and shall not Collect the Containers containing 
Excluded Waste. Contractor’s personnel shall record that observation in accordance with this 
Section and immediately inform their route supervisor. In the event of non-collection under this 
Section, Contractor may assess the Generator with a non-collection charge. 







 17 


 D. Disposal of Contaminated Materials. If the Franchisee observes Prohibited 
Container Contaminants in a Generator’s Container(s), Franchisee may dispose of the Container’s 
contents, provided Franchisee complies with the noticing requirements in subsection C above. 


III. Education and Outreach 


A. Franchisee shall, at its sole expense, create all applicable education materials and 
conduct all education programs and activities as provided by and in accordance with the SB 1383 
Regulations. Franchisee shall cooperate and coordinate with the City on public education 
activities. 


B. On or before February 1, 2022, the Franchisee shall develop a list of Food Recovery 
Organizations and Food Recovery Services operating within the City, maintain the list on the 
Franchisee’s City-specific website, share the list with the City if the City wants to post the list on 
additional City websites, and update the list annually. The list shall include, at a minimum, the 
following information about each Food Recovery Organization and each Food Recovery Service: 


 1. Name and physical address; 


 2. Contact information; 


 3. Collection service area; and, 


 4. An indication of types of Edible Food the Food Recovery Service or Food 
Recovery Organization can accept for Food Recovery.  


C. At least annually, the Franchisee shall provide Commercial Edible Food Generators 
with the following information: 


1. Information about the City’s Edible Food Recovery program; 


2. Information about the Commercial Edible Food Generator requirements 
under 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 10; 


3. Information about Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery 
Services operating within the City, and where a list of those Food Recovery 
Organizations and Food Recovery Services can be found; and, 


4. Information about actions that Commercial Edible Food Generators can 
take to prevent the creation of Food Waste. 


D. The Franchisee may provide the information required above by including it with 
regularly scheduled notices, education materials, billing inserts, or other information disseminated 
to commercial businesses.  







 18 


E.  Franchisee shall comply with all applicable public education and outreach record 
keeping and reporting requirements as provided by SB 1383 and the SB 1383 Regulations. 


IV. Inspections and Enforcement 


Beginning January 1, 2022, Franchisee shall assist the City with and/or conduct applicable 
inspections and enforcement, to the extent delegable, as required by SB 1383 Regulations. 
Franchisee shall maintain all applicable records from inspection and enforcement in accordance 
with SB 1383 Regulations. If using a Performance-based Compliance Approach, the city agrees it 
will only grant waivers if at least ninety percent (90%) of Single-Family Generators and ninety 
percent (90%) of Commercial Generators (including Multi-Family Generators) participate in the 
three-Container Collection program. 


V. Generator Waiver Program Coordination 


 A. General. In accordance with SB 1383 Regulations and the City Code, the City may 
grant waivers (de minimis, physical space or Collection frequency) to Generators that impact the 
scope of Franchisee’s provision of service for those Generators. Waivers issued shall be subject to 
compliance with SB 1383 Regulatory requirements, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.11.  


 B. Requests Submitted to Franchisee. Generators may submit requests for de 
minimis waivers, physical space waivers, and Collection frequency waivers to the Franchisee. 
Franchisee shall within fifteen (15) working days review the Generator’s waiver application and 
inspect the Generator’s Premises to verify the accuracy of the application. Franchisee shall provide 
documentation of the inspection, including the Franchisee’s recommendation to approve or deny 
the waiver request, and send this information to the City within five (5) working days of 
Franchisee’s review of the application and subsequent inspection of the Generator’s premises for 
the City’s review and approval. The City ultimately retains the right to approve or deny any 
application, regardless of the Franchisee’s recommendation. Franchisee shall report information 
regarding waivers reviewed on a quarterly basis. 


 C. Franchisee Change in Generators’ Service Levels. When the City grants a 
waiver to a Generator, the City shall notify the Franchisee within fifteen (15) working days of the 
waiver approval with information on the Generator and any changes to the service level or 
Collection service requirements for the Generator. Franchisee shall have ten (10) working days to 
modify the Generator’s service level and billing statement, as needed. 


 D. Reverification of Waivers. It shall be the responsibility of the Franchisee to verify 
that the Generators with de minimis, physical space constraint, or Collection frequency waivers 
continue to meet the waiver requirements set forth in this Section. Franchisee shall conduct such 
reverifications of waivers through inspection of each Generator’s premises and review of 
applicable records at least once every five (5) years for de minimis and physical space constraint 
waivers. Franchisee shall maintain a record of each waiver verification and provide a quarterly 
report to the City documenting the waiver reverifications performed and recommendations to the 







 19 


City on those waivers that Franchisee concludes are no longer warranted. The City shall make a 
final determination of the waiver eligibility of Generators. 


E. Franchisee Recordkeeping of Generators Granted Waivers. Upon Franchisee 
request, no more than two (2) times per year, the City shall provide Franchisee an updated listing 
of waivers approved by the City, including the Generators’ names, mailing address, service 
address, and type of waiver. Franchisee shall maintain waiver-related records and report on waiver 
verifications, as required herein. 


 


 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item # 3.4 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Daniel Torres, Community Services Director 
  
SUBJECT: 2022 Parks and Community Services Special Event Dates 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Parks and Community Services 
special events calendar through 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Staff recommends the following events and dates: 
 


 
 
General Funds and Measure Z Funds for approved events were approved as part of the 
City’s Biennial Budget Program for the Fiscal Year 2021/2022. The budget for planned 
proposed events after June 30, 2022 will be recommended for funding as part of the 
Fiscal Year 2022/2023 budget request to the City Council in June 2022. 
 
In addition to these City Events, staff is coordinating with other organizations to partner 
in providing the community a variety of events. These events will include NATIONAL 
NIGHT OUT with PD and the cities of Lake Elsinore and Canyon Lake, POP UP’s with 


Ref Special Event - Activity Proposed Dates Location Budget 
1 Eggstravaganza Egg Hunt Sat. April 09, 2022 Marna O'Brien Approved
2 Teen Egg Hunt Sat. April 09, 2022 Marna O'Brien Approved
4 Health Fair Sat. May 21, 2022 Marna O'Brien Approved
5 Memorial Day Event Mon. May 30, 2022 Cemetery Approved
6 Movie in the Park Sat. June 4, 2022 Windsong Approved
7 Picnic in the Park TBD Marna O'Brien Approved
8 Camp Out in the Park Sat.-Sun. June 25-26, 2022 Marna O'Brien Approved
9 City Birthday Celebration Sat. July 09, 2022 Marna O'Brien Proposed
10 Wildomar Night at the Storm TBD Storm Stadium Proposed
11 Movie in the Park Sat. July 23, 2022 Marna O'Brien Proposed


12 Drive in Movie Night Sat. August 6, 2022 Wildomar Little 
League Proposed


14 Mariachi Night Sat. September 17, 2022 Marna O'Brien Proposed
15 Trunk or Treat Sat. October 29, 2022 Marna O'Brien Proposed
16 Veterans Day Event Fri. November 11, 2022 Marna O'Brien Proposed
17 Breakfast with Santa Sat. December 10, 2022 TBD Proposed


FY 22/23


FY 21/22







the Wildomar PD, ALS 5k RUN with ALS One Races, and the return of the ROOTED IN 
NATURE event with SRPNEF. These events will be presented to council at a later time. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None at this time. 
 
 
Submitted by: Approved by: 
Daniel Torres Gary Nordquist 
Community Services Director City Manager 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.5 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Mayor Dustin Nigg 


Council Member Joseph Morabito 
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 


 
SUBJECT: Agreement for the position of City Manager 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached Employment Agreement 
between the City of Wildomar and Dan York for the position of City Manager. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The City’s current City Manager, Gary Nordquist, submitted notice of his intent to retire 
from public service and employment from the City effective January 31, 2022. 
 
Therefore, the City has prepared the attached Employment Agreement for Dan York to 
become the next City Manager effective February 1, 2022. The Employment Agreement 
is attached to this staff report as Attachment “A”.   Mr. York has agreed to the terms of 
the proposed Agreement.  If approved by the Council, the proposed Agreement will 
become effective on February 1, 2022.  
 
The major terms of the proposed Agreement include the following:  
 


• Employment is for a term of 3 years, with an option to extend for 2 additional years 
if the parties agree.  Mr. York is an “at-will” employee.   


• Base salary is $245,000 per year. 


• Upon reaching the minimum Medicare age eligibility, the City will provide Mr. York 
with contribution towards the Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”) 
Platinum Medicare Supplement plan or equivalent up to four thousand five hundred 
dollars per year. 


• City will contribute an amount equal to 8% of Mr. York’s base salary into a City 
provided deferred compensation program (e.g. 457 plan). 


• Mr. York will receive a $650 per month automobile allowance for use of his 
personal vehicle for City business. 







• The City may terminate the Agreement either for-cause or not-for-cause. In the 
event of a not-for-cause termination, Mr. York will be entitled to 30 days’ notice 
and 12 month’s severance (based on his then base salary).  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The position of City Manager has been included in the FY 2020-2021 Adopted Budget at 
the salary and benefit levels outlined above. Included in the FY 2020-2021 budgeting of 
the position are amounts adopted by the City Council for the incoming City Manager’s 
previous role as Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director/City Engineer. 
      
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Employment Agreement for Position of City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  







 
 


EXHIBIT “A” 
Employment Agreement 


For the Position of City Manager 
 
 
 
 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  1 


EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 


For the Position of 
 


CITY MANAGER 


This Employment Agreement for the Position of City Manager (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into this 15th day of December, 2021, by and between the CITY OF 
WILDOMAR (“CITY”), a California municipal corporation and general law city, and DANIEL 
YORK (“YORK”), an individual, on the following terms and conditions set forth below.  Both 
CITY and YORK may individually be described as a “Party” or jointly described as the 
“Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. CITY desires to employ the services of YORK as its City Manager, to carry 
out the duties and responsibilities of City Manager as defined herein and in Wildomar 
Municipal Code (“WMC”). 


B. YORK desires to accept employment as City Manager in consideration of, 
and subject to, the terms, conditions, and benefits set forth in this Agreement. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


In consideration of the terms, conditions, promises and agreements herein, the 
Parties agree as follows: 


1. Position and Duties. 


1.1 Position.  YORK accepts employment with CITY as its City Manager and shall 
perform all functions, duties and services set forth in Section 1.4 [Duties] of this Agreement. 
 YORK shall provide service at the direction and under the supervision of the City Council.  
It is the intent of the Parties that the City Manager shall keep the City Council fully informed 
of all significant ongoing operations of CITY.  Toward that end, YORK shall report directly to 
the City Council and will periodically, or as may be otherwise specifically requested by the 
City Council, provide status reports to the City Council on his activities and those of CITY.  
YORK shall not be absent for more than two (2) working days without prior written notice to 
the City Council and reasonable justification.  YORK shall provide the City Council with 
reasonable advance written notice of absences due to vacation or use of administrative 
leave, and shall obtain prior approval from City Council for planned absences due to 
vacation or administrative leave of more than fourteen (14) consecutive working days.  
Absences that are not in compliance with these provisions shall be considered 
unauthorized absences or leaves for the purpose of Section 3.3. 


1.2 Commencement Date / Period of Employment.  The Parties agree that this 
Agreement shall commence and will be effective as of February 1, 2022, provided that and 
subject to, approval of the Agreement by CITY’s City Council and execution of the 
Agreement by YORK and CITY’s Mayor.  YORK has completed the required background 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  2 


check and physical examination within the previous six months.  YORK shall serve as City 
Manager for a term of three (3) years subject to either of the Parties terminating the 
Agreement as provided in Section 3 [Termination] of this Agreement.  In the event that 
none of the foregoing has occurred within the three (3) year term, then this Agreement shall 
automatically expire. The Parties may mutually agree, by written amendment of this 
Agreement approved by the City Council and executed by YORK and CITY’s Mayor, to 
extend the term for a further stated period of time up to two (2) additional years. 


1.3 At-Will.  YORK acknowledges that he is an at-will employee of CITY who 
shall, at all times, serve at the pleasure of the City Council during the period of his service 
hereunder.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or does, confer upon YORK any right 
to any property interest in continued employment, or any due process right to a hearing 
before or after a decision by the City Council to terminate his employment as City Manager, 
except as is expressly provided in Section 3 [Termination] of this Agreement.  Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall in any way prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the 
right of CITY to terminate the services of YORK as City Manager as provided in Section 3 
[Termination].  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall in any way prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of YORK to terminate the services from the position of City 
Manager with CITY, as provided in Section 3 [Termination].  This at-will employment 
Agreement shall be expressly subject to the rights and obligations of CITY and YORK, as 
set forth in Section 3 [Termination] below. 


1.4 Duties.  YORK shall serve as CITY’s City Manager and shall be vested with 
the powers, duties and responsibilities of the City Manager set forth in Chapter 2.08 of the 
WMC, as may be amended from time to time, the terms of which are incorporated herein by 
reference, and as set forth in the Job Description for the position of City Manager attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit “A”.  Any conflict between 
rights, obligations, duties or terms this Agreement and Chapter 2.08 of the WMC shall be 
resolved in favor of this Agreement.  It is the intent of the City Council that YORK as the 
City Manager acts as the chief executive officer of CITY.  Without additional compensation, 
YORK shall provide such other services as are customary and appropriate to the position of 
City Manager.  YORK shall devote his best efforts to the performance of these duties. 


1.5 Hours of Work.  YORK shall devote the time necessary to adequately perform 
his duties as City Manager.  The Parties expect that a minimum of forty (40) hours per 
week including time outside of the normal business hours, will be required to satisfy this 
requirement.  Toward that end, YORK shall be allowed reasonable flexibility in setting his 
own office hours, provided the schedule of such hours delivers adequate availability to the 
City Council, CITY staff, and members of the community during normal CITY business 
hours and for the performance of his duties and of CITY business.  The position of City 
Manager shall be deemed an exempt position under California wage and hour law and 
under the federal Fair Labor Standards Act.  YORK’s compensation (whether salary or 
benefits or other allowances) is not based on hours worked and YORK shall not be entitled 
to any compensation for overtime. 


1.6 Regional and Professional Activity.  The City Council desires YORK to be 
reasonably active in national, statewide, regional and professional organizations that will 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  3 


contribute to City Manager’s professional development and standing and that will contribute 
to the advancement of CITY’s interests and standing.  Toward that end, YORK may, upon 
advance approval by the City Council, undertake such activities as are directly related to 
his professional development and that advance the interests and standing of CITY.  These 
activities may include, without limitation, participation in the California League of Cities, 
ICMA, or other similar national, statewide, regional or professional organizations, provided 
that such activities do not in any way interfere with or adversely affect his employment as 
City Manager or the performance of his duties as provided herein and have been approved 
in advance by the City Council.  CITY agrees to budget and pay for the dues and 
subscriptions of the City Manager necessary for his participation in national, statewide, 
regional and professional organizations that have been approved by the City Council.  CITY 
agrees to reimburse, as provided in Section 1.8 [Reimbursement] of this Agreement, 
YORK’s reasonable and necessary travel, business and subsistence expenses for the 
activities described herein. 


1.7 Other Activity.  In accordance with Government Code section 1126, during the 
period of his employment, YORK shall not accept, without the express prior written consent 
of the City Council, any other employment or engage, directly or indirectly, in any other 
business, commercial, or professional activity (except as permitted under section 1.7 
[Regional and Professional Activity]), whether or not to pecuniary advantage, that is or may 
be competitive with CITY, that might cause a conflict of interest with CITY, or that otherwise 
might interfere with the business or operation of CITY or the satisfactory performance of 
YORK’s duties as City Manager. 


1.8 Reimbursement.  CITY shall reimburse YORK for reasonable and necessary 
travel, subsistence and other business expenses incurred by YORK in the performance of 
his duties.  All reimbursements shall be subject to and in accordance with California law 
and CITY’s adopted Employee Reimbursement Policy. 


2. Compensation. 


2.1 Base Salary.  YORK shall receive an annual base salary of Two Hundred 
Forty Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100 ($245,000.00) paid on a pro-rated basis according 
to the bi-weekly payroll schedule in place for CITY employees.  Such base salary shall be 
subject to normal and proper withholdings as determined by state and federal law and as 
determined appropriate by the CITY and shall be subject to payroll taxes, workers’ 
compensation and other payroll-related liability costs.   


2.2 Adjustments to Compensation.  YORK’s base salary will be evaluated each 
year during YORK’s annual performance evaluation.  Any adjustment in YORK’s annual 
base salary, cost of living adjustment (COLA), merit increases, adjustments in benefits or 
other compensation, including a discretionary prospective incentive bonus, shall be solely 
at the discretion of the City Council and based on YORK’s annual performance evaluation.  
Adjustments to YORK’s compensation are not governed by or subject to CITY’s Personnel 
Policies.  All adjustments in compensation are subject to approval by the affirmative vote of 
at least three members of the City Council voting on the item at a duly noticed and 
agendized public meeting.   







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  4 


2.3 Benefits.  CITY intends to provide YORK benefits generally consistent with 
those provided to CITY employees.   The benefits to be provided to YORK are as 
follows: 


2.3.1 Health Insurance. 


(a) Active Employment.  YORK shall be provided with a Cafeteria 
Plan, which will be administered by the CITY pursuant to section 125 of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  CITY’s contribution to the Cafeteria Plan will be One Thousand Two 
Hundred and 00/100 ($1,200.00) per month.  YORK may use this amount towards health, 
dental, or vision coverage for YORK and his dependents. 


   (b) Retiree Health.  If YORK retires from CITY employment, the 
CITY shall pay YORK’s and dependent(s)’ health benefits coverage for YORK and his 
dependent(s), the same as during active employment.  Upon reaching the minimum 
Medicare age eligibility, as detailed under federal law, the CITY shall provide YORK with 
contribution towards the Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”) Platinum 
Medicare Supplement plan or equivalent up to four thousand five hundred dollars per 
annum ($4,500 per year), adjusted annually per Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario 
Consumer Price Index, which adjustment shall commence upon the effective date of this 
Agreement.  YORK must meet the definition of an “annuitant” as defined by CalPERS and 
CalPERS minimum age and years of service requirements in order to be eligible to 
maintain the CITY-paid health insurance coverage. 


2.3.2 This Section Intentionally Blank 


2.3.3 Life Insurance. 


(a) Active Employment.  CITY will pay one hundred percent 
(100%) of the premium for YORK and dependent General Universal life insurance 
coverage contracted by CITY.  The benefit coverage under such program is as follows: 


Employee $245,000 
  
  


YORK shall control the designation of any and all beneficiaries. 


2.3.4 Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Sick Leave.  YORK may use 
accumulated but unused sick leave while on an absence due to an industrial injury in 
addition to any worker’s compensation payment; the combination of the two shall not 
exceed one hundred percent (100%) of YORK’S base salary. 


2.3.5 Retirement.  The CITY intends to maintain its current retirement plan 
with the State of California's Public Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS”) and to 
continue to include YORK thereunder as a “New Member,” as that term is defined in 
PEPRA, and YORK shall continue to participate in the CITY’s two percent (2.0%) at age 
62 formula for miscellaneous employees.  YORK must pay all (100%) of the required 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  5 


employee contribution for the CalPERS retirement plan as required and adjusted from time 
to time by CalPERS. The City must pay all (100%) of the required employer contribution 
for the CalPERS retirement plan as required and adjusted from time to time by CalPERS. 


2.3.6 Deferred Compensation.  The CITY will contribute eight percent (8%) 
of YORK’s annual base salary, up to the maximum allowable amount under the law, to 
YORK’s deferred compensation plan. 


2.3.7 Holidays.  YORK shall be entitled to those holidays granted to CITY 
employees, which consist of the following: 


 
New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King Day Veterans Day 
President’s Day Thanksgiving Day 
Floating Holiday Day after Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Christmas Eve Day 
Independence Day Christmas Day 


2.4 Vacation and Leave. 


2.4.1 Vacation.  YORK may accrue vacation leave without any limit or 
vacation accrual cap. YORK shall accrue vacation leave at the rate of (6.92308) hours 
per pay period or one hundred eighty (180) hours per fiscal year.   


2.4.2 Sick Leave.  YORK shall accumulate sick leave, without any limit or 
sick leave accrual cap, at the rate of eight (8) hours per month or ninety-six (96) hours per 
fiscal year.  Should YORK separate, whether by termination or resignation, from CITY he 
shall be paid one hundred percent (100%) of his accumulated and unused sick leave at 
his then-current hourly rate at separation. 


2.4.3 Administrative Leave.  Beginning each fiscal year on July 1, YORK will 
be credited with eighty (80) hours administrative leave per fiscal year.  Accrual of 
administrative leave hours is capped at eighty (80) hours total.  For the basis of recording 
usage of administrative leave, YORK shall be considered being on a forty (40) hour work 
week.  


2.4.4 Cash Out of Vacation, Sick Leave, and Administrative Leave.  YORK 
shall be eligible to cash out up to two hundred (200) hours of Vacation and/or Sick 
Leave, combined, and up to seventy (70) hours of Administrative Leave each fiscal 
year.  The cash-out may be taken in any increment amount up to either the above-stated 
maximum cash out amount or the then accrued and unused amount, whichever is the 
lesser, at any time during the fiscal year.  The cash-out of leave will be at YORK’s then 
current base salary rate at the time of cash out, including any special compensation. 


2.4.5 Bereavement Leave.  In the event YORK is absent from work by 
reason of a death in the immediate family, he may be allowed a leave of absence with pay. 
 YORK may be allowed up to three (3) cumulative working days, thirty (30) hours, per 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  6 


occurrence for in-state services and up to five (5) cumulative working days, fifty (50) hours, 
per occurrence for out-of-state services.  Such leave will not be deducted from YORK’s 
sick leave.  Bereavement leave is not eligible to be cashed out. 


2.5 Miscellaneous Benefits. 


2.5.1 Vehicle Allowance.  YORK shall receive a monthly cash allowance of 
six hundred fifty and 00/100 dollars ($650.00).  


2.5.2 Jury Duty.  YORK may be absent with pay for jury duty subject to 
CITY’s Jury Duty Leave as detailed in Rule XI (H) of the CITY’s Personnel Rules.  


2.5.3 Related Business Equipment.  YORK shall receive a monthly 
cellphone allowance and internet allowance of one hundred twenty and 00/100 dollars 
($120.00).  In addition, at YORK’s option, and in recognition of the fact YORK may be 
required to perform job-related duties outside the office and/or his home, CITY agrees that 
it will provide either a CITY-owned computer for CITY business conducted at his home or 
such upgrades as are necessary to his personal computer system in order to maintain 
compatibility with CITY-owned and operated technology and systems. 


3. Termination. 


3.1 By Employee Not-for-Cause.  YORK may terminate this Agreement for any 
reason, and at any time, with or without cause, by providing CITY with thirty (30) days prior 
written notice thereof, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in or arising from 
any Personnel Policies or past CITY practices relating to the employment, discipline, or 
termination of its employees. 


3.2 BY CITY Not-for-Cause.  Subject to an affirmative vote of the majority of the 
members of the City Council, the CITY may terminate this Agreement for any reason, and 
at any time, without cause, by providing YORK with thirty (30) days prior written notice 
thereof, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in or arising from any Personnel 
Policies or past CITY practices relating to the employment, discipline, or termination of its 
employees.  YORK expressly waives any rights provided under the City Personnel Policies, 
Municipal Code or under any state or federal law, to the extent legally allowable, to any 
form of pre- or post- termination hearing, appeal or other administrative process.  CITY has 
the right to immediately place YORK on paid administrative leave and such leave time shall 
count toward the thirty (30) day notice period.  In the event CITY terminates the Agreement 
not-for-cause, and provided that (i) YORK does not challenge the termination, including but 
not limited to by means of appeal or civil or administrative action, and (ii) timely and fully 
executes the Separation Agreement attached hereto as “Exhibit B”, then CITY shall pay 
YORK a lump sum equal to the lesser of either twelve (12) months of YORK’s then base 
salary amount, or the number of full months remaining in the term of the Agreement 
multiplied by his then base salary amount.  Severance does not include any accrued but 
unpaid salary, less applicable deductions, deferred compensation, benefits or any accrued 
compensable leave to which YORK may otherwise be entitled to under the law.  Pursuant 
to Government Code section 53260 the maximum cash settlement for the termination of the 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  7 


Agreement may not exceed the base salary multiplied by the number of months (not to 
exceed 18) remaining on the Agreement.  For the purpose of this Agreement, the Parties 
have agreed that the maximum number of months to be used for calculation of the 
Severance payment shall be twelve (12) months.   


3.3 By City for Cause.  CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at any 
time by providing YORK written notice of his termination for cause.  No Severance or any 
further salary shall be paid in the event YORK’s employment is terminated for cause except 
for any accrued but unpaid salary, less applicable deductions, deferred compensation, 
benefits or any accrued compensable leave to which YORK may otherwise be entitled to 
receive under the law.  For purposes of this Agreement, cause for termination shall be 
deemed to exist where:  (1) YORK is formally charged by the appropriate prosecuting 
agency with any of the following criminal conduct:  theft or attempted theft from the CITY; 
fraud or other type of criminal dishonesty; misuse or misappropriation of public funds; 
assault, battery or other criminal physical injury to another person; any felony; solicitation, 
prostitution, or other sexually oriented crime; or for violating Government Code section 
1090 et seq. and/or section 53243.4; (2) YORK is fined by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission for a violation of the Political Reform Act or FPPC Regulation in an amount in 
excess of one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500); (3) an independent investigation 
sustains that YORK engaged in unlawful discrimination or harassment of an official, officer, 
employee or agent of CITY or a third party while conducting CITY business or violated any 
provisions of the CITY’s Municipal Code; (4) unauthorized absence or leave in violation of 
section 1.1; (5) use or possession of illegal drugs; (6) material breach of this Agreement; (7) 
material acts of dishonesty; (8) persistent failure to disclose material information regarding 
the business or operation of the CITY necessary for the City Council to undertake its 
obligation as the elected legislative body of the CITY; or (9) material failure to follow clear 
and legal directives of a majority of City Council provided in a duly noticed public meeting, 
including closed session.  YORK expressly waives any rights provided for Administrative 
Personnel under CITY’s Personnel Policies, any rights provided for the City Manager or 
Administrative Personnel under the WMC or under State or Federal law to any form of pre- 
or post-termination hearing, appeal, or other administrative process pertaining to 
termination, except when YORK has a California or federal constitutional right to a name 
clearing hearing. 


3.4 Termination Obligations.  YORK agrees that all property, including, without 
limitation, all equipment, tangible Proprietary Information (as defined below), documents, 
records, notes, contracts, and computer-generated materials furnished to or prepared by 
him incident to his employment belongs to CITY and shall be returned promptly to CITY 
upon termination of YORK’s employment.  YORK’s obligations under this subsection shall 
survive the termination of his employment and the expiration of this Agreement. 


3.5 Benefits Upon Termination.  All benefits to which YORK is entitled under this 
Agreement shall cease upon YORK’s termination in accordance with this Section 3, unless 
expressly continued either under this Agreement, under any specific written policy or benefit 
plan applicable to YORK, or unless otherwise required by law. 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  8 


3.6 Reimbursement Under Certain Circumstances.  YORK acknowledges that 
Government Code section 53243 through 53243.4, inclusive, may require YORK to 
reimburse CITY for certain payments made by CITY to YORK during the term of his 
employment with CITY should he be convicted of a crime within the meaning of 
Government Code section 53243.4. 


4. Proprietary Information. 


“Proprietary Information” is all information and any idea pertaining in any manner to 
the business of CITY (or any CITY affiliate), its employees, clients, consultants, or business 
associates, which was produced by any employee of CITY in the course of his or her 
employment or otherwise produced or acquired by or on behalf of CITY.  Proprietary 
Information shall include, without limitation, trade secrets, product ideas, inventions, 
processes, formulae, data, know-how, software and other computer programs, 
copyrightable material, marketing plans, strategies, sales, financial reports, forecasts, and 
customer lists.  All Proprietary Information not generally known outside of CITY’s 
organization, and all Proprietary Information so known only through improper means, shall 
be deemed “Confidential Information.”  During his employment by CITY, YORK shall use 
Proprietary Information, and shall disclose Confidential Information, only for the benefit of 
CITY and as is or may be necessary to perform his job responsibilities under this 
Agreement.  Following termination, YORK shall not use any Proprietary Information and 
shall not disclose any Confidential Information, except with the express written consent of 
CITY.  YORK’s obligations under this Section shall survive the termination of his 
employment and the expiration of this Agreement. 


5. Conflict Of Interest. 


YORK represents and warrants to CITY that he presently has no interest, and 
represents that he will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, 
which would conflict in any manner or interfere in any way with performance of his services 
under this Agreement. 


6. General Provisions. 


6.1 Vehicle Operation.  YORK shall operate any vehicle used in connection with 
the performance of his duties as City Manager in a safe manner and otherwise in 
observance of all established traffic safety laws and ordinances and shall maintain a valid 
California automobile driver’s license during the period of employment. 


6.2 Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective upon delivery by hand or three (3) 
business days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or 
registered, and addressed to CITY at the address below, and or at the last known address 
maintained in YORK’s personnel file.  YORK agrees to notify CITY in writing of any change 
in his address during his employment with CITY.  Notice of change of address shall be 
effective only when accomplished in accordance with this Section. 
 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  9 


City’s Notice Address: 


City of Wildomar 
Attn:  Mayor, City Council and City 
Attorney 


23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 


City Manager’s Address: 


[Deliver to last updated address in 
personnel file.] 


6.3 Indemnification.  Subject to, in accordance with, and to the extent provided by 
the California Tort Claims Act [Gov. Code section 810 et seq.], CITY will indemnify, defend, 
and hold YORK harmless from and against any claim, action, demand, suit, monetary 
judgment or other legal or administrative proceeding, and any liability, injury, loss or other 
damages, arising out of any act or omission occurring during YORK’s tenure as City 
Manager (“Matters”).  This indemnification obligation shall survive expiration and 
termination of this Agreement only as to those Matters occurring during the term of the 
Agreement, but for which the corresponding claim, action, demand, suit, monetary 
judgment or other legal or administrative proceeding occurs or continues after the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement. 


6.4 Bonding.  The CITY shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the City Manager under any law or ordinance. 


6.5 Integration.  This Agreement is intended to be the final, complete, and 
exclusive statement of the terms of YORK’s employment by CITY.  This Agreement 
supersedes all other prior and contemporaneous agreements and statements, whether 
written or oral, express or implied, pertaining in any manner to the employment of YORK, 
and it may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous statements or 
agreements.  To the extent that the practices, policies, or procedures of CITY, now or in the 
future, apply to YORK and are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control. 


6.6 Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended except in a written 
document signed by YORK, approved by the City Council, and signed by CITY’s Mayor. 


6.7 Waiver.  Failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver of such right. 


6.8 Assignment.  YORK shall not assign any rights or obligations under this 
Agreement. 


6.9 Severability.  If a court or arbitrator holds any provision of this Agreement to 
be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect. 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  10 


6.10 Attorneys’ Fees.  In any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding brought 
to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to 
recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 


6.11 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, with venue proper only in Riverside 
County, State of California. 


6.12 Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its 
fair meaning, and not in favor of or against any Party.  By way of example and not in 
limitation, this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of the Party receiving a benefit nor 
against the Party responsible for any particular language in this Agreement.  Captions are 
used for reference purposes only and should be ignored in the interpretation of the 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in 
writing, executed by the Parties to this Agreement and by no other means.  Each Party 
waives their future right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, 
cancelled superseded or changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or 
estoppel. 


6.13 Acknowledgment.  YORK acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to 
consult legal counsel in regard to this Agreement, that he has read and understands this 
Agreement, that he is fully aware of its legal effect, and that he has entered into it freely and 
voluntarily and based on his own judgment and not on any representations or promises 
other than those contained in this Agreement. 







IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  11 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed on its behalf by its Mayor and duly attested to by its City Clerk, and YORK has 
signed and executed this Agreement, as of the date first indicated above. 


 


CITY MANAGER 
 


 CITY OF WILDOMAR 


DAN YORK  DUSTIN NIGG, Mayor 


ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Burke, Williams &Sorensen, LLP 


   


JANET MORALES, City Clerk  Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


 







12 
 


EXHIBIT “A” 
    City Manager Job Description 
 
The City Manager serves as the administrative head of city government under the 
direction and control of the City Council, and as otherwise provided in the Municipal 
Code.  The City Manager orchestrates the efficient administration of the city’s affairs 
while providing leadership to execute the City Council’s policies, strategic plans and 
objectives.  The City Manager retains the responsibility and authority to: 


1. Enforce the laws and ordinances of the city. 
2. Manage city operations and serve as General Manager of the cemetery 


operations. 
3. Appoint, remove, promote, and demote officers and employees of the city, except 


City Council, and the City Attorney who reports to the City Council. 
4. Coordinate, order and direct department heads and the organizational structure 


to achieve the policies, goals, strategic plans, and fiscal stewardship of the city. 
5. Assess and monitor workload, administrative support, internal reporting, and 


practices to carry out each department’s responsibilities. 
6. Select, motivate, and evaluate management personnel; resolve personnel 


concerns and issues; coordinate and encourage employee development and 
training.  


7. Oversee the development and administration of the city budget; approve the 
forecast of funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; oversee 
expenditures and revenues to ensure fiscal soundness; approve expenditures 
and implement budgetary adjustments as appropriate and necessary.  


8. Oversee, negotiate, and execute city contracts, agreements, and purchases. 
9. Investigate city affairs with departments, contracts, or other city obligations; and 


further investigate complaints in relation to city government administration and 
services; and negotiate and seek resolution on sensitive and controversial issues.  


10. Exercise general supervision over city properties. 
11. Attend City Council meetings, city events, and city commission meetings as 


necessary. 
12. Develop in coordination with the Mayor, City Attorney and Departments the City 


Council agendas for public meetings and be familiar with the findings and 
recommendations of the items on the agenda. 


13. Maintain regular communication with the City Council and City Attorney on 
matters associated with city business, city development, city operations, 
cemetery operations, organization and staffing, fiscal management, sensitive and 
controversial issues, and other items of city interest.   


14. Represent the city and coordinate city business with the county, cities, outside 
agencies, organizations, and business leaders. 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  13 


 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  14 


Exhibit “B” 
Separation Agreement 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  15 


SEPARATION AGREEMENT 
 
1. PARTIES. 
 
This Separation Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “AGREEMENT”) is entered into 
by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as 
“CITY”), and Daniel YORK, an individual (hereinafter referred to as “EMPLOYEE”). 
 
2. RECITALS. 
 


2.1. EMPLOYEE was hired by CITY as its permanent City Manager, to serve at 
the pleasure of the City Council, as of February 1, 2022  that Employment 
Agreement for the Position of City Manager, dated _________ _____, 2021 
(“EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT”)  


 
2.2. CITY and EMPLOYEE desire that EMPLOYEE resign and enter into this 


AGREEMENT, whereby EMPLOYEE receives severance compensation in 
exchange for executing this AGREEMENT including a general release and 
waiver of any and all claims that EMPLOYEE may have against CITY, 
including but not limited to its elected and non-elected officials, employees, 
attorneys, and agents.  Accordingly, the parties hereto intend by this 
AGREEMENT to mutually conclude any and all employment relationships 
between CITY and EMPLOYEE by means of EMPLOYEE’s voluntary 
separation as of ______, ____.  This AGREEMENT sets forth the full and 
complete terms and conditions concluding EMPLOYEE’s employment 
relationship with the CITY and any obligations related thereto, including any 
provided under EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT. 


 
2.3 In accordance with this AGREEMENT and with applicable state and federal 


laws, EMPLOYEE acknowledges that EMPLOYEE has been advised of 
EMPLOYEE’s postemployment rights, including but not limited to, 
EMPLOYEE’s rights under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation 
Act of 1985 (“COBRA”), the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974 (“ERISA”), and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996 (“HIPAA”). 


 
3. CONSIDERATION. 
 


3.1 EMPLOYEE shall receive payment at the time of his voluntary separation all 
earned salary, accrued fringe benefits as detailed in the CONTRACT, and/or 
all other wage compensation/benefits owed to EMPLOYEE upon separation 
of employment, as required by law or the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT or 
any other agreement with CITY. 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  16 


 
3.2. In exchange for the waivers and releases set forth herein, CITY shall also 


cause to be paid to EMPLOYEE an additional compensatory payment by 
means of severance, settlement and release in the form of a lump sum 
amount of ___________________________ and __ cents ($______.00), as 
set forth in the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT in the form of a check made 
payable to EMPLOYEE to be mailed to EMPLOYEE at EMPLOYEE’s home 
address via certified mail return receipt requested within thirty (30) business 
days after the EFFECTIVE DATE (as defined below) of this AGREEMENT.   


 
3.3 In exchange for the severance payment provided for herein, EMPLOYEE, 


and on behalf of EMPLOYEE’s spouse, heirs, representatives, successors, 
and assigns, hereby releases, acquits, and forever discharges CITY, and 
each of its predecessors, successors, assigns, officials, employees, 
representatives, agents, insurers, attorneys, and all persons and entities 
acting by, through, under, or in concert with any of them, and each of them 
(hereinafter referred to as “CITY PARTIES”), from any and all claims, 
charges, complaints, contracts, understandings, liabilities, obligations, 
promises, benefits, agreements, controversies, costs, losses, debts, 
expenses, damages, actions, causes of action, suits, rights, and demands of 
any nature whatsoever, known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, which 
EMPLOYEE now has or may acquire in the future, or which EMPLOYEE ever 
had, relating to or arising out of any act, omission, occurrence, condition, 
event, transaction, or thing which was done, omitted to be done, occurred or 
was in effect at anytime from the beginning of time up to and including 
_______ __, ____ (hereinafter referred to collectively as “CLAIMS”), without 
regard to whether such CLAIMS arise under the federal, state, or local 
constitutions, statutes, rules or regulations, or the common law.  EMPLOYEE 
expressly acknowledges that the CLAIMS forever barred by this 
AGREEMENT specifically include, but are not limited to, claims based upon 
any alleged breach of the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT or any other 
agreement of employment, any demand for wages, overtime or benefits, any 
claims of violation of the provisions of ERISA, COBRA or HIPAA, any alleged 
breach of any duty arising out of contract or tort, any alleged wrongful 
termination in violation of public policy, any alleged breach of any express or 
implied contract for continued employment, any alleged employment 
discrimination or unlawful discriminatory act, or any claim or cause of action 
including, but not limited to, any and all claims whether arising under any 
federal, state or local law prohibiting breach of employment contract, wrongful 
termination, or employment discrimination based upon age, race, color, sex, 
religion, handicap or disability, national origin or any other protected category 
or characteristic, and any and all rights or claims arising under the California 
Labor Code or Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, the Federal Fair 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  17 


Labor Standards Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, 
California Government Code section 12900 et seq., the Americans With 
Disabilities Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Public Safety 
Officers Procedural Bill of Right Act, and any other federal, state, or local 
human rights, civil rights, or employment discrimination or employee rights 
statute, rule, or regulation. 


 
4. SPECIFIC ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF WAIVER OF CLAIMS UNDER ADEA 


AND OWBPA. 
 
The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (hereinafter referred to as the “ADEA”) 
makes it illegal for an employer to discharge any individual or otherwise discriminate with 
respect to the nature and privileges of an individual’s employment on the basis that the 
individual is age forty (40) or older.  The Older Workers Benefit Protection Act (hereinafter 
referred to as the “OWBPA,” 29 U.S.C. section 626, et seq., Pub L 101-433, 104 Stat. 978 
(1990)) further augments the ADEA and prohibits the waiver of any right or claim under the 
ADEA, unless the waiver is knowing and voluntary.  By entering into this AGREEMENT, 
EMPLOYEE acknowledges that he knowingly and voluntarily, for just compensation in 
addition to anything of value to which EMPLOYEE was already entitled, waives and 
releases any rights he may have under the ADEA and/or OWBPA.  EMPLOYEE further 
acknowledges that he has been advised and understands, pursuant to the provisions of the 
ADEA and OWBPA, that: 
 


(a) This waiver/release is written in a manner understood by EMPLOYEE; 
 
(b) EMPLOYEE is aware of, and/or has been advised of, his rights under the 


ADEA and OWBPA, and of the legal significance of his waiver of any possible 
claims he currently may have under the ADEA, OWBPA and/or similar age 
discrimination laws; 


 
(c) EMPLOYEE is entitled to a reasonable time of at least twenty-one (21) days 


within which to review and consider this AGREEMENT and the waiver and 
release of any rights he may have under the ADEA, the OWBPA and similar 
age discrimination laws; but may, in the exercise of his own discretion, sign or 
reject this AGREEMENT at any time before the expiration of the twenty-one 
(21) days; 


 
(d) The waivers and releases set forth in this AGREEMENT shall not apply to any 


rights or claims that may arise under the ADEA and/or OWBPA after the 
EFFECTIVE DATE of this AGREEMENT; 


 
(e) EMPLOYEE has been advised by this writing that he should consult with an 


attorney prior to executing this AGREEMENT; 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  18 


 
(f) EMPLOYEE has discussed this waiver and release with, and been advised 


with respect thereto by, his counsel of choice, and that he does not need any 
additional time within which to review and consider this AGREEMENT; 


 
(g) EMPLOYEE has seven (7) days following his execution of this AGREEMENT 


to revoke the AGREEMENT; 
 
(h) Notice of revocation within the seven (7) day revocation period must be 


provided, in writing, to THE CITY pursuant to Paragraph 8.9 herein, and must 
state, “I hereby revoke my acceptance of our Agreement of Severance and 
General Release;” and 


 
(i) This AGREEMENT shall not be effective until all parties have signed the 


AGREEMENT and ten (10) days have passed since EMPLOYEE’s execution 
(“EFFECTIVE DATE”). 


 
5. UNKNOWN CLAIMS. 
 
In relation to the release provisions of Paragraphs 3 and 4 above, EMPLOYEE understands 
that California Civil Code section 1542 reads as follows:  “General Release--Claims 
Extinguished” 
 


“A general release does not extend to claims that the creditor or 
releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her 
favor at the time of executing the release and that, if known by 
him or her, would have materially affected his or her settlement 
with the debtor or released party.” 


 
EMPLOYEE hereby waives the protection of California Civil Code section 1542. 
 
6. WAIVER OF ADDITIONAL CLAIMS. 
 
EMPLOYEE hereby waives any provisions of state or federal law that might require a more 
detailed specification of the claims being released pursuant to the provisions of Paragraphs 
3, 4, and 5 above. 
 
7. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
 
Each of the parties to this AGREEMENT represents and warrants to, and agrees with, each 
other party as follows: 
 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  19 


7.1. Advice of Counsel:  The parties hereto have received independent legal 
advice from their respective attorneys concerning the advisability of entering 
into and executing this AGREEMENT or have been given the opportunity to 
obtain such advice.  The parties acknowledge that they have been 
represented by counsel of their own choice in the negotiation of this 
AGREEMENT, that they have read this AGREEMENT; that they have had 
this AGREEMENT fully explained to them by such counsel, or have had such 
opportunity to do so and that they are fully aware of the contents of this 
AGREEMENT and of its legal effect. 


 
7.2. No Fraud in Inducement:  No party (nor any officer, agent, employee, 


representative, or attorney of or for any party) has made any statement or 
representation or failed to make any statement or representation to any other 
party regarding any fact relied upon in entering into this AGREEMENT, and 
neither party relies upon any statement, representation, omission or promise 
of any other party in executing this AGREEMENT, or in making the settlement 
provided for herein, except as expressly stated in this AGREEMENT. 


 
7.3. Independent Investigation:  Each party to this AGREEMENT has made such 


investigation of the facts pertaining to this settlement and this AGREEMENT 
and all the matters pertaining thereto, as it deems necessary. 


 
7.4. Mistake Waived:  In entering into this AGREEMENT, each party assumes the 


risk of any misrepresentation, concealment or mistake.  If any party should 
subsequently discover that any fact relied upon by it in entering into this 
AGREEMENT was untrue, or that any fact was concealed from it, or that its 
understanding of the facts or of the law was incorrect, such party shall not be 
entitled to any relief in connection therewith, including without limitation on the 
generality of the foregoing any alleged right or claim to set aside or rescind 
this AGREEMENT. 


 
This AGREEMENT is intended to be, and is, final and binding between the 
parties, regardless of any claims of misrepresentation, promise made without 
the intent to perform, concealment of fact, mistake of fact or law, or any other 
circumstance whatsoever. 


 
7.5. Later Discovery:  The parties are aware that they may hereafter discover 


claims or facts in addition to or different from those they now know or believe 
to be true with respect to the matters related herein.  Nevertheless, it is the 
intention of the parties that EMPLOYEE fully, finally and forever settle and 
release all such matters, and all claims relative thereto, which do now exist, 
may exist or have previously existed against CITY or CITY PARTIES.  In 
furtherance of such intention, the releases given here shall be, and remain, in 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  20 


effect as full and complete releases of all such matters, notwithstanding the 
discovery or existence of any additional or different claims or facts relative 
thereto. 


 
7.6. Indemnification:  EMPLOYEE agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CITY or 


CITY PARTIES from, and against, any and all claims, damages, or liabilities 
sustained by them as a direct result of the violation or breach of the 
covenants, warranties, and representations undertaken pursuant to the 
provisions of this AGREEMENT.  EMPLOYEE understands and agrees that 
he shall be exclusively liable for the payment of all taxes for which he is 
responsible, if any, as a result of his receipt of the consideration referred to in 
Paragraph 3 of this AGREEMENT.  In addition, EMPLOYEE agrees fully to 
indemnify and hold the CITY PARTIES harmless for payment of tax 
obligations as may be required by any federal, state or local taxing authority, 
at any time, as a result of the payment of the consideration set forth in 
Paragraph 3 of this AGREEMENT. 


 
7.7. Future Cooperation & Consultation fees:  EMPLOYEE shall execute all such 


further and additional documents as shall be reasonable, convenient, 
necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT.  
EMPLOYEE shall provide CITY with consultation services (including 
deposition or trial testimony) in any litigation involving CITY which is 
reasonably related to acts or occurrences transpiring during his employment. 
Said services shall be provided as needed by CITY at a rate of $100.00 per 
hour. 


 
7.8. Return of Confidential Information and Property:  Prior to the separation date, 


EMPLOYEE shall submit a written inventory of, and return to the City Clerk, 
all City keys, equipment, computer identification cards or codes, and other 
equipment or materials or confidential documents provided to or obtained by 
EMPLOYEE during the course of his employment with CITY. 


 
7.9 No Pending Claims and/or Actions:  EMPLOYEE represents that he has not 


filed any complaints or charges against CITY or CITY PARTIES with any 
local, state or federal agency or court; that he will not do so at any time 
hereafter for any claim arising up to and including the EFFECTIVE DATE of 
this AGREEMENT; and that if any such agency or court assumes jurisdiction 
of any such complaint or charge against CITY or CITY PARTIES on behalf of 
EMPLOYEE, whenever or where ever filed, he will request such agency or 
court to withdraw from the matter forthwith. 


 
7.10. Ownership of Claims:  EMPLOYEE represents and warrants as a material 


term of this AGREEMENT that EMPLOYEE has not heretofore assigned, 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  21 


transferred, released or granted, or purported to assign, transfer, release or 
grant, any of the CLAIMS disposed of by this AGREEMENT.  In executing this 
AGREEMENT, EMPLOYEE further warrants and represents that none of the 
CLAIMS released by EMPLOYEE thereunder will in the future be assigned, 
conveyed, or transferred in any fashion to any other person and/or entity. 


 
7.11 Enforcement Fees and Costs:  Should any legal action be required to enforce 


the terms of this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in addition to any other relief to which 
that party may be entitled. 


 
7.12 Authority:  Each party represents to the other that it has the right to enter into 


this AGREEMENT, and that it is not violating the terms or conditions of any 
other AGREEMENT to which they are a party or by which they are bound by 
entering into this AGREEMENT.  The parties represent that they will obtain all 
necessary approvals to execute this AGREEMENT.  It is further represented 
and agreed that the individuals signing this AGREEMENT on behalf of the 
respective parties have actual authority to execute this AGREEMENT and, by 
doing so, bind the party on whose behalf this AGREEMENT has been signed. 


 
8. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 


8.1.  No Admission:  Nothing contained herein shall be construed as an admission 
by CITY of any liability of any kind.  The CITY denies any liability in 
connection with any claim and intends hereby solely to avoid potential claims 
and/or litigation and buy its peace. 


 
8.2. Governing Law:  This AGREEMENT has been executed and delivered within 


the State of California, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be 
construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the 
State of California. 


 
8.3. Full Integration:  This AGREEMENT is the entire agreement between the 


parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous oral and written agreements and discussions.  This 
AGREEMENT may be amended only by a further agreement in writing, 
signed by the parties hereto. 


 
8.4. Continuing Benefit:  This AGREEMENT is binding upon and shall inure to the 


benefit of the parties hereto, their respective agents, spouses, employees, 
representatives, officials, attorneys, assigns, heirs, and successors in interest. 


 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  22 


8.5.  Joint Drafting:  Each party agrees that it has cooperated in the drafting and 
preparation of this AGREEMENT.  Hence, in any construction to be made of 
this AGREEMENT, the parties agree that same shall not be construed against 
any party. 


 
8.6. Severability:  In the event that any term, covenant, condition, provision or 


agreement contained in this AGREEMENT is held to be invalid or void by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such term, covenant, 
condition, provision or agreement shall in no way affect any other term, 
covenant, condition, provision or agreement and the remainder of this 
AGREEMENT shall still be in full force and effect. 


 
8.7. Titles:  The titles included in this AGREEMENT are for reference only and are 


not part of its terms, nor do they in any way modify the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. 


 
8.8. Counterparts:  This AGREEMENT may be executed in counterparts, and 


when each party has signed and delivered at least one such counterpart, 
each counterpart shall be deemed an original, and, when taken together with 
other signed counterparts, shall constitute one AGREEMENT, which shall be 
binding upon and effective as to all parties. 


 
8.9. Notice:  Any and all notices given to any party under this AGREEMENT shall 


be given as provided in this paragraph.  All notices given to either party shall 
be made by certified or registered United States mail, or personal delivery, at 
the noticing party’s discretion, and addressed to the parties as set forth 
below.  Notices shall be deemed, for all purposes, to have been given on the 
date of personal service or three (3) consecutive calendar days following 
deposit of the same in the United States mail. 


 
As to EMPLOYEE: 
At EMPLOYEE’s home address on file with THE CITY. 


 
As to THE CITY: 
City Clerk and City Attorney 
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201  
Wildomar, CA 92595 
 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY has caused this AGREEMENT to be signed and executed 
on its behalf by its Mayor and duly attested by its City Clerk, EMPLOYEE has signed and 







 


IRV #4813-9899-6734 v3  23 


executed this Agreement, and the attorneys for CITY and EMPLOYEE, if any, have 
approved as to form as of the dates written below. 
 
Dated: ______________ EMPLOYEE 
   
   
   
   
  DAN YORK 
   
Dated: ______________ CITY 
   
   
   
   
  DUSTIN NIGG, Mayor 
   
ATTEST:  
  
  
  
  
Janet Morales, City Clerk  
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
  
Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP  
  
  
  
  
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney  
 







 
CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 


Agenda Item #3.6 
  GENERAL BUSINESS 


 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2022 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council appoint a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In accordance with Resolution No. 09 - 72, the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem appointments 
are to be done each year at the December City Council Meeting. The term of the 
appointments will run the calendar year, from January 1st through December 31st of 
2022. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Janet Morales, CMC    Gary Nordquist 
City Clerk      City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution No. 09-72 
 



















 
CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 


Agenda Item #3.7 
 GENERAL BUSINESS 


 Meeting Date: December 15, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Committees, Commissions, and Boards Appointment for 2022 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review the list of committees, commissions, and 
boards and approve/change appointments, and/or delete Subcommittees as appropriate. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Annually at the December City Council Meeting meeting, Staff brings the appointment list 
of the Council Committees, Commissions and Boards. This is the opportunity for Council 
to review the list and make any changes to appointments and/or delete Subcommittees 
as appropriate.  
 
 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Janet Morales, CMC     Gary Nordquist 
City Clerk      City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
List of committees, commissions, and boards as of 12/9/2020 
 







 
 


CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS, BOARDS 


Reviewed and Re-appointed/Re-designated 12-09-20 
 


 


EVMWD             Joseph Morabito 
             Marsha Swanson 


Meets on the second Monday of every other month at 8:00 a.m. at either their offices or City 
Hall (rotates every other month) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Intergovernmental Relations Subcommittee                  Ben Benoit 
             Marsha Swanson 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Lake Elsinore Unified School District          Bridgette Moore 


(Appointed 10-14-09)                   Dustin Nigg 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Franchise Subcommittee                     Ben Benoit 


            Marsha Swanson 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 


REGIONAL COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS, BOARDS 
 


Autism Task Force              Bridgette Moore 
(Appointed May 12, 2010) 
Meets as needed.                                                                                                                           
___________________________________________________________________________ 
League of California Cities                    Dustin Nigg, Voting Delegate 
Meets annually at the League Annual Conference.                    Ben J. Benoit, Alternate 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
PARSAC                   Robert Howell, Director 
Meets in May and December in Sacramento.               Janet Morales, Alternate 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
RCA                              Ben J. Benoit 
Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority   Joseph Morabito, Alternate 
Meets the first Monday of each month at 1:00 p.m. at the County Administration Center, Board 
of Supervisors Chambers, 4080 Lemon Street, Riverside. 
 
 







___________________________________________________________________________ 
RCHCA             Joseph Morabito 
Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency              Dustin Nigg, Alternate 
Meets the third Thursday Quarterly at 11:00 a.m. at the WRCOG office, 3390 University Ave., 
Suite 200, Riverside. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
RCTC                    Ben J. Benoit 
Riverside County Transportation Commission          Joseph Morabito, Alternate 
Meets the second Wednesday of each month at 9:30 a.m. at the County Administration Center, 
Board of Supervisors Chambers, 4080 Lemon Street, Riverside. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
RTA                Bridgette Moore 
Riverside Transit Agency              Joseph Morabito, Alternate 
Meets the fourth Thursday of each month at 3:00 p.m. at the County Administration Center, 
Board of Supervisors Chambers, 4080 Lemon Street, Riverside. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
SCAG                    Ben J. Benoit 
Southern California Association of Governments        Dustin Nigg, Alternate 
Meets annually in June of each year. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Southwest Community Financing Authority        Joseph Morabito 
(Animal Shelter)                       Dustin Nigg, Alternate 
Meets as needed. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
WCE                            Ben J. Benoit 
Western Community Energy                      Dustin Nigg, Alternate 
Meets the second Wednesday of each month at 1:00 p.m. at the WRCOG office, 3390 University 
Ave., Suite 200, Riverside. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
WRCOG                  Ben J. Benoit 
Western Riverside Council of Governments         Dustin Nigg, Alternate 
Meets the first Monday of each month at 2:00 p.m. at the County Administration Center, Board 
of Supervisors Chambers, 4080 Lemon Street, Riverside. 
 







Agenda Item #4.1 
 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


NOVEMBER 10, 2021 
 
CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Regular meeting of November 10, 2021, of the Wildomar Cemetery District 
was conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Vice Chair 
Benoit at 8:14 p.m.  
 
District Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Trustees Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit 
 
Members absent: Chair Nigg 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant General Manager York, District Counsel Jex, Clerk 
of the Board Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director 
Howell, Project Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, 
Cemetery District Manager Torres, Development Manager Stadnik. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no board communications. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Swanson seconded by Trustee Morabito, to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried, 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Chair Nigg 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery District Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


2 


  
 
4.1 Minutes – October 13, 2021 Regular Meeting 


Approved the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


Approved the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 10-07-2021 in the amount of $244.40. 
2. Warrant Register dated 10-14-2021 in the amount of $3,398.88. 
3. Warrant Register dated 10-21-2021 in the amount of $266.38. 
4. Warrant Register dated 10-28-2021 in the amount of $1,226.86. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for September 2021. 
 
 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There were no items scheduled. 
 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


There were no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 There was no report given. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 There were no future agenda items added. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery District Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


3 


  
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING TO 
AN ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING ON DECEMBER 15, 2021  
There being no further business, Vice Chair Benoit declared the meeting adjourned 
at 8:15 p.m. to an adjourned regular meeting on December 15, 2021.  
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Janet Morales, CMC   Dustin Nigg 
Clerk of the Board    Chair 







      WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.2 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant Register 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following: 
 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 11-04-2021 in the amount of $7,717.25. 
2. Warrant Register dated 11-11-2021 in the amount of $796.97. 
3. Warrant Register dated 11-18-2021 in the amount of $3,929.00. 
4. Warrant Register dated 11-24-2021 in the amount of $262.01. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Wildomar Cemetery District requires that the Trustees audit payments of demands 
and direct the General Manager to issue checks. The Warrant Registers are submitted 
for approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant Registers will have a budgetary impact in the amount and fiscal year noted 
in the recommendation section of this report. These costs are included in the Fiscal Year 
2021/22 Budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director    General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 11/04/2021   
Voucher List 11/11/2021 
Voucher List 11/18/2021 
Voucher List 11/24/2021    







11/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:09:46AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214352 11/4/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4099871902 STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE  80.98


Total :  80.98


 214353 11/4/2021 000483  EATON BROTHERS CORP. 55029 LIFETIME VASE, BRONZE COLOR / 12  568.59


Total :  568.59


 214354 11/4/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11342388 09/17/21-10/17/21 CEMETERY WATER 


SERVICE


 1,505.05


Total :  1,505.05


 214355 11/4/2021 000941  FRONTIER 101921 10/19/21-11/18/21 CEMETERY 


VOICE/INTERNE


 65.98


Total :  65.98


 214356 11/4/2021 000412  POLYGUARD & CO 55117 CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES  5,028.00


Total :  5,028.00


 214357 11/4/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 292441 10/25/21-11/21/21 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 411.25


Total :  411.25


 214358 11/4/2021 000378  TEMECULA VALLEY PIPE & SUPPLY 614269 CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES  57.40


Total :  57.40


Bank total :  7,717.25 7 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 7,717.25Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 7







11/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:30:00PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214385 11/11/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 306190/3 CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES  258.13


 72.47CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES306193/3


Total :  330.60


 214386 11/11/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4100550498 STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE  80.98


Total :  80.98


 214387 11/11/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 340492 OCT 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3 YD 


COMMERCIA


 176.52


 166.52NOV 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3 YD 


COMMERCIA


341403


-289.54CREDIT: OCT 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3 


YD C


CR340492


S -5.00CREDIT: NOV 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3 


YD C


CR341403


Total :  48.50


 214388 11/11/2021 001429  DANIEL PEST CONTROL 21-2303 OCT 2021 PESTICIDE FOR ANTS/BEES  250.00


Total :  250.00


 214389 11/11/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 110621 CEMETERY DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


11/06/21


 86.89


Total :  86.89


Bank total :  796.97 5 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 796.97Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 5







11/18/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 8:11:42AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214405 11/18/2021 000433  GOLDEN STATE RISK MANAGEMENT, AUTHORITY2020-21 CEMETERY FINAL CONTRIBUTION 


TRUE-UP ADJU


 3,929.00


Total :  3,929.00


Bank total :  3,929.00 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 3,929.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







11/24/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:05:27AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214431 11/24/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4101239753 STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE  80.98


 80.98STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE4101942378


Total :  161.96


 214432 11/24/2021 000094  STAUFFERS LAWN EQUIPMENT 270406 CEMETERY MAINTENANCE/REPAIR  100.05


Total :  100.05


Bank total :  262.01 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 262.01Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.3 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Treasurer’s Report for October 
2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of October 
2021.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.   
  
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 







PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


$ 267,298.21 $ 267,298.21 $ 267,298.21 100.00% 0 Variable


$ 267,298.21 $ 267,298.21 $ 267,298.21 100.00%


+ WITHDRAWALS/
BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


$ 268,111.02 $ -                         $ (812.81) $ 267,298.21 Variable


$ 268,111.02 $ -                         $ (812.81) $ 267,298.21


$ 267,298.21              


TOTAL


 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT
   TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
October 2021


DISTRICT INVESTMENT


EDWARD JONES


ISSUER


ISSUER


EDWARD JONES


TOTAL


TOTAL INVESTMENT


Administrative Services Director


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the Wildomar Cemetery District, I hereby certify that sufficient 
investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the District's expenditure requirements for the next six months.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the District's Bank Balances.


Robert Howell 12/1/2021
Robert Howell Date





		12-15-2021 Agenda

		1.2 10-13-2021 Minutes

		1.3 Warrant Reg November 2021

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		1.3 Warrant Reg November 2021 Voucher Listings

		110421 fy 22

		111121 fy 22

		111821 fy 22

		112421 fy 22



		1.4 Treasurers Report October 2021

		1.4 Treasurers Report October 2021 Detail

		T October 2021



		1.5 Ordinance 207 - 2nd Reading CC Rept 12-15-21

		SECTION 2. MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN (MSHCP)

		Based upon the evidence presented and the above findings, the City Council hereby approves the revision to Development Agreement No. 20-0078(R1) as illustrated herein and attached hereto to this Ordinance as Exhibit A.  The City Manager is directed to...



		A. The Legislature of the State of California has adopted California Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5, which authorizes a city to enter into a binding development agreement with persons having legal or equitable interests in real propert...

		B. On June 10, 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 187 establishing zoning and use regulations for cannabis businesses within the City, which includes a requirement that a cannabis business enter into a development agreement with the City pri...

		C. Developer is the tenant of that certain real property located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, California hereinafter referred to as the "Property" and as more particularly described herein.  Deve...

		D. The Property is owned by “The Manske Revocable Trust,” Mr. Edwin Manske (“Property Owner”).  The Property Owner has provided notarized written consent to the terms of this Agreement and the recordation thereof, attached here to as Exhibit C.

		E. On September 24, 2020, the City issued a Cannabis Local License to Developer for the Project pursuant to Chapter 5.76 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, and on September 9, 2021, the City issued a revised Cannabis Local License to Developer for the Pr...

		F. On October 6, 2021, the Planning Commission considered, at a duly noticed public hearing, and voted to recommend to the City Council adoption of a Categorical Exemption in accordance with Section 15301 (Class 1) of the California Environmental Qual...

		G. On November 10, 2021, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing and voted to adopt a Categorical Exemption in accordance with Section 15301 (Class 1) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), for this Development Agreement No. 2...

		H. On December 16, 2021, the City Council considered and approved this revised Development Agreement No. 20-0078, Amendment No. 1 by adopting the 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 207 which becomes effective on January 15, 2022.

		I. In adopting this revised Development Agreement, City understands that Developer will acquire certain vested rights regarding development of the Project on the Property and that this Agreement will bind future City Councils to its terms to the exten...

		J. City acknowledges the benefit the Project will provide to the community and desires to encourage the undertaking and completion of the Project and to provide a greater level of development certainty for the Developer by entering into this Agreement.

		K. City finds and determines that it will be in the best interests of its citizens and the public health, safety and welfare will be served by entering into this Agreement.

		1. DEFINITIONS

		1.1 “Action” means any suit (whether legal, equitable, or declaratory in nature), proceeding or hearing (whether administrative or judicial), arbitration or mediation (whether voluntary, court-ordered, binding, or non-binding), or other alternative di...

		1.2 “Cannabis Business License” means the license to operate a cannabis business issued by the City to the Developer for the Project under Chapter 5.76 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.

		1.3 “City” means the City of Wildomar, a general law, municipal corporation formed and existing under the laws of the State of California and any successor-in-interest to the rights, obligations, and powers of the City.

		1.4 “Claim or Litigation” means any challenge by any third party (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or adjudicatory in nature) (i) to the legality, validity or adequacy of the General Plan, Land Use Regulations, this Agreement, Dev...

		1.5 “County” means the County of Riverside.

		1.6 “Developer” means Culture Holdings of Wildomar, Inc., a California Corporation, having its principal place of business at 3 Corporate Park, Suite #200, Irvine, CA 92606, and who is authorized to conduct business, and is doing business, within Cali...

		1.7  “Development Costs” means all the costs and expenses which must necessarily be incurred in the design, development, construction and completion of the Project, including but not limited to: predevelopment costs; Developer’s overhead and related c...

		1.8 “Development Exaction” means any requirement of the City in connection with or pursuant to any Land Use Regulation or Existing Development Approval for the dedication of land, the construction of improvements or public facilities, or the payment o...

		1.9 “Development Impact Fees” means those development impact fees imposed and levied by the City to recover the cost of planned public facilities and to mitigate impacts of projects on the City.

		1.10 “Effective Date” means the date upon which the Ordinance approving this Agreement becomes effective, which date is thirty (30) days following the date the City Council adopted such Ordinance absent a referendum challenge, and provided that the Ag...

		1.11 “Existing Development Approval(s)” means all land use development permits and approvals issued, approved, and/or certified by the City Council, Planning Commission, Planning Director, or Building Official, including those development approvals li...

		1.12 “Existing Land Use Regulation” means a Land Use Regulation existing, effective, and made a matter of public record as of the Effective Date of this Agreement.

		1.13 “General Plan” means the City’s General Plan as of the date of this Agreement, as amended.

		1.14  “Land Use Regulations” means all ordinances, resolutions, codes, rules, regulations, and official policies of City, governing the development and use of land including without limitation, the permitted use of land; the density or intensity of us...

		1.15 “Litigation Expenses” means all costs and expenses, to the extent such are reasonable in amount, that are actually and necessarily incurred in good faith by the Prevailing Party directly related to the Action, including, but not related to, court...

		1.16  “Project” means that certain retail cannabis business development proposed by Culture Holdings of Wildomar, Inc., a California Corporation, consisting of a 2,275 square foot retail cannabis business located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (...

		1.17 “Property” means a certain real property located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, California, as more particularly described in the legal description in Attachment 1 and depicted in Attachment 2...

		1.18 “Property Owner” means “The Manske Revocable Trust,” Mr. Edwin Manske.

		1.19 “Public Improvement” means those public improvements, including but not limited to, streets, streetlights, traffic signals, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, parkway landscaping, irrigation systems, storm drains, sewers, and other public facilities dire...

		1.20 “Regional Fees” means fees and charges imposed or levied by any other public agency, regional agency, utility, district or joint powers authority, regardless of whether City collects those fees and charges, including, but not limited to, Transpor...

		1.21 “Subsequent Development Approvals” means any ministerial and discretionary permits, licenses, or other similar entitlements or approvals that must be secured by the Developer in order to develop the Project on the Property other than the Existing...

		1.22 “Subsequent Land Use Regulation” means any Land Use Regulation adopted, effective, and made a matter of public record after the Effective Date of this Agreement.



		2. vesting and SCOPE OF DEVELOPMENT

		2.1 Vesting.  During the Term of this Agreement, Developer shall be entitled to, and vested with the right to, develop the Project on the Property, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Existing Development Approvals, any Subseque...

		2.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be for an initial period of twenty (20) years.   This Agreement shall terminate and be of no force and effect upon the occurrence of the entry of a final judgment or ...

		2.3 Subsequent Development Approvals.  Successful implementation of the Project may require the Developer to obtain additional approvals and permits from City. In connection with the consideration and issuance of any such Subsequent Development Approv...

		2.4 Development Costs.  Developer shall be solely responsible for payment of all Development Costs incurred in connection with developing the Project on the Property.

		2.5 Schedule of Performance.  Developer shall, in good faith, use commercially reasonable efforts to undertake, commence, and thereafter diligently pursue to completion, the development of the Project.  The parties acknowledge that Developer cannot at...

		2.6 Developer’s Representations and Warranties.  Developer represents and warrants that, to the best of its knowledge, the following are accurate and true as of the Effective Date of this Agreement:

		2.6.1 Title and Possession.  Developer leases said Property located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) within the City of Wildomar, California, and is the sole person in legal possession of the lease space.  All other persons hold...

		2.6.2 No Legal Actions.  No Action to acquire, partition, or quiet title or any interest in the Property, or any Action that is reasonably likely to impair, encumber, or otherwise adversely impact title to the Property or Developer’s rights, title, or...

		2.6.3 No Legal Impediments to Agreement.  No contract, lease, or other agreement, whether recorded or unrecorded, bars, prohibits, limits or otherwise impairs Developer’s ability to enter into this Agreement and to encumber the Property with this Agre...



		2.7 Cooperation.  City agrees that it shall accept for processing and promptly take action on all applications for Implementing Approvals, provided they are in a proper form and acceptable for required processing in accordance with the Existing Develo...



		3. PUBLIC BENEFITS

		3.1 Public Benefit.  The parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement confers private benefits on the Developer that should be balanced by commensurate public benefits.  Accordingly, the parties intend to provide consideration to the public to ba...

		3.2 Development Agreement Fee.  On the Effective Date of this Agreement and on each anniversary thereafter, the Developer shall pay to the City a Development Agreement Fee as follows:

		3.2.1 Twenty dollars ($20.00) per gross square foot of floor area (2,275 square-foot lease space) within any building, facility or structure utilized for the proposed Cannabis Business.  Beginning on the first anniversary of the Effective Date, and qu...

		3.2.2 In addition, the following amounts shall be paid to the City based on the quarterly (1/4) gross receipts of the Cannabis Business commencing on the first quarterly (1/4) anniversary of the Effective Date of this Agreement and quarterly (1/4) the...

		3.2.2.1 1st anniversary through 5th anniversary:  3% of gross receipts.

		3.2.2.2 6th anniversary through 20th anniversary: 5% of gross receipts unless the City and Developer agree to a different amount and as approved by the City Council prior to the 6th anniversary of the Effective Date.



		3.2.4 The City shall have the power to audit and examine all books and records of the Developer, as well as persons engaged in the operation of the Cannabis Business, including both state and federal income tax returns, California sales tax returns, o...



		3.3 Other Fees.  In addition to the Development Agreement Fee, Developer agrees to pay all Regulatory Fees, Development Impact Fees, and any other applicable fees to the City related to the development of the Project on the Property.



		4. applicable laws and regulations; reservation of authority

		4.1 Existing Land Use Regulations.  The Existing Land Use Regulations shall be applicable to the Project. Any change in, or addition to, the Existing Land Use Regulations, including without limitation, any change in any applicable City general or spec...

		4.2 Federal and State Laws.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall be subject to subsequently enacted state or federal laws or regulations that may preempt the City’s ordinances, resolutions, rules, r...

		4.3 Reservation of Authority.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the City reserves its authority to impose any of the following rules, policies, regulations, ordinances, or requirements on development of the Project:

		4.3.1 Filing and Processing Fees.  Developer shall pay all customary and typical filing and permit processing fees imposed for Subsequent Development Approvals as required under ordinances and resolutions then in effect.

		4.3.2 Development Impact Fees.  Development impact fees or charges imposed by the City on and in connection with a development or other similar fees or charges imposed by other governmental entities regardless of whether the City is required to collec...

		4.3.3 Procedural Requirements.  Procedural regulations relating to hearing bodies, petitions, applications, notices, findings, records, hearings, reports, recommendations, appeals, and any other matter of procedure.

		4.3.4 Taxes of General Applicability.  Any law, ordinance, or resolution that imposes a general or special tax of general applicability to be applied uniformly to business and/or development in the City, whether such tax is for licensing or other purp...

		4.3.5 Uniform Codes.  This Agreement does not prevent the City from adopting and amending in compliance with State law certain uniform codes or uniform standards which are based on recommendations of a multi-state professional organization, and which ...

		4.3.6 Regulation by Other Public Agencies.  It is acknowledged by the parties that other public agencies not within the control of City possess authority to regulate aspects of the development of the Property separately from or jointly with City and t...



		4.4 Changes and Amendments.  Substantial changes to the Project or the Existing Development Approvals and amendments of this Agreement shall be subject to the following:

		4.4.1 Amendment or Cancellation of Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or canceled in whole or in part only by mutual consent of the parties and in the manner provided for in Government Code Sections 65868, 65867, and 65867.5.  The provisions of...

		4.4.2 Review by City Council.  Any amendment to this Agreement shall require review and approval by the City Council.





		5. Rights of Mortgagees.

		5.1 Mortgagee Protection.  Neither entering into this Agreement nor committing a Default under this Agreement shall defeat, render invalid, diminish, affect the priority or impair the lien of Mortgagees having a Mortgage on any portion of the Property...

		5.2 Notice of Default to Mortgagee; Right to Cure.

		5.2.1 If the City Clerk timely receives notice from a Mortgagee requesting a copy of any Notice of Default given to Developer under the terms of the Agreement, the City shall provide a copy of that notice to the Mortgagee concurrently with sending the...

		5.2.2 The Mortgagee shall have the right, but not the obligation, for a period up to ninety (90) days after the receipt of such notice from the City to cure or remedy, or to commence to cure or remedy, the Default unless a further extension of time to...

		5.2.3 Such diligence by the Mortgagee on effectuating such cure shall be reviewed by the City Council every thirty (30) days thereafter until any and all Defaults are cured.  If at any such review, the City Council determines that the Mortgagee is not...



		5.3 Cure by Mortgagee.  In the event any obligation of Developer is for the payment of money or fees, other than standard permit or processing fees, and a Default is declared by City based upon such failure to pay, a Mortgagee may be granted an extend...

		5.4 Mortgagee Rights.  The parties hereto agree that this Agreement shall not prevent or limit Developer, in any manner, at Developer's sole discretion, from encumbering the Property or any portion thereof or any improvement thereon by any mortgage, d...



		6. INDEMNITY, insurance and release

		6.1 Participation in Litigation: Indemnity.  The Developer shall indemnify, protect and defend the City and its elected boards, commissions, officers, agents and employees (each, an “Agent”) and will hold and save them and each of them harmless from a...

		The Developer’s obligation to pay the cost of the action, including judgment, shall extend until judgment.  After judgment in a trial court, the Parties may mutually agree as to whether any appeal will be taken or defended.  The Developer shall have t...

		6.2 Survival of Indemnity Obligations.  All indemnity provisions set forth in this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason other than the City’s Default.

		6.3 Insurance.  Developer shall maintain insurance in the amounts and of the types that are acceptable to the City as required under the Cannabis Business License.

		6.4 Release.  Except for non-damage remedies, including the remedy of specific performance as provided for in Section 8.6 [Legal and Equitable Actions], Developer, for itself, its successors and assignees, hereby releases the City, its officers, agent...



		7. PERIODIC REVIEW PROCEDURE

		7.1 Timing.  Pursuant to Government Code § 65865.1, City shall review this Developer’s compliance with the terms, conditions, and covenants of this Agreement.  Such review shall be undertaken at least once during every twelve (12) month period from th...

		7.2 Evidence for Annual Review.  Developer shall deliver to City within thirty (30) days of each anniversary of the Effective Date evidence to demonstrate the Developer’s good faith compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including but not limite...

		7.3 Certificate of Compliance.  With respect to each year for which an annual review of compliance with this Agreement is conducted, and for which the City has determined that Developer is in good faith compliance with this Agreement, the City, upon w...



		8. DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

		8.1 Default.  Either party’s failure or unreasonable delay in performing any term, provision or covenant of this Agreement constitutes a Default of this Agreement.  In the event of a Default, the injured party shall give written “Notice of Default” to...

		8.2 Default by Developer.  Developer is in default under this Agreement upon the happening of one or more of the following events or conditions and failure to cure such default in accordance with Section 8.1 hereof:

		8.2.1 If a warranty, representation, or statement made or furnished by Developer to City is false or proves to have been false in any material respect when it was made.

		8.2.2 More than forty-five (45) days have passed since City's making of a written request to Developer for payment or reimbursement for a fee or service authorized or agreed to pursuant to this Agreement.

		8.2.3 A finding and determination by City that upon the basis of information provided by Developer, and reviewed and investigated by City, the Developer has not complied in good faith with one or more of the material terms or conditions of this Agreem...

		8.2.4 Developer failed to substantially comply with any material term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement, including failing to timely provide the evidence required under Section 7.2 of this Agreement.



		8.3 Default by City.  If City has failed to cure it’s Default after notice and an opportunity to cure as provided in Section 8.1. [Default], Developer may pursue any legal or equitable remedy available to it under this Agreement without further notice...

		8.4 No Recovery for Monetary Damages.  As part of the bargained for consideration for this Agreement, the Parties agree that any action or proceeding to cure, correct or remedy any Default or to enforce any covenant or promise herein shall be limited ...

		For purposes of enforcement, stated positively, the Parties shall have the equitable remedies of specific performance, injunctive and declaratory relief, or a mandate or other action determining that the City has exceed its authority, and similar reme...

		In the event the Developer fails to perform any monetary obligation under this Agreement, City may sue for the payment of such sums to the extent due and payable.  The Developer shall pay interest thereon at the lesser of: (i) five percent (5%) per an...

		8.5 Waiver.  Failure or delay in giving Notice of Default, or failing to commence a legal or equitable action as a result of the Default, shall not waive a Party's right to give future Notice of the same or any other Default.

		8.6 Legal and Equitable Actions.  In addition to any other rights and remedies, any party may institute a legal action to require the cure of any Default and to recover damages (except as otherwise provided herein) for any Default, or to obtain any ot...

		8.6.1 Jurisdiction and Venue.  Legal actions must be instituted and maintained in the Superior Court of the County of Riverside, Central Division, State of California, or in the United States District Court for the Central District of California.  Dev...

		8.6.2 Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement.

		8.6.3 Litigation Expenses.  In the event either party commences an Action against the other party which arises out of a Default of, breach of, failure to perform this Agreement or otherwise related to this Agreement, then the Prevailing Party in the A...

		8.6.4 Specific Performance Remedy.  The City and Developer agree that damages would not be an adequate remedy if the City fails to carry out its obligations under this Agreement.  Therefore, no money damages are available against City, or any officer,...



		8.7 Remedies are Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Parties are cumulative, and the exercise by a party of one or more of its rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different time, of any other rights or remed...

		8.8 Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following:

		8.8.1 Expiration of the term stated in section 2.2;

		8.8.2 Mutual written consent of the parties;

		8.8.3 Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1) expires pursuant to Wildomar Municipal Code Section 17.200.060, or is revoked pursuant to Wildomar Municipal Code Section 17.200.070;

		8.8.4 Developer’s Cannabis Business License or State License is revoked, or Developer fails to timely renew its Cannabis Business License or State License and Developer is without either license for a period of at least thirty (30) consecutive days;

		8.8.5 Entry of a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction setting aside, voiding or annulling the adoption of the ordinance approving this Agreement;

		8.8.6 The adoption of a referendum measure overriding or repealing the ordinance approving this Agreement;

		8.8.7 Developer no longer has a legal or equitable interest in the Property or has ceased operating the Project on the Property, for a period of at least thirty (30) consecutive days;

		8.8.8 Developer (or any successor in interest) assigns or attempts to assign the Agreement or any rights therein in violation of this Agreement and fails to cure such default within the time set forth in Section 8.1 [Default] hereof;

		8.8.9 Developer is otherwise in material Default of this Agreement and fails to cure such Default within the time set forth in Section 8.1 [Default] hereof.



		8.9 Revocation of CUP.  The execution and recordation of this Agreement is a condition of approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 20-0078(R1) pursuant to Section 17.315.080(A)(7) of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  Developer understands and agrees that te...



		9. GENERAL PROVISIONS

		9.1 Waiver of Challenges.  In exchange for the vested right to develop pursuant to this Agreement, Developer expressly waives for himself and for any successor thereto, the right to challenge or contest the validity of any condition of approval attach...

		9.2 Bankruptcy. The obligations of this Agreement shall not be dischargeable in bankruptcy.

		9.3 Assignment.  The rights and obligations of Developer hereunder shall not be assigned or transferred, except that on thirty (30) days written notice to City, Developer may assign all or a portion of Developer’s rights and obligations there under to...

		9.4 Enforced Delays; Extension of Times.  In addition to specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by either party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in Default, and all performance and other dates specified in this Agreement shall be extend...

		9.5 Binding Effect of Agreement.  The burdens of this Agreement bind, and the benefits of the Agreement inure to the successors-in-interest to the parties to it in accordance with the provisions of and subject to the limitations of this Agreement.

		9.6 Project as a Private Undertaking/Relationship of Parties.  It is specifically understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the development of the Project is a private development, that neither party is acting as the agent of the ot...

		9.7 Notices.  All notices required or provided for under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or sent by registered mail, postage prepaid to the person and address provided below.  Delivery shall be presumed delivered upon actual...

		9.8 Further Actions and Instruments.  Each of the Parties shall cooperate with and provide reasonable assistance to the other to the extent necessary to implement this Agreement.  Upon the request of either Party at any time, the other Party shall pro...

		9.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and Developer.  No other parties or entities are intended to be, or shall be considered, a beneficiary of the performance of any of the parties’ obliga...

		9.10 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the attachments hereto contain the complete, final, entire, and exclusive expression of the agreement between the parties hereto, and are intended by the parties to completely state the agreement in full.  An...

		9.11 Recitals and Definitions.  The Recitals and Definitions set forth at the beginning of this Agreement are a substantive and integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated by reference in the Operative Provisions portion of this Agreement.

		9.12 Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof.

		9.13 Titles and Captions.  Titles and captions are for convenience of reference only and do not define, describe or limit the scope or the intent of this Agreement or any of its terms.  References to section numbers are to Sections of this Agreement u...

		9.14 Interpretation.  City and Developer acknowledge that this Agreement is the product of mutual arms-length negotiation and drafting and each represents and warrants to the other that it has been represented by legal counsel in the negotiation and d...

		9.15 Computation of Time.  The time in which any act is to be done under this Agreement is computed by excluding the first day (such as the day escrow opens) and including the last day, unless the last day is a holiday or Saturday or Sunday, and then ...

		9.16 Severability.  Each provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole and in part, in this Agreement shall be considered severable.  In the event any provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole and/or in pa...

		9.17 Operating Memoranda.  The provisions of this Agreement require a close degree of cooperation between the City and the Developer. Clarifications to this Agreement and the Existing Land Use Regulations may be appropriate with respect to the details...

		9.18 Amendments to Agreement.  Each Party agrees to consider reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement which may be made by the other Party, lending institutions, bond counsel or financial consultants.  Any amendments to this Agreement must...

		9.19 Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to and incorporated into this Agreement:

		9.20 Authority to Execute.  Each party hereto expressly warrants and represents that he/she/they has/have the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of his/her/their corporation, partnership, business entity, or governmental entity and warrants...

		9.21 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which so fully executed counterpart shall be deemed an original.  No counterpart shall be deemed to be an original or presumed delivered unless and until the counterp...





		1.6 SR 2nd Reading Ord 208 campaign

		1.6 Campaign Contribution Limit Ordinance

		1.7 Minimum Wage Update and Position Classification Description Updates Jan 2022 final

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		1.7 Minimum Wage SR Exhibits

		Position Classification Schedule FY2021-22 effective 01-01-2022 v2

		COW - Salary Tables by 2.5% Pay Grade- 1-1-21 14 dollar min wage

		Sr Engineer - REVISED 12-15-2021



		1.8 SR - Final Map SIA and  Lien Agmt (TR32035)_EMS

		1.8 Attachments combined

		1.9 Staff Report - TR 31667 JCFA

		1.9 Attachments combined

		1.10 SR WRCOG JPA Update

		1.10-1WRCOG JPA Red-lined

		1.10-2 WRCOG JPA Clean

		1.11 SR Municipal Consulting Services Contract 12-15-2021

		1.11 Municipal Consulting Services LLC Consulting Services Contract 12-15-2021

		SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.

		SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

		SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

		SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

		SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS.

		SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

		SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES.

		SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS

		SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

		SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

		SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

		SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION.

		SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

		SECTION 17. INSURANCE.

		SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT.

		SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL.

		SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 21. DEFAULT.

		SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS.

		SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY.

		SECTION 24. NOTICES.

		SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.

		SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION.

		SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT.

		SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.

		SECTION 29. WAIVER.

		SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE.

		SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES.

		SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY.

		SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS.

		CITY OF WILDOMAR

		ATTEST:

		APPROVED AS TO FORM

		MUNICPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC

		NOTE:      SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY.

		EXHIBIT "A" SCOPE OF SERVICES

		I. Service Provider will perform the following Services:



		EXHIBIT "B" COMPENSATION

		I. Service Provider shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the Services:



		EXHIBIT "C" INSURANCE



		1.12 Staff Report Agreement Authorization

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		1.12 Attachments (combined)

		Attachment A

		Attach. A. - Services Agmt

		APPROVALS

		EXHIBIT A

		VICINITY/CITY PROJECT MAP



		Attachment B

		Attach. B - County Bid Results (Wildomar page)

		Attachment C

		Attach. C - Improvement Plans (Wildomar pages)

		Attachment D

		Attach. D - Notice of Exemption



		1.13 REVISED GANN Limit FY20-21 SR, Resokution final

		1.13 REVISED S Tax GANN Limit Calculation Est FY20-21 12-02-2021 final

		1.14 REVISED GANN Limit FY21-22 SR, Resolution final

		1.14 REVISED S Tax GANN Limit Calculation Est FY21-22 12-06-2021 final

		1.15 Award Annual Grant Calif Consult

		1.15 Attachment Grant Writer

		Attachment A

		A. RFP Grant Writing Services.Final

		RFP Grant Writing Services.20211115

		CITY OF WILDOMAR

		Request for Proposals



		Wildomar - FORM Agreement For Services (Standard Form)

		SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.

		(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

		(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement. ...



		SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.

		SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

		(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement f...

		(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, material...

		(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s corre...

		(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider.



		SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

		SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

		SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS.

		(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled che...

		(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copie...

		(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, requi...



		SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

		(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Service Provider shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability o...

		(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and control.  Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, emplo...

		(c) Neither Service Provider , nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly waives any...



		SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES.

		SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS

		SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

		SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

		SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

		(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service...

		(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is ...

		(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be cons...



		SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION.

		(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall no...

		(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testi...

		(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provide...

		(d) Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admi...



		SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

		(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Cit...

		(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of it...

		(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involv...

		(d) Limitation of Indemnification.  Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, design professionals are required to defend and indemnify the City only to the extent permitted by Civil Code Section 2782.8, which limits the liability...

		(e) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissi...



		SECTION 17. INSURANCE.

		SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT.

		SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL.

		SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

		(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress.

		(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City.

		(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.

		(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work...



		SECTION 21. DEFAULT.

		SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS.

		SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY.

		SECTION 24. NOTICES.

		SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.

		SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION.

		This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that comm...



		SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT.

		SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.

		SECTION 29. WAIVER.

		SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE.

		SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES.

		SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY.

		SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS.





		Attachment B

		B.California Consulting Proposal

		CITY OF WILDOMAR COVER FINAL SUBMISSION

		City of Wildomar CONTENT FINAL



		Attachment C

		C.Services Agreement for California Consulting

		SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.

		(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

		(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement. ...



		SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.

		SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

		(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement f...

		(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, material...

		(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s corre...

		(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider.



		SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

		SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

		SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS.

		(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled che...

		(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copie...

		(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, requi...



		SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

		(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to be inconsistent with this relationship or status.  Service Provider sha...

		(b) Service Provider shall perform all Services as an independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role.  Service provider shall be solel...

		(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any privileges or rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider express...



		SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES.

		SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS

		SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

		SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

		SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

		(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service...

		(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is ...

		(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be cons...



		SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION.

		(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall no...

		(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testi...

		(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provide...



		SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

		(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Cit...

		(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of it...

		(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involv...

		(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissi...



		SECTION 17. INSURANCE.

		SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT.

		SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL.

		SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

		(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress.

		(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City.

		(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.

		(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work...



		SECTION 21. DEFAULT.

		SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS.

		SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY.

		SECTION 24. NOTICES.

		SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.

		SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION.

		This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that comm...



		SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT.

		SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.

		SECTION 29. WAIVER.

		SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE.

		SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES.

		SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY.

		SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS.





		1.16 Staff Report FY2020-21 Annual DIF Report

		1.16-1 Wildomar DIF Report 2021 Part 1 of Attachment

		1.16-2 Wildomar DIF_Summary_Report_FY2021 Part 2 of Attachment

		2.2 SR - DIF Update

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - __

		Dustin Nigg

		Mayor

		ATTEST:

		Janet Morales, CMC

		City Clerk

		APPROVED AS TO FORM:

		Thomas Jex,

		City Attorney



		2.2 Reso. Exhibit A - DIF Study

		3.1 COVID-19 Update

		3.2-1 SR - 5th Amendment to CRR Agreement -12-15-2021

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		3.2-2 5th Amendment to Franchise Agreement - CRR - FINAL

		OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

		1. DEFINITIONS.

		1.1 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to delete the definitions of “Compost,” “Compost Facility,” “Extremely Hazardous Waste,” “Solid Waste Facility,” and “System Facility.”

		1.2 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to add or amend, as applicable, the following definitions:



		2. SCOPE OF FRANCHISE.  All references to “Green Waste” in Section 3 (Grant and Term of Exclusive Franchise) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.”

		3. OWNERSHIP OF WASTE. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 6 (Ownership of Solid Waste) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.”

		4. FRANCHISE FEES. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 15 (Franchise Fees) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.”

		5. PROCUREMENT. A new paragraph E (Procurement) is added to Section 16 (Other Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows:

		6. CONTAINERS. A new paragraph J (Container Requirements) is added to Section 5 (Services Provided by Franchisee) to read as follows:

		7. IDENTIFICATION OF FACILITIES.  A new paragraph K (Identification of Facilities) is added to Section 16 (Other Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows:

		8. PROVIDED SERVICES.  Exhibit “A” (Provided Services) is amended in its entirety to read as shown in Exhibit A-1 to this 5th Amendment.

		9. DIVERSION SERVICES.

		9.1 Section 5, paragraph H (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from the Agreement.

		9.2 Exhibit “H” (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from the Agreement.



		10. INDEMNIFICATION.  A new paragraph H is added to Section 8 of the Agreement to read as follows:

		11. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

		11.1 Remainder Unchanged.  Except as specifically modified and amended in this Fifth Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect and binding upon the parties.

		11.2 Integration.  This Fifth Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the transaction discussed in this F...

		11.3 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. All counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one agreement.

		11.4 Effective Date.  This Fifth Amendment shall not become effective until January 1, 2022.

		11.5 Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of this Fifth Amendment.

		11.6 References.  All references to the Agreement include all their respective terms and provisions.  All defined terms utilized in this Fifth Amendment have the same meaning as provided in the Agreement, unless expressly stated to the contrary in thi...





		3.3-1 SR - 5th Amendment to Waste Management Agreement -12-15-2021

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		3.3-2 5th Amendment to Franchise Agreement - Waste Management - FINAL

		OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

		1. DEFINITIONS.

		1.1 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to delete the definitions of “Compost,” “Compost Facility,” “Extremely Hazardous Waste,” “Solid Waste Facility,” and “System Facility.”

		1.2 Section 2 (Definitions) of the Agreement is amended to add or amend, as applicable, the following definitions:



		2. SCOPE OF FRANCHISE.  All references to “Green Waste” in Section 3 (Grant and Term of Exclusive Franchise) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.”

		3. OWNERSHIP OF WASTE. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 6 (Ownership of Solid Waste) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.”

		4. FRANCHISE FEES. All references to “Green Waste” in Section 15 (Franchise Fees) shall be changed to “Organic Waste.”

		5. PROCUREMENT. A new paragraph E (Procurement) is added to Section 16 (Other Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows:

		6. CONTAINERS. A new paragraph J (Container Requirements) is added to Section 5 (Services Provided by Franchisee) to read as follows:

		7. IDENTIFICATION OF FACILITIES.  A new paragraph K (Identification of Facilities) is added to Section 16 (Other Requirements) of the Agreement to read as follows:

		8. PROVIDED SERVICES.  Exhibit “A” (Provided Services) is amended in its entirety to read as shown in Exhibit A-1 to this Fifth Amendment.

		9. DIVERSION SERVICES.

		9.1 Section 5, paragraph H (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from the Agreement.

		9.2 Exhibit “H” (Diversion Services) is hereby deleted in its entirety from the Agreement.



		10. INDEMNIFICATION.  A new paragraph I is added to Section 8 of the Agreement to read as follows:

		11. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

		11.1 Remainder Unchanged.  Except as specifically modified and amended in this Fifth Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect and binding upon the parties.

		11.2 Integration.  This Fifth Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the transaction discussed in this F...

		11.3 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. All counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one agreement.

		11.4 Effective Date.  This Fifth Amendment shall become effective January 1, 2022.

		11.5 Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of this Fifth Amendment.

		11.6 References.  All references to the Agreement include all their respective terms and provisions.  All defined terms utilized in this Fifth Amendment have the same meaning as provided in the Agreement, unless expressly stated to the contrary in thi...





		3.4 Staff Repot - 2022 Event Calendar

		3.5-1 Staff Report City Manager Contract Dan York

		3.5-2 City Manager Contract Dan York - Final

		1. Position and Duties.

		1.1 Position.  YORK accepts employment with CITY as its City Manager and shall perform all functions, duties and services set forth in Section 1.4 [Duties] of this Agreement.  YORK shall provide service at the direction and under the supervision of th...

		1.2 Commencement Date / Period of Employment.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall commence and will be effective as of February 1, 2022, provided that and subject to, approval of the Agreement by CITY’s City Council and execution of the Agree...

		1.3 At-Will.  YORK acknowledges that he is an at-will employee of CITY who shall, at all times, serve at the pleasure of the City Council during the period of his service hereunder.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or does, confer upon YORK ...

		1.4 Duties.  YORK shall serve as CITY’s City Manager and shall be vested with the powers, duties and responsibilities of the City Manager set forth in Chapter 2.08 of the WMC, as may be amended from time to time, the terms of which are incorporated he...

		1.5 Hours of Work.  YORK shall devote the time necessary to adequately perform his duties as City Manager.  The Parties expect that a minimum of forty (40) hours per week including time outside of the normal business hours, will be required to satisfy...

		1.6 Regional and Professional Activity.  The City Council desires YORK to be reasonably active in national, statewide, regional and professional organizations that will contribute to City Manager’s professional development and standing and that will c...

		1.7 Other Activity.  In accordance with Government Code section 1126, during the period of his employment, YORK shall not accept, without the express prior written consent of the City Council, any other employment or engage, directly or indirectly, in...

		1.8 Reimbursement.  CITY shall reimburse YORK for reasonable and necessary travel, subsistence and other business expenses incurred by YORK in the performance of his duties.  All reimbursements shall be subject to and in accordance with California law...



		2. Compensation.

		2.1 Base Salary.  YORK shall receive an annual base salary of Two Hundred Forty Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100 ($245,000.00) paid on a pro-rated basis according to the bi-weekly payroll schedule in place for CITY employees.  Such base salary shall b...

		2.2 Adjustments to Compensation.  YORK’s base salary will be evaluated each year during YORK’s annual performance evaluation.  Any adjustment in YORK’s annual base salary, cost of living adjustment (COLA), merit increases, adjustments in benefits or o...

		2.3 Benefits.  CITY intends to provide YORK benefits generally consistent with those provided to CITY employees.  The benefits to be provided to YORK are as follows:

		2.3.1 Health Insurance.

		(a) Active Employment.  YORK shall be provided with a Cafeteria Plan, which will be administered by the CITY pursuant to section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.  CITY’s contribution to the Cafeteria Plan will be One Thousand Two Hundred and 00/100 (...

		(b) Retiree Health.  If YORK retires from CITY employment, the CITY shall pay YORK’s and dependent(s)’ health benefits coverage for YORK and his dependent(s), the same as during active employment.  Upon reaching the minimum Medicare age eligibility...

		2.3.2 This Section Intentionally Blank

		2.3.3 Life Insurance.

		(a) Active Employment.  CITY will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premium for YORK and dependent General Universal life insurance coverage contracted by CITY.  The benefit coverage under such program is as follows:

		YORK shall control the designation of any and all beneficiaries.

		2.3.4 Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Sick Leave.  YORK may use accumulated but unused sick leave while on an absence due to an industrial injury in addition to any worker’s compensation payment; the combination of the two shall not exceed one hun...

		2.3.5 Retirement.  The CITY intends to maintain its current retirement plan with the State of California's Public Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS”) and to continue to include YORK thereunder as a “New Member,” as that term is defined in PEPRA, a...

		2.3.6 Deferred Compensation.  The CITY will contribute eight percent (8%) of YORK’s annual base salary, up to the maximum allowable amount under the law, to YORK’s deferred compensation plan.

		2.3.7 Holidays.  YORK shall be entitled to those holidays granted to CITY employees, which consist of the following:

		2.3.7 Holidays.  YORK shall be entitled to those holidays granted to CITY employees, which consist of the following:



		2.4 Vacation and Leave.

		2.4.1 Vacation.  YORK may accrue vacation leave without any limit or vacation accrual cap. YORK shall accrue vacation leave at the rate of (6.92308) hours per pay period or one hundred eighty (180) hours per fiscal year.

		2.4.2 Sick Leave.  YORK shall accumulate sick leave, without any limit or sick leave accrual cap, at the rate of eight (8) hours per month or ninety-six (96) hours per fiscal year.  Should YORK separate, whether by termination or resignation, from CIT...

		2.4.3 Administrative Leave.  Beginning each fiscal year on July 1, YORK will be credited with eighty (80) hours administrative leave per fiscal year.  Accrual of administrative leave hours is capped at eighty (80) hours total.  For the basis of record...

		2.4.4 Cash Out of Vacation, Sick Leave, and Administrative Leave.  YORK shall be eligible to cash out up to two hundred (200) hours of Vacation and/or Sick Leave, combined, and up to seventy (70) hours of Administrative Leave each fiscal year.  The ca...

		2.4.5 Bereavement Leave.  In the event YORK is absent from work by reason of a death in the immediate family, he may be allowed a leave of absence with pay.  YORK may be allowed up to three (3) cumulative working days, thirty (30) hours, per occurrenc...



		2.5 Miscellaneous Benefits.

		2.5.1 Vehicle Allowance.  YORK shall receive a monthly cash allowance of six hundred fifty and 00/100 dollars ($650.00).

		2.5.2 Jury Duty.  YORK may be absent with pay for jury duty subject to CITY’s Jury Duty Leave as detailed in Rule XI (H) of the CITY’s Personnel Rules.

		2.5.3 Related Business Equipment.  YORK shall receive a monthly cellphone allowance and internet allowance of one hundred twenty and 00/100 dollars ($120.00).  In addition, at YORK’s option, and in recognition of the fact YORK may be required to perfo...





		3. Termination.

		3.1 By Employee Not-for-Cause.  YORK may terminate this Agreement for any reason, and at any time, with or without cause, by providing CITY with thirty (30) days prior written notice thereof, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in or ar...

		3.2 BY CITY Not-for-Cause.  Subject to an affirmative vote of the majority of the members of the City Council, the CITY may terminate this Agreement for any reason, and at any time, without cause, by providing YORK with thirty (30) days prior written ...

		3.3 By City for Cause.  CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at any time by providing YORK written notice of his termination for cause.  No Severance or any further salary shall be paid in the event YORK’s employment is terminated for cause e...

		3.4 Termination Obligations.  YORK agrees that all property, including, without limitation, all equipment, tangible Proprietary Information (as defined below), documents, records, notes, contracts, and computer-generated materials furnished to or prep...

		3.5 Benefits Upon Termination.  All benefits to which YORK is entitled under this Agreement shall cease upon YORK’s termination in accordance with this Section 3, unless expressly continued either under this Agreement, under any specific written polic...

		3.6 Reimbursement Under Certain Circumstances.  YORK acknowledges that Government Code section 53243 through 53243.4, inclusive, may require YORK to reimburse CITY for certain payments made by CITY to YORK during the term of his employment with CITY s...



		4. Proprietary Information.

		“Proprietary Information” is all information and any idea pertaining in any manner to the business of CITY (or any CITY affiliate), its employees, clients, consultants, or business associates, which was produced by any employee of CITY in the course o...

		5. Conflict Of Interest.

		YORK represents and warrants to CITY that he presently has no interest, and represents that he will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or interfere in any way with performance of hi...

		6. General Provisions.

		6.1 Vehicle Operation.  YORK shall operate any vehicle used in connection with the performance of his duties as City Manager in a safe manner and otherwise in observance of all established traffic safety laws and ordinances and shall maintain a valid ...

		6.2 Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective upon delivery by hand or three (3) business days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified ...

		6.3 Indemnification.  Subject to, in accordance with, and to the extent provided by the California Tort Claims Act [Gov. Code section 810 et seq.], CITY will indemnify, defend, and hold YORK harmless from and against any claim, action, demand, suit, m...

		6.4 Bonding.  The CITY shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of the City Manager under any law or ordinance.

		6.5 Integration.  This Agreement is intended to be the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of YORK’s employment by CITY.  This Agreement supersedes all other prior and contemporaneous agreements and statements, whether written or ora...

		6.6 Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended except in a written document signed by YORK, approved by the City Council, and signed by CITY’s Mayor.

		6.7 Waiver.  Failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such right.

		6.8 Assignment.  YORK shall not assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement.

		6.9 Severability.  If a court or arbitrator holds any provision of this Agreement to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

		6.10 Attorneys’ Fees.  In any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding brought to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

		6.11 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, with venue proper only in Riverside County, State of California.

		6.12 Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not in favor of or against any Party.  By way of example and not in limitation, this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of the Party receivin...

		6.13 Acknowledgment.  YORK acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to consult legal counsel in regard to this Agreement, that he has read and understands this Agreement, that he is fully aware of its legal effect, and that he has entered into it ...

		IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY has caused this Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor and duly attested to by its City Clerk, and YORK has signed and executed this Agreement, as of the date first indicated above.



		City Manager’s Address:

		City’s Notice Address:

		[Deliver to last updated address in personnel file.]

		City of WildomarAttn:  Mayor, City Council and City Attorney

		23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 Wildomar, CA 92595



		3.6 SR Mayor & Mayor Pro Tem Appt

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		3.6-1 Mayor Mayor Pro Tem Attachment

		3.7-1 SR Committees, Boards

		Meeting Date: December 15, 2021



		3.7-2 Council Committees as of 12-09-20

		4.1 11-10-2021 Minutes

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM November 2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM November 2021 Voucher Listings

		110421 cemetery district fy 22

		111121 cemetery district fy 22

		111821 cemetery district fy 22

		112421 cemetery district fy 22



		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM October 2021

		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM October 2021 Detail

		T OCT 2021





		MD 5: MD 11

		SD 5: SD 1

		PG 5: 41, 72

		St 5: 8

		of 1: 39






